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IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Walton N. Moore Dry Goods Go. (a

corporation), J. H. Newbauer &

Company (a corporation), G. W.
Reynolds Co., Inc. (a cor])oration),

and L. Dinkelspiel Co., Inc. (a cor-

poration),

Appellants,

vs.

A. F. Lieurance and Phillip A. Her-

SHEY as Receivers of R. A. Pilcher

Co., Inc. (a corporation), Bankrupt,

Appellees.

^ In Equity

No. 5660

OPENING BRIEF FOR OBJECTING CREDITORS.

This is a proceeding in equity originating in the

United States District Court in and for the Southern

Division of the State of New York (hereinafter re-

ferred to as "Eastern Jurisdiction"), extended

through anciUary proceedings into the States of Cali-

fornia, Oregon, and Washington, and into the juris-

diction of the Southern Division of the United States

District Court in and for the Northern District of

California; the United States District Court, in and

for the Eastern District of Washington ; the United



states District Court in and for tlie Western District

of Washington ; and the United States District Court

in and for the District of Oregon. These jurisdic-

tions will hereinafter be referred to as the "Western

Jurisdictions."

R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., had been operating sixteen

(16) so-called chain stores, engaged in the merchan-

dising business and which were each and all located

in the States of California, Oregon, and Washington.

Its office headquarters, however, was located in New

York City, and practically all its purchases for all

of its stores were made through and by that office.

Arthur F. Gotthold and A. F. Lieurance were

originally appointed temporary Receivers in the New

York jurisdiction; and shortly thereafter they were

appointed temporary and ancillary Receivers in each

of the western jurisdictions. Subsequently all of

these appointments were made permanent.

McManus, Ernst & Ernst, a New York firm of at-

torneys, on behalf of the creditors of R. A. Pilcher

Co., Inc., instituted the origmal proceedings in the

New York jurisdiction, and immediately after his

appointment and qualification as one of the two Re-

ceivers, they were employed by Arthur F. Gotthold to

represent the Receivers.

Mr. Gotthold lived in New York City, and approxi-

mately three-fourths of the creditors in amount of

indebtedness were located there.

Subsequently A. F. Lieurance who resided in Oak-

land, California, employed Edward R. Eliassen to

act as his attornev as one of the two Receivers.



As the work progressed, an understanding between

the Receivers was reached to the effect that A. F.

Lieurance should direct the work of the Receivers in

the western jurisdictions, and that Arthur F. Gotthold

should direct the work of the Receivers in the eastern

jurisdiction, and that they would cooperate as closely

as possible and keep each other informed regarding

matters in their respective territories.

QUESTIONS INVOLVED IN THIS APPEAL.

This is an appeal by certain objecting creditors for

the benefit of all the creditors of R. A. Pitcher Co.,

Inc., from a judgment and decree of the United States

District Court for the Northern District of California,

Southern Division; and particularly from that part

of its judgment and decree wherein and whereby it

overruled the objections and exceptions of the appel-

lants to the report and findings of the special master

theretofore appointed therein by that court and ap-

proving, ratifying, and confirming the final accounts

and reports of the Receivers therein and particularly

as to the items of $10,000 paid and $769.71 ordered

to be paid, respectively, to Phillip A. Hershey for al-

leged services as accountant ; and also particularly that

part of that judgment and decree which allows and
fixes the sum of $35,000 as the compensation of A.
F. Lieurance as one of the two Receivers in said ac-

tion, and also particularly that part of that judgment
and decree which allows and fixes the sum of $30,000
as compensation to be paid to Edward R. Eliassen



as the attorney for said Receiver A. F. Lieurance.

It is contended by appellants that all of these allow-

ances are excessive.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

R. A. Pilcher had formerly been connected in somf

minor capacity and as an employee and subordinate

to A. F. Lieurance with the so-called chain stores of

the J. C. Penney Company. A. F. Lieurance had

been a stockholder in and an employee of that cor-

poration for a period of years and had retired there-

from a few years before his appointment as Receiver

herein.

When R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., became financially

embarrassed, a meeting of its creditors was called

and took place in New York City. The total amount

of indebtedness of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., at that

time was approximately $725,000.00. Its assets in-

cluding money in bank, merchandise, store fixtures,

etc., were believed to exceed in value the total amount

of its indetedness. Very shortly before that time, one

or more of its stockholders had jiurchased additional

stock to the amount of $75,000.00, and the whole of

that amount was then on deposit to its credit in a

New York bank. But it was then indebted to that

same bank in an amount a little in excess thereof.

R. A. Pilcher represented to the creditors that he

believed certain stockholders would purchase enough

additional shares of stock to enable him to refinance

the concern satisfactorily and continue its business,



if the creditors would agree to an extension of one

year's time for the payment of their respective debts.

A few attachment suits by small creditors had already

been commenced and other similar suits were being

threatened, and the great bulk in amount of creditors

concluded that it would be advisable to have tem-

porary Receivers appointed, until an agreement for

the aforesaid extension of one year's time for the

payment of debts (which they favored) could be cir-

culated among and signed by the respective creditors

for the purpose of enabling Mr. Pilcher to reorganize

and refinance R. A. Pilcher & Co., Inc., as aforesaid.

Accordingly this suit was thereupon originally in-

stituted in the United States District Court, in and

for the Southern Division for the State of New York.

The name of A. F. Lieurance to be appointed as one

of the Receivers was doubtless suggested by R. A.

Pilcher. Promptly thereafter the ancillary proceed-

ings were taken in the states of California, Oregon,

and Washington.

At the New York meeting the creditors had elected

a conmiittee to look after their atfairs, and William

Fraser was elected chairman of the committee, and

Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst acted as the legal

advisors of the committee and as attorneys for the

plaintiffs in the original suit, as well as for Arthur

F. Gotthold, the New York Receiver.

The creditors of the western jurisdictions also ap-

pointed a committee to represent them, and Mr. Wal-

ton N. Moore of the Walton N. Moore Dry Goods

Co. became the chairman of that committee as well



as a member of the original New York committee

which represented all the creditors. The Walton N.

Moore Dry Goods Co. was the largest western credi-

tor. Its claim was approximately $30,000.00. It was

a member of the Board of Trade of San Francisco,

and Mr. Moore suggested to Mr. Lieurance at their

first meeting that he thought, it would be in the in-

terest of all concerned if Mr. Lieurance as Receiver

would handle the receivership in the western juris-

dictions through the San Francisco Board of Trade

and employ its attorneys to represent him as Re-

ceiver, and thus secure the benefit of their wide and

varied experience in receivership matters. This Mr.

Lieurance immediately and positively refused to do.

Instead thereof, Mr. Lieurance employed Mr. Ed-

ward R. Eliassen of Oakland as attorney for the Re-

ceivers in the western jurisdictions, and rented offices

in the Central Bank Building in Oakland, California,

on the same floor as and adjoining the offices of Mr.

Eliassen. It is admitted by Mr. Eliassen that this

was his first experience as attorney for a Receiver.

Mr. Lieurance also at once employed Mr. Phillip

A. Hershey, an expert public accoimtant, to open a

set of books and establish an accounting system and

to supervise the accounts for the Receivers in the

western jurisdictions. Mr. Hershey had a large

amount of other business which he continued to take

care of, but he established an office in one of the rooms

occupied by Mr. Lieurance as Receiver, and there di-

rected the bookkeeping and other accounting work for

the Receivers in the western jurisdictions. He had

assistants who aided him in all of his work.



Receiver Lieuranee adopted and enforced the usual

practice in chain stores of requiring- all sales to be

made for cash only, and of furnishing each store

with blanks upon which it was required to make a

daily report, and to record in the proper column on

this report the daily sales, and in another column pre-

])ared for the purpose to report their local expendi-

tures which included freight, express, light, water,

heat, power, stamps, drayage, cartage, disposal of

waste, salaries to employees, and other minor ex-

penditures for local supplies such as sweeping com-

pound, brooms, repairs to light and plumbing fixtures,

and so forth. Most of these items were required to

l)e paid for by check on their local banks where they

kept a small deposit for that purpose. However,

these cancelled vouchers, together with their bank

statements were subject to withdrawal only by Re-

ceiver Lieuranee, and w^ere regularly collected at his

general office in Oakland for the purpose of checking

up the daily reports and of keeping the records and

accounts of the Receivers in the office at Oakland.

The managers of all stores were further instructed

and required to retain in their cash drawers two

hundred dollars as a revolving fund and change, and
to deposit their daily sales in their local banks to the

account of "R. A. Pilcher Co.—A. F. Lieuranee Co.

—

Receiver," and to send each day to Receiver Lieur-

anee at his Oakland office a draft for the full amomit
of each day's sales less the local daily expenditures,

all of which were accomited for on the daily reports.

The system of bookkeeping which Mr. Hershey in-

stalled at the office of Receiver Lieuranee in Oakland
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consisted merely of a journal and ledger for each of

the sixteen stores and then a composite journal and

ledger for the receivership in which the result of the

other sixteen journals and ledgers were combined and

compiled. The keeping of separate ])ooks for each

store sunplified the entire matter and made it easy

for the Receiver subsequently to make a separate ac-

count for each of the fourth western jurisdictions if

it had become necessary so to do. All the transactions

in all the different stores were on a cash basis with

the single exception of a comparatively few transfers

of goods from one store to another. The system was

very simple and the bookkeeping was far from being

complicated or difficult. A woman bookkeeper was

employed regularly by Receiver Lieurance during

the entire period of the receivership, and it is ad-

mitted by both Mr. Hershey and Receiver Lieurance

that she was a competent bookkeeper and able to keep

those books after the system liad been inaugurated

by Mr. Hershey, who admits that it took him three

to five days only within which to formulate and in-

stall the system. This woman bookkeeper was paid

a salary of only $27.50 per week.

In the meantime, Arthur F. Gotthold, as Receiver,

had employed in New York City the expert ac-

countant firm of S. D. Leidesdorf & Co. to do similar

work for the Receivers in the eastern jurisdiction.

All the books of account of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc.,

were in New York City and were thus made available

and turned over to S. D. Leidesdorf & Co., and, as

stated before, the great bulk of the creditors of R. A.



Pilclier Co., Inc., were located in the eastern juris-

diction.

The appointment of Arthur F. Gotthold and A. F.

Lieurance as temporary Receivers was made by

United States District Judge Augustus N. Hand on

June 3, 1926, and sliortly thereafter, to wit, on or

about June 9, 1926, their appointment as temporary

Receivers was made by the respective western juris-

dictions.

Mr. Lieurance .immediately proceeded to organize

the conduct of the business of the sixteen stores con-

stituting the chain. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Ernst

made a visit to California and held a conference with

Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen in relation to the

condition and the conduct of the business and he re-

ported back to Mr. Gotthold in New York City. An
understanding was reached between the Receivers to

the effect that Mr. Lieurance had assumed and would

continue the direction of the actual conduct of the

business in all of the stores and that Mr. Gotthold

had assumed and would continue to direct all affairs

connected with the receivership which might arise in

the New York jurisdiction. Of course, the control of

the receivership was to be joint nevertheless.

Early in the month of August, 1926, Mr. Lieurance,

after conducting the business for two months only,

became confident that the stores could not be operated

at a profit, largely because the lease rents were too

high and the number of employees too great, and

that it was advisable to sell the stores as going con-

cerns, if possible. He so told Mr. Pilcher.
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On August 31, 1926, Mr. Lieurance had on hand as

assets of the receivership net cash amomitmg to the

sum of $228,178.08. At that time he reported this

fact to his co-Receiver, Arthur F. Gotthold, and

Messrs. McManus, Enist & Ernst, the attorneys in New

York City for the Receivers, and suggested that if

the business was to be continued for an appreciable

length of time, pending the refinancing of the busi-

ness by the stockholders of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc.,

the greater part of the cash on hand would have to

be expended for merchandise to supply the stores for

the coming fall season.

Receiver Gotthold and attorneys McManus, Ernst

& Ernst in turn conferred with a number of large

eastern creditors and Receiver Lieurance conferred

with a number of the large western creditors, and it

was found that the consensus of opinion among the

creditors was that the business could not be refinanced

and that the cash on hand should not be expended for

merchandise to replenish the stocks in the stores for

future operations, and that unless the stockholders

of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., gave definite assurance that

the business should be refinanced or a satisfactory

settlement made, the cash then on hand should be

preserved for distribution among the creditors, to-

gether with the proceeds of the sale of the remainder

of the property. Also that an effort then should be

made to sell the stores as going concerns.

This plan was carried out and the sale of each and

all of the stores as going concerns was advertised to

be and was made as of August 31, 1926.



11

Some difference of opinion arose between the two

Receivers as to the best method of making the sale.

Receiver Gotthold was inclined to the opinion that

the highest price could be obtained by selling all the

stores together as a chain; whereas Receiver Lieur-

ance entei'tained the opinion that the best price and

results could be obtained by selling the stores sep-

arately. The latter plan was adopted, and prospec-

tive purchasers were requested to make sealed bids

for each store separately, accompanied by a certified

check for a percentage of the purchase price. The

bids were opened and the sales consiunmated from

October 25 to November 3, 1926, and the aggregate

gross amount received for all the stores was the sum
of $257,600.00.

The stores had been conducted by the Receivers

during a period of substantially five months, to wit,

from June 3, 1926, the date of their appointment, to

November 3, 1926, the date of sale of the last store.

Of course, the conduct of the stores from August 31,

1926, until November 3, 1926, was for the direct bene-

fit of the prospective purchasers as well as for the

indirect benefit of the creditors of R. A. Pilcher Co.,

Inc. The purchase of additional merchandise during

that period of two months was kept at a minimum
and was only for the purpose of keeping the stocks

of the various stores properly balanced.

Shortly after this suit was originally commenced
in the New York jurisdiction to procure the appoint-

ment of temporary Receivers, it was deemed neces-

sary for the creditors to cause, and they did cause.



12

bankruptcy proceedings to be instituted against R.

A. Pilcher Co., Inc., in New York City in order to

destroy prior liens of a number of small attaching

creditors in the various jurisdictions. Afterwards it

was concluded by all parties concerned therein, how-

ever, that it would be equally economical and more

advantageous to the creditors of R. A. Pilcher Co.,

Inc., to keep the administration and liquidation of its

affairs through the receivership already in existence

instead of transferring its operation to the bank-

ruptcy court and thus to a receiver or trustee to be

appointed therein. Hence, no further steps were ever

taken by the creditors to pursue the bankruptcy pro-

ceedings.

Amount Available For Creditors, etc.

The net amount of money obtained by the Receivers

from the liquidation of all the assets of the receiver-

ship and which thus became available for the pay-

ment of creditors after there should first be deducted

therefrom the fees for the Receivers and their attor-

neys and other necessary expenses of the receivership

was the sum of $466,980.40.

The total amount of general claims filed with the

Receivers was $746,043.75 ; and the total amount there-

of which was allowed by tliem was $718,794.12.

The total amount of preferred claims filed with and

allowed by the ReceiA^ers was $5,816.34, and these were

all paid in full hy the Receivers.

Unnecessary Trip of Mr. Hershey to New York City.

The books of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., which as be-

fore stated were all kept in the City of New York,
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luid been permitted to lapse on the 28th day of Feb-

ruary, 1926, or in other words, had not been kept up

to date subsequent tliereto and ]3rior to the appoint-

ment of the Receivers on June 3, 1926.

After the sale of the stores had been consummated,

to-wit, after November 3, 1926, Receiver Lieurance

sent Mr. Ilershey to New York City for the avowed

purpose of cheeking up the correctness and amount of

claims of creditors of R. A. Pitcher Co., Inc., who

were entitled to participate in the receivership assets.

Receiver Lieurance then knew that the books and rec-

ords of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., relating- to this mat-

ter liad been for some time in the hands of a firm of

accountants who had been employed by Receiver

Gotthold, to-wit, the firm of S. D. Leidesdorf & Co.,

and tliat the great bulk of creditors were located in

and around New York City. Mr. Hershey was away
from Oakland on this trip during a period of a total

of thirty-eight days, and while in New York City he

worked with S. D. Leidesdorf & Co. in their offices

upon the books and records of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc.,

for the sole purpose just hereinbefore stated.

Compensation of Receivers and Their Attorneys.

The following telegraphic and letter correspondence

between the parties in interest explains quite fully the

manner in which the amount allowed by the trial court

as fees to Receiver A. F. Lieurance and his attorney,

Edward R. Eliassen, was reached:

''New York, N. Y., 1125A Dec. 6, 1926.
A. F. Lieurance, 1201 Central Bank Oakland,

Calif.

We are applying today for order declaring
dividend forty per cent, and also for allowances
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on account to receivers and ourselves. This is

without prejudice to and cannot jeopardize your
application in West for allowances to ancillary

receivers and Eliassen.

McManus, Ernst & Ernst. 901A."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 328.)

"New York, N. Y., 722P Dec. 7, 1926.

A. F. Lieurance, Esq., Central Bank Bldg., Oak-
land, Calif.

Order entered today by Judge A. N. Hand as

follows

:

'This cause having duly come on to be lieai'd on
this seventh day of December, 1926, on the third

report and petition of tlie receivers herein, and
after hearing Irving L. Ernst, Esq., of counsel

for the receivers, now, on motion of McManus,
Ernst & Ernst, attorneys for the receivei's, it is

hereby ordered and decreed, First: that all del)ts

entitled to priority for which proofs of claun have
been filed where such proofs of claim are neces-

sary, be paid in full. If the receivers doubt the

validity of any priority claims filed, the validity of

such claims will be determined in the manner here-

inafter set forth. Second: that a first dividend of

fortv per cent be declared and paid to all cred-

itors whose claims have been filed and allowed by
the receivers herein, and the receivers are hereby
authorized to accept proofs of claim in due form
from creditors whose claims appear on the l)ooks

of the defendant to be valid, notwithstanding that

the time limited for such filing has expired.

Third: Michael J. Cardozo, Esq., is hereby ap-
pointed special master to hear the objections filed

by the receivers to any and all chiims filed, or that

may hereafter be filed and to take the testimony
offered by the parties, and to report the same to

this court, with his opinion thereon.'

At request Creditors' C/onnnittee no allowances
were fixed for receivers or counsel until receiving
some indication from you what aggregate amount
you and Eliassen will request from Western
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jurisdictions. "Will you please wire use approxi-

mately what agg-reg'ate allowances will be so re-

quested.
McManus, Ernst & Ernst. 523 PM."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 328-330.)

''Seattle, Wash., Dec. 8, 1926.

A. F. Lieurance, 1401 Central Bank Bldg., Oak-
land, Calif.

William Frazer, Chairman Creditors' Commit-
tee wants my views by wire on full and final com-
pensation for Ernst, (Grotthold, Eliassen and your-

self. Judge Hand has asked for our views and
suggestions. Please wire me amounts you and
Mr. Eliassen expect.

A. V. Love. 420A Dec. 9."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 330.)

"Oakland, California, December 8, 1926.

McManus, Ernst & Ernst, 170 Broadway, New
York City, N. Y.

Replying to your telegram December 7th. No
amount on account for attorneys and receivers in

ancillary jurisdiction will be suggested by us.

However, will ask for allowances on account, but

amounts will be left entirely to discretion of

courts. Feel this best and most fair method to

pursue. Have not slightest idea of what courts

will do, but feel they will be fair to both creditors

and ourselves.
A. F. Lieurance."

(Transcript of Record, Volume I, page 331.)

"New York, N. Y., 1051A Dec. 8, 1926.

A. F. Lieurance, 1401 Central Bank Bldg., Oak-

land, Calif.

I shall be glad to know your views as to allow-

ances to receivers and counsel as soon as possible.

Arthur Gotthold. 806A."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 332.)
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"Dec. 8tli, 1926.

Mr. Walton N. Moore,
c/o Walton N. Moore D. G. Co.,

San Francisco, Cal.

Judge Hand last evening signed order directing

receivers to pay creditors forty per cent STOP
Receivers applied for partial allowance Ten Thou-
sand to be equally divided STOP Ernst applied

for partial allowance of Ten Thousand STOP
Judge Hand invited suggestions from Commit-
tee After consultation we told him that with-

out knowing what allowance Lieurance and his

counsel would seek in Western jurisdiction Com-
mittee was not in position to make recommenda-
tion STOP Ernst tells us that he expects to ap-

ply for similar amount in final pa.^anent STOP
What is your opinion on Ernst & Grotthold claims

We feel Lieurance should not receive New
York compensation unless figured in amount
to be received on Coast STOP Please get in

touch with Ijove see liieurance and Eliassen find

out if possible what charges will be STOP Advise
results by wire because we want to include your
views in recommendation to Judge Hand.

William Eraser.
'

'

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, pages 461-462.)

"Dec. 9, 1926.

William Eraser,

c/o New York Credit Men 's Assn.,

320 Broadway, New York City, New York.
Talked to Lieurance long-distance today. He

will not suggest amount of fees. Says will be
satisfied with courts order. Think Lieurance 's

compensation should be greater than Clotthold's,

as he has done most of work. Think Ernst sug-

gested fees altogether unreasonable, and that all

parties should be satisfied with reasonable fees.

A. V. Love."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 334.)
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''New York, N.Y. 1112A Doc. 9, 1926.

A. F. Lieuranee, 1401 Central Bank Blds,^., Oak-
land, Calif.

Sn^^ested interim allowances in New York are

ten thonsand to receivers to be divided equally.

Ten thousand to New Yoi'k counsel. New York
counsel to make no application in ancillary juris-

dictions. Figures indicated are satisfactory to

coui't and generally to ci-editors, but before pay-
ment is made we hoped to .get some estimate of

total allowances so that figure might be kept

down to reasonable amount.
Arthur F. Gotthold. 845a."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 337.)

"December 9, 1926.

William Fraser
c/o T. P. Stevens Co..

23 Thomas Street, New York City.

Further answering your telegram. Receiver
Lieuranee and attorney intend having each an-
cillary Western court also order dividend forty
per cent. To avoid possible conflict between East-
ern and Western Courts as to amounts of allow-

ances to receivers and their attorne^^s, as Chair-
man of Creditors' Committee here and member
of New York committee, I earnestly request that
question of such allowances be deferred for time
being, until receivers and attorneys and commit-
tees can exchange views and come to some agree-
ment concerning gross amounts to be asked for.

Amounts of allowances to receivers and attorneys
at this time by Judge Hand may prove unsatis-
factory to ancillary courts who may order dif-

ferent amounts resulting in confusion. As you
now know from yesterday's telegrams from Lieur-
anee to Gotthold and attorneys McManus and
Ernst, receiver Jjieurance and attorneys in ancil-
lary jurisdiction intend leaving- amounts of allow-
ances to discretion of ancillary courts.

Walton N. Moore."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 335.)
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December 10, 1926.

Mr. Wm. Fraser,
c/o J. P. Stevens & Company,

23 Thomas Street,

New York City, N. Y.
Dear Sir:

I arrived yesterday from New York and your
telegram of the 8th received the previous day was
called to my attention. Very soon thereafter I

was called over the telephone by Mr. Lieurance
who with his attorney desired a conference with
me. I therefore telegraphed you a day message
adAdsing you of the receipt of your telegram and
stating that I would more fully answer it by
night-letter after the conference. This I did, as

per carbon copy herewith enclosed.

It is a difficult matter for me to reach any con-

clusion of my own as to what would be a fair

compensation to the receivers and their attorneys

in the Pilcher case. What contact I have had
with it with the New York attorneys involved has
left me with the impression that it will be their

desire to get every dollar that the court and the

creditors will allow them to take. I do not think
that it now is the time to fix the final compensa-
tion and in as much as nearly all of the work
has been done in the ancillary jurisdictions it

seems to me that the judges of these courts are
better able to determine the value of the services

rendered than Judge Hand could be.

I had a conference yesterday with Lieurance
and his attorney, Eliassen, together with the at-

torney of the San Francisco Board of Trade. I
was impressed with the fairness of Lieurance 's

attitude. He expressed a willingness to submit
the entire matter to the judges of the ancillary
courts to fix the fees. Nearly all of the work has
been done out here where the property was lo-

cated and the results produced by Lieurance have
been very creditable. It seems to me that a state-

ment of facts might be prepared by the attorneys
of Mr. Lieurance for submission to each of the
ancillary courts, which could have the approval
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of the creditors as to its correctness, which could

be submitted to each of the courts with the re-

quest that the judsjes thereof fix the compensa-
tion for the work done in his jurisdiction. When
these allowances have been made, the whole could

then be su):»mitted to Judge Hand with a similar

statement and lie can tlien make such additional

allowance, if any, as he thinks proper. I am in

hopes that correspondence between the receivers

and the attorneys may result in some mutual un-

derstandino- which will avoid conflict, g-ivin,(^ them
what is their just due and no more.

Very truly yours.

Chairman of the Board.

AVNM/WH."
(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, pages 466-468.)

''New York, Dec. 9th, 1926.

Mr. Walton N. Moore,
c/o Walton N. Moore D. G. Co.,

San Francisco, Cal.

Dear Mr. Moore:
We sent you telegram as per enclosed cojDy

relative to the desire of the receivers to be paid
$10,000 as a partial allowance in New York City,

which sum we are advised, has been agreed by the

receivers should be equally split with the under-

standing that any allowance that Lieurance gets

in the West should be likewise equally divided.

Mr. Ernst also made application for a partial

allowance of $10,000.00, and in answer to a ques-

tion of one of the Connnittee members stated that

this was predicated on a further application and
final allowance later on of $10,000.00 more.

The Committee does not know how to advise

Judge Hand because we do not know wdiat will be

the amount of the similar expenses in the West.
We do think in both instances the amount asked
for is too high. We, furthermore, do not feel

that Lieurance should be counted in the fee in

New York unless any amount he receives here
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should fi:o towards reducino; his claim in the Wes-
tern Jurisdiction.

As a spokesman for the Committee I told the
Judo-e that the Creditors Committee wanted to

be fair, and felt that both the receivers and their
counsel should receive compensation commen-
surate with the work that they had done. Jud2:e
Hand, hunself, apparently feels that he has not
enough information along the lines just suggested,
regarding the possibility of Lieurance and Elias-

sen's fees, to enable him to act in the manner in

which he woidd like to do.

Ernst told me over the telephone yesterday that
he had received a wire from Lieurance stating

that as far as he was concerned he did not intend
to ask for any definite amount of compensation,
but intended to leave it absolutely to the fairness
of the Judge. I do not feel that T wish to criti-

cize Mr. Lieurance 's attitude because I have a
very high regard for his ability and other quali-

ties about which I have been so favorably in-

formed, but I do feel that he should appreciate
the Committee's situation and tlieir desire to be
of service not only to the Court, but to the cred-
itors as well. He might very suitably go into this

matter with you and Mr. Love and arrive at some
definite conclusion, which will help us to properly
fulfill our obligations to Judge Hand.

It is not usual for a Judge in Judge Hand's
position to ask for recommendation from the

Creditors Committee. He is under no legal obli-

gations to do so, and in fact in this and other

jurisdictions it is most unusual for a Judge to

permit the Creditors Committee to have any hand
in the proceedings by which he reaches his ulti-

mate decision.

We, therefore, feel that if Mr. Lieurance knew
these circumstances and gets the proper picture

of the sympathetic attitude of the New York
members of the Creditors Coimnittee, that he will

be willing to proceed along the lines which I have
indicatecl in this letter and in mv telegram.
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I would also like veiy much to have you ex-

press yourself very fully re.oardbig- the fees which

have been asked for, both by the co-receivers and
by Mr. Ernst. While we wish to be fair, we think

tliey are too high.

Will you please give me the benefit of your
advice in the situation?

Sincerely yours,

Enc.
*

Wm. Eraser."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, pages 468-470.)

At the meeting- in Mr. Kirk's office, it was unani-

mously agreed among Receiver Lieurance, Attorney

Eliassen, Walton N. Moore, and Joseph Kirk that the

amount mentioned for attorneys' fees and Receiver

fees respectively in the application of Messrs. Mc-

Manus, Ernst & Ernst in the court of original juris-

diction in New York was excessive. On the morning

of the following day, to-w'it, on December 10, 1926,

Receiver A. F. Lieurance and his attorney, Edward

R. Eliassen, appeared before Judge A. F. St. Sure

in the United States District Court in San Francisco

and ex parte secured an order which contained among

other things the following provisions:

"That Edward R. Eliassen, attorney for the
receivers, be paid immediately the sum of $10,-

000 to apply on account of services rendered.
That the sum of $10,000 be paid to apply on ac-

count of receivers' services; to be divided seventy-
five per cent thereof to Receiver A. F. Lieurance
and twenty-five per cent thereof to Arthur F.
(iotthold, his co-receiver."

The foregoing telegram, dated December 9, 1926,

from Arthur F. Gotthold to A. F. Lieurance was

either shown to Judge St. Sure or else its substance

w^as stated to him by Mr. Eliassen at the hearing ; and
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in addition thereto, Mr. Lieurance testified regarding

the character and quality of their services. Judge St.

Sure was not then informed, however, by either of

them that the amount of attorneys' fees ($10,000.00)

applied for by the New York attorneys in that juris-

diction was considered excessive or too large by them

and by Walton N. Moore, the chairman of the western

coimnittee, and by Joseph Kirk, the attorney for the

Board of Trade, or any of them. And neither was

he then informed that Judge Hand had been requested

by the New York Creditors Committee to reserve his

decision and order in the matter until they could in-

form him as to the aggregate amount of fees which

would be requested by Receiver Lieurance and his

attorney, Mr. Eliassen in the western jurisdictions.

Neither was the attention of Judge St. Sure called to

the fact that the gross sales over the counter in the

California stores was $76,154.73 and that the gross

amount received from the sale of the California stores

was $41,000.00, thus making a total of $117,154.73,

and he was not then informed b}^ either of them that

Receiver A. F. Lieurance entertained the opinion and

belief that a commission of five per cent on the gross

sales (including turnovers) of the various stores

would be adequate compensation for hun as receiver,

and that this would amount to onl}^ $5,857.73 for the

California stores which were all within the jurisdic-

tion of Judge St. Sure. This opinion and belief of

Receiver Lieurance was testified to by him in each

of the other jurisdictions and was acted upon favor-

ably by the respective judges therein, but that opinion

and belief was not expressed by Receiver Lieurance
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at the conference with Walton N. Moore, Jose])h

Kirk, Mr. Eliassen and himself at the offices of the

Board of Trade in San Francisco on the afternoon of

Deceniher 9, 1926, nor was it expressed by or for him

to anyone in resy)onse to any of the incjuiries from

New York reg'arding- the ag-gregate amount of fees

which he desired and hoped to secure for himself in

the western jurisdictions, or otherwise, or at all.

The action of Judge St. Sure in the matter was not

connnunicated by either Receiver Lieurance or his

attorney, Mr. Eliassen, to Walton N. Moore, Joseph

Kirk, McManus, Ernst & Ernst, his co-receiver, Ar-

thur F. Gotthold, or any other person except the

respective judges in the other western jurisdictions

as and wdien application was made to each of them

for an order allowing ad iuterim receiver and attor-

ney's fees as just hereinafter stated.

At six p. ra. on December 10, 1926 (the day upon

which Judge St. Sure had made the foregoing order).

Receiver A. F. Lieurance sent the following telegram

to his co-receiver Arthur F. Gotthold, to-wit:

"Oakland, California, December 10, 1926.

Mr. Arthur F. Gotthold,
Joint Receiver, R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc.,

#27 William Street, New York City, N. Y.
I purposely delayed replying to your telegram

of December ninth, requesting aggregate amount
of fees to be allowed attorneys and receivers

pending result of meeting with San Francisco
Board Trade and Walton Moore, held late yes-

terday afternoon in San Francisco. As previous-

ly stated Eliassen and myself feel in fairness to

creditors, attorneys and receivers, matter of com-
pensation should be left entirely to courts with-

out suggestion or recommendation on our part as
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to amounts. This plan will be followed in ancil-
lary jurisdictions, and is supported by Walton
Moore, A. V. Love and San Francisco Board
Trade. Their views and recommendations in this
record were communicated to Mr. Fraser yester-
day, by wire, in reply to his request to them for
same, as Jud,o:e Hand had evidently asked Cred-
itors Committee for recommendations as to as^-

greg'ate allowances to be made attorneys and
receivers. In view of fact that fixation of fees
and compensation will be left to courts in Wes-
tern jurisdictions, it is impossible for me to even
.^'uess at amounts which will be allowed. It has
been sug,e:ested here, and evidently at New York
also, that you receive your compensation in

parent jurisdiction, and I look to courts in an-
cillary jurisdiction for my compensation. There
is no doubt this will simplify matters and keep
a.2:,gregate amount to be allowed down to reason-
able figure, as was su,a:,eested at yesterday's meet-
ing-. However, no one can foretell how this will

work out. Please let me have your views regard-
ing this arrangement. Application for orders to

pay forty per cent dividend and allowances on
account will be made in Northwest next week.

A. F. Lieurance."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 338-339.)

It will be observed that this telegram, although sent

from Oakland at six o'clock in the evening on De-

cember 10th, fails to inform the co-receiver of the

fact that the United States District Court at San

Francisco had made its order that morning awarding

$7,500.00 to Receiver Lieurance and $2,500.00 to Re-

ceiver Gotthold as ad interim fees ; or that it had also

at the same time made its order allowing Edward R.

Eliassen the sum of $10,000.00 as ad interim attorney's

fees in that jurisdiction. The full significance of this

omission will appear later herein.
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That same night Receiver Lieurance and his attor-

ney, Mr. Eliassen, left on the train for Spokane,

Washington, and on December 14, 1926, shortly after

their arrival there, they presented an application to

tlie United States District Court for the Eastern

District of Washington for an order granting ad

interim receivers' fees and attorneys' fees. They

informed Judge Webster, who presided there, as to

the amount theretofore allowed on December 10 by

Judge St. Sure, and Mr. Lieurance testified that five

per cent ui)on the gross sales (including turnovers)

in that jurisdiction woidd be a fair and reasonable

compensation for the services of the receivers in that

district. He also testified as to the character and

value of the services performed by himself and his

attorney, Mr. Eliassen, respectively. Thereupon,

Judge Webster, presiding, made an order allowing

$5,000.00 as ad interim receivers' fees in that district

with the division thereof between the two Receivers

to be determined by him when the final account of the

receivers came up for hearing. Judge Webster also

then made an order awarding attorneys' fees in the

sum of $2,500.00 to attorney Edward R. Eliassen.

Then Receiver Lieurance and his attorney, Mr. Elias-

sen, went to Seattle, Washington and in the afternoon

of December 15, 1926, they applied to the United

States District Court for the Western District of

W^ashington for an order allowing ad interim re-

ceivers' fees and attorneys' fees, and again Mr. Lieur-

ance testified in substance that in his opinion he ought

to be paid a commission of five per cent, upon the

gross sales of merchandise made in that jurisdiction
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(including of course, the bulk sale of the stores), and.

thereupon Judge Neterer made an order allowing

$12,000.00 to A. F. Lieurance for ad interim receivers'

fees and $1,000.00 to Arthur F. Gotthold as ad interim

receiver's fees in that jurisdiction.

On the morning of December 15, and before testify-

ing so as aforesaid, Mr. Lieurance had received a

telegram from his secretary'', Mary L. Raeburn, who

was located at his Oakland office, which reads as fol-

lows:

''Wire just received from Gotthold. 'Regret
we haA^e had no further word in answer our
telegrams and Fraser's lettei'. Further answer-
ing your telegram December tenth. It has not
been suggested here that I receive aUowance in

New York only. I am informed you and Mr.
Walter Ernst agreed both of us to apply for

allowances in New York and also in each of an-

cillary jurisdictions in event tliat separate appli-

cations should be made. AYe are asking Judge
Hand for a hearing on Friday reference interim
allowances. Shall be glad to know your views
before that time, '

'

'

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 341.)

After the allowances had been secured in Seattle

on the afternoon of December 15, 1926, Receiver

Lieurance caused his Oakland oiftce to send a telegram

from there over his signature to his co-Receiver Ar-

thur F. Gotthold in New York which reads as fol-

low^s

:

"Replying your wire December 15, I have re-

ceived no letter from Mr. Fraser, neither did I

write to him. No agreement has been made be-

tween Walter Ernst and myself regarding re-

ceivers' compensation. As wired you December
10th the suggestion was made that you take all
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of the allowance made in New York and I take

allowance to be made here in West. This is I

believe fair and equitable. Does this plan meet
with your approval?"

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 342-343.)

Again Receiver Lieurance conceals from his co-

Receiver Gotthold the fact that ad interim allowances

have already been made to each and both of them at

San Francisco, Spokane, and Seattle, and that he is

about to apply at Portland, Oregon, for an additional

allowance to each and both of them on the following

day. Moreover, this reply telegram was caused by

him to be sent from his Oakland office instead of

sending it directly from Seattle, and the natural con-

sequence thereof was that his co-Receiver Gotthold

inferred that no application for either Receivers' or

attorneys' fees had yet been made in any one of the

western jurisdictions.

The aforesaid telegram of December 15, 1926, from

Gotthold to Lieurance was received at the Oakland

office of Lieurance at 9:35 a. m. of that day and was

promptly repeated by his secretary to him at Seattle.

The reply of Lieurance to Gotthold which bears the

same date, to-wit, December 15, 1926, was sent as a

night lettergram and in due course would have been

delivered to Receiver Gotthold 's office at about eight

o'clock on the morning of December 16.

At the hour of 11:43 a. m. on December 16, 1926,

Receiver Gotthold sent his reply to the Oakland office

of Receiver Lieurance and it reached there at 9:44

a. m., and it is a fair legal presumption that it was

promptly repeated to Mr. Lieurance at Portland,
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Oregon, by his Oakland secretary, and consequently

that Mr, Lieurance received it at Portland some time

before two o'clock p. m. on December 16, 1926, and

hence, prior to the hearing before Judge Bean in the

United States District Court of Oregon, which oc-

curred after 2 :00 p. m. The aforesaid telegram from

Receiver Gotthold to Receiver Lieurance reads as fol-

lows:

''Replying your wire December fifteenth, Fra-
.
ser's letter should have reached you. My infor-

mation regarding allowances came from Mr. Wal-
ter Ernst. I regret misunderstanding. Your
suggestion as to allowances accepta])le to me, but
I hope that aggregate of allowances will be kept
to reasonable figure. Hearing before Judge Hand
set for afternoon of December seventeenth. Will
submit matter to him then."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 344-345.)

At the hearing before Judge Bean, Receiver Lieur-

ance again testified that five per cent, upon the gross

sales (including the bulk sale of the stores in that

jurisdiction) would be fair and reasonable compensa-

tion for him as Receiver, and Mr. Eliassen informed

Judge Bean regarding the action which had been

taken in the matter of the ad interim allowances and

fees to the Receivers and himself by Judge St. Sure

at San Francisco, and the court at Spokane, and the

court at Seattle. He also had informed the judge at

Seattle regarding the action of Judge St. Sure and

the action of the judge at Spokane. Judge Bean was

not informed, however, by either of them that an

agreement had been entered into between Receiver

Lieurance and Receiver Gotthold by and under which

Receiver Lieurance was to obtain all of the allowances
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for Receivers' fees which had been or might there-

after be made to Receiver Gotthold at San Francisco,

Spokane, Seattle, and Portland.

Thereiii)on Jndge Bean made an order allowing

ad i)it('rim fees of $13,500.00 to Receiver Lieurance,

and of $1,000.00 to Receiver Gotthold. Mr. Lieurance

had testified before Judge Bean in substance that in

his opinion the only fair way to compensate him was

to pay him on the percentage basis of five per cent.,

w^hich was tlie least he should be paid. (See testi-

mony of Edward R. Eliassen, Transcript of Record,

Vol. I, ])age 327.)

In the meantime, and on December 15, 1926, Mr.

Walton N. Moore had received a letter from Mr.

William Eraser, the chairman of the general creditors'

committee which is dated December 9, 1926, and was

written in reply to the telegram of the same date

which had been sent to him by Mr. Moore as it had

been fornnilated by Mr. Kirk with the aid of Mr.

Moore, Mr. Lieurance, and Mr. Eliassen in conference

on that subject as hereinbefore stated. The reply

letter from Mr. Eraser to Mr. Moore reads as follows,

to-wit

:

"We sent you telegram as per enclosed copy
relative to the desire of the receivers to be paid
$10,000.00 as a partial allowance in New York
City, which sum we are advised, has been agreed
by the receivers should be equally split with the
understanding that any allowance that Lieurance
gets in the West shoidd be likewise equally
divided.

Mr. Ernst also made application for a partial
allowance of $10,000.00, and in answer to a ques-
tion of one of the Committee members stated that
this was predicated on a further application for
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an additional and final allowance later on of

$10,000.00 more.
The Committee does not know how to advise

Jndge Hand becanse we do not know what wnll

be the amoimt of the similar expenses in the

West. We do think in both instances, the amonnt
asked for is too his'h. We, furthermore, do not
feel that Lienranee should be counted in the fee

in New York unless any amount he receives here
should g'o towards reducing: his claim in the Wes-
tern Jurisdiction.

As a spokesman for the Committee T told the

.Tudo'e that the Creditors Committee wanted to be
fair, and felt that both the receivers and their

counsel should receive compensation commensu-
rate with the work that thev had done. Jud^'e

Hand, himself, apparently feels that he has not
enough information alons; the lines just suo;-

,2:ested, re.t^ardins: the possibility of Lieurance and
Eliassen's fees, to enable him to act in the man-
ner which he would like to do.

Ernst told me over the telephone yesterday that

he had received a wire from Lieurance statinp;

that as far as he was concerned he did not intend
to ask for any definite amount of compensation,
but intended to leave it absolutely to the fairness

of the Judge. I do not feel that I wish to criti-

cise Mr, Lieurance 's attitude because I have a
very high regard for his ability and other quali-

ties about w^hich I have been so favorably in-

formed, but I do feel that he should appreciate
the Committee's situation and their desire to be
of service not only to the court, but to the cred-
itors as well. He might very suitably go into

this matter with you and Mr. Love and arrive
at some definite conclusion, which will help us to

properly fuUfil our obligations to Judge Hand.
It is not usual for a Judge in Judge Hand's

position to ask for recommendation from the
Cyreditor's Committee. He is mider no legal obli-

gations to do so, and in fact in this and other
jurisdiction it is most unusual for a Judge to
permit the Creditors Committee to have any hand
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in tlie proceedings by which he reaches his ulti-

mate decision.

We, therefore, feel that if Mr. Lieurance knew
these circumstances and gets the ]:>roper picture

of the sympathetic attitude of the New York
Members' of the Creditors Committee, that he will

be willing to proceed along the lines which I have

indicated in this letter and in my telegram.

I would also like very much to have you ex-

press yourself very fully regarding the fees which
have been asked for, both by the co-receivers and
by Mr. Ernst. While we wish to be fair, we think

they are too high.

Will you please give me the benefit of your

advice in the situation?"

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, pages 468-470.)

Promptly after he had read the foregoing letter,

Mr. Moore endeavored to reach Mr. Lieurance on the

telephone at the latter 's Oakland office and thus

learned from someone therein who answered the tele-

phone that Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen had gone

north. This information aroused a suspicion in the

mind of Mr. Moore as to what the purpose of their

trip might be, and he immediately took Mr. Eraser's

letter to Mr. Kirk and told him that he had just

learned that Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen had gone

north. Mr. Moore expressed the fear that they had

gone for the purpose of making an application of

Receivers' and attorneys' fees. Upon inquiry they

learned from the office of Mr. Lieurance that he and

Mr. Eliassen were at the Hotel Washington, Seattle,

on that day and thereupon Mr. Kirk, at the request

of Mr. Moore, sent them a telegram reading as fol-

lows :

'*In view of communication received by Walton
Moore from Eraser, chairman New York Cred-
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itors Committee, it is highly desirable that you
should not apply for receivers allowances or at-

torneys fees in western jurisdictions until whole
subject matter can again be discussed here upon
your return."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, page 473.)

This telegram was received by Messrs. Lieurance

and Eliassen December 15, 1926, on the train while

en route to Portland, Oregon, It had been forwarded

to them from the Hotel Washington at Seattle and

was in their possession at the tune ihey made their

application before Judge Bean for ad interim Ke-

eeivers' and attorneys' fees.

After completing their application before Judge

Bean and on the same day, to-wit, December 16, 1926,

Receiver Lieurance sent a telegrain to Walton N,

Moore at San Francisco which reads as follows

:

''Work completed here this morning STOP
Orders obtained all jurisdictions pay forty per
cent dividends STOP Allowance to attorney
California ten thousand Spokane twenty-five hun-
di"ed Seattle five thousand Portland ten thousand
total twenty-seven thousand five hundred STOP
Allowance to receivers California ten thousand
divided seventy-five and twenty-five per cent

Spokane five thousand division to be made at final

hearing, Seattle thirteen thousand divided twelve

and one, Portland fourteen thousand five hundred
divided thirteen, five and one total forty-two

thousand five hundred STOP Phoned above in-

formation to Mr. Love this morning STOP Will
be home Saturday."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 346-347.)

As soon as he received the foregoing telegram, and

on December 16, 1926, Mr, Moore wrote and mailed

the following letter to Mr. Lieurance, to-wit

:
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**Mt. a. F. Lieuraiice,

Central National Bank Bids., Oakland, Calif.

Dear Sir:

I was astounded at the contents of your tele-

o-rani of even date from Portland concerning

allowances to receivers and attorneys in this

Pilcher case. I know of nothin»- that will more
clearly express my feelinos on this subject than

the telegram which I have sent to Mr. Wm.
Fraser, Chairman of the Creditors' Committee in

New York, of which I am enclosinc,- herewith a

copy.

To put it mildly, I am astounded at the action

of yourself and Mr. Eliassen in proceeding with

yoiir applications in this matter without any
agreement with creditors and without creditors

being heard by the Court.
Yours trulv,

WNM/WH Walton N. Moore."

(Transcript of Record, \o\. II, page 475.)

On the same day and immediately thereafter Mr.

Moore sent a telegram to William Fraser at New-

York which reads as follows:

"Telegram received STOP To mj- utter as-

tonislunent I received following telegram today
from receiver Lieurance at Portland quote work
completed here this morning STOP Orders ob-

tained all jurisdictions pay forty percent divi-

dends STOP Allowance to attorney California

ten thousand Spokane twenty-five hmidred Se-

attle five thousand Portland ten thousand total

twenty seven thousand five hundred STOP Al-

lowance to receivers California ten thousand di-

vided seventy-five and twenty-five percent Spo-
kane five thousand division to be made at final

hearmg Seattle thirteen thousand divided twelve

and one Portland fourteen thousand five hmidred
divided thirteen five and one total forty-two thou-

sand five hmidred STOP Phoned above informa-
tion to Mr. Love this morning STOP Will be
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liome Saturday end quote receiver Lieurance and
his attorney were present when telegram of De-
cember ninth to you was prepared and consented
thereto STOP In view of this fact we consider

applications for allowances in western jurisdic-

tion which were made without any notice to credi-

tors committee here as being- unwarranted and in

violation of understanding stated in telegram of

December ninth STOP We contemplate making
immediate application to western courts to set

aside the allowances as excessive and exorbitant

and to give creditors full opi)ortunity of being
heard with respect to the allowances STOP Will
your committee join in making this application

or request to western courts and bear their share

of expenses and fees incident thereto.

Walton N. Moore."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, pages 475-476.)

After sending this telegram, Mr. Moore wrote a

letter to Mr. Eraser confirming the same which reads

as follows:

"Dear Sir:

I am enclosing herewith copy of a night-letter

just sent you. It is so complete in itself that it

leaves but little to be said here.

The action of Lieurance and his attorney
Eliassen in appearing in these various courts
without any agreement with the creditors is

astounding to me and I did not know of it until

I received Lieurance 's telegram today which is

quoted in mine to you.

The only thing omitted in the telegram which
has already been sent is an explanation to you
of the division of receivers' allowance referred
to in Lieurance 's telegram. In our recent con-
ference he contended that he was entitled to more
compensation than Gotthold and he has secured
an order from the Court dividing the receiver's

fee between himself and Gotthold as indicated

by his telegram. I am sending you an additional
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telegram in explanation of this, of which a copy
is also enclosed.

You will note that the total of the allowances
made is $70,000, which is not final and this will

be in addition to whatever allowances are made
in the New York courts. 1 hope you and the

Committee will agree with me that this action

should be contested."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, pages 477-478.)

(The foregoing is the telegram which was re-

ferred to in the aforesaid letter as an enclosure.)

On the same day, to-wit, December 16, 1926, Mr.

Moore exhibited to Mr. Kirk the aforesaid telegram

of Mr. Lieurance to himself, and thereupon and on

the same day Mr. Kirk wrote and mailed the follow-

ing letter to Mr. Eliassen, to w^it:

"Dear Sir:

In this matter, the enclosed copies of telegrams
exchanged between Mr. Moore and Mr. Fraser
explain themselves.

I am absolutely astounded, in view of the con-
tents of the telegram of December 9th that you
and Receiver Lieurance should have gone to the
different Courts in the absence of any representa-
tive of creditors and secured enormous allow-
ances and fees to him and to you.
The telegram contained unmistakable language

to the effect that the question of allowances
should be deferred until the Receivers and Attor-
neys and Conunittees could exchange views and
come to some agreement concerning the gross
amounts to be asked for."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, pages 492-493.)

The telegram from Mr. Moore to Mr. Fraser which

is referred to in the opening paragraph of this letter

is the one of December 16, 1926, which is just here-
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inbefore quoted. The telegram from Mr. Fraser to

Mr. Moore which is referred to in the same opening

paragraph was in reply to the aforesaid telegram to

Mr. Moore and reads as follows, to wit:
* 'Hearing Friday before judge on allowances.

Unless hear from you by wire will assume no
change in previous stand."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 348.)

Ko reply to Mr. Kirk's letter was made by Mr.

Eliassen.

On December 18, 1926, Receiver Gotthold wrote

and mailed the following letter to Mr. Lieurance, to-

wit:

"Dear Mr. Lieurance:
Mr. Irving Ernst and I appeared before Judge

Hand late yesterday afternoon. Members of the
Creditors' Committee and representatives of
large creditors were also present.

Mr. Fraser read a telegram from Mr. Moore
quoting your telegram to him. This was the first

knowledge I had that orders for distribution and
for allowances had been made in the four West-
ern jurisdictions. The result of making separate
applications is just what I feared, namely exces-

sive allowances.

In view of the telegrams passing between us
I am somewhat puzzled as to why you included

me in your applications. As I agreed to apply
only in New York the amounts awarded me in

California, Oregon, and Washington can, of

course, be eliminated.

It is particularly unfortunate that so much of

the assets should be spent for the cost of adminis-
tration in view of the notice of the results of

sales sent to creditors and signed with both our
names. I saw a copy of this yesterday for the

first time. I am afraid that creditors would
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gather from it the impression that they would

receive much larger dividends than can be paid.

The result of the hearing was that ad interim

allowances, of $7,500. to Messrs. McManus, Ernst

& Ernst and of $5,000. to me, were made and the

creditors here decided to cooperate with the

AVestern creditors in an effort to have the allow-

ances in the Western jurisdiction reconsidered

and materially reduced. On the information

available here, we all thought these allowances

very high.

In view of the splendid work you have done

in disposing of the stores it would be too bad to

have a controversy over a matter of this kind. I

hope that when you have fully considered the

matter you will feel like consultmg with the

Creditors' representatives and voluntarily agree-

ing to a reduction to more reasonable figures.

My compensation, as I have said, is out.

Please let me hear from you about this as soon

as you can and also about your plans for the pay-

ment of the dividend. How are you coming along

with the landlords and the adjustments with the

purchasers'?"

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 348-350.)

On the same date, to wit, December 18, 1926, Messrs.

McManus, Ernst & Ernst sent a telegram to Mr.

Lieurance reading as follows:

"Judge Hand awarded following allowances

today, on account to us seventy-five hundred, to

Mr. Gotthold five thousand. Mr. Hershey prom-
ised to send on money equal to one-half of these

allowances. Will you please transfer the neces-

sary fimds."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 350.)

On December 20, 1926, Receiver Lieurance sent a

telegram to his co-Receiver Gotthold, which reads as

follows

:
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"I acknowledge receipt of your telegram of
December sixteenth, stating that suggestion con-
tained in my telegram to you of December fif-

teenth, that you take all receivers compensation
allowed in New York, and I take all allowances
made to receivers in ancillary jurisdictions, is ac-

ceptable to you. I hereby agree to this arrange-
ment. Pursuant to this agreement between our-
selves, I am sending you air mail today assign-

ment of any fees to which I am entitled in the
New York jurisdiction, and would suggest you
mail me an assignment of your interest in any
allowances made to receivers in Western juris-

dictions. Payment of forty per cent dividend to

creditors starting today."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 351.)

At the time Mr. Lieurance sent this telegram he

had already received the telegram of McManus, Ernst

& Ernst dated December 18, informing him that the

total amount which had been allowed by Judge Hand

was $5000.00 to Receiver Gotthold personally, and

$7500.00 to McManus, Ernst & Ernst as attorneys'

fees. In other words, Mr. Lieurance knew that no

allowance had been made to him in the New York

jurisdiction, whereas an aggregate of $4500.00 had

been allowed to Receiver Gotthold in the Western

jurisdictions and, in addition thereto, an allowance

of $5000.00 had been made to both Receivers jointly

in the Eastern District of the State of Washington,

and the division thereof between them was to be fixed

by the court at the hearing of their final account.

Moreover, he knew that the total aggregate amount

which had be^en allowed to both Receivers in all the

Western jurisdictions was the sum of $42,500.00, and

that this was substantially more than five per cent.
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of the gross amount of sales (including the bulk sale

of the stores) ; and he also knew that as a matter of

fact it was nearly nine per cent, of the net amount

of fluids secured by the Receivers from the sales of

the entire property of the estate and which was avail-

able for the payment of creditors, Receivers' fees

and attorneys' fees.

On December 21, 1926, Receiver Gotthold sent to

Receiver Lieurance the following reply to his afore-

said telegram, to-wit:

"Your telegram December twentieth received.

Your telegram December tenth suggested I re-

ceive compensation here and you in West. I ac-

cepted this arrangement and therefore did not
apply for allowance for you here, and am sur-

prised you applied for allowances for me. I con-
sider assignment of allowances improper. Wrote
you December eighteenth air mail that I con-
sider Western allowances too high and that those
made me should be eliminated. If paid they
will be immediately deposited in receivership ac-

count here. Are you paying dividend to all

creditors or remitting funds here for payment
to Eastern creditors'?"

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 351-352.)

Between December 20th and December 29th, 1926,

Mr. Lieurance received letters from creditors inform-

ing him that the Creditors Coimnittee and Receiver

Gotthold and the New^ York attorneys for the Re-

ceivers and, likewise. Judge Hand considered the ad

interim allow^ances w^hich had been made to the Re-

ceivers and Mr. Eliassen, aggregating $42,500.00 to

the Receivers and $27,500.00 to Mr. Eliassen, per-

sonally, were grossly excessive.
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On December 29, 1926, Mr. Moore, after having

been authorized by the General Creditors Committee

so to do and after having employed Francis J. Heney

on behalf of the General Creditors Coimnittee to act

as attorney in the matter, presented a petition to

Judge St. Sure for an order requiring Receiver Lieur-

ance and his attorney Mr. Eliassen to show cause

why the order for ad interim allowances to them re-

spectively, which had been made by Judge St. Sure

on December lOth, should not be reduced.

When Mr. Heney presented this petition to Judge

St. Sure, the latter after being informed of the nature

of the proceeding and after having read the petition

asked Mr. Heney if he personally had talked with

Mr. Eliassen on the subject and, upon receiving a

negative reply, suggested that such a conference might

avoid litigation. The suggestion was immediately

adopted by Mr. Heney and the petition was left with

Judge St. Sure with the understanding that it would

not be filed unless negotiations for an amicable settle-

ment failed.

On that same day, or the next day, Mr. Eliassen

and Mr. Heney had a conference at the latter 's office

in which Mr. Eliassen promptly stated that he was

willing to consent to a reduction of the amounts al-

lowed to him but that the aggregate of the allowances

to him should not be less than $15,000.00. Mr. Heney

immediately consented thereto. Then Mr. Eliassen

agreed to take the matter up with Mr. Lieurance and

endeavored to have him consent to the reduction of

his allowances to the same aggregate amount of $15,-
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000.00. Shortly afterwards, Mr. Eliassen and Mr.

Lieiirance together, had a conference with Mr. Heney,

at whicli tliis reduction also was agreed upon among

them.

Unfortunately, however, a disagreement arose be-

tween the respective parties over the recitals and

wliereas wliich constituted the introductory part of

the proposed written agreement which was prepared

by Mr. Eliassen. These differences were not finally

settled until about the middle or the latter part of

May, 1927.

This written agreement as executed contains stipu-

lations to the effect that Receiver Lieurance and his

attorney, Mr. Eliassen, should give reasonable notice

to the Creditors Committee if and when an applica-

tion was made for additional fees to Receiver Lieur-

ance and/or additional fees to Attorney Eliassen at

the time of the presentation of the receiver's final

account, or at any time prior thereto; and that the

creditors reserved the right to object to any and all

such additional Receivers' fees and/or attorneys' fees.

Pursuant thereto and when the final account of the

Receivers was filed by Mr. Lieurance in the several

Western jurisdictions, including applications for ad-

ditional fees to him as Receiver and to Mr. Eliassen

as his attorney, the Creditors Committee was given

such reasonable notice, and did file the objections

thereto in the several jurisdictions; and thereupon a

stipulation was entered into between the parties in

interest under and bv which all these matters were
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to be heard by the United States District Court for

the Northern District of California.

Pursuant to this stipulation, the matters were all

heard by that court upon the report of the Master

which had been appointed by it to take testimony and

make a report upon the same.

Thereupon the United States District Court for the

Northern District of California, after a hearing upon

objections and exceptions to the Master's report,

rendered its judgment and decree awarding $20,000.00

additional fees to Receiver Lieurance, and $15,000.00

additional fees to Attorney Eliassen.

These additional allowances of fees to Receiver

Lieurance and his attorney, Mr. Eliassen, by Judge

St. Sure, were assigned as error upon this appeal by

the objecting creditors.

The final accomit of Receiver Lieurance showed,

among other things, the following items, to wit:

"Cash transferred to Receiver Gott-

hold at New York, $25,000.00

Ad Interim pavnient of attornevs fees

to Edward R. Eliassen,
"

15,000.00

Ad Interim pajanent of receivers

fees to A. F. Lieurance, 15,000.00

Fees of Special Master, 250.00

Administration expenses, 4,104.22

Balance on hand at time of filing of

said final account, 41,975.28"

If the aggregate amoimt of $35,000.00 which was

allowed by Judge St. Sure to Receiver Lieurance and

his attorney, Eliassen, is deducted from the aforesaid

balance of $41,975.28, it leaves a net balance of only

$6975.28.
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The judgment and decree of the District Court for

the Northern District of California also allows, how-

ever, an additional amount of $769.71 to Philip A.

Hershey as expert accountant; and deducting that

amount from the aforesaid net balance leaves only

$6225.28. From this must be deducted the $1500.00

fee to the Master and other administration expenses;

so that the true balance is substantially less than

$5000.00.

The affidavit of Grant H. Wren, who appeared as

one of the attornej^s for the objecting creditors, was

admitted in evidence before the trial court and con-

tains the following statements, to-wit:

''On or about the 27th day of January, 1928,
affiant received from McManus Ernst & Ernst,
attorneys for Receiver Gotthold, a telegram, a
portion of which reads as follows:

'Three claims aggregating ten thousand dollars
now pending here before District Court and divi-

dends therefor must be set aside. Has Lieurance
done so stop Expenses have been incurred here
for Master hearing disputed claims and pre-
miums bonds of both receivers stop'

"That on or about the 8th day of February,
1928, affiant received, through the United States
Mail from said McManus EIrnst & Ernst, attor-
neys for said receiver, a letter enclosing copy of
communication written by said McManus Ernst
& Ernst to Mr. William Fraser, chairman of the
eastern creditors committee, a portion of which
letter reads as follows:

'Another very vital question arises and that is

this: there are still approximately $10,000.00 of
claims in litigation for which dividends must be
reserved in the event that the court directs that
the claims be good; there are the fees of Mr.
Cardoso as master, and there is a substantial
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balance due to Mr. Gottliold for moneys which
he has personally expended and which I under-
stand to be approximately $1250.00.

'I do not wish to undertake to fix the fees of

Mr. Cardoso as special master, but I know that

he has done a considerable amount of work, has
decided approximately twentj-five claims, and I

think the court should allow him in the neighbor-

hood of $2500.00.'"

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 225-227.)

In its order confirming the Special Master's re-

port, the District Court for the Northern District of

California inserted the following words, to-wit:

''With the imderstanding that Receiver Lieur-
ance and his attorney, Edw^ard R. Eliassen, un-
dertake to pay an apparent deficit for expenses
of administration incurred at New York and
estimated at $1700.00, the exceptions to the re-

port of the Special Master are over-ruled and
the report is confinned."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 227.)

This order was made on March 26, 1928.

The final accomit of Receiver Lieurance shows that

on December 18, 1926, an ad iiderim allowance

to Receiver Gotthold of $5000.00 was paid l^y the New
York Receiver, and also of $7500.00 attorneys' fees to

McManus, Ernst & Ernst. The same account shows

that there was cash on hand with the New York Re-

ceiver of approximately $20,350.00. It further ap-

pears from Receiver's Exhibit 1 that on either May
4 or May 10, 1927 (the documents comprising the

exhibit being contradictory as to the date), Judge

Hand directed payment of a second dividend of ten

per cent, to creditors, and fees as follows:
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'^To Arthur F. Gotthold, second interim al-

lowance on account of his fees as receiver, of

$2500.00; a second interim allowance of $7500.00
together with certain disbursements to McManus,
Ernst & Ernst on account of services rendered
as attorneys for the complainants and receivers;

a sum of $1250.00 to certain attorneys for the de-

fendant; a sum of $5000.00 to S. D. Leidesdorf
& Co. for services rendered to the receiver as ac-

countants, and to Mr. Eraser, chairman of the
creditors committee for pa}^nent to Francis J.

Heney for services rendered, $1500.00."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, pages 547-548.)

SulDsequently, as appears from the exhibits, after

a rehearing, Judge Hand allowed the accountants an

additional sum of $2700.00, making $7700.00 in all.

The allowances thus made totaling $20,745.25, are

slightty in excess of the balance which Receiver Gott-

hold had on hand. It thus appears that the total

aggregate allowance of Receivers' fees which have

been allowed and paid, or ordered paid, in both juris-

dictions, is as follows:

To A. F. Lieurance, $35,000.00
To Arthur F. Gotthold, 7,500.00
To Edward R. Eliassen, 30,000.00
To McManus Ernst & Ernst, 15,000.00

Total receivers' fees, $50,000.00
Total attorneys' fees, 45,000.00

Grand Total, $95,000.00

This was one-fifth of the total net amount obtained

by the Receivers from the sale of assets which were

thus made available for i3ayment of dividends to

creditors. Receivers' and attorneys' fees, and expenses

of administration.
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The preferred claims, amounting to only $5816.34,

were paid in full, and fifty per cent, was paid upon

general claims which had been allowed.

No provision has been made for the payment of the

additional $10,000.00 of creditors' claims which are in

litigation.

The amounts paid to Mr. Hershey, the expert ac-

countant who was employed by Receiver Lieurance,

are as follows:

Monthly advances $ 2,100.00

In December, 1926, 5,900.00

May, 1927, 2,000.00

Additional amount allowed by order
of District Court for Northern Dis-

trict of California, 750.00

Total, $10,750.00

The total amount allowed by Judge Hand to the

New York expert accountants, S. D. Leidesdorf &
Co. was $7700.00.

In addition to these sums. Receiver Lieurance paid

$27.50 per week to a competent bookkeeper during the

entire period of the Receivers' administration.

ARGUMENT.

The issues upon this appeal are:

First. Is the additional sum of $20,000.00 to A.

F. Lieurance, as Receiver, excessive?

Second. Is the additional sum of $15,000.00 to

Edward R. Eliassen as attorney for Receiver Lieur-

ance excessive?
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Third. Was it error on the part of the trial court

to approve the payments to the special accountant,

Phili]) A. Hersliey, amounting in the aggregate to

$10,750.00?

By his conduct in refusing to inform his co-Re-

ceiver Gotthold or any of the other interested parties

in New York, for the benefit of Judge Hand, as to the

aggregate amount which he and his attorney desired

and hoped to obtain as and for their respective fees

in the Western jurisdictions. Receiver A. F. Lieur-

ance willfully and deliberately brought about a situa-

tion which certainly made excessive the total aggre-

gate of fees for receivers and attorneys, respectivel}^,

allowed in both the Western and Eastern jurisdic-

tions. That Receiver Lieurance and his attorney

Eliassen are responsible for this result is clearly

shown by the telegrams and letters which appear

herein under the heading ''Compensation of Receiv-

ers and Their Attorneys" in the ''Statement of the

Case."

The creditors of Pilcher & Co., Inc., were the equi-

table owners of the entire receivership fund—subject

only to the proper and reasonable expense of the re-

ceivership administration.

The action of Receiver Lieurance and his attorney

Eliassen in the matter of the original ad interim al-

lowances of fees for them in the Western jurisdictions

fully justified the creditors committee in opposing

their respective applications for additional allow^-

ances at the hearing of the final account prepared by
Receiver Lieurance and filed in the several Western
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jurisdictions. This opposition by the creditors com-

mittee made it necessary to take the depositions of

Walter Ernst and Arthur F. Gotthold in New York

City. Receiver Lieurance unhesitatingly incurred

the expense of sending his attorney, Edward R. Elias-

sen, to New York City to attend the taking of these

depositions. If Receiver Lieurance and his attorney

Eliassen, or either of them, had gone to New York

to testify before Judge Hand when the application

w^as pending before him, to make the first interim,

allowance of fees for the Receivers and attorneys, re-

spectively, it would have been much more to the pur-

pose and in line with the duty of the Receivers to aid

the courts to properly conserve the receivership fund

for the benefit of the creditors, its equitable owners.

If the allowances which were made by Judge Hand

to Receiver Gotthold and attorneys McManus, Ernst

& Ernst, and the expert accountants Leidesdorf & Co.,

respectively, are or either of them is too large, the

.loss thereby caused to the creditors ought to fall upon

the party or parties responsible for the same, and

therefore such excess amount ought to be deducted

from the fees to be allowed to Receiver Lieurance

and attorney Eliassen.

In other words, under the circumstances, it would

be equitable for this court to determine the amount

which would be fair and reasonable to be allowed to

both the Receivers, and then to deduct therefrom the

amount which had been allowed by Judge Hand to

Receiver Gotthold and permit Receiver Lieurance to

have the balance thereof only. The same method
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would be equitable in fixing attorneys' fees. If any-

other method than this one is adopted, the creditors

will be compelled to bear the burden and such a re-

sult does not seem to be just or equitable.

It has been and doubtless will be contended herein

that Mr. Lieurance possessed extraordinary expert

ability in the conduct of chain stores and that this

character and hig'h dci^ree of ability was essential to

the successful conduct of this chain of only sixteen

small-sized stores, and in effect that Mr. Lieurance

ou.2:ht to be paid on the basis of the value of the

services of such an exceptional expert.

As such exceptional expert, however, when he was

conducting- a chain of 497 stores for the Penney Com-

pany (in sixteen only of which stores he was a stock-

holder) his salary was only $10,000,00 per year, or

$833.33 per month. This would make a total sum of

$4166.66 as a proper salary for that character of ex-

pert for the period of five months from June 3, 1926,

to November 3, 1926, which is the entire period that

the stores were operated.

Moreover, Mr. Lieurance testified that he was re-

quired to or did leave two-thirds of his salary in the

business, when working for the Pemiey Company
and that he received shares of stock for the same.

Of course he earned a profit upon these shares of

stock and his testimony is to the effect that this profit

amoimted to an average of approximately $30,000.00

j)er year, in addition to his salary. Of course his

shares of stock would have earned that same amount

of profit, presumably, if some other equally competent
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person had been employed by the Penney Company to

perform the service then being performed by Mr.

Lieurance. Hence, we ought not to take into con-

sideration in this matter anything except his actual

salary of $10,000.00 per year.

That it required the same high degree of ability to

conduct a chain of sixteen small stores as was re-

quired in the conduct of the business of Penney &

Company with approxunately 500 stores and later

600 stores is pure nonsense. As a matter of fact the

paramount advantage in doing business of chain

stores is that of being able to purchase various kinds

of merchandise in very large qaantities, and thus to

secure a cheap price and also full carload freight

rates for its transportation. By reason thereof the

chain stores are rapidly elimiiiating wholesale dealers

and johbers in their various lines of business. By
way of illustration, the Penney Company have been

selling large amomits of merchandise to A. V. Love

& Company at Seattle, Washington (one of the larg-

est creditors of Pilcher & Co., Inc.) Mr. Lieurance so

testified.

Did the receivership for Pilcher & Co., Inc., as con-

ducted by Mr. Lieurance, do likewise and make large

sales of goods at a profit to A. Y. Love & ComiDany?

No, on the contrary, the receivership purchased sub-

stantially large quantities of goods from Love & Com-
pany and it is fair to infer that Love & Company
made a reasonable profit upon the thing. Moreover,

Mr. Lieurance testified that he purchased most of the

goods for the receivership from local wholesalers

nearest to his points of consumption or, in other
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words, to his respective stores in which the goods

w(>re needed.

Hence, it appears from the testimony of Mr. Lieur-

ance himself that the main purpose for which his

expert knowledge might have been used for the suc-

cessful conduct of a large chain of stores, was not one

of the elements of success in his conduct of this re-

ceivership. In other words, the receivership of

Pilcher & Co., Inc., required the services of a person

of only ordinary ability and competent for such duties

and service, and the amount of compensation which

should be allowed to Mr. Lieurance is such only as

would be reasonable for that kind of service, and it

should be only their fair value when measured by the

"common business standards." As said by the Su-

preme Court of Montana, in the case of Hickey v.

Parrott Silver d- Copper Co., 79 Pae. 698:

''Law does not compel one to accept from the
court employment as a receiver, any more than
it compels him to acce])t emplo>-TOent from the
owner as a superintendent. If he jeopardizes
other interests by accepting the receivership, he
does it voluntarily, and is not entitled to be recom-
pensed therefor."

and

"It is well established that the compensation
allowed a receiver must be reasonable, but why
compensation must be greatee, in order to be
reasonable, for domg certain work, when the hir-
ing is done by the court, than it would be for the
same duties // the hiring were done hif an indi-

vidual, is not apparent. * * * And these re-

marks apply equally to allowances for counsel
fees."
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''The consideration that shoukl be controlling
with the court in fixins^ compensation are the
value of the property in controversy; the prac-
tical benefits derived from the receiver's efforts
and attention; time, labor, and skill needed or
expended in the proper performance of the duties
imposed, and their fair value, measured by the
common business standards; and the des^ree of
activity, inte.^rity, and dispatch with which the
work of the receivership is conducted. The per-
centage basis is not always the equitable method.
As was said in Grant v. Bryant, 101 Mass, 570,
'The Court does not regulate the compensation of
its officers upon the basis of a fixed commission
upon the amount of money passing through their

hands, but allows them such an amount as would
be reasonable for the services required of and
rendered by a person of ordinarij ability and
competent for such duties and services.' See also,

the following cases: Schwartz, v. Kevstone Oil

Co., 153 Pa.' 282, 25 Atl. 1018; Boston Safe De-
posit & T. Co. V. Chamberlain, 66 Fed. 843, 14

C. C. A. 363; French v. Giiford, 31 Iowa 428;
Jones V. Keen, 115 Mass. 170; Martin v. Martin,

14 Or. 165, 12 Pac. 234; U. S. v. Church etc.

(Utah) 21 Pac. 516; Sherley v. Mattingly (Ky.),

51 S. W. 189; Union National Bank v. Badger,
103 Wis. 39, 79N. W. 20."

In the case of Trustees v. GreenougJi, 105 U. S. 536,

the Supreme Court of the United States in referring

to fees allowed to receivers for railroads and their

counsel said:

"Sometimes, no doubt, these allowances have
been excessive, and perhaps illegal ; and we would
be very far from expressing our approval of such

large allowances to trustees, receivers, and coun-

sel as have sometimes been made, and which have
justly excited severe criticism.

Still, a just respect for the eminent judges

under whose direction many of these cases have
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that allowances of this kind, if made with mod-
eration and a jealous reQ:ai'd to the rights of those

who are interested in the fund, are not only ad-

missible, but agreeable to the principles of equity

and justice."

in view of the foregoing principles, the sum of

$5,000.00 would be reasonable and ample compensa-

tion for the services of Mr. Lienrance as receiver

during the five months that the stores were operated.

Moreover, $2,500.00 additional would be more than

liberal comj)ensation for the services which were

necessarily performed by him in this receivership

matter thereafter. But lie has already been paid

exactly twice the aggregate of these amounts. In

other words, he has already been paid the sum of

$15,000.00 for his services as Receiver, and that

amount is very much more than they were reasonably

worth, ''measured by the common business standards."

It must be kept in mind that, as shown by his own
testimony, Receiver Lieurance in the performance of

his services provided himself with more than ample

assistance and facilities regardless of expense, which

minhnized the amount of his personal labors, and the

expense of which, as in the cases of Mr. Hershey

and Mr. Eliassen, is charged against the receivership.

An illustration of the extravagant methods by

which Mr. Lieurance made the work easy for himself

regardless of expense to the receivership estate is his

emplo}^Ilent of Mr. Philip A. Hershey as an expert

accountant, and particularly by his retention of hun
in that capacity from the time of the inception of
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the receivership clown to the last day of the hearing

before the Master.

We know that Mr. Hershey would not have been

guilty of such extravagance in the conduct of his own

business because he testified as follows

:

"I gave attention to other work in my office

during that period. * * * I have quite a num-
ber of clients I will say that, but their affairs

were attended to. * * * But as to just how
much in percentage this work was in comparison
with other work I could not say."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 286.)

and again,

"Q. Have you regularly employed in your
office any other accountants!

A. Only from time to time a.s the occasion
arises, accountants are high priced men to em-
ploy mid we do not care to have them around
when they are not working."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 287.)

It was different with Mr. Lieurance when actmg as

Receiver. He liked to have one at his elbow all the

time so as to save him from the annoyance of doing

personally any detail work. Like many men of high

executive ability, he evidently disliked and despised

detail work and believed that the way to get things

done was to hire other persons to do such work for

you and thus enable you to utilize all of your time in

thinking out the hig problems of your business affairs.

But there tvere no ''hig problems" of business af-

fairs in this receivership which required constant and

deep thinking.
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Of course, Mr. Hershey was more than willing to

<;ivc Ills valuable time to such very petty detail woi'k

as that of figuring out forty per cent, dividends uijon

approximately 650 claims; and checking the daily

cash and petty expense reports from the sixteen stores.

He admits, however, that the Receiver had under

employment a woman bookkeeper and that she was

competent and that it took him, Mr. Hershey, only

from five to ten days to formulate the set of books

for the receivership. His testunony that some of the

bookkeeping was complicated and difficult, because

transfers of goods were made from one store to

another and that these transfers were made on credit

and not for cash and that a separate account thereof

had to be kept, is amusing, notwithstanding the seri-

ous demeanor of Mr. flershey at the time he was

testifying.

As hereinbefore stated, the system of bookkeeping

which he formulated consisted of a journal and ledger

for each of the sixteen stores and then a composite

journal and ledger for the receivership and in which

the results of the other sixteen journals and ledgers

were compiled. Keeping separate books for each store

simplified the entire matter and made it easy for the

Receiver subsequently to make a separate aecoimt

for each of the four western jurisdictions if it became

necessary so to do.

All the transactions in all the different stores were

on a cash basis with the single exception of a com-

paratively few transfers of goods from one store

to another. The system was very simple and the

bookkeeping was far from being complicated or dif-
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fieult. Any competent bookkeeper such as could have

been employed for a salary of $250.00 to $300.00 per

month could have kept the books and could have done

all the work that was done by Mr. Hershey after the

first ten days of his services.

We are frank to say that in our opinion, based

upon our personal experiences as attorneys, the sum

of $30,000.00 as a total fee for all of the attorneys

would not be excessive or unreasonable under all the

circumstances of this case; but we do not feel at

liberty to express our personal opinion as to what

would be a reasonable amount to allow to Mr. Elias-

sen for his services in the matter, while keepinpj in

mind the rights of the creditors to the fund and the

fact that Judge Hand has already allowed the sum

of $15,000.00 ad interim, to Messrs. McManus, Ernst

& Ernst for their services in the matter.

It is already in evidence by the testimony of Mr.

Eliassen hunself, that when he suggested the reduc-

tion of the ad interim allowances to himself from the

aggregate amount of $27,500.00 to $15,000.00, Mr.

Heney promptly agreed that this was a reasonable

amount to be allowed to him at that tune, in view of

the fact, as Mr. Heney then understood it, that the

receivership administration had been practically com-

pleted.

ATTORNEYS' FEES.

In the case at bar there was no important litiga-

tion. The total amount of creditors' claims, includ-

ing both general and preferred, aggregated $751,-
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860.09. Of these the total amount claimed as general

was $746,043.75 and the total amount allowed as

general was $718,794.12.

The ditference in the amoimt claimed and the

amount allowed was only $27,249.63, and of this

amount $16,382.10 was deducted from the claim of

Weber Show Case & Fixture Co. The evidence of

Mr. Lieurance shows that this creditor had sold fix-

tures to Pilcher & Co., Inc., on the installment plan

and that the total amount of the contract was $32,-

764.21 and he had filed a claim for the entire amomit

notwithstanding the fact that it had already been

paid one-half thereof on the installment plan. Ob-

viously, it was not a difficult matter to induce the

Master who heard the contest to reduce this claun

by just one-half and he did so. The items of reduc-

tion on the other claims are set forth on pages 8 and

9 of the Receiver's report and it appears therefrom

that only six claims were contested (including that of

Weber Showcase & Fixture Co.). (Transcript of

Record, Vol. I, page 63.)

Hence, it appears from the reports and the imdis-

puted evidence that the attorney for the Receiver in*

the Western jurisdictions was not called upon to per-

form any kind of extraordinary service and that prac-

tically all of his services consisted of the usual routine

legal advice for which the Receiver asked from time

to time in such matters.

It is undoubtedly true that Mr. Eliassen devoted

a very substantial amount of his time to these re-

ceivership matters during the first two months of his
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employment but, notwithstanding that fact, it is ad-

mitted by him that he continued to conduct his general

practice during that period. Moreover, he testified

that this was his first experience as the attorney for

a ReceiA^er and hence it is fair to assume (notwith-

standing his undoubted ability as a lawyer) that his

inexperience in such matters made it necessary for

him to give much more time to the solution of the

Receiver's legal problems than would have been neces-

sary for one who was experienced in such matters. If

Receiver Lieurance saw fit to refuse the assistance

of the experienced attorneys for the Board of Trade,

who are experts in such matters, and to employ his

personal attorney who had no such experience it

would not be fair to require the creditors of Pilcher

Co., Inc., to pay for his education therein.

If the services which were performed by Mr.

Eliassen as attorney for the Receiver could have been

performed in one-fourth or one-half of the time

which Mr. Eliassen devoted to them it would not be

fair to estunate his compensation on the basis of time

expended.

As was said by the Circuit C-ourt of Appeals in the

case of Boston Safe Deposit & TruM Co. v. Chamher-

lain, 66 Fed. 847:

"An examination of the items of services shows
that they were not for matters of large impor-
tance aifecting the receiver or the property, but
were in great part advice and consultation with
reference to the usual questions arising in con-

nection with a railroad receivership. * * * The
allowance of $4,000 for counsel fees during the

first eight months of the receivership is not now
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questioned, and it may be presumed tliat during-

this period, at the conmiencement of his duties,

the receiver had new questions and difficulties

which require more constantly the advice and
services of counsel; but for the subsequent two
years the items of service, although constant and
frequent discloses no such demand upon the time
of counsel as would prevent his attending to the

usual claims of a general practice. All of the

parties to the case were represented by counsel

and the duties of the receiver's counsel had refer-

ence solely to the receivershi]). For such services to

a receiver, a fair and just method to compensate
counsel is by an annual allowance rather than to

value each item of service. We have been un-
able to escape the conclusion that, valued as such
seii'ices usually are under similar circumstances
in connection with a railroad of minor impor-
tance, operated as part of a system, and not earn-
ing its running expenses, more than $3,000 a
year for the receiver's counsel is unreasonable."

Much of the work that was done by Mr. Eliassen,

like much of the work that was done by Mr. Hershey,

was work which ought to have been done by the re-

ceiver himself and the creditors should not be called

upon to pay twice for the same service by allowing

full compensation to each and both of them.

In Wilkinson v, Washington Trust Co., 102 Fed.

28, the Circuit Court of Appeals held that:

"A receiver is not entitled to an allowance for
disbursements to attorneys for making reports to
the court involving nothing more than a simple
narrative of his acts, and an account of- his re-
ceipts and disbursements."

In its opinion the court on this subject said:

"There w^as no error in the order of the court
striking out the $750 paid by the appellant for
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the services of attorneys in preparing and pre-

senting his reports as receiver and master. It

is one of the indispensable pei-sonal duties of a

receiver and of a master to make a report of his

acts, and of his receipts and disbursements, to the

coiu-t which appoints hmi. If he is incapable of

keeping accoimts and of reporting his receipts

and disbursements, he cannot be permitted to re-

ceive compensation for the discharge of these, his

pei-sonal duties as receiver, and to charge the

ti-ust ^vith moneys expended by him to hire othei-s

to discharge them for him. Such allowances

would pay twice for the same services. In ordi-

narv cases the makins: and presentation to the

court of reports of the acts, receipts, and dis-

bui-sements of receivers and mastei-s is one of

their indispensable duties. The compensation

allowed them as receivers or mastei-s pays them

for this service, and they caimot be allowed dis-

bursements which they may have made to hii-e

attorneys or othei-s to discharge these duties for

them, because such allowances would effect two

pavments for the same service, and because ces-

tuis que trustent are always entitled to a report

of the doinsrs of their trustee, without expense or

charge to them."

Much reliance is placed by attorney Edward R.

Eliassen upon the testimony of attorney experts as

to the reasonable value of sei-vices which were per-

formed by him in this matter.

Of course. Your Honors may study and give some

consideration to the testimony of those experts upon

that subject. The respective opinions of these ex-

perts, however, were based upon the typewi-itten state-

ments of Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen regarding

their services. These experts did not have the ad-

vantage of hearing the testimony of either ^Ir. Lieur-
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ance or Mr. Eliassen upon cross-exammation. Hence

they were not in as good position as this court will

be to pass an opinion upon the reasonable value of

the aforesaid services. Moreover, they did not read

the depositions of Mr. Ernst and Mr. Gotthold, and

did not know anything whatever about the amount or

character of work which was done by Receiver Gott-

hold or by Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst, re-

spectively.

In any event, however, it is not the opinion of such

experts which must prevail. On the contrary, the

trial court in the first instance, and this court in the

second instance, has the right and the duty to de-

termine the question of the reasonable value of the

services performed by the attorney for the Receiver

from all the facts and circmnstances in the case, in-

cluding the fact that one of the Receivers was lo-

cated in New York City and the other on the Pacific

Coast, and that both of them were receiving advice

from Messrs. McManus, Enist & Ernst, who were

first employed in the case as attorneys for the Re-

ceiver. And again it must be kept in mind that the

creditors who are entitled to the fund ought not to

he called upon to pay double for such services and

particularly so if additional work was caused by

differences of oi^inion between the respective attor-

neys for the Receivers.

The members of this Honorable Court doubtless

know from experience how difficult it is to get an ex-

perienced attorney to testify that the reasonable value

of services performed by a fellow attorney is less
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than the amount clauned or asked for by hun;

whereas it is a comparatively easy matter to get at-

torneys of prominence in the profession to testify

favorably on behalf of the attorney claimant. This

is an additional reason why the expert opinion of at-

torneys in such matters should not be taken too seri-

ously or be given too much weight.

Furthermore, Mr. A. B. Kreft, Referee in Bank-

ruptcy at San Francisco for approximately twenty

years, after reading the statement of Mr. Eliassen,

testified that

"In my opinion from twenty to twenty-five

thousand dollars will be a fair and reasonable
compensation for services performed by Mr.
Eliassen in the matter."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, page 458.)

Mr. William J. Hayes, Referee in Bankruptcy at

Oakland for more than ten years, testified that after

reading the aforesaid statement of Mr. Eliassen he

was of the opinion that twenty-five thousand dollars

was reasonable. It also appears from Mr. Hayes'

testimony that the total ordinary fees which would

have been allowed to the trustee in bankruptcy in an

estate of $500,000, when computed on percentages,

would have been approximately $5000.00, which

amount could be doubled in the discretion of the court

where special services were required in running the

business.

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, pages 453-455.)

Mr. Milton Newmark, an able Federal practitioner

and formerly associated with Mr, Nathan H. Frank
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and Walter D. Mansfield, the latter being one of the

foremost bankruptcy la\\yers on the Coast for many

years, testified after carefully studying the record

that in his opinion twenty thousand dollars would be

reasonable compensation for the Receiver's attorney.

(Transcript of Record. Vol. II. pages 456-457.)

COMPENSATION FOR HERSHEY & CO. AS ACCOUNTANTS.

In its order appointing a Receiver in this matter,

the United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, said:

*'Four—Ordered, ad.]ude"ed and decreed that
the appointments of Philip A. Hershey & Co. as
accountants, and Edward R. Eliassen. Esquire, as
attorney for the Receivers be and they are hereby
confirmed and approved." (Italics oui's.)

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I. page 38.)

It will be observed that the court approved the ap-

pointment of Hershey t^- Co.

—

xot as bookkeepers

—

but as "ACcorxTAXTS.

"

In their testimony, Ijotli Mr. Lieurance and Mr.

Hershey have insisted that there is a radical distinc-

tion between a bookkeeper and an '•accoimtaut.*' It

is conceded on behalf of the objecting creditors, that

this contention is correct. Conseciuently, it further

appears that the coui-t did not authorize the employ-

ment of Hershey & Co. as bookkeepers, and therefore

any services which were perfoiTaed by them as book-

keepers were not specifically authorized by the court.

Mr. Hershey testified that he» was first employed by
Receiver Lieurance on Jime 3. 1926. On cross-

examination, he further testified as follows

:
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"I should say that I was enoaged probabl}^
from five to ten days in formulating- a set of
books to be used by the Receiver at his Oakland
office.

Q. Now, after those ten days of work, what
work was done by you that a i30okkeeper would
not do, or would not be able to do, a competent
bookkeeper 1

A. I could not answer that question, because
I don't know what a competent bookkeeper could
have done mider those circumstances.

Q. You had a competent bookkeeper there,
didn't you?
A. I judge that we did.

Q. Couldn't she have made those entries with-
out any assistance from you?
A. That is merely a supposition. I acted un-

der instructions from Mr. Lieurance, the Re-
ceiver, and my services were rendered under his

instructions.

Q. He did not instruct you as to the manner
or method of keeping the accounts, did he ?

A. No, he did not.

Q. Nor making the entries'?

A. He told me what results he wanted from
these books."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 289-290.)

The only other strictly "accountant" work which was

done by Mr. Hershey (as shown by his own testimony)

was that of examining the books and vouchers of

I*ilcher & Co. in New York City prior to the 28th

day of February, 1926, for the purpose of checking

up the correctness and amounts of claims of creditors

of Pitcher & Co. who were entitled to participate in

the receivership assets. This was done in November

and December, 1926, or in other words, after all the

stores had been sold. The books had lapsed on the

28th day of Februar}^, 1926, or had not been kej^t up
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subsequent to tliat date and prior to the Receiver-

ship.

Mr. Hershey said:

"When I went to New York, I received there

information from accountants connected with the

receivership in New York, concerning these

books, np to the date of the receivership in this

way: I worked with a firm of accountants in

New York, in tlie cliecking of the items which
had been posted into the accounts, possibly the

ledger, from February 28 to June 3, the date of

the receivership. So that, w^hile in New York,
and in conjunction with the accountants there, I

examined the books of the Pilcher Company from
February until the inception of the receivership.

I transmitted that information into my working
papers. I was absent on that tri]) 38 days; there

was traveling time in between; I do not recall

just what that traveling time \vas."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 272.)

The only New Yoi'k accoimtants who appeared to

have been employed by the Receivers there are the

firm of S. I). Leidesdorf & Co., to whom, payments

aggregating $7,700.00 were made by Receiver Gott-

liold and allowed in his account, apparently, by Judge

Hand. Hence it appears that i)ractically all of the

strictly accountant w^ork (and at any rate, by far the

greater part thereof) w^hich was performed by Her-

shey was participated in by S. D. Leidesdorf & Co.

as accountants appointed by Receiver Gotthold. Non
constat but that evidence was produced before Judge

Hand to the effect that S. D. Leidesdorf & Co. did

much the greater part of that accountant work. In

any event, however, the creditors ought not to be called

upon to pay twice for that same work, and if by their
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failure to co-operate in determining tlie amount of

compensation to be paid for the same, Receiver Gott-

hold and Receiver Lieurance have expended more

than a proper amount, neither one of them has the

right to ask the creditors to stand the loss thereof.

That the greater part of the work which was per-

formed by Mr. Hershey was ordinary bookkeeping,

for which the sum of $300.00 a month, which was paid

to him by Receiver Lieurance, was big compensation,

is evidenced by his own testimony. For instance, he

testified under direct examination as follows:

"In connection wdth the payment of the first

dividend, I performed the following services: I

computed the amount of the dividend checks,

based upon the claims which were allowed, pre-

pared the checks, and after they were prepared
checked the total to see that the total amount of

the checks agreed with the 40 per cent of the

total amoiuit of the claims filed, and delivered

the checks to Mr. Lieurance."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 279.)

It certainly did not require the services of an ac-

coimtant worth $10.00 per hour to do this work and

particularly the manual labor of filling out the checks

which must have consumed the larger part of the

time. This is another illustration of the reckless ex-

penditure of funds by Receiver Lieurance to save

himself more worry, annoyance and responsibility.

On September 17, 1926, Mr. Hershey went north

and visited the stores at Portland, Oregon, and Brem-

erton, Washington, for the purpose of checking the

cash accounts at these stores. He found a shortage

of $600.00 at the Portland store and collected it from
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the manager. He also discovered that previous to

the receivership the same manager had drawn in the

neighborhood of $1600.00 and he claimed that the

manager had no money with which to pay the same

but took his notes for it. He then communicated with

Mr. Lieurance who instructed him to discharge the

manager, the cashier and the clerk who had been

working in conjuncticm with him.

*'I also suggested the name of the head clerk
—each of these stores had not only a manager,
but they were fortified to this extent that they
had a man who was a head clerk, that is, if the
manager was incapable of performing his duties,

the head clerk by prearrangement stepped in and
ran the store. This man was satisfactory to Mr.
Lieurance, I assume, because he instructed me
to instruct him in his duties as a store manager,
and how to make proper reports. I introduced
him at the bank and arranged for his banking
facilities, etc. We did not, by the way, replaice

the two clerks, the cashier and the clerk, that
were discharged. We just cut the pay-roll to that
extent. I then proceeded to Bremerton, Wash-
ington, as fast as I could, because news travels
fast in a chain store organization, and I found
a situation there which in my opinion called for
the discharge of two employees from that store.

I immediately communicated with Mr. Lieurance
that information, and he instructed me to dis-

charge those employees, and I did, and their
jDlaces were not filled."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 280-281.)

No explanation is made as to why it was not nec-

essary to fill these places and no reason is given why
their services were not dispensed with long prior to

that time if not necessary to the conduct of the

business.
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The foregoing work of Hershey was that of an

assistant receiver rather than the work of an expert

accountant. Anyone could count the cash on hand

that morning and demand payment of the shortage

and the Oakland books showed the amount of cash

that ought to be there.

The second dividend was 10 per cent, and it cer-

tainly did not require the services of an expert ac-

countant as distinguished from a good bookkeeper

or even a mediocre stenographer to fill out the checks

for 10 per cent, of each creditors' claim because any-

one can move a decimal point one figure to the left

when instructed to do so. Two such persons could

verify the figures afterwards, in two hours time at

most, by one reading to the other for comparison.

Mr. Hershey testified that he wrote over two hun-

dred letters by actual count. Of course, he means

that he dictated them to tlie stenographer who was

in the Receiver's office. This would mean ten letters

per day for twenty days. Many bus}^ lawyers knock

out that many letters every morning or afternoon as

an infinitesimal part of the day's work and practically

all large business requires the dictation of many times

that number of letters per day the year 'round.

''A. I can state from the records that there

was not a day passed for the first five months of
the receivership but what I was in daily contact

with Mr. Eliassen and Mr. Lieurance, when they
were in Oakland. Of course, I was in communi-
cation with Mr. Lieurance when he was out of
Oakland, but that was by letter and wire."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 282-283.)
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Mr. Hershey had his office with Mr. Lieurance and

those of Mr. Eliassen were adjoining them on the

same floor and it was a perfectly natural thing for

Eliassen, Lieurance and Hershey at some time dur-

ing each day to have a talk together. It would have

been strange if they did not do so.

During all this period of five months, however, Mr.

Hershey was running his other business as an ac-

countant and Mr. Eliassen was running his other

business as an attorney. Of course, each of them

probably gave preference to urgent matters of the

Pilcher Co. receivership but under the circiunstances

this did not necessarily reduce the amount of other

business conducted by either of them.

Of course, they worked nights occasionally and

sometimes Sundays and holidays. What lawyer,

expert accountant or business man does not do so?

"Cross-examination, by Mr. Heney.
In describing this work that I did, when I

used the pronoun 'I,' and stated that 'I did this

and did that.' I do not mean to be understood as

saying that all of this detail work was done by
myself, personally; I had assistance.

There was a bookkeeper employed by the Re-
ceiver, from the middle of June, I should say,

until the end of December. This bookkeeper was
a woman, by the name of Harmon, and her salary

was $27.50 a week. She performed just the gen-

eral duty of a bookkeeper and office assistant,

under my constant direction. I would class her
as a competent bookkeeper."

He further testified that she did not check the

reports that were made of cash receipts of sales from

each store, to-wit: the daily reports.
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A competent bookkeeper, such as he and Mr. Lieur-

ance, both testified she was, could most certainly do

all this work.

''Q. To what extent did she check the reports

that were made of cash, receipts from sales of

each of these stores?

A. I should not say that she checked these

reports; I check the reports myself. These re-

ports came to me to be checked.

Q. Every day? A. Every day.

I do not iDelieve that she assisted in any of this

work of computing the amount of percentage on
the dividends."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 284.)

She was certainly competent to do so. Forty per

cent, is an easy amount to compute. It is only nec-

essary to move the decimal point one figure to the

left in each instance, and then multiply by four.

The Receiver did not employ anyone other than Miss

Harmon to assist in the bookkeeping.

*'I speak of, these cross-additions, etc., I had
two people working on that at times in addition

to mvself.
Q.' To what extent?
A. I do not quite understand what you mean,

to what extent they were employed.
Q. A number of days, or a number of weeks,

or a number of months, or how much time?
A. A number of months.
I do not mean that they put in their entire

tune on it. I had other work in the office on
which they were engaged at the same time that
they were doing this other work. Occasionally
they would do some of the computations.

Q. It might be half an hour's work a day
and sometimes an hour?
A. And sometimes a day.

Q. And sometimes a day? A. Yes.
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Q. Not very often? A. Sometimes weeks.

Q. Not so that you could ^ive us a statement
of how many days they put in?

A. I do not believe that I could do that, no,

I had other work in the office. I gave attention
to the other work in the office durino- this period.

Q. How did the total volume of work in your
office compare with the work of this particular
business ?

A. Are you askine; me to answer in terms of
dollars and cents, or in time of employment?

Q. In labor.

A. Well, I cannot state definitely how many
clients I have; I will be very frank with you, I
could not tell you off-hand. I have quite a num-
ber- of clients, I will say that, but their affairs

were attended to. A s^reat many of my clients,

their affairs had to be postponed mitil this matter
was over; on renderins: income tax returns, it

was necessary for me to require extensions of
time for filins; clients' returns; but as to just how
much in percentage this work took in comparison
with other work, I could not state.

I have other accountants employed in my office,

only from time to time, as the occasion arises.

Accountants are high-priced men to employ, and
we do not care to have them around when they
are not working."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 285-287.)

Mr. Lieurance evidently did not agree with Hershey

because he kept him around during the entire period

of the receivership, not^vithstanding the fact that an

expert accountant's services for a few days once each

month would have accomplished all that was neces-

sary,

Mr. Lieurance testified on this same subject in part

as follows

:

"A. Mr, Heney, it was not exactly a book-
keeper's job. The accounts would have to be
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audited, and Mr. Hershey did all of that work
and kept the books besides, and did an excellent

job, and gave the time that was necessary to keep
the books in proper order. So it was not a book-
keeper's job.

Q. A bookkeeper does not have much to do
to audit his own books, does he?

A. Anybody can write, but it really takes a
pretty good head to tell what to write and where
to write, etc.

Q. But any bookkeeper ought to have been
able to run these books, shouldn't he?
A. No, I doubt that—I guess a bookkeeper

would, yes.

Q. From your experience, what would you say
was a fair wage for a good bookkeeper or an ac-

countant to keep these books?
A. Well, there is a difference between book-

keepers and accountants. You can hire book-
keepers for most any price, but I think when
you employ accountants that do the bookkeeping
and accounting work, too, that is a different

situation.

Q. In that particular period up to the time
you sold out these stores, what necessity was
there for having an accountant, as distinguished

from a bookkeeper?
A. The work of chain store accoimting is

complicated.

Q. If you have your daily reports from your
stores, what difference does it make whether it

all came out of one store, or came from four-
teen different stores?

A. There were four different court jurisdic-

tions, for one thing, and there were sixteen stores,

and there was interchange of merchandise, and
there was everything to complicate the work."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 249-250.)

"Before I paid this amount to Mr. Hershey I
took the pains to look into the matter through
one of the large accounting firms here.

Q. Which ones did you inquire of?
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A. Mr. Lilly, of McLaren, Goocle & Co.

Q. Any others?

A. No, just the one at that time.

Q. Can you tell the conversation, the talk that

you had with Mr. Hershey at the time this

amount of $5,900 additional money was agreed
upon ?

A. Mr. Ilershey felt that he was entitled to

payment for his services, and the allowance had
been made to the Receivers and the attorneys,

and it was quite evident that Mr. Hershey w^as

entitled also to his payment, and he said he was
going to present his bill, and it would be $5,900,

and I gave it consideration and, in proper time,

paid it; I w'as satisfied in my own mind that it

was a reasonable charge, very reasonable for the
work done, and I confirmed that by communicat-
ing with Mr. Lilly, of McLaren, Goode & Co.

Q. So that you did not have any discussion
with him other than what you stated in regard
to the $5,900? A. Nothing that I recall.

Q. He did not explain to you how he reached
the figure of $5,900 ?

A. I couldn't state definitely the conversation.
There has been some conversation about hours,
and the basis of the charge, but I do not recall

that sufficiently to give any accurate testimony
on it.

Q. Did he fix the compensation by the hour
in your talk?
A. No. I do not recall that he did or that he

did not. I reckoned this payment largely from
this standpoint, Mr. Heney, if we had employed
a bookkeeper in each store, we could not have em-
ployed anyone that w^as anywhere near as compe-
tent, and if we would multiply that employment
by sixteen, the charge of Mr. Hershey would be
much less than it could possibly have been the
other way.

Q. But a chain of stores would not do that,
and they never do that ? A. No.

Q. In fact, it is to avoid that that they have
chain stores?
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A. They have it all in one place, where you
can handle them properly.

Q. So that would not be exactly the right way
to figure it, w^ould it?

A. No, I don't know that it would be the right

way to figure it. However, in this particular in-

stance, it is just one way of looking at it. The
property was scattered over the country, and we
did not know whether or not we were going to

have to account for all of these things in the

various jurisdictions, or account for them in one;

we did not know anything about it. We had to be
pretty careful."

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 251-252.)

At the hearing before the master, it developed that

Receiver Lieurance had subsequently paid Mr. Her-

shey two thousand ($2,000.00) dollars additional and

this fact was unknown to the creditors or their attor-

neys until it came out at the hearing.

Mr. Lieurance further testified that no stores were

operated after about November 3, 1926, and that the

last one sold was on that date; and that since that

time the bookkeeping related only to the payment of

dividends and the auditing of the claims and the

auditing of the books of account and the checking up
thereof with the claims filed.

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages 255-256.)

It thus appears that a large amount of the so-called

''Accountant Services" rendered by Hershey was
merely rountine bookkeeping work and that the em-

ployment of a high priced accountant to perform such

services was wholly unnecessary and an expense to

the estate, which it was entirely improper for the Re-

ceiver to incur.
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CONCLUSION.

Summarizing, appellants respectfully submit that

if the total fees allowed to the Trustee and his attor-

ney in a bankruptcy estate of approximately $500,-

000.00 would have been considerably less than $40,-

000.00, that there is no reason whatever why the

fees should be more than double that amount in this

proceeding" which is also in equity and mider the

jurisdiction of the same courts; especially when the

estate was not involved, when there was almost no

litigation and when the work of the liquidation was

practically concluded within less than six months

after the commencement of the proceedings.

In fact, the greater part of any services performed

since said time has been caused by the acts of the

Receiver and his attorney in obtaining excessive and

exhorbitant allowances in the manner revealed by

the foregoing record and contrary to the under-

standing had by them with representatives of ob-

jecting creditors. Thus it became necessary for the

appellants to file objections and spend large simis

of money in order to present the facts of this case

clearly before the above court.

In conclusion, appellants urge that the fees allowed

in this matter are grossly excessive and that the

judgment and decree of March 27th, 1928, be modified

so that the total fees allowed including the ad interim.

allowances shall be as follows:

Mr. Eliassen—not to exceed $20,000.00 and any
excess received be refunded to the estate.

Mr. Lieurance—not to exceed $15,000.00 and
any excess received to be refunded to the estate.
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Mr. Hershey—not to exceed $5,000.00 and the

Receiver's account be surcharged and the Receiver
ordered to refimd any amount paid in excess

thereof.

That the appellants be allowed their costs

herein.

And for such other order as may be meet in the

premises.

Dated, San Francisco,

October 21, 1929.

Respectfully submitted,

Francis J. Heney,

Clarence A. Shuey,

Grant H. Wren,

Attorneys for Objecting Creditors.
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The title of this cause, as set forth in the Transcript

of Record, and in Appellants' Opening Brief tiled

herein, is incorrect in this:

First: It designates R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., as a

bankrupt

;

Second: It designates A. F. Lieurance and Philip

A. Hershey as Receivers of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc.

(a corporation). Bankrupt, as Appellees; and



Third: It designates Philip A. Hershey as a Re-

ceiver.

The facts are:

First : This is not a proceeding in bankruptcy, but

a proceeding in equity;

Second: Neither one of these gentlemen is a Re-

ceiver, nor has he ever been a Receiver, of R. A.

Pilcher Co., Inc. (a corporation). Bankrupt. This is

a Receivership of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., and the Re-

ceiA^ers are A. F. Lieurance and Arthur F. Gotthold.

Further, A. F. Lieurance, Receiver of R. A. Pilcher

Co., Inc., and Edward R. Eliassen, Attorney for the

Receivers of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., are the Appellees.

Third: Philip A. Hershey is not now, nor has he

ever been, a Receiver, either of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc.,

or of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc. (a corporation). Bank-

rupt, and is not one of the Appellees herein.

We accept as substantially correct the statement in

Opening Brief for Objecting Creditors, as set forth

on pages 1, 2 and the first paragraph on page 3 there-

of, except the statement in the last paragraph on page

2 thereof wherein they state that A. F. Lieurance

* * * employed Edward R. Eliassen to act as his

Attorney as ove of the two Receivers, and, in this re-

gard, we state that said A. F. Lieurance employed

Edward R. Eliassen to act as the Attorney for the

two Receivers, as appears in the '* Order in Ancillary

Proceedings Appointing Receivers etc.," set forth on

pages 31 to 36 inclusive. Vol. I of Transcript, wherein

it appears that a verified petition of A. F, Lieurance

was filed on behalf of himself and Arthur F. Gotthold



petitioning' for the appointment of said A. F. Lieu-

rance and Arthur F. Gotthold as Receivers of the De-

fendant R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., in said proceeding in

Ancillary Proceedings, and that Edward R. Eliassen,

Esq., represented the said Petitioner; and, as further

shown by the "Order Continuing Receivers and Mak-

ing them Permanent," appearing on pages 36 to 39

inclusive, Vol. I of the Transcript, wherein it appears

on page 38: "Four. Ordered^ Adjudged and Decreed

that the appointments of Philip A. Hershey & Co.,

as Accountants, and Edward R. Eliassen, Esq., as

Attorney for the Receivers, be and they are hereby

confirmed and approved." (Italics ours.)

QUESTIONS INVOLVED IN THIS APPEAL.

As to the questions involved in this Appeal, it is our

understanding that they are as set forth in the Open-
ing Brief for Objecting Creditors under this heading,

except that the allowance of $30,000.00 fixed and al-

lowed by the Judgment and Decree of the Trial Court,

as compensation to be paid Edward R. Eliassen, was
fixed and allowed to him as Attorney for Receivers A.

F. Lieurance and Arthur F. Gotthold.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

We deem the Statement of the Case contained in

Opening Brief for Objecting Creditors not only in-

complete, but, in many instances, inaccurate and mi-

supported by the record, and, therefore, on behalf of

the Appellees, we offer the following:



The R. A. PiLCHER Co., Inc., was a merchandising

institution, existing under the laws of the State of

Delaware. It was engaged m the business of con-

ducting a chain of Department Stores, all of which

were located in the States of Oregon, Washmgton and

California, to wit: Three stores in California, located

at Stockton, Turlock and Oroville; seven stores, lo-

cated in the following towns in Washington : Yakima,

Tacoma, Bremerton, Monroe, Aberdeen, Everett and

Wenatchee; six stores, located in the following towns

in Oregon: Klamath Falls, Eugene, Pendleton, Rose-

burg, Portland and Albany. These stores were classed

as general merchandise stores, and their stocks were

made up of dry goods, shoes, clothing, ladies' ready to

wear, men's ready to wear, men's furnishing goods,

ladies' and children's furnishing goods, notions, bed-

ding, hats, caps and other lines usually fomid in a

department store.

R. A. Pitcher had formerly been in the employ of

J. C. Penney Company, a company engaged in con-

ducting a system of so-called chain stores.

When R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., became financially

embarrassed, a meeting of its creditors was called and

took place in New York City. The total amount of

indebtedness of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., at that time

was approximately $725,000.00. Its assets, including

money in bank, merchandise, store fixtures, etc., were

believed to exceed in value the total amount of its

indebtedness. Very shortly before that time, one or

more of its stockholders had purchased additional

stock to the amount of $75,000.00, and the whole of

that amount was then on deposit to its credit in a



New York baiilv. But it was then indebted to that

same bank in an amount a little in excess thereof.

R, A. Pileher represented to the creditors that he

believed certain stockholders would purchase enough

additional shares of stock to enable him to refinance

the concern satis factoi'ily and continue its business, if

the creditors would agree to an extension of one year's

time for the payment of their respective debts. A
few attachment suits by small creditors had already

been commenced and other similar suits were being

threatened, and the great bulk in amount of creditors

concluded that it would be advisable to have tempo-

rary Receivers appointed, until an agreement for the

aforesaid extension of one year's time for the pay-

ment of debts (which they favored) could be cir-

culated among and signed by the respective creditors

for the purpose of enabling Mr. Pileher to reorganize

and refinance R. A. Pileher & Co., Inc., as aforesaid.

Accordingly, this suit was thereupon originally in-

stituted in the United States District Court in and for

the Southern Division of the State of New York, and

Mr. A. F. Lieurance and Arthur F. Gotthold were ap-

pointed temporary Receivers. Mr. Lieurance had, for

a number of years, been a stockholder in the J. C.

Penney Co., and had been in its employ and
thoroughly acquainted with the chain store business,

and Mr. Walton N. Moore, a member of the Creditors'

Committee of R. A. Pileher Co., Inc., strongly urged

him to accept the co-receivership with Mr. Gotthold,

and he consented to do so. Who suggested his name
to the Committee, however, was never known to him.

Promptly after the appointment of A. P. Lieurance



and Ai'thur F. Gotthold, as temporary Receivers in

New York, Ancillary Proceedings were taken in the

States of California, Oregon and Washington.

At the New York meeting the creditors had elected

a conunittee to look after their affairs, and William

Fraser was elected chairman of the committee, and

Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst acted as the legal

advisors of the committee and as attorneys for the

plaintiffs in the original suit, as well as for Arthur

F. Gotthold, the New York Receiver.

The creditors of the western jurisdictions also ap-

pointed a committee to represent them, and Mr. Wal-

ton N. Moore of the Walton N. Moore Dry Goods Co.

became the chairman of that committee as well as a

member of the original New York committee which

represented all the creditors. The Walton N. Moore

Dry Goods Co. was the largest western creditor. Its

claim was approximately $30,000.00. This claim, how-

ever, had been guaranteed by one J. C. Brownstone,

a large stockholder of the R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., and,

at the time of the hearing in this matter before the

Special Master, Mr. Walton N. Moore did not know

whether this claim of the Walton N. Moore Dry

Goods Co., so guaranteed by J. C. Brownstone, had

been paid in full or not. The Walton N. Moore Dry

Goods Co. was a member of the Board of Trade of

San Francisco, and Mr. Moore suggested to Mr.

Lieurance when he and Mr. Lieurance first met that

he thought it would be in the interest of all concerned

if Mr. Lieurance as Receiver would handle the re-

ceivership in the western jurisdictions through the San

Francisco Board of Trade and employ its Attorneys to



represent him as Receiver, and thus secure the benefit

of their wide and varied experience in receivership

matters. Mr, Moore gave as his reason for this sug-

gestion that the San Francisco Board of Trade was

owned and controlled by the wholesale and manufac-

turing interests of San Francisco, and that, as a great

number of its members were creditors of the R. A.

Pilcher Co., Inc., it was only fair and right that their

organization should handle this business. Mr. Moore

also suggested that Mr. Lieurance use the Attorneys

employed by the Board of Trade.

Mr. Lieurance did not immediately refuse to ac-

cept Mr. Moore's suggestion, but informed him that

he, Mr. I^ieurance, would think the matter over care-

fully, and give Mr. Moore a decision at a later date.

After thinking the matter over carefully, and taking

into consideration the fact that he, Mr. Lieurance, was

the choice for Receiver of the creditors who attended

the meeting at the inception of the receivership, he

felt that it was his duty to handle this business in a

manner in which he felt the best results could be ob-

tained. He also felt that if it had been the desire of

the creditors to have the San Francisco Board of

Trade handle the matter, they would have selected it

as Receiver instead of selecting him. Mr. Lieurance

further took into consideration the fact that there

were other Boards of Trade or Credit Men's Associa-

tions located in other Cities, whose members were

creditors, and whom he felt that he would discriminate

against in employing the San Francisco Board of

Trade, and/or its Attorneys, and he also felt that since

it was the purpose and plan of the stockholders to re-



finance the business, and make a settlement with the

creditors, that the interests of both the stockholders

and the creditors would best be served by his keeping

the business of the receivership separate and apart,

and thus avoid further complications, and Mr.

Lieurance thereupon declined to accept the said sug-

gestions of Mr. Moore concerning the Board of Trade

of San Francisco, and the employment of the Attor-

neys of the Board of Trade as his attorneys in said

receivership.

Mr. Lieurance thereupon employed Mr. Edward R.

Eliassen, of Oakland, California, as Attorney for the

Receivers in the western jurisdictions, and rented of-

fices in the Central Bank Building, in Oakland, Cali-

fornia, on the same floor as and adjacent to the offices

of Mr. Eliassen. It is not admitted by Mr. Eliassen

that this was his first experience as Attorney for a

Receiver, as is stated in Appellant's Opening Brief.

The fact is he testified that he had theretofore sei'ved

as Attorney for receivers in Bankruptcy matters.

(Transcript of Record, Vol, II, page 494.)

It is admitted, however, by counsel for the Object-

ing Creditors that the receivership was very efficiently

conducted, and it is also admitted by Mr. Moore and

other members of the Creditors' Committee, not only

that nearly all of the work of the receivershij) Iiad

been done in the western jurisdictions, but that it had

been done with very creditable results.

Mr. Lieurance at once emjjloyed Mr. Philip A. Her-

shey, an expert public accountant (which emplojTnent

was later approved by an Order of the Court) to open

a set of books, establish an accounting system, and to



keep proper and complete records and accounts for

the administration of the receivership, and to perform

such other services as were required by the Receivers

in connection with the administration of said receiver-

ship, and to do and perform, as such Accountant, all

of the acts and things by him performed under said

emjDlojnnent for the Receivers in the western jurisdic-

tions. The work ])erformed by Mr. Hershey is shown

in his Statement of Services, being Receivers' Ex-

hibit No. 4, and set forth at pages 785 et seq., Vol. II

of the Transcript.

Appellants contend that Mr. Hershey was employed

mider a conti'act at a fixed salary of $350.00 per

month. (See Transcript of Record, Vol. II, page 809.)

Mr. Hershey was not thus employed, as clearly ap-

pears from the testimony of Mr. Lieurance, commenc-

ing at the bottom of page 244, Vol. I, Ti-anscript of

Record, to the middle of page 246 of the same Volume.

Mr. Hershey had a large amount of other business,

some of ^^•hich he continued to take care of, while serv-

ing as Accountant for the Receivers in this matter, but

much of which he foimd it necessary to postj^one in

order that he might give his time and attention to the

work connected with this receivership.

Receiver l^ieurance pursued the usual practice in

chain stores of requiring all sales to be made for cash

only, and of furnishing each store with blanks upon
which it was required to make a daily report, and to

record in the proper column on this report the daily

sales, and in another column prepared for the purpose

to report their local expenditures which included

freight, express, light, water, heat, power, stamps,
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drayage, cartage, disposal of waste, salaries to em-

ployees, and other minor expenditures for local sup-

plies such as sweeping compound, brooms, repairs to

light and plmnbing fixtures, and so forth. Most of

these items were required to be paid for by check on

their local banks where they kept a small deposit for

that purpose. However, these cancelled vouchers, to-

gether with their bank statements, were subject to

withdrawal only by Receiver Lieurance, and were

regularly collected at his general office in Oakland for

the purpose of checkmg up the daily reports and of

keeping the records and accounts of the Receivers in

the office at Oakland. The managers of all stores were

further instructed and required to retain in their cash

drawers two hundred dollars as a revolving fund and

change, and to deposit their daily sales in their local

banks to the account of "R. A. Pitcher Co.—A. F.

Lieurance Co.—Receiver," and to send each day to

Receiver Lieurance at his Oakland office a draft for

the full amount of each day's sales less the local daily

expenditui'es, all of which were accounted for on the

daily reports.

Some assistants wei'e employed by Mr. Hershey to

aid him in his work. He opened journals in which

were recorded the sales of stores, the cash that was

received, the checks that were drawn, the bank de-

posits that were made, petty cash ex])enditures, the

merchandise purchases, tlie merchandise transfers,

and a general journal for the entry of such items as

would not appear in the previous journal; also set

up a general ledger for each of the sixteen stores : also

set up a set of books for the office of the Receiver,
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those books consisting of tlie joiu-nals l)efore men-

tioned and also a journal and ledger for that general

office. Tlie keeping of these books in this manner

rendered it convenient for the Receiver subsequently

to make separate accounts for each of the four western

jurisdictions, if it had become necessary so to do, and

such separate accounts were rendered in each of the

four western jurisdictions.

Most of the transactions in all of the different stores

were on a cash basis, but there were a great number

of transfers of merchandise from the stores in one

jurisdiction to the stores in another jurisdiction. The

accounting system so installed by Mr. Hershe.y was

such that he was able at any time, upon request, to

furnish to the Receivers an accurate statement of the

condition of all of these sixteen stores in the western

jurisdictions. Mr. Hershey was engaged fi'om five

to ten days in formulating and installing this system.

A bookkeeper was emploj^ed by the Receivers, at a

wage of $27.50 per week.

Arthur F. Gotthold, as Receiver, had employed in

New York City the expert accounting firm of S. D.

Leidesdorf & Co.,to do the work for the Receivers in the

eastern jurisdiction. The accounting w^ork, however,

in the eastern jurisdiction was much less burdensome

and extensive than that required in the western juris-

dictions, as all of the accounting work relating to the

sixteen stores in the western jurisdictions was done

by Mr. Hershey; that said firm of S. D. Leidesdorf

& Co. were paid for their services as expert account-

ants in the eastern jurisdiction the sum of $7,700.00.

All of the books of account of the R. A. Pileher Co.,
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Inc., having to do with its affairs up to the time of

the inception of the receivership were in New York

City, and were turned over to S. D. Leidesdorf & Co.,

as a considerable niunber of the creditors of the R. A.

Pilcher Co., Inc., were within the eastern jurisdiction.

Mr. Lieurance endeavored constantly for months,

but without success, however, to get from his co-Re-

ceiver in New York, and Attorney Ernst, information

w^hich was essential to round out the accounting- here.

The appointment of Arthur F. Gotthold and A. F.

Lieurance as temporary Receivers was made by United

States District Judge Augustus N. Hand on June 3,

1926, and shortly thereafter, to-wit: on or about June

9, 1926, their appointment as temporary Receivers was

made by the respective western jurisdictions.

Mr. Lieurance immediately proceeded to organize

the conduct of the business of the sixteen stores con-

stituting the chain. Shortly thereafter, Mr. Ernst

made a visit to California and held a conference with

Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen in relation to the con-

dition and the conduct of the business, and he re-

ported back to Mr. Gotthold in New York City. An
understanding was reached between the Receivers to

the effect that Mr. Lieurance had assumed and would

continue the direction of the actual conduct of the

business in all of the stores and that Mr. Gotthold had

assmned and would continue to direct all affairs con-

nected with the receivership which might arise in the

New York jurisdiction. Of course, the control of the

receivership was to be joint nevertheless.

About the first of October, 1926, Mr. Lieurance,

after conducting the business for four months, became
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confident that it would be impossible for Mr. R. A.

Pilcher to secure sufficient financial assistance to set-

tle with the creditors and take back the business, and

so advised his co-Receiver, and Mr. Pilcher, and

Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst, Attorneys, that it

would be advisable to sell the stores as going concerns,

if possible.

On August 31, 1926, Mr. Lieurance had on hand as

assets of the receivership net cash amounting to the

sum of $228,178.08. At that time he reported this

fact to his co-Receiver, Arthur F. Gotthold, and

Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst, the Attorneys in

New York City for the Receivers, and suggested that

if the business was to be continued for an appreciable

length of time, pending the refinancing of the busi-

ness by the stockholders of R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc.,

the greater part of the cash on hand would have to be

expended for merchandise to supply the stores foi-

the coming fall season.

Receiver Gotthold and Attorneys McManus, Ernst

& Ernst in turn conferred with a number of large

eastern creditors and Receiver Lieurance conferred

with a number of the large western creditors, and it

was found that the consensus of opinion among the

creditors was that the business could not be refinanced

and that the cash on hand should not be expended for

merchandise to replenish the stocks in the stores for

future operations, and that unless the stockholders of

R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., gave definite assurance that

the business could be refinanced, or a satisfactory

settlement made, the cash then on hand should be pre-

served for distribution among the creditors, together
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with the proceeds of the sale of the remainder of the

property, after payment therefrom of expenses of the

receiversliip, inckiding Receivers' fees and Attorneys'

fees. It was also the consensus of opinion of the

creditors that an effort should be made to sell the

stores as e^oing concerns.

This plan was adopted and Mr. Lieurance pro-

ceeded at once to secure purchasers. To this end he

composed letters containing full information dealing

with the sixteen stores, both individually and collec-

tively, and sent copies thereof not only to prospective

purchasers who had made inquiries concerning the

sale, but mailed copies thereof to merchants through-

out the country who had made no inquiries but who

were in the merchandising business and whom he felt

might be interested in obtaining one or more of the

stores.

Where personal contact wdth those prospective pur-

chasers was possible, he called upon them personally,

and, where such contact was impossible, he coimnuni-

cated with them both by letter and telegram. While

thus making every possible effort to make the best

possible sales of the stores, he kept all of the sixteen

stores runnmg, giving to these matters his services,

not only during business hours, but at night and upon

most Sundays and holidays. As a result of his ef-

forts, all of the stores w^ere sold as going concerns,

some of said stores being sold separately and some in

groups, the last of said sales being comjDleted about

November 3, 1926, and all of said sales being made as

of August 31, 1926.
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A difference of opinion had arisen between the two

Receivers as to the best method of making the sales.

Receiver Gotthold contended that the method of sale

which would bring- tlie best results would be to call for

bids for all of the stores togetlier as a chain; whereas,

Receiver Lieurance insisted that the best price and

results could he obtained by calling for bids for the

stores either separately, or in groups, or as a whole,

and all as going concerns. The latter plan was

adopted.

Notices of Receivers' Sale were accordingly pub-

lished in various newspapers throughout the four

western jurisdictions, inviting prospective purchasers

to present sealed bids for each store separately, or for

groups of said stores, or for all of said stores as one

group. Niunerous bids were received, and, upon the

same being opened, the highest of said bids were ac-

cepted, subject to confirmation and approval by the

various (Courts in the w^estern jurisdictions, and the

aggregate gross amount received for all of the stores

was the siun of $257,600.00.

While efforts were being made by Mr. Lieurance in

the western jurisdictions to sell these stores, Mr. Gott-

hold and their Attorneys, Messrs. McManus, Ernst &

Ernst, were endeavoring to sell them in New York.

During this time, Mr. Lieui-ance kept in constant

telegraphic communication with his co-Receiver, Mr.

Arthur F. Gotthold, and with Messrs. McManus,

Ernst & Ernst, and learned from them that the best

offer they had received was $325,000.00, and this was

for all of the assets of the R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc.,

including not only the sixteen stores but also including
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the easli on hand, amounting to $228,178.07. Deduct-

ing the amount of cash on hand from the above men-

tioned bid of $325,000.00, leaves $96,821.93 as the best

offer received in the East for the stores. The total

amount received for the stores upon sale thereof as

above mentioned is $257,600.00, or $160,778.07 more

than the best offer received in the East for the stores,

all of which fully justified the adoption of Mr. Lieur-

ance's plan for the sale of the stores.

The stores had been conducted by the Receivers dur-

ing a period of practically five months, to-wit: from

Jime 3, 1926, to November 3, 1926, the date of the

sale of the last store. While the conduct of these

stores from August 31, 1926, until November 3, 1926,

in order that they might be sold as going concerns,

inured to the benefit of the purchasers to the extent of

the net profits made on sales over the counter during

that period, after pajTnent of all carrying charges

and nmning expenses, and after pa\Tnent for all mer-

chandise purchased during said period, still the

greater benefit inured to the estate and the creditors

thereof by reason of the stores having been kept open

and continued as going concerns.

Shortly after this suit was originally commenced

in the New York jurisdiction to procure the appoint-

ment of temporary Receivers, it was deemed necessary

for the creditors to cause, and they did cause, bank-

ruptcy proceedings to be instituted against R. A.

Pilcher (^o.. Inc., in New York City in order to de-

stroy prior liens of a number of small attaching

creditors in the various jurisdictions. Afterwards, it

was concluded by all parties concerned therein, how-
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ever, that it would be equally ecouoinical aud more

advantageous to the creditors of R. A. Pilcher Co.,

Inc., to keep the administration and liquidation of its

affairs throu.gh the receivership already in existence

instead of transferring its operation to the bank-

ruptcy court, and thus to a Receiver or Trustee to

be appointed therein. Hence, no further steps were

ever taken by the creditors to pursue the bankruptcy

proceedings.

AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR CREDITORS.

The net amoimt of money obtained by the Receivers

from the liquidation of all the assets of the receiver-

ship, and which thus became available for the pay-

ment of creditors, after there should first be deducted

therefrom the fees for the Receivers and their Attor-

neys, and other necessary expenses of the receiver-

shi]), was the sum of $466,980.40.

The t<^tal amount of all creditors' claims, general

and preferred, tiled with the Receivers was $751,-

860.09; and the total amount of these claimed as gen-

eral claims was $746,043.75, and the amomit allowed

on the general claims was $718,794.12.

The total amount of preferred claims filed with and
allowed by the Receivers was $5,816.34, and these were

paid in full by the Receivers, and a dividend of 50%
was paid to creditors on the amount of general claims

allowed, that is to say, on $718,794.12.



18

TRIP OF MR. HERSHEY TO NEW YORK CITY.

This trip by Mr, Hershey was absolutely necessary,

and authority was obtained from the Court to send

Mr. Hershey on to New York. The books of R. A.

Pilcher Co., Inc., which were all kept in the City of

New York, had been permitted to lapse on the 28th

day of February, 1926; that is to say, had not been

kept up to date subsequent thereto and prior to the

appointment of the Receivers on June 3, 1926.

Only a part of the claims against the Estate had

been filed with Mr. Lieurance, and the remainder had

been sent to New York; also, msiny of the claims in

the District of California had been filed with the San

Francisco Board of Trade, and they, instead of filino-

these claims with Mr. Lieurance in California, had

sent them to the Receiver in New York, thus causing-

delay and confusion. It was very difficult to coordi-

nate the business of the Receivers with part of the

claims in New York, and part of them in Oakland.

The original books of the Company being in New
York, Mr. Lieurance had no means of checking the

claims to determine their correctness. He made

nmnerous attempts to get from his co-Receiver in New
York information showing accurately the amount of

indebtedness as shown by the books of the Company,

and other information necessary to the handling of

the claims. Being unsuccessful in obtaining this in-

formation, realizing that time was being lost, and that

further complications would arise as a result of these

records being scattered, Mr. Lieurance, with the au-

thority of the Court, sent Mr. Philip A. Hershey,

Aecomitant for the Receivers, to New York for the
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purpose of going- over the books of the Company,

bringing the accounts up to date, checking them up

with the chiims, and doing whatever was necessary

to get the accounts reconciled with the claims and

know where things stood; to make an audit of the

accounts, as shown by the books of the R. A, Pilcher

Co., Inc., and obtain other necessary information in

connection with the verifying of the clauns that had

been filed, and were still to be filed against the Estate.

Upon Mr. Hershey's arrival in New York, he found

fJiat comparatively nothing had been done toward an

audit of the hooks and accounts of the Company. It

required ap]3roximately two weeks for him, working

day and night, to compile an accurate and authentic

statement of the various accounts, as shown by the

books of the Company, and he discovered, among

other things, that the total liabilities of the Company

were aj^proximately $140,000.00 more than the reports

from the East had theretofore shown.

Mr. Lieurance knew, and had known, that the

books and records of the R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc., had

been for some time in the hands of a firm of Account-

ants, who had been employed by Receiver Gotthold,

to-wit : the firm of S. D. Leidesdorf & Co. ; that some

of the creditors were located in and around New York

City. Knowing these things, he endeavored on numer-

ous occasions to obtain from New York City the in-

formation aliove referred to, but was unsuccessful in

his efforts. The answers he received to his requests

were that the information was not ready. Mr. Hershey

was away from Oakland on this trip during a period

of a total of thirtv-eight davs. While in New York
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City, he worked with S. D. Leidesdorf & Co. iii their

offices uijon the books and records of R. A. Pilcher

Co., Inc., for the purpose of obtaining all of the above

mentioned information which Mr, Lieurance had been

constantly seeking through correspondence, but was

unable to obtain.

COMPENSATION OF THE RECEIVERS AND THEIR ATTORNEYS.

Certain conferences, and certain telegraphic and

letter correspondence were had between the parties

in interest in relation to the ad interim allowances on

account of Receivers' fees and Attorneys' fees, which

conferences and correspondence commenced before

any of the applications were made in the western

jurisdictions for such allowances, extended through

the period while applications were being made in the

western jurisdictions for such allowances, and beyond

the time when the last of said ad interim allowances

was made in tlie western jurisdictions.

In the "Objections and Exceptions to Final Ac-

count and Report of the Receivers, also to the Petition

for Allowance of Fui'tlier Fees and Compensation to

Receiver Lieurance or to Edward R. Eliassen, Attor-

ney for the Receivers," filed herein by the Objecting

Creditors, they set up, in support of their said Objec-

tions and Exceptions, the aforesaid conferences and

communications.

Much of this corres])ondence appears in the Tran-

script of Record, and is set forth in the Opening

Brief for Objecting Creditors filed herein, at pages

13 to 38, inclusive, and, in relation to which corre-
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s]H)iuU'iice, tiiey state in tlieir Openiiio' Brief, page 13,

^'The following telegraphic and letter correspondence

between the parties in interest exi)lains quite fully

the manner in which the amount allowed l)y the trial

court as fees to Receiver A. F. Lieurance and liis

Attorney, Edward R. Eliassen, was reached."

The S])ecial Master eliminated from his considera-

tion, so far as tlie final fixation of the fees of Receiver

A. F. Lieurance, and his Attorney, Edward R. Elias-

sen, are concerned, all of the conferences and the

comnumications above referred to, considering them

iramater-ial (Transcript, A'^ol. I, page 237; also page

180), and it is therefore apparent that these com-

munications and conferences do not fully or at all

explain ''the manner in which the amount allowed

by the trial court as fees to Receiver A. F. Lieurance

and his attorney, Edward R. Eliassen, was reached."

The amoimt of the od interim allowances is not one

of the issues involved in this ai)peal, and, therefore,

the manner in which the amount of these ad interim

allowances was reached is immaterial.

Counsel for the Objecting Creditors at the hearing

before the Special Master (Transcript of Record, Vol.

I, page 318), stated: "The only materiality I feel it

has is, it is cross-examination, and has as such a bear-

ing on the weight of the testimony given by Mr.

Eliassen and Mr. Lieurance respectively in regard to

the value of the services."

A meeting was held at the office of Mr. Kirk, Attor-

ney for the San Francisco Board of Trade, on De-

cember 9th, at which meeting were pi-esent Mr. Kirk,
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Mr. Walton N. Moore, Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Elias-

sen,

A controversy exists between Mr. Kirk and Mr.

Moore on the one hand, and Mr. Lienranee and Mr.

Eliassen on the other, as to the understanding reached

at this meeting, with regard to the tiling of applica-

tions for ad interim allowances to the Receivers and

their Attorney in the western jurisdictions, and as to

what transpired at said meeting; the latter contend-

ing that it was understood and agreed that they should

proceed at once to tile Petitions for and obtain ad in-

terim allowances in all of the western jurisdictions,

and then to report the aggregate thereof to Mr. Wal-

ton N. Moore; and further contending that it was

agreed that the first of these applications would be

made on the following day, that is to say, December

10th, to the United States District Court for the

Northern District of California, Southern Division,

at San Francisco, and that, having procured the ad.

interim allowances in San Francisco, Mr. Lieurance

and Mr. Eliassen should proceed at once to the North-

west and file like applications and procure Orders for

ad interim allowances in those various jurisdictions,

leaving the amounts of these allowances to the judg-

ment of the various Courts; and further contending

that Mr. Kirk, the Attorney for the Board of Trade

of San Francisco, suggested that it would not be

necessary for him to be ])resent upon the hearing of

the aforesaid ap])lications for ad interim allowances;

whereas, it is contended by the former that it was not

understood that Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen

should proceed with these applications at that time,
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Creditors' Committee for the purj^ose of determining-

what sums should be sought as ad interim, allowances

from the Courts in the western jurisdictions. The

testimony of these gentlemen is conflicting concerning

wluit was said and done at that meeting in relation to

the obtaiumg of ad inferirn allowances,—and growing-

out of this misunderstanding, has come the efforts on

the part of the Objecting Creditors to impugn the in-

tegrity and good faith of Mr. Lieurance and Mr.

Eliassen, and we believe that it is for this purpose

only, and not for the purpose of determining the rea-

sonable value of their respective services in this mat-

ter, that the letter and telegraphic correspondence

have been introduced into this proceeding.

The applications for ad interim allowances were

made in accordance with w^hat Mr. Lieurance and Mr.

Eliassen understood and believed to be the agreement

as reached at said meeting m the office of Mr. Kirk,

on December 9, 1926. The ]:)ai'ties in interest were

waiting in the East to know the aggregate of the ad,

interim, allowances in the western jurisdictions in

order to apprise Judge Hand as to their amount. It

was agreed by Mr. Moore, Mr. Kirk, Mr. Lieurance

and Mr. Eliassen that these amounts would be left

to the judgment of the respective Courts in the west-

ern jurisdictions. These amounts could not be deter-

mined until the applications were made and hearings

had.

There were two letters, however, which were intro-

duced in evidence, but neither of which is set forth in

Appellants' Opening Brief. The first of these letters
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was from Roberts, Johnson & Rand, of St. IjOiiis,

Missouri, dated December 29, 1926, to Mr. A. F.

Lieurance, and was introduced in evidence by counsel

for the Objecting Creditors, and appears at pages 502

and 503, Vol. II, Transcript of Record. The second

of these two letters bears date January 10, 1927,

being the reply of Mr. Lieurance to the first of said

two letters, and was introduced in evidence by Plain-

tiffs, and appears at pages 505 to 512, inclusive, Vol.

II, Transcript of Record. We resj^ectfull}^ invite the

attention of this Honorable Court to both of these

letters, and particularly to that of Mr. Lieurance,

which we feel is a complete answer to the unfounded

charges against Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen con-

cerning the ad interim allowances.

The first of these ad interim allowances was applied

for and made in the United States District Court in

and for the Northern District of California, Southern

Division, on December 10, 1926. Mr. Lieurance, in

his testimony at page 446, Vol. I, Transcript of Rec-

ord, describes generally what occurred in the various

Courts of the four western jurisdictions upon these

applications. We quote here from the testimony of

Mr. A. F. Lieurance:

"I accompanied Mr. Eliassen into the various
jurisdictions when applications were made for
temporary allowances. We went into the courts
in the ancillary juiisdictions, to ask for allow-

ances on account to the attorney and the Receiv-
ers, and went through with what I suppose is the
regular form of proceeding in the matter in

court, I was put on the witness-stand by Mr.
Eliassen and asked a number of questions,

whether I was the Receiver, and if I qualified,
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natural course of sucli thin2:s. I could not repeat
it all, word for word, but that is the nature of it.

Included in this was the application to pay a
dividend of 40 per cent. The Court asked about
what amount of money there was on hand, and
whether or not we could safely pay that lars:e a
dividend, and asked a number of questions in re-

gard to the condition of the estate, and how the

receivership was progressing, and [344] took

whatever interest the Court felt was necessary.

They asked how much comijensation the attorneys

and the Receivers were asking for on account.

When that question has been asked me I have
said, without exception, that that is a matter that

is to be left entirely to the discretion of the Court,

whatever seems to the Court fair and equitable is

all right.";

and

As shown on page 447, Vol. I of the Transcript of

Record, he states more specifically what occurred

upon the application to the United States District

Court in and for the Northern District of California,

Southern Division, as follows:

''As I remember it, the Judge asked if an
allowance had been made in any other jurisdic-

tion, and Mr. Eliassen replied there had not been,

but that an application (being the application of

Receiver Gotthold and the attorneys, Messrs. Mc-
Manus, Ernst & Ernst, referred to in the above
mentioned conferences and correspondence) had
been made for an allowance on account in New
York. He asked what the amount was, and Mr.
Eliassen said $10,000. The Court said, 'I will

make an order to that effect if that is satisfac-

tory.' Mr. Eliassen said: 'Anything that satis-

fies the Court.' I was asked how much I was
asking for. I said to the Court that this was a

matter to be heard in four jurisdictions, that I had
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set no fiefiire, and that it was a matter to be left

to the Court. He said he understood that. So
he said ' $10,000 to the receiver. ' I asked him what
division he would make of that, that I had done
all the work in the western jurisdictions, and Mr.
Gotthold had done none of it. He said, 'Why
not split it 50-50?' I said, 'Do you think that

would be fair?' After some hesitation he said,

'No, make it 75 and 25.' That ended the conver-

sation, or, rather, that ended the hearing;. I don't

think there was anything? else after that. The
order was made and that was the end of it.";

and

As shown on pages 447 and 448, Yol. I of the Tran-

script of Record, he states more specifically what oc-

curred upon the application to the United States

District Court in and for the Eastern District of

Washington, at Spokane, as follows:

"We went to Portland. Judge Bean was not
at home ; he was away, and would not be back for
some three or four days, or whatever time it was.
We made an appointment there at that particular
time to see him a subsequent date. We pro-

ceeded to Spokane. We had a hearing before
Judge Webster. Judge Webster asked how much
we were asking for [345] after he had approved
the payment of the 40 per cent dividend, and I
told him that that was a matter that was to he
left entirely to the Court. I emphasized that

fact. He said he understood that. He com-
mented upon the result of the administration, and
said that he was ready to fix the fee, and pressed
me for an answer as to how much I would expect.

I repeated that that was a matter that was to be
left to the Court, whatever to the Court seemed
fair and equitable would be satisfactory. He said,

'You must have some idea what the services are

worth.' I said to him, 'This is a matter of allow-

ance on account, as I understand it.' He said,
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'Well, wliat would you charc^e for the services
7*^

I said, 'If I were setting up a fee I would set it

at 5 per cent of the lEyross sales for the services
of the receivership.' He asked some questions
re,o;ardino- whether or not it was to be final, or
how much more work there would be, and I told

him T didn't know, but so far as I knew the next
dividend could be paid and the matter closed uj).

He said he thought that was fair and ri,2;ht, and
made the allowance. We proceeded to Seattle,

and Jud2,e Neterer
The Master. Q. At Spokane, was anythins;

said about Mr. Eliassen's fee?
A. Mr. Eliassen said to the Court, whatever

the Court felt was ri,^ht hnd fair would be all

right. There was the same procedure that had
taken place in San Francisco here. That was fol-

lowed substantially.
'

'

;

and

As shown on pages 449 and 450, Vol. II of the

Transcript of Record, he states more specifically what

occurred upon the application to the United States

District Court in and for the Western District of

Washington, at Seattle, as follows:

"When I say he was more particular, I mean
he took more time and went into the matter more
thoroughly. After the regular procedure, just

the same as had taken place in the other courts,

that is, the presenting of the statement, or the
report, he questioned me at some length regard-
ing the result obtained in the receivership. I

told him the result that we had obtained. As a
matter of fact, he had passed upon the work that

had gone on before, and was highly pleased with
the result of the sales, and commented upon the
manner in which the estate had been handled, and
said that it was one of the best that had come to

his attention. He asked me how" much I was ask-
ing for. I told him it was a matter to be left
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entirely to the Court. He said he understood
that, but I certainly had some idea what the ser-

vices were worth. I refrained as long as I could,
imtil I was asked the direct question, and felt

that I had to answer as to what I would expect
for the services. He also delved into the matter
as to whether or not the receivership was to be
closed up. I told him no, I did not believe so,

but that we wanted to pay the 40 per cent divi-

dend, and that there would be another dividend
later on, and so far as I knew, the matter could
be broua^ht to a close some time, possibly, in April,

or maybe earlier. He inquired about the amount
of sales in that particular jurisdiction, and I ^ave
it to him, and he took out his pencil and figured

out the amount at 5 per cent on the gross sales.

As I remember it, it figured up about $13,000.

He said, 'I don't think anybody can object to

that; however, are you going to make any other
application for fees?' I said, 'I don't know, it

depends on the amoimt of w^ork that has to be
done in the future.' He said, 'We will make this

f$12,000, and then if there is any other work done
later on we will attend to it when the final ac-

count is heard.' So that instead of figuring it at

5 per cent he took oi¥ $1,000 and made the fee

$12,000.";

and

As shown on ])ages 450 and 451, Vol. II of the

Transcript of Record, he states more specifically what

occurred upon the ai)plication to the United States

District Court in and for the District of Oregon, at

Portland, as follows:

"Virtually the same thing prevailed in the
court in Portland [347] Oregon, Judge J^ean took
considerable interest in the affair, and asked a
number of questions regarding the estate, and the
results obtained. He asked what had been done
in the other jurisdictions, and I told him. He
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said lie thought that was fair and equitable, and
he did not believe anybody could ol)ject to that,

and that he would make the order for 5 per cent
on the sales, and make that the final compensa-
tion so far as my compensation would be con-
cerned. He fi,2ured the 5 per cent on the across

sales. That is how it comes to be an odd fioiire.

That is the way these allowances were obtained.
There was no breach of confidence, and no effort

made to deceive the Court, and there was nothing-

done to influence the Court in any manner, except
just as I have told you.

That is substantially what has happened in

every j urisdiction.
'

'

It will be observed that together with these applica-

tions for ad interim allowances on account of Receiv-

ers' fees and Attorneys' fees, applications were also

made for orders from the respective Courts directing

the payment of preferred claims, and directing the

payment of a 40 per cent dividend to the general

creditors.

In the Orders made by the various Courts in the

western jurisdictions awarding ad interim allowances

to the Receivers, it w^as provided in each case, except

in the Eastern District of Washington, that a portion

of said allowance go to Mr. Gotthold.

An agreement was reached between Mr. Lieurance

and Mr. Gotthold that all allowances to the Receivers

in the western jurisdictions should belong to Mr.

Lieurance, and all of those awarded to the Receiver in

the original jurisdiction should belong to Mr. Gott-

hold. The first knowledge, however, that Mr. Lieur-

ance received from Mr. Gotthold that such a plan was
acceptable to Mr. Gotthold reached Mr. Lieurance
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while in Portland, Oregon, on December 16th, by wire

from Mr. Gotthold from New York, dated December

16th, which w'as received at Oakland, California, at

9:44 A. M., and was forwarded to Mr. Lieurance at

Portland, Oregon, on that date.

Appellants, in their Opening Brief, at the l^ottom of

page 27 thereof, contend that it is a fair legal pre-

smnption that Mr. Lieurance received this telegram at

Portland sometime before 2:00 o'clock P. M. on. De-

cember 16, 1926, and prior to the hearing of the appli-

cation for ad interim allowances before the United

States District Court of Oregon, which, they say,

occurred after 2:00 o'clock P. M. of that day. At the

bottom of page 28 of Appellants ' Brief, Mr. Lieurance

is criticised for not having advised Judge Bean in

Portland of the aforesaid Agreement between himself

and Mr. Gotthold.

It is unfair to presume that this wire reached Mr.

Lieurance even as early as 2:00 o'clock P. M. on De-

cember 16th, as his secretary in forwarding the tele-

gram from his Oakland office sent it to his hotel in

Portland, where it would have to await delivery to

him upon his return to the hotel, in the event that he

were not there when the telegram arrived, and there

is nothing in the record to show that he was there

when it did arrive.

The fact is that the hearing of the applications

before the Court in Portland was had at 10:00 o'clock

A. M. on the 16th of December, 1926 (Transcript of

Record, Vol. I, page 327, testimony of Edward R.

Eliassen) ; also, in the telegram of December 16th,
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from Mr, Lieurance to Mr. Moore, page 32 of Appel-

lants' Opening Brief, the following appears: ''Work

completed liero this morning. Etc."

Immediately upon the completion of the applica-

tions and the securing of the Orders from all of the

western jurisdictions, Mr. Lieurance sent to Mr.

Walton N. Moore, at San Francisco, the above men-

tioned telegram, of date December 16, 1926, wherein

he states the amounts allowed to Mr. Eliassen, as

follows:

California jurisdiction,

at San Francisco $10,000.00
AVashington jurisdiction,

at Spokane 2,500.00
Washington jurisdiction,

at Seattle 5,000.00

Oregon jurisdiction,

at Portland 10,000.00

Total $27,500.00

and to the Receivers, as follows:

California jurisdiction, at San Fran-
cisco (divided 75% and 25%) $10,000.00

Washington jurisdiction, at Spokane,
(division to be made at final hear-
ing) 5,000.00

Washington jurisdiction, at Seattle,

(divided $12,000.00 and $1,000.00)... 13,000.00

Oregon jurisdiction, at Portland, (di-

vided $13,500.00 and $1,000.00) 14,500.00

Total $42,500.00

and Mr. Lieurance, from Portland, on the same day,

phoned this information to Mr. Love at Seattle, who

was a member of the New York Creditors' Commit-
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tee. Upon receipt of this telegram by Mr. Moore,

there was started a further line of correspondence,

both by wire and letter, some of which is set forth

in the Opening Brief for Objecting Creditors, and

which became, to some extent, quite personal on the

part of Mr. Moore and Mr. Kirk. As a part of this

Correspondence, there was a letter addressed from

Mr. Kirk to Mr. Eliassen, referred to on page 35 of

the Opening Brief for Objecting Creditors, to which it

is stated on page 36 of said Opening Brief that Mr,

Eliassen made no reply. This letter was received at

Mr. Eliassen 's office during his absence, and his sec-

retary answered it by letter to the Board of Trade,

444 Market Street, San Francisco, California, stating

that Mr. Eliassen was expected back shortly at his

office, and that all matters would receive his prompt

attention. (Transcript of Record, Vol. II, page 493.)

Mr. Eliassen was en route from Portland to Oak-

land on Saturday, December 18th. (Transcript of

Record, Vol, II, page 653.) The next day was Sim-

day. Upon his arrival at his office he saw Mr. Kirk's

letter and thereupon, in response thereto and instead

of writing Mr. Kirk, telephoned to Mr. Kirk arrang-

ing an interview, which interview was had on Mon-

day, December 20, 1926, at the office of Mr. Kirk,

there being present Mr. Eliassen, Mr. Lieurance, Mr.

Kirk and Mr. Moore. At this interview the whole

subject matter of said ad interim allowances and cor-

respondence in relation thereto was discussed.

Thereafter, written Objections and Exceptions were

prepared by the Objecting Creditors to the amounts
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of these anl iHierim allowanees, whieh said written

Objeeti<His and Exceptions weie not iSled at that time,

but four rertain Stipulations, one to be filed in eaeh

of the Courts of the western jnrisdietionss were made
and (altered into by and between A. F. Lieuranee and
Edward R. Eliassen, and the Creditors' Committee

lepresenting the eastern creditors of R. A- Pileher

Co., Ine.. by Walton X. Moore, authorized repres^ita-

tive, and Creditors* Ccanmittee repiesentinff western

creditors of R. A. PQcher Co., Ine^ by Walton X.

Moore, Chairman. AU of these Stipulations, consti-

tuting Receirers' Exhibit 12, and received in evi-

d^iee, were the same, except as to the title of the

Court and the dates and amounts of the original al-

lowances, and the amounts of the reduced allowances,

respectively. A copy of only one of these Stipula-

tions is contained in the Transeript of Record, and
appears in Vol. I, page 416, et seq. thereof.

By these Stipulations, each of the original ad ih-

terim allowances awarded to Mr. Eliassen on account

of Attorneys' fees, and each of the original ad iutrrim

allowanc-es awarded to Mr. lieuranee on account of

the Receivers' fees, was reduced by each of the Courts

originaDy fixing the same respectively, and the origi-

nal Orders were accordingly amended, with the result

that the aggregate of the ad mterim allowances to

Mr. Eliassen was reduced to flo.OOaOO, and the ag-

gregate of the ad iHterim allowances to Mr. Lieuranee
was likewise reduced to #15,OO0lO0l

In and by said Stipulations, it was further pro-

vided that said reduced allowances shcNild not be
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further reduced. And in and by said Stipulations

it was further provided that these respective Courts

should have the exclusive right to fix the fees and

compensation of the Receiver, A. F. Lieurance, and

the fees and compensation of Edward R. Eliassen,

Attorney for the Receivers in the above entitled pro-

ceedings, whether or not any further proceedings

were taken in bankruptcy proceedings then pending,

or in any other bankruptcy proceedings that might

be instituted thereafter. And by said Stipulations it

was further provided that the final fixation of the

fees of A. F. Lieurance, as Receiver, and of Edward

R. Eliassen, as Attorney for the Receivers in this

matter, should be made by the said Courts respec-

tively at the time of the hearing on the final account

of the Receivers herein, and that notice of the time

and place of such hearing should be given to all of

the known creditors of the Defendant company by

mailing notices to them at their last known addresses

at least thirty (30) days before such hearing, and

that no other or further fixation of their respective

fees should be made by said Court in the meantime.

By said Stipulations, it was further provided that

these Stipulations should not be construed to be any

limitation whatever upon the right of Receiver Lieu-

rance, or of his said Attorney, Edward R. Eliassen,

at the time of such final fixation of fees, to apply for

or receive additional fees or compensation for ser-

vices, either theretofore or thereafter rendered by

them, or either of them; or upon the right of any

creditor or creditors to oppose or contest any such

application or applications if and when so made.



3;)

When tlie foregoiii^ij; Stipulations were made and

entered into, and the orders of the various Courts

amending the original Orders of ad interim, allow-

ances were made and entered, the above mentioned

conferences and letter and telegraphic communica-

tions were rendered immaterial so far as the question

of tlie reasonable value of the services rendered by

Mr. Lieurance, as Receiver, and by Mr. Eliassen, as

Attorney for the receivers, in this matter are con-

cerned.

Tlie Receivers had filed in each of the four western

jurisdictions their final account covering the entire

receivership, together with their final report accom-

panying said account, and together with the appli-

cation of Receiver Lieurance for additional compen-

sation to himself and for additional compensation for

Mr. Eliassen, his Attorney, and due notice thereof was

given to all of the creditors in pursuance of said

Stipvdations. The Objecting Creditors also filed their

Objections and Exceptions to each of the said final

accounts of the Receivers, and the application for

additional compensation to Receiver A. F. Lieurance

and to Mr. Eliassen, Attorney for the Receivers, in

each of the aforesaid four western jurisdictions.

Stipidations were made and entered into by the

parties in interest in each of the western jurisdic-

tions, by which it was agreed that all of these mat-

ters should be heard and determined together in the

United States District Court in and for the Northern

District of California, and Orders were made in said

Courts respectively to this effect. (See pages 164

to 168, inclusive, Transcript of Record, Vol. L)
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On September 20, 1927, an Order of Reference to

Master was made in the United States District Court

in and for the Northern District of California, South-

ern Division, referring said matters to Honorable

Harry M. Wright, Esq., as Special Master, to take

the testimony and report his findings and conclu-

sions thereon to the Court, and further ordering that

said matters be set for hearing before said Special

Master on October 11, 1927, subject to the convenience

of said Special Master.

HEARING BEFORE SPECIAL MASTER.

The hearing was accordingly set for October 11,

1927, and was eoimnenced on that day, and was fur-

ther heard on October 19, 1927, October 20, 1927, and

October 21, 1927, whereupon at the request of Mr.

Heney the matter was submitted on briefs, the final

brief of Objecting Creditors being filed on January 3,

1928.

At the outset of the hearing it was stipulated and

agreed that the Special Master should also return the

evidence taken. Mr. Joseph Kirk, attorney for the

San Francisco Board of Trade, and one of the attor-

neys of record for objecting creditors, was seriously

ill durmg the hearing and his testimony on certain

issues was stipulated into the record.

That a full and complete hearing was had before

the Special Master upon all of the objections and

exceptions urged by the Objecting Creditors against

the final Account and Report of the Receivers, and
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against the Application of Mr. Tiieurance for further

allowances to him on account of liis fees for services,

and Ills Application for further allowances to Mr.

Eliassen for his fee as attorney for the Receivers, and

against the pajanents made to Mr. Hershey, is evi-

denced by the Transcript of the Record filed herein.

From the report of the Special Master it clearly

appears that all of the testimony produced before him

was thoroughly analyzed and considered before mak-

ing his rei)ort, which appears upon pages 169 to 209,

inclusive, Vol. I of the Transcript of Record.

Full, complete and detailed statements in waiting

of the services rendered by Mr. Lieurance as Receiver,

by Mr. Eliassen as attorney for the Receivers in the

western jurisdictions, and by Mr. Hershey as ac-

countant foi' the Receivers in the western jurisdic-

tions were presented in evidence before the Special

Master, which statements were supplementd by the

oral testimony of these three gentlemen. No claim

is made by the Objecting Creditors that the services

of these three gentlemen as stated in their w^ritten

statements and in their testimony respectively w^ere

not rendered by them.

Experts were called by both sides concerning the

value of all of the services rendered by Mr. Eliassen

as attorney for the Receivers in the western jurisdic-

tions. Experts were called to testify as to the value

of all of the services rendered by Mr. Hershey as

accountant for the Receivers m all the western juris-

dictions. No experts were called to testify to the
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value of the services of Mr. Lieiirance rendered by

him in connection with this receivership.

It will be noted that Mr. Eliassen, in connection

with his services rendered to the Receivers, employed

other counsel to assist him whose fees amount to

$2,650.00, all of which Mr. Eliassen is called uiDon

personally to pay.

The Sjjecial Master, in his Report, foimd the rea-

sonable value of all of the services so rendered by

Mr. Eliassen to be the sum of $30,000.00, or $15,000.00

in addition to the $15,000.00 already received by him;

he further found the reasonable value of all the ser-

vices of Mr. Lieurance, as Receiver, to be the sum

of $35,000.00, or $20,000.00 in addition to the

$15,000.00 already received by him, and he further

found the sum of $10,750.00 to be the reasonable

value of all the services rendered by Mr. Philip A.

Hershey, and made the following recommendations

in his report

:

"(1) Tlie final and supplemental reports and
accounts of the Receiver should be approved as

rendered.

(2) The Receiver should be directed to pay
out of funds in his hands:

(a) To Philip A. Hershey, his accountant,

$769.71, in full of all demands.

(b) To Edward R. Eliassen the smn of

$15,000.00 in full of all services as attorney
for the Receiver.

(c) To A. F. Lieurance, in full of all ser-

vices as Receiver, the sum of $20,000.00.

(d) To the Special Master herein such rea-

sonable compensation as to this Court shall
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seem proper for his services herein, not ex-

eeedino- $1,500.00.

(3) The Receiver shall submit to the Court a
final supplemental account of his receipts and
disbursements, and pay any balance in his hands
and transfer any property otlier than money in

liis hands belono'ing- to the receivership as the

(^oui-t may direct; and thereafter be dis-

cliarg'ed."

Objections and Exceptions to the Master's Report

were filed by the Contesting Creditors, and, after a

hearing thereon in the United States District Court

in and for the Northern District of California,

Southern Division, at which hearing Mr. Francis .T=

Ileney, Mr. Grant H. Wren and Mr. C. A. Shuey,

attorneys representing the Objectors, and Messrs.

Edward R. Eliassen and Peter J. Crosby, Attorneys

representing Receiver Lieurance, were present, the

said Court rendered its Judgment and Decree, where-

in it overruled the Objections and Exceptions to the

said Report and Findings of the Special Master, and

wherein it approved, ratified and confirmed the Re-

port and Findings of the Special Master, and wherein

it further ordered, adjudged and decreed as follows:

"(1) That the final accounts and reports of
the Receivers be, and they are, hereby apjjroved,

ratified and confirmed as rendered.

(2) That the supplemental account and re-

port filed herein on behalf of the Receivers be,

and it is, hereby approved, ratified and con-
firmed.

(3) That the sum of Thirty Thousand Dollars

($30,000) be, and it is, hereby fixed as the com-
pensation to be paid to Edward R. Eliassen, at-

torney for the Receivers, in full for his services
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rendered in the above-entitled matter in the

above-entitled Court and in the jurisdictions of

Oregon and Washing'ton hereinabove mentioned;
that the said Edward R. Eliassen has already

received Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000) on
account of such services and that the Receiver A.

F. Lieurance be, and he is, hereby authorized

and directed to forthwith pay to the said Ed-
ward R. Eliassen the balance of Fifteen Thou-
sand Dollars ($15,000) in full for all services

rendered as attorney for the Receivers.

(4) That the sum of Thirty-five Thousand
Dollars ($35,000) be, and it is, hereby fixed as the

compensation of A. F. Lieurance, as Receiver in

the above-entitled proceeding in the above-entitled

Court and in the Courts in the aforesaid jui'isdic-

tions of the States of Oregon and Washington;
that he has already been paid Fifteen Thousand
Dollars ($15,000) on account and that he is here-

by authorized and directed to pay to himself

forthwith the balance of Twenty Thousand Dol-

lars ($20,000) in full for all services rendered by
him as receiver in the premises.

(5) That Philip A. Hershey, accountant for

the Receivers, be j^aid the further sum of Seven
Hundred and Sixty-nine and 71/100 DoUars
($769.71) in full for his services, and the said

Receiver A. F. Lieurance is hereby ordered and
directed to pay said sum forthwith to the said

Philip A. Hershey in the premises.

(6) That the said Receiver A. F. Lieurance
submit to the above-entitled Court a final sup-
plemental account of his receipts and disburse-

ments and pay any balance in his hands, to-

gether with the sum of Seventeen Hundred Dol-
lars ($1,700) (which said Receiver and his attor-

ney are informed is the apparent deficit for ex-

penses of administration incurred at New York
and which said sum they have agreed to pay out of
their allowances) to Receiver Arthur F. Gott-
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hold, at New York, and immediately thereafter

be dischar^^ed.

Dated, tliis 27th day of March, 1928."

At tlie last mentioned hearing, the Affidavit of Mr.

Grant H. Wren, set forth on pages 43 and 44 of

Ap])ellants' Opening Brief, was filed and received in

evidence. This Atftdavit refers to certain disputed

claims then pending in the United States District

Court in the original jurisdiction, and also to certain

expenses for Mr. Cardozo, as Master, and balances

alleged to be due to Mr. Gotthold for moneys which

he had personally expended. In this Affidavit are set

forth excer])ts from a telegram to Affiant from

Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst, bearing date the

27th day of January, 1928, and from a letter of date

about the 8th day of February, 1928, from Messrs.

McManus, Ernst & Ernst to Mr. William Eraser,

chairman of the Eastern Creditors' Committee, and

wdiich communications referred to the claims and

expenses above mentioned.
"

In these communications so referred to in said

Affidavit, it is urged that moneys be reserved in the

western jurisdictions for the purpose of meeting

these claims and expenses. Upon said last mentioned

liearing, the matter of these expenses and disputed

claims was considered, and the attention of the trial

Court was called to a telegram of Mr. Gotthold to

Mr. Lieurance, under date of March 2, 1928, from

which telegram it appeared that approximately

$2,800.00 would be required to meet the above men-

tioned exjDenses in the New York jurisdiction. It



42

was also shown to tlie trial Court that after the pay-

ment of the allowances recommended by the Special

Master, and the pa;\Tnent of the miscellaneous ex-

penses, there would be in the hands of the Receivers

in the western jurisdictions $1,124.18, thus leaving an

apparent deficit of about $1,700.00 to meet the ex-

penses in the eastern jurisdiction. Thereupon, Mr.

Eliassen and Mr. Lieurance agreed to contribute the

sum of $1,700.00 for the purpose of meeting said

apparent deficit, and thereupon an Order was made

in the premises, based upon such offer to contribute,

and thereafter said contribution was made as is

shown by the supplemental and final account of the

receivers, at pages 232 to 235, inclusive. Vol. I, Tran-

script of Record.

DISPUTED CLAIMS PENDING BEFORE SPECIAL MASTER
IN NEW YORK.

At the time of the hearing of the Objections and

Exceptions of the Objecting Creditors to the report

of Honorable H. M. Wright, Special Master above

referred to, a report had not yet been made by Hon-

orable Michael -J, Cardozo, Jr., Special Master in New
York, before whom these disputed claims were pend-

ing.

In the interest of justice, we deem it proper to

apprise this Honorable Court of subsequent proceed-

ings in this matter in the United States District

Court, Southern District of New York, in which an

Order was made by Honorable Augustus N. Hand,

dated December 10, 1928, the effect of which, we be-
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lieve, completely eliminates the question raised by

the Objecting- Creditors in their Brief, at page 4G

thereof, wherein they say "No provision has been

made for the pa\anent of the additional $10,000.00

of creditors' claims which are in litigation," A copy

of said Order came to the hands of A. F. Lieurance

from Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst, Attorneys for

the Receivers in the eastern jurisdiction, of which said

order the following is a copy:

''United States District Court

Southern District of New York

Sidney Gilson, Herman Avrutine and

Samuel Avrutine, co-partners en-

gaged in business as National Gar-

ment Co.,

Complainants,

-against-

R. A. Pilcher Co., Inc.,

Defendant.

In Equity

No. 37/146

The Receivers herein having filed their final

account, and reports having heretofore been filed

on behalf of the Receivers, and it appearing that

an order has heretofore been entered on March
27, 1928, approving and ratifying the final ac-

comits and reports of the receivers in all ancillary

proceedings, and it further appearing that in-

sufficient moneys have been received by the Re-
ceivers in this proceeding to meet all of the obli-

gations incurred or undertaken by the Receivers,

and that an agreement has been made to reduce
the amount to be paid to Urie F. Mandle, one of

the claimants, and it further appealing that

Michael H. Cardozo, Jr., the Special Master
heretofore appointed herein, has reported to this
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Court liis findmsjs and such findings have been
confi Tilled excepting only the claim of Urie F.

Man^dle, above referred to, and it appearmg that

consent to the entry of this order has been given

on behalf of the claunant Urie F. Mandle,

Now, THEREFORE, after hearing McManus, Ernst
& Ernst, Esqs., by Walter E. Ernst of counsel,

on behalf of the Receivers, it is hereby

Ordered and decreed that the final accounts of

the Receivers be and they hereby are approved,

ratified and confirmed as rendered; and it is

further

Ordered and decreed that the said Arthur F.

Gotthold and A. F. Lieurance as Receivers here-

in, on making the payments hereinafter set forth,

be and they hereby are discharged as such Re-
ceivers and their bond or bonds heretofore given

are cancelled and discharged; and it is further

Ordered and decreed that out of the funds

now in his possession, as set forth in the annexed
account, Arthur F. Gotthold, as Receiver, shall

make the following pa3rments: to Michael H.
Cardozo, Jr., for his services as Special Master,

the smn of One thousand Dollars ($1,000); to

Robert F, Stephenson, as Referee, the sum of

One hundred eighty-four and 75/100 Dollars

($184,75) ; and that the balance in his possession,

as set forth in the annexed account, to-wit: Four
hundred ninety-nine and 76/100 dollars ($499.76)

be paid to Urie F. Mandle, or his attorneys, in

full and complete settlement of the claim of the

said Urie F. Mandle against the defendant above

named.

Dated, New York, N. Y., December 10, 1928.

Augustus N. Hand,
United States Circuit Judge."

We deem it further pro])er to apju-ise this Honor-

able Court of the fact that on November 21, 1929,

Attorney Edward R. Eliassen received from Arthur
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F. Gotthold, one of the Receivers in this matter, the

following telegram

:

"Edward R. Eliassen,

1203 Central Bank Bldg.,

Oakland, Calif.

ALL CI-ATMS HEARD BEFORE CARDOZO HA\T. BEEN"

DISPOSED OF STOP MONEYS DIRECTED TO BE PAID BY
ORDER JUDGE HAND DECEMBER TENTH HAVE BEEN
PAID STOP THAT ORDER FINALLY DISCHARGED EQUITY
RECEIVERS UPON MAKING PAYMENTS.

ARTHm F. GOTTHOLD."

On page 42 of their Opening Brief, the objectmg

creditors refer to the Final Account of Receiver Lieu-

rance, and the balance on hand as shown by said

Final Account, amounting to $41,975.28.

A supplemental account, however, was filed at the

time of the hearing before the Master (Master's Re-

port, Vol. I, page 170, Transcript of Record), and,

by stipulation of the parties, was considered by the

Master at said hearing and in his Report, and which

supplemental account was confirmed and approved

by the trial Court at the hearing of the Objections

and Exceptions to the Report. (See page 230, Vol. I,

Transcript of Record.) This supplemental account

and report are not set forth in full in the transcript,

but, by stipulation, and upon an Order granted there-

on, the original of said supplemental account and

report, desigjiated as Document No. 67 in the files of

the Clerk of the said United States District Court,

together with other documents, were transmitted to

the Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for use upon this appeal, as is indicated on

page 805, Vol. II, Transcript of Record.
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By this supplemental account there was shown to

be a balance on hand of $38,694.86.

After the payment of the aforesaid additional al-

lowances to Mr. Lieurance, Mr. Eliassen and Mr.

Hershey, and the payment of certain expenses of the

Receivership, there was finally left in the hands of

the Receivers in the western jurisdictions the sum of

$2,760.85, which included the $1,700.00 contributed

by Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen, and which said

sum of $2,760.85 was forwarded to Arthur F. Gott-

hold, co-Receiver at New York, on or about the 30th

day of March, 1928.

In the Opening Brief of Objecting Creditors at page

45, computations appear showing the aggregate sums

allotted in both jurisdictions to attorneys and receivers,

the aggregate total tliereof amounting to $95,000.00,

and the statement is made that this amount was '

' one-

fifth of the total net amount obtained by the Re-

ceivers from the sale of assets which were thus made
available for payment of dividends to creditors, re-

ceivers' and attorneys' fees, and expenses of admin-

istration.
'

'

They fail to state, however, that the gross amount
of cash received by the Receivers and handled by Re-

ceiver A. F. Lieurance was approximately $900,000.00.

ARGXJMENT.

The questions involved upon this appeal are:

First—Did the trial Court err in any of the

particulars set forth by the Appellants in their
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Assignment of Errors, appearing in Transcript

of Record, Vol. II, pages 808 to 811, inclusive 'i

Second—Was there any manifest abuse of dis-

cretion on the part of the trial court in the exer-

cise of its discretion in fixing the siun of $30,-

000.00 as the reasonable value of all of the ser-

vices of Edward R. Eliassen as attorney for the

Receivers?

Third—^Was there any manifest abuse of dis-

cretion on the part of the trial court in the exer-

cise of its discretion in fixing the smn of $35,-

000.00 as the reasonable value of all of the ser-

vices of A. F. Lieurance, Receiver'?

EMPLOYMENT OF PHILIP A. HERSHEY AS ACCOUNTANT FOR
THE RECEIVERS, THE SERVICES RENDERED BY HIM AND
THE VALUE THEREOF.

At this point we respectfully invite the attention of

this Honorable Court to the Order in ancillary pro-

ceedings appointing Receivers, etc., and to that por-

tion of said Order appearing in Vol. I of the Tran-

script of Record, page 32, which says

:

"That said Receivers are authorized to do all

and any things and enter into all or any agree-
ments as may be deemed by them necessary or
advisable to preserve and protect the said prop-
erty or assets; in their discretion to employ and
discharge and to fix the compensation of such
officers, agents and employees as may, in their
judgment, be necessary or advisable in the admin-
istration of this estate; to employ accountants
and counsel, and to make such pa^nnents and dis-

bursements as may be needful or proper in the
preservation of the assets of the defendant."
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An order Continuing Receivers and Making Them
Permanent with all powers and duties mentioned and
set forth in the order of their aj^pointment as tempo-
rary receivers appears in Vol. I, Transcript of Rec-
ord, pages 36 to 39, inclusive, and in said last men-
tioned Order the employment by the Receivers of

Philip A. Hershey & Co. as accountants, and of Ed-
ward R. Eliassen as attorney for the Receivers are

confirmed and approved.

We deem it unnecessary to relate here in detail the

services rendered by Mr. Hershey as accountant for

the Receivers in this matter, inasmuch as his state-

ment in detail of his said services is on file and in

evidence and appears in Vol. II, Transcript of Rec-
ord, at pages 785 to 798, inclusive, as Plaintiff's

Exhibit No. 4. The Objecting Creditors do not deny
the rendition of any of these services. This written
statement of services was before the Special Master,
who found the reasonable value thereof to be $10,-

000.00.

Mr. Willis Lilly, connected with the firm of Mc-
Laren, Goode and Co., certified public accomitants,
testified that the value of Mr. Hershey 's services was
$11,250.00, figured on a basis of 2624 hours, counting
seven hours to a day. Mr. Andrew F. Sherman, a
certified public accountant, called as an expert to tes-

tify to the value of Mr. Hershey 's services, fixed such
value at $15,000.00. Mr. Hershey, himself, testified

to the value of his services and fixed the value of the
same at from $4.00 to $10.00 per hour for approxi-
mately 2600 hours, which, taken at $4.00 an hour,
would amomit to $10,400.00. Mr. Lieurance testified
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that he not only gave personal consideration to the

value of Mr. Hershey's services, but likewise made
inquiry of Mr. Willis Lilly, of the firm of McLaren,

Goode and Co., before making final payment to Mr.

Hei'shey.

No contrary evidence was offered ))y the Objecting

Creditors as to the value of these services. There is

no evidence in the record of this case showing either

that the services alleged b\^ Mr. Hershey and Mr.

Tjieurance to have been performed by Mr. Hershey
were not performed, or that any thereof were un-

necessary, or that said services, or any thereof, were
inefficiently performed, or that the value of said ser-

vices is less than $10,000.00.

It is contended by the Objecting Creditors that Mr.
Hershey was employed at an agreed salary of $300.00

per month. The only evidence in the record to this

effect is that of Mr. Ernst, whose deposition was taken
in New York and who, among other things and in

this respect, said, ''At that tune (meaning the time
of the conference at Oakland, California, July 1,

1926), Mr. Lieurance told me that Mr. Hershey w^as

receiving a salary of $.300.00 per month."

We respectfully submit, however, that Mr. Hershey
was not employed on a salary basis of $300.00 per
month or any other fixed sum, and further that Mr.
Lieurance did not tell Mr. Ernst that Mr. Hershey
was receiving a salary of $300.00 per month or that
he was employed on a salary basis.

Concerning this matter we quote from the testi-

mony of Mr. Lieurance:
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"At that first talk, nothing was said by either

myself or Mr. Hershey about the amount of his

compensation, because we knew nothins; about the

extent of the work that would be done, or the

receivership; and it was some day or two after

the first talk before there was anythins: said about
a fee, and then the talk, in substance, was that we
did not know what the value of the service or the

amount of the work would be, and there was no
value that [205] could be fixed on the services;

and Mr. Hershey said he would have to have a

drawing; account because he had office expenses,

and had his help to pay, and so on. * * * The
amount that his drawing; account should be was
not discussed at that time. * * * No one

knew what the extent of the work would be.
* * *>>

(Vol. I, Transcript of Record, pa2;e 245.)

''After that we did discuss the amount to be

paid. That was probably three, or four, or five

days, probably five days after we learned some-

thing; about tlie receivership.

"The talk on that occasion was not definite; the

amount was not definitely fixed then, but he would

have to have a drawing; account; there was no

way to fix the amount. * * * He would do

the^ work, and whatever was ri.ght and fair would

be agreeable; that was substantially the talk at

that time."

(Vol. I, Transcript of Record, page 246.)

"I let Mr. Hershey go ahead with his work,

with no understanding between us as to what his

compensation would be, until Mr. Walter Ernst

came out from New York, and Mr. Ernst asked

me how much I would have to pay Mr. Hershey,

and I told him I did not know ; and then I had a

talk with Mr. Hershey about how much he would

have to have on account, and he told me he would

have to have from $250 to $300 a month, and

that month we paid hun $250 and he said that

was not sufacient to take care of his bills, etc.,
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and I paid him $300 a month, and also paid him
$50 back pay for the first month.

"Mr. Ernst arrived here abont Jnne 30. The
$250 paid to Mr. Hershey was not for the montii
of May. I don't remember when tlie ])ayment
was made but it was made some time afterwards,
I could not tell you, without lookino,- it up,
whether it was after I had the talk with Mr.
Ernst; it will show on the record. After I had
this talk with Mr. Hershey, in which he said he
would have to have $300 a month, Mr. Ernst
asked me about it and I told him Mr. Hershey
would have to have a drawin.o- accomit of $300 a
month. There was no further talk between my-
self and Mr. Ernst about it ; he said that was fair

enough or something to that effect and the subject

was dropped then."

(Vol. I, Transcript of Record, page 247.)

In addition to the testimony and as physical evi-

dence of the labor j)erformed by Mr. Hershey in this

receivership there were l^efore the Special Master the

records, documents, vouchers, books and accounts, and

miscellaneous memoranda prepared and kept by him

as the accountant for the Receivers. Thus the Special

Master was able to obtain an intimate and complete

knowledge of the services rendered by Mr. Hershey,

as said accountant, and which the Special Master

described in his report (Vol. I, Transcript of Record,

page 197) as "laborious services efficiently per-

formed." In fact coimsel for the Objecting Creditors

stated before the Special Master that the receivership

was verjf efficiently conducted.

Mr. Gotthold, in his letter to Mr. Lieurance (Ob-

jecting Creditors Opening Brief, page 37) speaks of

"the splendid work you have done in disposing of
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the stores," and Mr. Walton N. Moore, in his letter

of December 10th, 1926, to William N. Frazer (Ob-

jecting Creditors Opening Brief, page 18) says

''nearly all of the tvork has been done out here

where the property was located and the results pro-

duced by Lieurance have been very creditable."

The sum of $10,000.00 paid to Mr. Hershey was for

services rendered to about April 30, 1927, the addi-

tional $750.00 was for services rendered between that

date and the date of the hearing of Objections and

Exceptions before the Special Master in October,

1927, and the sum of $19.18 was allowed to Mr. Her-

shey for moneys by him expended.

We respectfully contend that the aforesaid services

of Mr. Hershey contributed to and helped to make

possible the very creditable showing of Mr. Tjieurance

in the conduct of this receivership, and that Mr.

Lieurance was fully justified in the employment of

Mr. Hershey, as such accountant, and in the pay-

ments he made to Mr. Hershey for all of these ser-

vices.

We therefore respectfully submit that the trial

Court did not err in approving and confirming the

report of the Special Master in relation to his find-

ings as to the value of Mr. Hershey 's services, nor

did it err in ordering and directing the further pay-

ment of $769.18 to Mr. Hershey, which payment was

recommended by the Special Master after hearing the

evidence in relation thereto.
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EMPLOYMENT OF EDWARD R. ELIASSEN, AS ATTORNEY FOR
THE RECEIVERS, THE SERVICES RENDERED BY MR.

ELIASSEN, AND THE VALUE THEREOF.

The record in this case shows that Mr. Walton N.

Moore sug-gested to ]Mr. A. F, Lieurance that this

Receivership be handled thi-ough the San Francisco

Board of Trade, and that Mr. Lieurance employ the

Attorneys of the San Francisco Board of Trade to

act as the Attorneys for the Receiver.s in the western

jurisdictions. This sug;^estion was taken under ad-

visement by Mr. Lieurance, and thereafter by him

refused, and he thereupon employed Mr. Edward R.

Eliassen to act as the Attorney for the Receivers in

the western jurisdictions. Mr. Eliassen immediately

entered upon the performance of his services as such

Attorney, and continued to serve as such throu.ahout

the Receivership.

A complete detailed written statement of the ser-

vices rendered by ]Mr. Eliassen in this Receivership

was filed and received in evidence before the Special

Master, and appears in Vol. II, Transcript of Record,

at pages 554 to 735 inclusive, and is designated ''Re-

ceivers' Exhibit No. 3." As shown by this Statement

of Services, Mr. Eliassen, as Attorney for the Re-

ceivers in the western jurisdictions, was required to

be away from his office, and entirely out of the State

of California, for approximately seventy-six (76)

days. From the oral testimony of Mr. Eliassen before

the Special ^Master, it is shown that there was hardly

a day from the 4th day of June, 1926, to the 1st day

of September, 1927, that he did not perform some

professional service in connection with the business

of the Receivership.
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For detailed information as to the professional ser-

vices rendered by Mr. Eliassen, we respectfully invite

the attention of this Honorable Court to said "Re-

ceivers' Exhibit No. 3."

There is no denial in the record of the services ren-

.

dered by Mr, Eliassen, as Attorney for the Receivers

in this matter, but, in the Openinp: Brief for

Objecting' Creditors, they seek to minimize the

value of the services so rendered by him, and even

sugs^est that the legal assistance and guidance ren-

dered by him to the Receivers could have been more

efficiently performed by the Attorneys for the San

Francisco Board of Trade. There is not a single

word in the record in this case to show that the Attor-

neys for the San Francisco Board of Trade could

have performed the legal work connected with this

Receivership in any particular fnore efficiently, more

conscientiously, more economically, or with greater

dispatch than it was performed by Mr. Eliassen.

The Objecting Creditors, in their Opening Brief,

page 57, in a further attempt to minimize the value

of the services rendered in this Receivership by Mr.

Eliassen, state:

''It is undoubtedly true that Mr. Eliassen de-

voted a very substantial amount of his time to

these receivership matters during the first two

months of his employment."

To this contention, no better answer suggests itself

to us than to quote from the Report of the Special

Master as the same appears in Transcript of Record,

Vol. I, page 201

:
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''The answer to this suggestion (the suggestion

of Mr. Heney that a fee of $100.00 per day for

a period of five months would amount to $15,-

000.00) is that a period of five months does not

by any means represent the ])eriod of service,

which continued until the filing of the final re-

port in May, 1927, to take no account of the time
occupied in prei)aring for this hearing. The
stores were sold at the close of the five months'
period, but after that the claims were determined
and a great deal of necessary work done."

These findings b}^ the Special Master are fully sup-

ported by Mr. Eliassen's above mentioned written

Statement of Services, which sets forth in detail what

services he performed subsequent to the selling of

the stores, the last of which was sold on November 3,

1926, and these services so performed are set forth

commencing on page 636, Vol. II, Transcript of

Record, to and including page 735 of the same volume.

It is not true that this was Mr. Eliassen's first

experience as Attorney for a Receiver, as stated in

said Opening Brief. Mr. Eliassen had been practising

law for approximately thirty years, and he testified

in this case that he had acted as Attorney for Re-

ceivers in bankruptcy matters. However, there is no

evidence in this record to the effect that the said ser-

vices of Mr. Eliassen were not ef^ciently performed.

It is a matter of common knowledge that a Re-

ceiver in such a case as this requires the assistance

and guidance of a competent lawyer, and, of neces-

sity, constantly turns to him for aid. When the

Attorney for the Objecting Creditors stated before

the Special Master that the Receivership was very

efficiently conducted, he, of course, fully realized that
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this included the work of Mr. Eliassen; when Mr.
Gotthold, in his letter to Mr. Lieurance, spoke of

''the splendid work in disposing- of the stores," he,

too, being an Attorney, realized the importance of the

services of the Attorney for the Receivers in connec-

tion therewith, and, when Mr. Walton N. Moore
stated in his letter to Mr. Fraser that "the results

produced by Mr. Lieurance had been very creditable,"

he, likewise, knew that the services of the Attorney
for the Receivers contributed in no small degree to

these "creditable results."

A letter, bearing date August 9, 1927, addressed
To the Honorable, the Judge of the District Court
of the United vStates, San Francisco, California, by
Weber Showcase & Fixture Company, one of the

largest creditors (its claim being in the neighborhood
of $35,000.00), is set forth in Vol. I, Transcript of

Record, at pages 419 and 420, and was offered in evi-

dence by Plaintiffs, wherein they say:

"It has come to our attention that Mr. A. F.
Lieurance and his Attorney, Mr. Eliassen, have
met with certain opposition in the matter of the
settlement of the financial accoimts of the Re-
ceivers in the Pilcher matter,

"Our claim was probably one of the largest in
this matter (being over $35,000) and we, there-
fore, know that this receivership possessed manv
complications and was very difficult to handle.
These men have done a splendid piece of work,
and we feel that their efforts should be recog-
nized to the extent that nothing is done to hinder
the winding up of this matter.

"We want to go on record as not raising any
objections to the fees being paid according to the
Court's Order."
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Another letter, bearing date July 27, 1927, ad-

dressed to Mr. William Fraser (who was Chairman of

the New York Creditors' Committee), by A. V. Love
Dry Goods Coni])any, another one of the creditors in

this matter, is set forth in Transcript of Record, Vol.

I, pages 420, 421 and 422, wherein the writer, Mr. A.

V. Love, who was a member of the New York
Creditors' Conmiittee, states, among other things:

"I am strongly of the opinion that these men
have done a splendid piece of work, as I have
written vou before,*******

''I want you to know that the A. V. Love Dry
Goods Company, or the writer, has not been or
IS not a party to any objections that have been
raised to these fees being paid according to the
Court's order, and as you know we are one of
the heaviest creditors.*******
**You must know that the assets of this com-

pany w^ere on the Pacific Coast and that the w^ork
was actually done out here and that anv compen-
sation that should be rendered should be to those
who did the work, and that was on the Pacific
Coast by Mr. Lieurance and his attorney.

''Therefore, I sincerely hope that you will use
your influence to have this imfair opposition to-
wards Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen with-
drawn."

Still another letter, dated ''Portland, Oregon, Sep-
tember 6, 1927," addressed to A. F. Lieurance, Re-
ceiver R. A. Pilcher Co., Central Bank Building,
Oakland, California, by Journal Publishing Co., an-
other of the creditors in this matter, is set forth in
Vol. I, Transcript of Record, pages 422 and 423,
wherein the following appears:
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"Our attention has been called to the fact that

a remonstrance has been filed against the allow-

ance of the fees for the attorney and receiver in

the above matter,

"The Journal, as a creditor of the estate, is

well pleased with the manner m which its busi-

ness has been handled and the dividend that we
have received is unusually large under the cir-

cumstances.

"We take this opportunity to assure you that

we have no objection to any fees for both the

receiver and the attorney that the court has or

may allow in this matter. We feel perfectly sat-

isfied that the court will treat both the receiver

and his attorney and the creditors justly and
fairly."

Another letter, bearing date "Portland, Oregon,

September 7, 1927," addressed to Mr. A. F. Lieur-

ance. Receiver of R. A. Pilcher Co., Central Bank
Building, Oakland, California, by Lowengart & Com-

pany, another one of the creditors in this matter, is

set forth in Vol. I, Transcript of Record, pages 423

and 424, and which recites:

"We have just heard that certain creditors of
the Pilcher Company have ol)jected to fees that
have been allowed by the Judges of the United
States Court to you and your Attorney for ser-

vices rendered.

"We, as creditors of the Pilcher Company, have
been well satisfied with the work that you and your
attorney have done. The results you have ol:>-

tained have been satisfactory to us. We are per-
fectly willing and satisfied that the Court, which
has knowledge of all of the work that has been
performed, fix a fee that it thinks fair and rea-
sonable for you and your attorney.

"There will be no objection on our part to this
procedure which we think is fit and proper."
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A number of the leading attorneys of the San Fran-

cisco Bar eminently qualified to testify regarding the

value of the services rendered by Mr. Eliassen were

called by the Plaintiff and gave their testimony before

the Special Master.

Mr. Eliassen 's written statement of his services had

been submitted to them for examination, and, when

asked upon the witness stand as to their opinion of

the value of these services, they testified as follows:

Mr. Charles H. Sooey testified that the reasonable

value of the services of Mr. Eliassen is $42,620.00;

Mr. C. M. Bradley testified that the reasonable value

of Mr. Eliassen 's services is from $25,000.00 to $30,-

000.00: and Mr. John L. McNab testified that the

reasonable value of Mr. Eliassen 's services is $36,-

000.00.

Other prominent attorneys were called by the Ob-

jecting Creditors to testify as to the value of the

services of Mr. Eliassen, to-wit: Mr. William J.

Hayes, who for a number of years occupied the posi-

tion of Referee in Bankruptcy in the Federal Court,

gave, as his opinion, that the value of the services

rendered by Mr. Eliassen was $25,000.00; Mr. A. B.

Kreft, who, at the time of giving his testimony, held

the official position of Referee in Bankruptcy in San

Francisco, gave as his opinion that from $20,000.00

to $25,000.00 would be fair and reasonable compensa-

tion for the services performed by Mr. Eliassen; Mr.

Milton Newmark stated that in his opinion $20,000.00

would be a fair and reasonable compensation for the

services performed by Mr. Eliassen in this matter.
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Mr. Eliassen places the reasonable value of his ser-

vices at $30,000.00.

Out of the fees allowed to Mr. Eliassen for his

services in this matter, he has been required to pay

for the services of attorneys employed to assist him

in the northern jurisdictions the sum of $2,650.00,

leaving for himself the sum of $27,350.00, out of

which he has also voluntarily contributed his propor-

tion of the $1,700.00 jointly contributed by him and

Mr. Lieurance, and which was sent with other moneys

to Mr. Lieurance 's co-Receiver, Mr. Gotthold, in New

York City. (Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 233.)

We have examined the authorities cited in the

Opening Brief for Objecting Creditors, and have

noted the excerpts from these decisions as set forth in

said Opening Brief. We respectfully submit that in

none of these cases is there established any rule or

formula that might be serviceable in any general way

as a method of computing the amount to be allowed in

the case at bar.

In passing, we beg leave to invite the attention of

this Honorable Court to the quotation from the case

of Wilkinson v. Washington Trust Co., 102 Fed. 28,

cited by Objecting Creditors at pages 59 and 60 of

their Brief. Upon comparing this quotation with the

original in said report, we find the same to be incor-

rect in this, that it omits language used by the Court

indicating that the Reports of the Receivership there

in question involved nothing more than a simple

narrative of his acts, and an account of his Receipts
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and Disbursements. (Italics mivs.) This omission

was, without doubt, unintentional.

Again comparing the quotation a])i)eai'in,o- on pages

51 and 52 of Opening Brief for Objecting Cred-

itors, we find no portion of the original decision

in any manner stressed by the use of capital

letters or by italics. But, no doubt, the writer of the

Opening Brief unintentionally omitted to state that

these capitals and italics were his.

There is other language of the Court in this last

named case however which we deem proper to call

to the attention of this Honorable Court. Tt appears

at page 31, Vol. 102, Federal, as follows:

"We are of the opinion that the action of the
circuit court in the premises was just and right,

and, even if the issue were doubtiPul, we should
not disturb or reverse its action unless the record
disclosed a clear mistake of fact, or a plain error
of law. A court of equity has the power to fix the
compensation of the receiver it appoints. He is

its creature,—one of the means by which it exer-
cises its power. In the administration of a trust

by a court through its receiver, the chancellor,

who appoints, supervises and directs his action,

necessarily knows, better than any record can
teach an appellate court, what his appointee has
done, and what is a just and reasonable com-
pensation for his services. His allowances of
this character ought to be, and are, largely dis-

cretionary with the chancellor, au(^ they shoidd

not he disturhed unless there has been a manifest
disregard of right and reason." (Italics ours.)

It is respectfully submitted that after Mr. Eliassen

was appointed by the Receivers as their Attorney in

the western jurisdictions, his appointment as such
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Attorney was approved by the Court appointing them

in the western jurisdictions. As such Attorney, he

assisted in the administration of the trust by all four

Court in the western jurisdictions, and these Courts

necessarily knew what he had done as Attorney for

the Receivers, and what would be a just and reason-

able compensation for these services; any amount,

therefore, fixed and allowed by the trial C\)urt as the

reasonable value of such services, should not he dis-

turbed unless there has been a manifest disregard of

right and reason on the part of the trial Court in so

doing.

In Tardy's Smith on Receivers, Vol. II, page 1723,

it is stated:

"In some instances, there is a statute to the
effect that the compensation shall be such rea-

sonable smn as the nature of the case justifies.

It is evident that such a statute is not of much
aid to a court, and is nothing more than a codifi-

cation of what any court would say without
reference to any statute. When thus left to their

own resources in the matter, courts have found
it impossible to establish any rule or formula that

might be serviceable, in any general way, as a

method of computing the amount to be allowed.

The situation in that regard is revealed by the
fact that courts have said, and no court seems to

have denied, that the compensation must be fixed

in each case on its merits, as it arises." (Italics

ours.)

In the case of Heffron v. Rice, 41 American State

Reports, page 271, at page 277, the following appears

:

**The author (High, on Receivers), in Section
783, also lays dowTi the doctrine that, as a general
rule, the compensation should correspond with
the degree of business capacity, integrity and
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responsibility required in tlie management of the
affairs entrusted to him, and that a reasonable
and fair compensation should be allowed, accord-
ins: to the circumstances of each particular case."

(Italics ours.)

We take occasion to quote from the case of Trus-

tees V. Greenough, 105 United States 536, cited in

Opening Brief for Objecting- Creditors, at page 52

thereof. We quote from page 537 of said Report as

follows

:

''The allowances made for these purposes (rea-

sonable costs, counsel fees, charges and expenses)

we have examined and do not find anything there-

in seriously objectionable. The Court below
should have considerable latitude of discretion on
the subject, since it has far better means of know-
ing what is just and reasonable than an ai)pellate

court can have." (Matter in parenthesis ours.)

We here quote from the case of Hickey et ah v.

Parrot Silver d Copper Co. et a]., 79 Pac. 698, cited

in Opening Brief for Objecting Creditors, at page 51

thereof. We quote from page 701 of said Report as

follows

:

"The receiver is entitled as a matter of right

to the benefit of counsel, when the nature of the

trust requires it: and, while he usually selects

his own counsel, he cannot make any contract of

hiring or agreement of compensation that is bind-

ing upon the court, for it is the function of the

court to determine both the necessity for counsel,

and compensation to be allowed therefor.

"The receiver is entitled to compensation for

services performed by him, and the circumstances

and environments of the particular receivership

are proper to be considered in determining the

amount of this compensation." (Italics ours.)
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We quote further from this last named case, from
page 702 thereof:

"Evidence relative to the compensation of the
receiver and the allowance for counsel fees may
be admitted for the purpose of informing the
Court as to wliat is just and reasonable under
the circumstances; but, where the court has per-
sonal knowledge of all that has been done by the
attorneys, it is not always necessary that it should
hear evidence respecting- the amount which it
should allow, for a court is presumed to know
the value of attorney's services, and it is for its
own enliR-htenment that such evidence is heard."

In the case of Stewart v. Boulware, 133 IJ. S. 78,

the following language is used, at page 79 of said

report

:

"So far as the allowances to counsel are con-
cerned, it is a mere question as to their reason-
ableness. Nor is there any doubt of the power
of courts of equity to fix the compensation of
their own receivers. That power results neces-
sarily from the relation which the receiver sus-
tains to the Court, and, in the absence of any
legislation regulating the receiver's salary or com-
pensation, the matter is left entirely to the
determination of the court from which he derives
his appointment.

"The compensation is usually determined ac-
cording to the circumstances of the particular
case, and corresponds with the degree of respon-
sibility and business ability required in the man-
agement of the affairs intrusted to liim, and the
perplexity and difficulty involved in the manage-
ment. Like all questions of costs in courts '^of
equity, allowances of this kind are largely dis-
cretionary, and the action of the court below is
treated as presumptively correct, 'since it has far
better means of knowing what is just and rea-
sonable than an appellate court can have.'"
(Italics ours.)



(i5

In the case of Fidelity Trust Company v. Halsey &
Smith, Ltd., 93 N. J. Eq. Rep. 161, at 162, among

other things it said:

"The fundamental rule is that the amount lies

in the discretion of the court, having regard to

all the circiimMances; that the action of the court

is presumptively correct, and will be upheld if it

does not plainly appear that there has been an
abuse of discretion." (Italics ours.)

When we consider the nature of the matters here

administered, the amoimt involved, the complications

attending them, the time spent by Mr. Eliassen in his

office and away from his office in the State of Cali-

fornia and away from his office outside of the State

of California in connection with the work of this

receivership performed by Mr. Eliassen, the skill

required of him in the handling of the legal affairs

of this receivership, the degree of success attained

under all tlie circumstances, his fidelity to details, the

responsibilities assumed by him as attorney for the

Receivers, the character of these responsibilities, and

the expedition with which he performed the services

required of him in view^ of the results reached, all

together with the testimony of the various attorneys

who testified in relation to the reasonable value of

these services; and when we further consider the

favorable comments made by some of the largest

creditors in this matter upon the services performed

by Mr. Eliassen as attorney for the Receivers, as said

comments are set forth in some of the letters above

referred to, and the refusal of said creditors to object

to the fees of Mr. Eliassen ; and when we further con-

sider the fact that Mr. Eliassen was called upon to
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pay from his fees the sum of $2,650.00 (Transcript of

Record, YoL I, page 305) for the services of other

Attorneys whom he employed to assist him in the

northern jurisdictions; and when we further consider

the allowance of $15,000.00 to Messrs. McManus, Ernst

& Ernst, Attorneys for the Receivers in the Eastern

jurisdictions where but a comparatively small part

of the work of the Receivers was performed, we

respectfully submit that the sum of $30,000.00 as a

fee for his services is not only not excessive but in-

deed a modest charge.

This fee of $30,000.00, of course, does not take into

consideration the extra and laborious work he has

been called upon to perform growing out of the Ob-

jections and Exceptions filed herein by the Objecting

Creditors.

All of these matters w^re before the Special Master

when, in his report, he fomid the reasonable value of

the services of Mr. Eliassen to be $30,000.00, and were

likewise before the trial Court when it rendered its

Judgment and Decree overruling the Objections and

Exceptions to the Report of the Special Master and

approving and confirming said Report and fixing and

allowing a fee of $30,000.00 to Mr. Eliassen.

It is, therefore, further respectfully submitted that

the trial Court did not err in overruling the Objec-

tions and Exceptions to the Report and Findings of

the Special Master, dated January 19, 1928, relating

to the fees of Mr. Eliassen; nor did the trial Court

err in approving, ratifying and confirming the Report

and Findings of the Special Master, dated January
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did tlie trial Court err in approving, ratifying and

confirming- the Final Accounts and Reports of the

Receivers; nor did the trial Court err in allowing

and fixing the sum of $30,000.00 as compensation to

be paid to Mr. Eliassen as Attorney for the Receivers.

It is further respectfully submitted that the fixing

of the sum of $30,000.00 as the full reasonable value

of the services of Mr. Eliassen, and the Order and

Decree of the trial Court allowing said smn for his

said services, and directing the pav^nent thereof to

him, find ample support in the evidence and the record

of this case.

It is resj)ectfully submitted that nowhere in the

Objections and Exceptions filed by the Objecting

Creditors to the Master's Report is there called in

question any ruling of his in admitting or rejecting

evidence.

In the case of LaM Chance Mining Co. v. Bunl'rr

Hill d- S. ^fining rf- C. Co., 131 Fed. 579, at 587,

(1904), the Court said:

"Certain exceptions were filed by the defend-

ants to the master's report, but none calling in

question any ruling of his in admitting or reject-

ing evidence. Findings of fact made without any
evidence to support them may, and should, as a
matter of course and of law, be disregarded; hut

findings made by a master' in pursuance of an
order to take the proofs and report the facts a,nd

conclusions of law to the court, that depend upon
conflicting testimony, or upon the credihility of
witnesses, especially where, as in the present case,

they are approved by the trial court, will not be

disturbed." (Italics ours.)
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The Court fui'ther states:

"The appellants do not, and, in view of the

record, could not, contend that there is no evi-

dence to support the findinojs."

It is respectfully submitted that in the instant case

the situation is the same, that is to say: the appel-

lants do not, and, in view of the record herein, could

not, contend that there is no evidence to support the

findings of the Master.

In the case of Midland Bridge Co. v. Houston & B.

V. By. Co., 268 Fed. 931, at page 937, (1920), the

Court states:

''[4] Where the master and trial court agree

on the findings of fact, they are conclusive on the

appellate court, where there is any substantial

evidence to support them."

Citing with approval the Last Chance Mining Co.

case, supra, and also the followmg cases:

Mercantile Trust Co. v. Chicago, P. d^ St. L.

Btj. Co., 147 Fed. 699, 78 C. C. A. 87;

Moffatt V. Blake, 145 Fed. 40, 75 C. C. A. 265.

In the case of Fanners' Loan cf- Trust Co. v.

M'Clure, 78 Fed. 209, at page 210, the Court said

:

"It is the settled rule of the federal courts that

where the court below has considered conflicting

evidence, and made its finding and decree there-

on, thev must be taken as presmnptively correct

;

and, unless an obvious error has intervened in the

application of the law, or some serious or im-

portant mistake has been made in the considera-

tion of the evidence, the decree should be per-

mitted to stand. Tilahman v. Proctor, 125 IT. S.

136, 8 Sup. Ct. 894; Kimberlv v. Arms, 129 U. S.

512, 9 Sup. Ct. 355 ; Furrer v. Ferris, 145 U. S.
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132, 134, 12 Sup. Ct. 821 ; Warren v. Burt, 12 U.
S. App. 591, 7 C. C. A. 105, and 58 Fed. 101;

Plow Co. V. Carson, 36 U. S. App. 456 ; 18 C. C.

A. 606, and 72 Fed. 387. In view of this prin-

ciple, and in consideration of the great weight

which ought to he given to the opinion of the

trial court as to the value of the services of
solicitors in cases pending before it, we are U7i-

willing to disturh the decree in this case. Let it

he affirmed, with costs." (Italics ours.)

APPOINTMENT OF MR. A. F. LIEURANCE, AS CO-RECEIVER

WITH ARTHUR F. GOTTHOLD, OF NEW YORK, THE SER-

VICES RENDERED BY MR. LIEURANCE IN CONNECTION
WITH THIS RECEIVERSHIP, AND THE VALUE OF SAID

SERVICES.

As the records of this case disclose, Mr. Lieurance

was selected by the Creditors' Committee in the east-

ern jurisdiction in this matter, and appointed as co-

Receiver with Mr. Gotthold without any previous

knowledo'e on the part of Mr. Lieurance that his name

was even being- considered by said Committee for such

appointment, or that any such appointment of him-

self as Receiver would be made, or even that the R. A.

Pilcher Co. was in financial difficulties.

There can be no doubt but that the said selection

and appointment of Mr. Lieurance to act as co-

Receiver in this matter was due to the following facts

:

1.—The R. A. Pilcher Co. was engaged in the chain

store merchandising business.

2.—Practically all of the business of the R. A.

Pilcher Co. was to be done in the western jurisdic-

tions, as all of the stores belonging to the company,

sixteen in number, were located in the jurisdictions
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of California, Oregon and Washington, and Mr.

Lieurance resided in Oakland, California.

3.—From the very nature of this business, it was

a])parent to the Creditors' Committee that the best

interests of the creditors required that a man be

selected and appointed as Receiver who was thor-

oughly qualified and acquainted with this type of mer-

chandising,

4.—The Creditors' Coimnittee knew or had heard

of Mr. Lieurance 's long and successful experience in

the chain store merchandising business, and realized

that, by placing Mr. Lieurance in tlie position of

Receiver in this matter, the aifairs of the Receiver-

ship would be conducted in a careful, conscientious,

efficient and businesslike manner.

The Creditors' Committee in the eastern jurisdic-

tion could readily have selected the Board of Trade

of San Francisco, or some one else, other than Mr.

Lieurance, to conduct the business of the Receiver-

ship in the west, had it so desired.

Tlie fact that the Board of Trade of San Francisco

was not so selected, and that Mr. Lieurance was, is

the best evidence that the Creditors' Connnittee in the

eastern jurisdiction was satisfied that better results

could be obtained for the creditors through the em-

ployment of Mr. Lieurance than by having the San

Francisco Board of Trade, or any one else, take

charge.

The record further shows that Mr. Lieurance, upon

accepting the emj^loyment, proceeded without delay to

thoroughly acquaint himself with the entire situation,
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and, in the exercise of his jiido-ment, and as was his

right, he selected and employed, as Attorney for the

Receivers in the western jurisdictions, a competent
and reliable Attorney of his own acquaintance, Mr.
Edward R. Eliassen, rather than the Attorney for the

San Francisco Board of Trade, as suggested by Mr.
Walton N. Moore, who was a member thereof, and
likewise one of the creditors of the R. A. Pilcher

Company, and a member of the Creditors' Committee
in the western jurisdictions; he also employed Philip

A. Hershey & Company, whom he knew to be capalDle

and reliable accountants, set up his office for general

control, and immediately got into touch with every
detail necessary to the intelligent and efficient per-

formance of the duties of his trust.

He filed herein a statement of his services, and the

same has been supplemented by his oral testimony,

and that of his Attorney, Mr. Eliassen, and the ae-

comitant, Mr. Hershey. In his testimony given before

the Special Master in this matter, Mr. Lieurance re-

lates the nature and extent of his experience in the

chain store merchandising business, from Avhich we
submit that it is readily apparent that he was pe-

culiarly well qualified to serve as Receiver herein.

The foregoing statement of services of Mr. Lieur-
ance was offered and received in evidence at the

hearing before the Special Master, and is set forth in

Vol. II, Transcript of Record, at pages 735 to 798,

inclusive, to which statement we respectfully invite

the attention of this Honorable Court. Immediately
following said statement on pages 798 and 799, Vol.
II of the Transcript of Record, are certain Exhibits,
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Exhibit 9, Plaintiff's Exhibit 10, and Receivers' Ex-

hibit 11, the originals of all of which Exhibits are to

be transmitted to the Appellate Court for use upon

this appeal upon the Order of the Judge of the Court

and pursuant to stipulation of the parties.

We like^Yise respectfully call the attention of this

Honorable Court to these Exhibits, particularly Re-

ceivers' Exhibit 9, consisting of communications ad-

dressed by Receiver Lieurance to the several store

managers and to Plaintiff's Exhibit 10, consisting of

certain data assembled by Receiver Lieurance and

sent by him to prospective purchasers of the several

stores. These commmiications to the store managers

and to prospective purchasers indicate the type of

close, constant and personal attention which Mr.

Lieurance gave to this Receivership.

The whole record in this case discloses beyond all

question that, from the very moment of his accept-

ance of this trust, Mr. Lieurance realized the great

responsibilities he was assuming, and determined to

give, and did give, to this matter the benetit of his

long experience as a successful business man, particu-

larly his experience in the chain store line of mer-

chandising, and earnestly and honestly put forth his

every effort to the end that every dollar possible

should be saved from this financial wreck for the

benefit of the 687 creditors scattered throughout the

United States, and to the end that whatever dividends

were to be allowed them should be paid as soon as

possible, and the Receivership brought to a close at

the earliest possible date.
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The preferred claims amounting to $5,816.34 were

paid. Dividend No. One, paid December 24, 1926,

was forty per cent of the general claims, and amounted

to $287,517.67; Dividend No. Two, paid May 13,

1927, was ten per cent of the general claims, and

amounted to $71,879.39.

A dividend of fifty per cent was paid on Simplex

Shoe Manufacturing Company's adjusted claim as

allowed by the Master, amounting to $437.51, making a

total paid on claims of $365,650.91. Gash in the sum

of $25,000.00 was sent by Mr. Lieurance to Mr. Gott-

hold, liis co-Receiver, in the eastern jurisdiction.

CRITICISMS OF OBJECTING CREDITORS.

Counsel for the Objecting Creditors argue, in effect:

First:—That this Receivership was a very simple

procedure, and required on the part of the Receiver

no more than ordinary experience and ability in the

merchandising business

;

Second:—That, in the conduct of this Receivership,

Mr. Lieurance displayed very poor business judg-

ment;

Third:—That he should have done his own ac-

counting
;

Fourth:—That he was responsible for the amounts

allowed in the eastern jurisdiction: (a) To Mr. Gott-

hold, as co-Receiver in this matter, the sum of $7,-

500.00; (b) To Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst, as

Attorneys for the Receivers in the eastern jurisdic-

tion, the smn of $15,000.00; and (c) To the account-
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ing firm of Leidesdorf & Co., as Accountants for the

Receivers in the eastern jnrisdiction, the sum of

$7,700.00;

Fifth:—That Mr. LieuT'ance's large experience in

this line of business contributed nothing to the suc-

cess of this Receivership;

Siith:—That, had Mr. Lieurance followed the sug-

gestion of Mr. Walton N. Moore, and had handled

this Receivership through the San Fi'ancisco Board

of Trade, and with the aid of its Attorneys, the

Receivership would have been handled much more

efficiently and with better results, and that the ser-

vices performed by Mr, Eliassen, as the Attorney for

the Receivers in the western jurisdictions, could have

been performed in one-fourth or one-half of the time

devoted to these services by Mr. Eliassen.

In addition to the foregoing, the Objecting Cred-

itors have sought to impugn the integrity and good

faith, both of Receiver Lieurance and Mr, Eliassen,

his Attorney.

As to the nature and extent of this Receivership,

it is respectfully submitted that the chain store mer-

chandising business is a ty])e of business which has

developed only within the last few years, and that

there are but few men who, from experience, are

capable of imderstanding its various ramifications.

The work which Mr. Lieurance was called upou to

perform in connection with this Receivership, we

shall not take the time or space to repeat in this argu-

ment, but respectfully refer this Honorable Court to

his Statement of Services above mentioned. This
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Statement not only discloses the nature and extent of

the work to be done, but likewise the close and con-

stant attention given to it in all its detail by Mr.

Lieurance.

It will be remembered that practically all of the

work required of the Receivers in this matter was

performed by Mr. Lieurance; also, that there were

sixteen stores,—three in California, six in Oregon,

and seven in Washington, and the Receivership was

conducted in four separate jurisdictions; that there

were nearly seven hundred creditors, and they were

scattered throughout the United States; that the Re-

ceivership was so to be conducted that a full and

complete report as to the condition of each one of

these stores could be disclosed to these creditors upon

call from any one of them, and that complete reports

of the Receivership coidd be made to any one of the

four Courts in the western jurisdictions promptly and

accurately.

It is ridiculous to contend that any Receiver should

be expected to do accounting woi'k of this nature liim-

self. The final account alone in this matter, as pre-,

sented to the trial Court, contains some six hundred

pages of items, to say nothing of the vast amount of

other work required in the matter of keeping the

books and records relating to this Receivership.

It is even more ridiculous to contend that, in addi-

tion to the work required of Mr. Lieurance in con-

ducting the business of this Receivership, he should

assume, or that any Receiver should assume, under

like circumstances, to do the accounting work himself,

or to rely upon an ordinary bookkeeper for its per-



formanee. Realizing, as he did, tlie type of account-

ing work that would be required, he employed Mr.

Philip A. Hei'shey, and we respectfully submit that

the accounting records in this case fully justify such

employment and the payments made to Mr. Hershey

therefor.

So far as the allowances in the eastern jurisdictions

are concerned, the matter of the services performed

by Mr. Gotthold, Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst,

and by Leidesdorf & Co., those were matters that

rested entirely with the Court of original jurisdiction,

and were, no doubt, granted upon the showing made

by these gentlemen as to the character and extent of

the work they performed.

It is respectfully submitted that the contention

made by the Objecting Creditors in their Opening

Brief that Mr. Lieurance's large experience in this

line of business contributed nothing to the successful

handling of this Receivership, is jiositively stuj^id.

Concerning the San Francisco Board of Trade, and

its Attorneys, it is respectfully submitted that there

is nothing in this record to support the suggestion

that had the Receivership been handled through the

San Francisco Board of Trade, or by its Attorneys,

it would have been any more efficiently or successfully

handled than it has been by Mr. Lieurance, as co-

Receiver, and Mr. Eliassen, as the Attorney for the

Receivers in the western jurisdictions.

It appears from the record in this case that Mr.

Walton N. Moore, one of the creditors of R. A.

Pilcher Co., and a member of the San Francisco
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Board of Trade, and Mr. Kirk, the Attorney for the

San Francisco Board of Trade, were incensed because

Mr. Lieurance refused to accept these suggestions

from Mr. Moore, and have vented their feelings and

disappointment in this regard hy attacking lioth the

good faith and the integrity of Mr. Lieurance and

Mr. Eliassen. Practically one-third of the Opening

Brief for the Objecting Creditors is given over to

these attacks in the form of letter and telegraphic

correspondence, concerning which the Special Master,

in his report (Transcript of Record, Vol. I, pages

178, 179 and 180) says:

"While as above stated, there are only three

questions to be decided, the greater portion of the
voluminous objections [151] which have been filed

have to do with charges by the objecting creditors

that Mr. Lieurance and his attorney, in obtaining
orders from the various ancillary jurisdictions on
December 10, 1926, and the succeeding days, fix-

ing Receivers' and attorneys' fees ex parte, were
guilty of violation of an existing agreement with
Mr. Moore and Mr. Kirk, with duplicity toward
these gentlemen and Mr. Gotthokl, and with im-
position and misrepresentation toward the courts

that passed the orders complained of. The Master
stated at the outset of the hearing (Tr., p. 2) that

after reading the objections and the answer there-

to he did not think these questions material in

view of the fact that the orders complained of
had been subsequently opened for review. Never-
theless, the subject matter was oy^enecl Iw Mr,
Heney on the cross-examination of Mr. Eliassen.

The Master's expressed opinion was referred to

by Mr. Crosby, thoutjh not in the form of an
objection, Init Mr. Heney pressed it as cross-

examination having a bearing on the weight of
the testimony of Mr. Eliassen and Mr. Lieurance
regardins: the value of their services,—a position

amplified in the opening brief, p, ]5, by the addi-



tional contention that if the charges are true the

Receiver and his attorneys are not entitled to

compensation for services in opposing the objec-

tions and in securing additional com])ensation,

and also as substantiating a request by counsel

for the objectors for an allowance of costs and
expenses incurred by the objecting creditors. The
great bulk of the testimony in this record and of

the presentation in the briefs concerns this ques-

tion of whether the charges of bad faith are true.

I allowed the testunony at the hearing, and I

shall pass upon it here, not because I believe my
first impression of the materiality of the evidence

was incorrect but because charges of so serious

a nature against men honored by appointment as

officers of the court should not be passed by,

whether material to the main issue or not. [152]"

In the light of these criticisms launched by the

Objecting Creditors, and their Counsel, in their Open-

ing Brief, against the conduct of this Receivership

by Mr. Lieurance, w^e deem it proper here to repeat

the expressions:

First:—By Mr. Francis J. Heney, one of counsel

for the Objecting Creditors, and who is one of the

writers of the Opening Brief for Objecting Cred-

itors herein, wherein he stated before the vSpe-

cial Master that the work of the Receivership

has been "efficiently conducted," a statement which

we submit is entirely at variance with the comments

he has written in the Opening Brief upon this sub-

ject;

Second:—By Mr. Walton N. Moore, of the Walton

N. Moore Dry Goods Company, one of the largest

creditors of the R. A. Pitcher Company, a member
of the San Francisco Board of Trade, a member of
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the Creditors' Committee in the western jurisdictions,

and who we believe is the leader of the Objecting

Creditors herein, to-wit: "The results produced by

Mr. Lieurance have been very creditable.";

Third:—By Mr. Arthur F. Gotthold, co-Receiver in

the New York jurisdiction, who, in writing to Mr.

Lieurance, referred to the sale of the stores made by

Mr. Lieurance as, "Your splendid work in disposing

of the stores."

Tliese expressions of commendation by Mr. Heney

and Mr. Walton N. Moore are absolutely inconsistent

with the criticisms voiced by these gentlemen in their

Opening Brief in this matter. Mr. Gotthold fully

appreciated the nature and extent of the work per-

formed by Mr. Lieurance in so successfully disposing

of these stores, as the record shows that he has acted

as a Receiver upon numerous occasions, and, when he

described Mr. Lieurance 's services as "splendid," he

spoke with knowledge of what those services meant.

In addition to the foregoing favorable comments by

these Objecting Creditors and their Counsel u])on the

work of Mr. Lieurance, we deem it proper to quote

the expressions of other creditors of the R. A. Pilcher

Company, wherein, without reserve, they praise the

services rendered both by Mr. Lieurance and liis At-

torney, Mr. Eliassen, to-wit:

First:—Mr. A. V. Love, of the A. Y. Love Dry

Goods Company, and who himself was a member of

the New York Creditors' Committee, in writing to

Mr. Frazer, the Chairman of the New York Creditors'

Committee, said:
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"I am strongly of the opinion that them men
(Mr. Lieuranee and Mr. Eliassen) have done a

splendid pieee of work, as I have written i/ou

before.*******
^'I want you to know that the A. V. Love Dry

Goods Company, or the writer, has not been or is

not a party to any objeetions that have been

raised to these fees being paid according to the

Court's order, and, as you know we are one of

the heaviest creditors,*******
''You must kyiow that the assets of this com-

pany were on the Pacific Coast and that the work
was actuaUy done out here and that any com-
pensation that should he rendered, should be to

those who did the work, and that was on the Pa-

cific Coast by Mr. Lieuranee and his attorney.

''Therefore, I sincerely hope that you will use

your influence to have this unfair opposition

towards Mr. Lieuranee and, Mr. Eliassen trith-

draum." (Italics and parenthesis ours.)

Second:—The Journal Publishins: Company, in its

letter addressed to Mr. Lieuranee, and which is in evi-

dence in this case, said:

"The Journal, as a creditor of the estate, is

well pleased with the manner in which its busi-

ness has been handled and the dividend that we
have received, is unusually large under the cir-

cumstances." (Italics ours.)

Third:—Lowena'art & Company, of Portland, Ore-

p:on, in their letter addressed to Mr. A. F. Lieuranee,

and which letter is in evidence in this case, said:

"We, as creditors of the Pitcher Company, have
been well satisfied tvith the tvork that you and
your attorney have done. The results you, have
obtained, have been satisfactory to us." (Italics

ours.)
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Fourth:—The Weber Showcase & Fixture Com-

pany, of Los Angeles, California, in its letter To the

Honorable, the Judge of the District Court of the

United States, San Francisco, California, and which

said letter is in evidence in this case, said:

''Our claim was prohahlji one of the largest in

this matter (being over $35,000) and we, there-

fore, Unotv that this receivership possessed many
complications and, tvas very difficult to handle.

These men have done a splendid piece of tvork,

and we feel that their efforts should he recog-

nized, to the extent that nothing is done to hinder

the winding up of this matter." (Italics ours.)

Summing up these opinions as to the manner in

which this Receivership was handled, the results pro-

duced, and the type of services rendered by both Mr.

Lieurance and Mr, Eliassen:

The work of the Receivership was efficiently

conducted

;

The results produced by Mr. Lieurance have

been very creditable;

He did splendid work in disposing of the

stores

;

These men have done a splendid piece of work

;

The work was actually done out here on the

Pacific Coast;

This work was done by Mr. Lieurance and his

Attorney

;

The compensation should go to those who per-

formed the work;

The opposition towards Mr. Lieurance and Mr.

Eliassen is unfair and should be withdrawn;
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As a result of the manner in which the busi-

ness has been handled, the dividend that the

creditors received is unusually large under the

circumstances

;

The results obtained by Mr. Lieurance and his

attorney have been satisfactory;

The Receivership possessed many complica-

tions, and was very difficult to handle.

The Objecting Creditors and their Attorneys, know-

ing of these favorable comments concerning the ser-

vices of Mr. Lieurance m this Receivership on the

part of the A. V. Love Dry Goods Company, seek to

offset their effect by suggesting that Mr. Lieurance, as

Receiver, while the stores were kept running by him,

purchased large quantities of goods from the A. Y.

Love Dry Goods Company, and that thereby the A.

V. Love Dry Goods Company made a reasonable

profit, and for that reason they commended the work

of Mr. Lieurance.

Mr. Lieurance, however, also bought goods during

the Receivership from the Walton N. Moore Dry

Goods Company, in San Francisco, and that company

likewise, no doubt, made a reasonable profit tliei'eon.

It is true that he did not buy as large quantities of

goods from the Walton N. Moore Dry Goods Company

as from the A. V. Love Dry Goods Company, but, in

this regard, it will be observed that but three of the

stores in this Receivership were located in California,

—one at Stockton, one at Oroville, and one at Tur-

lock,—while seven of the stores were located in Wash-

ington, and six in Oregon. As a business proposition,
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it was necessary for the Receiver, in making pur-
chases, to consider the question of the exj^ense of
transportation.

There is nothing in the record in this case, however,
to show that Mr. Lieurance, as such Receiver, trans-

acted any substantial amount of business with the

Journal Publishing Company, from which it may have
made a profit, although some advertisement may have
been carried in that paper, by Mr. Lieurance. There
is nothing in the record to show that Mr. Lieurance
purchased any goods from Lowengart & Company, of
Portland, Oregon, or from Mr. Gotthold, or from the

Weber Showcase & Fixture Company. Indeed, the

original claim of the last mentioned company, amount-
ing to $33,743.21, was allowed for l)ut the sum of

$16,871.60.

Surely Mr. Lieurance purchased no goods from the

Attorney for the Objecting Creditors.

We submit that there is no merit in the suggestion
that any of these companies or individuals were in-

spired or induced to extol the labors of Mr. Lieurance
or Mr. Eliassen by any special favors done them by
either of these two gentlemen.

Again, in an effort to show that tliere was some
especially friendly relationship existing between Mr.
Lieurance and Mr. A. V. Love, wliich prompted Mr.
Love to so express himself, the Objecting Creditors,

on page 50 of their Opening Brief, say

:

''By way of illustration, the Penney Company
have been selling large amounts of merchandise
to A. V. Love & Company at Seattle, Washing-
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ton (one of the largest creditors of Pileher & Co.,

Inc.) Mr. Lieurance so testified.

''Did the receivership for Pileher & Co., Inc.,

as conducted by Mr. T^ieiirance. do likewise and
and make large salcii of snoods at a profit to A. V.
Love & Company? No, on the contrary, the re-

ceivership purchased substantially laro:e quanti-

ties of snoods from Love & Company and it is fair

to infer that Love & Company made a reasonable

profit u])(>ii tile thino-."

It will be remembered that Mr, Lieurance at one

time was connected with and was a stockholder in the

Penney Company, but it is submitted that the writers

of the Opening- Brief have, in this matter, assumed

something that is not supported by the record in this

case, that is, that "the Penney Company have been

selling large amounts of merchandise to A. V. Love &
Company at Seattle." There is no word of testimony

herein that the Penney Company have been selling-

large, or any, amounts of merchandise to A. V. Love

& Company. Mr. Lieurance did not testify that such

sales were made. His testimony on this subject ap-

pears in Vol. I, Transcript of Record, at page 434,

wherein he said

:

''I have known Mr. Love for about ten years.

I have had numerous transactions with him, for

the Penney (^ompany. The aggregate volumes of
those transactions was very large. * * * It

was profitable for me. I do not know whether it

was profitable for Mr. Love, or not. Evidently it

was, or else he would not have carried it on."

The fact is that the Penney Company was engaged

in the retail business—selling to consumers, as was the
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R. A. Pileher Co., Inc., and not in the wholesale busi-
ness—selling to other merchandising concerns.

It is respectfully submitted that Mr. Lieurance was
perfectly justified m sendmg Mr. Hershey to New
York, which was done with the approval of the Court.
The uncontradicted evidence in this case shows that
Mr. Lieurance had been endeavoring constantly for
months, but without success, to procure, from those in
charge of this Receivership in the eastern jurisdiction,

information which was necessary to round out his ac-
comits and reports of the Receivership in the western
jurisdictions. In answer to his requests for this in-

formation, he was advised from time to time that this
information was not yet ready.

The fact is, as is shown by the evidence in this case
and which was without contradiction, that when Mr.
Hershey reached New York he found that compara-
tively nothing had been done toivard an auditing of
the hooks and accounts of the company, and he found
it necessary to work with the accountants there for
approxhnately two weeks, working day and night, to
compile accurate and authentic statements of the
various accounts as shown by the books of the com-
pany. Mr. Hershey, upon this trip to New York,
further discovered that the aggregate claims against
this estate approximated $740,000.00, instead of $600,-
000.00 as had theretofore been reported to Mr. Lieu-
rance in the western jurisdictions.

It is further respectfully submitted tliat it is quite
apparent that had Mr. Hershey not gone to New York
it would have been impossible for Mr. Lieurance to
acquire or obtain this unportant information.



MR. ELIASSEN'S TRIP TO NEW YORK.

In the 0])eniii,2,- Jirief for Objecting C-reditoi-s, at

page 48 thereof, they say

:

"This opposition by th(» creditors committee
made it necessary to take the depositions of
Walter Ernst and Arthnr F. Gotthold in New
York City. Receiver Lieurance unhesitatingly
incurred the expense of sending his attorney,
Edward R. Eliassen, to New York (Hty to attend
the taking of these depositions."

In this regard, it is submitted that the first intima-

tion received by Mr. Lieurance that any depositions

were to be taken in New York was a reference there-

to in the Objections and Exceptions to Final Accomit

and Report of Receivers, etc., filed herein on or about

July 21, 1927, wherein, in paragraph 3 thereof, under

the heading: "Hearing Upon These Objections and

Exceptions, Etc.", they say:

"(a) To present the evidence in support of

these Objections and Exceptions, it will be neces-

sary to take oral testimony, both in California

and in New York City, and possibly in Oregon
and Washington." (Italics ours.)

It was thereafter, and on or about August 3, 1927

(Transcript of Record, Vol. II, page 731) that

Notices and Affidavits for taking the Depositions of

Arthur F. Gotthold, William Frazer, and Walter E.

Ernst came to the attention of Mr. Eliassen, and said

Depositions were noticed to be taken in New York

on August 16, 1927, at 10:00 o'clock A. M. This

testimony was to be taken on oral interrogatories.

We respectfully submit that the time to elapse be-

tween the date of the Notices of the Taking of these



88

Depositions, and the date upon which the Depositions

were to be taken in New York, was so short, and the

scope and extent of these Depositions was so indef-

inite, that it was absolutely impossible for Mr. Lieur-

ance and Mr. Eliassen to properly inform any local

counsel in New York in such a way as to enable such
local coimsel to intelligently cross-examine the wit-

nesses whose Depositions were to be taken.

As above stated, the Objeetinsj Creditors declared

that the testimony thus to be taken in New York was
to be in support of the Objections and Exceptions of

the Objectins^ Creditors. These Objections and Ex-
ceptions were directed against the conduct of the

Receivership in the western jurisdictions by Mr.

Lieurance, and the actions of Mr. Lieurance, and Mr.

Eliassen, the Attorney for the Receivers, in connec-

tion therewith. We, therefore, submit that it was
not only necessary and proper, but also fair and just,

that Mr. Eliassen go personally to New York to l)e

present at the taking of these Depositions.

The Objecting Creditors contend that Mr. Lieur-

ance was extravagant in his handling of this Receiver-

ship. To this charge we answer that a dividend of

fifty per cent (50%) to the creditors herein is most
convincing evidence that Mr. Lieurance was neither

extravagant nor careless in his management.

The Objecting Creditors, at page 74 of their Open-
ing Brief, state:

''At the hearing before the Master, it developed
that Receiver Lieurance had subsequently paid
Mr. Hershey Tivo Thousand ($2,000.00) Dollars
additional, and this fact was unknoivn to the
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Creditors or their attorneys until it came out at

the hearing." (Italics ours.)

This is l)iit another attempt on the part of the

Objecting- Creditoi's and their comisel to discredit Mr.

Lieurance.

The Final Account in this matter was filed on May
19, 1927. (Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 240.)

The Objections and Exceptions to this Account were

filed subsequent thereto, to-wit:—June 27, 1927.

(Transcript of Record, Vol. I, page 125.)

The item of $5,900.00 paid to Mr. Hershey appears

on page 599 of this Final Account upon line 14 thereof.

The item of $2,000.00 paid to Mr. Hershey appears

in the same Final Account, at page 54 thereof, line 13.

The Objecting Creditors, and/or their counsel,

surely examined this Final Account before they filed

their Objections and Excei)tions thereto. The item

of $2,000.00 paid to Mr. Hershey was as readily

discernible as was the item of $5,900.00 paid to him

as shown by this Final Account. It is, therefore,

respectfully submitted that there is no justification

whatever for the suggestion set forth in the Opening

Brief for Objecting Creditors that Mr. Lieurance,

or any one else, had concealed, or had attempted in

any way to conceal, from the Objecting Creditors, or

their coimsel, the above mentioned payment of

$2,000.00 to Mr. Hershey.

We have heretofore set forth m this Brief the

Order and Decree of Honorable Augustus N. Hand,

approving and confirming the Final Aceoimt and

Report of the Receivers in this matter in the New
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York jurisdiction, and discharging the Receivers, and
canceling and dischargmg their bond; also, the tele-

gram from Mr. Arthur F. Gotthold, co-Receiver in

New York, showing all claims heard before Judge
Cardozo disposed of, and further showing that the

moneys directed to be paid by said Order of Judge
Hand of December 10, 1928, to have been paid, and
that that Order finally discharged equity Receivers

upon making these payments. This disposed of the

matter of the disputed claims of $10,000.00 referred

to on page 46 of the Opening Brief of the Objecting

Creditors.

Inasmuch as the Objecting Creditors have requested

this Honorable Court to reduce the allowances to Mr.
Lieurance and to Mr. Eliassen, urging, as one of their

grounds therefor, that moneys should be reserved to

pay these disputed claims, we deem it proper, and
in the interest of justice, that this Honorable Court
be advised of this action of Judge Hand in making
the above mentioned Order and Decree.

ATTACKS OF OBJECTING CREDITORS UPON THE HONESTY,
INTEGRITY AND GOOD FAITH OF MR. LIEURANCE AND
MR. ELIASSEN.

An examination of the Objections and Exceptions
filed herein, and of Exhibit "A" attached thereto and
made a part thereof shows these gentlemen to be
charged therein with violating an arrangement and
agreement; with making representations which were
misleading and deceptive; with concealing material
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matters from the Court and with intentionally mis-

leading the Court.

These or like charges and insinuations against Mr.

Eliassen and Mr. Tjieuranee have been carried into

the Opening Brief of the Objecting Creditors herein.

They ask this' Honorable (-ourt to believe that these

two gentlemen imposed upon, misled and induced

four different United States District Judges to award

theih exorbitant fees.

It is submitted that Mr. Lieurance came into this

position of Receiver, after a long, successful and

honorable business career, and the manner of his

selection and a])pointment, all without any knowledge

on his part, stands as convincing evidence that his

reputation for honesty, integrity and good faith is

of the best. From the letter of Mr. Frazer to Mr.

Moore, shown on page 30 of the Opening Brief herein,

we quote the following in relation to the reputation

of Mr. Lieurance:

"Ernst told me over the telephone yesterday

that he had received a wdre from Lieurance

stating that as far as he w^as concerned he did

not intend to ask for any definite amount of com-

pensation, but intended to leave it absolutely io

the fairness of the Judge. I do not feel that I

wish to criticise Mr. Lieurance 's attitude because

I have a veri/ high regard for Jiis ahility and
other qualifications about tvhich I have been so

favorably informed." (Italics ours.)

Mr. Eliassen, after approximately thirty years' ac-

tive practice in the legal profession in the various

Courts of the State of California, likewise entered
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upon the discharge of his duties in this Receivership

without a single blemish upon his reputation.

It seems, however, at the close of their labors, which

the record in this case shows beyond all question were

ably and conscientiously performed, and when the

Court was called upon to determine what compensa-

tion should be awarded them, that, for the sole pur-

pose of attempting to minimize the value of their

services, their rei:)utations for truth, honesty and in-

tegrity are for the first time to be challenged. Per-

haps neither of these gentlemen is personally known

to this Honorable Court. They were examined and

cross-examined before the Special Master at the hear-

ing of these Objections and Exceptions, and we are

satisfied that the Findings of the Special Master in

this matter with regard to the services performed by

these gentlemen, and the value thereof, were based

not only upon the substance of their testimony, and

that of each of them, but upon the forthrightness with

which each of these gentlemen testified upon the wit-

ness-stand, and that the Special Master was convinced,

after hearing this cause, that all of the insinuations

and direct charges of the Objectors and Exceptors,

and their counsel, against the integrity and good faith

of these gentlemen, were each and all absolutely

groundless and without any support whatsoever.

The facts, briefly stated, concerning the ad interim

allowances, are as follows:

Applications were filed in the eastern jurisdiction

for an Order directing the payment of a forty per

cent (40%) dividend to the creditors, and for ad
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interim allowances to the Receivers and Messrs. Mc-

Manus, Ernst & Ernst. In the telegram dated De-

cember 8, 1926, set forth on page 16 of the Opening

Brief, we find the following closing words:

''Please get in touch with Love see Lieurance
and Eliassen find out if possihlp what charges
will be Stop Advise residta by wire because we
want to include your views in recommendation to

Judge Hand." (Italics ours.)

From this telegram, it is apparent that William

Frazer, the Chairman of the New York Creditors'

Committee, was in a hui-ry for this information.

In the telegram appearing at bottom of page 15 of

the Opening Brief, Mr. Arthur F. Gotthold, in his

wire to Mr. Lieurance, says:

"I shall be glad to know your views as to al-

lowances to receivers and counsel as soon as

possible/' (Italics ours.)

This wire again shows the need of immediate action.

In a telegram from Messi's, McManus, Ernst & Ernst

to A. F. Lieurance, appearing at pages 14 and 15 of

the Opening Brief, we find the closing words

:

"At request Creditors' Committee no allow-

ances were fixed for receivers or counsel until

receiving some indication from you what aggre-
gate amoimt you and Eliassen will request from
Western jurisdictions. Will you please wire us

approxunately what aggregate allowances will be

so requested." (Italics ours.)

It will l)e noted that Messrs. McManus, Ernst &

Ernst desire to know the aggregate of these allow-

ances.
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In the telegram from A. Y. Love to A. F. Lieurance,

appearing on page 15 of the Opening Brief, we find

the following closing words:

''Judge Hand has asked for our views and sug-

gestions. Please wire me amounts you and Mr.
Eliassen expect." (Italics ours.)

This telegram again shows the need for immediate

action.

In his telegram of date December 9th, to Mr.

Frazer, appearing at page 16 of the Opening Brief,

Mr. A. V. Love states:

"Talked to Lieurance long-distance today. He
will not suggest amount of fees. Says will be
satisfied with courts order."

In the telegram from Mr. Lieurance to Messrs.

McManus, Ernst & Ernst, page 15 of the Opening

Brief, Mr. Lieurance states:

"No amount on account for attorneys and re-

ceivers in ancillary jurisdiction will be suggested
by us. However, will ask for allowances on ac-

count, but amounts will be left entirely to discre-

tion of courts. Feel this best and most fair

method to pursue. Have not slightest idea of
what courts will do, but feel they will be fair

to both creditors and ourselves."

Thus we find Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst

fully informed that Mr. Eliassen and Mr. Lieurance

would not make any estimate of w^hat the ad interim

allowances in the west would be, as they were to be

left entirely to the judgments of the C-ourts.

In Exhibit "A" attached to the Objections and

Exceptions in this matter, and appearing in Vol. I,
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page 109, Transcript of Record, there is set forth

what purports to be a telegram dated December 9,

1926, addressed to William Frazer, signed by Walton

N. Mooi'C. A very vital portion of this telegram was

omitted, a portion which was dictated by Mr. Lieiir-

ance, and is as follows:

'*As you now know from yesterday's telegrams
from Lieurance to Gotthold and Attorneys Mc-
Manus, Ernst & Ernst, receiver Lieurance and
attorneys in ancillary jurisdiction intend leaving
amomits of allowances to discretion of ancillary

courts,"

Counsel for Objecting Creditors, while cross-ex-

amining Mr. Eliassen before the Special Master, read

this telegram, but, in so doing, neglected to read these

concluding words of the telegram until pressed to do

so by comisel for Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen, all

of which appears on pages 152 and 153 of the Re-

porter's Transcript of date October 19, 1927. From
these telegrams, it is readily seen that Mr. William

Frazer, Chairman of the New York Creditors' Com-
mittee, as well as Mr. Gotthold, Messrs. McManus,

Ernst & Ernst, Mr. Walton N. Moore and Mr. A. V.

Love, wTre all fully informed on December 9, 1926,

that the question of the allow^ances in the w^estern

jurisdictions were not to be fixed or determined by

conferences between these gentlemen and the creditors

or Creditors' Committees, but w^ere to rest entirely in

the discretion of the various Courts in the western

jurisdictions.

After the meeting at Mr. Kirk's office on December

9, 1926, mentioned on page 21 of the Opening Brief,
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and, in accordance with the understanding there

reached, and for the purpose of learning what the

aggregale ad interim allowances in the western juris-

dictions would be, Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen

proceeded the following day with their applications

to the United States District Court at San Francisco
for Orders declaring a dividend of forty per cent

(40%) to the Creditors, and for ad interim allow-

ances. Thereafter, they proceeded immediately to the

northwest, where they filed like applications and pro-

cured like Orders declaring a dividend of forty per
cent (40%) to the creditors, and ad i)iterim allow-

ances. Immediately upon these matters being deter-

mined by the various Courts in the western jurisdic-

tions, the telegram referred to on page 32 of the

Opening Brief, from Mr. Lieurance to Mr. Moore,
was forwarded to Mr. Moore.

As hereinbefore mentioned, a controversy exists be-

tween Mr. Kirk and Mr. Moore on the one hand, and
Mr. Eliassen and Mr. Lieurance on the other, as to

what miderstanding was reached between them in

regard to these matters at Mr. Kirk's office on De-
cember 9, 1926. There is no doubt whatever but that
these gentlemen honestly disagree as to what under-
standing was really reached. There can be no doubt,
however, but that the understanding was that the
aggregate ad interim, allowances to be made in the
west should be determined promptly and reported to
the eastern jurisdiction, and it was likewise clearly
understood that the applications for the dividends to
the creditors should be made at 'once, and we submit
that it is ouly reasonable that, to avoid two journeys
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into the northwest, the applications for ad interim

allowances should be made simultaneously with those

for the Orders declaring the dividends.

But, as we have hereinbefore stated, the aggrei^ate

of these ad interim allowances was reduced by Stipu-

lation of the parties, and the final fixation of fees of

Mr. Ijieurance and Mr. Eliassen was made by the

United States District Court in and for the Nortliern

District of (California, Southern Division, after the

hearing of these Objections and Exceptions before the

Special Master, and upon his report and findings.

In his letter of January 10, 1927, to Mr. E. J.

Hopkins, Credit Manager for Roberts, Johnson &

Rand, hereinbefore referred to, Mr. Lieurance, while

opposing the setting aside of the Courts' Orders fix-

ing these ad interim aHowances, states, among other

things

:

"However, we are not opposed to a review of

this situation, and are ready and willing to go

before all of the Judges in open Court, in the

presence of any and all creditors, and have the

matter re-viewed. If the Courts see fit to change

their decisions, we shall abide by such decisions

with grace, and if the Courts still feel that the

compensation and fees allowed are fair and
equitable, we shall be content to let them stand

as they are. We have indicated this to both Mr.

Moore and Mr. Kirk, and have expressed our

willingness to have this matter re-viewed at any

time, w^hich suits their convenience or the con-

venience of other creditors."

Needless to say, in whatever walk of life we find

ourselves, a good reputation for truth, honesty and

integrity is the most valuable asset we can possess.

A man's good name is quite as dear to him as life
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itself. He is entitled to protection from all imwar-

ranted and imfoimded attacks against it. There is

nothing whatever to be found in the entire record in

this case which can be justly construed as furnishing

the slightest support for any of these charges and

attacks made upon the truthfulness, honesty or in-

tegrity of either Mr. Eliassen or Mr. Lieurance.

Wherefore, it is respectfully submitted:

1. That none of the fees allowed in this matter are

grossly, or at all excessive

;

2. That the trial Court did not err in any of the

particulars set forth by appellants in their Assign-

ment of Errors;

3. That there was no abuse of discretion on the

part of the trial Court in this matter;

4. That the judgment and decree of the trial Court

of March 27, 1928, should be affirmed without modi-

fication
;

5. That appellants should be denied any costs

herein

;

6. That appellees should be allowed their costs

herein incurred.

Dated, Oakland,

December 4, 1929.

Respectfully submitted,

Edward R. Eliassen,

Crosby & Crosby,

Attorneys for Receiver

A. F. Lieurance, and

Edivard R. Eliassen

Attorney for Receivers.
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CLOSING BRIEF OF OBJECTING CREDITORS.

The reply brief for A. F. Lieurance, as Receiver,

and Edward R. Eliassen, as his attorney, is inter-

spersed with attacks upon the motives of the object-

ing creditors and their attorneys in initiating and

prosecuting these proceedings. Neither the opening

brief for the objecting creditors, nor the transcript of

record contains anything which justifies such attacks.

We are certain, however, that the members of this

honorable court are not concerned with such side is-

sues, and hence we shall not waste any of their valua-



ble time by attempting to answer these attacks in

kind or otherwise.

That brief also sets up one fictitious straw issue

after another, and then proceeds to demolish it. One
example will suffice. For instance, on pages 84 and

85 thereof, the following appears:

''Again, in an effort to show that there was
some especially friendly relationship existing
between Mr. Lieurance and Mr. A. V. Love,
which prompted Mr. Love to so express himself,
the Objecting Creditors, on page 50 of their
Opening Brief, say:

'By way of illustration, the Penney Com-
pany have been selling large amounts of mer-
chandise to A. V. Love & Company at Seattle,

Washington (one of the largest creditors of
Pilcher & Co., Inc.) Mr, Lieurance so testified.

'Did the receivership for Pilcher & Co., Inc.,

as conducted by Mr. Lieurance, do likewise
and make large sales of goods at a profit to

A. Y. Love & Company? No, on the contrary,
the receivership purchased substantially large
quantities of goods from Love & Company and
it is fair to infer that Love & Company made
a reasonable profit upon the thing.'

"

If the court will turn to page 50 of our opening

brief, it will readily discover that the portion quoted

therefrom was not used "in an effort to show that

there w^as some especially friendly relationship exist-

ing between Mr. Lieurance and Mr. A. V. Love"

which prompted Mr. Love to write a letter to Mr.

Frazier, the chairman of the New York creditors'

committee, approving the work of Messrs. Lieurance

and Eliassen, and refusing to object to the amount of

fees which had been allowed to them by the court.
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On the contrary, the quoted part of our opening brief

was used solely as a i)art of our argument to the effect

that the Receiver in the case at bar was not called

upon to exercise his talents along the line of the main

purpose for which an exj)ert in the rimning of chain

stores would be required to exercise it, to-wit, that

of purchasing various kinds of merchandise in very

large quantities so as to secure the cheapest price

possible, and of shipping them in carload lots so as

to secure the cheapest freight possible. The argument

had nothing whatever to do with the question of the

existence or non-existence of friendly relations be-

tween Mr. Lieurance and Mr. A. V. Love as a basis

for the latter 's approval of the fees which had been

allowed by the court to Mr. Lieurance.

In our ''Statement of the Case" in our opening

brief, we have recited undisputed facts only, and have

stated them with fairness to both sides of this con-

troversy.

Some alleged facts, outside of the record, have been

injected into their reply brief by the attorneys for

Mr. Lieurance and Mr. Eliassen, and solely by way

of response thereto, we shall presently call the atten-

tion of this court to a letter recently received by Mr.

Wren from Mr. Ernst, who w^as appointed by the New
York court of original jurisdiction herein as attor-

ney for the Receivers.



REAL AND SOLE ISSUES REQUIRING CONSIDERATION.

It stands as an admitted fact in this proceeding

that the net amount obtained by the Receivers from

the sale of assets is the sum of $466,980.40.

The aggregate amount allowed in both jurisdic-

tions for Receivers' fees is $42,500.00 and for attor-

neys' fees $45,000.00.

The correct rule of law to be applied in fixing the

amount to be paid to the Receivers in this case seems

to be the one which was laid down in the case of

Grant v. Bryant, 101 Mass. 570, to-wit, that the Re-

ceivers should be allowed only "such an amount as

would be reasonable for the services required of and

rendered by a person of ordinarji ability and compe-

tent for such duties and services."

If this is a correct statement of the law, it seems

to follow logically that the aggregate amomit of $42,-

500.00 which was allowed to the Receivers in this

case is excessive, and that manifest error was com-

mitted by the lower court in making the allowances

herein.

Moreover, it stands undisputed in this proceeding

that no extraordinary services were performed by the

attorneys for the Receivers in either or any jurisdic-

tion. Hence, the aggregate amount of $45,000.00 for

attorneys' fees also seems to be excessive for the rea-

sons set forth in our opening brief.

In our opening brief we have not attacked either

the motives or character of the Receiver Lieurance

or his attorney. We merely have quoted certain cor-



respondence bj^ letters and telegrams between Mr.

Lieurance and his co-Receiver, Mr. Gotthold, and

have called attention to certain significant omissions

from the telegrams sent by Mr. Lieurance to Mr.

Gotthold. If it follows as a natural and irresistible

inference therefrom that- Mr. Lieurance endeavored

to make an unfair contract with Mr. Gotthold regard-

ing fees by concealing material facts from him and

also by attempting to mislead him into the belief that

Mr. Ijieurance was in Oakland when in truth and in

fact he was in Portland, Oregon, securing the last of

his ad interim allowances of fees, it is not our fault

and Mr. Lieurance has no one to blame but himself

if those telegrams indicate that he was not acting

in that high degree of good faith toward his co-Re-

ceiver which is imposed upon him by the law.

From that correspondence (and all thereof is set

forth in our opening brief) the inference seems irre-

sistible and inescapable that Mr. Lieurance wilfully

and deliberately brought about the situation which

resulted in the allowance of excessive fees in the ag-

gregate for the New York and the western jurisdic-

tions by refusing to aid Judge Hand or the Credi-

tors' Committee in New York with information which

it was his legal duty to give at least to his co-Receiver,

Mr. Gotthold, for the protection of the creditors who

were the equitable owners of the fund which was in

his hands. We have discussed this point quite fully

in our opening brief.

In conclusion, we merely desire to add that after

the reply brief for the Receiver and his attorney had



been served iii^on us, Mr. Grant H. Wren wrote to

Messrs. McManus, Ernst & Ernst requesting informa-

tion regarding the matters outside of the record which

have been inserted in the aforesaid reply brief, and

he received a reply from them dated December 6,

1929, which contains the following statements regard-

ing that matter:

Grant H. Wren, Esq.,

444 Market Street,

San Francisco, California.

Mv dear Mr. Wren:

Re : R. A. Pilcher Co., Bankrupt

(First paragraph of the letter omitted because it

is of a personal nature.)
Coming now to the matter you mention in your

letter of the 29th ultimo, you will recall that there
were many claims pending and undetermined be-
fore Mr. Cardozo, appointed Special Master to
hear and determine claims to which objections
had been filed. There were three claims which
differed from all the rest in that they were not
l3ased upon Account Payable for merchandise,
but were predicated on the sale of stock by the
corporation and the attempted rescission by the
stockholders of the respective contracts made be-
tween them and the company, prior to the bank-
ruptcy. Much testimony was taken in connection
with these claims and elaborate briefs were sub-
mitted. The Mandel claim differed from the other
two, and the testimony indicated that there was

- a fair chance of the claimant succeeding. It was
then that we attempted to adjust the matter on
a basis of 50% of the amomit of the claim, that
is, the Receiver here offei'ed to allow the claim
for 50% of the amount for which it was filed,

and to pay a dividend on the reduced amoimt.
That, in effect, would give the claimant 25% of
the amount of his claim. To mduce the claunant
to accept that compromise it was pointed out to



Mandel's nttorney that it was possible that lie

niisht win his case and there be no money left

foT him. That bronsht up the question as to
whether the Receiver here would be personally
liable in the event that the Mandel claim was
allowed in full and there were insufficient moneys
to pay it.

With all these circumstances before us it was
deemed advisable to make the adjustment and
the a.o'reement was accordino-ly made that the
Mandel claim be allowed at 50% of the amount
for which it was filed, dividend to be paid out
of money then in the hands of Mr. Gotthold, as

Receiver, or subsequently to come into his hands.
Eventually moneys were sent by Lieurance to Mr.
Gotthold and such moneys were used to pay the
fees of the Special Master and to pay the Ref-
eree, Mr. Stephenson, and the balance was used
to pay Mr. Mandel. When it was determined that
there would be insufficient to pay Mandel in ac-

cordance with the stipulation made by us we pre-
vailed upon the attorneys for Mandel to accept
what was left, and we were fortunate in succeed-
ino- in having- that attorney acquiesce, and in ob-

tainina; an order closino- the situation.

The order o-ives to Mandel the balance of mon-
eys then in the possession of Mr. Gotthold, and in

one instance those moneys, are described as ''bal-

ance in his possession" but that balance was fixed

at $499.76, and certainly there can be no conten-

tion that Mandel is entitled to any other moneys
which mio'ht hereafter come into the possession

of Gotthold, or to the possession of which Gott-

hold was then entitled. The situation was dealt

with as it then existed, and we were considerins:

only the funds which Mr. Gotthold tlien had in

his possession, and which he was then able to

distribute.

Moreover, it was well miderstood at that time

that an action or proceeding- was pendine: to com-
pel Lieurance and Eliassen to pay back certain



moneys, and in the petition upon which the order

of December 10th, 1928, was based there appears
the following- language:

"No assets have been turned over to the

Trustee in Bankruptcy, nor will there be any
assets to be turned over to said Trustee unless

Mr. Lieurance and his attorney Edward R.
Eliassen, Esq., turn back, or are forced to turn
back in proceedings brought by certain credi-

tors, a part of the fees awarded to them in the
ancillary proceedings in California."

Therefore, it will be observed that even though
there was a disposition of the moneys then availa-

ble to Mr. Gotthold (that is, in November, 1928)
it was clearly miderstood and represented to the

Court that additional moneys might come into

the estate. But it was also understood, and it

must now be understood, that those moneys, if

they are brought into the estate, must be deliv-

ered to or i^aid over to the Trustee in Bank-
ruptcy.

You will also recall that all of the claims filed

in the equity proceedings have been lodged with
the Referee in BankruiDtcy, and in the event that

any money is received from Lieurance and Elias-

sen (and we fully expect that there will be a re-

turn of such money) that money will be immedi-
ately distributed in the bankruptcy proceedings.

As above stated, all claims have been filed with

the Referee, and it will be a comparatively sim-

ple matter to prepare a dividend sheet and dis-

tribute the moneys in the same way as they were
distributed in the equity proceedings.

Further, Mr. Gotthold, the Trustee in Bank-
ruptcy, has reported to the Referee in Bank-
ruptcy from tune to time, and in all of those

reports a mention of tlie proceedings now pend-

ing in the Circuit Court of Appeals in the Ninth
Circuit has been made and the Referee is fully

advised thereof.
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This letter is bein^ written at some length and

in some detail because you asked for a full state-

ment. Naturally you may use all or none of it.

Sincerely yours,

WEE/VC Walter E. Ernst.

Dated, San Francisco,

December 23, 1929.

Respectfully submitted,

Francis J. Heney,

Clarence A. Shuey,

Grant H. Wren,

Attorneys for Objecting Creditors.
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[1*] DOCKET 10037.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
East 14th Street & Bybee Ave., Portland,

Oreg.,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

For the Taxpayer:

GEO. W. JOSEPH, Esq.

CHAS. E. McCULLOCH, Esq.

For the Commissioner

:

SHELBY S. FAULKNER, Esq.

W. F. GIBBS, Esq.

DOCKET ENTRIES.

1925.

Dec. 17—Petition received and filed.

Dec. 23—Copy of petition served on solicitor.

Dec. 23—Notification of receipt mailed taxpayer.

1926.

Jan. 22—^Answer filed by solicitor.

Jan, 29—Copy of answer served on taxpayer.

Assigned to field calendar.

1927.

Feb. 15—Hearing set 4-18-27, Portland, Oreg.

April 18—Hearing had before Mr. Arundell. To

*Page-nuniber appearing at the top of page of original certified
Transcript of Eeeord.
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be consolidated with 22158 and 23912.

Submitted upon stipulation of facts.

Briefs due 7-1-27.

May 9—Transcript of hearing 4—18-27 filed.

June 28—Memorandum brief filed by G. C.

July 1—Order granting taxpayer extension to

7-15-27 to file brief signed and filed.

Both sides notified.

July 4—Brief filed by taxpayer. (Proposed find-

ings included.)

1928.

Jan. 20—Findings of fact and opinion rendered

(Sternhagen). Judgment will be en-

tered on 15 days' notice under Rule 50.

Mar. 9—Motion for redetermination filed by G. C.

Mar. 13—Notice allowing taxpayer until 4-10-28

to file alternative settlement for hear-

ing on 4-19-28. Failure to do so, ap-

peal set for 4-17-28.

April 17—Hearing had before Mr. Littleton on

settlement. Assigned Mr. Sternhagen.

April 19—Judgment entered.

Oct. 18—Petition for review by U. S. Cir. Ct. of

Appeals, 9th Circuit, with assignments

of error filed by taxpayer.

Oct. 19—Proof of service filed.

Oct. 26—Praecipe for record filed by taxpayer.

Oct. 26—Proof of service filed.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing docket en-

tries certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.
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[2] DOCKET 22158.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

For the Taxpayer:

GEO. W. JOSEPH, Esq.

CHAS. E. McCULLOCH, Esq.

For the Commissioner:

SHELBY S. FAULKNER, Esq.

W. F. GIBBS, Esq.

DOCKET ENTRIES.

1926.

Dec. 27—Petition received and filed. Taxpayer

notified.

Dec. 28—Copy of petition served on general coun-

sel.

1927.

Feb. 26—Answer filed by G. C.

Mar. 26—Copy of answer served on taxpayer.

Circuit Calendar.

April 12—Hearing set 4-18-27 Portland, Oreg.

April 18—Hearing had before Mr. Arundell on

stipulation of facts. Consolidated

with 10037 and 22912. Briefs due

7-1-27.

May 9—Transcript of hearing 4-18-27 filed.

June 28—Memorandum brief filed by G. C.
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July 1—Order granting extension to 7-15-27 to

file brief for the taxpayer signed and

filed. Both sides notified.

July 4—Brief filed by taxpayer. (Proposed

findings included.)

1928.

Jan. 20—Findings of fact and opinion rendered

(Sternhagen). Judgment will be en-

tered on 15 days' notice under Rule

50.

Mar. 9—Motion for redetermination filed by G. C.

Mar. 13—Notice allowing taxpayer until 4-10-28 to

file alternative settlement for hearing

4-19-28. Failure to do so, appeal set

for 4-17-28.

April 17—Hearing had before Mr. Littleton on set-

tlement. Assigned to Mr. Sternhagen

for order.

April 19—Judgment entered.

Oct. 18—Petition for review by U. S. Cir. Ct.

of Appeals, 9th Circuit, with assign-

ments of error filed by taxpayer.

Oct. 19—Proof of service filed.

Oct. 26—Praecipe for record filed by taxpayer.

Oct. 26—Proof of servce filed by taxpayer.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing docket

entries certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.
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[3] DOCKET 23912.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

For the Taxpayer:

GEO. W. JOSEPH, Esq.

CHAS. E. McCULLOCH, Esq.

For the Commissioner:

SHELBY S. FAULKNER, Esq.

W. F. GIBBS, Esq.

DOCKET ENTRIES.

1927.

Feb. 9—Petition received and filed. Taxpayer

notified.

Feb. 11—Copy of petition served on General

Counsel.

Mar. 19—Answer filed by G. C.

April 1—Copy of answer served on taxpayer.

Assigned Circuit Calendar.

April 12—Hearing date set 4-18-27, Multnomah

County Court House, Portland, Oreg.

April 18—Hearing had before Mr. Arundell on

stipulation of facts. Briefs due 7-1-27.

May 9—Transcript of hearing 4—18-27 filed.

June 28—Memorandum brief filed by G. C.
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July 1—Order extending time to 7-15-27 to file

brief signed and filed. Both sides

notified.

July 4—Brief filed by taxpayer. (Proposed

findings included.)

1928.

Jan. 20—Findings of fact and opinion rendered

(Mr. Sternhagen). Judgment will be

entered on 15 days' notice under Rule

50.

Mar. 9—Motion for redetermination filed by

a. C.

Mar. 13—Notice allowing taxpayer until 4-10-28

to file alternative settlement for hear-

ing 4-19-28. Failure to do so, hear-

ing date set 4-17-28.

April 17—Hearing had before Mr. Littleton on

settlement under Rule 50. To Mr.

Sternhagen for order.

April 20—Judgment redetermining deficiency en-

tered.

Oct. 18—Petition for review by U. S. Cir. Ct. of

Appeals, 9th Circuit, with assignments

of error filed by taxpayer.

Oct. 19—Proof of service filed.

Oct. 26—Praecipe for record filed by taxpayer.

Oct. 26—Proof of service filed by taxpayer.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing docket

entries certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.
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[4] Filed Dec. 17, 1925. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 10037.

Appeal of PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
TION, East Uth St. and Bybee Ave., Port-

land, Oregon.

PETITION.

The above-named taxpayer hereby appeals from

the determination of the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue set forth in his deficiency letter (IT :E :-

SM :60D :RJR :B-17263) dated November 3, 1925;

further explained in Bureau letter (IT:CA:Ms:-

2501-JM) dated February 5, 1923; and Bureau

letter (IT:E:SM:RLC:B-17263) dated May 22,

1925 (Copies of each letter attached), and as a

basis of its appeal sets forth the following:

(1) The taxpayer is a corporation organized

under the laws of the State of Oregon, incorporated

and commenced business April 24, 1900, its prin-

cipal office and place of business being located at

East Fourteenth Street and Bybee Avenue, Port-

land, Oregon.

(2) The final deficiency letter was dated No-

vember 3, 1925, the date of mailing to the taxpayer

being unknown. For full explanation of the con-

troversy it will be necessary to refer to Bureau let-

ters of February 5, 1923 and May 22, 1925.

(3) The taxes in controversy are income and
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profits taxes for the calendar year 1919 and are less

than $10,000, to wit, the sum of $5764.69.

(4) The determination of tax contained in said

deficiency letters is based upon the following error:

In determining the taxpayer's net income for

1919, the amount of $12,827.16 set up and deducted

for 1919 as a Reserve for Maintenance, has been

erroneously added to taxable income, such addition

resulting in the major part of the proposed tax of

$5764.69. The item of $94.22 restored to taxable

income by the Commissioner on the theory that it

was a capital expenditure, is not contested.

(5) The facts upon which the taxpayer relies

as the basis of its appeal are as follows:

This corporation has an incinerator plant for the

cremation of human bodies, and constructs, main-

tains and operates columbaria, or niches, for the

preservation of the ashes of the remains so in-

cinerated. It also erects, maintains and operates

vaults for the reception and burial of human re-

mains not incinerated.

The vaults and niches are sold under contracts

providing for perpetual care therefor. To make
this liability clear and thoroughly understood,

copies of each contract are hereto attached, marked

Exhibit ''A."

The covenant on the part of the taxpayer to so

maintain each vault and niche forever is embodied in

each contract issued, [5] and the provision for

maintenance is incorporated in both the original

articles and the supplementary articles of said cor-

poration.
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The growth of the corporation was small during

the first years of its existence, and it was not until

1913 that the necessity for a trust fund to carry

out the terms of the contracts became so apparent

that the Board of Directors by resolution dated

March 4, 1913, established a perpetual care fund

by setting aside ten per cent of the gross receipts

from sale of vaults and niches.

The corporation continued to operate under this

provision until the year 1919 when by resolution

of the stockholders, the Board of Directors were

instructed to increase the percentage for the Re-

serve for Maintenance to 207o, which amount has

been so set aside as a Reserve for Maintenance

since.

The Reserve for Maintenance is set up as a lia-

bility account for a specific purpose, to wit: the

strict fulfillment and compliance with the contracts

of the holders of niches and vaults. Not one dol-

lar of this fund inures to the benefit of the stock-

holders. It is a trust fund created by the clients

who purchased niches and vaults. The sums so seg-

regated are a sacred trust, created for this one pur-

pose only, and in no sense is it a profit of or benefit

to, the stockholders of the corporation.

The Reserve for Maintenance cannot be con-

sidered taxable income, as there is no element of

profit in the maintenance fund itself. The only

possible element of profit connected with this trust

fund set up for perpetual care is that the income

from the fund is used in the care and maintenance

of the vaults and niches. This income is mingled
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with other income of the taxpayer, and accounted

for in the income tax returns of the taxpayer.

(6) The taxpayer, in support of its appeal, re-

lies upon the following propositions of law:

(a) The sums received by a corporation of this

nature for the purpose of carrying out its contracts

for perpetual care, and without which the contracts

issued could never be carried to completion, do not

fall within the definition of gross income as de-

fined in section 233(a) and 213 of the Revenue Act

of 1918.

(b) The taxpayer sells nothing upon which a

gain can be made, to a person who holds a contract

for perpetual care. (Ex. ''A.")

(c) No part of the Reserve for Maintenance can

be diverted by the Directors from this fund to any

other fund, or for the general use of the corpora-

tion.

(d) The taxpayer, as a trustee, can exercise no

discretion as to the distribution of the funds ac-

cumulated from perpetual care contracts. It is

bound to perform a definite service with the fund,

and from this service there can be no gain which

would be taxable income.

(e) Without this Reserve for Maintenance, the

taxpayer could never carry out the terms of its

contracts; the fund is a necessity to guarantee the

fulfillment of the taxpayer's obligation. Therefore,

this fund, set aside for a specific and necessary pur-

pose, is not, and never can become, a gain or profit
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to the corporation. There being no element of

profit, there can be no taxable income.

[6] (f) A study of the contracts indicate that

what is actually sold is the right to use a vault or

niche assigned to the purchaser forever, but such

vault or niche remains in the custody and care of

the association. The corporation, in addition, ob-

ligates itself to maintain the vault or niche for the

purchaser, without expense, for an unlimited period

of time, specified as "forever" in the contract itself.

Under these conditions, it is clearly erroneous to

allocate the entire receipts from the sale as a profit

in the year contract is made and the money col-

lected. It can surely not be construed that the

money received for a service which will extend

over a long period of time, the cost of which service

cannot be determined at the date the money is paid,

is a realized profit as of the date so received. Yet

this is the contention of the Commissioner.

(g) We are content to allow the Reserve for

Maintenance to be considered sufficient to carry out

the contracts of the corporation, and to return the

80% of the gross sales as taxable income. If this

cannot be done, we ask that the Board determine

the contract to be a lease over a long period, and

the payments received be construed as rentals, paid

in advance, and as such to be included in profits

only as realized, over a period of time which might

approximate 100 years. This adjustment might

give the needed relief. This procedure is suggested

only in the event that relief is otherwise impossible.
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WHEREFORE, the taxpayer respectfully prays

that this Board may hear and determine its ap-

peal.

GEO. W. JOSEPH,
Counsel for Taxpayer,

Corbett Building, Portland, Oregon.

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah,—ss.

Geo. W. Baldwin, being duly sworn, says that he

is vice-president of the Portland Cremation Asso-

ciation, above named, and as such is duly authorized

to verify the foregoing petition; that he has read

the said petition, or had the same read to him, and

is familiar with the statements therein contained,

and that the facts therein stated are true, except

such facts as are stated to be upon information and

belief, and those facts he believes to be true.

GEO. W. BALDWIN.

Sworn to before me this 30 day of November,

1925.

[Seal] E. V. LITTLEFIELD,
Notary Public.

My commission expires March 22, 1929.



Commissioner of Internal Revenue. 13

[7] Nov. 3, 1925.

IT:E:SM-60D.

RJR:B-17263.

Portland Cremation Association,

E. 14tli & Bybee,

Portland, Oregon.

Sirs:

An audit of your income and profits tax return

for tlie year ended December 31, 1919, has resulted

in the determination of a deficiency in tax of $5,-

764.69, as shown in the attached statement.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 274

of the Revenue Act of 1924, you are allowed 60 days

from the date of mailing of this letter within which

to file an appeal to the United States Board of Tax

Appeals contesting in whole or in part the correct-

ness of this determination.

Where a taxpayer has been given an opportunity

to appeal to the United States Board of Tax Ap-

peals and has not done so within the 60 days pre-

scribed and an assessment has been made, or where

a taxpayer has appealed and an assessment in ac-

cordance with the final decision on such appeal has

been made, no claim in abatement in respect of

any part of the deficiency will be entertained.

If you acquiesce in this determination and do

not desire to file an appeal, you are requested to

sign the inclosed agreement consenting to the assess-

ment of the deficiency and forward it to the Com-

missioner of Internal Revenue, Washington, D. C,

for the attention of IT :E :SM :60D—RJR :B-17263.



14 Portland Cremation Association vs.

In the event that you acquiesce in a part of the de-

termination, the agreement should be executed with

respect to the items agreed to.

Respectfully,

D. H. BLAIR,
Commissioner.

By C. R. NASH,
Assistant to the Commissioner.

Inclosures

:

Statements.

Agreement—Form A.

STATEMENT.

IT:E:SM:60D.

RJR:B-17263.

In re: PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
TION, E. 14th & Bybee, Portland, Oregon.

Deficiency

1919 $5764.69

Further explanation of the adjustment is shown

in Bureau letters dated February 5, 1923, and May
22, 1925.

After a careful review of your protest and of all

the evidence submitted in support of your conten-

tions, you are advised that [8] the Bureau holds

that an audit of your case discloses the fact that

your profits tax as computed under Section 301 is

not in excess of the average profits tax paid by a

group of representative concerns engaged in a like

or similar trade or business to that of your com-

pany. Accordingly, the conclusions set forth in

the above-mentioned letters are sustained.
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[9] February 5, 1923.

IT:CA:Ms-2501.

JM.

Portland Cremation Association,

E. 14th St. & Bybee Avenue,

Portland, Oregon.

Sirs:

An examination of your income tax return for

the year 1919 discloses an additional tax liability

for the year 1919 aggregating $5764.69, and over-

assessment for the year amounting to $

as shown in detail in the attached statement.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 250

(d) of the revenue Act of 1921, you are granted

thirty days within which to file an appeal and show

cause or reason why this tax or deficiency should

not be paid. No particular form of appeal is re-

quired, but if filed it must set forth specifically the

exceptions upon which it is taken, shall be under

oath, contain a statement that it is not for the pur-

pose of delay, and the facts and evidence upon

which you rely must be iiilly stated. The appeal,

if filed, must be addressed to the Commissioner of

Internal Revenue, Washington, D. C, for the spe-

cific attention of IT :CA :Ms, 2501-JM, and will be

referred to the Income Tax Unit before trans-

mittal to the agency designated for the hearing of

such appeals.

You may, if you desire, request a conference be-

fore the Income Tax Unit in connection with the

appeal, to be held within the period prior to the

expiration of five days after the time prescribed
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for the filing of the appeal. If the Income Tax
Unit is unable to concede the points raised in your
appeal, it will be transmitted, together with the

recommendation of the Income Tax Unit, to such

agency as the Commissioner may designate for final

consideration.

Where a taxpayer has been given an opportunity

to appeal and has not done so, as set forth above,

and an assessment has been made, or where a tax-

payer has appealed and an assessment in accordance

with the final decision on such appeal has been

made, no claim in abatement of the assessment will

be entertained.

Payment should not be made until a bill is re-

ceived from the Collector of Internal Revenue for

your district, and remittance should then be made to

him.

Respectfully,

E. W. CHATTERTON,
Deputy Commissioner,

By M. R. CLUTE,
Head of Division.
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STATEMENT.

Feb. 5, 1923.

IT:CA:Ms.

2501-JM.

[10] In re: PORTLAND CREMATION ASSO-
CIATION, E. 14tli St. & Bybee Ave., Port-

land, Oregon.

Additional Tax—$5764.69.

The above additional tax is due to increasing net

income by the following amounts

:

Expenditure for Carpet and Iron Basket $ 94 . 22

Deduction from Gross Sales for Mainte-

nance Fund $12827.16

Total addition to net income $12921.38

The first two items are capital expenditures.

The charge to Reserve for Maintenance, $12,-

827.16 is not a proper deduction from gross income.

[11] May 22, 1925.

IT:E:SM
RLC-B-17263

Sirs

:

An audit of your income and profits tax return

for the year 1919, has resulted in the determination

of a deficiency in tax of $5,764.69 as shown by Bu-

reau letter dated February 5, 1923.

You are granted 30 days from the date of this

letter within which to present a protest, supported
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by additional evidence or brief, against this deter-

mination of a deficiency. Any additional evidence
submitted should be under oath. Upon request
submitted within the period mentioned, you will

also be granted a hearing in the Bureau with refer-

ence to the matter.

A request for a hearing should contain (a) the
name and address of the taxpayer; (b) in the case
of a corporation, the name of the State of incorpora-
tion; (c) a designation by date and symbol of the
notice or notices with respect to which the hearing
is desired; (d) a designation of the year or years
involved and a statement of the amount of tax in
dispute for each year; (e) an itemized schedule of
the findings of the Unit to which the taxpayer takes
exception; and (f) a summary statement of the
grounds upon which the taxpayer relies in connec-
tion with each exception.

If, after consideration of any additional evidence
submitted and any arguments advanced by you, a
deficiency is finally determined by the Bureau to be
due from you, you will, in accordance with the pro-
visions of Section 274 of the Revenue Act of 1924,
be advised by registered mail of the final determi-
nation of the Commissioner as to the amount of the
deficiency, and allowed 60 days from the mailing
of the letter in which to file an appeal to the United
States Board of Tax Appeals in the event you do
not acquiesce in such final determination.

If you acquiesce in the determination of a defi-

ciency as disclosed in this letter and the accompany-
ing statements, you are requested to sign the in-
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closed agreement consenting to the assessment of

such deficiency, and forward it to the Commissioner

of Internal Revenue, Washington, D. C, for the

attention of IT :E :SM RLC :B-17263. In the event

that you acquiesce in a part of the determination,

the agreement should be executed with respect to

the items agreed to.

Respectfully,

(Signed) J. G. BRIGHT,
Deputy Commissioner.

Inclosures

:

Statements

Agreement—Form A

STATEMENT.

IT:E:SM.

RLC:B-17263.

In re: PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-

TION, East 14th Street & Bybee Ave., Port-

land, Oregon.

[12] 1919

Deficiency in Tax $5,764.69.

You are advised that after careful consideration

and review your application under the provisions of

Section 327 for assessment of your profits tax as

prescribed by Section 328 of the Revenue Act of

1918, has been denied in view of the fact that it is

found that your profits tax as computed under the

provisions of Section 301 is not in excess of the

average profits tax paid by a group of representa-

tive concerns which in the aggregate, may be said

to be engaged in a like or similar trade or business

to that of your company.
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In accordance with the above action the additional
tax of $5,764.69 as shown by Bureau letter dated
February 5, 1923, is affirmed.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing petition

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[13] Filed Jan. 22, 1926. United States Board
of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 10037.

In re: Appeal of PORTLAND CREMATION AS-
SOCIATION, East 14th St. and Bybee Ave-
nue, Portland, Oregon.

ANSWER.
The Commissioner of Internal Revenue by his

attorney, A. W. Gregg, Solicitor of Internal Reve-
nue, for answer to the petition of the above-named
taxpayer, admits, denies and avers, as follows

:

(1) Admits the allegations contained in para-
graphs 1 and 3 and the first sentence of para-
graph 2.

(2) Admits that taxpayer's income for 1919 was
increased by the amount of $12,827.16 representing
amounts set up on its books for perpetual mainte-
nance.
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(3) Admits that in 1913 a 10 per cent reserve

for maintenance was set up by the Board of Direc-

tors which amount was increased to 20 per cent in

1919. It is alleged that the contracts with the hold-

ers of niches and vaults referred to in the petition

do not create a trust fund for perpetual mainten-

ance but merely obligate the taxpayer to perpetually

maintain the niches and vaults.

(4) Denies each and every other material alle-

gation of fact contained in the petition.

PROPOSITION OF LAW.

The taxpayer has not set apart a trust fund for

perpetual maintenance but has merely obligated

itself by enforceable contract to maintain the niches

and vaults. (See Appeal of Springdale Cemetery

Association decided December 21, 1925.)

[14] WHEREFORE it is prayed that taxpay-

er's petition be dismissed and the appeal denied.

A. W. GREGG,
Solicitor of Internal Revenue, Attorney for Com-

missioner of Internal Revenue.

Of Counsel:

A. H. FAST,
Special Attorney, Bureau of Internal Reve-

nue.

Now, December 7, 1928, the following answer cer-

tified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.
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[15] Filed Dec. 27, 1926. United States Board
of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 22158.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

PETITION.

The above-named petitioner hereby petitions for a
redetermination of the deficiency set forth by the
Commissioner of Internal Revenue in his notice of
deficiency (IT:CA:2554-16-60D) dated Novem-
ber 15, 1926, and as a basis of his proceedings al-

leges as follows

:

1. The petitioner is a corporation organized
under the laws of the State of Oregon, with its prin-
cipal office and place of business located at East 14th
Street and Bybee Avenue, Portland, Oregon.

2. The notice of deficiency (a copy of which is

attached and marked Exhibit "A") was mailed to

the taxpayer on November 15, 1926.

3. The tax in controversy are income taxes for
the calendar year of 1922, and for two thousand one
hundred ninety-two dollars and twenty-five cents

($2,192.25).



Commissioner of Internal Revenue. 23

4. The determination of tax set forth in notice

of deficiency is based upon the following error

:

(a) This taxpayer has an incinerator plant for

the cremation of human bodies, and constructs,

maintains and operates columbaria, or niches, for the

preservation of the ashes of the remains so inciner-

ated; it also erects, maintains and operates vaults

for the reception and burial of human remains not

incinerated.

(b) The vaults and niches referred to are sold

under contracts providing for perpetual care and

maintenance therefor. Copies of the deeds or con-

tracts covering the sale of niches and vaults and the

agreement for perpetual care are hereto attached,

marked Exhibit "B."

[16] (c) In order to carry out the terms of the

contracts this taxpayer, has for a long period of

time, set aside into a maintenance fund twenty

per cent of the sum received for the sales of vaults

and niches. This action was taken by authority and

under instructions of the stockholders of the cor-

poration; it having been determined that this

amount was necessary and adequate to maintain the

vaults and niches sold in accordance with the terms

of sale and guarantees thereon.

(d) An inspection of the plant of the taxpayer

reveals the fact that several units have been con-

structed at a large cost, and that the niches and

vaults in such units after being disposed of bring

no further income to the corporation from the date

so disposed of to the end of time. Each unit when

disposed of and in use, not only ceases to be an asset
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to the corporation, but at once becomes an actual

and a continuing liability increasing annually with
the age of the unit buildings.

(e) Due to the peculiar nature of the business

and the necessity inherent to fulfill the sacred trusts

imposed by the contracts of sale themselves, the es-

tablishment of an adequate maintenance fund is ab-

solutely imperative. In no other manner can fur-

ther care of the trusts be assured.

(f) There is no element of profit in the estab-

lishment of this taxpayer's Reserve for Maintenance
and it is in no sense taxable income.

(g) The principle permitting the establishment

of a duly authorized maintenance fund, properly
treated as a trust fund has been established in the

case of Cemetery Associations by decisions of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals concurred in

by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue. While
this taxpayer is not a Cemetery Association, still its

obligations to properly maintain its vaults and
niches sold under the contracts referred to are simi-

larly binding. This taxpayer, however owing to

the construction of its plant, requires a larger Re-
serve for Maintenance than would be necessary in

an ordinary Cemetery Association. Reference is

made to Docket No. 293, Decision 713, of the United
States Board of Tax Appeals in the case of the Los
Angeles Cemetery Association.

(h) The sums received by the corporation for

the Reserve for Maintenance are and always have
been treated as a trust fund. No part of the Re-
serve for Maintenance can be diverted by the Di-
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rectors from this fund to any other fund or for the

general use of the corporation. Such trust funds

must at all times be used only for the puii^ose of

carr3dng out the written contracts and guarantees of

the petitioner.

[17] 6. Wherefore the petitioner prays that

this Board may hear the proceedings and determine

that the Reserve for Maintenance in the sum of sev-

enteen thousand five hundred thirty-eight dollars

and three cents ($17,538.03) be not included in the

ordinary business and net income of this taxpayer

for the calendar year 1922; that there is no defi-

ciency due from the petitioner for the year 1922.

(Signed) GEO. W. JOSEPH,
Counsel for Petitioner,

Yeon Building, Portland, Oregon.

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah,—ss.

E. M. Welch, being duly sworn, states that he is

president of the Portland Cremation Association,

the petitioner named in the foregoing petition, and

as such is duly authorized to verify the foregoing

petition and is familiar with the statements therein

contained and that the facts therein stated are true.

E. M. WELCH.

Subscribed to before me this 20th day of Decem-

ber, A. D. 1926.

[Seal] E. V. LITTLEFIELD,
Notary Public for Oregon.

Commission expires Mar. 22, 1929.
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[18] EXHIBIT "A"

TREASURY DEPARTMENT, WASHINGTON.

Office of

Commissioner of Internal Revenue

IT :GA :2554-l&-60D

November 15, 1926.

Portland Cremation Association,

East 14th and Bybee Avenue,

Portland, Oregon.

Sirs:

The determination of your income tax liability

for the year 1922, as set forth in office letter dated

September 23, 1926, disclosed a deficiency in tax

amounting to $2,192.25, as shown in the attached

statement.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 274

of the Revenue Act of 1926, you are allowed 60 days

from the date of mailing of this letter within which

to file a petition for the redetermination of this de-

ficiency. Any such petition must be addressed to

the United States Board of Tax Appeals. Earle

Building, Washington, D. C, and must be mailed

in time to reach the Board within the 60-day period,

not counting Sunday as the sixtieth day.

Where a taxpayer has been given an opportunity

to file a petition with the United States Board of Tax

Appeals and has not done so within the 60 days pre-

scribed and an assessment has been made, or where a
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taxpayer has filed a petition and an assessment in

accordance with the final decision on such petition

has been made, the unpaid amount of the assessment

must be paid upon notice and demand from the

Collector of Internal Revenue. No claim for abate-

ment can be entertained.

If you acquiesce in this determination and do not

desire to file a petition with the United States Board

of Tax Appeals, you are requested to execute a

waiver of your right to file a petition with the

United States Board of Tax Appeals on the inclosed

Form A, and forward it to the Commissioner of In-

ternal Revenue, Washington, D. C, for the attention

of IT:GA:2554-16-60D.

In the event that you acquiesce in a part of the

determination, the waiver should be executed with

respect to the items to which you agree.

Respectfully,

D. H. BLAIR,
Commissioner.

By C. R. NASH,
Assistant to the Conmiissioner.

Inclosures

:

Statement

Form A
Form 882
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[19] STATEMENT.

IT:GA:2554-16-60D.

In re: PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
TION, East 14tla and Bybee Avenue, Portland,

Oregon.

Year Deficiency in Tax.

1922 $2,192.25.

Net income reported on return $30,324.85

Add:

Addition to reserve for maintenance 17,538.03

Net income corrected $47,862 . 88

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT.

Additions to the reserve for maintenance are held

to constitute taxable income. (Article 541, Regu-

lations 62.)

COMPUTATION OF TAX.

Net income subject to tax at 121/2% $47,862.88

Tax liability $ 5,982.86

Tax assessed 3,790.61

Deficiency in tax $ 2,192.25

Your protest dated October 8, 1926, has been con-

sidered and your contentions relative to the addition

to reserve for maintenance must be denied. This

decision is based upon a ruling made by the Bu-

reau in connection with your return for the year

1919. In this decision it was held that the in-

crease in the reserve for maintenance was taxable

income.
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Payment should not be made until a bill is re-

ceived from the Collector of Internal Revenue for

your district, and remittance should then be made

to him.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing petition

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[20] Filed Feb. 26, 1927. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 22158.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

ANSWER.

The Commissioner of Internal Revenue by his at-

torney A. W. Gregg, General Counsel, Bureau of

Internal Revenue, for answer to the petition of

the above-named taxpayer, admits and denies as

follows

:

1. Admits the allegations contained in paragraph

1 of the petition.

2. Admits the allegations contained in para-

graph 2 of the petition.
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3. Admits the allegations contained in para-

graph 3 of the petition.

4. Admits the allegations contained in subpara-

graphs (a) and (b) of paragraph 4 of the petition.

Denies each and every other material allegation

of fact contained in the petition.

WHEREFORE, it is prayed that the Commis-

sioner's determination be approved and that the

petition be dismissed and the appeal denied.

A. W. GREGG,
General Counsel,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Of Counsel:

JULIAN G. GIBBS,
Special Attorney,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing answer

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[21] Filed Feb. 9, 1927. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 23912.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.
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PETITION.

The above-named petitioner hereby petitions for

a redetermination of the deficiency set forth by the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue in his notice

of deficiency (IT :E :SM :60D-RCH-C-30414-D-

30415), dated January 18, 1927, and as a basis of

his proceedings alleges as follows:

1. The petitioner is a corporation organized

under the laws of the State of Oregon, with its

principal office and place of business located at East

14th Street and Bybee Avenue, Portland, Oregon.

2. The notice of deficiency (a copy of which is

attached and marked Exhibit "A") was mailed to

the taxpayer on January 18, 1927.

3. The taxes in controversy are income taxes for

the calendar year 1920, forty-four hundred two and

68/100 dollars, and for the calendar year 1921,

forty-five hundred nineteen and 65/100 dollars ; the

total for the two years being eighty-nine hundred

twenty-two and 33/100 dollars.

4. The determination of tax set forth in notice

of deficiency is based upon the following error:

[22] (a) This taxpayer has an incinerator plant

for the cremation of human bodies, and constructs,

maintains and operates columbaria or niches, for

the preservation of the ashes of the remains so

incinerated; it also erects, maintains and operates

vaults for the reception and burial of human re-

mains not incinerated.

(b) The vaults and niches referred to are sold
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under contracts providing for perpetual care and

maintenance therefor. Copies of the deeds or con-

tracts covering the sale of niches and vaults and

the agreement for perpetual care are hereto at-

tached, marked Exhibit "B."

(c) In order to carry out the terms of the con-

tracts this taxpayer, has for a long period of time,

set aside into a maintenance fund twenty per cent

of the sum received for the sales of vaults and

niches. This action was taken by authority and

under instructions of the stockholders of the corpo-

ration; it having been determined that this amount

was necessary and adequate to maintain the vaults

and niches sold in accordance with the terms of

sale and guarantees thereon.

(d) An inspection of the plant of the taxpayer

reveals the fact that several units have been con-

structed at a large cost, and that the niches and

vaults in such units after being disposed of bring

no further income to the corporation from the date

so disposed of to the end of time. Each unit when

disposed of and in use, not only ceases to be an

asset to the corporation, but at once becomes an

actual and a continuing liability increasing annually

with the age of the unit buildings.

(e) Due to the peculiar nature of the business

and the necessity inherent to fulfill the sacred trusts

imposed by the contracts of sale themselves, the

establishment of an adequate maintenance fund is

absolutely imperative. In no other manner can

further care of the trusts be assured.

(f ) There is no element of profit in the establish-
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ment of this taxpayer's Reserve for Maintenance

and it is in no sense taxable income.

[23] (g) The principle permitting the establish-

ment of a duly authorized Maintenance Fund, prop-

erly treated as a trust fund has been established in

the case of Cemetery Associations by decision of

the United States Board of Tax Appeals concurred

in by the Commissioner of Internal Revenue. While

this taxpayer is not a Cemetery Association, still

its obligations to properly maintain its vaults and

niches sold under the contracts referred to are simi-

larly binding. This taxpayer, however, owing to

the construction of its plant, requires a larger Re-

serve for Maintenance than would be necessary

in an ordinary Cemetery Association. Reference

is made to Docket No. 293, Decision 713, of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals in the case

of the Los Angeles Cemetery Association; Docket

No. 3000, Decision 869, Greenwood Cemetery Asso-

ciation ; Docket No. 437, Decision 1634, The Metaire

Cemetery Association.

(h) The sums received by the corporation for the

Reserve for Maintenance are and always have been

treated as a trust fund. No part of the Reserve

for Maintenance can be diverted by the Directors

from this fund to any other fund or for the general

use of the corporation. Such trust funds must at

all times be used only for the purpose of carrying

out the written contracts and guarantees of the peti-

tioner.

6. Wherefore, the petitioner prays that this

Board may hear the proceedings and determine that
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the Reserve for Maintenance set aside by this tax-

payer be not included in the ordinary business and

net income of this taxpayer for the calendar years

1920 and 1921 ; that there is no deficiency due from

the petitioner for the years 1920 and 1921.

E. V. LITTLEFIELD,
Counsel for Petitioner.

Yeon Building, Portland, Oregon.

[24] State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah,—ss.

Geo. W. Baldwin, being duly sworn, states that

he is vice-president of the Portland Cremation

Association, the petitioner named in the foregoing

petition, and as such is duly authorized to verify

the foregoing petition; that he is familiar with the

statements therein contained, and that the facts

therein stated are true.

GEO. W. BALDWIN.

Subscribed and sworn to this 3d day of February,

1927.

[Seal] E. V. LITTLEFIELD,
Notary Public for Oregon.

My commission expires March 22, 1929.
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[25] EXHIBIT "A."

TREASURY DEPARTMENT,

WASHINGTON.

Office of

Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

January 18, 1927.

It:E:SM:60D.

RCH-C-30414.

D-30415.

Portland Cremation Association,

East 14tli Street and Bybee Avenue,

Portland, Oregon.

Sirs:

An audit of your income and profits tax returns

for the calendar years 1920 and 1921 has resulted in

the determination of deficiencies in tax of $4,402,68

and $4,519.65, respectively, as shown in Bureau letter

dated September 22, 1926.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 274

of the Revenue Act of 1926, you are allowed 50

days from the date of mailing of this letter within

which to file a petition for the redetermination of

this deficiency. Any such petition must be ad-

dressed to the United States Board of Tax Appeals,

Earle Building, Washington, D. C, and must be

mailed in time to reach the Board within the 60-day

period, not counting Sunday as the sixtieth day.

Where a taxpayer has been given an opportunity

to file a petition with the United States Board of
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Tax Appeals and has not done so within the 60

days prescribed and an assessment has been made,

or where a taxpayer has filed a petition and an

assessment in accordance with the final decision on

such petition has been made, the unpaid amount of

the assessment must be paid upon notice and de-

mand from the Collector of Internal Revenue. No
claim for abatement can be entertained.

If you acquiesce in this determination and do not

desire to file a petition with the United States Board

of Tax Appeals, you are requested to execute a

waiver of your right to file a petition with the

United States Board of Tax Appeals on the en-

closed Form A, and forward it to the Commissioner

of Internal Revenue, Washington, D. C, for the

attention of IT:E:SM:60D:RCH-C-30414-D-30,-

415. In the event that you acquiesce in a part of the

determination, the waiver should be executed with

respect to the items to which you agree.

Respectfully,

D. H. BLAIR,
Commissioner,

By C. R. NASH,
Assistant to the Commissioner.

Inclosures

:

Statement.

Form A.

Form 882.
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[26] STATEMENT.

IT:E:SM:60D.

RCH-C-30414.

D-30415.

Ill re: PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
TION, East 14th Street and Bybee

Avenue, Portland, Oregon.

Deficiency

Year. In Tax.

1920 $4,402.68

1921 4,519.65

Total $8,922.33

Reference is made to your protest dated October

7, 1926, against the inclusion of increases in a main-

tenance fund in your taxable net income as shown

in Bureau letters dated June 9, 1926, and Septem-

ber 22, 1926.

After a careful review of your protest and all

the evidence submitted in support of your conten-

tions, you are advised that the Bureau holds that

the information on file is insufficient to warrant

the exclusion from income of the items in question.

It is stated in your protest that the question of the

treatment of the additions to the maintenance fund

is now before the United States Board of Tax

Appeals with respect to an earlier year. It is

noted, however, that no decision has yet been made

by that Board; no allowance has, therefore, been
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made on account of your protest covering the years

1920 and 1921.

The conchisions of which you were advised in

Bureau letter dated September 22, 1926, are, there-

fore, sustained.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing petition

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[27] Filed Mar. 19, 1927. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 23912.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Portland, Oregon,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

ANSWER.

The Commissioner of Internal Revenue, by his

attorney, A. W. Gregg, General Counsel, Bureau

of Internal Revenue, for answer to the petition of

the above-named taxpayer, admits and denies as

follows

:

1. Admits the allegations contained in para-

graph (1) of the petition.
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2. Admits the allegations contained in para-

graph (2) of the petition.

3. Admits the allegations contained in para-

graph (3) of the petition.

4. Admits the allegations contained in sub-para-

graphs (a) and (b) of paragraph (4) of the peti-

tion.

Denies each and every other material allegation

of fact contained in the petition.

WHEREFORE, it is prayed that the Commis-

sioner's determination be approved and that the

petition be dismissed and the appeal denied.

A. W. GREGG,
General Counsel,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Of Counsel:

SHELBY S. FAULKNER,
Special Attorney, Bureau of Internal

Revenue.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing Answer

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. L. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[28] U. S. Board of Tax Appeals. Filed at

Hearing, Apr. 18, 1927. Div. 7. Docket 10037,

22158, 22912.
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The United States Board of Tax Appeals.

No. 10,037.

Appeal of PORTLAND CREMATION ASSO-
CIATION, Portland, Oregon.

STIPULATION OF FACTS.

It is stipulated as follows by the petitioner and

the respondent:

1. The petitioner is a corporation for profit or-

ganized under the general corporation laws of

Oregon. By its charter its duration is perpetual.

Its powers are set out as follows in its charter

:

"The enterprise, business, pursuit and occu-

pation in which this corporation proposes to

engage is that of building, constructing, main-

taining and operating crematories and colum-

baria and conducting the business of inciner-

ating human remains, the burial and perpetual

care of the ashes resulting therefrom; and,

in connection therewith, to establish, maintain

and conduct the business of funeral directors

and undertakers. Said corporation shall also

have power to issue, sell and dispose of certifi-

cates entitling the holder thereof to one cre-

mation. And for any and all of such pur-

poses, said corporation shall have power to

acquire and take, by purchase, lease, donation,

devise, or otherwise, the necessary land, real

estate, or personal property. And said corpo-

ration, for any of its said corporate purposes.
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shall have power to borrow money and to issue

therefor its promissory notes."

[29] 2. The petitioner during all of the years

1919, 1920, 1921 and 1922, was engaged in the busi-

ness of operating a crematorium in the city of Port-

land, Oregon, for the incineration of human re-

mains and owning and operating a building in which

were niches for the repository of urns containing

the ashes of incinerated human bodies and vaults

for the burial of the dead.

3. During all of said years petitioner sold niches

and vaults for the aforesaid purposes and gave to

purchasers deeds covering such niches and vault

spaces, such deeds being in the form of the drafts of

deed attached hereto marked respectively Exhibit 1

and Exhibit 2 ; Exhibit 1 covering niches and Ex-

hibit 2 covering vaults.

4. During all of said years petitioner placed in

a permanent maintenance fund 20 per centum of

the gross selling price of all urns, niches and vaults

sold by it, the amounts placed in said fund for each

of said years being as follows

:

1919 $12,827.16

1920 17,906.20

1921 17,076.73

1922 17,558.03

5. At a meeting of the directors held on March

4, 1913, the following resolution was adopted:

[30] ''On motion it was ordered by the

board that ten per cent of all receipts for sale

of niches and vaults be set apart as and for a

maintenance fund."
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6. On December 1, 1918, the present stockhold-

ers acquired all of the stock of the petitioner, but

from and after that date until March 3, 1920, there

was no legally constituted Board of Directors and

no legally elected officers, but E. M. Welch, Olive

Jones, and George W. Baldwin acted as the board

of directors and officers of petitioner.

7. No formal meeting of the stockholders was

held from prior to December 1, 1918, until Decem-

ber 11, 1919, upon which latter date a meeting was

held. A copy of the minutes of said meeting is at-

tached hereto as Exhibit 3.

8. No formal meeting of the directors was held

from prior to December 1, 1918, until March 3,

1920, at which date a meeting was held. A copy

of the minutes of said meeting is attached hereto

as Exhibit 4.

9. The said deductions of 20 per centum of the

gross selling price of urns, niches and vaults for the

maintenance fund mentioned in pargraph 4 hereof

were made in 1919 pursuant to informal agreement

of the acting board of directors and officers and

confirmed by the stockholders and directors at the

said meetings mentioned in paragraphs 7 and 8

of this stipulation. In 1920, 1921 and 1922, all

additions to the maintenance fund were [31]

made pursuant to and under authority of the said

resolutions.

10. The income from said fund has been at all

times used for the maintenance and upkeep of the

property so sold, but always through the regular

income and expense accounts of the corporation.
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In other words, the income from the maintenance

fimd was mingled with other income of the peti-

tioner and was expended for maintenance along

with other funds of petitioner. The income from

the maintenance fund was for each of the years

in question credited directly to the profit and loss

account of the corporation.

11. The deeds referred to as Exhibits 1 and 2

do not contain any reference to the maintenance

fund, but all sales were made with the representa-

tion to the purchaser that the covenant to maintain

the property was backed by a permanent mainte-

nance fund and that a portion of the purchase price

paid by such purchaser would be placed in the

maintenance fund. It was also represented to each

purchaser that the maintenance fund could not

and would not be used for any other purpose. No
specific representation was made as to the handling

and control of the funds unless the purchaser made

specific inquiry, in which event he was informed

that the handling and control were with the peti-

tioner.

12. The maintenance and upkeep of the prop-

erty during each of the years in question required

more money than the income [32] from the

maintenance fund. The deficiency was supplied

from the income of the petitioner and not from the

principal of the maintenance fund.

13. On its books of account the petitioner re-

ported as gross sales the amount received from

purchasers of urns, niches and vaults less 20%
thereof which was placed in the maintenance fund,
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and which did not appear as a part of the items

"gross sales."

14. Prior to November 3, 1920, there was no

separate investment account maintained in the pe-

titioner's books for the maintenance fund, but the

amounts in said investment fund were in part

mingled with other assets of the petitioner. On
November 3, 1920, the petitioner invested $29,-

816.51 in United States Liberty Loan Bonds, and

these bonds were carried in an account entitled

' * Investment—Reserve for Maintenance— (Liberty

Bonds, W. S, S., etc.)" There were no changes

in this account to December 31, 1920, at which time

it showed a balance of $29,816.51. Additions to

the investment account representing Liberty Bonds

and War Savings Stamps were made during 1921,

the balance of the account at December 31, 1921,

being $35,548.09, all of which was invested in Lib-

erty Bonds and War Savings Stamps. In 1922

there were added to the account items of Liberty

Bonds, corporate stocks. War Savings Stamps, and

cash, and there was likewise a withdrawal of Lib-

erty Bonds, which left a balance in the account

at December 31, 1922, of $65,348.12, included in

which was a loan of $20,000.00 made by the main-

tenance fund to the petitioner corporation, which

loan was used by petitioner for its corporate pur-

poses.
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[32] 15. The petitioner declared no dividends

during the years 1919, 1920, 1921 and 1922.

CHARLES E. McCULLOCH,
Attorney for Petitioner.

A. W. GREGG,
Attorney for Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

Per S. S. FAULKNER,
Special Attorney.

[34] EXHIBIT No. 1.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,
that Portland Cremation Association, a corpora-

tion, of Portland, Oregon, grantor, in considera-

tion of Dollars ($....) to it paid by

, grantee, the receipt of which is hereby

acknowledged, has bargained and sold and does

hereby grant and convey to said grantee the per-

petual and exclusive right to use for the deposit

and repose of incinerated human remains, niche

numbered . . .
.

, of tier, .... of section . . .
.

, of ....

Chamber, in the Columbarium of Portland Crema-

tion Association situate in the City of Portland,

in the State of Oregon, which right to use said

niche is subject, however, to such reasonable rules

and regulations as now are or may hereafter be pre-

scribed or adopted by said Association for the care

and control of said Columbarium, which care and

control shall at all times rest exclusively in said As-

sociation.

And said grantor does hereby covenant to and

with said grantee and .... heirs to maintain said

Columbarium forever; provided, that if said Asso-
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elation shall abandon its present Columbarium or

the part thereof including the above described niche

and provide new niches to take the place of those

so abandoned, which said Association reserves the

right to do, the said grantee or .... heirs shall then

be entitled to another niche of like price and to

select the same from such thereof as may be un-

sold of such new niches for the use aforesaid, in

lieu of the one hereinbefore described, subject to

said rules and regulations. The prices of such new

niches to be fixed by said Association. Provided

further ; that if the said grantee or .... heirs shall

fail to make such selection of such new niche within

ninety days after the abandonment above mentioned,

said Association is authorized and hereby reserves

the right to make such selection of such new niche

for said grantee or .... heirs, and when such selec-

tion shall be so made it shall be binding upon all

parties hereto or interested in any of said niches.

Said Columbarium shall be open daily from 9

A. M. to 5 P. M. and said grantee and .... heirs

shall, between said hours and subject to the rules

and regulations aforesaid, be admitted thereto for

the purpose of visiting said niche.

It is hereby further agreed that said grantee shall

and will designate in writing delivered to said Asso-

ciation the names of those whose incinerated re-

mains may be deposited in said niche and no other

shall be placed therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said grantor has

caused its corporate name and seal to be hereunto
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signed and set at Portland, Oregon, by its Presi-

dent and Secretary this .... day of , 19 . .

.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
TION,

By ,

President.

By ,

Secretary.

No. 2401.

[35] EXHIBIT No. 2.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS,
that Portland Cremation Association, a Corpora-

tion of Portland, Oregon, grantor, in consideration

of .... Dollars ($....), to it paid, by ,

grantee, has bargained and sold and does hereby

grant and convey unto said grantee the perpetual

and exclusive right to use for the deposit and repose

of human, remains vault No of Tier .... in

Section . . .
.

, Vault Rooms of said Association, in

the City of Portland, Oregon, subject to such rea-

sonable rules and regulations as now are and as may
hereafter be prescribed or adopted by said Associa-

tion, for the care and control of said rooms and the

vaults therein. Which care and control shall at all

times be and rest exclusively in said Association.

Said grantor hereby covenants with said grantee

to maintain said vault forever; Provided, that

if said Association shall abandon its vaults now in

use and erect new vaults to take the place of those

now in use, which said Association hereby reserves
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the right to do, the said grantee or .... heirs shall

then be entitled to another vault of like price and

to select the same from such thereof as may be un-

sold of such new vaults, for the use aforesaid, in

lieu of the one hereinbefore described, subject to

the said rules and regulations. The prices of such

new vaults to be fixed by said Association. Pro-

vided Further, that if the said grantee and ....

heirs shall fail to make such selection of such

new vault within ninety days after such abandon-

ment by this Association of the vaults now in use,

this Association is authorized and hereby reserves

the right to make such selection for said grantee,

and when such selection is so made it shall be bind-

ing upon all parties hereto or interested in any of

said vaults.

Said vault room shall be opened daily from 9

o'clock A. M. to 5 P. M., and when so open the

grantee and .... heirs shall upon application be

admitted thereto for the purpose of visiting said

vault, subject to said rules and regulations.

It is also hereby agreed that said grantee may

by writing delivered to said Association, designate

the names of those whose remains may be placed

in said vault and thereafter no other remains shall

be placed therein.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Association

has caused its corporate name and seal to be here-
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unto signed and set by its President and Secretary,

this .... day of , A. D. 192

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
By

,

TION, President.

By ,

Secretary.

No. 776.

[36] EXHIBIT No. 3.

STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING
of

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION.

A meeting of the stockholders of the Portland

Cremation Association was held at #511 Corbett

Bldg., Portland, Oregon, on Thursday the 11th

day of December, 1919, at the hour of 10:00 o'clock

A. M., there being present the following stockhold-

ers and representing the number of shares of stock,

as follows:

E. M. Welch 364 Shares

W. M. Welch, by E. M. Welch,

proxy 92 Shares

C. R. Welch by E. M. Welch,

proxy 92 Shares

George W. Baldwin 92 Shares

Olive Jones 1 Share

641

All of the capital stock of said corporation be-

ing represented at said meeting excepting one share
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of stock outstanding on the stock books of said

corporation in the name of Lenora Hogue, but

whose address is unknown, said meeting being held

by consent of all of said stockholders above named

excepting the said Lenora Hogue.

E. M. Welch acted as chairman of said meeting

and Olive Jones acted as secretary, whereupon the

chairman announced that there was a vacancy in

the entire Board of Directors of said corporation

by reason of the fact that all [37] of the former

directors had ceased to be stockholders of the cor-

poration and were therefore ineligible to act fur-

ther as directors. Whereupon the chairman an-

nounced that nominations were in order for the

election of a board of five directors, whereupon

the following named persons were unanimously

elected as directors of the corporation to serve

until the next regular annual meeting or until their

successors are elected and qualified:

E. M. Welch, George W. Baldwin, Olive Jones,

W. M. Welch and C. R. Welch.

Whereupon E. M. Welch announced that for a

number of months prior to said meeting he had

acted as president of the corporation without any

legal authority therefor, and that Olive Jones had

acted as secretary of the corporation without any

authority therefor and that himself and Olive

Jones had in the conduct, management and opera-

tion of said business been compelled to execute

certain legal documents for and on behalf of said cor-

poration and had signed said documents as presi-

dent and secretary of said corporation and in par-
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ticular two deeds were executed as and for the

deeds of said corporation, one of which was exe-

cuted in favor of the Portland Railway, Light &

Power Company and another deed executed in

favor of John Clark Estate, and that the execu-

tion and delivery of those deeds was essential to

the business of said corporation and for the best

interest of said corporation; whereupon George

[38] W. Baldwin introduced the following reso-

lution, which was unanimously adopted

:

"RESOLVED that the stockholders of this

corporation ratify and confirm all acts of E, M.

Welch, as President of this corporation, and

Olive Jones, as Secretary of the corporation,

since the 1st day of December, 1919; and,

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the

stockholders at this meeting request that the

Board of Directors of this corporation pass

a resolution further ratifying and confirming

all acts of the said E. M. Welch, as President,

and Olive Jones, as Secretary of the corpora-

tion, and more particularly ratifying and con-

firming the execution and delivery of the deeds

heretofore issued to the Portland Railway,

Light & Power Company and to the John Clark

Estate."

The following resolution was then introduced

and unanimously adopted:

"WHEREAS, at a meeting of the Board of

Directors of this corporation, held on the 4th

day of March, 1913, a resolution was adopted

authorizing and directing that ten per cent, of
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all receipts for niches, urns and vaults be set

aside as a maintenance fund; and,

WHEREAS, ten percent, of said receipts

is not sufficient for said maintenance fund:

NOW, THEREFOEE, be it resolved that

the stockholders recommend to the Board of

Directors that from and after January 1, 1919,

twenty per cent, of the receipts from the sale

of niches, urns and vaults be paid and set

aside to the maintenance fund of this corpora-

tion."

There being no further business the meeting was,

upon motion adjourned.

OLIVE JONES,
Secretary.

E. M. WELCH,
President.

[39] EXHIBIT No. 4.

MEETING OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
of

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION.

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Port-

land Cremation Association was held at 511 Corbett

Bldg., Portland, Oregon, on the 3rd day of March,

1920, at the hour of 10:00 o'clock A. M., there being

present E. M. Welch, George W. Baldwin and Olive

Jones, a majority of the Board of Directors of said

corporation. Directors W. M. Welch and C. R.

Welch having filed with the secretary of the cor-
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poration their consent to said meeting and a waiver

of notice regarding same, whereupon the following

business was transacted:

E. M. Welch presided as the chairman of said

meeting and Olive Jones acted as secretary.

Whereupon the chairman announced that it was

necessary to elect officers of said corporation for the

ensuing year or until their successors are elected

and qualified, whereupon the following directors

were elected as officers of the corporation

:

E. M. WELCH,
President.

GEORGE W. BALDWIN,
Vice-President.

[40] Whereupon the chairman announced that

the next order of business was the appointment of

the following officers, to wit:—Secretary, treasurer

and superintendent.

Whereupon Olive Jones was appointed as secre-

tary and treasurer of the corporation to hold office

during the pleasure of the Board of Directors, and

George W. Baldwin was appointed as superintend-

ent of the corporation to hold office during the

pleasure of the Board of Directors.

Whereupon E, M. Welch stated that he had

acted as president of the corporation since Decem-

ber 1st, 1918, without any legal authority therefor,

and that Olive Jones had acted as secretary of said

corporation without any legal authority therefor

and that in connection with their acts as president

and secretary respectively, of said corporation, that

they had had to execute certain conveyances and



54 Portland Cremation Association vs.

other documents, all of which were for the benefit

of said corporation and that in the transaction of

said business for said corporation they had exe-

cuted two deeds, one to the Portland Railway

Light & Power Company, and another deed to

the John Clark Estate, and that the stockholders

at a meeting held December 11th, 1919, had

ratified and confirmed the acts of himself and Olive

Jones with the request that the Board of Directors

of said corporation further ratify and confirm said

acts, [41] whereupon George W. Baldwin pre-

sented the following resolution and moved its

adoption

:

''RESOLVED, That all acts done by E. M.

Welch acting as president of this corporation,

and Olive Jones acting as secretary of this

corporation since the 1st day of December,

1918, be in all things ratified, confirmed and

approved, and

"Be It Further Resolved, That should any

other conveyances or acquittances be required

in order to ratify or confirm any acts here-

tofore completed by the said E. M. Welch act-

ing as president and Olive Jones acting as sec-

retary that the president and secretary of this

corporation be and they are hereby authorized

and directed to execute any deeds, acquittances

or other documents to fully carry out the rati-

fication or confirmation of said acts."

Said motion was seconded and the same was

unanimously carried.
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Whereupon E. M. Welch announced that since

May 1st, 1919, certain repairs and improvements

had been made upon the property belonging to the

corporation and in said repairs and improvements a

new mausoleiun was under course of construction

and that the work was not yet completed but that

it would cost approximately $50,000.00 to complete

the improvements which have been under course

of construction since May 1st, 1919, but that it was

to the best advantage of said corporation that said

improvements be completed in order that the reve-

nue and earning capacity of the corporation be in-

creased, but that no authorization had been made by

the [42] Board of Directors regarding the ex-

penditure of said sum of money and that he desired

that the Board of Directors authorize the expendi-

ture of said sum of money. Whereupon George W.
Baldwin introduced the following resolution:

"RESOLVED, That the Board of Directors

be and they are hereby authorized to expend

not to exceed the sum of $50,000.00 in making

betterments and improvements and including

the erection of a mausoleimi upon the property

of this corporation, and

"Be It Further Resolved, That the president

and superintendent of this corporation be and

they are hereby authorized and directed to

draw checks in payment of all bills incurred

for said expenditures.

"And Be It Further Resolved, That all acts

taken by the said E. M. Welch prior to this

date regarding the repairs, betterments and im-
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provements and all expenditures thereon be

and they are hereby in all things ratified and

confirmed. '

'

Whereupon said motion was seconded, the same

put and unanimously carried.

Whereupon George W. Baldwin announced that

the by-laws of the corporation were obsolete, and he

thereupon submitted the following by-laws and

moved their adoption.

[43] BY-LAWS
of

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION.

I.

A meeting of the stockholders of this corporation

for the election of directors and for the transaction

of other legitimate business shall be held annually

at the hour of three o'clock P. M., on the first Mon-

day in January each year, commencing with the

year 1921, at the office of the corporation.

Written notice of the time and place of holding

such meeting shall be sent to each stockholder by

mail or telegraph, or delivered to him in person, at

least ten (10) days prior to the time fixed for hold-

ing the same.

Each stockholder shall file in writing with the

secretary his postoffice address.

II.

A special meeting of the stockholders of this cor-

poration may be held upon the call of the board of
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directors, or the secretary of the corporation shall

give notice of such meeting npon the written re-

quest of any number of stockholders representing

not less than one-third of all the subscribed stock in

this corporation. In either case, two days' notice

shall be given in the manner provided for the an-

nual meeting of the stockholders, and said notice

shall state the purpose for which the meeting is

called : PROVIDED, however, that any [44] and

all of the stockholders may by letter or telegraphic

message waive the giving of notice of any and all

special or regular meetings of the stockholders.

III.

Any stockholders may vote by proxy, but such

proxy shall be appointed by telegraph or by a writ-

ing subscribed by each stockholder and filed with

the secretary at or before the time the vote is ten-

dered; such proxy may be for any particular meet-

ing or for all meetings until revoked.

IV.

When a majority of the stock is represented at a

meeting of the stockholders, such meeting shall have

power to transact any business that may properly

come before it, but in case less than a majority of

the stock is represented, the meeting shall have

no power to transact business, except to adjourn to

some other day.

V.

No notice shall be necessary for the holding of

any adjourned meeting of the stockholders or di-

rectors.
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VI.

The board of directors of this corporation shall

consist of five members. Each director shall be a

stockholder of the corporation, and in case a di-

rector shall cease to be a stockholder, he shall like-

wise cease to be a director.

[45] A majority of the directors shall constitute

a quorum for the transaction of business at any and

all meetings of the directors.

A vacancy in said board of directors shall be

filled by the remaining directors, and the director

so elected shall hold office until the next annual

meeting or until his successor is elected and quali-

fied.

VII.

The officers of this corporation shall be a presi-

dent, a vice-president, a secretary, a treasurer and a

superintendent.

One person may hold more than one office if in

the judgment of the board of directors it is advis-

able so to do, and a director may hold one or more

offices together with that of director.

VIII.

At the first meeting of the board of directors

after their election, they shall elect from among their

own number a president and vice-president, who

shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the

stockholders and until their successors are elected

and have qualified.

IX.

At the first meeting of the board of directors

after their election, they shall also appoint a secre-
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tary, a treasurer and a superintendent, who shall

hold office during the pleasure of the directors.

X.

[46] The president shall preside at all meetings

of the stockholders and directors and shall be the

inspector of all elections of directors, and certify

who are elected. He shall also act as inspector of

the voting on any other matter or resolution unless

the meeting appoint special inspectors for such pur-

pose. He shall sign, on behalf of the corporation,

all deeds, contracts and promissory notes, except

when otherwise expressly directed by the board of

directors, and shall have a general supervision over

all the property, business and interests of the cor-

poration, as well as over all its officers, employees

and agents.

XI.

In the absence of the president, his disqualifica-

tion or inability to act, the vice-president shall

possess the powers and discharge the duties of the

president.

XII.

Should the president or vice-president resign,

become disqualified, or be removed, the vacancy so

created shall be filled by the board of directors.

XIII.

The secretary shall keep a fair and correct record

of all the meetings of the stockholders and directors

and other official business of the corporation. He
shall prepare and submit at every meeting of the

stockholders a certified list of all of the stockholders

of the corporation, [47] and of those entitled to
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vote at such meeting, and such list shall be prima

facie evidence of the right to vote. He shall also

produce the stock-book whenever required so to do

by any stockholder. He shall have the custody of

the corporate seal and it shall be his duty to affix

the same to all deeds, contracts, or other documents

executed by the corporation, and attest such deeds,

leases or documents; but he shall not affix said seal

to any instrument, except stock certificates, crema-

tion certificates and certified copies, unless pre-

viously authorized so to do by a resolution of the

board of directors or stockholders. He shall also

give notice of meetings to the stockholders and di-

rectors, and perform such other duties as may be

required of him by the board of directors.

XIV.

The treasurer shall have charge of all the moneys

and securities for money and other assets of the cor-

poration. He shall keep a correct and full account

of all moneys received and disbursed by him as such

treasurer, and of all securities and other assets re-

ceived or delivered by him, in books belonging to the

corporation. He shall deposit all moneys coming

into his hands, that are not required for the imme-

diate current purpose of the corporation, in the

name of the corporation with such bank or banks

as shall be designated by the board of directors.

He shall render to the board of directors at the

regular monthly meetings thereof, or at any other

time that they [48] or the president of this cor-

poration may require it, an account of all his trans-

actions as treasurer and of the financial condition



Commissioner of Internal Revenue. 61

of the corporation, and at the regular annual meet-

ing of the stockholders of the corporation he shall

make a like report for the preceding year. He
shall only disburse the funds of the corporation as

may be directed or ordered by the board of direc-

tors, taking proper vouchers, receipts and acquit-

tances therefor. He shall also perform such other

duties as the board of directors may from time to

time direct.

XV.
All checks, drafts, or orders for the payment of

money, shall be signed by the president or vice-

president, and countersigned by the secretary, and

by no one else unless authorized by the board of

directors. All warrants on the treasurer for the

payment of money shall be signed by the secretary

and countersigned by the president or vice-presi-

dent.

XVI.
The superintendent shall have, subject to the

president and board of directors, general charge

and supervision of the business of the company,

and of its employees, whom he may appoint and dis-

charge at his pleasure and discretion; but notice of

all such appointments or discharges shall be forth-

with given to the president, who shall have power to

[49] suspend action on any appointment or dis-

charge until the next meeting of the board of di-

rectors, when the matter shall be presented to the

board to take action thereon. He shall cause cor-

rect and necessary books of account to be kept of

all business transacted by the corporation. He
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shall, at each monthly meeting of the directors,

submit a statement in writing of the business of
said corporation for the previous month, embracing
in detail all matters of collections and expenditures,

and all purchases made by the corporation. He
shall submit a report of the business of the corpora-
tion at the annual meeting of the stockholders in

each year, which report shall be an exact statement
in detail of the business of the corporation for the

preceding year, embracing all details connected
therewith, and shall also show the gain or loss for
such year. He shall not have power to sign the
name of the corporation to any bill of exchange,
promissory note or other evidence of indebtedness,

nor to incur any indebtedness in its name or for its

account, nor pledge its property, nor its credit as
security for any other corporation or person; and
he shall perform such other duties incident to the
duties of superintendent as the board may from
time to time direct.

XVII.
The board of directors may require any of its

officers to give bonds in such amount as they may
deem best, with [50] security to be approved by
the board, conditioned for the faithful and honest
discharge of the duties of the officer giving such
bond.

XVIII.
The salaries of all officers shall be fixed by the

board of directors, and those of all employees and
agents shall be fixed by the superintendent, subject
to the approval of said board of directors. No of-
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ficer or director of the corporation shall be entitled

to any salary or other compensation for any ser-

vices rendered the corporation, except when fixed

and authorized or approved by resolution of the

board of directors.

XIX.

A special meeting of the board of directors shall

be called by the secretary whenever he is requested

to do so by the president or by a majority of the

directors, by giving notice in writing, either per-

sonally to each director, or by mailing such notice

to his address. This notice shall be given at least

twenty-four hours prior to the holding of such spe-

cial meeting: PROVIDED, that it shall not be

necessary to notify any director who may be out

of the state, and that a meeting may be held at any

time all of the directors are present; and, PRO-

VIDED [51] FURTHER, that any of the di-

rectors may by letter or telegraph message, waive

the giving to them of notice of any or all special or

regular meetings of the board of directors.

XX.

The shares of the capital stock of this corporation

shall be represented by stock certificates signed by

the president and attested by the secretary under

the corporate seal of the corporation.

XXI.

The shares of the capital stock in this corporation

are transferable only on the books of the corpora-

tion by the holder thereof in person, or by attorney,
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upon surrender of the certificate issued therefor,

properly endorsed.

XXII.
The earnings of this corporation shall be trans-

ferred only on its books, according to the order of
the board of directors made at regular or special
meetings, and no dividends shall be paid to stock-
holders, or other disposition of earnings made, ex-
cept upon the order of the board of directors.

XXIII.
No deed, instrument, or contract of any descrip-

tion, purporting to be made on behalf of the cor-
poration, shall be valid unless authorized by the
board of directors, and [52] no instrument shall
be deemed to have been duly executed on behalf
of the corporation unless it shall be sealed with the
corporate seal, signed by the president or by the
secretary.

XXIV.
The seal heretofore adopted and used by this cor-

poration is hereby formally adopted as the seal of
this corporation, an impression thereof being as
follows

:

XXY.
These by-laws may be changed or amended at any

regular or special meeting of the board of directors
of the corporation by a vote of a majority of the
directors.

[53] After a full discussion by the Board of
Directors, said motion to adopt said by-laws was
seconded, and the same was unanimously adopted.
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The following resolution was introduced and

unanimously adopted:

''RESOLVED that the salaries for the presi-

dent of said corporation and for the Super-

intendent of said corporation, during the entire

year of 1919, be fixed at $400.00 per month,

payable monthly."

The following resolution was introduced and

unanimously adopted

:

"WHEREAS, at a meeting of the stockholders

of this corporation, held December 11, 1919, the

following resolution was unanimously adopted

:

'WHEREAS, at a meeting of the Board of

Directors of this corporation, held on the 4th

day of March, 1913, a resolution was adopted

authorizing and directing that ten per cent of

all receipts for niches, urns and vaults be set

aside as a maintenance fund; and,

WHEREAS, ten percent, of said receipts is

not sufficient for said maintenance fund;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that

the stockholders recommend to the Board of

Directors that from and after January 1, 1919,

twenty percent, of the receipts from the sale

of niches, urns and vaults be paid and set

aside to the maintenance fund of this cor-

poration. '

and,

WHEREAS, twenty percent, of the mainte-

nance fund has been set aside in accordance

with said resolution from January 1, 1919

;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that
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from and after the 1st day of January, 1919,

twenty percent, of all receipts from the sale of

niches, urns and vaults be and the same is

hereby set aside to the maintenance fund of

this corporation."

There being no further business, the meeting

was, upon motion, adjourned.

[Seal] OLIVE JONES,
Secretary.

E. M. WELCH,
Chairman.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing stipulation

of facts certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[54] A true copy.

[Seal] Teste: B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET Nos. 10037, 22158, 23912.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Promulgated January 20, 1928.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

Amount set aside by petitioner for perpetual care

of niches, urns, and vaults held to be within gross

income.
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CHARLES E. McCULLOCH, Esq., for the Peti-

tioner.

SHELBY S. FAULKNOR, Esq., for the Respond-

ent.

Deficiencies in income taxes have been determined

for the years 1919, 1920, 1921, and 1922, in the

respective amounts of |5,764.69, $4,402.68, $4,519.65,

and $2,192.25. The facts were stipulated.

FINDINGS OF FACT.

Petitioner was organized under the laws of the

State of Oregon, for the purpose of the construc-

tion, maintenance and operation of crematories and

columbaria and the conducting of the business of

incinerating human remains and the burial and

perpetual care of the ashes resulting therefrom,

and of conducting the business of funeral director

and undertaker. During the years 1919 to 1922,

inclusive, petitioner was engaged in the business

of operating a crematorium in the City of Port-

land, Oregon, for the incineration of human remains

and owning and operating a building in which

were niches for the repository of urns containing

the ashes of incinerated human bodies and vaults

for the burial of the dead.

[55] During the said years petitioner sold niches

and vaults for the aforesaid purposes and gave to

purchasers deeds covering such niches and vault

spaces. The deeds given to purchasers of vaults

and niches were identical in form except as to the

description of the particular niche or vault con-
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veyed, and contained a covenant running to the

grantee and liis heirs that the petitioner would

maintain the cohimbarium containing said niche or

the vault forever.

At a meeting of the directors held on March 4,

1913, the following resolution was adopted:

On motion it was ordered by the board that

ten per cent of all receipts for sale of niches

and vaults be set apart as and for a mainte-

nance fund.

On December 1, 1918, the present stockholders

acquired all of the stock of petitioner, but from and

after that date until March 3, 1920, there was no

legally constituted board of directors and there

were no legally elected officers, but E, M. Welch,

Olive Jones and George W. Baldwin acted as di-

rectors and officers of the petitioner. No formal

meeting of the stockholders was held from the date

of their purchase of the stock until December 11,

1919, at which time the stockholders met and

adopted a resolution ratifying and confirming all

acts after December 1, 1918, of E. M. Welch, as

president, and Olive Jones, as secretary of the

corporation. At this meeting the stockholders also

adopted a resolution recommending to the board

of directors that from and after January 1, 1919,

20 per centum of the receipts from the sale of niches,

urns and vaults be paid and set aside to the mainte-

nance fund of the association, instead of the 10 per

centum theretofore authorized to be set aside, [56]

which 10 per cent, it was recited, was not sufficient

for said maintenance fund.
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On March 3, 1920, there was held a formal meet-

ing of the directors who ratified, confirmed and

approved all acts of E. M. Welch, as president,

and Olive Jones, as secretary, during the period

from December 1, 1918, to the date of the meeting.

The directors adopted a set of by-laws which con-

tained no reference to a maintenance fund. The

directors adopted the following resolution to put

into effect the recommendation of the stockholders

that the maintenance fund be increased:

WHEREAS, at a meeting of the stockholders

of this corporation, held December 11, 1919, the

following resolution was unanimously adopted:

WHEREAS, at a meeting of the Board of

Directors of this corporation held on the 4th

day of March, 1913, a resolution was adopted

authorizing and directing that ten per cent, of

all receipts for niches, urns and vaults be set

aside as a maintenance fund; and

WHEREAS, ten per cent, of said receipts is

not sufficient for said maintenance fund

;

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that

the stockholders recommend to the Board of

Directors that from and after January 1, 1919,

twenty per cent, of the receipts from the sale

of niches, urns and vaults be paid and set

aside to the maintenance fund of this cor-

poration,

and

WHEREAS, twenty per cent, of the mainte-

nance fmid has been set aside in accordance

with said resolution from January 1, 1919

;
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NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that

from and after the 1st day of January, 1919,

twenty per cent, of all receipts from the sale

of niches, urns and vaults be and the same is

hereby set aside to the maintenance fund of

this corporation.

During the years 1919, 1920, 1921, and 1922, peti-

tioner placed in a permanent maintenance fund 20

per centum of the gross selling price of [57] all

urns, niches and vaults sold by it, the amounts placed

In such funds for each of the years being as follows

:

Year Amount
1919 $12,827.16

1920 17,906.20

1921 17,076.73

1922 17,538.03

The deductions of 20 per centum of the gross

selling price of the urns, niches and vaults for the

maintenance fund were made during 1919 pursuant

to informal agreement of the acting board of di-

rectors and officers and confirmed by the stock-

holders and directors as hereinbefore set forth.

During the years 1920, 1921, and 1922, all additions

to the maintenance fimd were made pursuant to

and under authority of the above mentioned reso-

lutions. All sales by the petitioner were made with

the representation to the purchasers that the cove-

nant to maintain the property was backed by a

permanent maintenance fund and that a portion

of the purchase price paid by said purchaser would

be placed in the maintenance fund. It was also

represented to each purchaser that the maintenance
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fund could not and would not be used for any

other purpose. No specific representation was

made as to the handlmg and control of the fund

unless the purchaser made specific inquiry, in which

event he was informed that the handling and con-

trol were with the petitioner. The income from the

maintenance fund has at all times been used for

the maintenance and upkeep of the property sold,

but always through the regular income and ex-

pense accounts of the corporation. The income

from the maintenance fund was mingled with other

income of petitioner and expended for maintenance

along with other funds of petitioner. The income

from the maintenance fund was for each of the

years in question credited directly to the profit

[58] and loss account of petitioner.

The maintenance and upkeep of the property

during each of the years in question required more

money than the income from the maintenance fund.

The deficiency was supplied from the income of the

petitioner and not from the principal of the mainte-

nance fund. Prior to November 3, 1920, there was

no separate investment account maintained in peti-

tioner's books for the maintenance fimd, but the

amounts in said investment fmad were in part

mingled with other assets of the petitioner. On
November 3, 1920, the petitioner invested |29,816.51

in United States Liberty Loan Bonds, and these

bonds were carried in the account entitled "Invest-

ment-Reserve for Maintenance (Liberty Bonds,

W. S. S., etc.)." There were no changes in this

account to December 31, 1920, at which time it
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showed a balance of |29,816.51. Additions to the

investment account representing Liberty Bonds and

War Savings Stamps were made during 1921, the

balance in the account at December 31, 1921, being

135,548.09, all of which was invested in Liberty-

Bonds and War Savings Stamps. In 1922 there

were added to the account items of Liberty Bonds,

corporate stocks, War Savings Stamps and cash,

and there was also a withdrawal of Liberty Bonds,

which left a balance in the account at December 31,

1922, of $65,348.12, included in which was a loan of

$20,000 made by the maintenance fund to the peti-

tioner, which loan was used by the petitioner for

its corporate purposes.

On its books of account the jjetitioner reported

as gross sales the amounts received from the pur-

chase of urns, niches and vaults less 20 per centum

thereof which was placed in the maintenance fund

and which did not appear as a part of the item

"gross sales."

No dividends were declared by the petitioner

during any of the years 1919 to 1922, inclusive.

[59] OPINION.

STERNHAGEN.—All the facts are stipulated,

and thus the Board is limited precisely in the scope

of its consideration. It is contended that a com-

mercial cremation corporation, by voluntarily set-

ting aside a reserve called a "maintenance fund"

for the purpose of performing some of its ordinary

contractual obligations the actual cost of which is

not known, which fund is so free from outside con-



Commissioner of Internal Revenue. 73

straint that the corporation may "borrow" from it

at will and so far as appears may limit its amomit

at will, has created a trust, itself the trustee. It

is not an express trust, so it must be implied. The

implication seems to rest on the covenant in the

deed, the resolution of the directors establishing the

fund, and the salesmen's "representations to pur-

chasers." But these constitute no more than a con-

tractual obligation cognizable at common law and

a means privately adopted by the corporation to ful-

fill it. We can find no ground upon which a court

of equity would imply a trust or administer it. The

decisions of the Board which proceed upon an ex-

press trust either written or oral or under a state

law, are not controlling here, there being neither

words of trust nor public command. And of course

the powers of this Board are such that its holding

does not establish the trust or estop the petitioner

to deny it if a grantee were to seek to enforce a

trust obligation in chancery, as in Bourland vs.

Springdale Cemetery Assn., 158 111. 458, 42 N. E.

86. If it were a trust it would require considera-

tion of section 219, but it does not appear whether

the petitioner had regarded itself as required by

that section to file a return as a trustee.

In our opinion, all of the amounts received by

petitioner were within [60] its gross income, and

there is no warrant for treating any part of it as

a separately identified sum as if petitioner never

received it. Of course such sum as it expends or

incurs annually in the performance of its business

functions, whether of maintenance or otherwise, is

a proper deduction. See Springdale Cemetery
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Assn., 3 B. T. A. 223; Mead Construction Co.,

3 B. T. A. 438.

Reviewed by the Board.

Judgment will be entered on 15 days' notice,

under Rule 50.

SMITH did not participate.

[61] ARUNDELL, Dissenting.—I cannot agree

with the majority opinion, as I think that the

question here involved has been settled by decisions

of the Board in Metairie Cemetery Association vs.

Commissioner, 4 B. T. A. 903 and Inglewood Park

Cemetery Association vs. Commissioner, 6 B. T. A.

386. In the Metairie case contracts were issued to

plot owners providing for perpetual care, but con-

taining no provisions (except in a few cases) as

to the use to which the purchase price of the jDlat

was to be put. It was, however, orally represented

to purchasers that the purchase price was to be

held in trust, and after the taxable years such rep-

resentation was declared of record by formal reso-

lution of the association. The Board there held

that the parol agreement was sufficient to create a

valid trust. In the present case there is, in addi-

tion to the parol agreement, a formal resolution

during the taxable years setting aside the amounts

for perpetual care. In the Metairie case there was

a state law providing that owners of burial j)lots

may convey their plots back to the cemetery com-

pany to hold perpetually in trust. It does not

appear from the findings of fact and opinion of
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the Board that any plats were conveyed to the

association and so it cannot be said that the state

law had anything to do with the ease. In the Ingle-

wood case there was a state law containing manda-

tory provisions with respect to the use of perpetual

care funds and that seems to be the only material

distinction between that case and the one here under

consideration. The presence of a state law for-

bidding the use of perpetual care funds for any

other purpose may aid in establishing the fact of

the existence of a trust, but no one will say that

an equally valid trust may not be created by the

acts of the parties.

The prevailing opinion refers to other "decisions

of the Board which [62] proceed upon an express

trust either written or oral.
'

' None of the decisions

indicate whether they were predicated on the nature

of the trust and they do not say whether as a matter

of law the Board found the trust to be express or

implied. In both the Metairie and Inglewood cases

there were express covenants concerning perpetual

care, but there was nothing, other than oral repre-

sentations to purchasers, as to the fund to be held

in trust. If an express trust can be gathered from

oral representations in these cases, why does not

the same rule apply here? But I do not think it

necessary to decide in any of these cases whether

the trust is express or implied; it is sufficient if

either kind can be found. It has been often held

that no technical language nor specific words are

necessary to create a trust. As is said in Chicago

Ewy. vs. Des Moines Rwy., 254 U. S. 196, 208

:
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''It needs no particular form of words to

create a trust, so there be reasonable certainty

as to the property, the objects, and the bene-

ficiaries. Colton vs. Colton, 127 U. S. 300,

310."

There is here no lack of certainty, as urged by

the respondent. The representations to purchasers

and the deeds given them establish the purpose to

which the funds were to be put and who the bene-

ficiaries were. The records of the corporation de-

termine the amount of the fund.

The acts of the petitioner in representing to

purchasers that it had a permanent maintenance

fund, in covenanting for perpetual care, and in

formally setting aside a specified portion of the

amounts received, we think were sufficient to create

an enforceable trust. In Holmes vs. Dowie, 148

Fed. 634, 638, it is said:

"It is a well recognized principle of equity

that where a person accepts money or prop-

erty to be used by him for the benefit of some

other person or persons, or for the advance-

ment of some lawful enterprise, such money or

property constitutes a trust fund. '

'

[63] The prevailing opinion cites the decision

in Springdale Cemetery Association, 3 B. T. A. 223.

An essential difference between the cases is that in

the Springdale case, it was found as a fact that

:

"The corporation's by-laws contained no pro-

visions for appropriating any part of the re-

ceipts from the sale of lots as such perpetual
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care fund, and no resolution to that effect was

passed by the directors."

Nor does the case of Mead Construction Co., 3

B. T. A. 438, seem to be in point. There the sole

question was whether a certain part of the amount

due the taxpayer for paving work which was with-

held by a minicipality was income to the taxpayer;

there was no question of whether any part of the

amount received by the taxpayer was exempt from

tax.

LANSDON, TRUSSELL and LOVE concur in

this dissent.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing findings of

fact and opinion certified from the record as a true

copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[64] A true copy.

Teste: B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals, Washington.

DOCKET No. 10037.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.
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JUDGMENT.

The respondent having filed a proposed judgment

pursuant to the Board's report of January 20, 1928,

in the above-entitled proceeding, 10 B. T. A. 65, and

hearing thereon having been had after notice and

no one appearing in opposition thereto, it is

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECIDED that

there is a deficiency of $5,764.69 for 1919.

J. M. STERNHAGEN.
Member United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Entered: Apr. 19, 1928.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing judgment

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[65] A true copy.

Teste: B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals, Washington.

DOCKET No. 22158.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.
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JUDGMENT.

The respondent having filed a proposed judgment

pursuant to the Board's report of January 20, 1928,

in the above-entitled proceeding, 10 B. T. A. 65, and

hearing thereon having been had after notice and

no one appearing in opposition thereto, it is

ORDERiED, ADJUDGED and DECIDED that

there is a deficiency of $2,192.25 for 1922.

J. M. STERNHAGEN.
Member United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Entered: Apr. 19, 1928.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing judgment

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[66] A true copy.

Teste: B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals, Washington.

DOCKET No. 23912.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OP INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.



80 Portland Cremation Association vs.

JUDGMENT.

The respondent having filed a proposed judgment

pursuant to the Board's report of January 20, 1928,

in the above-entitled proceeding, 10 B. T. A. 65, and

hearing thereon having been had after notice and

no one appearing in opposition thereto, it is

ORDERED, ADJUDGED and DECIDED that

there are deficiencies of $4,402.68 and $4,519.65 for

1920 and 1921, respectively.

J. M. STERNHAGEN.
Member United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Entered : Apr. 20, 1928.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing judgment

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[67] Filed Oct. 19, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

Before the United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 10037.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION,
a Corporation,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.
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NOTICE OF FILING PETITION FOR RE-

VIEW OF DECISION OF THE UNITED
STATES BOARD OF TAX APPEALS.

To the Above-named Respondent, and to C. M.

CHAREST, General Counsel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue, His Attorney:

Notice is hereby given that Portland Cremation

Association, the above-named petitioner, has filed

with the United States Board of Tax Appeals a

petition for the review of the decision and final

order of redetermination of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals rendered and entered on

April 19, 1928, in the case of Portland Cremation

Association, Petitioner, vs. Commissioner of Inter-

nal Revenue, Respondent, Docket No. 10037.

Dated at Portland, Oregon, this 18th day of Oc-

tober, 1928.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
TION.

By CHARLES E. McCULLOCH and

IVAN F. PHIPPS,
Its Attorneys.

[68] Filed Oct. 18, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

No. .

October Term, 1928.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION, a

Corporation,

Petitioner and Appellant,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent and Appellee.

PETITION FOR REVIEW OF DECISION OF
THE UNITED STATES BOARD OF TAX
APPEALS.

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

:

Portland Cremation Association, pursuant to

the provisions of Section 1001 of the Revenue Act

of 1926, as amended by Section 603 of the Revenue

Act of 1928, presents this, its petition, and respect-

fully prays for the review of the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals rendered and

entered on the 19th day of April, 1928, in Docket

No. 10037, approving a deficiency in the income and

profits taxes of the petitioner for the calendar year

1919, in the [69] amount of $5,764.69, and in

support of its petition for such review respectfully

represents as follows:

I.

The Commissioner of Internal Revenue, by his
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letter dated November 3, 1925, asserted a deficiency

in petitioner's tax liability for the year 1919 in

the sum of $5,764.69. By his letter of November

15, 1926, the Commissioner asserted a deficiency

in petitioner's tax liability for 1922 in the sum

of $2,192.25, and by his letter of January 18, 1927,

the Commissioner asserted deficiencies in the peti-

tioner's tax liability for the years 1920 and 1921

in the respective amounts of $4,402.68 and $4,519.65.

Thereafter, and within the times prescribed by

law, the petitioner filed with the United States

Board of Tax Appeals its petitions requesting the

redetermination of such deficiencies. The proceed-

ings duly came on for hearing on April 18, 1927,

at which time the three proceedings were consoli-

dated for hearing. The proceedings were sub-

mitted to the Board upon a written stipulation of

facts. No witnesses were called and no oral testi-

mony was introduced. Thereafter, and on January

20, 1928, the United States Board of Tax Appeals

made its findings of fact in substantial accordance

with the facts alleged in the petitions and stipu-

lated by the parties, and rendered its opinion ap-

proving the determination of the Commissioner.

The said findings and opinion were reviewed by

the [70] entire Board and upon such review four

members thereof dissented. Thereafter, and on

April 19, 1928, a final order of redetermination ap-

proving the deficiency asserted by the Commis-

sioner for the year 1919 in the sum of $5,764.69

was duly rendered and entered by the United States

Board of Tax Appeals, and likewise on April 19,
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1928, there was rendered and entered a final order

of redetermination approving the deficiency for

1922 in the sum of $2,192.25 (Docket No. 2158),

and on April 20, 1928, a final order of redetermina-

tion was duly rendered and entered approving the

asserted deficiencies for 1920 and 1921 in the re-

spective amounts of $4,402.68 and $4,519.65.

(Docket No. 23912.)

II.

STATEMENT OF THE NATUEE OF THE CON-
TROVERSY.

This case involves income and profits taxes for

the year 1919 and arises under the Revenue Act of

1918.

The controversy between appellant (petitioner

before the Board of Tax Appeals and hereinafter

referred to as the petitioner) and the Commissioner

of Internal Revenue involves the single question

whether the Commissioner properly included in

petitioner's taxable income certain sums received

by petitioner during the year 1919 from sales of

vaults, urns and niches for the burial of the dead

or within which to place the ashes resulting from

the incineration of human remains, which [71]

sums were set aside by petitioner and placed in a

permanent maintenance fund which was to be used

exclusively for the perpetual care and maintenance

of the property so sold and which permanent main-

tenance fund was so used, or whether such sums

so set aside and placed in the permanent mainte-

nance fund constituted a trust fund for the benefit

of purchasers of vaults, urns and niches.
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The facts are not in dispute, having been stipu-

lated in writing by the parties, and the sole question

presented for decision in this proceeding is whether

the facts so stipulated by the parties and found by

the Board of Tax Appeals are sufficient in law to

sustain the decision of the Board of Tax Appeals

affirming the Commissioner's determination. A
consideration of all of the facts so found by the

United States Board of Tax Appeals, is necessarily

involved in the review of the Board's decision.

III.

DESIGNATION OF COURT OF REVIEW.
Petitioner is a corporation with its principal

place of business in the City of Portland, Oregon.

It made its return of annual net income for the

year 1919 to the Collector of Internal Revenue at

Portland, Oregon. The petitioner, being aggrieved

by the said decision and final order of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals, seeks a review thereof

in [72] accordance with the provisions of the

Revenue Act of 1926, as amended by the Revenue

Act of 1928, by the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, within which circuit

is located the office of the Collector of Internal

Revenue at Portland, Oregon.

IV.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR.

The petitioner sets forth the following assign-

ments of error:

1. That the United States Board of Tax Appeals

erred in deciding and holding that those portions
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of the amounts received by petitioner in 1919 from

the sale of niches, urns and burial vaults, which

were set apart for and in a fund for the permanent

maintenance of such jDroperty, were properly in-

cluded in petitioner's income for the year 1919.

2. That the decision and order of redetermina-

tion of the United States Board of Tax Appeals is

in error in that the findings of fact made by said

Board are insufficient to support the said decision

and order of redetermination in that such findings

show that the sum of $12,827.16 set aside by peti-

tioner and placed in its permanent maintenance

fund in the year 1919 did not inure to the benefit of

petitioner but constituted a trust fund for the bene-

fit of purchasers of niches, [73] urns and burial

vaults.

3. That the United States Board of Tax Appeals

erred in rendering its decision in favor of the

respondent.

WHEREFORE, your petitioner prays that this

Honorable Court may review said decision and final

order of redetermination of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals and reserve and set aside

the same.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
TION.

By E. M. WELCH,
President.

CHARLES E. McCULLOCH, and

IVAN F. PHIPPS,
Attorneys for Petitioner and Appellant,

1410 Yeon Building, Portland, Oregon.
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[74] State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah,—ss.

I, E. M. Welch, being first duly sworn, on oath

say that I am president of Portland Cremation

Association, the petitioner and appellant above

named, and that as such officer am authorized to

sign the foregoing petition for review; that I have

read the said petition and know the contents thereof

and the facts set forth therein are true as I verily

believe; that the said petition is filed in good faith

and not for purposes of delay.

E. M. WELCH.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 10th day

of October, 1928.

[Seal] DAVID L. DAVIES,
Notary Public for Oregon.

My commission expires Aug. 28, 1931.

Service of within petition and notice accepted

this 18th day of October, 1928.

C. M. CHAREST,
General Counsel, Bureau of Int. Rev.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing petition

for review certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S, Board of Tax Appeals.

[75] Filed Oct. 19, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.
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Before the United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 22158.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION, a

Corporation,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

NOTICE OF FILING PETITION FOR RE-
VIEW OF DECISION OF THE UNITED
STATES BOARD OF TAX APPEALS.

To the Above-named Respondent, and to C. M.

CHAREST, General Counsel, Bureau of Inter-

nal Revenue, His Attorney

:

Notice is hereby given that Portland Cremation

Association, the above-named petitioner, has filed

with the United States Board of Tax Appeals a

petition for the review of the decision and final

order of redetermination of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals rendered and entered on

April 19, 1928, in the case of Portland Cremation

Association, Petitioner, vs. Commissioner of Inter-

nal Revenue, Respondent, Docket No. 22158.

Dated at Portland, Oregon, this 18th day of

October, 1928.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
TION.

By CHARLES E. McCULLOCH and

IVAN F. PHIPPS,
Its Attorneys.
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[76] In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

No. .

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION, a

Corporation,

Petitioner and Appellant,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent and Appellee.

PETITION FOR REVIEW OF DECISION OF
THE UNITED STATES BOARD OF TAX
APPEALS.

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals, for the Ninth Circuit

:

Portland Cremation Association, pursuant to the

provisions of Section 1001 of the Revenue Act of

1926, as amended by Section 603 of the Revenue

Act of 1928, presents this, its petition, and respect-

fully prays for the review of the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals rendered and

entered on the 19th day of April, 1928, in Docket

No. 22158, approving a deficiency in the income and

profits taxes of the petitioner for the calendar year

1922 in the amount of $2,192.25, and in support of

its petition for such review respectfully represents

as follows:

[77] I.

The Commissioner of Internal Revenue, by his let-

ter dated November 3, 1925, asserted a deficiency in
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petitioner's tax liability for the year 1919 in the sum

of $5,764.69. By his letter of November 15, 1926, the

Commissioner asserted a deficiency in petitioner's

tax liability for 1922 in the smn of $2,192.25, and

by his letter of January 18, 1927, the Commissioner

asserted deficiencies in the petitioner's tax liability

for the years 1920 and 1921 in the respective

amounts of $4,402.68 and $4,519.65. Thereafter, and

within the times prescribed by law, the petitioner

filed with the United States Board of Tax Appeals

its petitions requesting the redetermination of such

deficiencies. The proceedings duly came on for

hearing on April 18, 1927, at which time the three

proceedings were consolidated for hearing. The

proceedings were submitted to the Board upon a

written stipulation of facts. No witnesses were

called and no oral testimony was introduced.

Thereafter, and on January 20, 1928, the United

States Board of Tax Appeals made its findings of

fact in substantial accordance with the facts alleged

in the petitions and stipulated by the parties, and

rendered its opinion approving the determination

of the Commissioner. The said findings and opinion

were reviewed by the entire Board and upon such

review four members thereof dissented. There-

after, and on April 19, 1928, a final order of re-

determination approving the deficiency asserted by

the Commissioner [78] for the year 1919 in the

sum of $5,764.69 was duly rendered and entered by

the United States Board of Tax Appeals, and like-

wise on April 19, 1928, there was rendered and

entered a final order of redetermination approving
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the deficiency for 1922 in the sum of $2,192.25

(Docket No 22158), and on April 20, 1928, a final

order of redetermination was duly rendered and

entered approving the asserted deficiencies for 1920

and 1921 in the respective amounts of $4,402.68 and

$4,519.65. (Docket No. 23912.)

II.

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE
CONTROVERSY.

This case involves income and profits taxes for the

year 1922 and arises under the Revenue Act of 1921.

The controversy between appellant (petitioner be-

fore the Board of Tax Appeals and hereinafter re-

ferred to as the petitioner) and the Commissioner

of Internal Revenue involves the single question

whether the Commissioner properly included in

petitioner's taxable income certain sirnis received

by petitioner during the year 1922 from sales of

vaults, urns and niches for the burial of the dead

or within which to place the ashes resulting from

the incineration of human remains, which sums

were set aside by petitioner and placed in a perma-

nent maintenance fund which was to be used exclu-

sively for the perpetual care and maintenance of

the property so sold and which permanent mainte-

nance fund was so used, or whether such sums [79]

so set aside and placed in the permanent mainte-

nance fund constituted a trust fund for the benefit

of purchasers of vaults, urns and niches.

The facts are not in dispute, having been stipulated

in writing by the parties, and the sole question pre-
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sented for decision in this proceeding is whetlier

the facts so stipulated by the parties and found by
the Board of Tax Appeals are sufficient in law to sus-

tain the decision of the Board of Tax Appeals
affirming the Commissioner's determination. A
consideration of all of the facts so found by the

United States Board of Tax Appeals, is necessarily

involved in the review of the Board's decision.

III.

DESIGNATION OF COURT OF REVIEW.
Petitioner is a corporation with its principal

place of business in the City of Portland, Oregon.
It made its return of annual net income for the year

1922 to the Collector of Internal Revenue at Port-

land, Oregon. The petitioner, being aggrieved by
the said decision and final order of the United
States Board of Tax Appeals, seeks a review thereof

in accordance with the provisions of the Revenue Act
of 1926, as amended by the Revenue Act of 1928, by
the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, within which circuit is located the

office of the Collector of Internal Revenue at Port-

land, Oregon.

[80] IV.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR.
The petitioner sets forth the following assign-

ments of error

1. That the United States Board of Tax Appeals
erred in deciding and holding that those portions of

the amounts received by petitioner in 1922 from
the sale of niches, urns and burial vaults, which
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were set apart for and in a fund for the permanent

maintenance of such property, were properly in-

cluded in petitioner's income for the year 1922.

2. That the decision and order of redetermina-

tion of the United States Board of Tax Appeals is

in error in that the findings of fact made by said

Board are insufficient to support the said decision

and order of redetermination in that such findings

show that the sum of $17,538.03 set aside by peti-

tioner and placed in its permanent maintenance

fund in the year 1922 did not inure to the benefit of

petitioner but constituted a trust fund for the bene-

fit of purchasers of niches, urns and burial vaults.

3. That the United States Board of Tax Appeals

erred in rendering its decision in favor of the re-

spondent.

WHEREFORE, your petitioner prays that this

Honorable Court may review said decision and final

order of redetermination [81] of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals and reverse and set

aside the same.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION.
By E. M. WELCH,

President.

CHARLES E. McCULLOCH and

IVAN F. PHIPPS,
Attorneys for Petitioner and Appellant,

1410 Yeon Building, Portland, Oregon.

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah,—ss.

I, E. M. Welch, being first duly sworn, on oath

say that I am president of Portland Crema-
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tion Association, the petitioner and appellant

above named, and that as such officer am author-

ized to sign the foregoing petition for review; that

I have read the said petition and know the contents

thereof and the facts set forth therein are true as I

verily believe ; that the said petition is filed in good

faith and not for purposes of delay.

E. M. WELCH.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 10th day

of October, 1928.

[Seal] DAVID L. DAVIES,
Notary Public for Oregon.

My commission expires Aug. 28, 1931.

Service of within petition and notice of filing ac-

cepted this 18th day of October, 1928.

O. M. CHAREST,
General Counsel Bureau of Int. Rev.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing petition for

review certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[82] Filed Oct. 18, 1928. United States Board
of Tax Appeals.
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Before the United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 23912.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION, a

Corporation,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

NOTICE OF FILINO PETITION FOR REVIEW
OF DECISION OF THE UNITED STATES
BOARD OF TAX APPEALS.

To the Above-named Respondent, and to C. M.

CHAREST, General Counsel, Bureau of Inter-

nal Revenue, His Attorney

:

Notice is hereby given that Portland Cremation

Association, the above-named petitioner, has filed

with the United States Board of Tax Appeals a

petition for the review of the decision and final

order of redetermination of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals rendered and entered on

April 20, 1928, in the case of Portland Cremation,

Association, Petitioner, vs. Commissioner of Inter-

nal Revenue, Respondent, Docket No. 23912.

Dated at Portland, Oregon, this 18th day of Oc-

tober, 1928.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION.

By CHARLES E. McCULLOCH and

IVAN F. PHIPPS,
Its Attorneys.
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[83] In the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

No. .

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION, a
Corporation,

Petitioner and Appellant,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent and Appellee.

PETITION FOR REVIEW OF DECISION OF
THE UNITED STATES BOARD OF TAX
APPEALS.

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals, for the Ninth Cir-

cuit:

Portland Cremation Association, pursuant to the

provisions of Section 1001 of the Revenue Act of

1926, as amended by Section 603 of the Revenue Act
of 1928, presents this, its petition, and respect-

fully prays for the review of the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals rendered and
entered on the 20th day of April, 1928, in Docket
No. 23912, approving a deficiency in the income and
profits taxes of the petitioner for the calendar years

1920 and 1921, in the respective amounts of $4,402.68

and $4,519.65, and in support of its petition for such
review respectfully represents as follows

:
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[84] I.

The Commissioner of Internal Revenue, by his

letter dated January 18, 1927, asserted deficiencies

in the petitioner's tax liability for the years 1920

and 1921 in the respective amounts of $4,402.68

and $4,519.65. Likewise by his letters of No-

vember 3, 1925, and November 15, 1926, he

asserted deficiencies in petitioner's taxes for the

years 1919 and 1922 in the respective amounts of

$5,764.69 and $2,192.25. Thereafter, and within the

times prescribed by law, the petitioner filed with

the United States Board of Tax Appeals its peti-

tions requesting the redetermination of such defi-

ciencies. The proceedings duly came on for hearing

on April 18, 1927, at which time the three proceed-

ings were consolidated for hearing. The proceed-

ings were submitted to the Board upon a written

stipulation of facts. No witnesses were called and

no oral testimony was introduced. Thereafter, and

on January 20, 1928, the United States Board of

Tax Appeals made its findings of fact in substantial

accordance with the facts alleged in the petitions

and stipulated by the parties, and rendered its opin-

ion approving the determination of the Commis-

sioner. The said findings and opinion were reviewed

by the entire Board and upon such review four

members thereof dissented. Thereafter, and on

April 20, 1928, a final order of redetermination ap-

proving the deficiencies asserted by the Commis-

sioner [85] for the years 1920 and 1921 in the

respective amounts of $4,402.68 and $4,519.65 were

duly rendered and entered by the United States
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Board of Tax Appeals, and likewise there were ren-

dered and entered on April 19, 1928, final decisions

and orders of redetermination in Docket Nos, 10037

and 22158 approving the asserted deficiencies for

1919 and 1922 in the respective amounts of $5,764.69

and $2,192.25.

II.

STATEMENT OF THE NATURE OF THE
CONTROVERSY.

This case involves income and profits taxes for the

years 1920 and 1921 and arises under the Revenue

Acts of 1918 and 1921.

The controversy between appellant (petitioner be-

fore the Board of Tax Appeals and hereinafter re-

ferred to as the petitioner) and the Commissioner

of Internal Revenue involves the single question

whether the Commissioner properly included in

petitioner's taxable income certain sums received

by petitioner during the years 1920 and 1921 from

sales of vaults, urns and niches for the burial of

the dead or within which to place the ashes result-

ing from the incineration of human remains, which

sums were set aside by petitioner and placed in a

permanent maintenance fund which was to be used

exclusively for the perpetual care and maintenance

of the property so sold and which permanent main-

tenance fmid was so used, or whether such sums so

set aside and placed in the permanent maintenance

fund constituted a [86] trust fund for the benefit

of purchasers of vaults, urns and niches.

The facts are not in dispute, having been stipulated
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in writing by the parties, and the sole question pre-

sented for decision in this proceeding is whether

the facts so stipulated by the parties and found by

the Board of Tax Appeals are sufficient in law to

sustain the decision of the Board of Tax Appeals

affirming the Commissioner's determination. A con-

sideration of all of the facts so found by the United

States Board of Tax Appeals, is necessarily in-

volved in the review of the Board's decision.

III.

DESIGNATION OF COURT OF REVIEW.
Petitioner is a corporation with its principal

place of business in the City of Portland, Oregon.

It made its return of annual net income for the

years 1920 and 1921 to the Collector of Internal

Revenue at Portland, Oregon. The petitioner, be-

ing aggrieved by the said decision and final order

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals, seeks

a review thereof in accordance with the provisions

of the Revenue Act of 1962, as amended by the

Revenue Act of 1928, by the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, within

which circuit is located the office of the Collector

of Internal Revenue at Portland, Oregon.

[87] IV.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR.

The petitioner sets forth the following assign-

ments of error:

1. That the United States Board of Tax Appeals

erred in deciding and holding that those portions of

the amounts received by petitioner in 1920 and 1921
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from the sale of niches, urns and burial vaults,

which were set apart for and in a fund for the per-

manent maintenance of such property, were prop-

erly included in petitioner's taxable income for

the said years.

2. That the decision and order of redetermina-

tion of the United States Board of Tax Appeals

is in error in that the findings of fact made by said

Board are insufficient to support the said decision

and order of redetermination in that such findings

show that the sums of $17,906.20 and $17,538.03

set aside by petitioner and placed in its permanent

maintenance fund in the years 1920 and 1921, re-

spectively, did not inure to the benefit of petitioner

but constituted a trust fund for the benefit of pur-

chasers of niches, urns and burial vaults.

3. That the United States Board of Tax Appeals

erred in rendering its decision in favor of the re-

spondent.

WHEREFORE, your petitioner prays this Hon-

orable Court may review said decision and final

order of redetermination of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals and reverse [88] and set

aside the same.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIA-
TION.

By E. M. WELCH,
President.

CHARLES E. McCULLOCH,
IVAN F. PHIPPS,

Attorneys for Petitioner and Appellant,

1410 Yeon Building, Portland, Oregon.
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State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah,—ss.

I, E. M. Welch, being first duly sworn, on oath

say that I am president of Portland Cremation

Association, the petitioner and appellant above

named, and that as such officer am authorized to

sign the foregoing petition for review; that I have

read the said petition and know the contents

thereof and the facts set forth therein are true as

I verily believe; that the said petition is filed in

good faith and not for purposes of delay.

E. M. WELCH.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 10th

day of October, 1928.

[Seal] DAVID L. DAVIES,
Notary Public for Oregon.

My commission expires Aug. 28, 1931.

Service of within petition accepted this 18th day

of October, 1928.

[Seal] C. M. CHAREST,
General Counsel, Bureau of Int. Rev.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing petition for

review certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[89] Filed Oct. 26, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.
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United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 10,037.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION, a

Corporation,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

To the Clerk of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals

:

YOU WILL PLEASE prepare and, within sixty

days from the date of the filing of the petition for

review in the above-entitled proceeding, transmit

to the Clerk of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, certified copies

of the following documents

:

1. The docket entries of the proceedings be-

fore the United States Board of Tax Appeals in

the above-entitled proceeding.

2. Pleadings before the Board.

3. Findings of fact, opinion and decision of the

Board, including final order of redetermination

dated April 1^, 1928.

4. Petition for review and notice of filing

thereof, with notation of acceptance of service of

petition and notice of filing by counsel for respond-

ent.

5. Stipulation of facts.



Commissioner of Internal Revenue. 103

The foregoing- to be prepared, certified, and

transmitted as required by law and the rules of

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

Dated October 25, 1928.

CHARLES E. McCULLOCH,
IVAN P. PHIPPS,

Counsel for Petitioner.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing praecipe

for record certified from the record as a true cojjy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[90] Filed Oct. 26, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 22,158.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION, a

Corporation,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

To the Clerk of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals

:

YOU WILL PLEASE prepare and, within sixty

days from the date of the filing of the petition for
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review in the above-entitled proceeding, transmit

to the Clerk of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, certified copies of

the following documents:

1. The docket entries of the proceedings before

the United States Board of Tax Appeals in the

above-entitled proceeding.

2. Pleadings before the Board.

3. Findings of fact, opinion and decision of the

Board, including final order of redetermination

dated April 19, 1928.

4. Petition for review and notice of filing

thereof, with notation of acceptance of service of

petition and notice of filing by counsel for re-

spondent.

5. Stipulation of facts.

The foregoing to be prepared, certified, and

transmitted as required by law and the rules of

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

Dated October 25, 1928.

CHARLES E. McCULLOCH,
IVAN F. PHIPPS,

Counsel for Petitioner.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing praecipe

for record certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[91] Filed Oct. 26, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.
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United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 23,912.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION, a

Corporation,

Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

To the Clerk of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals

:

YOU WILL PLEASE prepare, and, within

sixty days from the date of the filing of the peti-

tion for review in the above-entitled proceeding,

transmit to the Clerk of the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, certified

copies of the following documents:

1. The docket entries of the proceedings before

the United States Board of Tax Appeals in the

above-entitled proceeding.

2. Pleadings before the Board.

3. Findings of fact, opinion and decision of the

Board, including final order of redetermination

dated April 20, 1928.

4. Petition for review and notice of filing

thereof, with notation of acceptance of service of

petition and notice of filing by counsel for re-

spondent.

5. Stipulation of facts.
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The foregoing to be prepared, certified, and

transmitted as required by law and the rules of the

United States Circuit Coui-t of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

Dated October 25, 1928.

CHAELES E. McCULLOCH,
IVAN F. PHIPPS,

Counsel for Petitioner.

Now, December 7, 1928, the foregoing praecipe

for record certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[Endorsed] : No. 5661. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Portland

Cremation Association, a Corporation, Petitioner,

vs. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Respondent.

Transcript of Record. Upon Petitions to Review

Orders of the United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Filed December 17, 1928.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION, a

Corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Appellees.

STIPULATION RE PRINTING OF RECORD.

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and be-

tween the parties hereto by their respective counsel

of record that the three above-entitled causes (on

petition for review of decisions of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals) shall be consoli-

dated for purposes of preparation and filing of

briefs and for hearing and decision, and that the

printed transcript of record in the said three

causes so consolidated shall be prepared under one

cover and shall contain the following:

1. Docket entries of proceedings before the United

States Board of Tax Appeals in each of the

three causes.

2. Separate petitions in each of the three causes.

3. Separate answers in each of the three causes.

4. Stipulation of facts in these causes is consoli-

dated for hearing before the United States

Board of Tax Appeals.

5. Findings of fact, opinion and decision of the

Board.
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6. Separate final orders of redetermination in

each of the three causes.

7. Separate petitions for review and notices of

the filing thereof in each of the three causes.

8. This stipulation.

CHARLES E. McCULLOCH,
IVAN P. PHIPPS,
CAREY & KERR,

Attorneys for Appellant.

C. M. CHAREST,
General Counsel, Bureau of Internal Revenue,

Counsel for Api^ellee.

[Endorsed]: Stipulation. Filed Nov. 27, 1928.

Paul P. O'Brien, Clerk.

Refiled Dec. 17, 1928. Paul P. O'Brien, Clerk.
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No. 56G1

In the

^niteb States! Circuit Court

of ^pealg
For the Ninth Circuit

PORTLAND CREMATION ASSOCIATION
Petitioner and Appellant

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE
Respondent and Appellee

Upon Petitions to Review Orders of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals

Brief of Petitioner and Appellant

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

TMs is a proceeding pursuant to the provisions

of Section 1001 of the Revenue Act of 1926 (44

Stat. 9) as amended by Section 603 of the Revenue

Act of 1928, for the review of decisions of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals in favor of

the Commissioner of Internal Revenue and against

the Portland Cremation Association, petitioner be-

fore the Board and appellant herein. There were

three separate proceedings before the Board. They



were consolidated for hearing and decision. How-

ever, three separate judgment orders or orders of

redetermination were entered by the Board and

three separate petitions for review were filed in

this Conrt. The three proceedings by stipulation

of the parties have been consolidated for the pur-

pose of preparation and filing of briefs and for

hearing and decision by this Court.

These appeals involve a single question, whether

the Commissioner of Internal Revenue properly

added to appellant's taxable income certain amounts

received by appellant in connection with the sale

of vaults, urns and niches for the burial of the

dead or within which to place the ashes resulting

from the incineration of human remains, which

amounts were placed in a permanent maintenance

fund which was to be used and which was used

exclusively for the maintenance of the property so

sold.

There is no dispute as to the facts. They were

stipulated in A\Titing by the parties. The question

presented for decision by this Court is whether the

facts so stipulated and found by the Board of Tax

Appeals are sufficient in law to sustain the Board's

decision affirming the Commissioner's action in in-

cluding the amounts placed in the permanent main-

tenance fund in appellant's taxable income.

The years involved in this appeal are the years

1919, 1920, 1921 and 1922. During each of these



years appellant placed in a permanent maintenance

fund twenty per cent, of the gross receipts from

sales of vaults, niches and urns, the aggregate

amount for the four years being' $65,348.12. Each

sale of a vault or niche in appellant's mausoleum

or columbarium was evidenced by a gi-ant or con-

veyance of space in the form of a deed. Such deed

contained a covenant to maintain the deeded prop-

erty forever. For the most part the moneys repre-

senting this maintenance fund were invested in

United States Liberty Bonds and War Savings^

Stamps. The income from the fund was mingled

with income of the appellant and was used for the

sole pm-pose of maintaining the property. During

all of the years in question the income from the

permanent maintenance fund was insufficient to

maintain the property in good condition without

the addition of funds belonging to appellant. No

part of the principal of the permanent maintenance

fund was ever used for the maintenance of the

property. At the end of 1922 the permanent main-

tenance fund in the sum of $65,348.12 was intact.

At the time of each sale of vaults, niches and urns,

representations were made to the purchaser that

the property would be maintained perpetually and

that such maintenance was backed up or guaran-

teed by a permanent maintenance fund, that a

I)ortion of the amount paid by the purchaser would

be placed in such permanent maintenance fund and
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that said fund would be and could be used for no

other pui-pose.

During the years in question no dividends were

declared or paid. (Transcript of Hecord, pages 40

to 66, and pages 67 to 72.)

ARGUMENT
I.

The United States Board of Tax Appeals erred

in deciding tlmt those portions of the amounts re-

ceived hy appellant in the years 1919, 1920, 1921

and 1922 from the sale of niches, urns and hiirial

vaults, which ivere set apart in a fund for the

permanent maintenance of the property ivere prop-

erly included hy the Commissioner in appellant's

taxable income for said years.

It is apparent from the facts outlined above,

which are clearly set forth in the written stipula-

tion of facts and in the findings of fact made by

the Board of Tax Appeals, that the moneys placed

in the permanent maintenance fund did not inure

to the benefit of the appellant as assets subject to

disposition as appellant might see fit, but immedi-

ately became and at all times remained a trust

fund for the benefit of the owners of vaults, urns

and niches. Upon any intimation that the fund was



being improperly used or turned to purposes other

than that for which it Avas created, namely, the

perpetual care of the property, the appellant would

have been subjected to the instant protest of indig-

nant purchasers and immediate litigation to com-

pel it to carry out the terms of the trust and use

the funds in accordance with its understanding and

agreement with the purchasers. We have no doubt

that any court having jurisdiction, upon proof of

the use of the permanent maintenance fund for

any other purpose, would have entered its decree

confirming the trust and taking from appellaant

the control and custody of the fund itself.

It was not the purpose of the various Kevenue

Acts of the United States to tax as income moneys

which under no circumstances could belong to or

inure to the benefit of a taxpayer or be used for

his private advantage. The doctrine has been re-

peatedly announced in debates in Congress and in

decisions of the courts that the law seeks to tax

only that which is in truth income and not that

which is not income in fact, although perhaps hav-

ing the appearance of income.

The history of the taxation of cemetery com-

panies in connection with their permanent main-

tenance funds is interesting. In an excess of zeal

the Commissioner of Internal Revenue from the

very start sought to impose a tax upon all receipts

of such companies and to include in such receipts
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subject to tax all moneys placed in permanent

maintenance funds whether sucli funds were sub-

ject to express trusts or to implied trusts, and

whether the custody of such funds and of the in-

come therefrom was in the hands of the cemetery

companies or in the hands of independent trustees

representing the individual owners of burial lots

and vaults. Quite naturally the cemetery compa-

nies objected to the imposition of taxes on funds

which did not and could not inure to their benefit

but it was only after the creation of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals that public decisions

on this important question began to be made and

the power and authority of the Commissioner to

be abridged.

There have been six decisions of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals involving the taxa-

bilit^y of these maintenance funds, and there has

been one decision by the United States Courts.

The cases to which we refer are as follows:

Appeal of the Los Angeles Cemetery Asso-

ciation, 2 B. T. A. 495

;

Appeal of Greenwood Cemetery Association,

2 B. T. A. 910

;

Appeal of the Springdale Cemetery Associa-

tion, 3 B. T. A. 223

;

The Metairie Cemetery Association v. Com-
missioner of Internal Revenue, 4 B. T. A.

903;

Appeal of Troost Avenue Cemetery Associa-

tion, 4tB. T. A. 1169;



Ingletvood Park Cemetery Association v.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, B.

T. A. 386;

Troost Arc. Cemetery Co. v. United States,

21 F. (2(1) 194.

It should be remembered that there is a prac-

tice whereby the Commissioner may acquiesce in

decisions of the United States Board of Tax Ap-

peals which are adverse to him. If he announces

his formal acquiescence in a decision, that decision

becomes binding upon the Commissioner and the

principal laid down by the Board in its decision

becomes the rule of laAv thereafter followed by the

Commissioner, The Commissioner has acquiesced

in all of the above mentioned Board decisions

which were adverse to him, except that in Ingle-

tvood Park Cemetery Association v. Commissioner

of Internal Revenue. In that case no acquiescence

has yet been announced though the time for the

Commissioner to appeal has expired and no appeal

has been taken from the Board's decision.

We will briefly review the above mentioned

decisions.

In the case of the Los Angeles Cemetery Asso-

ciation, 2 B. T. A. 495, decided September 8, 1925,

it was held that amounts placed in a perpetual care

fund by a cemetery association which agreed in

consideration of specific payments to care for

graves or plots in perpetuity, constituted trust

funds under the California law, and it was spe-
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cifically lield that since none of these funds could

be used for any purpose other than for such perma-

nent maintenance, they could not be gain or income

to the taxpa.yer. The Board in an opinion by Judge

Graupner, used the following language:

"The taxpayer sells nothing upon which a
gain can be made to the person who enters into

a contract for perpetual care; it takes nothing
v/hich it can use for its own purposes; it re-

ceives nothing which it may distribute to its

stockholders ; it holds nothing which it can
ultimately distribute to itself for its own uses.

The taxpayer as a trustee can exercise no dis-

cretion in the accumulation or distribution of

the fund accumulated from perpetual care con-

tracts. It is bound to perform a defined ser-

vice with such fund and from that there can
be no gain to be classed as income. We ex-

press no opinion whether interest or increment
earned by such funds would be taxable as in-

come."

This language applies equally to appellant's

situation. The twenty per cent, which it received

and agreed by formal resolution of its Board and

by agreement with the purchasers to place in the

permanent maintenance fund could not be used for

its own purpose. It could not be distributed to its

stockholders.

The next decision of the Board of Tax Appeals

was in the Appeal of Greenwood Cemetery Asso-

ciation, 2 B. T. A. 910, decided October 19, 1925.

The Greenwood Association was a Washington

corporation. In 1893 it adopted rules and regula-



11

tions for tlie perpetual care of graves. Its con-

tracts provided specifically that tlie amounts paid

into the perpetual care fund should be held as a

trust fund, the income from which alone was to he

available by the Cemetery Association in caring

for lots. The findings of fact contained this state-

ment:

"In the sale of perpetual care the stockhold-

ers of the association are benefited to the ex-

tent that the corporation uses the income of

the perpetual care fund in the care of the ceme-
tery and the payment of upkeep and running
expenses in general, but the principal of the

perpetual care fund is set up in a 'Liability

Account' and the corporation is liable to the

contributors of said fund for the perpetual care

of graves as shown by the written agreement
made by the corporation and each purchaser of

perpetual care. The income from the perpetual
care fund has been and is mingled with other
income and was accounted for as income by the

taxpayer in its 1918 and other income-tax re-

turns."

Upon the authority of the Los Angeles Ceme-

tery Association decision the Commissioner's at-

tempt to include the trust fund payments in the

G^reenwood Company's income was disallowed. The

Greenwood case differs from the present case in

that the funds in the Greenwood case were made

trust funds by express agreement, while in the

case now before the court the trust is implied. In

other respects the cases are identical, including

particularly the circumstance that in both cases
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the income from the trust fund has been mingled

with funds of the taxpayer in the maintenance and

care of the property.

The next case decided by the Board was that of

Springdale Cemetery Association, 3 B. T. A. 223.

The taxpayer was an Illinois corporation. The

case was decided on December 21, 1925. It is the

only one in which the decision has been in favor

of the Commissioner. The decision contains the

following findings of fact:

"The corporation's by-laws contained no pro-

visions for appropriating any part of receipts

from the sale of lots as such perpetual care
fund, and no resolution to that effect Avas

passed by the directors. The directors by in-

formal decision set up such a reserve on the
books. The amount of 25 cents a square foot

was an estimate of the amount required to

provide a sufficient fund for future care."

The opinion in the Springdale case was by Mr.

Sternhagen. The company's situation was clearly

distinguished from that of the Los Angeles Ceme-

tery Association. It was brought out that in Illi-

nois it was permissive to create a trust fund for

permanent maintenance and although the com-

pany's charter provided that the company might

create by by-law funds for repair and maintenance

the company had not seen fit to do so. The de-

cision contains this language:

"The taxpayer voluntarily set up a reserve

based on an estimate, but there is lacking the
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clear evidence necessary to establish a trust.

So far as tlie record shows, the directors might
at any time reduce tlie fund or perhaps wipe
it out, without restraint, their liability, if any,

being one for breach of covenant or contract."

The Springdale case is to be distinguished from

the case now on appeal in that in the Springdale

case, there was no by-law or resolution of the di-

rectors calling for a perpetual care fund and there

is no finding of fact whatsoever indicating that

sales were made with any understanding or agree-

ment that such fund should be maintained for the

benefit of purchasers. Fnder the findings of fact

made by the Board, the decision seems sound, since

the fund set up on the books of account was quite

apparently simply a reserve for future maintenance

without any of the elements tending to make it a

trust fund. It is settled law that such reserves for

future maintenance are not deductible from gross

income in computing taxable net income.

The next case before the Board was that of the

Metairie Cemetery Association, 4 B. T. A. 903, de-

cided September 22, 1926. The Metairie Associa-

tion was a Los Angeles corporation. It made sales

contracts of two kinds. In one class of contract

there was a specific provision that the amount re-

ceived by the Association was received in trust for

the lot owner and that the income only on the

amount so received was to be used for the purpose

of upkeep of the cemetery lots and that such agree-
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ment should continue perpetually. In tlie other

class of contract there was no such provision. How-

ever, there had been a formal resolution of the

Association's board of directors providing that all

sums received by the Association in consideration

of which it obligated itself to keep in perpetuity all

tombs and surrounding grounds in good order were

to be recognized as trust funds to be invested as

the board of directors might direct, the income ac-

cruing therefrom to be alone expended. By a reso-

lution of the directors adopted some years after

the end of the years in dispute before the Board,

all funds received for perpetual care contracts

were specifically made subject to the trust whether

or not covered by contracts containing the trust

fund provisions. The findings of fact contained

this statement:

"While there were only thirteen of the per-

petual-care contracts entered into during the

taxable years involved which contained a spe-

cific provision to the effect that the funds re-

ceived under such contracts were received in

trust by the taxpayer, the other contracts

entered into during the taxable years, as well

as all of the contracts of perpetual care, were
entered into with the specific understanding on
the part of the corporation and the lot owners
that the funds received by the corporation

under such contracts would be held in trust for

the specific purposes mentioned in the con-

tract. The fact that the funds were received

in trust was specifically explained to the lot

owners by an officer of the corporation when
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the contracts were signed and it was definitely

understood by all concerned that such funds
were to be held in trust."

The IJcard decided this case in favor of the

Cemetery Association upon the authority of its

previous decisions, particularly that of the Los

Angeles Cemetery Association, and it is interesting

to note that the opinion opens with the following

statement

:

"The Commissioner concedes that if the
Board finds as a matter of law that the
amounts received by the taxpayer under the
perpetual-care contracts vrere received in trust,

then the amounts are not taxable to the tax-

payer but that the case would then be con-

trolled by the decision of the Board in the

Appeal of Los Angeles Cemetery Association."

The opinion contains also the following state-

ment :

"The e^idence is that at the time the con-

tracts were entered into it was agreed that the
money would be held in trust for the specific

purposes of the contract. This being true, we
are of the opinion that a valid trust was cre-

ated by ])arol in those contracts w^here there
w^as no specific provision to that effect. The
only reason that certain of the contracts con-

tained that express provision was the fact that
those lot owners insisted upon the agreement
being included in w^riting in the contrcat."

The decisions heretofore cited adopted the prac-

tical and common-sense view of these permanent

care funds and held them to be trust funds, the
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facts and circumstances indicating that such was
the understanding of the parties.

The next case decided by the Board was that of

Troost Avenue Cemetery Association, 4 B. T. A.

1169, decided September 29, 1926. In that case the

Association had placed the maintenance funds with

a trust company. The Commissioner maintained

that the creation of this trust fund was simply the

creation of a reserve to provide for future expenses

of the corporation. The decision was in favor of

the taxpayer. The case is interesting only as show-

ing the length to which the Commissioner went in

attempting to exact taxes on funds of this char-

acter.

The last case decided by the Board was that of

Ingleivood Park Cemetery Association v. Commis-

sioner of Internal Revenue, decided on March 2,

1927, 6 B. T. A. 386. The Inglewood Park Associa-

tion was a California corporation. In the findings

of fact it is stated that:

"Salesmen emploj'ed by the petitioner were
instructed to assure the purchasers of burial

lots that 25 per cent, of the purchase price

would go into a fund for the perpetual care of

the lots. Each deed executed to convey title to

purchasers of lots contains the following:

'Said lot is granted with right to the

grantee for perpetual care thereof by and
at the expense of said Cemetery Associa-

tion'."
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In the luglewood Park case the Board sustained

the position of the Cemetery Association and held

that the assurance of salesmen that 25 per cent,

of the purchase price would go into a fund for the

perj^etual care of the lots, accompanied by the cov-

enant of the Association to care for the lots in per-

petuity, constituted a parol agreement not in con-

travention of the writings, and that the amounts

so placed in the perpetual care fund became trust

funds and were not part of the income of the

Association.

The case of Troost Ave. Cemetery Co. v. United

States, 21 F(2d) 194, involved the taxability of the

proceeds of sales of cemetery lots placed in the

hands of a third party as trustee, such proceeds

constituting a permanent maintenance fund. The

facts were similar to those in the Troost Avenue

case before the Board.

The Court decided in favor of the taxpayer, cit-

ing with approval the Los Angeles, Greenwood,

Metairie and Troost Avenue decisions of the Board.

The Inglewood case was decided by the Board only

the day before the Court's decision and probably

it had not come to the Court's attention.

We believe that the decisions of the Board of

Tax Appeals mentioned above are in accordance

with the purpose and letter of the various Revenue

Acts, but we believe that the majority of the Board

erroneously applied to the facts in the Portland



18

case the principles set fortli in their previous de-

cisions.

Again, we call attention to the following facts

stipulated by the taxpayer and the Commissioner,

for consideration in connection with the Board's

decisions acquiesced in by the Commissioner:

1. The deeds given to purchasers of vaults
and niches * * * contained a covenant running
to the gTantee and his heirs that the petitioner

would maintain the columbarium containing
said niche or vault forever.

2. The additions to the permanent mainte-
nance fund were made pursuant to formal
action of the board of directors and stockhold-

ers of the Association.
3. During the years involved in these ap-

peals petitioner placed in a permanent main-
tenance fund twenty per centum of the gross

selling price of all urns, niches and vaults sold

by it.

4. "All sales by the petitioner were made
with the representation to the purchasers that
the covenant to maintain the property was
backed by a permanent maintenance fund and
that a portion of the purchase price paid by
such purchaser would be placed in the main-
tenance fund."

5. "It Avas represented to each purchaser that
the maintenance fund could not and would not
be used for any other purpose."

6. The income from the maintenance fund
has at all times been used for the maintenance
and upkeep of the property sold, but by itself

has been insufficient for that purpose.

7. For the most part the maintenance fund
was invested in United States Liberty Bonds
and War Savings Stamps.
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8. The petitioner in its books of account did

not treat the twenty per cent, of the selling-

price of such niches and vaults as part of its

gross income.

These agreed facts are sufficient to exclude from

appellant's taxable income the maintenance fund

payments made during the years in question in

accordance with the strictest rules laid down by the

Board in the Los Angeles, Metairie and Inglewood

cases. It is quite apparent that the Portland As-

sociation was in good faith endeavoring to build

up a fund of sufficient size so that the income there-

from would be sufficient when all the property had

been sold to provide adequately for permanent

maintenance. All purchasers were informed of the

existence of this fund. They were further in-

formed that a portion of the amounts paid by them

would be placed in this fund and that the fund

would not and could not be used for any other

purpose. It is stipulated that there were placed in

a permanent maintenance fund amounts represent-

ing twenty per cent, of the selling price of urns,

niches and vaults sold during the years in question.

The importance of this stipulation is that the Gov-

ernment has recognized the fund itself as a perma-

nent fund. The majority opinion of the Board to

the effect that there was no more than a con-

tractual obligation cognizable at common law and

a means privately adopted by the corporation to

fulfill it is not borne out by the facts. Not only
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the income from the fund but the fund itself was

devoted to this specific use. It did not and could

not inure to the benefit of the corporation or its

stockholders. Any misuse of the fund (and there

is no suggestion that there ever was such misuse)

would have resulted in the immediate taking away

from the Association of the control of the fund and

of the fund itself. Judged by standards of com-

mon sense, of plain intention and of legal effect,

the maintenance fund was in the fullest sense a

trust fund and being such was never income of the

Association.

Mr. Arundell, the member of the Board who

heard the case, wrote the dissenting opinion. He
shows in detail that the facts in the Portland case

bring it within the scope of the principles laid down

in the Metairie and Inglewood Park cases. He
shows that the presence of a state law forbidding

the use of perpetual care funds for any other pur-

poses may aid in establishing the fact of the exist-

ence of a trust but he shows that an equally valid

trust may be created by the acts of the parties. No

better or stronger summing up of the position of

the appellant in this case could be given than that

which appears in Mr. Arundell's dissenting opinion,

the concluding paragraphs of which are as follows

:

"In both the Metairie and Inglewood cases

there were express covenants concerning per-

petual care, but there was nothing, other than
oral representations to purchasers, as to the
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fund to be held in trust. If an express trust

can be feathered from oral representations in

these cases, why does not the same rule apply

here? But T do not think it necessary to decide

in any of these cases whether the trust is ex-

press of implied ; it is sufficient if either kind

can be found. It has been often held that no

technical languaoe nor specific words are

necessary to create a trust. As is said in Chi-

caqo Rwi/. v. Dcfi Moines Rtc]/., 254 IT. S. 19G,

208

:

'It needs no particular form of words to

create a trust, so there be reasonable cer-

tainty as to the property, the objects and

the beneficiaries. Colton r. Colton, 127 U.

S. 300, 310.'

"There is here no lack of certainty, as urged

by the respondent. The representations to pur-

chasers and the deeds given them establish the

purpose to which the funds were to be put and

who the beneficiaries were. The records of the

corporation determine the amount of the fund.

"The acts of the petitioner in representing to

purchasers that it had a permanent mainte-

nance fund, in covenating for perpetual care,

and in formally setting aside a specified por-

tion of the amounts received, we think were

sufficient to create an enforceable trust. In

Holmes v. Doivie, 148 Fed. 634, G38, it is said

:

'It is a well recognized principle of

equity that where a person accepts money
or property to be used by him for the

benefit of some other person or persons,

lOr for the advancement of some lawful

enterprise, such money or property con-

stitutes a trust fund.'

"The prevailing opinion cites the decision in

Springdale Cemetery Association, 3 B. T. A.
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223. An essential difference between tlie cases

is that in the Springdale case, it was found as

a fact that:

'The corporation's by-laws contained no
provisions for appropriating any part of

the receipts from the sale of lots as such

perpetual care fund, and no resolution to

that effect was passed by the directors.'

"Nor does the case of Mead Construction Co.,

3 B. T. A. 438, seem to be in point. There the

sole question was whether a certain part of the

amount due the taxpayer for paving work
which was withheld by a municipality was in-

come to the taxpayer ; there was no question of

whether any part of the amount received by
the taxpayer was exempt from tax." (Tran-

script of Record, Pages 75-77.)

Respectfully submitted,

Caeey & Kerr,

Charles E. McCulloch,

Ivan F. Phipps^

Attorneys for Petitioner and

Appellant.
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In the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

No. 5661

Portland Cremation Association^ a Corporation,

petitioner

V.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, respondent

UPON PETITIONS TO REVIEW ORDERS OF THE UNITED
STATES BOARD OF TAX APPEALS

BRIEF FOR THE RESPONDENT

PREVIOUS OPINION

The only previous opinion in the present case is

that of the United States Board of Tax Appeals

(R. 72), which is reported in 10 B. T. A. 65.

JURISDICTION

The petitions for review in the above-entitled

cause involve income taxes for the years 1919, 1920,

1921, and 1922, in the amounts of $5,764.69 for the

year 1919, $4,402.68 for the year 1920, $4,519.65 for

the year 1921, and $2,192.25 for the year 1922, and

are taken from three orders of redetermination by
(1)



the United States Board of Tax Appeals, promul-

gated April 19, 1928, as to the years 1919 and 1922,

and April 20, 1928, as to the years 1920 and 1921.

(R. 77-80.) The jurisdiction of this court is in-

voked by petition for review filed October 18, 1928

(R. 2) pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1926, ch. 27.

Sections 1001, 1002, 1003, 44 Stat. 9, 110.

QUESTION PRESENTED

Is the petitioner entitled to exclude from gross

income for the years 1919, 1920, 1921, and 1922,

on the ground that they were trust funds, certain

amounts set aside by it for the perpetual care of

niches, urns, and vaults ?

STATUTES INVOLVED

The pertinent provisions of the Revenue Act of

1918, ch. 18, 40 Stat. 1057, and of the Revenue Act

of 1921, ch. 136, 42 Stat. 227, are identical.

The following statutes are from the Revenue Act

of 1918

:

Sec. 233. (a) That in the case of a corpo-

ration subject to the tax imposed by section

230 the term "gross income" means the gross

income as defined in section 213, * * *

;

Sec. 213. That for the purposes of this

title (except as otherwise provided in section

233) the term "gross income"

—

(a) Includes gains, profits, and income de-

rived from salaries, wages, or compensation

for personal service (including in the case

of the President of the United States, the

judges of the Supreme and inferior coui'ts



of the United States, and all other officers

and employees, whether elected or ai)pointed,

of the United States, Alaska, Hawaii, or any

political subdivision thereof, or the District

of Columbia, the com])ensation received as

such), of whatever kind and in whatever

form paid, or from professions, vocations,

trades, businesses, commerce, or sales, or deal-

ings in property, whether real or personal,

growinii' out of the ownership or use of or

interest in such property ; also from interest,

rent, dividends, securities, or the transaction

of any business carried on for gain or profit,

or gains or jDrofits and income derived from

any source whatever. * * *.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The petitioner was organized under the laws of

the State of Oregon, for the purpose of construct-

ing, maintaining, and operating crematories and

columbaria and conducting the business of inciner-

ating hmnan remains and the burial and perpetual

care of the ashes resulting therefrom, and conduct-

ing the business of funeral director and undertaker.

During the years in question the petitioner oper-

ated a crematorium and sold niches and vaults in a

building maintained for the repository of incin-

erated human remains and for the burial of the

dead. (R. 67.) Deeds, identical in form save as

to the description of the particular niche or vault,

were given to purchasers. These deeds contained

a covenant, running to the grantee and his heirs,

that the petitioner would maintain the columbarium



containing the niche or vault forever. (R. 68.) At

a meeting of the Board of Directors, on March 3,

1920, a resohition was adopted setting aside, from

and after January 1, 1919, twenty per cent of the

gross receipts from the sale of niches, urns, and

vaults, to the maintenance fund. (R. 69.) Dur-

ing the years in question, the following amounts,

equal to twenty jjer cent of the gross sales price

of all urns, niches, and vaults sold by it were placed

in the permanent maintenance fund : For the year

1919, $12,827.16; 1920, $17,906.20; 1921, $17,076.73;

1922, $17,538.03. During 1919 this amount was set

aside by an informal agreement of the Acting

Board of Directors, which ac-tion was confirmed by

the Directors' meeting mentioned above, and by a

stockholders' meeting of December 11, 1919. (R.

70, 68. ) For the years 1920, 1921, and 1922, the ad-

ditions to the maintenance fund were made pursu-

ant to the above-mentioned resolution.

All sales by the petitioner were made with the

representation to the purchasers that the covenant

to maintain the property was backed by a perma-

nent maintenance fund, and that a portion of the

jDurchase price would be placed in that fund, which

fund could not be used for any other purpose. No
representations were made as to the handling and

control of the fund, save that it was to be handled

and controlled by the petitioner. The income from

the maintenance fund has at all times been used for

the maintenance and upkeep of the property sold,

but always through the regular income and expense



accounts of the corporation. The income from the

fund was ming;lc(l with other income and expended

fur n)aintenance along with other fnnds of the ])eti-

tioner, and was credited during the years in ques-

tion directly to the profit and h)ss account. (R.

70-71.)

During the years in question the maintenance and

upkeep of the property required more money than

the income from the maintenance fund. This de-

ficiency was supplied from the income of peti-

tioner, and not from the principal of the mainte-

nance fund. Prior to November 3, 1920, there was

no separate investment account maintained for this

fund, but the amounts thereof were in part mingled

with other assets of the petitioner. On that date

the petitioner invested $29,816.51 in Liberty Bonds,

and these were carried in an account entitled "In-

vestment-Reserve for Maintenance.'' (R. 71.)

Additions were made to this account during 1921,

the balance in the account on December 31, 1921,

being $35,548.09. On December 31, 1922, the l)alance

to the credit of this account was $65,348.12, included

in which was a loan of $20,000 made by the fund to

the petitioner. The petitioner's books of account

showed as gross sales the amounts received from

the purchase of urns, niches, and vaults, less twenty

per cent thereof, which was j^laced in the mainte-

nance fund, and which did not appear as a part of

the item "gross sales." (R. 72.) The Commis-

sioner of Internal Revenue determined deficiencies
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lor the years in question, and from his determina-

tions the petitioner appealed to the Board of Tax

Appeals. (R. 7, 22, 31.) The separate petitions

were consolidated for hearing, and thereafter the

determinations of the Commissioner were approved

by the Board. From the decision of the Board the

petitioner brings this petition for review.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

No trust was created either orally or in writing

and none can be implied from the circumstances of

this case. The decision of the Board of Tax Ap-

peals was right on the facts and the same should

be affirmed.

ARGUMENT

The amounts received by petitioner from the sale of niches

and vaults, and placed in a permanent maintenance fund,

do not constitute a trust and must be considered in

determining the petitioner's gross income

The only question for determination in this ease

is whether or not the amounts set aside by the peti-

tioner for the maintenance fund constitute a trust

of which petitioner is the trustee, and the niche or

vault owners are the beneficiaries. If the main-

tenance fund was a trust fund, then it is conceded

that the sums in question can not be considered in

computing the gross income of petitioner. If it

was not a trust fund, however, then these sums

must be so considered, and the Board of Tax Ap-

peals must be sustained.

Examination shows that the facts are not such as

would lead a court to impress the fund with a trust.



Each deed i^iveu by petitioner for a vault or iiiclic

contained a covenant to the effect that the property

would be perpetually maintained. Such a covenant

amounts to no more than a contractual obligation.

Salesmen of petitioner represented to prospective

])urchasers that a proportion of the purchase price

would be devoted to this fund, but it does not appear

that any representations were made as to the pro-

portion of the purchase price to be so devoted. An

allocation to the fund of one per cent, rather than

twenty per cent, would be a compliance with such

representations as were made. Giving to such rep-

resentations their maximum effect, it can not be

said that they do more than create a contract obliga-

tion. It thus ai)pears that the contracts with pur-

chasers do not create a trust, either written or oral,

ex]3ress or implied.

Other facts developed by the record directly tend

to negative the idea of a trust, and show that the

fund was no more than a reserve set aside to take

care of future expenses. Such a reserve is not de-

ductible from gross income. In this connection it

may be noted that the fund is designated by peti-

tioner as "Investment-Reserve for Maintenance

(Liberty Bonds, W. S. S., etc.)." (R. 71.)

Prior to January 1, 1919, the amount placed in

this maintenance fund was ten per cent of the

gross purchase price, rather than twenty per cent

as was the case after that date. It should be noted

also that for the year 1919 the amount was set aside

by acting officers and their action was not ratified
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until a year later, when it might have been com-

pletely disaffirmed. It is inconsistent with the

idea of a A'alid trust that the officers of the trustee

possessed the power to dissipate the fund or divert

it to alien purposes. There was no obligation on

the part of the petitioner to set aside any particu-

lar portion of the purchase price, the amount set

aside was not known to the prospective purchaser,

and there was no obligation on the company to

maintain in the fund such sums or proportions as

were credited to it. Moreover, the facts point to

the conclusion that the fund was not considered by

petitioner as a trust fund. It, with its income,

was freely mingled with other funds of the com-

pany up to the year 1922, and was considered so

much the property of petitioner that it felt itself

at liberty to borrow from the fund for its own use.

The petitioner in the instant case is seeking to

exclude from gross income twenty per cent of the

gross amoimts received from the sale of niches and

vaults for the purpose of maintenance, yet the peti-

tioner has been allowed as a deduction from gross

income the amounts actually expended or incurred

during the taxable years for such maintenance. The

record does not directly disclose this to be true,

but it is disclosed in an indirect way. The Board

in its opinion states as follows (R. 73) :

Of course such sum as it expends or incurs

annually in the performance of its business

functions, whether of maintenance or other-

wise, is a proper deduction.
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The Board then states that judgment will be

entered on fifteen days' notice. (R. 74.) There-

after the Board entered its judgments in accordance

with the judgments proposed by the Commissioner

pursuant to the Board's report of January 20, 1928.

Notice of the proposed judgments was given to pe-

titioner and petitioner did not oppose. (R. 78, 79,

80.) The judgments entered by the Board found

the same deficiencies that the Commissioner had

proposed in the three deficiency notices. (R. 13,

26, 35.)

It is thus clear and can not be disputed that the

Commissioner in his determination of the deficien-

cies included in gross income the full amounts re-

ceived from the purchasers of the niches and vaults

and allowed as a deduction for expenses the

amounts actually expended or incurred in the

maintenance of the niches and vaults. The peti-

tioner accordingly has not been deprived of a de-

duction from gross income of the amounts actually

expended or incurred during the taxable years in

the performance of its obligation to maintain the

niches and vaults.

There has been one decision by a Federal district

court upon a question similar to the one here in-

volved and six decisions by the Board of Tax Ap-

peals. The holdings in these cases are all consistent

with the position taken by the Commissioner in this

case.

In the case of Troost Avenue Cemetery Co. v.

United States, 21 F. (2d) 194, the association exe-
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ciited a trust agreement with a trust company

whereby the company received and held a certain

percentage of the gross amount received from the

sale of cemetery lots in trust for the benefit of the

then owners and for the purchasers of said lots

absolutely free of any control on the part of the

Cemetery Association. The court there held that

a trust had been created and that the amounts de-

voted to this trust could not be considered as a part

of the gross income of the Cemetery Association.

Comparison of that with the instant case will clearly

demonstrate the essential differences which make

impossible a like conclusion. The instant case

shows no such clear segregation of the funds set

aside for maintenance nor does it show any such

definite agreement as to the allocation of a specific

part of the purchase price.

The decisions of the Board of Tax Appeals,

wherein it was held that a trust fund had been es-

tablished, reveal similarly important distinctions.

In the Appeal of the Los Angeles Cemetery Asso-

ckition, 2 B. T. A. 495, the Board held that a trust

was created. A separate and specific sum was paid

for perpetual care in addition to the sum paid as

the purchase price of the grave or plot. The agree-

ment providing for the payment of the separate and

specific sum was in writing. In the instant case

there was no oral or written agreement whereby

a separate and specific sum was paid to be used for

perpetual care. The Board in that case based its

decision primarily upon the provisions of the Cali-
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fornia Civil Code, Section 617, which provides tha

the sums received by virtue of a contract for per-

petual care can only be used for such purposes and

prescribes the securities in which the perpetual care

funds may be invested. The statutes of Oregon

contain no such provisions.

In the Appeal of Greenwood Cemetery Associa-

tion, 2 B. T. A. 910, the Board held that a trust was

established upon the authority of the Appeal of the

Los Angeles Cemetery Association, supra. In the

Greenwood case the association had published

rules and regulations of the cemetery in full as well

as the plans for the perpetual care and the

charges therefor. The lot prices and the charge

for perpetual care were quoted separately to pro-

spective purchasers and when sales were made the

charges for the lot and for perpetual care were sep-

arate items. According to the agreement the prin-

cipal paid in for perpetual care is held as a trust

fund. The agreement for perpetual care was a

written agreement.

The distinction between the Greenwood case and

the instant case is obvious. In that case there was

a written agreement providing that the principal

paid in for perpetual care was to be held as a trust

fund. There are other differences, but since there

was an express declaration of trust in that case

such differences need not be pointed out.

In the case of The Metairie Cemetery Associa-

tion V. Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 4 B. T.

A. 903 the Board held that a trust had been created.
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In that case the Board in its opinion stated as

follows (p. 909-910) :

There is no conflict in the evidence here

with respect to the contracts. The evidence

is that at the time the contracts were entered

into it was agreed that the money would be

held in trnst for the specific purposes of the

contract. This being true, we are of the

oi^inion that a valid trust was created by
parole in those contracts where there was no

specific provision to that effect. The only

reason that certain of the contracts con-

tained that express provision was the fact

that those lot owners insisted upon the agree-

ment being included in writing in the con-

tract. The same agreement, however, was
actually made with all of the lot owners

verbally.

This language of the Board makes clear the distinc-

tion between the Metairic case and the instant case.

In that case there were express agreements, some

oral and some in writing, that the money for per-

petual care would be held in trust.

It is conceded that such a trust may be created

by oral agreement as the Board held in the Metairie

case, but in the instant case there was no express

agreement either oral or written that a certain por-

tion of the moneys received was to be held in trust.

In the Appeal of Troost Avenue Cemetery Asso-

ciation, 4 B. T. A. 1169, the Board held that a trust

was established. The facts here were similar to

those in Troost Avenue Cemetery Co. v. United

States, supra.
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111 the case of Inglewood Park Cemetery Associa-

tion V, Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 6 B. T.

A. 386, the Board held that a trust was created. In

that case prospective purchasers were told that

tweiity-tive per cent of the purchase price would go

into a fund for the perpetual care of the lots, while

ill the instant case prospective purchasers were told

that a portion, not a jixed portion, would be placed

in a maintenance fund.

In the Ingle wood case twenty-tive per cent of the

purchase price was deposited in a special bank ac-

count, while in the instant case prior to November

?>, 1920, there was no separate investment account

on petitioner's books (R. 44), much less in a special

bank account. At no time during the taxable years

in the instant case was there maintained a special

bank account.

In the Inglewood case the Association was gov-

erned by the laws of California and the Board based

its decision in part upon the provisions of the Cali-

fornia Civil Code, Section 617.

Of all the decisions involving perpetual care

funds of cemetery associations, there have only been

two holding that the moneys received for perpetual

care did not constitute a trust fund. These two de-

cisions are the decision of the Board in the instant

case and the decision of the Board in the Appeal

of the Springdale Cemetery Association, 3 B. T. A.

223. In the latter case the certificate of pvirchase

provided for the care of lots during the existence

of the cemetery. The taxpayer in that case voluii-



tarily set up a reserve for maintenance. That is

what happened in the instant case. The opinion in

the Springclale case does not disclose that there was

any express agreement either oral or written as to

the establishment of a trust, and that is true in the

instant case. The facts in the instant case are

much like those in the Springdale case and that de-

cision should be regarded as more persuasive here

than any other decision of the Board of Tax

Appeals,

CONCLUSION

Since there was in the instant case no express

agreement, either oral or written, creating a trust,

and since a trust cannot be implied from the sur-

rounding circumstances, it is respectfully submitted

that the judgment of the Board of Tax Appeals

should be affirmed.

Mabel Walker Willkbraxdt,

Assistant Attorneij General.

SewALL Key,

Special Assistant to the Attorneij General.

Edwix G. Davis,

Special Assistant fo the Attorneij Goieral.

CM. Chaeest,

General Counsel,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Shelby S. Faulkxee,

Special Attorneij,

Bureau of Internal Revenue,

Of Counsel.

February, 1929.

r.s. i;ovki:x.mi:ni' i-itixrixc ofI'MCE; 1929
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[1*] DOCKET Number 2928.

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

For Taxpayer:

HERBERT E. SMITH, Esq., W. P. BELL,

Esq., J. B. FOGARTY, Esq.

For Commissioner:

GRANVILLE BORDEN, Esq.

DOCKET ENTRIES.
1925.

Mar. 30—Petition received and filed.

Apr. 1—Copy of petition served on solicitor.

Apr. 1—Notification of receipt mailed taxpayer.

Apr. 21—^Answer filed by solicitor.

Apr. 23—Copy of answer served on taxpayer

—

Assigned to reserve calendar.

1927.

Apr. 13—Hearing date set June 14, 1927, at

County City Bldg., Seattle, Wash.

June 14—Hearing had before Mr. Morris on the

merits. Motion that 2928 and 2929

be consolidated and heard together.

Briefs due Sept. 15, 1927.

*Page-number appearing at the top of page of original certified

Transcript of Eecord.



2 B. J. Rucker vs.

Aug. 9—Transcript of hearing filed—June 14,

1927.

Aug. 31—Motion for extension to Oct. 15th to file

briefs filed by G. C. granted 9-3-27.

Sept. 8—Brief filed by taxpayer.

Sept. 29—Brief and finding filed by G. C.

Nov. 30—Motion that time for filing proposed re-

determination be set for a date subse-

quent to 12-20-27, filed by taxpayer.

Dec. 27.—Findings of fact and opinion rendered

—

Mr. Morris—Judgment will be entered

on 15 day notice.

1928.

Feb. 8—Notice of settlement filed by taxpayer.

Feb. 10—Notice allowing G. C. until 2-28-28 to

file alternative settlement for hearing

on 3-8-28. Failure to do so appeal

set for 3-6-28.

Feb. 11—Notice of settlement filed by G. C. Copy

served 2-15-28.

Feb. 11—Copy of proposed redetermination served

on G. €.

Mar. 8—Hearing had before Mr. Morris on settle-

ment under Rule 50. Contested.

Mar. 15—Transcript of hearing 3-8-28. See 2929.

Mar. 20—Order of redetermination entered.

Sept. 14—Petition for review by U. S. Cir. Ct. of

Appeals 9th Cir., with assignments of

error filed by taxpayer.

Sept. 14—Proof of service filed.
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Oct. 4—Praecipe of record filed,

Oct. 4—Proof of service filed by taxpayer.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing docket en-

tries certified from the record as a tine copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[2] Filed Mar. 30, 1925. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 2928.

Appeal of B. J. RUCKER, of Lake Stevens, Wash.

PETITION.

The above-named taxpayer hereby appeals from

the determination of the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue set forth in his deficiency letter (IT:CR:

G-6, GJG.) dated Febmary 27, 1925, and as a

basis of his appeal sets forth the following:

1.

The taxpayer is an individual partner in the

copartnership of Rucker Bros., Lake Stevens,

Washington, which is composed of said taxpayer

and his brother, W. J. Rucker of Lake Stevens,

Washington, each owning a one-half interest in

said copartnership.

2.

The deficiency letter (a copy of which is at-

tached) was mailed to the taxpayer on Feb. 27,

1925, and states a deficiency of $3,463.21.
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3.

The taxes in controversy are income taxes for

the calendar year 1918 and are less than $10,000,

to wit, $3,463.21.

[3] 4.

The determination of the tax is based on the fol-

lowing errors

:

(NOTE—The additional assessment as computed

by the Commissioner is based upon audits of the

returns of B. J. Eucker and Rucker Bros, (a co-

partnership) made by an agent of the Bureau of

Internal Revenue. The errors here to be stated

appear in the report of the audit of Rucker Bros.

(a copartnership) (No. 3049-W, IT:EN:T-AIW.)

dated November 3, 1924, and signed by F. H.

Goudy, Supervising Internal Revenue Agent).

ERROR #1—The Commissioner has added to the

income of the partnership $24,-

231.97, "Timber sold Everett Log-

ging Co." (Schedule 1, item (g)

of above mentioned report.)

ERROR #2—The Commissioner has computed the

tax on the entire distributive

share of B. J. Rucker in the in-

come of Rucker Bros, (a partner-

ship).

5.

The facts upon which the taxpayer relies as the

basis of his appeal are as follows:

FACTS RE ERROR # 1.

This addition to the income of the partnership

represents the total purchase price of certain tim-
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ber sold by the Tulalip Co. (a corporation) to the

Everett Logging Co. An initial payment of $5,000

was made by the latter to the former in September,

1916. The balance of $19,231.77 was paid presum-

ably to C. W. Miley (a stockholder in the Tulalip

Co.) some time prior to December 31, 1927. This

timber was never owned by Rucker Bros, (a part-

nership) nor did they receive the proceeds from its

sale, the final payment was made in 1917, and the

sale became a closed transaction not later than De-

cember 31, 1917.

FACTS RE ERROR #2.

During the entire year 1918, B. J. Rucker was

a married man living with his wife, Ruby Rucker,

and said B. J. Rucker had no separate income in

the year 1918.

[4] The taxpayer, in support of his appeal, re-

lies upon the following propositions of law:

1. The income received by a corporation may not

be included in the income of a partnership

for the purpose of determining the income

tax liability of the members thereof.

2. Any loss or gain resulting from a sale must be

reported in the year in which the transaction

occurred.

3. Under the law and decisions of the courts in

the State of Washington, all the pro^Derty and

all the earnings of either spouse are presumed

to be the property and earnings of the mari-

tal community, and the burden of proof is

on any party claiming that said property or
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income or any portion thereof is the separate

property of one spouse or the other,

WHEREFORE, the taxpayer respectfully prays

that this Board may hear and determine its appeal.

(Signed) HERBERT ELLES SMITH.
HERBERT ELLES SMITH (C. P. A.),

1124 White Bldg., Seattle, Wash.,

Attorney for the Taxpayer.

State of Washington,

County of Snohomish,—ss.

B. J. Rucker, being duly sworn, says that he is the

taxpayer, named in the foregoing petition; that he

has read the said petition, or had the same read to

him, and is familiar with the statements therein

contained, and that the facts therein stated are

true, except such facts as are stated to be upon

information and belief, and those facts he believes

to be true.

(Signed) B. J. RUCKER.
Sworn to before me this 24 day of March, 1925.

[Seal] (Signed) J. J. SHEEHAN,
Notary Public.

[5] COPY.

February 27, 1925.

IT:CR:G-6.

GJG.

Mr. B. J. Rucker,

Lake Stevens, Washington.

Sir:

Your claim for the abatement of $12,591.20 in-

come tax for the year 1918 has been examined.
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A reaudit of your return for the year involved

discloses an over-assessment amounting to $9,127.99,

as shown in Schedule 1 attached hereto. In the

determination of this overassessment, due considera-

tion was given to the statements set forth in your

claim and appeal filed.

Your claim will therefore be rejected for |3,463.21.

The Collector of Internal Revenue for your dis-

trict will, upon the expiration of thirty days from

the date of this letter, be officially notified of such

rejection.

Upon receipt of notice and demand from that

official, payment should be made to his office in

accordance with the conditions of the notice.

Respectfully,

J. G. BRIGHT,
Deputy Commissioner.

By L. I. LOHMANN,
Head of Division.

Enclosure

:

Schedule 1.
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[6] B. J. Rucker. Year ended Dec. 31, 1918.

SCHEDULE 1.

Computation of Tax.

Net income disclosed by Revenue

Agent's Supplemental Report

dated Nov. 3, 1924 $47,599.90

Less : Exemption 2,400.00

Income subject to normal tax $45,199.90

Normal tax at 6% on $ 4,000 . 00 $ 240 . 00

Normal tax at 12% on 41,199 . 90 4,943 . 99

Surtax on 46,000.00 4,610.00

Surtax at 227o on 1,599.90 351.98

Total tax $10,145.97

Previously assessed

:

Original assessment April 29, 1919 $ 3,082.24

Additional assessment May 29, 1920 3,600.52

Assessed Marcb 1924, P. 4, L 8, Spl 10 12,591 . 20

Total taxes previously assessed $19,273.96

Overassessed 9,127 .99
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Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing petition cer-

tified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerlv, U. S. Board of Tax Apjpeals.

[7] Filed Apr. 21, 1925. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 2928.

In re: Appeal of B. J. RUCKER, Lake Stevens,

Washington.

ANSWER.

The Commissioner of Internal Revenue by his at-

torney, A. W. Gregg, Solicitor of Internal Reve-

nue, for answer to the petition of the above-named

taxpayer, admits and denies as follows:

(1) Admits the allegations contained in para-

graphs 1, and 3.

(2) Admits that the Commissioner has added

to the income of the partnership of Rucker Brothers

the amount of $24,231.97, representing timber sold

to the Everett Logging Company.

(3) Denies each and every other material alle-

gation of fact contained in the petition.

PROPOSITIONS OF LAW.

(1) The Commissioner has not, since the enact-

ment of the Revenue Act of 1924, determined a de-
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ficiency in tax or proposed to assess an additional

tax for 1918 against this taxpayer.

(2) Income for 1918 of the taxpayer and his

wife has been properly adjusted by the Commis-

sioner.

(3) Taxpayer's distributive share of the amount

of $24,231.97, representing the profit arising from

the sale of the timber mentioned above, was prop-

erly included in taxpayer's gross income for 1918.

WHEREFORE it is prayed that the taxpayer's

petition be dismissed and the appeal denied.

A. W. GREGG,
Solicitor of Internal Revenue,

Attorney for Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

Of Counsel:

A. H. FAST,
Special Attorney,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing answer cer-

tified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[8] A true copy.

Teste: B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.
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United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET Nos. 2928 and 2929.

Promulgated December 27, 1927.

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

W. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

The respondent erred in adding to the income of

the partnership, of which the petitioners were

members, the gross proceeds from the sale of cer-

tain timber by the Tulalip Company to the Everett

Logging Company in 1915.

Petitioner B. J. Rucker's distrbutive share of

partnership income held to be separate property

under the laws of the State of Washington, and

therefore taxable to him.

J. B. FOGARTY, Esq., WILLIAM P. BELL, Esq.,

and HERBERT E. SMITH, C. P. A., for the

Petitioners.

GRANVILLE S. BORDEN, Esq., for the Respond-

ent.

This is a proceeding for the redetermination of
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deficiencies in income taxes in the amounts of

$3,463.21 and $3,463.20 asserted by the respondent

against B. J. Rucker and W. J. Eucker, respec-

tively, for the year 1918.

On motion of the parties it was ordered that the

cases of B. J. Rucker, Docket No. 2928, and W. J.

Rucker, Docket No. 2929, be consolidated and heard

jointly.

There are two issues raised by the pleadings, the

first of which is identical in both cases, and the

second is raised only by the petition of B. J. Rucker.

The issues are:

[9] 1, Whether the respondent has erred in

adding to the income of the partnership for the

year in question the sum of $24,231.97, representing

timber sold to Everett Logging Company.

2. Whether the respondent was in error in com-

puting the tax of B. J. Rucker, a married man, on

the entire distributive share of the partnership of

which he was a member.

FINDINGS OF FACT.
The petitioners herein comprise the co-

partnership known as Rucker Brothers, of Lake

Stevens, Washington, each owning one-half interest

in said copartnership.

C. W. Miley, who was president of the Tulalip

Company, a corporation, during the year 1912, and

succeeding years, purchased a quantity of timber

in that year in his own name, for which he paid the

sum of $9,100. He in turn deeded it to the Tulalip

Company for stock in that company, and that com-

pany thereupon sold it to the Everett Logging
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Company in September, 1916, at a total sale price

of 124,231.77, receiving as an initial payment there-

for in 1916 the sum of |5,000 and in 1917 it received

118,675.37 in monthly payments, and in February,

1918, it received as a final payment the sum of

$556.40. The timber in question was sold by the

Tulalip Company to be paid for by the Everett

Logging Company, as it vras scaled and sold, and

all of it was scaled and sold prior to December 31,

1917, with the exception of that represented by the

payment of 1556.40 in 1918. The initial payment

of $5,000 was paid by the Everett Logging Com-

pany to the Tulalip Company in 1916 and the re-

maining balance was paid by checks which were sent

to Miley, made payable to the company, [10] and

he in turn endorsed them and cashed them, using

the proceeds to pay off a debt that he had incurred

in the company. The partnership of Rucker Broth-

ers held fifty per cent of the stock of the Tulalip

Company and Miley held fifty per cent.

B. J. Rucker was married in December, 1904, and

he has lived continuously with his wife since that

time. At the time of his marriage, Rucker owned

a one-half interest in the copartnership of Rucker

Brothers, the assets of which consisted of lands and

town lots and some shares of stock in the Rucker

Bank. Rucker Brothers were engaged in the real

estate business at the time of Rucker 's marriage,

but in 1907 or 1908 the firm entered into the logging

and sawmill business. The lands and town lots

owned by the partnership at the time of Rucker 's

marriage were nonproductive properties from which
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there has been no income from the time of his mar-

riage to the present time. In fact they have paid

in taxes several times what the properties would sell

for to-day.

The profits earned by the partnership of Rucker

Brothers have come from enterprises they have en-

gaged in, such as timber and sawmill and logging

operations for which the firm borrowed money and

started. They have bought most of their timber on

the installment plan making only a small initial

payment therefor,

Rucker has kept no record of the property he had

at the time he was married, nor of what he has

accumulated subsequently to marriage.

Rucker Brothers purchased a quantity of timber

from the Puget Mill Company in 1917 at a total

purchase price of $625,000 for which they paid

$5,000 in cash and the balance of $620,000 in prom-

issory notes [11] extending over a period of

several years, all of which notes were signed by

W. J. and B. J. Rucker for the partnership. A
portion of that timber was later sold at a profit

of upward of $80,000. The portion of that timber

that was not sold, was cut and sawed at their own

mill and paid for as it was cut and removed.

During the period 1907 to 1916 the firm of

Rucker Brothers borrowed several sums of money

for use in the partnership.

All of Rucker 's property at the time of his mar-

riage was his equity in the partnership and all of

his income has been from the partnership distribu-

tions.
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Rueker Brothers filed an amended partnership

return for the year 1918, showing therein $95,699.27

as the total distributive income of the partnership

for that year divided $47,849.64 and $47,849.63 for

W. J. and B. J. Rucker respectively.

The individual (amended) return of B. J.

Rucker for 1918 shows total net income from the

partnership of Rucker Brothers to be $47,849.63,

from which a contribution of $268.73 and $10,957.58

were deducted, the latter amount being explained

on the return as "net loss on dissolving corporation

entirely owned by Rucker Brothers Partnership.

Tulalip Company $20,059.82, Rucker $1,875.17,

total $21,915.17, individual claim one-half under

section 214 (1) Div. (4)," leaving a net taxable

income of $36,623.32.

The individual (amended) return of W. J.

Rucker for the year 1918 shows a total net income

from the partnership of Rucker Brothers of $47,-

849.64 from which the same deductions were taken

as in B. J. Rucker 's return with the same explana-

tion, leaving a net taxable income for that year of

$36,623.32.

[12] The respondent determined the net income

of each to be $47,599.90.

OPINION.

MORRIS.—The first allegation of error is that

the respondent added to the income of the partner-

ship the sum of $24,231.97 "timber sold Everett

Logging Co." and the respondent has admitted the

fact of such addition.



16 B.J. Rucher vs.

Certain timber was originally purchased by Miley
in the spring of 1912 which he sold to the Tulalip

Company and that company in turn sold it to the

Everett Logging Company in 1916 for the total sum
of 124,231.97. The purchase price to the Everett

Logging Company was paid |5,000 in 1916, $18,-

675.35 in 1917, and $556.40 in 1918. All of the fore-

going amounts were paid to Tulalip Company and
Miley endorsed the checks received subsequently to

the initial cash payment of $5,000 in 1916 and made
use of the proceeds to liquidate an indebtedness that

he had incurred in the company.

While Rucker Brothers owned fifty per cent of

the stock of the Tulalip Company and possibly

there was some intermingling of accounts, the tes-

timony is perfectly clear that the timber in ques-

tion was owned by the Tulalip Company, sold by

it, and further that the sale price was paid to it.

We can see no justification for holding that the

sum in question is taxable directly to the members

of the firm of Rucker Brothers. Furthermore,

even if we were to assume that the income was in

fact taxable to the members of the firm of Rucker

Brothers, we do not understand upon what theory

in law it would be taxable to them in 1918, because

it is clear that the transaction was consummated

in 1916, and that all but a very small portion of

the total sale price was received prior to December

31, 1917. We are of the opinion that the respond-

ent erred in adding to the sum in question to the

income of [13] the partnership of Rucker
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Brothers in 1918, and we therefore sustain the con-

tention of the petitioner.

The second allegation of error is urged by the

petitioner B. J. Rucker, only, and it relates to the

question of whether his distributive share of the

profits of the partnership of which he is a mem-

ber, constitutes community income or whether it

constitutes separate income and hence taxable to

himself. The facts and circumstances with respect

to this issue are the same as those existing in the

Appeal of B. J. Rucker, Docket No. 3509, wherein

we held that the income in question was derived

from his separate property and was taxable to him

and we are therefore bound by our decision in that

case with respect to the issue in the instant case.

Reviewed by the board.

Judgment will be entered on 15 days' notice un-

der Rule 50.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing findings of

fact and opinion certified from the record as a

true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[14] A true copy.

Teste: B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.
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United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 2928.

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

ORDER OF REDETERMINATION.

Pursuant to the Board's findings of fact and

opinion, promulgated December 27, 1927, the par-

ties filed proposed redeterminations which came on

for hearing on settlement, March 8, 1928, at which

time the proposed redeterminations were taken

under advisement. Due consideration having been

given thereto, and it appearing that petitioner has

failed to compute the deficiency in accordance with

our findings of fact and opinion, and the respond-

ent's computation showing a correct tax liability

of $6,357.50, tax paid of $4,776.66, and previous

assessments of $19,273.96 less $1,906.10 previously

allowed, it is

ORDERED AND DECIDED: That, upon rede-

termination, the correct tax liability for 1918 is

$6,357.50, the tax paid is $4,776.66, and the unpaid

portion of the tax liability is $1,580.84; the previous

assessments are $19,273.96 less $1,906.10 previously
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allowed and the unpaid assessment to be abated is

$11,010.36.

Entered: Mar. 20, 1928.

(Signed) LOGAN MORRIS,

Member U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing order of

redetermination certified from the record as a true

copy. _
[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,

Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[15] Filed Sep. 14, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

Term, 1928.

No,

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

DAVID H. BLAIR, Commissioner of Internal

Revenue,
Respondent.
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PETITION TO REVIEW DECISION OF
UNITED STATES BOAED OF TAX AP-

PEALS.

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

:

Your petitioner, B. J. Rucker, respectfully rep-

resents that he is a resident and citizen of the city

of Everett, County of Snohomish, and State of

Washington.

I.

NATURE OF CONTROVERSY.

1. On the twenty-seventh day of December, 1927,

the United States Board of Tax Appeals promul-

gated its findings and opinion in the case of B. J.

Rucker, petitioner, vs. David H. Blair, Commissioner

of Internal Revenue, respondent, Docket #2928,

in which opinion it was held that all of petitioner's

distributive share of the income of Rucker Bros,

partnership for the year 1918, was petitioner's sepa-

rate income and no part thereof was community

income of said petitioner and his wife, Ruby Rucker.

2. On March 20, 1928, the United States Board

of Tax Appeals entered its final order of redeter-

mination of the tax liability of said petitioner for

the year 1918, based on said opinion.

II.

ORDER OF REVIEW.

A review of the decision of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals in the above-entitled pro-
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ceeding is sought by the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

III.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR.

Your petitioner says that in the record and pro-

ceedings of said United States Board of Tax Ap-

peals, in the above-entitled cause and in the final

order entered therein, there is manifest error, and

for error petitioner assigns the following

:

1. The Board erred in holding that all of the

said petitioner's distributive share of the income

of Rucker Bros, for the year 1918 was the separate

income of the petitioner.

[16] 2. The Board erred in failing to hold

that all of the said petitioner's distributive share

of the income of Rucker Bros, for the year 1918

was conmumity income of the said petitioner and

his wife.

3. The said findings of fact promulgated by the

Board are concurred in by the petitioner, but the

Board erred in its conclusions.

Your petitioner, therefore, prays for review, by

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, of the decision of the United

States Board of Tax Appeals in the above-entitled

case, in accordance with the Act of Congress in such

case made and provided, and that the Clerk of said

Board be directed to transmit and deliver to the

Clerk of said court certified copies of all and every

of the documents listed and set forth in the rules

adopted by said United States Circuit Court of
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Appeals for the Ninth Circuit providing for the

presentation of petitions for review of decisions.

And he will ever pray, etc.

B. J. RUCKER.

State of Washington,

County of Snohomish,—ss.

Personally appeared before me the subscribed,

a notary public in and for said county, B. J. Rucker,

petitioner above named, who, being duly sworn ac-

cording to law, does depose and say that the facts

set forth in the foregoing petition are true and cor-

rect.

B. J. RUCKER.

Sworn and subscribed before me this 6th day of

Sept. , 1928.

W. P. BELL,
Notary Public.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing petition for

review certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[17] Filed Oct. 4, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

Before the United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 2928.

B. J. RUCKER
vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE.
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PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

To the Clerk of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals

:

You will please prepare and, within sixty days

from the date of the filing of the petition for re-

view in the above stated case, transmit to the Clerk

of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit certified copies of the following

documents

:

1. The docket entries of proceedings before the

United States Board of Tax Appeals in the

case above entitled.

2. Findings of fact, opinion, and decision of the

Board.

3. Order of redetermination and final decision.

4. Petition for review.

The foregoing to be prepared, certified, and trans-

mitted as required by law and the rules of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

W. P. BELL.

W. P. BELL,
Everett, Washington,

Attorney for B. J. Rucker.

J. B. FOGARTY.
J. B. FOGARTY,
Everett, Washington,

Attorney for B. J. Rucker.

September 28, 1928.
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[18] Filed Oct. 4, 1928. United States Board
of Tax Appeals.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit,

Term, 1928.

DOCKET No. 2928.

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

DAVID H. BLAIR, Commissioner of Internal

Revenue,

Respondent.

NOTICE OF FILING AND SERVICE OF
PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF REC-
ORD.

To David H. Blair, Commissioner of Internal

Revenue

:

You are hereby notified that the petitioner above

named has filed with the United States Board of

Tax Appeals his praecipe for the record of certain

parts of the proceedings in the above-entitled ac-

tion, to be used in the review of the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals in the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-
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cuit, and a full, true and correct copy of said prae-

cipe is herewith served upon you.

^ W. P. BELL,^
W. P. BELL,

Everett, Wash.,

Counsel for Petitioner.

J. B. FOGARTY.
J. B. FOGARTY,

Everett, Wash.,

Counsel for Petitioner.

Service of the foregoing notice is hereby ad-

mitted and a copy thereof received together with

copy of praecipe in the above stated case.

Dated this 3d day of October, 1928.

C. M. CHAREST.
M.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing praecipe

and notice of filing certified from the record as a

true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals,

[Endorsed] : No. 5662, United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, B. J,

Rucker, Petitioner, vs. David H. Blair, Commis-

sioner of Internal Revenue, Respondent. Tran-

script of Record. Upon Petition to Review Order

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Filed December 20, 1928.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.
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W. P. BELL,

J. B. FOGARTY,

Attorneys for Petitioner.

FILED
•JAM U !?2D

PAUL P. O'BRIEN.





No. 5662
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B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

^

vs.

DAVID H. BLAIR, Commissioner of/

Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

BRIEF OF PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a proceeding to review the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals against the

petitioner for the year 1918.

The facts as found by the Board necessary to a

consideration of this review are as follows:

"B. J. Rucker was married in December,
1904, and he has lived continuously with his

wife since that time. At the time of his mar-
riage Rucker owned a one-half interest in the co-

partnership of Rucker Brothers, the assets of

which consisted of lands and town lots and
some shares of stock in the Rucker Bank.
Rucker Brothers were engaged in the real es-



tate business at the time of Rucker's marriage,
but in 1907 or 1908 the firm entered into the

logging and sawmill business. The lands and
town lots owned by the partnership at the time
of Rucker's marriage were nonproductive prop-

erties from which there has been no income
from the time of his marriage to the present
time. In fact they have paid in taxes several

times what the property v^^ould sell for today.

"The profits earned by the partnership of

Rucker Brothers have come from enterprises

they have engaged in, such as timber and saw-
mill and logging operations for which the firm
borrowed money and started. They (17) have
bought most of their timber on the installment

plan, making only a small initial payment
therefor.

"Rucker has kept no record of the property
he had at the time he was married, nor of what
he has accumulated subsequently to marriage.

"Rucker Brothers purchased a quantity of

timber from the Puget Mill Company in 1917
at a total purchase price of $625,000 for which
they paid $5,000 in cash and the balance of

$620,000 in promissory notes extending over a
period of several years, all of which notes were
signed by W. J. and B. J. Rucker for the part-
nership. A portion of that timber was later

sold at a profit of $80,000. The portion of that

timber that was not sold was cut and sawed at

their own sawmill and was paid therefor as it

was cut and removed.

"During the period 1907 to 1916 the firm of

Rucker Brothers borrowed several sums of
money for use in the partnership.

"All of Rucker's property at the time of his

marriage was his equity in the partnership and



all of his income has been from the partner-

ship distributions.

"Rucker Brothers filed an amended part-

nership return for the year 1918, showing

therein $95,699.27 as the total distributive in-

come of the partnership for that year divided

$47,849.64 and $47,849.63 for W. J. and B. J.

Rucker, respectively.

"The individual (amended) return of B. J.

Rucker for 1918 shows total net income from

the partnership of Rucker Brothers to be $47,-

849.63, from which a contribution of $268.73

and $10,957.58 were deducted, the latter

amount being explained on the return as ''net

loss on dissolving corporation entirely owned

by Rucker Brother Partnership. Tulalip Com-

pany $20,059.82, Rucker $1,875.17, total $21,-

915.17, individual claim one-half under sec-

tion 214 (1) Div. (4)," leaving a net taxable

income of $36,623.32.

"The individual (amended) return of W. J.

Rucker for the year 1918 shows a total net in-

come from the partnership of Rucker Brothers

of $47,849.64 from which the same deductions

were taken as in B. J. Rucker's return with

the same explanation, leaving a net taxable in-

come for that year of $36,623.32.

(12) The respondent determined the net in-

come of each to be $47,599.90."

Transcript No. 5662, pp. 13, 14, 15.

On these facts the Board of Tax Appeals held

that the Commissioner of Internal Revenue had cor-

rectly held that the entire distributive share of the

income of B. J. Rucker in the partnership of Rucker

Brothers was separate property as follows:



"The second allegation of error is urged by
the petitioner B. J. Rucker, only, and it re-

lates to the question of whether his distribu-

tive share of the profits of the partnership of

which he is a member, constitutes community
income or whether it constitutes separate in-

come and hence taxable to himself. The facts

and circumstances with respect to this issue

are the some as those existing in the Appeal of

B. J, Rucker, Docket No. 3509, wherein we
held that the income in question was derived
from his separate property and was taxable

to him and we are therefore bound by our de-

cision in that case with respect to the issue in

the instant case.

TranscHpt of Record, p. 17.

The sole question to be determined by the court

is whether the facts as found by the Board of Tax

Appeals support the decision of that Board.

Petitioner seeking a reversal of that decision has

brought the case to this court for review.

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR
1. The Board erred in holding that all of said

petitioner's distributive share of the income of

Rucker Brothers for 1918 was the separate income

of petitioner.

2. The Board erred in failing to hold that all of

said petitioner's distributive share of the income of

Rucker Brothers for 1918 was the community prop-

erty of said petitioner and his wife.

3. The Board erred in its conclusions.

Transcript of Record p. 21.



ARGUMENT

As the different specifications of error raise the

same question they may all be discussed together.

No question of fact is involved in this proceed-

ing. The petitioner accepts the facts as found by

the Board of Tax Appeals. But he urges that the

conclusions drawn from these facts by the Board

of Tax Appeals are erroneous.

The question involved is the proper construction

of the community property statutes of the State of

Washington.

The statutes pertinent to the inquiry are as fol-

lows:

Section 6890 of Remington's Compiled Statutes:

Property and pecuniary rights owned by the hus-

band before marriage, and that acquired by him

afterward by gift, bequest, devise or descent, with

the rents, issues, and profits thereof, shall not be

subject to the debts or contracts of his wife, and he

may manage, lease, sell, convey, encumber or de-

vise by will, such property without the wife joining

in such management, alienation, or encumbrance, as

fully and to the same effect as though he were un-

married.

Section 6891: The property and pecuniary rights

of every married woman at the time of her mar-

riage, or afterward acquired by gift, devise, or in-



6

heritance, with the rents, issues, and profits there-

of, shall not be subject to the debts or contracts of

her husband, and she may manage, lease, sell, con-

vey, encumber or devise by will such property, to

the same extent and in the same manner that her

husband can, property belonging to him.

Section 6892 : Property, not acquired or owned as

prescribed in the next two preceding sections, ac-

quired after marriage by either husband or wife,

or both, is community property. The husband shall

have the management and control of community

personal property, with a like power of disposition

as he has of his separate personal property, except

he shall not devise by will more than one-half there-

of.

Sections 6890 and 6891 define separate property

and Section 6892 provides that all property not ac-

quired or owned as prescribed by the next two pre-

ceding sections acquired after marriage shall be

community property.

The profits were made from timber bought on

credit during the existence of the marriage com-

munity of petitioner and his wife.

23.)

Notes were given to evidence this indebted-

ness, signed by W. J. and B. J. Rucker for Rucker

Bros. (Transcript, p. 14).



From these facts the appellants contend that all

of the income reported by the said B. J. Rucker and

wife was bonafide community income and was prop-

erly reported one-half as the income of B. J. Rucker

and one-half as the income of his wife, Ruby Ruck-

er.

It is the well established rule that the Federal

Courts follow the State Courts in the construction

of State Statutes.

"Decisions by the court of last resort of a

state construing state laws, on the faith of

which a subsequent contract is made, will be

adopted and applied by the Supreme Court of

the United States in considering the nature of

the contract right relied upon.

"State decisions establishing a rule of prop-

erty will be followed by the Supreme Court of

the United States when called upon to inter-

pret the state law, if it is possible to do so.

"The community system of property was not

destroyed, so as to make it impossible for com-
munity or common property to exist, by Wash,
act 1893, giving the administration and dispo-

sition of the community property to the hus-

band."

Warburton v. White, 176 U. S. 484, 44 Law
Ed. 555.

Under the laws of the State of Washington as

construed by the Supreme Court the following legal

conclusions are firmly established.

1. That all property acquired by husband and
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wife or either of them during marriage is presumed

to be community property and the burden of proof

is on the person claiming the same to be separate

property.

2. The property acquired by husband and wife

or either of them during the marriage relation on

borrowed capital is community property.

3. That separate property of either husband or

wife so mixed or intermingled with the community

as to be incapable of accurate segregation becomes

community property.

4. That the rents, issues and profits of commun-

ity property and the earnings of the husband, and

of the wife while living with the husband, is com-

munity property and of course community income.

The first proposition is sustained by an unbrok-

en line of decisions from

Lemon vs. Watterman, 2 W. T. 485.

To Marston vs. Rue, 92 Wash. 129.

The following authorities sustain the second pro-

position.

Yesler vs. Hochstettler, 4 Wash. 349.

Main vs. Scholl, 20 Wash. 205.

Fielding vs. Keller, 86 Wash. 194.

Graves vs. Columbia Underwriters, 83 Wash.
198.

As to the third proposition the finding of fact

is as follows:



''Rucker has kept no record of the property

he had at the time he was married nor of what

he has accumulated subsequently to marriage."

{Transcript p. 14).

"In regard to the money in the bank, it is

impossible to segregate that as to its sources.

Its separate and community natures have be-

come so confused that the court cannot appor-

tion them, and the favor with which commun-

ity property is regarded and the presumptions

in favor of it are such that we must agree with

trial court that these funds in bank are the

property of the comxmunity and not subject to

the appellant's judgment."

119 Wash. 287, Jacobs vs. Hoitt.

"So we have held that, where separate funds

have been so commingled with the community

funds as to make it impossible to trace the

former or tell which are separate and which

are community funds, all funds or property

into which they have been invested belong to

the community. Yesler vs. Hochstettler, 4

Wash. 349, 30 Pac. 398; Doyle vs. Langdon,

80 Wash. 175, 141 Pac. 352; In re Buchanan's

Estate, 89 Wash. 172, 154 Pac. 129. Such is

the situation here and we hold that the money
and the property into which it was vested be-

longed to the community."

In re estate of Carmack, 133 Wash. 374.

"When either spouse claims that his separate

property has been commingled with commun-
ity funds he must support by affirmative proof

his claim to distinct articles or parcels or to a

share of some mass or parcel, or he must fail."

McKay on Community Property, Sec. 323

(Sec. Ed.)
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As to the fourth proposition

:

"Property acquired by either spouse during the

coverture, otherwise than by gift, bequest, de-

vise or descent, is presumptively community
property."

Union Sav. & Trust Co., vs. Manney, 101
Wash. 279.

"It is conceded that the property in dispute

was acquired and improved by community
funds earned after marriage. The statute

makes such property community property."

In re Parker's estate, 115 Wash. 60.

The interest of petitioner in this timber, under

an unbroken line of decisions, was the community

property of himself and wife and any profit realiz-

ed therefrom was community income of petitioner

and wife.

The decision of the Board of Tax Appeals on this

branch of the case is based solely on the decision

of the Supreme Court of the State of Washington,

In re: Brotvn estate, 124 Wash. 273. The Brown

case was decided on the authority of Jacobs vs.

Hoitt 119 Wash. 283 and Finn vs. Finn, 106 Wash.

137. In both of these cases the facts were entirely

different from the facts of the case at bar In Finn

vs. Finn the property was purchased and partly

paid for by the wife with separate funds and the

balance secured by a joint note and mortgage upon

her separate property. These facts were held to
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overthrow the presumption of community property

even though the property was acquired during the

marriage relation.

In Jacobs vs. Hoitt the holding of the court was

that the status of the bakery plant and business ac-

quired before marriage by the use of separate funds

and the pledging of separate credit is separate

property. In that case Mr. Jacobs signed the note

in question before his marriage.

In the case at bar, Mr. Rucker signed the note

some 10 to 15 years after his marriage, and a note

signed by the husband during the existence of the

marriage relation is presumptively an obligation

of the community.

"Where a promissory note is executed by
the husband as principal, it raises a presump-
tion in favor of the community character of the

debt."

Reed vs. Loney, 22 Wash. 433.

Way vs. Lyric Theatre Co., 79 Wash. 275.

Peter vs. Hansen, 86 Wash. 413.

Horton vs. D. K. Banking Co., 15 Wash. 399.

SUMMARY
Under the Statutes of the State of Washington,

as construed by the Supreme Court of that State,

the profits realized on this timber was community

property.

The Federal Courts as above shown will follow
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the construction placed upon State Statutes by the

highest court of the State. The authorities relied

upon the Board in rendering the decision adverse

to petitioner do not support the conclusion placed

upon them by the Board.

The cases relied upon by the Board were decided

upon an entirely different state of facts than exist

in the case at bar.

The decision is manifestly erroneous and there-

fore should be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

W. P. BELL,

J. B. FOGARTY,

Attorneys for Petitioner.
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No. 5663

B. J. Rucker, petitioner

V.
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PREVIOUS OPINION

The only previous opinion in each case is that of

the United States Board of Tax Appeals (Cause

^ The facts and issues of law in both Cause No. 5662 and

Cause No. 5663 being in substance the same, respondent's

position is bi'ought to the attention of the court in the one

brief.

(1)



No. 5662, E. 11-17, and Cause No. 5663, R. 17-29)

reported in 9 B. T. A. 921 and 9 B. T. A. 915,

respectively.
JURISDICTION

The appeals in the above-entitled causes involve

income tax for the calendar years 1918 and 1919

(Cause No. 5662, R. 4, 6, 7 ; Cause No. 5663, R. 4,

12-15), and are taken from final orders of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals, entered

March 20, 1928 (Cause No. 5662, R. 18-19; Cause

No. 5663, R. 30). The cases are brought to this

court by petitions for review, filed October 4, 1928

(Cause No. 5662, R. 20-22; Cause No. 5663, R. 31-

34) pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1926 (Act of

February 26, 1926, c. 27, Sections 1001, 1002, and

1003,44Stat.9, 109, 110).

QUESTION PRESENTED

Did the distributive share of B. J. Rucker of the

profits of the partnership of Rucker Brothers, dur-

ing the years 1918 and 1919, constitute separate in-

come, taxable in its entirety to Rucker, or did it

constitute community property, taxable one-half to

B. J. Rucker and one-half to his wife ?

STATUTES INVOLVED

Revenue Act of 1918, c. 18, 40 Stat. 1057, 1152

:

Pakt II.

—

Individuals

NORMAL TAX

Sec. 210. That, * * * there shall be

levied, collected, and paid for each taxable



year upon the net income of every individual

a normal tax * * *

.

SURTAX

Sec. 211. (a) That, * * * there shall

be levied, collected, and paid for each taxa-

ble year upon the net income of every indi-

vidual, a surtax * * *.

Revenue Act of 1926 (Act of February 26, 1926),

c. 27, 44 Stat. 9, 109—

COMMUNITY PROPEETY

Sec. 1212. Income for any period before

January 1, 1925, of a marital community in

the income of which the wife has a vested

interest as distinguished from an expectancy,

shall be held to be correctly returned if re-

turned by the spouse to whom the income be-

longed under the State law applicable to

such marital community for such period.

Any spouse who elected so to return such

income shall not be entitled to any credit or

refund on the ground that such income

should have been returned by the other

spouse.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The facts are as follows

:

B. J. Rucker, the petitioner, was married in

December, 1904, and he has lived continuously

with his wife since that time. At the time of his

marriage, Rucker owned a one-half interest in the

copartnership of Rucker Brothers, the assets of



which consisted of lands and town lots and some

shares of stock in the Rucker Bank. Rucker

Brothers were engaged in the real-estate business

at the time of Rucker 's marriage, but in 1907 or

1908 the firm entered into the logging and sawmill

business. The lands and town lots owned by the

partnership at the time of Rucker 's marriage were

nonproductive properties from which there has

been no income from the time of his marriage to

the present time. (Cause No, 5662, R. 13-14;

Cause No. 5663, R. 22.)

The profits earned by the partnership of Rucker

Brothers have come from enterprises that they

have been engaged in, such as timber and sawmill

and logging operations, for which the firm bor-

rowed money and started. They have bought most

of their timber on the installment plan, making

only a small initial payment therefor. (Cause

No. 5662, R. 14; Cause No. 5663, R. 22-23.)

Rucker has kept no record of the property he

had at the time he was married, nor of what he has

accumulated subsequently to marriage. (Cause

No. 5662, R. 14; Cause No. 5663, R. 23.)

Rucker Brothers purchased a quantity of timber

from the Puget Mill Compan}^ in 1917, at a total

purchase price of $625,000, for which they paid

$5,000 in cash, and the balance of $620,000 in prom-

issory notes, extending over a period of several

years, all of which notes were signed by W. J. and

B. J. Rucker, for the partnership. A portion of

that timber was later sold at a profit of upwards of



$80,000. The portion of that timber that was not

sold was cut and sawed at their own mill and paid

for as it was cut and removed. (Cause No. 5662,

R. 14; Cause No. 5663, R. 23.)

During the period 1907 to 1916 the firm of Rueker

Brothers borrowed several sums of money for use

in the partnership. (Cause No. 5662, R. 14; Cause

No. 5663, R. 23.)

All of Rueker 's property at the time of his mar-

riage was his equity in the partnership, and all of

his income has been from the partnership distri-

butions. (Cause No. 5662, R. 14; Cause No. 5663,

R. 23.)

Rueker Brothers filed an amended partnership

return for the year 1918, showing therein $95,699.27

as the total distributive income of the partnership

for that year, divided $47,849.64 and $47,849.63 for

W. J. and B. J. Rueker, respectively. (Cause No.

5662, R. 15.)

Losses on the dissolution of the corporation

Tulalip Company, owned entirely by the partner-

ship, Rueker Brothers, deducted from the distribu-

tive income, left a net taxable income reported by

B. J. Rueker of $36,623.32. (Cause No. 5662, R.

15.)

The respondent determined the net income of B.

J. Rueker to be $47,599.90. (Cause No. 5662, R.

15.)

The Board of Tax Appeals allowed the deduction

taken and the Commissioner of Internal Revenue



has acquiesced in the Board's decision, (Cause

No. 5662, R. 15-17; Int. Eev. Bui. VII, 29-3801.)

B. J. Rucker filed an individual income tax return

for the year 1919 on March 15, 1920, showing therein

as his share of the partnership distribution $62,-

741.12, and in addition, salary received from the

partnership, of $9,000, making a total net income

reported of $71,741.12. (Cause No. 5663, R. 23.)

Mrs. B. J. Rucker filed an individual income tax

return for the year 1919, on May 5, 1921, reporting

$35,870.56, being one-half of the total income re-

ported by Rucker in his original return. On May
5, 1921, Rucker himself filed an amended individual

income tax return, showing therein one-half of the

total net income reported by him in his individual

return, or $35,870.56. (Cause No. 5663, R. 23-24.)

The parties agreed upon the disputed additions

to income and deductions taken, by written stipula-

tion. (Cause No. 5663, R. 19-22.)

The sole question remaining for determination

by the Board, in both causes, was whether the Com-

missioner correctly held that the entire distributive

share of B. J. Rucker, in the partnership of Rucker

Brothers, was separate property, or whether said

share was community income, under the laws of the

State of Washington. The Board upheld the Com-

missioner's determination.

The petitioner, in both causes, has concurred in

all of the findings of fact promulgated by the Board,

contending only that the Board erred in its conclu-



sions. (Cause No. 5662, R. 21 ; Cause No. 5663, R.

33.)
SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The entire distributive share of the income of B.

J. Rueker, in the partnership of Rueker Brothers

for the years 1918 and 1919, constituted separate,

income and hence is taxable to him.

ARGUMENT

The entue distributive share of the income of B. J. Rueker

in the partnership of Rueker Brothers for the years

1918 and 1919 constituted separate income and hence is

taxable to him

Section 1212 of the Revenue Act of 1926, supra,

provides in part that

—

Income for any period before January 1,

1925, of a marital community in the income

of which the wife has a vested interest as

distinguished from an expectancy, shall be

held to be correctly returned if returned by

the spouse to whom the income belonged

under the State law applicable to such mari-

tal comnmnity for such period.

The respective rights of husband and wife in the

community property of the State of Washington

are defined by the following sections of Reming-

ton's Compiled Statutes of Washington, 1922:

Sec. 6890. Property and pecuniary rights

owned by the husband before marriage, and

that acquired by him afterwards by gift, be-

quest, devise or descent, with the rents, is-

sues, and profits thereof, shall not be subject

40586—29 2
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to the debts or contracts of his wife, and he

may manage, lease, sell, convey, encumber,

or devise, by will, such property without the

wife joining in such management, alienation,

or encumbrance, as fully and to the same ef-

fect as though he were unmarried.

Sec. 6891. The property and pecuniary

rights of every married woman at the time of

her marriage, or afterwards acquired by

gift, devise, or inheritance, with the rents, is-

sues, and profits thereof, shall not be subject

to the debts or contracts of her husband, and

she may manage, lease, sell, convey, encum-

ber or devise by will such property, to the

same extent and in the same manner that her

husband can, property belonging to him.

Sec. 6892. Property, not acquired or owned
as prescribed in the next two preceding sec-

tions, acquired after marriage by either hus-

band or wife, or both, is community property.

The husband shall have the management and

control of community personal property,

with a like power of disposition as he has of

his separate personal property, except he

shall not devise by will more than one-half

thereof.

Stated in summary, these statutes provide that

the "property and pecuniary rights" of the hus-

band and wife, owned by them at the time of mar-

riage, together "with the rents, issues, and profits

thereof" constitute their separate property, and

the property acquired after the marriage, with

certain specified exceptions, is community prop-

erty.
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lu construing the above-quoted sections, the

courts of Washington have held, and it is now the

law in that State, that the wife has during cover-

ture, as well as upon the dissolution of the mar-

riage, a vested and definite interest and title in

community property, equal in all respects to the

interest and title of her husband therein. Opinion

of Attorney General, March 3, 1921, T. D. 3138,

4 C. B. 238; Hohjoke v. Jackson, 3 Pac. 841 (3

Wash. T. 235) ; Mahie v. Whittaker, 39 Pac. 172

(10 Wash. 656) ; Marston v. Rue, 159 Pac. Ill (92

Wash. 129) ; Schramm v. Steele, 166 Pac. 634 (97

Wash. 309); Huijvaerts v. Roedtz, 178 Pac. 801

(105 Wash. 657).

Washington is therefore one of the community

property States, within the provisions of Section

1212 of the Revenue Act of 1926, supra, in which

the husband and wife may each report one-half of

the conmiunity income. There then remains only

the question of determining whether the distribu-

tive share of B. J. Rucker of the partnership profits

for 1918 and 1919 was separate property or com-

munity property.

The courts of Washington have handed down a

vast niunber of decisions with respect to community

property, from which it is possible to establish defi-

nite rules for the determination of the status, in

that State, of the income under consideration. Cer-

tain of the rules pertinent to the discussion herein

are contained in the decision of the Supreme Court

of the State of Washington in the case of In re
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Brotvn's Estate, 214 Pac. 10, 11 (124 Wash. 273).

These rules are

:

1. The presumption is that property ac-

quired during coverture is community prop-

erty * * * ; and the burden is upon the

person claiming it to be separate property to

establish that as its character. (Citing

case.)

2. The status of the property is to be de-

termined as of the date of its acquisi-

sition. * * *. This rule is equally true

with regard to personal property as with real

property. (Citing case.)

3. If property is once shown to have been

separate property, the presumption con-

tinues that it is separate until overcome by
evidence. * * *,

Separate property continues to be separate

through all its changes and transitions so

long as it can be clearly traced and identified.

(Citing cases.)

4. The rents, issues, and profits of sep-

arate property remain separate property and.

profits resulting from money borrowed on

separate credit are separate property. (Cit-

ing cases.)

5. Separate property may lose its identity

as such by being consolidated with com-

munity property. * * *

In that case, the court found that certain items

of the estate were community property, but that the

increased value in the stock of the Klale Investment

Company and its obligations to Brown 's Estate con-

stituted separate property, the stock having been
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purchased from funds which were separate j^rop-

erty, and the profits of the company having resulted

from that original investment, together with money

borrowed on the strength of Brown's separate

credit.

The instant case is quite analogous. Applying

the principles above set forth to the facts found by

the Board, which findings have been concurred in

by petitioner, it must be concluded that the income

derived from the partnership distributions is to be

attributed primarily to separate property.

The income in question was acquired during cov-

erture, so that it is presumed to be community prop-

erty. This presumption, however, is rebuttable.

Lemon v. Waterman, 7 Pac. 899 (2 Wash. T. 485) ;

Weymouth v. Sawtelle, 44 Pac. 109 (14 Wash. 32) ;

Dobbins v. Dexter Horton & Co., 113 Pac. 1088 (62

Wash. 423).

In referring to this presumption, the court, in

WeyTiiouth V. Sawtelle, supra, in no uncertain lan-

guage says (14 Wash. 32, 33) :

* * * but this pr^esumption under our

law is a disputable, and not a conclusive,

presumption.

In the instant case the facts are

:

At the time of his marriage, Rucker owned a one-

half interest in the copartnership of Rucker

Brothers. (Cause No. 5662, R. 13 ; Cause No. 5663,

R. 22.) All of Rucker 's property at the time of his

marriage was his equity in the partnership and all
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of his income has been from the partnership dis-

tributions. (Cause No. 5662, R. 14; Cause No.

5663, R. 23.) He also received from the partner-

ship a salary of $9,000. (Cause No. 5663, R. 23.)

The salary so received is not here under considera-

tion.

The partnership interest of Rucker is unques-

tionably separate property, it having been acquired

prior to his marriage. The status of property is

determined and fixed at the date of its acquisition.

{Rule 2, in re Brotvn's Estate, supra; Katterhagen

y. Meister, 134 Pac. 673 (75 Wash. ;12).) If

property is once shown to have been separate prop-

erty the presumption continues that it is sepaj-ate

until overcome by evidence. Guye v. Guye, 115

Pac. 731 (63 Wash. 340). Separate property con-

tinues to be separate property through all its

changes and transitions, so long as it can be clearly

traced and identified. Denny v. Schivahacher, 104

Pac. 137 (54 Wash. 689) ; In re Deschamps' Es-

tate, 137 Pac. 1009 (77 Wash. 514) ; Dart v. Mc-
Donald, 195 Pac. 253 (114 Wash. 448) ; Merrick

V. Appenzeller, 196 Pac. 629 (115 Wash. 181) ; Rule

3, In re Brown's Estate, supra.

Rule 4, quoted above, provides:

The rents, issues, and profits of separate

property remain separate property and
profits resulting from money borrowed op
separate credit are separate property.

The partnership properties held at the time of

Rucker 's marriage were nonproductive and played
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no part in the production of the partnership's in-

come under consideration. There is no evidence

with respect to the other partnership assets as of

that date.

The profits earned by the partnership of Rucker

Brothers have come from enterprises they have en-

gaged in, such as timber and saw-mill and logging

operations (begun in 1907 or 1908), for which the

firm borrowed money and started. They (the firm)

bought most of their timber on the installment plan,

making only a small initial payment therefor.

(Cause No. 5662, R. 13-14; Cause No. 5663, R.

22-23.)

In 1917 Rucker Brothers purchased a large tract

of timber for $625,000, paying only $5,000 in cash,

and giving promissory notes for the balance.

These notes were signed by W. J. and B. J. Rucker

for (and in the name of) the partnership.

(Cause No. 5662, R. 14; Cause No. 5663, R. 23.)

During the period 1907 to 1916, the firm of

Rucker Brothers borrowed several sums of money

for use in the partnership. (Cause No. 5662, R.

14;CauseNo. 5663, R. 23.)

All of Rucker 's property at the time of his mar-

riage having been his equity in the partnership,

and this being his separate property, there being

no evidence of any community property nor of

separate property belonging to Mrs. Rucker, dur-

ing the years 1918 and 1919, it must be concluded

that the money borrowed by the firm was borrowed
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on separate credit. Profits resulting from money
borrowed on separate credit constitutes separate

property. Finn v. Finn, 179 Pac. 103 (106 Wash.

137) ; Jacohs v. Hoitt, 205 Pac. 414 (119 Wash.

283) ; See also United States Fidelity <& Guaranty

Co. V. Lee, 107 Pac. 870 (58 Wash. 16).

The distributive share of Rucker in the partner-

ship profits resulted, certainly for the most part,

from the separate property. This is evidenced by

the fact that Rucker received the very substantial

salary of $9,000, which it is reasonable to assume,

and the Board so assumed, was the value placed by

the partnership upon Rucker 's services on behalf

of the community.

Where business income is produced in part by

separate property and in part by the funds or

efforts of the community, and each of these two

factors is substantial, the court will attempt to allo-

cate such earnings, but if it appears that income is

to be attributed primarily to one element, the other

element may be disregarded. In re Buchanan's

Estate, 154 Pac. 129 (89 Wash. 172) ; Jacobs v.

Hoitt, supra.

This rule is the proper one to apply for income

tax purposes. Appeal of Julius and Rebecca

Shafer, 2 B. T. A. 640.

The distributive share of B. J. Rucker, in the

partnership profits, for the years 1918 and 1919,

vs^as the separate property of Rucker; hence was

properly taxable to him.
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The petitioner, at pages 7 and 8 of Ms brief, has

correctly stated certain legal conclusions as having

been firmly established by the Supreme Court of

the State of Washington, and has applied them to

the facts in the instant case. These conclusions,,

though correctly stated, in so far as they go, do not,

however, go far enough to permit of their applica-

tion or are in no way applicable to the facts in the

instant case.

Conclusion 2. The property acquired by
husband and wife or either of them during

the marriage relation on borrowed capital

is community property.

The rule is the proper one in cases in which the

money borrowed is for the benefit of, or will bene-

fit, the conmmnity. It is not applicable to cases in

which the money is borrowed for the sole benefit of

separate property. Main v. Scholl, 54 Pac. 1125

(20 Wash. 205) ; Graves v. Columbia Underwriters,

160 Pac. 436 (93 Wash. 196).

Conclusion 3. That separate property of

either husband or wife so mixed or inter-

mingled with the community as to be in-

capable of accurate segregation becomes
community property.

This is the correct rule, where there is a com-

mingling of separate and community property. In

the instant case, there is no such commingling of

property. Rucker's only property, at the time of

his marriage, was his equity in the partnership.
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The income under consideration was a distribution

of the profits of that partnership. Nowhere does it

appear that any community property was in any

way intermingled. The fact that Rucker has liept

no record of his separate property prior to the mar-

riage and the community property subsequently ac-

quired, does not affect the case. The cases cited

by petitioner deal with bank balances, which could

not be divided into separate and community prop-

erty, or with situations in which it was clearly im-

possible to trace the property. We have here no

such difficulty. The only property involved was at

all times separate property and the "rents, issues,

and profits" of separate property constitute sep-

arate property.

Conclusion 4. That the rents, issues and
profits of community propert}^ and the earn-

ings of the husband, and of the wife while

living with the husband, is community prop-

erty and of course community income.

This conclusion assumes that the property was

community property to start with, whereas it has

been shown in the instant case that the property

was separate property. It is therefore inappli-

cable to this case.

CONCLUSION

The distributive share of B. J. Rucker, of the

partnership profits of Rucker Brothers, for the

years 1918 and 1919, was Rucker 's separate prop-

erty and hence is taxable to him. Wherefore, it is
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respectfully submitted that the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals should be

affirmed.

C. M. Charest,

General Counsel,

Bureau of Internal Revenue,

Prew Savoy,

Special Attorney,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

The above brief was prepared by the Bureau of

Internal Revenue, and states its position. This

view is not concurred in by the Department of Jus-

tice. Error is not confessed as there is decided

difference of opinion as to the correct conclusion,

and also because the Bureau of Internal Revenue

believes the case to be of sufficient imjDortance to

warrant establishing a precedent by which the

Board of Tax Appeals may guide itself.

It is believed by this Department that the follow-

ing more nearly represents a correct application of

the law to the facts

:

The decision of the Board of Tax Appeals and

the preceding argument have largely rested upon

the rules laid down by the Supreme Court of the

State of Washington in the case of In re Brown's

Estate, 124 Wash. 273 (214 Pac. 10) as defining the

law of the State of Washington in regard to com-

munity or separate property.

It is suggested as a primary proposition that

these rules can not be construed separately or
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strictly. Particularly are they modified by the

sense in which they are used in the case setting

them forth.

The facts in the Brown case are that at the time

of decedent's marriage (1902) he owned property

valued at $70,000. Upon the sale of this property

he acquired stock in the Semper-Klale Investment

Company and in the Case Shingle Company. He
sold the stock in these last two mentioned companies

and with the proceeds bought stock in the Le Bamm
Mill Company. At his death his estate consisted

of (1) real estate, (2) bank certificates, (3) cash,

(4) life insurance, (5) liberty bonds, and (6) a note

acquired after coverture and six other items of

stock, open accounts and notes arising out of the

Semper-Klale Investment Company or Le Bamm
Mill Company. The wife claimed the entire estate

to be community property and the executors claimed

it to be separate property. The court, after laying

down the rule hereinafter adverted to, says (124

Wash. 273, 277) :

In relation to items 1, 2, 3, 5, and 6, the

testimony shows that all this property was
acquired during coverture, and there is an

absence of proof concerning its origin or the

source of the money with which it was pro-

cured. The presumption therefore attaches

that it is community property, * * *.

(Italics supplied.) In regard to item 4, be-

ing the proceeds of a life insurance policy,

payable to the estate, no proof was intro-

duced and the presumption must be conclu-
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sive that it is community property, i^s was

said in Succession of Buddig, 108 La. 406, 32

South. 361:
ii * * * jjg jjg^g j^Q right to transact so

as to build up a separate estate to the disad-

vantage of the community. As to him, pri-

marily all the property belongs to the com-

munity * * *."

The court, finding the other assets to he directly

traceable to the original separate property of the

husband, held them to be still his separate property.

It is submitted that in the instant case there is no

item of property as to which there is more positive

identification than the items numbered 1 to 6 which

were determined to be connnunity property in the

Brown case, supra. The Board of Tax Apj)eals

says (Opinion, R. 28) :

'

* * * The fact that the partnership

interest was separate property, "the pre-

sumjDtion continues that it is separate until

overcome by evidence" and it ''continues to

be separate through all its changes and

transitions, so long as it can be clearly traced

and identified." There is no doubt that the

property in question can be clearly traced

and identified.

This conclusion seems to take considerable for

granted. It is believed that a reference to the

facts will make this clear. At the time of peti-

tioner's marriage, it is shown that the partnership

^ The records in cases 5662 and 5663 are practically identi-

cal and the references in this part of the brief will be only

to Case No. 5663.
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owned only two kinds of property: (a) certain real

estate. This property is still owned and from it

the partnership has received no income. (R. 22.)

Thus it may be disregarded for the present pur-

poses, (b) ''Some shares of stock in the Rucker

Bank. '

' (R. 22.) The number or original or pres-

ent value of these shares is nowhere shown. Nor is

it shown whether these shares are still in the hands

of petitioner or that they have ever yielded any in-

come. As this is the only other property belonging

to the partnership or to petitioner individually at

the time of his marriage, it is apparent that from it

must come the property which he now asserts to

be community property in order to sustain the po-

sition urged by the Bureau of Internal Revenue.

An application of the rules laid down in the

Brown case and relied upon by the Board of Tax

Appeals will demonstrate the impossibility of

tracing these shares of stock to the present prop-

erty of petitioner.

Rule 1. The presumption is that property

acquired during coverture is community
property * * * ; and the burden is upon
the person claiming it to be separate prop-

erty to establish that as its character.

At the outset it may be noted and emphasized

that all of these rules refer to specific property.

The record shows that in 1907 or 1908 the partner-

ship engaged in the logging and saw-mill business.

From this business all its profits have been made.

(R. 22-23.) Applying this rule to these facts, it
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would seem clear that the property purchased by

the partnership is presumed to be coimnunity prop-

erty, and that the burden must rest on the respond-

ent to show it to have been separate property. The

record is silent as to any connection between any of

this property acquired by the partnership in the

pursuance of its timber business and the shares of

stock of the Rucker Bank. Not only is this true

but the record shows that the custom of the business

was to buy "timber on the installment plan, making

only a small initial payment therefor." (R. 23.)

See Plath v. Mullins, 87 Wash. 403 (151 Pac. 811) ;

In re Slocum's Estate, 83 Wash. 158 (145 Pac. 204) ;

Patterson v. Bowes, 78 Wash. 476 (139 Pac. 225).

See also discussion under Rule 4, hereafter.

Rule 2. The status of property is to be

determined as of the date of its acquisi-

tion. * * *. This rule is equally true

with regard to personal property as with real

property.

The record shows that the partnership did not en-

gage in the timber and saw-mill business until 1907

or 1908, three or four years after the marriage of

petitioner, and that its profits were earned through

these businesses. (R. 22-23.) It is also shown

that none of the property which is here in question

was owned at the time of petitioner's marriage.

Consequently, under Rule 2, read in conjunction

with Rule 1, it must be that the instant property is

community rather than separate.

Rule 3. If property is once shown to have
been separate property, the presumption
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continues that it is separate until overcome

by evidence. * * *.

Separate property continues to be sepa-

rate through all its changes and transitions,

so long as it can be clearly traced and identi-

fied.

It is freely conceded by all that the shares of

stock of the Rucker Bank did, and if still held do,

constitute the separate property of petitioner.

The record is absolutely silent, though, as to whether

or not this property is still held. Beyond this,

however, the property here involved has never been

shown to have been separate property, nor that it

proceeded from separate property. We have only

the possible supposition, which is decidedly nebu-

lous, that the original bank stock may have grown

until from it flowed all of the property here in ques-

tion. This supposition is certainly not the clear,

certain, and convincing evidence required by the

decided cases. In re Slocum 's Estate, supra. Nei-

ther is there in the instant case any attempt made,

the Board of Tax Appeals to the contrary notwith-

standing, to trace or identify the jDrogress of this

bank stock to the property here involved.

Rule 4. The rents, issues, and profits of

separate property remain separate property

and profits resulting from money borrowed

on separate credit are separate property.

It would seem that this can have little application

to the instant ease, in that the only separate proiD-

erty shown by this record is not shown to have

yielded at any time either rents, issues, or j)rofits.
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As to the second part of the rule that "profits re-

sulting from money borrowed on separate credit

are separate property," there would seem to be little

more appropriateness. The record shows that the

partnership bought much timber after petitioner's

marriage; that this timber was largely bought on

credit. The record does not show that it was bought

on the separate credit of the partners, and the pre-

sumption is that money borrowed during the exis-

tence of the community constitutes a community

debt and the yield of such borrowing, community

credit. Lumbermen's National Bank v. Gross,

37 Wash. 18 (79 Pac. 470) ; McDonough v. Craig,,

10 Wash. 239 (38 Pac. 1034); Yesler v. Hoch-

stettler, 4 Wash. 349 (30 Pac. 398)

.

There would seem to be nothing to sustain the

contention that partnership property acquired after

coverture is to be regarded as separate property of

the partners.

It is suggested that the fact of partnership is

immaterial in determining the status of properties..

Lum^hermen's National Bank v. Gross, supra.

Rule 5. Separate property may lose its

. identity as such by being consolidated with

community property.

While there is no separate property shown to be

involved in the instant case, it is submitted that

even though there was such property, it has been

so mixed with that acquired by the partnership

after marriage of petitioner that under this rule the
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separate property, if any there may be, will have

now completely lost its identity.

It has been urged on behalf of the Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue that as petitioner received a salary

from the partnership, that this salary represents

his community worth to the partnership, and that

any other profit derived by him through the part-

nership should be deemed to i3roceed from his orig-

inal separate property. It is suggested that this

view finds little support in the decided Washington

cases. In Protzman v. Billings, 120 Wash. 123

(206 Pac. 848), it was held that the note of a hus-

band constituted a community debt where it was

given for the purchase of shares of stock in a cor-

poration conducted on behalf of the community and

from which the husband received a salary. See also

Denis v. Metzenhaum, 124 Wash. 86 (213 Pac. 453).

The brief for the Bureau of Internal Revenue

has cited a great many cases. As these cases are

not contrary to the spirit of those here cited, a

separate consideration is not deemed necessary.

Differences arise solely as to the application.

Respectfully submitted.

Mabel Walker Willebrandt,

Assistant Attorney General.

Sewall Key,

Special Assistant to the Attorney General.

John Vaughan Groner,

Special Assistant to the Attorney General.

March, 1929.

O



No. 5663

(Etrrmt Olourt nf Ajippala

iTiir % NuOl; (Eirntit

B. J. RUCKEE,
Petitioner,

vs.

DAVID H. BLAIR, Commissioner of Internal

Revenue,

Respondent.

©rattHtrtpt of EwoarJi

UPON PETITION TO REVIEW ORDER OF THE UNITED STATES

BOARD OF TAX APPEALS.

Fl LED
(JA.M -2i}29

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
CLZRK

Filmer Bros. Oo. Print, 330 Jacksou St., S. F., Cal.





No. 5663

Oltrrmt Qlnurt of App^ate

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

DAVID H. BLAIR, Commissioner of Internal

Revenue,

Respondent.

©ranarript of ^novh*

UPON PETITION TO REVIEW ORDER OF THE UNITED STATES
BOARD OF TAX APPEALS.

rilmer Bros. Co. Print, 330 JacKson St., S. F., C«l.





INDEX TO THE PRINTED TRANSCRIPT OF
RECORD.

[Clerk's Note: When deemed likely to be of an important nature,

errors or doubtful matters appearing in the original certified record are

printed literally in italic; and, likewise, cancelled matter appearing in

the original certified record is printed and cancelled herein accord-

ingly. When possible, an omission from the text is indicated by

printing in italic the two words between which the omission seems to

occur.]

Page

Answer (Docket No. 3509) 15

Docket Entries (Docket No. 3509) 1

Findings of Fact (Docket Nos. 3508 and 3509) . 17

Notice of Filing and Service of Praecipe for

Transcript of Record (Docket No. 3509) .

.

36

Opinion (Docket Nos. 3508 and 3509) 24

Order of Redetermination (Docket No. 3509) .

.

30

Petition (Docket No. 3509) 3

Petition to Review Decision of United States

Board of Tax Appeals (Docket No. 3509) . 31

Praecipe for Transcript of Record (Docket No.

3509) 34





[1*] DOCKET NUMBER 3509.

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

For Taxpayer:

HERBERT E. SMITH, Esq.

W. P. BELL, Esq.

J. B. FOGARTY, Esq.

For Commissioner:

GRANVILLE BORDEN, Esq.

DOCKET ENTRIES.
1925.

Apr. 18—Petition received and filed.

Apr. 23—Copy of petition served on solicitor.

Apr. 23—Notification of receipt mailed taxpayer.

May 13—Answer filed by solicitor.

May 18—Copy of answer served on taxpayer.

Assigned Reserve Calendar.

1927.

Apr. 13—Hearing date set 6-14-27 at Seattle,

Wash.

June 14—Hearing had before Mr. Morris on merits

—consolidated with 3508—Stipula-

tions filed at hearing. Briefs due 9-

15-27.

*Page-number appearing at the top of page of original certified
Transcript of Eecord.
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Aug. 9—Transcript of hearing filed 6-14^27.

Aug. 31—Motion for extension to Oct. 15, 1927 to

file brief filed by G. C. See 2928.

Sept. 3—Granted to Oct. 15, 1928.

Sept. 8—Brief filed by taxpayer. See 3508.

Sept. 29—Brief and findings filed by G. C.

Nov. 30—Motion that time to file proposed rede-

termination be set for some date sub-

sequent to 12-20-27, filed by taxpayer.

See 2928.

Dec. 27—Findings of fact and opinion rendered

(Morris). Judgment will be entered

on 15 days' notice under Rule 50.

1928.

Feb. 8—Notice of settlement fiJed by taxpayer.

Copy served on G. C. 2-11-28.

Feb. 10—Notice allowing G. C. until 2-28-28 to file

settlement for hearing 3-8-28 failure

to do so hearing set 3-6-28.

Feb. 11—Notice of settlement filed by G. C. Copy

served 2-15-28.

Mar. 8—Hearing had before Mr. Morris on set-

tlement.

Mar. 15—Transcript of hearing 3-8-28 filed. See

2929.

Mar. 20—Order of redetermination entered.

Sept. 11—Petition for review by II. S. Cir. Ct. of

Appeals, 9th Cir., with assignments of

error filed by taxpayer.

Sept. 14—Proof of service filed.

Oct. 4—Praecipe of record filed.

Oct. 4—Proof of service filed by taxpayer.
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Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing docket en-

tries certified from the record as a true copy,

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[2] Filed Apr. 18, 1925. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 3509.

Appeal of B. J. RUCKER, of Lake Stevens, Wash.

PETITION.

The above-named taxpayer hereby appeals from

the determination of the Commissioner of Internal

Revenue set forth in his deficiency letter (IT:CR:-

G-6 60D, GJG.) dated February 27, 1925, and as

a basis of his appeal sets forth the following:

1.

The taxpayer is an individual, and a partner in

the copartnership of Rucker Bros., Lake Stevens,

Washington, which is composed of said taxpayer

and his brother, W. J. Rucker of Lake Stevens,

Washington, each owning a one-half interest in said

copartnership.

2.

The deficiency letter (a copy of which is at-

tached) was mailed to the taxpayer on February

27, 1925, and states a deficiency of $24,276.97.
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3.

The taxes in controversy are income taxes for

the calendar year 1919 and are more than $10,000

to wit, $24,276.97.

4.

The determination of the tax is based on the fol-

lowing errors:

(Note—The additional assessment as computed

by the Commissioner is based upon audits of the

returns of B. J. Rucker and Rucker Bros, (a copart-

nership) made by an agent of the Bureau of Internal

Revenue. The errors here to be stated appear in the

report of the audit of Rucker Bros, (a copartner-

ship) (No. 3049-W, IT:EN:T-ATW.) dated No-

vember 3, 1924, and signed by F. H. Goudy, Su-

pervising Internal Revenue Agent).

[3]

ERROR #1—The Commissioner has added to the

income of the partnership $13,-

805.10 "Inventory Wire Rope at

Camps" (Schedule 1, Items (c)

(j) and (k) of above mentioned

report).

ERROR #2—The Commissioner has added to the

income of the partnership $11,-

143.19 "Stumpage Disallowed

Camp Boulder" (Schedule 1,

Item f, of above mentioned re-

port). The amount should be

$9,853.59.

ERROR #3—The Commissioner has added to the

income of the partnership $12,-
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149.29 "Stumpage Disallowed

Camp Silverton" (Schedule 1,

item h of above mentioned re-

port). The amount should be

$11,954.84.

ERROR #4—The Commissioner has added to the

income of the partnership $22.55

"Stumpage Disallowed Camp Ca-

vano" (Schedule 1, Item n, of

above mentioned report). The

amount should be $19.10.

ERROR #5—The Commissioner has added to the

income of the partnership $2,-

704.67 "Loss— Sale of Bank

Stock" and $905.33 "Loss Sale of

Bonds" (Schedule 1, items q and

r respectively of above mentioned

report).

ERROR #6—The Commissioner has added to the

income of the partnership $4,-

467.20 "Panther Lake Contracts

1 and 2 Profits" (Schedule 1 item

s of above mentioned report).

This should be a deduction of

$131.17 from income.

ERROR #7—The Commissioner has added to the

income of the partnership $2,-

633.50 "Supply Inventories"

(Schedule 1, item x, of above

mentioned report).
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ERROR #8—The Conunissioner has deducted

from the income of the partner-

ship $73.60 "Miscellaneous" which

is interest paid (Schedule 1, Item

a, m, of above mentioned report).

This should be $673.60.

ERROR #9—The Commissioner has computed the

tax on the entire distributive

share of B. J. Rucker in the in-

come of Rucker Bros, (a partner-

ship).

5.

The facts upon which the taxpayer relies as the

basis of his appeal are as follows

:

FACTS RE ERROR #1.

The Commissioner's report (Schedule 1, Items

c j k, pages [4] 3 and 7) states that an analysis

of the cost of operating at this camp discloses the

fact that these inventories were not reflected as a

credit to these costs. This statement is entirely

erroneous. The records show that $13,805.10 was

credited to operating accounts.

FACTS RE ERROR #2.

Stumpage disallowed Camp Boulder was $11,-

143.19. Stmnpage on Logs Cut at Camp Boulder

during 1919 was

—

Entered in return

as 3,457,398 Feet .$19,015.69

Should be 3,457,398 Feet ® 2.65 9,162 . 10
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Correct amount of Stumj)age Disallow-

ance $ 9,853.59

FACTS RE ERROR #3.

Stumpage disallowed Camp Silvertou was $12,-

149.29. Stimipage on Logs Cut at Camp Silverton

during 1919 was

—

Entered in return

as 2,862,886 Feet $15,745.87

Should be 2,862,886 Feet ® 1,324 . 3,791.03

Correct amoimt of Stumpage Disallow-

ance $11,954.84

FACTS RE ERROR #4.

StumiDage disallowed Camp Cavano was $22.50.

Stumpage on Logs Cut at Camp Cavano during

1919 was—
Entered in return as 6,700 Feet $ 36 . 85

Should be 6,700 Feet ® 2.65 17.75

Correct amount of stumpage

Disallowance $19.10

FACTS RE ERROR #5.

Loss on Sales of Bank Stocks and Bonds

—

This stock cost Rucker Bros $9,400.00

The bank owed Rucker Bros, a balance

which was written off as part of the

transaction amounting to 368.30
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Riicker Bros, paid to the Bank the differ-

ence between the cost and market value

of certain bonds, also as part of this

sale 905.33

Carried forward $10,673.63

[5]

Brought Forward $10,673.63

Rucker Bros, received in cash 6,063 . 63

Leaving a balance of $ 4,610 . 00

The Commissioner allowed a deduction on

account of attorney's services of . . . . 1,000.00

Leaving a further deduction improperly

disallowed of $3,610.00

Item (q) 2,704.67

Item (r) 905.33

3,610.00

FACTS RE ERROR #6.

The Commissioner has added to Income as profit

on sales of timber to Panther Lake Company $4,-

467.20. The gain is as follows:

Contract #1 Contract #2
Total proceeds of sale 305,275 . 00 51,462.50

Total cost 242,721.10 35,580.28

Total Gain 62,553.90 15,882.22
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Payments received by Rucker

Bros, in 1919 128,000.00 2,500.00

128,000.

Profit realized 305,275. of $62,553.90

on Contract #1 26,228.48

2,500.00

Profit realized 51,462.50 of $15,882.22

on Contract #2 771 . 54

Total profit realized in 1919 27,000.02

There was reported in this year in the returns

as filed, $27,131.19, whereas the correct amount of

profit which should be allocated to the year 1919

is $27,000.02. Therefore instead of an addition

to income there should be a reduction of income of

$131.17.

FACTS RE ERROR #7.

Item X Schedule 1 of Commissioner's report adds

to income $2,633.50 stating that Supply Inventories

were not credited to cost of operations. This is a

misstatement of fact. These inventories were cred-

ited to cost of operations.

[6]

FACTS RE ERROR #8.

Item (a m) of Schedule 1 of the Commission-

er's report shows a deduction from in-

come for interest paid 73 . 00
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In addition to this amount there was inter-

est paid to

—

W. P. Bell 248.95

Northern Pacific Ry. Timber Contract 351 . 05

Total deduction for interest from income

should be $673.60

These two items w^re charged to timber account

but should have been charged to interest, and there-

fore an additional deduction should be allowed in

the amount of $600.00.

FACTS RE ERROR #9.

During the entire year 1919 B. J. Rucker was a

married man living with his wife, Ruby Rucker and

said B. J. Rucker had no separate income in the

year 1919.

6.

With the exception of Errors #6 and #9, all of

the errors alleged in this appeal are questions of

fact and not of law, and with respect to Errors #6
and #9, the taxpayer, in support of his appeal,

relies upon the following propositions of law:

1. The amount to be reported as income in any

year from a sale on the installment plan is

that proportion of each pa}Tnent actually re-

ceived in that year which the gross profit

to be realized when the property is paid for

bear to the gross contract price.

2. Under the law and decisions of the courts in the

State of Washington, all the property and
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all the earnings of either spouse are pre-

sumed, to be the property and earnings of the

marital community, and the burden of proof

is on any party claiming that said property

or income or any portion thereof is the

separate property of one spouse or the other.

WHEREFORE, the taxpayer respectfully prays

that this Board may hear and determine his appeal.

(Signed) HERBERT ELLES SMITH.
HERBERT ELLES SMITH, (C. P. A.),

Attorney for the Taxpayer, 1124 White Building,

Seattle, Wash.

[7] State of Washington,

County of Snohomish,—ss.

B. J. Rucker, being duly sworn, says that he is

the taxpayer named in the foregoing petition; that

he has read the said petition, or had the same read,

to him, and is familiar with the statements therein

contained, and that the facts therein stated are

true, except such facts as are stated to be upon

information and belief, and those facts he believes

to be true.

[Seal] (Signed) B. J. RUCKER.

Sworn to before me this 10 day of April, 1925.

(Signed) J. J. SHEEHAN,
Notary Public.
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[8] COPY.

February 27, 1925.

IT:CR:G-6.

GJG.

Mr. B. J. Rucker,

Everett, Washington.

Sir:

The determination of your income tax liability

for the taxable year 1919 disclosed a deficiency in

the tax amounting to $24,276.97. The adjustments

made are shown in detail in Revenue Agent's Re-

port dated November 3, 1924, a copy of which has

been furnished you.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 274

of the Revenue Act of 1924, you are allowed 60

days from the date of this letter within which to

file an appeal to the United States Board of Tax

Appeals contesting in whole or in part the correct-

ness of this determination.

Where a taxpayer has been given an opportunity

to appeal to the United States Board of Tax Ap-

peals and has not done so within the 60 days pre-

scribed and an assessment has been made, or where

a taxpayer has appealed and an assessment in

accordance with the final decision on such appeal

has been made, no claim in abatement in respect

of any part of the deficiency will be entertained.

If you acquiesce in this determination and do

not desire to file an appeal, you are requested to

sign the enclosed agreement consenting to the



David H. Blair. 13

assessment of the deficiency and forward it to the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Washington,

D. C, for the attention of IT:CR:G6-GJa 60D.

In the event that you acquiesce in a part of the

determination, the agreement should be executed

with respect to the items agreed to.

Respectfully,

D. H. BLAIR,
Commissioner.

By J. G. BRIGHT,
Deputy Commissioner.

Enclosures

:

Statements

Agreements—Form A,

[9] Due to the fact that the statute of limita-

tions will presently bar any assessment of additional

tax against you for the year 1919, the Bureau will

be unable to afford you an opportunity under the

provisions of Treasury Decision 3616 to discuss

your case before mailing formal notice of its de-

termination as provided by Section 274 (a) of the

Revenue Act of 1924. It is necessary at this time,

in order to protect the interests of the Government,

either to make an immediate assessment under the

provisions of Section 274 (d) of the Revenue Act

of 1924 or to issue a formal notice of deficiency.
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[10] IT:CR:G-6.

GJG.

STATEMENT OF RETURNS EXAMINED
and

RESULTING TAX LIABILITY.

Returns Examined:

Name. Year. Form. Date Filed.

B. J. Rucker,

Lake Stevens, Washington 1919 1040 March 15, 1920

Tax Liability.

Name. Year. Form. Additional Tax.

B. J. Rucker,

Lake Stevens, Washington 1919 $24,276.97

Computation of Tax.

Net Income as disclosed by

Revenue Agent's report dated

November 3, 1924 117,180.40

Less : Specific Exemption 2,400.00

Income Subject to Normal

Tax 114,780.40

4% on$ 4,000.00 equals. $160.00

8% on 110,780.40 equals . 8,862.43 9,022.43

Surtax.

100,000.00 23,510.00

17,180.40 8,933.81 32,443.81

Total Tax $41,466.24

Less Previously assessed 17,189.27

Additional Tax to be assessed $24,276.97
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Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing petition

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[11] Filed May 13, 1925. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 3509.

In re: Appeal of B. J. RUCKER, Lake Stevens,

Washington.

ANSWER.

The Commissioner of Internal Revenue by his

attorney A. W. Gregg, Solicitor of Internal Reve-

nue, for answer to the petition of the above-named

taxpayer, admits and denies as follows:

(1) Admits the allegations contained in para-

graphs 1, 2 and 3,

(2) Admits that the Commissioner made the

adjustments to taxpayer's income and deduction

items as alleged in the petition.

(3) Denies each and every other material alle-

gation of fact contained in the petition.

PROPOSITION OF LAW.

(1) The adjustment made by the Commissioner

to taxpayer's income and deduction items for 1919

were proper under the applicable provisions of the

Revenue Act of 1918.
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(2) Income for 1919 of the taxpayer and his

wife has been properly adjusted by the Commis-

sioner.

Wherefore it is prayed that the taxpayer's peti-

tion be dismissed and the appeal denied.

A. W. GREGG,
Solicitor of Internal Revenue,

Attorney for Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

Of Counsel:

A. H. FAST,
Special Attorney, Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing answer

certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, IT. S, Board of Tax Appeals.

[12] A true copy.

Teste: B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET Nos. 3508 and 3509.

Promulgated December 27, 1927.

W. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.
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B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

Petitioner B. J. Rucker's distributive share of

partnership income held to be separate property

under the laws of the State of Washington, and

therefore taxable to him.

J. B. FOGARTY, Esq., W. P. BELL, Esq., and

HERBERT E. SMITH, C. P. A., for the Pe-

titioners.

GRANVILLE S. BORDEN, Esq., for the Respond-

ent.

This is a proceeding for the redetermination of

deficiencies in income taxes in the amounts of $24,-

276.98 and $24,276.97 asserted by the respondent

against W. J. Rucker and B. J. Rucker, for the

year 1919.

This case came on for hearing on June 14, 1927,

at which time, it was on motion of the parties, or-

dered, that the cases of W. J. Rucker, Docket No.

3508, and B. J. Rucker, Docket No. 3509, be con-

solidated and heard jointly.

The petition of W. J. Rucker raises eight issues

identical with eight of the issues raised by the peti-

tion of B. J. Rucker, all of which are as follows:

[13] 1. Whether the respondent erred in add-
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ing to the income of the partnership of Rucker

Brothers, the sum of $13,805.10, and

2. Whether the respondent erred in adding to

income of said partnership the sum of $11,143.19,

and

3. Whether the respondent erred in adding to

the income of said partnership the sum of $12,-

149.29, and

4. Whether the respondent erred in adding to

the income of said partnership the sum of $22.55,

and

5. Whether the respondent erred in adding to

the income of said partnership the sums of $2,-

704.67 and $905.33, representing certain losses on

the sales of stocks and bonds, and

6. Whether the respondent erred in adding to

the income of said partnership the sum of $4,-

467.20, and

7. Whether the respondent erred in adding to

the income of said partnership the sum of $2,-

633.50, and

8. Whether respondent erred in deducting from

the income of said partnership the sum of $73.60,

instead of the sum of $673,60, and

9. Whether the respondent was in error in com-

puting the tax of B. J. Rucker, a married man, on

the entire distributive share of the income of the

said partnership.

FINDINGS OP FACT.

The petitioners, W. J. and B. J. Rucker, are

brothers, comprising the copartnership operated
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under the name of Rucker Brothers, Lake Stevens,

Washington.

Each of the petitioners entered into written stipu-

lations with the respondent as follows:

[14] 1.

That the Commissioner of Internal Revenue in

determining the net income of the above-named tax-

payer for the year 1919, included in said income

one-half of the net income of the partnership of

Rucker Brothers for the year 1919.

2.

That the Commissioner of Internal Revenue in

the 60-day statutory deficiency letter determined

the net income of the above-named taxpayer for the

year 1919 to be $117,180.40.

3.

Included in the determination of the net income

of the above-named taxpayer for the year 1919,

there was an amount of $108,345.65 which repre-

sented one-half of the net income of Rucker Broth-

ers partnership for the year 1919.

4.

That the Commissioner of Internal Revenue erred

in the determination of the net income of Rucker

Brothers partnership for the year 1919 by including

in income $13,805.10 representing "Inventory Wire

Rope at Camps" as alleged in error No. 1 of the

taxpayer's petition.

5.

That the Commissioner in the determination of

the net income of the partnership of Rucker Broth-
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ers for the year 1919, did not err in adding to the

income $11,143.19 on accomit of ''Stumpage Disal-

lowed Camp Boulder" as alleged in error No. 2 of

the taxpayer's petition.

6.

That the Commissioner of Internal Revenue in

the determination of the net income of the partner-

ship of Rucker Brothers for the year 1919 did not

err in adding to the income $12,149.29 on account

of "Stumpage Disallowed Camp Silverton" as al-

leged in error No. 3 of the taxpayer's petition.

[15] 7.

That the Commissioner of Internal Revenue in

the determination of the net income of Rucker

Brothers partnership for the year 1919 erred in

the addition to the income of the partnership of

$22.55 on account of "Stumpage Disallowed Camp
Cavano"; that the correct amount to be added is

$19.10; that the income of the partnership of Rucker

Brothers for the year 1919 should be decreased by

$3.45 on account of this discrepancy as alleged in

error No. 4 of the taxpayer's petition.

8.

That the Commissioner of Internal Revenue erred

in adding to the income of the partnership of Rucker

Brothers for the year 1919, $905.33 on account of

"Loss on Sale of Bonds" as alleged in error No.

5 in the taxpayer's petition.

9.

That the loss sustained by Rucker Brothers part-

nership for the year 1919 on account of "Sale of
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Bank Stock" was $7(M.67; that the Commissioner

of Internal Revenue added to the income of the

partnership of Rucker Brothers for the year 1919,

$2,704.67 ; that $2,000.00 of the amount of $2,704.67

alleged in error No. 5 of the taxpayer's petition as

a loss on the sale of bank stock was properly added

to the income of Rucker Brothers partnership for

the year 1919 by the Commissioner of Internal Reve-

nue.

10.

That the 60-day statutory deficiency letter re-

flects profits from the sale of timber to the Panther

Lake Company by Rucker Brothers partnership in

the year 1919 of $31,598.39; that a correct determi-

nation of said profits from said sale of timber is

$27,000.02 ; that the net income of Rucker Brothers

partnership for the year 1919 should be decreased

by $4,598.37 on account of the adjustment in the

determination of the profits from the sale of timber

in 1919 to the Panther Lake Company by Rucker

Brothers partnership as alleged in Error No. 6 in

the taxpayer's petition.

11.

That the Commissioner of Internal Revenue erred

in the determination of the income of the partner-

ship of Rucker Brothers partnership for the year

1919 by including $2,633.50 as income on [16]

account of "Supply Inventories" as alleged in error

No. 7 in the taxpayer's petition.

12.

That the Commissioner of Internal Revenue in

the determination of the net income of Rucker



22 B. J. Riicker vs.

Brothers partnership for the year 1919 deducted

from income $73.60 on account of interest paid;

that the correct deduction on account of interest

paid is $673.60 ; that the net income of Rucker Broth-

ers partnership for the year 1919 should be de-

creased $600.00 on account of this discrepancy as

alleged in error No. 8 of the taxpayer's petition.

Since the above stipulation disposes of all the

allegations of error in the case of W. J. Rucker and

since the facts hereinafter recited are with respect

to the case of B. J. Rucker, we shall sometimes for

convenience, refer to him as Rucker.

B. J. Rucker was married in December, 1904, and

he has lived continuously with his wife since that

time. At the time of his marriage Rucker owned

a one-half interest in the copartnership of Rucker

Brothers, the assets of which consisted of lands and

town lots and some shares of stock in the Rucker

Bank. Rucker Brothers were engaged in the real

estate business at the time of Rucker 's marriage,

but in 1907 or 1908 the firm entered into the log-

ging and sa'wmill business. The lands and town

lots owned by the partnership at the time of Ruck-

er 's marriage were nonproductive properties from

which there has been no income from the time of

his marriage to the present time. In fact they have

paid in taxes several times what the property would

sell for to-day.

The profits earned by the partnership of Rucker

Brothers have come from enterprises they have en-

gaged in, such as timber and sawmill and logging

operations for which the firm borrowed money and
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started. They [17] have bought most of their

timber on the installment plan, making only a small

initial payment therefor.

Rucker has kept no record of the property he had

at the time he was married, nor of what he has ac-

cumulated subsequently to marriage.

Rucker Brothers purchased a quantity of timber

from the Puget Mill Company in 1917 at a total

purchase price of $625,000 for which they paid $5,-

000 in cash and the balance of $620,000 in promis-

soiy notes extending over a period of several years,

all of which notes were signed by W. J. and B. J.

Rucker for the partnership. A portion of that tim-

ber was later sold at a profit of upward of $80,000.

The portion of that timber that was not sold was

cut and sawed at their own sawmill and was paid

therefor as it was cut and removed.

During the period 1907 to 1916 the firm of Rucker

Brothers borrowed several sums of money for use

in the partnership.

All of Rucker 's property at the time of his mar-

riage was his equity in the partnership and all of

his income has been from the partnership distribu-

tions.

Rucker filed an individual income tax return for

the year 1919 on March 15, 1920, showing therein as

his share of the partnership distribution $62,741.12,

also salary received from the partnership of $9,000,

making a total net income reported of $71,741.12.

Mrs. B. J. Rucker had no separate property in

1919. Mrs. Rucker filed an individual income tax

return for the year 1919 on May 5, 1921, reporting
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$35,870.56, one-half of the total income reported by

Rucker in his original return. On May 5, 1921,

Rucker himself filed an amended individual income

tax return showing therein one-half of the total

net income reported by him in his individual return

of $35,870.56.

[18] OPINION.
MORRIS.—^AU of the issues raised by the petition

of W. J. Rucker, Docket No. 3508, and eight of

the issues raised by the petition of B. J. Rucker,

Docket No. 3509, have been agreed upon and evi-

denced by written stipulation between the parties

set forth herein in the findings of fact and will be

settled in accordance therewith.

The sole question remaining for determination

is whether the respondent correctly held that the

entire distributive share of the income of B. J.

Rucker in the partnership of Rucker Brothers was

separate property or whether said distributive

share was community income under the laws of the

State of Washington.

Sections 6890, 6891, and 6892, respectively, of

Remington's Compiled Statutes of Washington,

1922, are as follows:

Property and pecuniary rights owned by the

husband before marriage, and that acquired

by him afterward by gift, bequest, devise or de-

scent, with the rents, issues, and profits thereof,

shall not be subject to the debts or contracts

of his wife, and he may manage, lease, sell,

convey, encumber or devise by will, such prop-

erty without the wife joining in such manage-
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ment, alienation, or encumbrance, as fully and

to the same effect as though he were unmar-

ried.

The property and pecuniary rights of every

married woman at the time of her marriage,

or afterward acquired by gift, devise, or in-

heritance, with the rents, issues, and profits

thereof, shall not be subject to the debts or

contracts of her husband, and she may manage,

lease, sell, convey, encumber or devise by will

such property, to the same extent and in the

same manner that her husband can, property

belonging to him.

Property, not acquired or owned as pre-

scribed in the next two preceding sections,

acquired after marriage by either husband or

wife, or both, is community property. The

husband shall have the management and con-

trol of community personal property, with a

like power of disposition as he has of his sep-

arate personal property, except he shall not

devise by will more than one-half thereof.

[19] Thus it will be seen that under the law of

the State of Washington governing the question in

controversy the "property and pecuniary" rights of

the husband and wife are definitely settled and that

''property" owned by them at the time of marriage

together "with the rents, issues, and profits

thereof" shall be their separate property, and that

the property not so owned, but acquired subse-

quently to marriage with the designated exceptions

is "community property."
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The testimony reveals that Rucker was a mem-

ber of the partnership of Rucker Brothers prior to

1904 and that he continued to be a partner up to

and during the period in question ; that he was mar-

ried in December, 1904, and has continuously lived

with his wife; that all of his income has been de-

rived from salaries of the partnership and partner-

ship distributions.

In the Appeal of Julius and Rebecca B. Shafer,

2 B. T, A. 640, we held that the decisions of the

Supreme Court of Washington lay down the rule

that where business income was produced in part

by separate property and in part by the efforts of

the community, and each of these two factors was

substantial, the Court will attempt to allocate such

earnings, but if it appears that the income is to

be attributed primarily to one element, the other

element may be disregarded. The Supreme Court

of the State of Washington, in the case of Brown's

Estate, 214 Pac. 10, has summarized some of the

more important rules of the courts of that State

for determining the status of community or sepa-

rate property:

1. The presumption is that property ac-

quired during coverture is conmiunity property,

and the burden is upon the person claiming

it to be separate property to establish that as

its character.

[20] 2. The status of property is to be de-

termined as of the date of acquisition. This

rule is equally true with regard to personal

property as with real property.
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3. If property is once shown to have been

separate property, the presumption continues

that it is separate until overcome by evidence.

Separate property continues to be separate

through all its changes and transitions, so long

as it can be clearly traced and identified.

4. The rents, issues, and profits of separate

property remain separate property and profits

resulting from money borrowed on separate

credit are separate property.

5. Separate property may lose its identity

as such by being consolidated with community

property.

The argument of petitioner's counsel that the

distributive share of Rucker in the partnership is

from services rather than from property is con-

siderably weakened by the fact that he received a

salary of $9,000 for the taxable year, which amount

it is reasonable to assume, was the value placed

upon his services by the partnership. Of course

personal services must necessarily play an impor-

tant part in the conduct of any business, but where

the parties have themselves appraised the value of

those services, we could not with the meager

amount of evidence before us say that his services

were worth any greater amount.

Applying the principles announced in the case of

In re Brown's Estate, supra, to the instant facts

we are led to the conclusion that the income is to

be attributed primarily to separate property.

There is no question that the interest owned by

Rucker in the partnership at the time of his mar-
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riage was separate property under the above quoted

provisions of the Washington statute. The fact

that the partnership interest was separate prop-

erty, "the presumption continues that it is sepa-

rate until overcome by evidence" and it "continues

to be separate through all its changes and [21]

transitions, so long as it can be clearly traced and

identified." There is no doubt that the property

in question can be clearly traced and identified.

The evidence introduced affecting that presump-

tion was that the only assets owned by the partner-

ship at the time of his marriage consisted of lands

and town lots and some shares of Rucker Bank

stock, and that such lands and town lots were non-

productive, and were a liability rather than an as-

set. We are not told anything at all about the value

of the bank stock, which for all we know may have

been considerable. About 1907 or 1908 the part-

nership engaged in the sawmill and lumbering busi-

ness and borrowed the money to establish and carry

on that business and continued to borrow money

to be used in their operations. In 1917 a large

tract of timber was purchased, only $5,000 in cash

being paid therefor, the balance of the purchase

price being evidenced by promissory notes. These

notes were signed by W. J. and B. J. Rucker for,

and in the name of Rucker Brothers. Other notes

were executed by one or both of them for funds

borrowed for the use of the partnership. The

profits from these transactions resulted from money

borrowed on separate credit and are therefore sep-

arate property. In re Brown's Estate, supra. In
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the Appeal of Julius and Rebecca B. Shafer, supra,

in wliich case the income was derived from the sale

of merchandise purchased with the separate prop-

erty of Shafer or on the credit of the partnership,

the services rendered being incidental to the profits,

we held:

Upon this basis there can be no presumption

that the profits are to be attributed entirely to

the services rendered by the community; that

presumption has been overcome by the evi-

dence, and if there is now any presiunption it

would be that this appeal fell within the de-

cision In re Brown's Estate, supra, that it was

the separate property which was the primary

source of the profits.

[22] We are therefore of the opinion that the

primary source of the profits in the instant case

was Rucker's separate property, and that he is

taxable on his distributive share of the partnership

income.

Reviewed by the Board.

Judgment will be entered on 15 days' notice

under Rule 50.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing findings of

fact and opinion certified from the record as a true

copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[23] A true copy

:

Teste: B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.
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United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 3509.

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

ORDER OF REDETERMINATION.

Pursuant to the Board's findings of fact and

opinion, promulgated December 27, 1927, the parties

filed proposed redeterminations which came on for

hearing on settlement, March 8, 1928, at which time

the proposed redeterminations were taken under

advisement. Due consideration having been given

thereto, and it appearing that petitioner has failed

to compute the deficiency in accordance with our

findings of fact and opinion, and the respondent's

computation showing the correct tax liability for

1919 to be $34,491.12, the tax previously assessed to

be $17,189.27 less $6,583.41 previously allowed, it is

ORDERED AND DECIDED: That, upon re-

determination, there is a deficiency of $23,885 . 26 for

1919.

(Signed) LOGAN MORRIS,
Member, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

Entered Mar. 20, 1928.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing order of re-
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determination certified from the record as a true

copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[24] Filed Sep. 14, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

Term, 1928.

No. .

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

DAVID H. BLAIR, Commissioner of Internal

Revenue,

Respondent.

PETITION TO REVIEW DECISION OF
UNITED STATES BOARD OF TAX AP-

PEALS.

To the Honorable, the Judges of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

:

Your petitioner, B. J. Rucker, respectfully repre-

sents that he is a resident and citizen of the city

of Everett, county of Snohomish, and State of

Washington.
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I.

NATURE OF CONTROVERSY.
1. On the twenty-seventh day of December, 1927,

the United States Board of Tax Appeals promul-

gated its findings and opinion in the case of B. J,

Rucker, Petitioner, vs. David H. Blair, Commis-

sioner of Internal Revenue, respondent. Docket

#3509, in which opinion it was held that all of pe-

titioner 's distributive share of the income of Rucker

Bros, partnership for the year 1919, was peti-

tioner's separate income and no part thereof was

community income of said petitioner and his wife.

Ruby Rucker.

2. On March 20, 1928, the United States Board

of Tax Appeals entered its final order of rede-

termination of the tax liability of said petitioner for

the year 1919, based on said opinion.

II.

ORDER OF REVIEW.

A review of the decision of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals in the above-entitled proceed-

ing is sought by the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

III.

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR.

Your petitioner says that in the record and pro-

ceedings of said United States Board of Tax Ap-

peals, in the above-entitled cause and in the final

order entered therein, there is manifest error, and

for error petitioner assigns the following:
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1. The Board erred in holding that all of the

said petitioner's distributive share of the income of

Rucker Bros, for the year 1919 was the separate in-

come of the petitioner.

[25] 2. The Board erred in failing to hold that

all of the said petitioner's distributive share of the

income of Rucker Bros, for the year 1919 was com-

munity income of the said petitioner and his wife.

3. The said findings of fact promulgated by the

Board are concurred in by the petitioner, but the

Board erred in its conclusions.

Your petitioner, therefore, prays for review, bj^

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit, of the decision of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals in the above-entitled case,

in accordance with the Act of Congress in such

case made and provided, and that the Clerk of said

Board be directed to transmit and deliver to the

Clerk of said court certified copies of all and every

of the documents listed and set forth in the rules

adopted by said United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit providing for the

presentation of petitions for review of decisions.

And he will ever pray, etc.

B. J. RUCKER.

State of Washington,

County of Snohomish,—ss.

Personally appeared before me the subscribed, a

notary public in and for said county, B. J. Rucker,

petitioner above named, who, being duly sworn ac-

cording to law, does depose and say that the facts
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set forth in the foregoing petition are true and cor-

rect.

B. J. RUCKER.

Sworn and subscribed before me this 6th day of

Sept., 1928.

W. P. BELL,
Notary Public.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing petition for

review certified from the record as a true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[26] Filed Oct. 4, 1928. United States Board

of Tax Appeals.

Before the United States Board of Tax Appeals.

DOCKET No. 3509.

B. J. RUCKER
vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE.

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

To the Clerk of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals

:

You will please prepare and, within sixty days

from the date of the filing of the petition for re-

view in the above-stated case, transmit to the Clerk

of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for
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the Ninth Circuit certified copies of the following

documents

:

1. The docket entries of proceedings before the

United States Board of Tax Appeals in the

case above entitled.

2. Findings of fact, opinion, and decision of the

Board.

3. Order of redetermination and final decision.

4. Petition for review.

The foregoing to be prepared, certified, and trans-

mitted as required by law and the rules of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

W. P. BELL.
W. P. BELL,

Everett, Wash.,

Attorney for B. J. Rucker.

J. B. FOGARTY,
J. B. FOGARTY,

Everett, Wash.,

Attorney for B J. Rucker.

September 28, 1928.

[27] Filed Oct. 4, 1928. United States Board of

Tax Appeals.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

Term, 1928.

DOCKET No. 3509.

B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

DAVID H. BLAIR, Commissioner of Internal

Revenue,
Respondent.

NOTICE OF FILING AND SERVICE OF
PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF REC-
ORD.

To David H. Blair, Commissioner of Internal Reve-

nue:

You are hereby notified that the petitioner above

named has filed with the United States Board of

Tax Appeals his praecipe for the record of certain

parts of the proceedings in the above-entitled ac-

tion, to be used in the review of the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals in the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit and a full, true and correct copy of said

praecipe is herewith served upon you.

W. P. BELL,
W. P. BELL,

Everett, Washing-ton,

Counsel for Petitioner.

J. B. FOGARTY.
J. B. FOGARTY,

Everett, Washington,

Counsel for Petitioner.
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Service of the foregoing notice is herewith ad-

mitted and a copy thereof received together with

copy of praecipe in the above-named case.

C. M. CHAREST.
M

Dated this 3d day of October, 1928.

Now, October 31, 1928, the foregoing praecipe

and notice of filing certified from the record as a

true copy.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, U. S. Board of Tax Appeals.

[Endorsed] : No. 5663. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Nmth Circuit. B. J.

Rucker, Petitioner, vs. David H. Blair, Commis-

sioner of Internal Revenue, Respondent. Tran-

script of Record. Upon Petition to Review Or-

der of the United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Filed December 20, 1928.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.
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B. J. RUCKER,
Petitioner,

vs.

DAVID H. BLAIR, Commissioner of(

Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

BRIEF OF PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is a proceeding to review the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

The facts as found by the Board of Tax Appeals

are as follows:

*'B. J. Rucker was married in December,
1904, and he has lived continuously with his

wife since that time. At the time of his mar-
riage Rucker owned a one-half interest in the co-

partnership of Rucker Brothers, the assets of

which consisted of lands and town lots and
some shares of stock in the Rucker Bank.
Rucker Brothers were engaged in the real es-

tate business at the time of Rucker's marriage,

but in 1907 or 1908 the firm entered into the

logging and sawmill business. The lands and



town lots OA^med by the partnership at the time
of Rucker's marriage were nonproductive prop-

erties from which there has been no income
from the time of his marriage to the present
time. In fact they have paid in taxes several

times what the property would sell for today.

"The profits earned by the panrtership of

Rucker Brohters have come from enterprises

they have engaged in, such as timber and saw-
mill and logging operations for which the firm
borrowed money and started. They (17) have
bought most of their timber on the installment

plan, making only a small initial payment
therefor.

"Rucker has kept no record of the property
he had at the time he was married, nor of what
he has accumulated subsequently to marriage.

"Rucker Brothers purchased a quantity of

timber from the Puget Mill Company in 1917
at a total purchase price of $625,000 for which
they paid $5,000 in cash and the balance of

$620,000 in promissory notes extending over a
period of several years, all of which notes were
signed by W. J. and B. J. Rucker for the part-

nership. A portion of that timber was later

sold at a profit of $80,000. The portion of that

timber that was not sold was cut and sawed at

their own sawmill and was paid therefor as it

was cut and removed.

"During the period 1907 to 1916 the firm of

Rucker Brothers borrowed several sums of

money for use in the partnership.

"All of Rucker's property at the time of his

marriage was his equity in the partnership and
all of his income has been from the partner-
ship distributions.

"Rucker filed an individual income tax re-



turn for the year 1919 on March 15, 1920,

showing therein as his share of the partner-

ship distribution $62,741.12, also salary re-

ceived from the partnership of $9,000, making
a total net income reported of $71,741.12.

''Mrs. B. J. Rucker had no separate proper-

ty in 1919. Mrs. Rucker filed an individual in-

come tax return for the year 1919 on May 5,

1921, reporting $35,870.56, one-half of the to-

tal income reported by Rucker in his original

return. On May 5, 1921, Rucker himself filed

an amended individual income tax return show-

ing therein one-half of the total net income re-

ported bv him in his individual return of $35,-
870.56.""^

Transcript of Record, No. 5663, pp. 22-23-24.

On these facts the Board of Tax Appeals held

that the Commissioner of Internal Revenue had cor-

rectly held that the entire distributive share of the

income of B. J. Rucker in the partnership of Rucker

Brothers was separate property.

Transcript of Record, No. 5663, p. 29.

The sole question to be determined by the court

is whether the facts as found by the Board of Tax

Appeals support the decision of that Board.

Petitioner seeking a reversal of that decision has

brought the case to this court for review.

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR
1. The Board erred in holding that all of said

petitioner's distributive share of the income of



Rucker Brothers for 1919 was the separate income

of petitioner.

2. The Board erred in failing to hold that all of

said petitioner's distributive share of the income of

Rucker Brothers for 1919 was the community prop-

erty of said petitioner and his wife.

3. The Board erred in its conclusions.

Transcript of Record p. 33.

ARGUMENT
As the different specificatitons of error raise the

same question thy may all be discussed together.

No question of fact is involved in this proceed-

ing. The petitioner accepts the facts as found by

the Board of Tax Appeals. But he urges that the

conclusions drawn from these facts by the Board

of Tax Appeals are erroneous.

The question involved is the proper construction

of the community property statutes of the State of

Washington.

The statutes pertinent to the inquiry are as fol-

lows :

Section 6890 of Remington's Compiled Statutes:

Property and pecuniary rights owned by the hus-

band before marriage, and that acquired by him

afterward by gift, bequest, devise or descent, with

the rents, issues, and profits thereof, shall not be

subject to the debts or contracts of his wife, and he



may manage, lease, sell, convey, encumber or de-

vise by will, such property without the wife joining

in such management, alienation, or encumbrance, as

fully and to the same effect as though he were un-

married.

Section 6891: The property and pecuniary rights

of every married woman at the time of her mar-

riage, or afterward acquired by gift, devise, or in-

heritance, with the rents, issues, and profits there-

of, shall not be subject to the debts or contracts of

her husband, and she may manage, lease, sell, con-

vey, encumber or devise by will such property, to

the same extent and in the same manner that her

husband can, property belonging to him.

Section 6892 : Property, not acquired or owned as

prescribed in the next two preceding sections, ac-

quired after marriage by either husband or wife,

or both, is community property. The husband shall

have the management and control of community

personal property, with a like power of disposition

as he has of his separate personal property, except

he shall not devise by will more than one-half there-

of.

Sections 6890 and 6891 define separate property

and Section 6892 provides that all property not ac-

quired or owned as prescribed by the next two pre-
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ceding sections acquired after marriage shall be

community property.

The profits were made from timber bought on

credit during the existence of the marriage com-

munity of petitioner and his wife. (Transcript p

23.)

Notes were given to evidence this indebted-

ness, signed by W. J. and B. J. Rucker for Rucker

Bros. (Transcript, p. 28.)

From these facts the appellants contend that all

of the income reported by the said B. J. Rucker and

wife was bonafide community income and was prop-

erly reported one-half as the income of B. J. Rucker

and one-half as the income of his wife, Ruby Ruck-

er.

It is the well established rule that the Federal

Courts follow the State Courts in the construction

of State Statutes.

"Decisions by the court of last resort of a
state construing state laws, on the faith of

which a subsequent contract is made, will be
adopted and applied by the Supreme Court of

the United States in considering the nature of

the contract right relied upon.

"State decisions establishing a rule of prop-
erty will be followed by the Supreme Court of

the United States when called upon to inter-

pret the state law, if it is possible to do so.

"The community system of property was not
destroyed, so as to make it impossible for com-



munity or common property to exist, by Wash,
act 1893, giving the administration and dispo-

sition of the community property to the hus-
band."

Warbiirton v. White, 176 U. S. 484, 44 Law-
Ed. 555.

Under the laws of the State of Washington as

construed by the Supreme Court the following legal

conclusions are firmly established.

1. That all property acquired by husband and

wife or either of them during marriage is presumed

to be community property and the burden of proof

is on the person claiming the same to be separate

property.

2. The property acquired by husband and wife

or either of them during the marriage relation on

borrowed capital is community property.

3. That separate property of either husband or

wife so mixed or intermingled with the community

as to be incapable of accurate segregation becomes

community property.

4. That the rents, issues and profits of commun-

ity property and the earnings of the husband, and

of the wife while living with the husband, is com-

munity property and of course community income.

The first proposition is sustained by the follow-

ing authorities

:

"It is settled by the courts where community
property statutes exist that property acquired
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by the wife during her coverture in her own
name is prima facie common property."

Lemon vs. Watterman, 2 W. T. 485.

Yesler vs. Hockstettler, 4 Wash. 349.

"Real property acquired after marriage by
deed expressing a money consideration is pre-

sumed community property until the contrary
is shown by clear and convincing proof."

Yesler vs. Hockstettler, 4 Wash. 349.

Freeburger vs. Caldwell, 5 Wash. 769.

Curry vs. Catlin, 9 Wash. 495.

Woodland Lumber Co. vs. Link, 16 Wash.
72.

Armstrong vs. Oakley, 23 Wash. 122.

Dormitzer vs. Ger. Sav. & Loan S., 23
Wash., 132.

"Where a deed was on its face a conveyance
of land for a valuable consideration, prima
facie the land conveyed was community prop-

erty and the burden of proving otherwise is

upon the opposing grantee."

Hill vs. Young, 7 Wash., 33.

"A conveyance taken during coverture is

prima facie presumed to be community prop-
erty."

Sackman vs. Thomas, 24 Wash., 660.

Mattson vs. Mattson, 29 Wash., 417.

"The presumption that property acquired by
a purchase by the wife during marriage is com-
munity property can only be overcome by clear

and satisfactory evidence."

Denny vs. Schwabacher, 54 Wash., 689.

"The presumption that all property acquired

after marriage is community property applies



whether the legal title is in the name of the

wife or the husband."

Patterson vs. Boives, 78 Wash., 476.

"Property acquired after marriage by eihter

husband or wife or both is presumed to be com-

munity property, the burden resting upon per-

sons asserting a separate character to estab-

lish that fact by clear, certain, and convincing

evidence."

In re Slocum estate, 83 Wash., 158.

''Where a husband acquired real property

in this State during the marriage relation it

is presumed to be community property and the

burden rests upon the spouse asserting its sep-

arate character to establish the fact by clear

and satisfactory evidence."

Plath vs. MiiUins, 87 Wash., 403.

"An automobile purchased by a husband
from his 'mining operatitons' one year follow-

ing a division of community property with

his wife is presumptively community proDer-

ty, the burden being upon him to establish that

it was purchased with property previously set

aside to him."

Marston vs. Rue., 92 Wash. 129.

"Real estate purchased on credit of the com-
munity although afterwards paid for ivith the

husband^s separate property is community
property." {Italics are ours).

Katterhagen vs Meister, 75 Wash. 112.

The following authorities sustain the second

proposition

:

"Lands purchased bv a wife with the pro-

ceeds of a loan secured by a mortgage on her
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separate property becomes the common prop-

erty of husband wife."

Yesler vs. Hochstettler, 4 Wash. 349.

"The principal question argued at the re-

hearing was whether property purchased by a

married woman having no separate estate,

with borrowed money, becomes her separate

property or property of the community. The
question was squarely decided in Yesler vs.

Hochstettler, 4 Wash. 349 (30 Pac. 398). The
decision of that case was overlooked in the dis-

cussion of this question in the former opinion.

In that case the question is exhaustively dis-

cussed and the authorities fully reviewed. In

the course of the opinion the court say

:

'There can be no doubt that if a married wo-
man, under the act of 1881, borrows money
entirely upon her personal credit, the money
and whatever she busy with it becomes com-
mon property,

—

'

"Without again attempting to review the

authorities, we are disposed to think that the

statute itself necessitates that conclusion."

Main vs. Scholl, 20 Wash. 205.

"The loan of money to a wife to purchase a
hotel business while living with her husband
though he was away much of the time and she
ran the hotel constitutes a community debt."

Fielding vs. Ketler, 86 Wash. 194

After citing the sections defining separate and

community property the court say

:

"Under these sections, we have held that the

proceeds of a loan to husband and wife, and
property purchased therewith, though the

money was borrowed on the security of the sep-
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arate property of one spouse, would constitute

community property. Yesler vs. Hochstettler,

4 Wash. 349, 80 Pac. 398 ; Main vs. Scholl, 20

Wash, 201, 54 Pac. 1125; Heintz vs. Brown,

46 Wash. 387, 90 Pac. 211, 123 Am. St. 937."

{Italics are ours).

Graves vs. Columbia Underwriters, 93

Wash. 198.

As to the third proposition the finding of fact

is as follows:

"Rucker has kept no record of the property

he had at the time he was married nor of what
he has accumulated subsequently to marriage."

( Transcript p. 23 )

.

"In regard to the money in the bank, it is

impossible to segregate that as to its sources.

Its separate and community natures have be-

come so confused that the court cannot appor-

tion them, and the favor with which commun-
ity property is regarded and the presumptions

in favor of it are such that we must agree with

trial court that these funds in bank are the

property of the community and not subject to

the appellant's judgment."

119 Wash. 287, Jacobs vs. Hoitt.

"So we have held that, where separate funds

have been so commingled with the community
funds as to make it impossible to trace the

former or tell which are separate and which
are community funds, all funds or property

into which they have been invested belong to

the community. Yesler vs. Hochstettler, 4

Wash. 349, 30 Pac. 398; Doyle vs. Langdon,
80 Wash. 175, 141 Pac. 352; In re Buchanan's
Estate, 89 Wash. 172, 154 Pac. 129. Such is

the situation here and we hold that the money
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and the property into which it was vested be-

longed to the community."

In re estate of Carmack, 133 Wash. 374.

"When either spouse claims that his separate
property has been commingled with commun-
ity funds he must support by affirmative proof
his claim to distinct articles or parcels or to a
share of some mass or parcel, or he must fail."

McKay on Community Property, Sec. 323
(Sec. Ed.)

As to the fourth proposition

:

"Property acquired by either spouse during the

coverture, otherwise than by gift, bequest, de-

vise or descent, is presumptively community
property."

Union Sav. & Trust Co., vs. Manney, 101
Wash. 279.

"It is conceded that the property in dispute

was acquired and improved by community
funds earned after marriage. The statute

statute makes such property community prop-
erty."

In re Parker's estate, 115 Wash. 60.

The interest of petitioner in this timber, under

an unbroken line of decisions, was the community

property of himself and wife and any profit realiz-

ed therefrom was community income of petitioner

and wife.

The decision of the Board of Tax Appeals on this

branch of the case is based solely on the decision

of the Supreme Court of the State of Washington,
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In re: Brown estate, 124 Wash. 273. The Brown

case was decided on the authority of Jacobs vs.

Hoitt 119 Wash. 283 and Finn vs. Finn, 106 Wash.

137. In both of these cases the facts were entirely

different from the facts of the case at bar In Finn

vs. Finn the property was purchased and partly

paid for by the wife with separate funds and the

balance secured by a joint note and mortgage upon

her separate property. These facts were held to

overthrow the presumption of community property

even though the property was acquired during the

marriage relatiton.

In Jacobs vs. Hoitt the holding of the court was

that the status of the bakery plant and business ac-

quired before marriage by the use of separate funds

and the pledging of separate credit is separate

property. In that case Mr. Jacobs signed the note

in question before his marriage.

In the case at bar, Mr. Rucker signed the note

some 10 to 15 years after his marriage, and a note

signed by the husband during the existence of the

marriage relatiton is presumptively an obligation

of the community.

''Where a promissory note is executed by
the husband as principal, it raises a presump-
tion in favor of the community character of the

debt."

Reed vs. Loney, 22 Wash. 433.
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"Notes given by a corporation and married
men, who were stockholders, for the purchase
of an automobile to be used as a prize for the

benefit of the corporate business are presump-
tively for the benefit of the communities, and
create a community debt, unless the presump-
tion is rebutted by showing that the stock was
the separate property of the husbands; the

test being whether the transaction was car-

ried on for the benefit of the community, not

whether it resulted in a profit."

Way vs. Lyric Theatre Co., 79 Wash. 275.

"Where a note signed by one of the trustees

of a corporation was given to defray expenses
in securing a contract for the corporation,

which, if secured would promote a sale of the
community property of the trustee, the note
was the community debt of the trustee and his

wife."

Peter vs. Hansen, 86 Wash. 413.

"In the absence of any evidence to overcome
the same, the presumption is that a note, signed
by the husband alone, constituted a community
debt."

Denis vs. Metzenbau, 124 Wash. 86.

"Every debt created by the husband during
the existence of marriage is prima facie com-
munity debt and a sale of land on execution
of a judgment rendered for such debt will di-

vest the title of the community in the land."

Calhoun vs. Leary, 6 Wash. 17.

"Any liability incurred by the husband in

the prosecution of any business is prima facie

a charge against the community; and the pre-

sumption to that effect will continue in force
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until it is overthrown by proof that such liabil-

ity was not incurred in any business of which
the community would have had the benefit if

profit had been realized therefrom."

''The rommunity character of a debt is not
chang-ed by the fact that it is evidenced by the

negotiable note of the Inisband alone and a judg-
ment rendered upon such note is prima facie

enforceable against the property of the com-
munity."

McDonough vs. Craigue, 10 Wash. 239.

"The debt upon which a judgment is render-
ed is prima facie that of the community when
the community has been in existence some
years prior to the rendition of judgment.

"The complaint in an action by a wife to set

aside a Sheriff's deed of the community prop-
erty does not state a cause of action when it

contains no allegation showing that the in-

debtedness upon which judgment had been ren-

dered was that of the husband alone and en-

forceable only against his separate estate."

Byrant vs. S. & P. Mill Co. 13 Wash. 692.

"The property of the community is liable

for an obligation of suretyship incurred by the
husband in behalf of a corporatiton in which he
is an officer and stockholder, in order to pro-
tect the property and business of the corpora-
tion, when, under all the circumstances of his

relations with the corporation, it is to be pre-
sumed that he was acting for the community,
and that any benefits which might have grown
out of his connection with such corporatiton
would have belonged to the community"

Horton vs. D. K. Banking Co. 15 Wash.
399.



16

SUMMARY
Under the Statutes of the State of Washington,

as construed by the Supreme Court of that State,

the profits realized on this timber was community

property.

The Federal Courts will follow the construction

placed upon said Statutes by the highest court of

the State. The authorities relied upon by the Board

of Tax Appeals in rendering a decision adverse to

petitioner do not support the conclusion placed upon

them by the Board of Tax Appeals.

The decisions relied upon by the Board of Tax

Appeals were made upon an entirely different set

of facts than exist in the case at bar.

The decision of the Board of Tax Appeals is

manifestly erroneous and therefore should be re-

versed.

Respectfully submitted,

W. P. BELL,

J. B. FOGARTY,

Attorneys for Petitioner.
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NAMES AND ADDRESSES OP SOLICITORS
OF RECORD.

JOHN A. SHELTON, Esq., Butte, Montana,

W. N. WAUGH, Esq., Butte, Montana,

Solicitors for Plaintiffs and Appellants.

Messrs. GUNN, RASCH & HALL, Helena, Mon-

tana,

Solicitors for Union Trust Company, a

Corporation, and Spokane & Eastern

Trust Company, a Corporation, De-

fendants and Appellees.

In the District Court of the United States in and

for the District of Montana.

No. 510—IN EQUITY.

T. TOMICH, HARRY F. SCOTT, and H. MUL-
BERGER,

Complainants,

vs.

UNION TRUST COMPANY, a Corporation,

SPOKANE & EASTERN TRUST CO., a

Corporation, FEDERAL LAND BANK OF
SPOKANE, a Corporation, BIG HORN
TULLOCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT, a

Corporation, ASH SHEEP COMPANY, a

Corporation, E. J. McCORMICK, County

Treasurer of Treasure County, Montana,
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CHARLES P. D. DONNES, H. L. HOYL-
MAN, JEFFREY DINSDALE, H. M.

SRITE, FLOYD UNGLES, C. M. VREE-
LAND, JOHN LIGHTBODY, ROBERT E.

CLEARY, and E. P. MARSHALL,
Defendants.

BE IT REMEMBERED that on the 13th day of

September, 1917, a bill of complaint was filed

herein as follows, to wit : [1*]

In the District Court of the United States in and

for the District of Montana.

No. 510.

T. TOMICH, HARRY F. SCOTT, and H. MUL-
BERGER,

Complainants,

vs.

UNION TRUST COMPANY, a Corporation,

SPOKANE & EASTERN TRUST CO., a

Corporation, FEDERAL LAND BANK OF
SPOKANE, a Corporation, BIG HORN
TULLOCK IRRIGATION DISTRICT, a

Corporation, ASH SHEEP COMPANY, a

Corporation, E. J. McCORMICK, County

Treasurer of Treasure County, Montana,

CHARLES P. D. DONNES, H. L. HOYL-
MAN, JEFFREY DINSDALE, H. M.

SRITE. NICK TOPSICK, PETER BO-

*Page-nuinber appearing at the foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Record.
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GUNONVICH, FLOYD UNGLES, C. M.

VREELAND, JOHN LIGHTBODY, ROB-
ERT E. CLEARY, and N. P. MARSHALL,

Defendants.

BILL OF COMPLAINT.

To the Honorable, the Judge of the District Court

of the United States in and for the District of

Montana.

T. Tomich, a citizen and resident of the State of

Montana, and Harry F. Scott, a citizen and resi-

dent of the State of Wyoming, and H. Mulberger,

a citizen and resident of the State of Wisconsin,

suing on their own behalf and on behalf of all

others similarly situated who wish to join in this

suit and contribute to the expense thereof and file

this, their bill against the defendants. Union Trust

Co., and Spokane & Eastern Trust Co. (respec-

tively corporations organized under the laws of the

State of Washington), Federal Land Bank of Spo-

kane, a corporation organized under the laws of

the United States with its principal place of busi-

ness in Spokane, Washington, Big Horn TuUock

Irrigation District, a Montana corporation. Ash

Sheep Company, a Montana corporation, E. J. Mc-

Cormiek, as County Treasurer of Treasure County,

Montana, Charles P. Donnes, H. L. Hoylman, Jef-

frey Dinsdale, H. M. Srite, Nick Topsick, Peter

Bogunonvich, Floyd Ungles, C. M. Vreeland, John

Lightbody, citizens and residents of the State of

Montana, Robert E. Cleary, and H. P. Marshall,
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citizens and residents [2] of the State of Wash-

ington, and thereupon your orator complains and

says:

First: That the matter in controversy herein ex-

ceeds exclusive of interest and costs the sum or

value of $3,000.00 and the suit is one involving in

its decision a construction of several sections of the

Constitution and of the statutes of the United

States.

Second: That the following named defendants

herein are corporations respectively organized un-

der the laws of the states set after their respective

names, to wit:

UNION TRUST COMPANY—Washington.
SPOKANE & EASTERN TRUST COMPANY—

Washington.

FEDERAL LAND BANK OF SPOKANE—
United States.

ASH SHEEP COMPANY—Montana.
E. J. McCormick is and was at the time of the

commencement of this suit, County Treasurer of

Treasure County, Montana.

That Bighorn TuUock Irrigation District is a

corporation attempted to be created under the laws

of the State of Montana, and is acting as such cor-

poration; that Robert E. Cleary and H, P. Mar-

shall are citizens and residents of the State of

Washington; that all other defendants herein are

citizens and residents of the State of Montana.

Third: That on the 26th day of June, 1919, T.

Tomich was the owner in and in possession of and
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that be has ever since been the owner of and in the

possession of the following- particularly described

lands, in Treasure County, Montana, to wit:

N.W. 14 Section 26, Township 5 N., Range 34 K,

consisting of 100 acres more or less.

That on the said date Floyd Ungles was the

owner of the following particularly described lands,

in Treasure County, Montana, to wit:

S.1/2 S.W.y4;S.i/2 N.W. 1/4 S.W.y4 in Section

13 ; S. lA N.E. 1^ ; N.E. i/i N.E. 14 ; and Lots 2 and 3

in Section 23 and Lots 5 and 6 in Section 14, all in

Township 5 N., Range 34E., of the [3] Montana

Meridian and consisting of 258.22 acres, more or

less ; that while the said Floyd Ungles was such

owner , and prior to June 26, 1919, he made, exe-

cuted and delivered to the said Harry F. Scott, a

mortgage on the said land and that the same or a

renewal thereof has not been paid or discharged,

and the same now remains in full force and effect;

that on the 26th day of June, 1919, W. H. Ungles

was the owner of the following particularly de-

scribed lands situated in the said Treasure County,

to wit:

W. 1/2 S.E. 14 ; W.Vo, N.E. 14 ; N.E.1/4 S.W.1/4 ; S.E.

1/4; N.W.14; 34 N.W.y4 S.W.14 and Lot 2, all in

Section 13, Township 5 N., Range 34 E., and con-

sisting of 141.6 acres, more or less; that prior to

the said 26th day of June, 1919, the said H. Mul-

berger or his pret^essor in interest loaned to said

W. H. Ungles a sum of lawful money of the United

States of America and to secure the payment of

said loan, said W. H. Ungles made, executed and de-
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livered to the said H. Mulberger or his predecessor

in interest a mortgage on said land to secure the

same ; that the said loan was never paid and that af-

terward to avoid foreclosure of the said mortgage,

and to satisfy the same said W. H, Ungles made,

executed and delivered to the said H. Mulberger or

his predecessor in interest, a deed in due form

conveying to him the said above-described land and

that from and since the first day of January, 1922,

the said H. Mulberger or his predecessor, has been

the owner of the said particularly described land,

and that he is now, such owner.

Fourth: That on or about the 26th day of June,

1919, there was filed in the office of the Clerk of the

Montana Fifteenth Judicial District Court, in and

for the County of Treasure, a certain paper writ-

ing described as a petition, a copy of which is here-

mito annexed, marked Exhibit "A" and of this

bill made a part; that the said petition prayed for

the creation of an irrigation district, the same to

embrace certain particularly described lands,

amounting to 1,599.22 acres, and including the said

lands of the complainants, and said district to be

known as Bighorn TuUock Irrigation District; that

thereafter such proceedings were had in the said

matter that a so-called judgment or decree was

made and entered on the 4th day of August, 1919,

which so-called judgment or decree is by copy

thereof heremito annexed, marked Exhibit "B"
and of this bill made a part.

Fifth: That commissioners of the said so-called

irrigation district were [4] named, who there-
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after, and acting in pursuance of such appoint-

ment, undertook to perform the functions of such

Commissioners and caused certain proceedings to be

had whereby in the year 1919 bonds were issued

covering the said district, amounting to the sum of

$75,000.00, and, that thereafter annually, excepting

in the year, 1922, the said commissioners contracted

indebtedness and caused to be issued warrants of

the said district for the payment of the same, which

said warrants aggregate the sum of $24,458.03; that

the sum realized therefrom and from the issuance

of the said bonds was expended in a fruitless at-

tempt to construct and maintain a dam across the

Bighorn River, and in an attempt to construct and

maintain a canal approximately two miles in

length, connected therewith and in further repeated

unsuccessful efforts to construct and maintain irri-

gation works ; the said bonds issued by the said dis-

trict are to the extent of approximately $1,000

ovsmed and held by the defendants. Union Trust

Company, Spokane & Eastern Trust Co., and to the

extent of $61,000 by Robert E. Cleary and H. P.

Marshall and various other parties unknown to the

complainants herein, but whose names and ad-

dresses are known to the defendants, herein, Union

Trust Co., and Spokane & Eastern Trust Company

;

that the warrants issued by the said so-called com-

missioners to cover indebtedness of the said District

in addition to that covered by said bonds are as to

a part of those issued for the years 1920, 1924 and

1925 owned and held by the defendants. Union

Trust Company and Spokane & Eastern Trust Co.,
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and said warrants are otherwise owned and held as

the complainants are informed and believed and al-

lege upon their information and belief by the fol-

lowing named defendants, to wit: C. M. Vreeland,

John Lightbody, and sundry other persons to the

complainants unknown; that the defendants herein,

Charles P. Donnes, H. L. Hoylman, Jeffrey Dins-

dale, H. M. Srite, Nick Topsick, Peter Bogunon-

vich, Floyd Tingles and Federal Land Bank of Spo-

kane are with the complainants the owners of the

land within said district.

SLxth: That on the 26th day of June, 1919, the

land owned by or mortgaged to the complainants

herein together with the water rights owned and

used in coimection therewith and the improvements

thereon were of a value of not less than $75.00 per

acre; that the said land was then under irrigation,

under cultivation, was fenced and had buildings

thereon; that the same was adapted to the growing

of [5] sugar-beets and is in a locality where

sugar-beets are grown and where there is a market

for the same and in addition to the water already

appropriated for the irrigation thereof there is

abundant additional unappropriated water which

might be appropriated for that purpose; that the

amount of the taxes hereinafter mentioned as hav-

ing been levied for the purpose of the said proposed

improvements if regularly levied and a vilid lien

upon the said land, the same with the interest ac-

crued thereon amounts to a lien thereon of more

than $75.00 an acre and more than $120,000 for the

entire district; that the said district has furnished
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no water whatever for the irrigation of the said

land and the same has been without irrigation since

the year 1919 ; that the irrigation ditches and canals

then in use have since become washed out or filled

up by the acts of the said so-called irrigation dis-

trict; the said lands have grown up in weeds, the

buildings and other improvements thereon have

fallen into decay, said lands have become for a large

part unoccupied and have been rendered practi-

cally valueless by the acts of the said so-called irri-

gation district; that the improvements proposed by

the said district, if made, could not possibly have

increased the value of the said land in an amount

exceeding $25.00 per acre and that said assessments

to pay for said proposed improvements greatly ex-

ceeded any possible increase in value of the said

lands which could have taken place as a result of

such improvements if they had been made.

'Seventh: That annually and from year to year,

excepting the year 1922, the said so-called irriga-

tion commissioners have, beginning with the year

1920, undertaken in the manner prescribed by the

said act to levy taxes upon the land within the said

district for the purpose of payment and discharge

of the said bonds and warrants the assessments so

levied not being kept separate, and that since the

year 1920, excepting the year 1922 the amount of

the t9,xes attempted to be levied and assessed upon

the said lands for the purpose of discharging said

warrants exceeded $4,890.60 for each year; that the

assessed valuation of all of the said lands of the

said district in any year since the year 1918 has
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not exceeded the sum of $21,965.00; that the taxes

levied by the said irrigation district upon the lands

within the said district, and exclusive of taxes lev-

ied for the purpose of paying interest which has

accrued upon bonds issued by the said district, and

exclusive of any taxes levied for the purpose of

payment of any bonds, did annually, excepting the

year 1920 and 1922, exceed 25% of the assessed val-

uation [6] of all of the lands within the said dis-

trict; that no part of the said taxes levied in the

said district was for the purpose of organization

or for any other immediate purpose of the said act,

and none of the said taxes were levied for the pur-

pose of making or purchasing surveys, plans or

specifications or for stream gauging or gathering

data or to make repairs occasioned by any calamity

or any other unforeseen contingency; that the

taxes levied by the said district have regularly ex-

ceeded the limitation prescribed by the act, imder

which the said so-called district was attempted to

be organized, and that the said so-called commis-

sioners have annually filed with the Clerk of the

County Commissioners of the said county a certi-

fied copy of the several resolutions, which the said

so-called irrigation district had attempted to adopt

for the purpose of the levying of the said taxes;

that the said so-called commissioners have annually

beginning with the year 1920, excepting the year

1922, furnished to the county treasurer of the said

county a list of the said district lands in the said

county together with the amount of taxes or assess-

ments against the said lands for irrigation district
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purposes, and that the said county treasurer has

annually in the manner prescribed by the said act

collected or attempted to collect said taxes ; that the

said county treasurer has refused to segregate the

taxes levied in pursuance of the acts of the said

so-called irrigation district from the taxes regu-

larly levied for state and county purposes and at

all times excepting the year 1922 has refused to re-

ceive payment of taxes regularly levied for state

and county purposes (though payment of the same

was annually and in due time duly tendered to the

said county treasurer) without payment being also

made of said taxes attempt to be levied in pursu-

ance of the acts of the said so-called irrigation dis-

trict; that with the exception of the taxes for the

year 1920 the taxes attempted to be levied by the

said so-called irrigation district or in pursuance of

or in furtherance of its acts have not been paid

and heretofore and during the year 1922 the county

treasurer of the said county advertised the said

lands for sale for delinquent taxes of the said so-

called irrigation district and thereafter, the same

was attempted to be sold by the said county treas-

urer and the same was bid in at such tax sale by

the said County of Treasure and record of all of

the said proceedings appear upon the books offi-

cially kept by the said county treasurer in the

county seat of the said county. Said county treas-

urer threatens to and will, unless enjoined, execute

a tax deed to the purchaser for each of the [7]

tracts ovnied by complainants, and they and each of

them will be recorded in the office of the county
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clerk and recorder of the said county; proceedings

so had and taken with reference to the attempted

tax sale of the said property casts a cloud upon the

title to the said lands and the whole thereof and the

said further proceedings including the issuance of

the said tax deeds and the recording thereof will

cast a further cloud upon the said title.

Eighth: That the proceedings for the organiza-

tion of the said district were not sufficient to give

jurisdiction to the court for that purpose; that the

said petition wholly failed to describe generally

or at all the character of the works, water rights,

canals and other property proposed to be acquired

or constructed for irrigation purposes, in the pro-

posed district; that the said petition falsely stated

inferentially that such works proposed to be con-

structed was the extension of a canal which might

be constructed at an expense not exceeding $3,-

000,00, while as a matter of fact the irrigation

works actually proposed to be constructed was be-

sides the said canal a dam across the Bighorn

River, costing not less than $72,000.00: that no no-

tice sufficient to give the Court jurisdiction was

given of the said proceedings, the only notice given

being a publication of the said insufficient petition

and notice that the said petition would be heard at

a certain time and place.

Ninth: That on the 26th day of June, 1919, there

was in existence a system of irrigation by which

water was supplied to all of the lands owned by or

mortgaged to the complainants; that the said lands

and all of the said lands alleged to be owned by or
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mortgaged to the said complainants were then un-

der irrigation, and there were water rights appur-

tenant thereto; that the said complainants did not

and no one of them did consent to the inclusion of

their said lands or the land mortgaged to them

within the said district ; they never at any time par-

ticipated in the organization of the said district,

and at all times opi3osed the same and opposed the

inclusion of their said lands within the said dis-

trict.

Tenth: That said Chapter 146 of the Montana

Eleventh Session Laws is violative of the due pro-

cess of law clause of the 14th Amendment to the

Constitution of the United States in that it permits

that assessments may be levied for special improve-

ments in irrigation districts in excess of any bene-

fits which may [8] or might possibly accrue as

a result of such special improvements and the said

chapter does not limit the assessments which may
be levied by any irrigation district to the value of

the benefits which may accrue as a result thereof;

that certain validation proceedings were attempted

to be had whereby said proceedings for the issuance

of the said bonds were sought in pursuance of Sec-

tion 41 of Chapter 146 of the Montana Session

Laws to be confirmed and validated, which said

proceedings are by copy thereof hereunto annexed

marked Exhibit "C," and hereby made a part of

this bill; that the said proceedings were void and

without any force or effect and that the said acts

of the said commissioner and all of their herein

mentioned acts were void and without any force or
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effect, for the reason that the Court in the said pro-

ceedings was acting without jurisdiction, the land

of said complainants, or the land mortgaged to them

were not properly included within the said district

and the said so-called irrigation district and the

said Court had no jurisdiction, power or authority

to include such lands in the said irrigation dis-

trict, and said Court had not power or authority

to proceed in the said validation proceedings for

the further reason that the said Section 41 is vio-

lative of the due process of law clause of the 14th

Article of Amendment and of Section 2, Article 3,

and paragi'aph second of Article 6 of the Constitu-

tion of the United States, and is in conflict with

Sections 24 and 28 of the Judicial Code of the

United States, in that the said proceedings pro-

vided for by the said Section 41 may, and in this

instance did, involve a determination of whether

certain proceedings constituted due process of law

and whether by reason thereof they were violative

of the Federal Constitution and involved a question

arising under the Constitution of the United States

;

that the amount involved in the said proceed-

ing as it affected each of the complainants herein

exceeded the sum or value of $3,000.00, exclusive of

interest and costs, and was within the jurisdiction

conferred by the Federal Constitution and laws on

the United States District Court, and that such

proceedings could not be bought in the District

Court of the United States or removed thereto un-

der the terms of the said section as construed by the

highest court of the State of Montana, and that said
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Section 41 [9] as so construed infringed the ju-

dicial power of the United States and deprived the

District Court of the United States of jurisdiction

given it by the Constitution and laws of the United

States.

Eleventh: Complainants allege upon their infor-

mation and belief that all of the facts hereinbefore

alleged with reference to the insufficiency of the

petition and of the notice of the formation of the

said district; that the lands of the complainants

were under irrigation prior thereto, and they did

not consent to the inclusion of their lands in the

said district; that the said bonds as issued and said

assessments made each exceeded the benefits which

could possibly accrue to said lands as a result of

the said proposed improvements and were confisca-

tory of the lands of the complainants ; that the said

taxes levied exceeded the maximum allowed by law,

and all other facts herein alleged with reference to

the illegality of the issuance of the said bonds and

warrants and of the levy of the said taxes were

known to all of the defendants herein alleged to be

owners or holders of the said bonds or warrants

and the said defendants and each of them at the

said times had notice of all of such facts.

Twelfth: That all of the proceedings had and all

of the papers filed in the said Fifteenth Judicial

District Court in the matter with the exception of

an undertaking filed with the said petition on June

26, 1919, a map filed in said court on August 4,

1919, bonds of various so-called irrigation district

commissioners, petitions for and orders appointing
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them and a petition filed December 9, 1919, but not

acted upon and excepting papers which are by

copies hereunto annexed as Exhibits "A" to "C,"

inclusive, are by copy thereof annexed, marked Ex-

hibit "D," and of this bill made a part, and that

no other proceedings of any kind or character were

had or taken in the said Fifteenth Judicial District

Court in said matter and no paper filed therein, ex-

cept those mentioned and those hereunto annexed

as exhibits.

In consideration whereof and inasmuch as the

complainants have no remedy at law and are only

relievable in equity, and to the end that the com-

plainants may have the relief which they can only

obtain in a court of equity, and to the end that the

said defendants, and each of them, may answer

herein, but not upon oath or affirmation, the benefit

whereof is expressly waived by the complainants,

[10] who now pray the Court that a decree be

entered herein:

First: That the cloud caused by the recording of

the said irrigation tax proceedings in the office of

the county treasurer be removed, and the same de-

creed to be no cloud upon the title of the complain-

ants in and to the said lands.

Second : That the defendant, E. J. McCormick, as

county treasurer, be enjoined and restrained from

issuing any tax deeds in pursuance of any tax sale

made of the said lands, or any part thereof, for any

of the said delinquent irrigation district taxes.

Third: That said Chapter 146 be declared to be

violative of the due process of law clause of 14th
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Ameudment of the Federal Constitution and that

Section 41 of Chapter 146 of the Session Laws of

the Montana Eleventh Legislative Assembly be de-

clared to be violative of the Constitution of the

United States and in conflict with Sections 24 and

28 of the Judicial Code of the United States and

void and without any force or effect.

Fourth: That the so-called judgment and decree

of the Montana 15th Judicial District Court in and

for the county of Treasure dated the 17th day of

November, 1919, in the matter of the said Irrigation

District proceedings, be declared to be in excess of

the jurisdiction of the said court and without force

or effect.

Fifth: That complainants have such other and

further relief in the premises as equity and good

conscience may require and for costs of suit.

Complainants pray for general relief.

May it please your Honor to grant unto this

complainants a writ of subpoena to be directed to

the said Union Trust Company, a corporation;

Spokane & Eastern Trust Company, a corporation;

Federal Land Bank of Spokane, a corporation ; Big

Horn TuUock Irrigation District, a corporation;

Ash Sheep Company, a corporation; E. J. McCor-

mick, as county treasurer of Treasure County, Mon-

tana; Charles P. Donnes, H. L. Hoylman, Jeffrey

Dinsdale, H. M. Srite, Nick Topsick, Peter Bogun-

onvich, Floyd Ungles, C. M. Vreeland, John Light-

body, Robert E. Cleary and H. P. Marshall, and

each of them, thereby commanding them, and each

of them, at a certain time, and under a certain
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penalty, therein to be limited, personally to appear

before this Honorable Court and then and there

full, true and perfect answer make.

W. N. WAUGH,
JOHN A. SHELTON,

Solicitors for Complainants. [11]

EXHIBIT ''A."

In the District Court of the Fifteenth Judicial

District of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Treasure.

In the Matter of the Establishment and Organiza-

tion of the BIG HORN-TULLOCK IRRI-

GATION DISTRICT OF TREASURE
COUNTY, MONTANA.

PETITION.

To the Honorable District Court in and for the

County of Treasure, State of Montana.

The undersigned holders of title or evidence of

title to lands situate in the County of Treasure,

State of Montana, hereinafter described, suscep-

tible of irrigation from the same general source and

by the same system of canals and works and in-

cluded in the hereinafter proposed Irrigation Dis-

trict, hereby propose and petition for the establish-

ment and organization of an Irrigation District

pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 146 of the

Acts of the Eleventh Legislative Assembly of the

State of Montana, and Acts amendatory thereof
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and supplementary thereto and your petitioners

hereby respectfully show to the Court:

I.

That your petitioners represent and constitute a

majority in number of the holders of title or evi-

dence of title to lands hereinafter set forth and in-

cluded in said proposed Irrigation District. That

they also represent a majority of the acreage of

said lands within the proposed Irrigation District,

and that all of said lands are susceptible to irriga-

tion from the same source and by the same general

system of works.

II.

That the name suggested for the proposed Irriga-

tion District is Big Horn Tullock Irrigation Dis-

trict.

III.

That the following is a general description of the

lands to be included within the said proposed Irriga-

tion District, aggregating approximately 1650 acres,

as follows: The Northwest quarter of Section Two
in Township Four North of Range Thirty-four

East; Sections Thirteen, Twenty-three, Twenty-

seven and Thirty-four, and the Southeast quarter of

Section Fourteen, Northwest quarter of Section

Twenty-four, [12] South half section Twenty-

two, Northwest quarter of Section Twenty-six, in

Township Five North of Range Thirty-four East:

All being in Treasure County, Montana.

That the following are the names of the holders

of title or evidence of title to the lands within the

proposed irrigation district, ascertained in the man-
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ner as provided by law, together with a description

of the land and the approximate acreage of land

owned or held by each of said owners or holders

of title or evidence of title and the respective post-

office addresses of each thereof as far as known to

your petitioners, said description of land and the

approximate acreage after each name set forth

being and meaning to include only those subdivi-

sions or portions of subdivisions as can be irrigated

from the same general source and by the same gen-

eral system of works, which are hereinafter de-

scribed.

THE FOLLOWING LANDS ALL BEING IN
RANGE THIRTY-FOUR EAST.

Name and Address.

Charles P. Donnes,

Bighorn, Montana Lots 4 and 5 2 4 80

Ash Sheep Co.,

Bighorn, Montana

H. L. Hoylman,

Bighorn, Montana

Description Sec. Twp,

Lots 4 and 5 2 4

Lots 1, 8, 9, 12 2 4

SE. 1,4 SE. 14 22 5

S. 1/2 sw. 14 23 5

NE. 14 NE.14 27 5

SE. 1/4 NW. 1^, NW. 1/4

NE. 14, Lts. 1, 3, 27 5

N.i/s SE.%, S.1/2 NE, 1/4 27 5

Lot 5 34 5

Lots 2 and 3 12 4

455

50
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ame and Address. Description Sec. Twp. Acres.

. C. Owens, Lots 1, 3, 4, 34 5

(Bighorn, Montana SW. ^4 SW. l^ 27 5

E.%NE..i/4 34 5

SE.14SE.14 27 5 130

^ E. Ungles,

Bighorn, Montana NW. i/4 NE. i^, NE. i^

NW. 1/4 34 5

NE.14SW.1/4 23 5 85

jffrey Dinsdale,

Bighorn, Montana NW. 14 SW. 14, N. i/^

NE.1/4SW.14 27 5 •

SE. 1/4 SW. 1/4, SW. 1/4

SE.i/4 27 5

Lots 6 28 5 165

.3]

ellie Smith,

Bighorn, Montana s.yo,NE.i/4sw. 1/4 27 5 20

. M. Srite,

Bighorn, Montana Lot 11 28 5 20

ick Topsiek,

Bighorn, Montana Lot 2 27 5 14

. Y. Cook,

Bighorn, Montana Lots 6 and 7 22 5 50

Bter Bogimovich,

Bighorn, Montana Part of N.i/oiSW.i^ 26 5 3
Tomich,

Butte, Montana NW. 1/4 26 5 100
las. Badlands,

Bighorn, Montana Lot 5 22 5

Lot 5 23 5 30
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Name and Address. Description. Sec. Twp. Acres.

John Topsick,

Bighorn, Montana Part of SE. 1^ 23 5 5

Floyd Ungles,

Bighorn, Montana S. 1/4 SW. 1/4, s,.%
NW.1/4 sw.1/4 13 5

S.i/a I^W.iA, NE. 1/4

Ne.y4Pt2, 3 23 5 240

Lots 5 and 6 14 5

J. W. McCoy,

Bighorn, Montana Part of NW. 1/4 24 5 40

W. H. Ungles,

Bighorn, Montana w. % SE.y4, w.1/2

NE.14, NE.1/4 SW.
14, SE.l/4NW.y4,3/4

of NW. y4 SW. y4

Lot 2 13 5

IV.

That the source from which the lands within the

proposed Irrigation District are to be irrigated is

from waters to be taken from the Big Horn Eiver

and diverted from the east bank of said river, in

Section Twenty-two, Township Four North of

Range Thirty-four East, and to be conveyed through

an irrigation ditch or canal commencing at said

point of diversion and extending in a northeasterly

direction through sections Fifteen, Ten, Three and

Two, Township Four North, Range Thirty-four

East, and through Sections Thirty-four, Twenty-

seven, Twenty-six, Twenty-three, Twenty-four and

Thirteen, in Township Five North of Range Thirty-

four East.
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V.

That your petitioners present and file herewith

a map or j^lat of the proposed irrigation district on

which is shown the line of said proposed canal

and [14] lands embraced within said proposed

irrigation district, hereto attached and marked Ex-

hibit "A."

VI.

That your petitioners also file herewith an under-

taking to be approved by this Honorable Court or the

Judge thereof, conditioned that your petitioners shall

well and truly pay or cause to be paid all of the

costs in and to proceedings thereunder preliminary

to the organization of said proposed irrigation dis-

trict hereby petitioned for in the event that the said

organization shall not be effected.

WHEREFORE your petitioners pray that the

lands embrace within the proposed irrigation dis-

trict hereinabove described, be created and organ-

ized into an irrigation district to be known as the

Big Hom-Tullock Irrigation District in accord-

ance with, and pursuant to the provisions of Chap-

ter 146 of the Acts of the Eleventh Legislative As-

sembly of the State of Montana, and Acts supple-

mental thereto and amendatory thereof, and for

such other and further relief as to the Court may
seem proper. [15]
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Postoffice Address.

Big Horn, Montana.

Billings, Montana.

Bighorn, Montana.

Petitioners.

F. C. OWENS
YEGEN BROS.

By C. Yegen

ASH SHEEP CO.,

By L, S. Perkins

W. E. UNGLES
NICK TOPSICK
FLOYD UNGLES
CHARLES BADLANDS
H. L. HOYLMAN
CHAS. P. DONNES
JEFFREY DINSDALE
W. H. UNGLES
J. E. DINSDALE
PETER BOGUNOVICH
D. Y. COOK
[16]

State of Montana,

County of Treasure,—ss.

F, C. Owens, of lawful age, being first duly sworn,

deposes and says:

That he is one of the petitioners herein and that

he has read the above and foregoing petition and

knows the contents thereof, and that the matters

and things therein stated are true except as to

those matters stated upon information and belief

and as to those he believes them to be true. That

he makes this verification on his own behalf and

on the behalf of the other petitioners herein,

F. C. OWENS.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25th day

of June, 1919.

[Notarial Seal] HENRY V. BEEMAN,
Notary Public for the State of Montana, Residing

at Forsyth, Montana.

My commission expires April 4, 1922.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 26, 1919. J. D. Clark,

Clerk. By F. M. Clark, Deputy. [17]
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EXHIBIT "D."

In the District Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Treasure.

In the Matter of the Establishment and Organiza-

tion of the BIG HORN-TULLOCK IRRI-

GATION DISTRICT OF TREASURE
COUNTY, MONTANA.

ORDER.

Upon reading and filing the petition herein, it is

hereby ordered that a hearing on said petition

be had and held before the Court on the 4th day of

August, 1919, at the hour of ten o'clock A. M. of said

day in the courtroom in said Treasure County,

Montana, at which time and place all persons inter-

ested, whose lands or rights may be damaged or

benefitted by the organization of the proposed Irri-

gation District or irrigation works or improvements

therein to be acquired or constructed as set forth in

the petition herein filed, may appear and contest the

necessity or utility of the proposed irrigation Dis-

trict or any part thereof.

And it is further ordered that the Clerk of this

court shall cause to be published at least once a

week for two successive calendar weeks in the

"Hysham Echo," a weekly newspaper of general

circulation published in said county of Treasure,

a copy of the petition filed herein together with a

notice stating the time and place fixed by this Court
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in this order for the hearing of said petition and

that the Clerk of this court shall, within three days

after the first publication of said notice aforesaid,

mail a copy of said petition and notice to each non-

resident holder of title or evidence of title to the

lands within the proposed Irrigation District as

set forth in the petition herein whose postoffice ad-

dress is stated in said petition.

Done in open court this 26th day of June, 1919.

GEO. P. JONES,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 26, 1919. J. D. Clark,

Clerk of Court. By F. M. Clark, Deputy. [19]

EXHIBIT "D" (Continued).

In the District Court of the Fifteenth Judicial

District of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Treasure.

In the Matter of the Establishment and Organiza-

tion of the BIG HORN-TULLOCK IRRI-

GATION DISTRICT OF TREASURE,
MONTANA.

ORDER.

In the above-entitled matter it is by the Court

hereby ORDERED

:

That the following named persons be and are

hereby appointed Commissioners in and for the Big

Horn-Tullock Irrigation District, to wit: In and

for Division No. 1 of said District, L. S. Perkins;

in and for Division No. 2 of said District, Jeffrey
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Dinsdale; in and for Division No. 3 of said Dis-

trict, Floyd Ungles; and that said Commissioners

shall upon qualifying as by law required, hold their

respective offices for the term provided by law, and

until their successors are elected and qualified, and

they shall be charged with the duties and vested

with the powers provided by law.

Done in open court this 4th day of August, 1919.

DANIEL L. OHERN,
Judge of the District Court, Presiding.

[Endorsed]: Piled Aug. 4, 1919. J. D. Clark,

Clerk. By P. M. Clark, Deputy. [20]

EXHIBIT "B."

In the District Court of the Pifteenth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Treasure.

In the Matter of the Establishment and Organiza-

tion of the BIG HORN-TULLOCK IRRI-

GATION DISTRICT OP TREASURE
COUNTY, MONTANA.

DECREE.

On this 4th day of August, 1919, the same being

a judicial day of the regular July, 1919, Term of the

above-entitled court, this matter came on regularly

for hearing upon the petition of certain holders of

title or evidence of title to lands situate in the

County of Treasure, State of Montana, whose names

are set forth in said petition which was heretofore

filed in this court, praying that the establishment
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and organization of an Irrigation District in ac-

cordance with the provisions of Chapter 146 of the

Acts of the Eleventh Legislative Assembly of the

State of Montana, and Acts amendatory thereof and

supplemental thereto; and said petitioners appear-

ing by counsel and the Court having heard the

testimony and the arguments of counsel, and being

fully advised in the premises, it is by the Court

found and determined

:

1. That the petition herein filed has been dul}^

and properly signed by a majority in number of

the holders of title or evidence of title to the lands

within the proposed Irrigation District, and that

said petitioners represent a majority in acreage of

the lands included therein.

2. That said petition sets forth a general de-

scription of the lands to be included within said

proposed Irrigation District, the names of the

holders of title or evidence of title to the lands

therein, together with the postofiice addresses of

each and every nonresident holder of title or evi-

dence of title to lands within said proposed Irriga-

tion District, the general source from which said

lands are to be irrigated, and the character of the

works, water rights, canals and other property to

be acquired and constructed for Irrigation pur-

poses in said proposed District.

3. That all of the lands set forth and described in

said petition and to be included in said Irrigation

District are situated in said county of Treasure,

State of Montana. [21]
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4. That the lands to be included in said Irriga-

tion District are susceptible to irrigation from the

same source and by the same general system of

works.

5. That said petition sets forth the name sug-

gested for the proposed Irrigation District, and

that said petition is accompanied by a map or plat

of the proposed Irrigation District, and that there

has been filed therewith, a good and sufficient bond

and undertaking, duly approved by the Court, as

by law required, to pay all the costs in and about

the proceedings preliminary to the organization of

the District, in the event said organization is not

affected.

6. That due and legal notice of the hearing upon

said petition as set forth by the order of this Court

herein made and entered has been given as by law

required, as shown by the affidavit, and certificate

of publication and service filed herein, which said

notice and service thereof are by Court hereby

approved.

7. That each and all of the orders of this Court

and the provisions of Sections One, Two, Three and

Four of Chapter 146 of the Acts of the Eleventh

Legislative Assembly of the State of Montana, and

Acts amendatory thereof and supplemental thereto,

have been duly complied with.

WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED, AD-
JUDGED AND DECREED BY THIS COURT,
that said petition be allowed and that in accordance

therewith an Irrigation District be and it is hereby

established and designated as the Big Horn-Tul-
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lock Irrigation District, in accordance with and

pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 146 of the

Acts of the Eleventh Legislative Assembly of the

State of Montana, and that said District be com-

posed of and include the following described lands

situated in the said county of Treasure, State of

Montana, to wit: [22]

LANDS SITUATE IN TOWNSHIP FOUR
NORTH, RANGE THIRTY-FOUR EAST.

Acres

Name and Address. Description. See. Irrigable.

Ash Sheep Co.,

Big Horn, Montana Part of N. 1/2 Lot 12 2 3.4

Part of E. 1/2 Lot 1 3 7

Part of E. 1/2 Lot 8 3 14.7

Part of N. 1/2 Lot 9 3 10.2

Charles P. Donnes,

Big Horn, Montana Lot 4 2 45

Lot 5 2 27

H. L. Hoylman,

Big Horn, Montana Part of W. 1/2 Lot 2 2 5

Lot 3 2 38

P. Mauro,

Big Horn, Montana Part of N. i/^ Lot 6'
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LANDS SITUATE IN TOWNSHIP FIVE
NORTH, RANGE THIRTY-FOUR EAST.

Acres

Name and Address. Description Sec. Irrigable.

F. C. Owens,

Big Horn, Montana Part of SE. 1/4 SE. 1/4 27 19.9

Part of W. 1/2 NE. 1/4

NE.i^ 34 4

Part of W. 1/2 Lot 5 34 7.6

Pai-t of W. 1/2 SE. 14

NE.l^ 34 6.5

Part of Lot 4 34 26.3

sw. 14 SW. 1/4 27 40

Part of N. 1/2 Lot 1 34 17.2

Part of N. E. i^ Lot 3 34 3

W. E. Ungles,

Big Horn, Montana NW. 1/4 NE. 14 34 40

NE. 1^ NW. 1^ 34 33.6

Jeffrey Dinsdale,

Big Horn, Montana N. 1/2 NE. 1^ SW. 1/4

NW. 14 SW. 1/4 Less

27 19.5

N. P. Right of Way 27 35

SW. 14 SE. 1/4 27 40

SE. 1^ SW.1/4 27 40

Part of Lot 6 28 25.3

H. M. Srite,

Big Horn, Montana Lot 11 28 16

Lot 1 33 1
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Acres

Name and Address. Description Sec. Irrigable.

T. Tomich,

Butte, Montana Part of NE. 1^4 NW. 14 26 24.2

NW.14NW.14 26 40

Part of N. 1/2 SE. i^

NW.l^ 26 5.7

Part of SW.iA NW.
1/4 26 27

Nellie Smith,

Big Horn, Montana S. 1/2 NE. i^ SW. 1/4 27 20

Peter Bogunonvich,

Big Horn, Montana Part of NW. 1/4 SW. i^

lying below irrigation

canal 26 3.8

[23]

Ash Sheep Co.,

Big Horn, Montana Part of NE. i/4 NE. 1/4

27 18.5

Part of NW. i/4 NE. i/4

27 32.8

NE. 1/4NW.1A 27 38.5

SE.14NE.IA 27 39.9

SW. 1/4 NE. 14 less N. P.

right of way 27 35.9

SE.i^ NW.14 less

N. P. right of way 27 34.8

Lot 3 27 37.5

NE. 1/4 SE. 1/4 27 39

NW. 1/4 SW. 14 27 40
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Acres

Name and Address. Description Sec. Irrigable.

Part of SE.1/4 SWi^
West of Irrigation

Ditch 23 20.8

SW. 1/4 SW. l^ less N. P.

Right of way 23 36.4

SE. 1/4 SK 1/4 less N. P.

Right of way 22 32

Nick Topsick,

Big Horn, Montana Lot 2 27 13.5
,

D. Y. Cook,

Big Horn, Montana Lot 7 22 25

Part of Lot 6 22 5

Charles Badlands,

Big Horn, Montana Part of Lot 5 23 21.3

Part of Lot 5 22 5.6

W. E. Ungles,

Big Horn, Montana NE. 1/4 SW. 1/4 less N. P.

Right of way 23 29.4

John Topsick,

Big Horn, Montana Part of NW. i/4 SE. i^

lying Northwest of

Irrigation Ditch 23 6.5

Floyd Ungles,

Big Horn, Montana Part of W. 1/2 SW. 14

SE. % lying west of

Irrigation Canal 13 1.25

SE. 14 SW. l^ 13 37

SW. 1/4 SW. 1^ less N. P.

Right of Way 13 35.9

Part of S. 1/28. 1/2 NW.
1 / C1TTT 1 /
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Acres

Name and Address. Description Sec. Irrigable.

Part of Lot 5 14 8

Lot 6 Less N. P. Right

of Way 14 38.32

NE. 14 NE. 1^ Less N. P.

Right of Way 23 34.8

Lot 2 Less N. P. Right

of Way 23 17.85

SE. 1/4 NE. 14 23 37.8

SW. 14 NE. 1/4 Less N. P.

Right of Way 23 33.8

Part of Lot 3 23 5

J. W. McCoy,

Big Horn, Montana Part of NW. 14 NE. i^

[24]

W. H. Ungles,

Big Horn, Montana

NW.14 24 1.4

Part of NW. 1/4 NW. 1/4

West of Irrigation

Canal 24 29

Part of W. 1/2 SW. V^

NW. 14 lying West of

Irrigation Canal 24 4.8

Part of W. 1/2 NW. 14

NE. 14 lying West of

Irrigation Canal 13 8.5

Part of NE.14NW. 14

Less N. P. Right of

Way 13 24

Part of SW.i^NE.i^
West of Canal 13 5.8
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Acres

Name and Address. Description Sec. Irrigable.

SE. 14 NW. 14, Less

N. P. Right of Way 13 35.1

Part of South Half Lot

2 13 3.3

Part of W.y4NW.i/4

SE.1/4W. of Canal 13 3.4

NE. 1/4 SW. 14 Less N. P.

Right of Way 13 38.5

Part of NW.y4SW.14
Less N. P. Right of

Way 13 23

It is intended, AND IT IS HEREBY OR-
DERED, that only such portions of the above-

described parcels of land as lie and are situated

under the proposed Irrigation Canal of the said

Big Horn-Tullock Irrigation District and which

are susceptible of irrigation from said irrigation

system be and are hereby included in said Irriga-

tion District, said Irrigation District consisting of

and including within its boundaries, an aggregate

of 1599.22 acres of irrigable land.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND DE-
CREED that the said Irrigation District be and

the same is hereby divided into three divisions to

be known as Division No. 1, Division No. 2 and

Division No. 3, said Divisions respectively to be

composed of and to include the lands in said Dis-

trict hereinafter described, to wit:

DIVISION No. 1 to consist of all the lands in-

cluded in said District and situated and lying
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within Sections Two and Tkree in Township Four

North of Range Thirty-four East, and within Sec-

tions Thirty-three and Thirty-four in Township

Five North of Range Thirty-four East.

DIVISION No. 2 to contain all the lands in-

cluded in said District situate and lying within Sec-

tions Twenty-six, Twenty-seven and Twenty-eight

of Township Five North of Range Thirty-four

East.

DIVISION No. 3 to contain all the lands in-

cluded in said District situate and lying within

Sections Thirteen, Fourteen, Twenty-two, Twenty-

three and Twenty-four in Township Five North of

Range Thirty-four East.

Done in open court this 4th day of August, 1919.

[25]

DANIEL L. OHERN,
Judge of the District Court Presiding.

[Endorsed]: Filed Aug. 4, 1919. J. D. Clark,

Clerk. By F. M. Clark, Deputy. [26]

EXHIBIT "C."

In the District Court of the Fifteenth Judicial

District of the State of Montana, in and for

the County of Treasure.

In the Matter of the Issuance of Seventy-five Thou-

sand Dollars of the Coupon Bonds of the

BIG HORN-TULLOCK IRRIGATION
DISTRICT OF TREASURE COUNTY,
MONTANA.
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PETITION.

Come now L. S. Perkins, Floyd Ungles and

Jeffrey Dinsdale, as Commissioners of the Big

Horn-Tullock Irrigation District of Treasure

County, Montana, and respectfully represent to

the Court:

I.

That on the fourth day of August, 1919, by an

order and decree of the District Court of the Fif-

teenth Judicial District of the State of Montana,

in and for the county of Treasure, all of the lands

and territory embraced within and described by

said Decree, were created and organized as an Ir-

rigation District of the county of Treasure and

State of Montana, pursuant to the tenns and pro-

visions of the statutes of the State of Montana, in

such case made and provided and particularly

Chapter 146 of the Laws of the Eleventh Legisla-

tive Assembly of the State of Montana, and Acts

amendatory thereof and supplementary thereto.

II.

That your petitioners are the duly elected quali-

fied and acting Commissioners of the said Big

Horn-Tullock Irrigation District.

III.

That heretofore such Commissioners have formu-

lated and adopted a general plan for the irrigation

and reclamation of said lands embraced within the

said Irrigation District, and for the acquiring and

furnishing of a water supply for the land owners
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within said District, and for the purchase, con-

stiiiction and acquisition of such water right, prop-

erty, canals, ditches, works and equipment, as may

be necessary for such purpose ; and that said Board

of Commissioners have heretofore caused examina-

tions, plans and estimates to be made as were nec-

essary to demonstrate the practicability of such

general plan for the irrigation and reclamation of

all of the lands within said Irrigation [27] Dis-

trict for the purpose of furnishing a proper basis

for estimating the cost of carrying out such gen-

eral plan; all of such surveys, maps, plans, reports

and estimates being made under the direction and

supervision of an Irrigation Engineer of well

known competency and standing, all of the same

being duly and regularly certified by said Engineer,

(1) as by law required; whereupon said Board of

Commissioners of said Big Horn-Tullock Irriga-

tion District did now proceed to and (2) did de-

termine the amount of money necessary to be raised

for the acquiring by purchase or otherwise, and for

the construction of said proposed water rights, ca-

nals, ditches, irrigation works and property to be

Seventy-five Thousand Dollars, and did within ten

days thereafter notify all persons and corporations,

holders of title or evidence of title within the said

District as by law required, of the filing of said

report by said engineer, and the action and deter-

mination of said Board of Commissioners as to the

amount of money necessary to be raised for such

purposes.
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IV.

That thereafter and on the twentieth day of Oc-

tober, 1919, certain land owners, holders of title

or evidence of title to lands within the said Dis-

trict, constituting" more than a majority in number

and in acreage, filed with the Secretary of the

Board of Commissioners of said District, your peti-

tioners herein, for their consideration and for

their action thereupon as provided by law, a peti-

tion praying that your petitioners as such Board

of Commissioners cause to be issued the negotiable

coupon bonds of said District in the sum of Sev-

enty-five Thousand Dollars, same to run for a

period not longer than thirty years from their

date, said bonds to be issued in manner and form

as the said Board of Commissioners deem for the

best interest of said District and the land owners

therein, said bonds and proceeds thereof to be used

for acquiring by purchase or otherwise, all such

water rights, canals, ditches, irrigation works, and

property, and the construction of additional works

and structures as may be necessary for the proper

irrigation and reclamation of the lands within said

District, all of which more fully appears by the

certified copy of said petition herein referred to,

which is hereto amiexed and made a part thereof,

and marked Exhibit "A."

V.

That upon the filing of said petition, your peti-

tioners, as such Board of Commissioners, being in

regular sessions assembled, did on the twenty-sec-

ond day of [28] October, 1919, after carefully
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examining and considering said petition determine

that said petition was signed by more than a ma-

jority in number and acreage of the holder of title

or evidence of title to lands embrace within said

district, and that the same was in all respects in

conformity to law and on said twenty-second day

of October, 1919, your petitioners, as such Board

of Commissioners, did authorize and direct the is-

suance of the bonds of said Irrigation District in

the sum and for the purposes specified in said peti-

tion, and did fix the date, number, denomination and

maturity of said bonds and did specify the rate of

interest thereon, and did designate the place of pay-

ment of said bonds and interest coupons attached

thereto, and prescribed the form and details of said

bonds and interest coupons to be attached thereto,

and did provide for a levy of special tax or assess-

ment as provided by law, and did provide for insti-

tuting proceedings in the proper court for the con-

firmation of said bonds ; all of which more fully ap-

pears by the certified copy of the order and resolu-

tions hereinabove referred, which is hereto attached

and made a part hereof, and marked Exhibit "B."

VI.

That this petition is filed and presented by your

petitioners for the purpose of obtaining a finding

and determination of this Court as to whether the

provisions and requirements of law and particularly

of the Acts hereinabove referred to have been com-

plied with, and to determine the regularity, legality

and validity of said proceedings preliminary and

relative to the issuance of said bonds, and the levy
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of the special tax or assessment for the payment

of the principal and interest of the said bonds, as

provided for by said proceedings and the legality

and validity of said bonds and special tax, and for

the purpose of obtaining an order, judgment and

decree of this court, ratifying, approving and con-

firming said proceedings and ratifying, approving

and confirming said bonds and the special tax or

assessment levied by said proceedings for the pur-

poses hereinabove set forth.

WHEREFORE, your petitioners, as such Board

of Commissioners, respectfully pray the Court that

upon the filing hereof with the Clerk of this court,

the Judge of this court shall enter an order herein,

setting this matter for hearing as by law required,

and shall order the Clerk of this court to cause

notice of the filing of said petition and the date of

hearing thereof by publication of a notice at least

once a week for two calendar weeks, in a news-

paper published and of General circulation [29]

in the county where the office of the said Board of

Commissioners is situate, to wit. Treasure Comity,

Montana, and also by posting a written notice in at

least three public places in each of the divisions of

said District, in manner as provided by law, and

that upon said hearing the Court shall find and de-

termine if the requirements of law, in such case

made and provided, have been complied with, and

shall examine and determine, and by a suitable and

proper judgment and decree declare tlie regularity,

legality and validity of the proceedings had by

your petitioners, as such Board of Commissioners,
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preliminary to the issuance of said bonds and to

the levy and assessment of said special tax or as-

sessment, for the payment of princixDal and inter-

est of said bonds, and determine the legality and

validity of said bonds, and said special tax as a

whole, and thus v^ill your petitioners ever pray.

L. S. PERKINS,
FLOYD UNGLES,
JEFFREY DINSDALE,

Petitioners.

By H. V. BEEMAN,
Their Attorney.

State of Montana,

County of Treasure,—ss.

L, S. Perkins, Floyd Ungles and Jeffrey Dins-

dale, of lawful ,age, being first duly sworn, upon

oath, each deposes and says:

That they are the petitioners named in the fore-

going petition and are the duly appointed, quali-

fied and acting members of the Board of Coimnis-

sioners of the Big Hom-Tullock Irrigation Dis-

trict of the County of Treasure, Montana; and

that they have read the foregoing petition and

know the contents thereof, and that the matters and

things therein stated and set forth are true to the

personal knowledge of the affiants, and that said

petition contains, among other things, a full, true

and correct copy of the several petitions, orders,

resolutions and proceedings therein set forth and

referred to.

L. S. PERKINS. [30]

FLOYD UNGLES.
JEFFREY DINSDALE.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 22d day

of October, 1919.

[Notarial Seal] C. M. VREELAND,
Notary Public for the State of Montana, Residing

at Big- Horn, Montana.

My commission expires Apr. 29, 1922. [31]

EXHIBIT "A."

To the Commissioners of the Big Horn TuUock Ir-

rigation District, Treasure County, Montana.

Gentlemen: We, the undersigned, being a major-

ity in numbers of the holders of title, or evidence

of title to the lands embraced within the Big Horn
Tullock Irrigation District of the County of Treas-

ure, State of Montana, and also representing a

majority in acreage of the lands embraced therein,

DO RESPECTIVELY PETITION YOUR
BOARD

:

THAT WHEREAS, the said Board of Commis-

sioners have formulated a plan for the reclamation

and irrigation of the lands included within said dis-

trict, and have caused accurate surveys, examina-

tions and plans to be made, demonstrating the prac-

ticability of such plan of reclamation and irriga-

tion in manner and form as provided by law, and

under the direction and supervision of an irriga-

tion engineer of well known standing and compe-

tency, and have in manner and form as by law re-

quired, in regular meeting assembled, and after

report of said engineer had been filed with the

Board of Commissioners, determined and ascer-
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tained that the amount of money necessary to be

raised for the construction and completion of the

necessary irrigation system for the reclamation and

irrigation of said lands in the sum of Seventy-five

thousand and no/100 ($75,000.00) Dollars.

NOW, THEREFORE, we, the undersigned,

owners of title or evidence of title, as aforesaid,

do respectfully petition you, the said Board of Com-

missioners that you do cause to be issued in manner

and form as provided by law, the negotiable coupon

bonds of the said Big Horn-TuUock Irrigation Dis-

trict in the aggregate sum of Seventy-five Thou-

sand and no/100 ($75,000.00) Dollars, which said

bonds shall run for a period of not later than thirty

(30) years from their date, and may contain clauses

providing for prior redemption, and payment in

whole or in part at the option of the Board of Com-

missioners of said District on any interest payment

date, after five (5) years from their date, in such

manner and form and at such time and in sums

as may in the opinion of the said Board of Com-

missioners appear to be to the best interest of the

District, which said bonds shall bear interest from

their [32] date until paid at the rate not to ex-

ceed six (6) per cent per annum, payable annually

or semi-annually, the installments of interest to be

the date of maturity of principal of said bonds to

be evidenced by appropriate coupons attached to

each bond, said bonds and interest coupons to be

payable at such place or places as the Board of

Conmaissioners of said District shall prescribe, or

if in the opinion of the said Board of Commission-
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ers it shall be to the best interests of said District

and the people thereof, said bonds to be issued to

mature serially at such time and in such amounts

as said Board of Commissioners shall decide. Said

bonds to be issued in such denomination or denomi-

nations, and such form as the Board of Commis-

sioners shall prescribe, and to be duly executed as

by law required; the said Board of Commissioners

to provide for the registration of said bonds, if

in their discretion it shall appear to be to the best

interests of the District, such bonds to be lien upon

all of the lands originally or at any time included

within said District, said bonds and the special tax

or assessment for the payment of interest thereon,

and the principal of said bonds to constitute a first,

prior lien on the lands embraced within said Dis-

trict, and upon which the same may be levied, with

like force and eifect as taxes levied for State and

county purposes.

We do further petition you, the said Board of

Commissioners, that after the issuance of said

bonds, and after the confirmation by the District

Court as provided by law, that said bonds shall be

negotiated and sold under and by direction of the

Board of Commissioners in manner and form as

provided by law, or issued in payment of the con-

struction and completion of the irrigation system

of the District in accordance with the plans of ir-

rigation and reclamation adopted by your said

Board, as in the discretion of the Board of Com-

missioners may appear to the best interests of said

District and the people thereof, and we do hereby
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ratify and confirm this bond issue hereby petitioned

for and the special tax or assessments to be levied

for the purpose of paying principal and interest

thereon.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, We have hereunto

set our hands at Big Horn, Montana, this 20th

day of October, 1919.

W. E. TINGLES Big Horn, Montana.

FLOYD UNGLES Big Horn, Montana.

[33]

JEFFREY DINSDALE Big Horn, Montana.

W. M. UNGLES Big Horn, Montana.

C. BADLANDS Big Horn, Montana.

J. E. DINSDALE Big Horn, Montana.

CHAS. T. DONNES Big Horn, Montana.

D. Y. COOK Big Horn, Montana.

JOHN TOPSICK Big Horn, Montana.

NELLIE SMITH and

ROBT. L. SMITH Big Horn, Montana.

F. C. OWENS Big Horn, Montana.

PASCUALE MAURO Big Horn, Montana.

H. L. HOYLMAN Big Horn, Montana.

J. W. McCOY Big Horn, Montana.

State of Montana,

County of Treasure,—ss.

W. E. Ungles, of lawful age, being first duly

sworn, upon oath deposes and says:

That he is well and intimately acquainted with

each and all of the foregoing petitioners, and par-

ticularly acquainted with the handwriting of each

of them, and that he knows of his own personal

knowledge that the foregoing signatures are the
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true and genuine signatures of the said petitioners

and each of them. [34]

W. E, UNGLES.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20th day

of October, 1919.

[Seal] C. M. VREELAND,
Notary Public for the State of Montana at Big

Horn, Treasure County, Montana.

My commission expires April 29, 1922. [35]

EXHIBIT "D."

Big Horn, Montana, October 22, 1919.

The Board of Commissioners of the Big Horn-

TuUock Irrigation District in regular session.

Present: Jeffrey Dinsdale, President.

Floyd Ungles, Commissioner.

L. S. Perkins, Commissioner.

W. E. Ungles, Secretary.

The minutes of the proceeding meetings were

read and on motion duly made, seconded and car-

ried, were approved as read.

The Commissioners thereupon took up the con-

sideration of the Petition which had heretofore been

filed with them relative to the issuance of Seventy-

five Thousand Dollars of coupon bonds of said Ir-

rigation District, and after examining said Peti-

tion, and it appearing to the Commissioners that

said Petition had been signed by a majority in

number and acreage of the owners, holders of title

or evidence of title, to the lands embraced within



50 T. Tomich et al. vs.

said Irrigation District, and it appearing that said

Petition was in all respects regular and had been

properly and regularly signed and executed, pur-

suant to law. Commissioner Ungles introduced of-

fered and moved the adoption of the following reso-

lutions :

BE IT RESOLVED AND FOUND, by the

Board of Commissioners of the Big Horn-TuUock

Irrigation District of Treasure County, Montana,

in regular meeting assembled, and having under

consideration the Petition of the land owners within

said District, praying for a bond issue in the sum

of Seventy-five Thousand Dollars; that said Peti-

tion is signed by more than a majority in number

and acreage of all of the holders of title or evidence

of title, to the land included within said District,

and that the issuance of said bonds was necessary

to carry out the purpose for which said District was

organized and properly and adequately irrigates?

and reclaim the lands therein. Whereupon the same

being seconded by Commissioner Perkins, and upon

the roll being called and Commissioners Dinsdale,

Ungles and Perkins each voting '*Aye," it was de-

clared that the foregoing resolution and finding had

been regularly and unanimously adopted.

Commissioner Ungles offered and moved the

adoption of the following resolution:

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commis-

sioners of the Big Horn-Tullock Irrigation District

of Treasure County, Montana, in regular meeting

assembled, that, [36]
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WHEREAS, a Petition having been filed with

the Board of Commissioners of said Big Horn-Tul-

loek Irrigation District bearing the signature of

the requisite number of holders of title or evidence

of title to lands included within said District and

representing the requisite amount of acreage

therein, and praying for the issuance of coupon

bonds of said District in the sum of Seventy-five

Thousand Dollars, for the purposes therein set

forth, and,

WHEREAS, this Board of Commissioners hav-

ing under consideration the said Petition, has de-

termined that it is necessary, in order to carry out

the purpose for which said Irrigation District was

organized and to adequately and properly reclaim

the lands therein, to issue coupon bonds of the Dis-

trict in the sum of Seventy-five Thovisand Dollars,

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the

Board of Commissioners of the Big Horn-Tullock

Irrigation District, that the prayer of said Petition

be, and the same is hereby granted, and that this

Board does now by proper proceedings, orders and

resolutions, provide for the issuance of said bonds

as prayed for in said Petition and pursuant to the

terms and provisions of Chapter 146 of the Acts

of the Eleventh Legislative Assembly of the State

of Montana and Acts amendatory thereto and in

such manner and form and containing such provi-

sions and conditions as may be, in the judgment of

this Board of Commissioners, to the best interest

of said District and the land owners therein,

—

Whereupon the same being seconded by Commis-
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sioner Perkins, and the roll being called, and Com-

missioners Dinsdale, Tingles and Perkins each vot-

ing **Aye," it was declared that such motion had

been unanimously carried and that said resolution

had been adopted.

Thereupon the Board of Commissioners pro-

ceeded to discuss and consider the form and details

of the bond issue prayed for by said Petition, and

Commissioner Tingles offered and moved the adop-

tion of the following resolution

:

A RESOLUTION

PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE AND
SALE OF THE COUPON BONDS OF THE
BIG HORN-TULLOCK IRRIGATION DIS-

TRICT OF TREASURE COUNTY, MON-
TANA, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVID-
ING NECESSARY FUNDS FOR THE AC-

QUIRING OF THE NECESSARY WATER
AND WATER RIGHTS AND THE PUR-
CHASE, CONSTRUCTION AND INSTAL-
LATION OF IRRIGATION DITCHES, MA-
CHINERY, EQUIPMENT, PROPERTY
AND IRRIGATION SYSTEM TO PROP-
ERLY AND ADEQUATELY IRRIGATE
AND RECLAIM THE LANDS WITHIN
SAID DISTRICT. AND FOR CARRYING
OUT OF THE PURPOSE FOR WHICH
SAID DISTRICT WAS CREATED AND
ORGANIZED; FOR PRESCRIBING THE
FORM AND [37] DETAILS OF SAID
BONDS AND PROVIDING FOR THE
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LEVYING OF A SPECIAL TAX OR AS-
SESSMENT ON THE LANDS IN SAID
DISTRICT, SUFFICIENT IN AMOUNT TO
PAY THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
ON SAID BONDS WHEN DUE; AND FOR
THE CONFIRMATION OF THE PRO-
CEEDINGS OF THE BOARD OF COMMIS-
SIONERS OF SAID DISTRICT IN RELA-
TION THERETO, BY THE DISTRICT
COURT OF THE FIFTEENTH JUDICIAL
DISTRICT OF THE STATE OF MON-
TANA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF
TREASURE.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Commis-

sioners of the Big Horn-TuUock Irrigation District,

of Treasure County, Montana, in regular meeting

assembled

:

That (the) bonds of said Big Horn-TuUock Irri-

gation District in an amount not exceeding the sum
of Seventy-five Thousand Dollars, be issued for the

purpose of providing the necessary funds for con-

structing the necessary irrigation canals and works

and acquiring the necessary property and rights

thereof and meeting the expense incident thereto,

and for the purpose of acquiring by purchase, water

rights, canals and irrigation works, constructed and

partially constructed, and for the purpose of ac-

quiring and providing an adequate system of irri-

gation works for said canal; that said bonds shaU

be 150 in number, numbered consecutively from

one (1) to one hundred fifty (150) both inclusive,
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of the denomination of Five Hundred Dollars

($500.00) each.

Said bonds shall mature serially, beginning with

number one (1) ; the first fifteen of said bonds shall

mature January 1, 1926; and each year thereafter

fifteen of said bonds shall mature, and the last of

said bonds, numbered from one hundred thirty-six

(136) to one hundred fifty (150), both inclusive,

shall mature January 1, 1935, said bonds shall bear

interest at the rate of six per cent (6%) per annum,

payable annually on the first day of January of

each year, at the office of the County Treasurer of

Treasure County, Montana; both principal and in-

terest of said bonds shall be payable in gold coin

of the United States.

The form of said bonds and interest coupons

thereto attached, except as to the numbers and

distinguishing marks, shall be as follows, to wit:

(BOND)

United States of America, $500.00

State of Montana. No.

Big Horn-TuUock Irrigation

District

Six Per Cent Gold Bond.

[38]

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, Big Hom-TuUock

Irrigation District, a public corporation, organized,

existing and doing business under and by virtue

of the laws of Montana, with its principal place of

business at Big Horn, in Treasure County, Mon-
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tana (hereinafter called the District), promises to

pay to the bearer, or, if this bond is registered,

then to the registered holder thereof, the sum of

Five Hundred Dollars in gold coin of the United

States of America, of the present standard of weight

and fineness, on the 1st day of January, 1926, at

the office of the County Treasurer of Treasure

County, Montana, together with the interest thereon

from the date hereof at the rate of six per cent

per annum, payable annually in like gold coin on

the first day of January of each year during the

period of this bond, at the office of the said County

Treasurer, upon presentation and surrender of the

respective coupons thereto attached as they sever-

ally become due and payable.

This bond and the coupons hereto attached are

payable \vithout any deduction for tax or taxes

which said district may be required to pay or retain

therefrom under or by reason of any future law

of the United States 0/ the state of Montana. Said

district agrees that in the event it shall be required

to pay such taxes, such payment shall not be charge-

able against or collectible from the owner or holder

of this bond.

This bond is one of a series of one hundred fifty

coupon bonds, numbered from one (1) to one hun-

dred fifty (150), both inclusive, and being each of

the denomination of $500, all being of like tenor,

date and effect, except as to date of payment, and

all issued under the provisions of Chapter 146, of

the Session Laws of 1909 of the State of Montana,
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and the Amendments thereto, and all equally se-

cured by the lien on the land in said district as

provided for in said Chapter and said Amendments,

and which is a first lien upon said lands.

TMs bond shall pass by delivery unless it has

been registered upon the books of the secretary

of the Board of Commissioners of said District,

and may be so registered as to the principal thereof

upon application to such Secretary. Such regis-

tration of ownership shall be duly noted thereon, and

after such registration no transfer shall be valid un-

less it be made upon the books of said Secretary by

the registered holder thereof in person or by at-

torney duly authorized and similarly noted hereon.

This bond may, however, be discharged from the

[39] effect of such registration by being trans-

ferred on the said books to the bearer, and there-

after transferability by delivery shall be restored.

It may, however, from time to time be again regis-

tered or again transferred to bearer as before.

Such registration shall not, however, affect the nego-

tiability of the coupons, which shall always be trans-

ferable by delivery merely.

Fifteen of said bonds shall be paid January 1,

1926, and each year thereafter fifteen of said bonds

shall mature, and the last of said bonds numbered

from one hundred thirty-six (136) to one hundred

fifty (150), both inclusive, shall mature January 1,

1935, said bonds being paid in the order of their

numbers.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Big Horn-Tul-

lock Irrigation District has caused this bond to be
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executed in its corporate name, signed by its Presi-

dent, attested by its Secretary, and has also caused

its corporate seal to be affixed hereto, and in addi-

tion thereof, has caused coupons for the interest

hereon, bearing the engraved facsimile signature of

the President and Secretary to be attached, this

first day of November, A. D. 1919.

BIG HORN-TULLOCK IRRIGATION
DISTRICT.

By
,

President Board of Commissioners.

Attest : -

,

Secretary.

The coupons attached to said bonds with the ex-

ception of the first shall be in the following form:

On the first day of January, 19
, the Big

Horn-Tullock Irrigation District, will pay to the

bearer at the office of the County Treasurer of

Treasure County, Montana, Thirty Dollars ($30)

in gold coin, free from all taxes, being one year's

interest on its six per cent (6%) gold bond Num-
ber .

BIG HORN-TULLOCK IRRIGATION
DISTRICT.

By
,

President.

Attest:
,

Secretary.

The first coupon shall be of like tenor and effect,

except as to the amount payable and the length of

time interest has accumulated.
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BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, "That the

Board of Commissioners of said District shall an-

-nually, at the time and in the manner prescribed by

law, for the first four years after the issuance of

said bonds, levy a special tax and assessment against

all lands in said district for the irrigation and

benefit of which said district was organized [40]

and said bonds were issued, sufficient to pay the

interest on said bonds and maintenance of said irri-

gation system, and thereafter shall annually, within

the time and in the manner prescribed by law, levy

a special tax and assessment upon said bonds and

the principal of said bonds which shall mature

within the next year, and the cost of maintenance

of such irrigation system.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the

Board of Commissioners within ten days of this

date, prepare the necessary Petition and other

papers and file same in the District Court of the

Fifteenth Judicial District of the State of Mon-

tana, in and for the County of Treasure, for the

confirmation of all proceedings had with reference

to the issuance of said bonds.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the said

bond issue herein shall be issued, negotiated, sold

by or under the direction of the Board of Commis-

sioners of said District, and said Bonds, issued

herein, may, at the discretion of the Board of Com-

missioners be issued direct in payment and satis-

faction of any contract for the acquiring of neces-

sary water and water rights and the purchases, con-

struction and installation of the irrigation ditches,
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machinery, equipment, property, and irrigation

system to properly and adequately irrigate and re-

claim the lands within the said District, and the

proceeds thereof, if sold in whole or part, shall be

delivered to the County Treasurer of Treasure

County, Montana, in manner and form as provided

by law, to be placed to the credit of said District,

and to be paid out by said County Treasurer as

provided by law.

Whereupon the motion for the adoption of the

foregoing resolution being seconded by Commis-

sioner Perkins, the same having been read and

considered by the Board of Commissioners, and the

roll being called and Commissioners Dinsdale, Tin-

gles and Perkins each voting "Aye," said resolu-

tion was declared passed and adopted by the unani-

mous vote of the Board of Commissioners and or-

dered spread upon the records of this meeting.

It was duly moved and seconded that Henry V.

Beeman as Attorney and Counsel for the Board of

Commissioners, be and he is hereby authorized and

instructed to prepare at once and file in the District

Court of the Fifteenth Judicial District of the State

of Montana, in and for the County of Treasure a

Petition for the ratification, approval and confirma-

tion of the bond issue and special tax or assessment

provided for by the foregoing resolutions ; and upon

the roll being called, and Commissioners Dinsdale,

Ungles and Perkins each voting "Aye," it was de-

clared that said motion had been unanimously

[41] passed and adopted.
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Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried

the Board of Commissioners adjourned sine die.

Approved: JEFFREY DINSDALE,
President.

Attest: W. E. UNGLES,
Secretary.

In the District Court of the Fifteenth Judicial

District of the State of Montana, in and for

the County of Treasure.

State of Montana,

County of Treasure,—ss.

W. E. Ungles, of lawful age, being first duly

sworn, upon oath, deposes and says

:

That he is the duly appointed, qualified and act-

ing Secretary of the Board of Commissioners of

the Big Horn-Tullock Irrigation District of Treas-

ure County, Montana, and that the several petition,

minutes, proceedings and orders set forth herein

and made a part of the foregoing petition as ex-

hibits thereto, are full, true, and correct copies of

said several petitions, minutes, proceedings and

orders as they appear upon the records of the Board

of Commissioners of said District, and on file in his

office.

W. E. UNGLES.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 22d day

of October, 1919.

[Notarial Seal] HENRY V. BEEMAN,
Notary Public for the State of Montana, Residing

at Forsyth, Montana.

My commission expires April 4, 1922.
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[Indorsed]: Filed Oct. 24, 1919. J. D. Clark,

Clerk. By F. M. Clark, Deputy. [42]

In the District Court of tlie Fifteenth Judicial

District of the State of Montana, in and for

the County of Treasure.

In the Matter of the Issuance of Seventy-five Thou-

sand Dollars of the Coupon Bonds of the BIG
HORN-TULLOCK IRRIGATION DIS-

TRICT OF TREASURE COUNTY, MON-
TANA.

ORDER FIXING DAY FOR HEARING ON
PETITION.

The petition of L. S. Perkins, Floyd Ungles and

Jeffrey Dinsdale, as the Board of Commissioners

of the Big Horn-TuUock Irrigation District of

Treasure County, IMontana, having heretofore been

filed with the Clerk praying for ratification, confir-

mation and approval of a bond issue of the Big

Horn, TuUock Irrigation District in the sum of

Seventy-five Thousand Dollars, for carrjdng out the

purposes for which said Irrigation District was

organized, and praying for the confirmation of said

bonds, and the ratification, confirmation and ap-

proval of the special tax and assessment levied for

the purpose of providing funds for the payment of

the principal and interest on said bonds, as the same

shall become due and payable, and said Petition

being this day presented to the Court

:
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that the time of the

hearing of said Petition be and the same is hereby

fixed and set for the 17th day of November, 1918, at

the courtroom in the courthouse in the town of Hy-

sham, Treasure County, Montana, the county wherein

said district is situated, at thehour of 10 A. M. of said

day. And the Clerk of this court is hereby ordered

to give notice of the tiling of said Petition, and the

day of the hearing thereon, by the publication of

notice thereof in manner and form as by law re-

quired, in the "Hysham Echo," a newspaper of gen-

eral circulation, published in said County of Treas-

ure, for two calendar weeks, and also by posting a

written or printed copy thereof in at least three

public places in each of the divisions of said Big

Hom-TuUock Irrigation District. The first pub-

lication thereof and such posting to be made and

done not less than fifteen days prior to the day fixed

for said hearing.

Dated this 24th day of October, 1919.

GEO. P. JONES,
Judge of District Court.

[Indorsed]: Filed Oct. 24, 1919. J. D. Clark,

Clerk. By F. M. Clark, Deputy. [43]
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In the District Court of the Fifteenth Judicial

District of the State of Montana, in and for

the County of Treasure.

In the Matter of the Issuance of Seventy-five Thou-

sand Dollars of the Coupon Bonds of the BIG
HORN-TULLOCK IRRIGATION DIS-

TRICT OF TREASURE COUNTY, MON-
TANA.

DECREE.

On this 17th day of November, 1919, the petition

of L. S. Perkins, Floyd Ungles and Jeffrey Dins-

dale, the duly appointed qualified and acting Board

of Commissioners of the Big Horn-Tullock Irriga-

tion District of the County of Treasure, State of

Montana, filed in this court on the 24th day of Oc-

tober, 1919, and praying for the ratification, confir-

mation and approval of a bond issue of said Big

Horn-Tullock Irrigation District in the sum of

Seventy-five Thousand Dollars, the proceedings rela-

tive thereto, and a special tax or assessment levied

for the payment of the principal and interest on

said bonds, coming regularly on to be heard pursu-

ant to the prior order of this Court made and en-

tered in this cause on the 24th day of October, 1919,

fixing and appointing the 17th day of November,

1919, as the time for the hearing thereof, and said

petitioners appearing in person and by counsel and

no person or persons, corporations or firms, having

appeared either by counsel or otherwise, for the
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purpose of objecting or opposing said petition; the

Court proceeded with the hearing thereof.

Thereupon, upon proof heard by the Court, and

the Court being fully ad\'ised in the premises, it

was by the Court found and determined.

That due and legal notice of the hearing of said

petition had been given by the Clerk of this court

within the time, and for the length of time and in

the manner and form provided for by law, and the

prior order of this Court.

That the Big Hom-TuUock Irrigation District

was created by a judgment of this Court, duly made

and entered as in said petition set forth, that the

petitioners herein are the duly appointed, qualified

and acting. Commissioners of said Big Horn-TuUock

Irrigation District; that heretofore all of the pro-

ceedings, acts, matters and things set forth in said

petition have been done and performed in manner

and form as alleged therein, in a strict conformity

with the provisions of the law of the State of Mon-

tana, relative thereto, and that all proceedings and

things requisite and necessary to be done precedent

to the issuance of said bonds, and the levy of the

special tax for the payment of the principal of, and

the interest [44] on said bonds, have been done

and performed in regular and due time, form and

manner and in all respects as by law required.

That each and all of the requirements and provi-

sions of Section 40 and Chapter 146 of the Acts of

the Eleventh Legislative Assembly of the State of

Montana, and all acts amendatorj^ thereof and sup-

plemental thereto, have been fully complied with.
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That all of the proceedings relative to the issu-

ance of said bonds, and the levy of the special tax

of assessment for the payment of the principal of

and the interest on said bonds referred to in the

petition herein filed are regular, legal and valid.

That said bonds have been regularly, legally and

validly issued, and that the special tax or assess-

ment so levied for the payment of the xDrincipal

of, and the interest on said bonds, has been regu-

larly, legally and validly levied and assessed, and

that each and all of the actions taken by the Board

of Commissioners of said Big Horn-Tullock Irri-

gation District, in connection therewith, have been

regularly, legally and validly done in manner and

form as provided by law.

WHEREFORE, by reason of the law and the

premises, it is by the Court ORDERED, AD-

JUDGED AND DECREED that the proceedings

had, held, taken and enacted by the Board of Com-

missioners of the Big Horn-Tullock Irrigation Dis-

trict of the County of Treasure, State of Montana,

in relation to the issuance of Seventy-five Thousand

Dollars of bonds of said District, and the levy and

assessment of the special tax or assessment for the

payment of the principal of and the interest on said

bonds, and the same is hereby ratified, approved,

confirmed and declared valid as a whole.

That said bond issue be and is in the aggregate

siun of Seventy-five Thousand Dollars numbered

from 1 to 150, both inclusive, each of said bonds

being in the denomination of Five Hundred Dollars,
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and each and all of said bonds shall bear the date

of November 1, 1919. That said bonds shall mature

serially, beginning with number 1, the first fifteen

of said bonds shall mature January 1, 1926, and

each year thereafter fifteen bonds shall mature,

the last of said bonds, numbered from 136 to 150,

both inclusive, shall mature January 1, 1935; said

bonds shall bear interest at the rate of six per cent

per annum, payable annually on the 1st day of

January of each year, at the office of the county

treasurer of Treasure County, Montana, both prin-

cipal and interest of said bonds shall be payable in

[45] gold coin of the United States, said bonds

being particularly described and set forth in the

petition filed herein.

That said bonds be and the same are hereby rati-

fied, approved and confirmed and declared to be and

constitute a lien upon all of the lands now within,

or at any time hereafter included in said Big Horn-

Tullock Irrigation District, except upon such lands

as may be at any time included in said District, on

account of the exchange or substitution of water as

provided for by law.

That the special tax or assessment levied or as-

sessed, as set forth in the petition herein, and in the

proceedings of the said Board of Commissioners of

the Big Horn-TuUock Irrigation District, be, and

the same is hereby, ratified, approved and confirmed

as a whole, and declared to be and constitute hereby

a lien upon all of the lands now within, or at any

time hereafter included in said District for the

irrigation and benefit of which said District was
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organized, except upon siicli lands as may at any

time be included within said District on account of

the exchange or substitution of water as provided

for by law, and that all of the lands in said District,

at the time of the issuance of said bonds, and all

lands now within said District, and all lands subse-

quently included therein, which are so chargeable

under the provisions of law, shall be and remain

liable to be taxed and assessed as provided for by

said special tax or assessment so levied for the pay-

ment of said bonds, and the interest thereon.

Done in open court this 17th day of November,

1919.

GEO. P. JONES,
Judge of District Court.

[Indorsed]: Filed November 17, 1919. J. D.

Clark, Clerk. By F. M. Clark, Deputy.

[Endorsed] : Bill of Complaint. Filed Septem-

ber 13, 1927. C. R. Garlow, Clerk. [46]

AND THEREAFTER, and on the 29th day of

November, 1913, the defendants. Union Trust Com-

pany, a corporation, and Spokane & Eastern Trust

Company, a corporation, filed herein their motion to

dismiss, which said motion is as follows, to wit:

[47]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

MOTION TO DISMISS.

Now come the defendants, Union Trust Company,

a corporation, and Spokane & Eastern Trust Com-

pany, a corporation, in said above-entitled cause,

and move the Court to dismiss the said complain-

ants' bill of complaint on file herein as to these

moving defendants, upon the grounds and for the

reasons

:

1. That the said amended bill of complaint does

not state sufiieient facts to constitute a valid cause

of action in equity against these moving defendants,

or either of them, in that the said bill of complaint

does not set forth any matter of equity entitling

the said complainants, or either of them, to the re-

lief prayed for therein, or any relief; and no facts

are stated in said bill of complaint sufficient to en-

title said complainants, or either of them, to any

relief against these moving defendants, or either of

them.

WHEREFORE, these moving defendants pray

the judgment of the Court whether they, or either

of them, shall further answer [48] said bill of

complaint; and that they be dismissed with their

costs.

GUNN, RASCH, HALL & GUNN,
Solicitors for Defendants, Union Trust Company

and Spokane & Eastern Trust Co.

M. S. GUNN,
Of Counsel. [49]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF M. S. GUNN.

State of Montana,

County of Lewis and Clark,—ss.

M. S. Gunn, being first duly sworn, deposes and

says:

That he is one of the solicitors for the defendants,

Union Trust Company and Spokane & Eastern

Trust Company, in said above-entitled cause, and

resides and has his office the same as the other

solicitors whose names are subscribed as such to

the foregoing motion to dismiss the complainants'

bill of complaint, in the City of Helena, Lewis and

Clark County, State of Montana. That the solici-

tors for said complainants in said cause are Mr.

John A, Shelton and Mr, W. N. Waugh, whose resi-

dences, offices, and places of business are in the City

of Butte, Silver Bow County, Montana. That there

is direct communication by United States mail be-

tween the said City of Helena, affiant's place of resi-

dence and business, and the said City of Butte, the

place of residence and business of said solicitors for

complainants. That affiant on the 29th day of No-

vember, 1927, at the hour of 10 P. M., [50] de-

posited in the United States postoffice at Helena,

Montana, enclosed in an envelope securely sealed

and with the necessary and proper amount of post-

age thereon prepaid, and addressed to said Mr.

John A. Shelton, Attorney at Law, Butte, Montana,

for transmission by said United States mail and
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delivery to said John A. Shelton, a true, correct

and accurate copy of the foregoing motion of said

defendants, Union Trust Company and Spokane &
Eastern Trust Company, for the dismissal of said

complainants' bill of complaint, upon the grounds

specifically stated therein.

M. S. GUNN.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 29 day of

November, 1927.

[Notarial Seal] E. M. HALL,
Notary Public for the State of Montana, Residing

at Helena, Montana.

My commission expires Aug, 5, 1928.

Filed November 29, 1927. [51]

AND THEREAFTER, to wit, on the 3d day of

August, 1928, the Court made and filed herein its

decision as follows, to wit: [52]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

DECISION.

Plaintiffs are owner and mortgagee of lands

within a statutory irrigation district, and defend-

ants are owners of bonds and warrants by the dis-

trict issued for construction and maintenance, own-

ers of other like lands, and the collector of taxes

levied upon the lands to pay said obligations.

The relief sought is annulment of the proceedings

of the state court establishing the district, and

avoidance of the liens of the taxes.
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Some of the owners of bonds and warrants move

to dismiss the complaint for that it is insufficient

for any relief. The motion is granted in respect

to all defendants.

The district was created and the bonds issued in

1919; the taxes were imposed and the warrants

issued for several succeeding years were paid in

1920 but not thereafter, and because of the delin-

quency the lands were sold in 1922; and this suit

was begun in 1927.

Referring to Tomich alone, the others in poorer

case, although he did not sign the petition to create

the district, it included his lands, he had notice

thereof, was at least a passive participant, did not

resort to the statutory remedies to defeat or correct

organization, inclusion of his lands, or taxes, paid

the latter in 1920, and in consequence he acquiesced

and is estopped to maintain this unduly delayed

suit or to otherwise complain, whatever be the mere

irregularity in any the proceedings. He stood silent

when he should have spoken and will not be heard

to speak now. See the cases cited by defendants,

and 266 U. S. 269 ; 267 U. S. 487. He contends, how-

ever, that prior to organization his lands were irri-

gated, that the statute provides none such shall be

included save vnth the owner's written consent, that

he did not consent, and that in consequence the

Court was without jurisdiction to include his lands

and to that extent the proceedings are void. In

this, he fails to distinguish between jurisdiction or

power, and duty. See 210 U. S. 235, and jurisdiction

generally. The Court had jurisdiction over all the
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lands embraced in the petition and power to include

them in the district. Its duty was to include no

lands whereof the evidence before it was that they

were already irrigated, without written consent of

the owner. To this extent the case may be like

any other wherein the Court has jurisdiction, and

despite its duty renders judgment in favor of a

cause of action not proven, viz., the judgment is

subject to defeat on appeal, but is impregnable to

collateral attack. Or, being a matter of mere

evidence and not jurisdiction, it will be conclusively

presumed the evidence warranted the Court's judg-

ment. In either case, Tomich is concluded by the

proceedings and cannot impeach them herein. The

foregoing principles foreclose all other contentions

made, and the latter need no particular comment.

Some of them are based on vague and ambiguous

allegations and conclusions, suggestive of evasion

of direct statement beyond supporting fact, as

though in hope to set out a prima facie case.

The situation is simply this: This irrigation

project was ill advised or mismanaged, and disaster

followed. Plaintiffs would escape the consequences

by shifting the loss to defendants who supplied the

money for the enterprise. It just cannot be done,

at least not in a court of equity.

Decree for defendants.

Aug. 3, 1928.

BOURQUIN, J.

Filed August 3, 1928. [53]
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AND THEREAFTER on the 9th day of August,

1928, the Court made and filed herein its final de-

cree, which was entered of record as follows, to wit

:

In the District Court of the United States in and

for the District of Montana.

T. TOMICH, HARRY F. SCOTT, and H. MUL-
BERGER,

Complainants,

vs.

UNION TRUST COJ^PANY, a Corporation,

SPOKANE & EASTERN TRUST CO., a

Corporation, BIG HORN TULLOCK IR-

RIGATION DISTRICT, a Corporation,

ASH SHEEP COMPANY, a Corporation,

E. J. McCORMICK, County Treasurer of

Treasure County, Montana, CHARLES P.

DONNES, H. L. HOYLMAN, JEFFREY
DINSDALE, H. M. SRITE, NICK TOP-

SICK, PETER BONGUNONVICH,
FLOYD UNGLES, C. M. VREELAND,
JOHN LIGHTBODY, ROBERT E.

CLEARY, and N. P. MARSHALL,
Defendants.

FINAL DECREE.

This cause came on to be heard at this term, and

was argued by counsel; and thereupon, upon con-

sideration thereof, it was ORDERED, AD-

JUDGED, and DECREED as follows:
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That the bill of complaint herein be, and the

same hereby is dismissed as to all of the defendants.

Dated this 9th day of August, A. D. 1928.

BOURQUIN,
Judge.

Filed and entered Aug. 9th, 1928. [54]

AND THEREAFTER, to wit, on the 8th day of

November, 1928, assignment of errors was filed

herein, which is in the words and figures as follows,

to wit: [55]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS.

Come now the complainants herein and assign

errors in the decision and in the decree of the

United States District Court of the District of

Montana made and rendered herein on the 4th day

of August, 1928, and the 9th day of August, 1928,

respectively, as follows:

First: The Court erred in sustaining the motion

of the defendants Union Trust Company and Spo-

kane & Eastern Trust Co. to dismiss the bill herein.

Second: The Court erred in holding and decree-

ing that the bill herein should be dismissed as to

all defendants.

Third: The Court erred in its decision herein in

ignoring the contention of complainants that war-

rants alleged to have been issued by Big Horn Tul-

lock Irrigation District were void because the in-



Union Trust Company et al. 75

debtediiess for which the said warrants were issued

exceeded the limitation prescribed by the Montana

Irrigation District Act.

In order that the foregoing assignment of errors

may appear of record, the complainants present the

same to the Court and pray that such disposition

may be made thereof as is in accordance with the

laws and statutes of the United States in such cases

made and provided, and complainants pray a re-

versal of the decree dismissing the bill herein.

JOHN A. SHELTON,
Solicitor for Complainants.

Filed Nov. 8, 1928. [56]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK U. S. DISTRICT
COURT TO TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD.

United States of America,

District of Montana,—ss.

I, C. R. Garlow, Clerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the District of Montana, do hereby

certify and return to the Honorable, the U. S. Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, that

the foregoing volume consisting of 67 pages, num-

bered consecutively from 1, to 67, inclusive, is a

true and correct transcript of the record and pro-

ceedings had in the within-entitled cause and of the

whole thereof required, by praecipe filed, to be in-

corporated in said transcript, as appears from the

original records and files of said court and cause

in my custody as such Clerk ; and I do further cer-
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tify and return that I have annexed to said tran-

script and included within said pages the original

citation issued in said cause.

I further certify that the costs of said transcript

amount to the sum of Eight and no/100 Dollars

($8,00), and have been paid by the appellants.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said court

at Butte, Montana, this 18th day of December,

A. D. 1928.

[Seal] C. R. GARLOW,
Clerk.

By L. R. Polglase,

Deputy. [67]

[Endorsed] : No. 5664. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. T. To-

mich, Harry F. Scott and H. Mulberger, Appel-

lants, vs. Union Trust Company, a Corporation,

and Spokane & Eastern Trust Company, a Corpo-

ration, Appellees. Transcript of Record. Upon

Appeal from the United States District Court for

the District of Montana.

Filed December 21, 1928.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit.

No. 5664.

T. TOMICH et al.,

Appellants,

vs.

UNION TRUST COMPANY et al.,

Appellees.

STATEMENT OF ERRORS UPON WHICH
THE APPELLANT INTENDS TO RELY
AND THE PARTS OP THE RECORD
WHICH HE CONSIDERS NECESSARY
FOR THE CONSIDERATION THEREOF.

Come now the appellants herein and in pursu-

ance of Rule 23, subdivision 8, state:

First: That they intend to rely upon all of the

errors assigned in the assignment of errors in-

cluded in the transcript on appeal herein.

Second: That they consider necessary for the

consideration thereof the following portions of the

transcript on appeal herein, to wit:

Bill of complaint.

Motion to dismiss.

Decision of the Court below.

Decree in the court below, and

Assignment of errors,

and all other portions of the said transcript the ap-
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pellant considers unnecessary for the consideration

thereof.

JOHN A. SHELTON,
Solicitor for Appellant.

Due service of the above and foregoing paper by

copy thereof admitted this day of December,

1928.

M. S. GUNN,
Solicitor for Appellees.

[Endorsed] : Statement of Errors upon Which

the Appellant Intends to Rely and the Parts of the

Record Which He Considers Necessary for the

Consideration Thereof. Filed Jan. 12, 1929.

Paul P. O'Brien, Clerk.
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BRIEF OF APPELLANTS.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

The respondents, Union Trust Company and

Spokane & Eastern Trust Company, are the only

defendants who appeared. They filed a motion to

dismiss the bill, which motion was sustained and

a decree was entered which dismissed the bill as

against all defendants. All the allegations of the

bill are admitted by the motion to dismiss.

It will only be necessary to consider the case as

it affects one only of the appellants, for if the case

as made by one of them requires a reversal the de-

cree appealed from must be reversed as to all of

them.

It appears from the bill that on June 26, 1919,

there was a paper writing designated as a petition

for the formation of an irrigation district filed in

the office of the Clerk of the Montana Fifteenth

Judicial District Court in and for the County of

Treasure; that such proceedings were had thereon

that there was an attempt to organize a so-called

irrigation district to be called and designated as

Big Horn-Tullock Irrigation District, this so-called

district to embrace 1,599.22 acres situated in Treas-

ure County, Montana, and included 100 acres

which belonged to Tomich, who was a complain-

ant; that on the 26th day of June, 1919, there was

in existence a system of irrigation by which water

was supplied to the lands owned by the said com-

plainant; that his said lands were then under
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irrigation; that there were water rights appurte-

nant thereto, and that the said complainant did not

consent to the inchision of his lands within the said

district, never at any time participated in the or-

ganization of the said district, but at all times op-

posed the same and opposed the inclusion of his

said lands therein; that upon the so-called organi-

zation of the said district proceedings were taken

by which there was an unsuccessful attempt to pro-

vide a system of irrigation for said district; that

for the discharge of expenses connected therewith

bonds were issued amounting to $75,000 and in ad-

dition thereto warrants were issued amounting to

$24,458.03, all of which, if the law was valid, would

constitute a lien which with interest amounts to

more than $120,000 or more than $75.00 per acre

for each acre of land within the district; that for

the purpose of payment of the said bonds and war-

rants and interest thereon taxes have been at-

tempted to be annually levied on the lands in the

said district except in the year 1922, and such pro-

ceedings have been taken with reference to the said

taxes so attempted to be levied that the same ap-

pear in the offices of the county clerk and treas-

urer of said county as tax liens upon all of the said

land including that of Tomich; that the said lands

were attempted to be sold for the said taxes in

1922 and were bid in by the county of Treasure at

such sale, and that steps are threatened to be taken

by which a tax deed will be issued to the said

county for the said lands; that the said lands on
the said 26th day of June, 1919, were of the value
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of $75.00i an acre; that the value of the said lands

could not possibly be increased in value by the

completion and successful operation of the pro-

posed irrigation system in an amount exceeding

$25.00 per acre; that since the year 1919 no water

has been furnished for the irrigation of the said

lands, the said ditches and canals which were

then in use have been destroyed by the acts of

said irrigation district, and buildings and other

improvements on the said lands have fallen into

decay; as a consequence of the lack of water for

irrigation the said lands have not been cultivated

and have gTown up in weeds; that if the said

bonds and warrants constitute a lien upon the

lands of the complainant the same have been ren-

dered valueless by the acts of the said irrigation

district; that the proceedings for the attempted

organization of the said irrigation district were

invalid; that

Section 7167, R. C. M. 1921,

provides that the petition for the organization of

such district shall set forth the character of the

works, water rights, canals and other property

proposed to be acquired or constructed for irri-

gation purposes in the proposed district, and

Section 7168, R. C. M. 1921,

provides that on the filing of such a petition the

Clerk shall cause a copy of the same to be pub-

lished together with a notice of the time and

place on which it will be heard; that the so-called

petition filed on the said 26th day of June wholly

failed to set forth generally or at all the charac-
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ter of the works, water rights or canals proposed

to be constructed or acquired for irrigation pur-

poses in the proposed district; that the said pe-

tition inferentially stated that such works pro-

posed to be constructed consisted of the extension

of a canal at an expense not exceeding $3,000,

but as a matter of fact the irrigation work ac-

tually proposed to be constructed was besides the

extension of the canal, the building of a dam

across the Big Horn River at a cost of not less

than $72,000; that the only notice given of the

said proceedings was the publication of said peti-

tion and a notice that the same would be heard

on a certain date; that proceedings were had in

the said court whereby the so-called organization

of the said district was undertaken to be con-

firmed and validated; that the amount involved in

the said proceedings as it affected each of the com-

plainants exceeded the sum or value of $3,000 ex-

clusive of interest and costs; that respondents

Union Trust Company and Spokane & Eastern

Trust Company are the owners and holders of a

portion of the said bonds and a portion also of

the said warrants; they knew at all of the times

mentioned in the bill that the said petition for

the formation of the said district and the notice

thereof was defective and insufficient in the par-

ticulars stated; that the lands of the complainant

Tomich were under irrigation on and prior to the

said 26th day of June and had water rights ap-

purtenant thereto; that Tomich did not consent

to the inclusion of his lands in the said district;
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that the bonds and warrants issued exceeded the

benefits which could possibly accrue to the said

lands as a result of the said proposed improve-

ments and the taxes for the payment thereof

would necessarily be confiscatory of the said

lands; that the county treasurer of the said

county refused to receive payment of the taxes

levied for state and county purposes unless pay-

ment was also made of the taxes levied by the

said commissioners of the said so-called district;

that the complainant Tomich tendered every year

payment of the said state and county taxes but

such tender was refused by the said county treas-

urer.

The relief asked is a decree removing the cloud

upon the title of complainants to their said lands

cast by the said proceedings of said so-called irri-

gation district, enjoining the execution of a tax

deed to the county and declaring the said so-

called irrigation district act to be violative of the

Constitution of the United States. (Tr. 1 etseq.)

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS RELIED
UPON.

(1) The Court erred in sustaining the motion

of the defendants Union Trust Company and

Spokane & Eastern Trust Company to dismiss

the bill.

(2) The Court erred in deciding that the said

Fifteenth Judicial District Court had jurisdic-

tion to include the lands of complainant Tomich

within the said district.
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(3) The Coui-t erred in deciding that said act

is not in conflict with Section 2, Article III and

paragraph second of Article VI of the Constitu-

tion and sections 24 and 28 of the Judicial Code

of the United 'States.

(4) The Court erred in deciding that the said

so-called irrigation district act is not violative of

the Fourteenth Article of Amendment to the

Federal Constitution in that it permitted the is-

suance of bonds and warrants in such an amount

as to require confiscatory taxation for their pay-

ment, but if it did not so permit, that said bonds

and warrants are void because their issuance was

not authorized by law.

BRIEF OF ARGUMENT.

Before entering upon a discussion of the law

points involved in the case another matter re-

quires brief notice. The respondents say that

they should not lose the money which they in-

vested in the enterprise since they invested their

money in good faith in the bonds and warrants

offered to them upon the credit of the district.

In answer to this Tomich says a loss by the re-

spondents is, of course, something to be regretted,

but as between Tomich and the respondents the

equities are in his favor. They acted without

any invitation from him with full knowledge of

the facts which might affect the value of the se-

curities and should be held to have accepted the

risk, while the circumstances which threaten a to-

tal destruction of the value of Tomich 's property



are due entirely to the acts of otliers for whicli he is

in no way responsible.

THE SAID MONTANA FIFTEENTH JUDI-
CIAL DISTEICT COURT HAD NO JUR-
ISDICTION TO INCLUDE THE LAND
OF THE COMPLAINANT TOMICH IN
THE SAID SO-CALLED DISTRICT.

Our contention in support of the first point is

wholly disconnected from the contention whicli

we make elsewhere with respect to the validity

of the said so-called irrigation district act. For

the present we assume that the said law is valid.

The point which we now make is that assuming

that the law is a valid law the court had no juris-

diction to include in the district any land which

was then under irrigation. By the record here

it is an established fact that the land of Tomich

was on the 26th day of June, 1919, under a sys-

tem of irrigation by which water was applied to

the said land and there were water rights appur-

tenant thereto. Tomich did not consent to the

inclusion of his lands in the said district and did

not participate in the organization of the said

district.

In 1909 the legislature of Montana had under-

taken to pass an irrigation district act which was

subsequently amended and as amended appears as

Sections 7166 to 726^1:, R. C. M- 1921. It provides in

Section 7169, R. C. M. 1921

:
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*'Nor shall any lands which will not, in the

judgment of the Court, be benefited by irri-

gation by means of said system of works, nor

shall lands already under irrigation, nor

lands having water rights appurtenant thereto,

nor lands that can be irrigated from

sources more feasible than the district sys-

tem, be included within such proposed dis-

trict, unless the owner of such lands shall

CONSENT IN WRITING TO THE IN-

CLUSION OF SUCH LANDS IN THE
PROPOSED DISTRICT * * * provided,

however, that where a district is fonned to

co-operate with the United States, lands pre-

viously irrigated and having water rights ap-

purtenant thereto may be included within the

district boundaries, if it shall appear to the

court that the same will be benefited thereby."

The statute provides for two cases in which

lands are already under irrigation or have water

rights appurtenant thereto. One of them is the

case where a district is formed to co-operate with

the United States, in which case such land is not

to be included in the district unless it shall ap-

peo,r to the Court that such land would he bene-

-fited thereby. The other case is where a district

is formed but not to co-operate with the United

States, in which case such lands cannot be in-

cluded without the owner's consent in writing.

In the one case there is plainly a discretionary

power vested in the Court and in the other there

is not, and in the latter case the Court is given
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no jurisdiction or power to include lands which

are already under irrigation or have such appur-

tenant water rights, for, of course, the granting

of the discretionaiy power in one case and with-

holding it in the other was due, not to accident,

but intention.

That construction is to be favored, too, because

it is manifest that it was the intention of the law-

makers to protect the interests of the land owners

in the case of lands which are already under irri-

gation.

Added force is also given to our contention by

the fact that ordinarily the question whether

lands are under irrigation or have water rights

appurtenant thereto is not a question about which

there may be any substantial controversy.

If the fact is that such lands are not already

under irrigation they may be included. If upon

the other hand the . fact is that such lands are al-

ready under irrigation (and that fact is admitted

here) the Court has no jurisdiction to include

them; if it does so its act is void. The land

owner is not called upon to object to such inclu-

sion and the act of the Court in so including them

is subject at any time to collateral attack.

Many cases which involve similar questions

have been before the courts. The answer which

has been given such questions has always de-

pended upon the lang-uage of the statute by which

the decision of the case was governed. To illus-

trate: In the case of
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Oregon Short Line vs. Pioneer Irrigation

District, 102 Pac. 904,

the language of the statute to be construed was as

follows

:

'*Nor shall any lands which would NOT IN

THE JUDGMENT OF SAID BOARD be

benefited by irrigation by the said system be

included within such district."

Under such a statute it was held that an order

by which certain lands were included in such dis-

trict could not be collaterally attacked for the

reason that the question whether or not they

would be benefited by irrigation was a matter

within the jurisdiction of the board which passed

upon the matter.

The following cases involve the identical ques-

tion that is involved in this case:

Andrews vs. Lilian Irrigation District, 97

N. W. 336:.

State vs. Several Parcels of Land, 114 N.

W. 283.

Horn vs. Shaffer, 151 Pac. 555.

City vs. Fresno Irrigation District, 237

Pac. 772.

It was urged in each one of those cases as it is

here that the court or board which passed upon the

matter had jurisdiction to include certain lands

within an irrigation district and upon the other

side it was contended that the court or board

which passed upon the matter did not have such

jurisdiction, and in each of said cases contention
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was made for and against the proposition that

the land owner in order to protect his rights was

required to appear before the court or board

which passed upon the matter and to have made

objection there to such inchision of his lands. In

most of those cases the statute to be construed

was substantially the same as the one which we

are now considering. The decision of the Court

in each case was that such court or board did not

have jurisdiction to include the lands in question

in an irrigation district and in consequence that

the order so including such lands was void and

might be attacked collaterally.

In the case of Andrews vs. Lilian Irrigation

District, supra, the statute of Nebraska under

consideration contains two provisions, which were

both considered. One of the said provisions is to

effect that no land shall be included in an irriga-

tion district that will not in the OPINION OF
THE BOARD be benefited by irrigation. The

said statute contains another provision which is

to the effect that in no case shall land which from

some natural cause cannot be irrigated be in-

cluded in such irrigation district or taxed for ir-

rigation purposes. Andrews brought his suit

against the irrigation district for the purpose of

having declared the previous levy of taxes by the

irrigation district upon his lands to be a cloud

and to cancel them and that his lands be declared

to be no part of the said district.

The lower court sustained a demurrer to the

petition and the Supreme Court on Appeal first
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affirmed the decision of the lower court upon the

ground that its allegations brought the case

within the first of said provisions and that the de-

termination of that question was within the juris-

diction of the Board of County Commissioners.

Upon a petition for a rehearing being filed that

decision was reconsidered and it was held that the

petition brought the case within the second of

said provisions and that in such a case the board

did not have any jurisdiction to include such

lands. From the opinion of the Court on rehear-

ing we quote the following:

"Section 49 of said chapter provides that

in no case shall land which from some natural

cause cannot be irrigated be held in any ir-

rigation district, or taxed for irrigation pur-

poses. Thus it will be seen that the act un-

der consideration clearly distinguishes be-

tween land which would not be benefited by

irrigation, and such as from some natural

cause is nonirrigable. As already shown

whether a particular tract of land will be ben-

efited by a proposed system of irrigation is

a question which the legislature has confided

to the county board. Whether a particular

tract of land from some natural cause cannot

be irrigated is a question which goes to the

jurisdiction of the county board over such

tract, and may be raised at any time in a

proper case, because section 49, supra, ex-

pressly denies the jurisdiction of the county

board to include such land in an irrigation
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district, or to tax it for irrigation purposes.

Should such land be included within the

boundaries of an irrigation district, or taxed

for irrigation purposes, it would be in viola-

tion of a plain provision of the statute."

In the case of State vs. Several Parcels of

Land, supra, a statute was under consideration

which contains the following:

''That where ditches or canals have been

constructed before the passage of this act of

sufficient capacity to water the land there-

under for which the water taken in such

ditches is appropriated, such ditches and fran-

chises and the land subject to be watered

thereby shall be exempt from the operation of

this law."

The suit was one brought by the state to enforce

the payment of taxes levied by an irrigation district

upon certain pieces of land which had been in-

cluded within such irrigation district. The defense

to the suit was that such lands could not be in-

cluded in the irrigation district, for the Board of

County Commissioners had no jurisdiction to in-

clude such land for the reason that ditches had been

constructed sufficient to water such land, water for

that purpose had been appropriated and in conse-

quence thereof the board had no jurisdiction to in-

clude such lands in the district and that its order

in attempting to do so was void. The Court

adopted that contention and held that the order in-

cluding such lands within the district was in ex-
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cess of the jurisdiction of the Board of County

Commissioners and was therefore void, the Court

saying:

"It is, however, contended that the county

board had jurisdiction, and that its determina-

tion cannot be attacked in this proceeding. It

must be conceded that, as to those matters

which were by the statute committed to the con-

sideration, investigation and determination of

the county board, its judgment should not be

collaterally attacked; but the question here is:

Was it left to the county board to decide

whether this land was under a ditch con-

structed prior to that time and of sufficient

capacity to water the same * * * As al-

ready shown whether a particular tract of land

will be benefited by a proposed system of irri-

gation is a question which the legislature has

confided to the county board. Whether a par-

ticular tract of land, from some natural cause,

cannot be irrigated, is a question which goes to

the jurisdiction of the county board over such

tract, and may be raised at any time in a

proper case, because section 49, supra, ex-

pressly denies the jurisdiction of the county

board to include such land in an irrigation dis-

trict or to tax it for irrigation purposes."

The case of Horn vs. Shaffer, supra, was a suit

brought against the county treasurer of Uinta

County, Utah, to enjoin him from collecting a spe-

cial tax assessed by the New Hope Irrigation Dis-

trict. The Utah statute under consideration con-
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tained a clause similar to the Nebraska statute

wMch was considered in the case last above referred

to and is as follows

:

"Provided, that where ditches, canals, or

reservoirs have been constructed before the

passage of this act, such ditches, canals, reser-

voirs, and franchises, and the lands watered

thereby, shall be exempt from the operation of

this law, except such district shall be formed

to purchase, acquire, lease or rent such ditches,

canals, reservoirs and their franchises."

The plaintiff in his complaint in the action al-

leged :

"That the pretended assessment against the

plaintiff and his said lands of the said pur-

ported tax item given as 'N. Hope,' as above

described, was not and could not be legally

made for the reason that at the time of the

pretended organization of said New Hope Irri-

gation District, and for many years immedi-

ately prior thereto, to wit, ever since the year

1906, the plaintiff as co-owner with others, had

constructed a ditch, and had conveyed through

said ditch water to his said lands as hereinbe-

fore described, and had used said water on the

said lands for irrigation and other beneficial

purposes."

The allegations of the complainant also were to

the effect that the tax in question was illegal be-

cause the officers of the district had no power or

authority to levy taxes on the plaintiff's land.
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In the trial coiu't upon the trial the plaintiff of-

fered proof of the allegations of his complaint

which proof was rejected and the court sustained

a motion for a nonsuit. The Supreme Court in re-

versing the decision of the lower court said:

"A mere cursory examination of those parts

of the pleadings we have set forth also shows

that both the plaintiff and the defendant re-

garded the question of whether plaintiff's land

was exempt under the proviso a question of

fact. The plaintiff alleged that it was exempt

because of the facts stated, and the defendant

denied the allegations in that regard. There

can be no doubt that the question is at least one

of mixed law and fact, and hence the Court

should have found the facts and made conclu-

sion of law thereon, and should have entered

judgment accordingly. Instead of that the

Court determined the whole matter upon a mo-

tion for a nonsuit. This constituted reversable

error."

In the case of City vs. Fresno Irrigation Dis-

trict, supra, the so-called Wright Law, which it is

said is the model which was followed in framing

the Montana Irrigation District statute, was under

consideration. The city of Fresno sued the Fresno

Irrigation District to enjoin the collection by the

collector of the said irrigation district of certain

taxes levied by the district on lands owned by the

city upon the ground that the land in question was

devoted to a public use and therefore was not sub-

ject to taxation by the irrigation district. A de-
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murrer to the complaint was overruled and judg-

ment rendered in the case for the plaintiff from

which the defendant appealed to the Court of Ap-

peals, which held that in California lands which

were actually devoted to a public use were exempted

from taxation of the character in question. It was

contended, however, that whether the land in ques-

tion was actually devoted to a public use was ques-

tion of fact, that the city had an opportunity to

present the question of the propriety of including

its land in the irrigation district, that it failed to

avail itself of that privilege and that the question

was, therefore, one which could not be afterward

raised, since the irrigation district had jurisdiction

to determine the question of fact as to whether the

land in question was actually devoted to a public

use. In passing upon this contention the Court

said:

"The appellants urge that therfe is no show-

ing in the complaint that the city attempted to

have its lands excluded from the district or

that, after the assessment was levied, it ap-

peared before the board of directors of the dis-

trict sitting as a board of equalization or ob-

jected to the assessment. The property being

exempt from assessment, it was not necessary

that the city, in order to avoid assessment,

should have taken either of these steps."

The lands of Tomich being admitted to have been

on June 26, 1919, already under irrigation and to

have water rights appurtenant thereto, the irriga-

tion district had no power or authority to include
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such lands in the district and its act in so doing was

a void act and might be at any time collaterally at-

tacked.

II.

THE MONTANA IRRIGATION DISTRICT

ACT IS VIOLATIVE OF ARTICLE III,

SECTION 2, AND ARTICLE VI, PARA-

GRAPH SECOND OP THE FEDERAL
CONSTITUTION, AND IS IN CONFLICT

WITH SECTIONS 24 AND 28 OF THE JU-

DICIAL CODE.

The point which we are now making assumes that

if the law were a valid law that the irrigation dis-

trict had jurisdiction to determine the question

whether the land of Tomich should be included in

the district. If our first point should be deter-

mined favorably to our contention it will be unnec-

essary to consider our second and third points, for

if the first point is determined in our favor it will

be necessary to decide that the decree of the lower

court should be reversed.

As we have already seen there was an attempted

proceeding by the Montana Fifteenth Judicial Dis-

trict Court for the purpose of confirming and vali-

dating the proceedings by which the said so-called

district were attempted to be organized and under

which there had been an attempt to issue bonds of

the district amounting to $75,000. The provisions

of the statute

Section 7211, R. C. M. 1921,

are that the Board of Commissioners of the irriga-

tion district MUST within ten days after the adop-
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tion of a resolution for the issuance of bonds file

in the STATE District Court of the Judicial Dis-

trict wherein is located the offices of said board a

petition to determine the validity of the proceed-

ings relating to the formation of such district and

the issuance of such bonds, and an appeal may be

taken to the Montana Supreme Court, and if such

appeal shall not be taken or if taken and the judg-

ment of the District Court is affirmed the said judg-

ment of the District Court SHALL BE A FINAL
JUDGMENT AND THE SAME SHALL NEVER
BE CALLED IN QUESTION IN ANY COURT.
The question of the validity of the bonds, as has

already been shown, involved the question whether

the proceedings which resulted in the attempted

organization of the district and the issuance of the

bonds was due process of law. It appears that

they were not due process of law for the reason

that notice required by the statute was not given.

Pennoyer vs. Neff, 95 U. S. 773; 24 L. Ed.

565.

Scott vs. McNeal, 154 U. S. 46; 38 L. Ed. 896.

The value of the interests involved which were

held by Tomich exceeded the sum of $3,000, exclu-

sive of interest and costs and the question of the

validity of the organization of the district and

therefore the question of the validity of the pro-

ceedings by which the bonds were undertaken to be

issued was a question of which under the Constitu-

tion and Laws of the United States the United

States District Courts are given jurisdiction. The

Montana statute prohibits a suit by Tomich in the
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United States courts for the purpose of determin-

ing the validity of the bonds, for the provisions of

the statute require that such suit be brought by the

commissioners and in the state com^t, and the de-

termination of the state court if there is no appeal

or if there is an appeal but the determination by

the Supreme Court is an affirmance, the judgment

is given a conclusive and binding effect and there

is a prohibition against afterward raising the ques-

tion in any other court.

An independent suit by Tomich in the United

States court to enjoin the issuance of the bonds

would have been a futile proceeding. By the terms

of the statute the petition by the commissioners

must be filed, and as there was no notice of the

character of the works proposed to be constructed

it was not possible that Tomich should be able to

anticipate the steps which might be taken by the

district commissioners so as to enable him to start a

suit in the federal court before such petition (which

ordinarily is filed immediately upon the passage of

the resolution for the issuance of the bonds) is filed

in the state court, and the jurisdiction of the state

court having first attached, the state court would

not have stayed such proceeding nor would it have

stayed such proceedings if a suit by Tomich in the

United States court had been first filed; for under

the state statute the filing of the petition and the

prosecution of the proceeding is made not a privi-

lege but a duty, and the duty may not be excused

by the pending of some other suit.
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The proceedings brought in the state court could

not be removed into the federal court because (ex-

cept certain exceptional cases within which this

case cannot be included) cases which may be re-

moved into the federal court are only such as may

be brought there.

If the Montana in-igation district act is a valid

law the federal statute defines the jurisdiction of

the United States District Courts, and which pro-

vides for the right of removal of cases from the

state courts to the said United 'States District

Courts, cannot be given effect. The two laws are

contradictory of each other and consequently the

state law is invalid because the federal statute was

enacted in pursuance of the provisions of the fed-

eral Constitution.

At least the said section 7211 must be held to be

invalid, and if the so-called confirmation proceed-

ings are invalid, there is no bar to a consideration

of the question of the validity of the said bonds and

the said proceedings,

III.

THE MONTANA IRRIGATION DISTRICT
ACT IS VIOLATIVE OF THE DUE PROC-
ESS OF LAW CLAUSE OF THE FOUR-
TEENTH AMENDMENT TO THE CONSTI-
TUTION IN THAT IT PERMITS THE IS-

SUANCE OF BONDS AND WARRANTS
WHICH WILL REQUIRE FOR THEIR
DISCHARGE THE LEVY OF TAXES BY
THE IRRIGATION DISTRICT IN EX-
CESS OF BENEFITS WHICH MAY POS-
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SIBLY BE DERIVED FROM MONEY
REALIZED FROM SUCH BONDS AND
WARRANTS, BUT IF THE STATUTE
DOES NOT PERMIT SUCH ISSUANCE'

OF BONDS AND WARRANTS THEY
WERE NEVERTHELESS SO ISSUED IN

THIS CASE, AND ARE INVALID, BE-

CAUSE IF NOT PERMITTED BY THE
STATUTE THEY WERE NOT AUTHOR-
IZED BY LAW.

It is admitted that the land of Tomich was under

irrigation at the date of the petition for the so-

called irrigation district ; that such land was then of

the reasonable value of $75.00 an acre; that the

value of such land could not be possibly increased

beyond $25.00 an acre by the successful completion

and operation of the proposed irrigation works;

that the indebtedness of the said district contracted

in an attempt to provide such works and which is

represented by said bonds and warrants exceeds

$120,000 or more than $75 an acre for every acre

of land within the district and which if the law is

valid is a lien upon such land to the amomit of such

indebtedness; that the attempt of the district to

construct or maintain irrigation works has been

wholly unsuccessful; that there has been no water

furnished for the lands in the irrigation district

since the year 1919; that in consequence the land

since 1919 has grown up in weeds; that buildings,

fences and all other improvements have fallen into

decay and that the indebtedness contracted by the
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said so-called district is such that if valid the value

of the Tomich land has been totally destroyed.

It is a well-settled imle of law that taxes for spe-

cial improvements cannot be levied in excess of the

improvements which are thereby created or which

may possibly be thereby created. If it is possible

to increase the value of land by a special improve-

ment to the extent of $25.00 an acre, taxes amount-

ing to $75.00 an acre cannot be levied for that pur-

pose, because if they were then the property of the

land owners to the extent of $50.00 an acre would

have been taken without due process of law.

The indebtedness of $120,000 for the district

means, of course, that the total of taxes required to

be levied must equal that amount in order that the

indebtedness may be discharged and the bonds and

warrants must be held invalid if confiscatory taxa-

tion is necessary to pay them, unless, of course,

they are in the hands of innocent purchasers, for

value and without notice. In this case the prohibi-

tion against such unlawful taxation reaches the

owners of the bonds and warrants because it is ad-

mitted that they knew that the improvements pro-

posed exceeded in cost the possible benefit which

could accrue at least to the extent of $50.00 an acre.

The question which is here presented was sug-

gested in the case of

Andrews vs. Lilian Irrigation District, 92

N. W. 612,

referred to above. That case like the present case

was a suit to declare taxes levied by an irrigation

district upon the lands of the plaintiff a cloud upon
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his title. In that case the complaint alleged that

the lands of the appellant conld not he benefited by

irrigation but that the said lands were lands which

would be injured by the distribution of water upon

them by the irrigation system of ditches. In the

original decision it was held that the remedy of the

plaintiff was an application to the defendant to have

these lands excluded. The Court went on to consider

the question which would be presented if such an

application should be denied and in passing on this

point the Court used the following language:

''If the effort should be made and should

fail, some highly interesting questions would

arise as to the constitutional right or legisla-

tive power of taxing private property for the

construction and maintenance of public im-

provements by which it is not only not bene-

fited, but is demonstrably injured."

The point here involved was passed upon in the

case of

Dusch vs. Bronson, 248 Fed. 377,

a decision by the Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Eighth Circuit, and a suit brought by a receiver of

a railroad company to enjoin a sheriff from sell-

ing the railroad property for the purpose of collect-

ing taxes levied for the construction of a highway.

It was held that the power of taxation arbitrarily

exercised for special improvements without com-

pensation equal to the amount of taxes therefor

amounts to confiscation and violates the due process
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of law provision of the Fourteenth Amendment to

the Constitution.

In

Lyon vs. Tonowanda, 98 Fed. 364,

it was held that the case of

Norwood vs. Baker, 172 IJ. S. 270, 43 L. Ed.

44,

declared the following principle, to wit

:

"The exaction from the owner of private

property of the cost of a public improvement

in substantial excess of the special benefits ac-

cruing to him is, to the extent of such excess,

a taking, under the guise of taxation, of pri-

vate property for public use without compensa-

tion.
'

'

The rule of law here stated was declared in the

following

:

Myles Salt Co. vs. Board of Commissioners,

239 U. S. 478, 60 L. Ed. 392.

Cowley vs. Spokane, 99 Fed. 844.

Jefferson vs. Wells, 172 S. W. 329.

Foy vs. Springfield, 94 Fed. 409.

Scranton vs. Levers, 49 Atl. 980.

Scott vs. Toledo, 36 Fed. 396.

Raisch vs. Regents of University of Califor-

nia, 174 Pac. 942.

Excelsior Plating Co. vs. Green, 1 So. 873.

As the taxes necessary to discharge the said

bonds and warrants will in fact amount to confisca-

tion there is no power in the officers named as de-

fendants to collect them.
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The only justification for the acts of the officers

of the irrigation district in issuing the said bonds

and warrants and levjdng taxes for their satisfac-

tion is that their said acts were within the powers

conferred by the said irrigation district statute.

If the statute is valid it imdoubtedly confers such

power, but as the bonds and warrants are so large

in amount as to require confiscatory taxation for

their discharge, the statute must be held to be in-

valid upon the ground that it permits a violation

of the constitutional provision. If it should be

held, however, that the said acts were not per-

mitted by the said statute, then such unauthorized

acts are void and the said bonds and warrants are

without validity for that reason.

The appellants respectfully submit that the de-

cree appealed from should be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

W. N. WAUGH,
JOHN A. SHELTON,
Solicitors for Appellant.
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In the Southern Division of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia.

INDICTMENT.

At a stated term of said court begun and holden

at the City and County of San Francisco within and

for the Southern Division of the Northern District

of California on the first Monday of November, in

the year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-seven,

—

The Grand Jurors of the United States of Amer-

ica, within and for the Division and District afore-

said, on their oaths present: THAT
Prior to the date on which the several letters,

writings and circulars herein referred to were

mailed and caused to be delivered by mail, as here-

inafter alleged in the several counts in this indict-

ment, HARRY M. KA.SSMIR, CROMWELL
SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROBINSON, ORTON E.

GOODWIN and J. W. RANDOLPH, hereinafter

called the defendants, had devised and intended

to devise a scheme and artifice to defraud and for

obtaining money and appropriate from the public

in general, and in particular from a certain class

of persons by means of certain false and fraudulent

pretenses, representations and promises, that is to

say, the persons (hereinafter called the **victims")

could or might, by the means hereinafter described,

be induced to send and pay their said money and

to part with their said property to the said defend-
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ants or to Cromwell Simon & Co., hereinafter re-

ferred to.

It was part of said scheme and artifice to de-

fraud that the defendant Cromwell Simon should

have issued to him by the Commissioner of Corpo-

rations of the State of California [3] a certifi-

cate authorizing him to offer for sale, negotiate for

the sale of, and otherwise deal in securities in the

State of California, and generally carry on the busi-

ness of a broker in said state.

It was a further part of said scheme and artifice

to defraud that defendants, Cromwell Simon and

Harry M. Kassmir, as copartners, doing business

under the firm name and style of Cromwell Simon

& Co., should offer for sale and negotiate for the

sale of and otherwise deal in securities in the State

of California and generally carry on the business

of brokerage in said state under the name of Crom-

well Simon & Co.

It was a further part of said scheme and artifice

to defraud that the defendants, Cromwell Simon

and Harry M. Kassmir, should open brokerage

offices in San Francisco, California, and that said

Cromwell Simon and Harry M. Kassmir should be

the proprietors of said brokerage office and the

other defendants should be office managers and

stock salesmen and agents of the said Cromwell

Simon & Co.

It was a further part of said scheme and artifice

to defraud that defendant Samuel H. Robinson

should mail at San Francisco to Le Roy F. Pike

at Reno, Nevada, articles of incorporation for a
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new company to be called "Cromwell & Company,

Inc.," at Reno, Nevada; that said defendant Robin-

son requested said Pike to obtain dummy directors

and should regularly incorporate Cromwell & Com-

pany, Inc., under the laws of the State of Nevada.

It was a further part of the said scheme and ar-

tifice to defraud that the defendants, Samuel H.

Robinson, Harry M. Kassmir and Cromwell Simon

should visit Reno, Nevada, for [4] the purpose

of attending a meeting of the directors of Crom-

well <fe Company, Inc.

It was a further part of the said scheme and ar-

tifice to defraud that at the meeting of the Board

of Directors of said company, defendant Kassmir

should offer to subscribe $50,000 worth of this com-

pany's stock and pay cash for it, and that said offer

was put in the form of a resolution, seconded, voted

and passed unanimously;

WHEREAS, in truth and in fact, as defendant

then and there well knew, defendant Kassmir did

not pay $50,000 cash for said stock or anything at

all.

It was a further part of the said scheme and

artifice to defraud that the defendants should solicit

and procure from said victims subscriptions and

orders for shares of high-grade corporate stock and

other securities, on the "Cromwell Simon and Co.

Investment Plan," by false and fraudulent repre-

sentations and promises as to the financial stand-

ing of the Cromwell Simon and Company and of

the defendants Cromwell Simon and Harry M.

Kassmir; by false and fraudulent representations
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and promises as to the care and watchfulness ex-

ercised for the benefit of said victims by the said

defendants over investments made with them by

said victims, and generally by false and fraudulent

representations and promises as to the alleged

safety of purchasing high-grade stocks and other

high-grade securities, through the said defendants

and the said Cromwell Simon Company.

It was a further part of said scheme and artifice

to defraud that the said defendants should, when-

ever possible, require the victims to deliver over

to said defendants valuable securities as alleged col-

lateral to secure deferred payments on stock sub-

scribed for, and that the said defendants [5]

should take and embezzle and convert such collateral

securities to their own use and benefit without ac-

counting to said victims therefor, and thus could

and would defraud the said victims out of their

money and property.

It was a further part of said scheme and artifice

to defraud that defendants should induce and per-

suade the victims to purchase high-grade stock and

other securities under the Cromwell & Simon Co.

Investment Plan by means of certain false repre-

sentations which the defendants did not then and

there or ever intend to carry out or perform, made

and communicated to the victims by means of let-

ters, circulars and advertisements sent through the

mail and statements made orally by defendants and

by their agents.

It was a further part of the said scheme and

artifice to defraud that the defendants in order to
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induce their victims to part with their money and

property should raise in said victims hopes and ex-

pectations of profit and reward far beyond the

limits warranted by existing conditions by means

of alluring, exaggerated, misleading, false and

fraudulent representations, pretenses and promises,

which representations, pretenses and promises are

substantially and in effect as follows:

(1) That Cromwell Simon & Co. was a reputable

brokerage company and the victims could rely upon

the standing and financial responsibility of Crom-

well Simon & Co.

;

WHEEEAS, in truth and in fact, as the defend-

ants then and there well knew, the said company

was not a responsible brokerage house, but of the

character of a ''bucket" shop and without business

standing or financial resources sufficient to carry

on a reliable brokerage business. [6]

(2) That the business of Cromwell Simon &

Co. w^as to sell to victims high-grade corporate stock

and other securities, particularly on the partial pay-

ment plan;

WHEREAS, in truth and in fact, as the defend-

ants then and there well knew, Cromwell Simon &
Co. did not sell to the victims high-grade corporate

stock and other securities, or any stock or se-

curities at all.

(3) That the defendants would obtain subscrip-

tions from the victims for such stocks and other

securities on the Cromwell Simon & Co. Investment

Plan, and would immediately purchase the same at

market price for and on account of the said victim
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and that Cromwell Simon & Co. would hold the same

so that the victim could be certain that the high-

grade stocks and other securities would be on hand

for them at any and all times when called for by

them;

WHEREAS, in truth and in fact, as the defend-

ants then and there well knew, Cromwell Simon &
Co. did not immediately purchase such high-grade

stocks and other securities at the market price for

the account of the victims at the time said victims

gave said company subscription for stock, or at

all, and that the said company would not, and did

not hold the same so that the victims could be cer-

tain that the stocks and securities would be on hand

when called for.

(4) That interest would be charged on deferred

payments due from victims on such high-grade

stocks and other securities at the rate of 6 per cent

per annum, in addition to service charge, and that

the victim would draw, in the meantime, any divi-

dends or interest declared or payable on the high-

grade stock and other securities so purchased and

held by them; [7]

WHEREAS, in truth and in fact, as the said de-

fendants then and there well knew, Cromwell

Simon & Co. did not and could not pay to the vic-

tims any dividends or interest declared or payable

on such high-grade stocks or securities.

(5) That Cromwell Simon & Co. were particu-

larly well qualified to advise victims when to buy

and sell corporate stocks and other securities; that

an investor subscribing for such corporate stock, or
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other security, through the said company, would

have the privilege of selling the same at any time

he desired, and that the said defendants could be

depended upon to give advice along such lines and

would notify the victims w^hen to sell to the best

advantage

;

WHEREAS, in truth and in fact, as the defend-

ants then and there w^ell knew, the said company

was not well qualified to advise the victims when

to buy and sell corporate stocks and other securi-

ties; that the said victims could not rely upon said

defendants for safe information or advice in the

matter of bujdng or selling corporate stocks or

other securities, but that the said defendants would

only endeavor to procure from the victims the

largest possible amounts of money and property,

which money and property the said defendants

would appropriate and embezzle to their own use

and benefit.

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, on their oaths

aforesaid, present: THAT
Each and all of the aforesaid representations and

promises made and planned to be made by defend-

ants, as aforesaid, were false and untrue, and that

the defendants when so devising said scheme and

artifice to defraud, and [8] at the time of com-

mitting the several offenses, and each of the said

several offenses, hereinafter in this indictment set

forth, and at all times referred to in this indict-

ment, well knew the same to be false and untrue,

and the same were all and each made by the defend-
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ants for the purpose of executing said selieme and

artifice to defraud.

It was a further part of said scheme and artifice

to defraud that the said defendants should, on or

about April 8, 1925, in the Southern Division of

the Northern District of California, and within

the jurisdiction of this court, unlawfully, wilfully,

knowingly and feloniously place and cause to be

placed in the United States postoffice at San Fran-

cisco, California, to be sent and delivered by the

Postoffice Establishment of the United States, a cer-

tain postpaid envelope addressed to Mr. G. A. John-

son, Chualar, California, which said envelope then

and there contained and had enclosed therein the

following letter:

"CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY,
Mills Building,

220 Montgomery Street,

San Francisco.

High Grade Investment Securities

Standard Oil Stocks

Unlisted Stocks Telephone

Bonds Kearny 6940

April

8th

1925.

Mr. G. A. Johnson,

Chualar, Calif.

Dear Mr. Johnson

:

We are enclosing you our special report on the

Di Giorgio Corporation, at your request.
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We are frank to assure you that the present

market price of your stock is low in comparison

to the price you paid for it. Yet, the company's

general condition is improving so rapidly, as is in-

dicated by our report, that we believe if you hold

on to this security, you will come out in the end

in quite a satisfactory fashion. [9]

We would suggest that in future, however, you

confine your purchases to listed stocks such as Stan-

dard Oil of California, which not only has a ready

immediate market, but always pays dividends and

increases steadily in value.

You will see from the report that had you in-

vested $100 in Standard Oil of California some

twelve years ago, your investment today would be

worth around $1008 and you would have received

$272 dividends.

To enable you to acquire such worth while hold-

ings as Standard Oil of California, we should be

glad to make you a loan on your Di Giorgia hold-

ings, or to use them as collateral on the purchase

of a block of Standard Oil of California. Thus,

you will be able to receive the dividends from both

the Di Giorgio and the Standard Oil of California

and should find such a purchase a very profitable

one.

If we can do anything for you, please call upon

us.

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
(Signed) OETON E. GOODWIN.

OEG/H. [10]
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COUNT TWO.

And the G-rand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do fm-ther present: THAT HARRY M. KASSMIR,
CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROBIN-
SON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and

property under the false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises described in the first

count of this indictment, the allegations concerning

which in said first count are hereby incorporated

by reference thereto in this count as fully and with

like effect for all purposes as though the same were

here reiterated and repeated, for the purpose of

executing said scheme and artifice to defraud, did,

on or about April 22, 1925, in the Southern Divi-

sion of the Northern District of California, and

within the jurisdiction of this court, unlawfully,

wilfully, knowingly and feloniously place and cause

to be placed in the United States postoffice at San

Francisco, California, to be sent and delivered by

the Postoffice Establishment of the United States,

a certain postpaid envelope addressed to Mr. Gus-

tave A. Johnson, P. O. Box 53, Chaular, California,

which said envelope then and there contained and

had enclosed therein the following:

(a) A certain letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "A," and by
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this reference incorporated herein and

made a part hereof with like etfect and

for all purposes as though set forth in full

herein. [11]

(b) A certain document entitled "Cromwell Simon

& Company, Certificate," the face thereof

being in the words and figures as shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "B" and by

this reference incorporated herein and

made a part hereof with like effect for all

purposes as though set forth in fuU herein

;

and the back thereof being in the words

and figures as shown by the photostatic

copy thereof attached hereto and marked

Exhibit "C" and by this reference incor-

porated herein and made a part hereof

with like effect for all purposes as though

set forth in full herein.

(c) A certain document entitled "The Cromwell

Simon & Company Plan" of the follow-

ing tenor, to wit, the face thereof being in

the words and figures as shown by the

photostatic copy thereof attached hereto

and marked Exhibit "D" and by this ref-

erence incorporated herein and made a

part hereof with like effect for all purposes

as though set forth in full herein; and the

back thereof being in the words and fig-

ures as shown by the photostatic copy

thereof attached hereto and marked Ex-

hibit "E" and by this reference incorpo-
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rated herein and made a part hereof with

like effect for all purposes as though set

forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT THREE.

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, on their oaths

aforesaid, do further present as follows: THAT
HARRY M. KASSMIR, CROMWELL SIMON,
SAMUEL H. ROBINSON, ORTON E. GOOD-
WIN and J. W. RANDOLPH, the identical parties

named in the first count of this indictment, herein-

after called the defendants, so having devised the

aforesaid scheme and artifice to defraud and for

obtaining money and property under the false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises

described in [12] the first count of this in-

dictment, the allegations concerning which in

said first count are hereby incorporated by

reference thereto in this count as fully and

with like effect for all purposes as though the

same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to

defraud, did, on or about July 7, 1925, in the South-

em Division of the Northern District of California,

and within the jurisdiction of this court, unlawfully,

wilfully, knowingly and feloniously place and cause

to be placed in the United States postoffice at San

Francisco, California, to be sent and delivered by
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the Postoffice Establishment of the United States,

a certain postpaid envelope addressed to Mr. G. A.

Johnson, P. O. Box 53, Chaular, Calif., which said

envelope then and there contained and had enclosed

therein a certain letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached hereto

and marked Exhibit "Fj" and by this reference

incorporated herein and made a part hereof with

like effect and for all purposes as though set forth

in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT FOUR.

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, on their oaths

aforesaid, do further present as follows: THAT
HARRY M. KASSMIR, CROMWELL SIMON,
SAMUEL H. ROBINSON, ORTON E. GOOD-
WIN and J. W. RANDOLPH, the identical par-

ties named in the first count of this [13] indict-

ment, hereinafter called the defendants, so having

devised the aforesaid scheme and artifice to defraud

and for obtaining money and property under the

false and fraudulent pretenses, representations and

promises described in the first count of this indict-

ment, the allegations concerning which in said first

count are hereby incorporated by reference thereto

in this count as fully and with like effect for all

purposes as though the same were here reiterated

and repeated, for the purpose of executing said
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scheme and artifice to defraud, did, on or about

July 13, 1925, in the Southern Division of the

Northern District of California, and within the

jurisdiction of this court, unlawfully, wilfuUy,

knowingly and feloniously place and cause to be

placed in the United States postoffice at San Fran-

cisco, California, to be sent and delivered by the

Postoffice Establishment of the United States, a

certain postpaid envelope addressed to Gustave A.

Johnson, P. O. Box 53, Chualar, Calif., which said

envelope then and there contained and had enclosed

therein a card in words and figures shown by the

photostatic copy thereof attached hereto and

marked Exhibit "G" and by this reference incor-

porated herein and made a part hereof with like

effect and for all purposes as though set forth in

full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided. [14]

COUNT FIVE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid do

further present: THAT HARRY M. KASSMIR,
CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL M. KASSMIR,
ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RANDOLPH,
the identical parties named in the first count of

this indictment, hereinafter called the defendants,

so having devised the aforesaid scheme and artifice

to defraud and for obtaining money and property

under the false and fraudulent pretenses, represen-
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tations and promises described in the first count

of this indictment, the allegations concerning which

in said first count are hereby incorporated by refer-

ence thereto in this count as fully and with like

effect for all purposes as though the same were here

reiterated and repeated, for the purpose of execut-

ing said scheme and artifice to defraud, did, on or

about October 29, 1925, in the Southern Division

of the Northern District of California, and within

the jurisdiction of this court, unlawfully, wilfully,

knowingly and feloniously place and cause to be

placed in the United States postofifice at San Fran-

cisco, California, to be sent and delivered by the

Postoffice Establishment of the United States a cer-

tain postpaid envelope addressed to Mr. Gustave

A. Johnson, P. O. Box 53, Chualar, California,

which said envelope then and there contained and

had enclosed therein the following:

(a) A certain letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked ''H," and by this ref-

erence incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect and for all purposes

as though set forth [15] in full herein.

(b) A certain document entitled "PAYMENT
NOTICE" of the following tenor, to wit,

being in the words and figures as shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit *'I" and by this

reference incorporated herein and made a

part hereof with like effect for all purposes

as though set forth in full herein.
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AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT SIX.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid,

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for

the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice

to defraud, did, on or about May 13, 1926, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and [16] felo-

niously place and cause to be placed in the United

States postoffice at San Francisco, California, to

be sent and delivered by the Postoffice Establish-

ment of the United States, a certain envelope ad-

dressed to Mr. J, A. Bardin, Attorney-at-law, Sa-

linas, California, which said envelope then and
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there contained and had enclosed therein a letter

addressed to Mr. J. A. Bardin, Attorney-at-law, Sa-

linas, California, in words and figures shown by

the photostatic copy thereof attached hereto and

marked Exhibit "J" and by this reference incor-

porated herein and made a part hereof with like

effect and for all purposes as though set forth in

full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT SEVEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid,

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully [17] and with like effect for all purposes

as though the same were here reiterated and re-

peated, for the purpose of executing said scheme

and artifice to defraud, did, on or about June 24,

1925, in the Southern Division of the Northern Dis-
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trict of California, and within the jurisdiction of

this court, unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and fe-

loniously place and cause to be placed in the United

States postoffice at San Francisco, California, to be

sent and delivered by the Postoffice Establishment

of the United States, a certain postpaid envelope

addressed to Mr. S. Tiger, 1826 Anza St., San

Francisco, Calif., which said envelope then and

there contained and had enclosed therein the follow-

ing:

(a) A certain letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "K," and by

this reference incorporated herein and

made a part hereof with like effect and for

all purposes as though set forth in full

herein.

(b) A certain document entitled "Special Re-

port on Dodge Brothers, Inc.," the first

page thereof being in the words and figures

as shown by the photostatic copy thereof

attached hereto and marked Exhibit "L"
and by this reference incorporated herein

and made a part hereof with like effect

for all purposes as though set forth in full

herein; and the second page thereof being

in the words and figures as shown by the

photostatic copy thereof attached hereto

and marked Exhibit "M" and by this ref-

erence incorporated herein and made a

part hereof with like effect for all purposes

as though set forth in full herein.
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AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided. [18]

COUNT EIGHT.

And the Grand Jurors aforesaid, on their oaths

aforesaid, do further present : THAT HARRY M.

KASSMIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H.

ROBINSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN, and J. W.
RANDOLPH, the identical parties named in the

first count of this indictment hereinafter called the

defendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifices to

defraud, did, on or about June 30, 1925, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

place and cause to be placed in the United States

postoffice at San Francisco, California, to be sent

and delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of

the United States a certain postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Mrs. Annie G. Tiger, 1828 Anza Street,

San Francisco, which said envelope then and there
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contained and had enclosed therein a letter in words

and figures shown by the photostatic copy thereof

attached hereto and marked Exhibit "N," and by

this reference incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect and for all purposes as

though set forth in full herein. [19]

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT NINE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HABRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to

defraud, did, on or about July 2d, 1926, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously
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place and cause to be placed in the United States

postoffice at San Francisco, Califoniia, to be sent

and delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of

the United States, a certain postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Mrs, Annie G. Tiger, 1828 Anza Street,

San Francisco, which said envelope then and there

contained and had enclosed a certain letter in words

and figures shown by the [20] photostatic copy

thereof attached hereto and marked Exhibit "O,"

and by this reference incorporated herein and made

a part hereof with like effect and for all purposes

as though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and con+raiy to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT TEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though
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the same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to

defraud, did, on or about September 5, 1925, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

place and caused to be placed in the United States

postoffice at San Francisco, California, to be [21]

sent and delivered by the Postoffice Establishment

of the United States, a certain postpaid envelope

addressed to Mrs. Annie G. Tiger, 1828 Anza Street,

San Francisco, Calif., which said envelope then and

there contained and had enclosed therein the fol-

lowing :

(a) A certain letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "P," and by

this reference incorporated herein and

made a part hereof with like effect and for

all purposes as though set forth in full

herein.

(b) A certain document entitled "Cromwell Si-

mon & Company Certificate," the face

thereof being in the words and figures as

shown by the photostatic copy thereof at-

tached hereto and marked Exhibit "Q,"

and by this reference incorporated herein

and made a part hereof with like effect

for all purposes as though set forth in full

herein; and the back thereof being in the

words and figures as shown by the photo-

static copy thereof attached hereto and
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marked Exhibit "R" and by this reference

incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect and for all purposes

as though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT ELEVEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. OOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and [22] for obtaining

money and property under the false and fraudulent,

pretenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations con-

cerning which in said first count are hereby incorpo-

rated by reference thereto in this count as fully and

with like effect for all purposes as though the same

were here reiterated and repeated, for the purpose of

executing said scheme and artifice to defraud, did,

on or about May 14, 1926, in the Southern Division

of the Northern District of California, and within

the jurisdiction of this court, unlawfully, wilfully,

knowingly and feloniously place and cause to be

placed in the United States postoffice at San Fran-

cisco, California, to be sent and delivered by the
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Postoffice Establishment of the United States, a cer-

tain postpaid envelope addressed to Mrs. Anna Ti-

ger, 1828 Anza St., Apt. 3, San Francisco, Califor-

nia, which said envelope then and there contained

and had enclosed therein a certain letter in words

and figures shown by the photostatic copy thereof at-

tached hereto and marked Exhibit *'S," and by this

reference incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect and for all purposes as

though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT TWELVE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid do

further present: THAT HARRY M. KASSMIR,
CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROBINSON,
ORTON E. GOODWIN, and J. W. RANDOLPH,
[23] the identical parties named in the first count

of this indictment, hereinafter called the defend-

ants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme and

artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and

property under the false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises described in the first

count of this indictment, the allegations concern-

ing which in said first count are hereby incorpo-

rated by reference thereto in this count as fully

and with like effect for all purposes as though the

same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to
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defraud, did, on or about April 1, 1925, in the South-

ern Division of the Northern District of California,

and within the jurisdiction of this court, unlaw-

fully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously place and

cause to be placed in the United States postoffice

at San Francisco, California, to be sent and de-

livered by the Postoffice Establishment of the

United States, a certain postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Mr. Ernest C. Hipp, 543 Monroe, Santa

Clara, Calif., which said envelope then and there

contained and had enclosed therein the following:

(a) A certain letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit ''T," and by

this reference incorporated herein and

made a part hereof with like effect and for

all purposes as though set forth in full

herein. [24]

(b) A certain document entitled ''The Cromsell

Simon & Company Plan" of the following

tenor, to wit, the face thereof being in the

words and figures as shown by the photo-

static copy thereof attached hereto and

marked Exhibit "U " and by this reference

incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect for all purposes as

though set forth in full herein; and the

back thereof being in the words and fig-

ures as shown by the photostatic copy

thereof attached hereto and marked Ex-

hibit "V" and by this reference incor-

porated herein and made a part hereof
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with like effect for all purposes as though

set forth in full herein.

(c) A certain document entitled "Cromwell

Simon & Company Certificate," the face

thereof being in the words and figures as

shown by the photostatic copy thereof at-

tached hereto and marked Exhibit "W"
and by this reference incorporated herein

and made a part hereof with like effect

for all purposes as though set forth in full

herein; and the back thereof being in the

words and figures as shown by the photo-

static copy thereof attached hereto and

marked Exhibit "X" and by this reference

incorporated herein and made a part hereof

with like effect for all purposes as though

set forth in full herein

.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT THIRTEEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths afore-

said, do further present: THAT HARRY M.

KASSMIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H.

ROBINSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W.
RANDOLPH, the identical parties named in the

first count of this indictment, hereinafter called the

defendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and

property under the false and fraudulent pretenses,
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representations and promises described [25] in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for

the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice

to defraud, did, on or about March 31, 1925, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

place and cause to be placed in the United States

postoffice at San Francisco, California, to be sent

and delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of the

United States, a certain envelope addressed to Mr.

Ernest Hipp, 543 Monroe St., Santa Clara, which

said envelope then and there contained and had

enclosed therein a certain receipt in words and fig-

ures shown by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "Y," and by this ref-

erence incorporated herein and made a part hereof

with like effect and for all purposes as though set

forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT FOURTEEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid,

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
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INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, [26] the identical parties named in the

first count of this indictment, hereinafter called the

defendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and

property under the false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises described in the first

count of this indictment, the allegations concern-

ing which in said first count are hereby incorpo-

rated by reference thereto in this count as fully

and with like effect for all purposes as though the

same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to

defraud, did, on or about April 6, 1925, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

place and cause to be placed in the United States

postoffice at San Francisco, California, to be sent

and delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of the

United States, a certain postpaid envelope addressed

to Mr. Ernest Hipp, 543 Monroe, Santa Clara,

Calif., which said envelope then and there contained

and had enclosed therein a certain letter in words

and figures shown by the photostatic copy thereof

attached hereto and marked Exhibit "Z," and by

this reference incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect and for all purposes as

though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the
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statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided. [27]

COUNT FIFTEEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to

defraud, did, on or about June 29, 1925, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

place and cause to be placed in the United States

postoffice at San Francisco, California, to be sent

and delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of the

United States, a certain postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Mr. Ernest Hipp, 543 Monroe St., Santa

Clara, Calif., which said envelope then and there

contained and had enclosed therein a certain letter

in words and figures shown by the photostatic copy
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thereof attached hereto and marked Exhibit "AA"
and by this reference incorporated herein and made

a part hereof with like effect and for all purposes as

though set forth in full herein. [28]

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT SIXTEEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid do

further present: THAT HARRY M. KASSMIR,
CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROBIN-
SON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to de-

fraud, did, on or about April 23, 1925, in the South-

ern Division of the Northern District of California,

and within the jurisdiction of this court, unlaw-

fully, wilfull}^, knowingly and feloniously place and

cause to be placed in the United States postoffice

at San Francisco, California, to be sent and de-
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livered by the Postoffice Establishment of the

United States, a ceiiain postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Mrs. B. M. Ogier, 1696 Green Street, San

Francisco, Cal., [29] which said envelope then

and there contained and had enclosed therein a cer-

tain letter in words and figures shown by the photo-

static copy thereof attached hereto and marked Ex-

hibit "BB" and by this reference incorporated

herein and made a part hereof with like effect and

for all purposes as though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT SEVENTEEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property mider the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the fii-st count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for

the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to
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defraud, did, on or about June 13, 1925, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

place and cause to be placed in the United [30]

States postoffice at San Francisco, California, to be

sent and delivered by the Postoifice Establishment

of the United States, a certain postpaid envelope

addressed to Mrs. B. M. Ogier, 1696 Green Street,

San Francisco, Calif., which said envelope then and

there contained and had enclosed therein a certain

letter in words and figures shown by the photo-

static copy thereof attached hereto and marked Ex-

hibit "CC" and by this reference incorporated

herein and made a part hereof With like effect and

for all purposes as though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of

the statute of the said United States of America

in such case made and provided.

COUNT EIGHTEEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the

defendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in
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the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for

the purpose of [31] executing said scheme and

artifice to defraud, did, on or about October 9, 1925,

unlawfully, wilfully and feloniously and knowingly

cause to be delivered by the Postoffice Establish-

ment of the United States, at San Francisco, Cali-

fornia, in the Southern Division of the Northern

District of California and within the jurisdiction

of this court, according to the direction thereon, a

certain letter enclosed in a postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Miss Clara Oliver, 1696 Green St., San

Francisco, California, which said letter in words and

figures shown by the photostatic copy thereof at-

tached hereto and marked Exhibit "DD" is by by

this reference incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect and for all purposes as

though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the foiTQ of

the statute of the said United States of America

in such case made and provided.

COUNT NINETEEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first
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count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and

property under the false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises described in the first

count of this indictment, the allegations concern-

ing which in said first count are hereby incorporated

by reference thereto in this count as fully [32]

and with like effect for all purposes as though the

same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to

defraud, did, on or about October 29, 1925, unlaw-

fully, wilfully, feloniously and knowingly cause to

be delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of the

United States, at San Francisco, California, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia and within the jurisdiction of this court,

according to the direction thereon, a certain letter

enclosed in a postpaid envelope addressed to Miss

Clara Oliver, 1696 Green Street, San FTancisco,

Calif., which said letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached hereto

and marked Exhibit "EE," is by this reference in-

corporated herein and made a part hereof with

like effect and for all purposes as though set forth

in full herein,

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of

the statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT TWENTY.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid
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do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described

[33] in the first count of this indictment, the

allegations concerning which in said first count

are hereby incorporated by reference thereto in

this coimt as fully and with like effect for all pur-

poses as though the same were here reiterated and

repeated, for the purpose of executing said scheme

and artifice to defraud, did, on or about March 15,

1926, unlawfully, wilfully, feloniously and know-

ingly cause to be delivered by the Postoffice Estab-

lishment of the United States, at San Francisco,

California, in the Southern Division of the North-

em District of California and within the jurisdic-

tion of this court, according to the direction thereon,

a certain letter enclosed in a postpaid envelope

addressed to Miss Clara Oliver, 1696 Green St.,

San Francisco, Calif., which said letter in words

and figures shown by the photostatic copy thereof

attached hereto and marked Exhibit "FF" is by

this reference incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect and for all purposes as

though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the
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statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT TWENTY-ONE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HAREY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this [34] indictment, hereinafter called

the defendants, so having devised the aforesaid

scheme and artifice to defraud and for obtaining

money and property under the false and fraudu-

lent pretenses, representations and promises de-

scribed in the first count of this indictment, the

allegations concerning which in said first coimt

are hereby incorporated by reference thereto in

this count as fully and with like effect for all pur-

poses as though the same were here reiterated and

repeated, for the purpose of executing said scheme

and artifice to defraud, did, on or about May 5,

1926, unlawfully, wilfully, feloniously and know-

ingly cause to be delivered by the Postoffice Estab-

lishment of the United States, at San Francisco,

California, in the Southern Division of the North-

em District of California and within the jurisdic-

tion of this court, according to the direction thereon,

a certain letter enclosed in a postpaid envelope

addressed to Miss Clara Oliver, 1696 Green St.,

San Francisco, Cal., which said letter in words and

figures shown by the photostatic copy thereof at-

tached hereto and marked Exhibit ''GG" is bv this
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reference incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect and for all purposes as

though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of

the statute of the said United States of America

in such case made and provided. [35]

COUNT TWENTY-TWO.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning v^hich in said first count are hereby

incorporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for

the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice

to defraud, did, on or about September 11, 1925,

in the Southern Division of the Northern District

of California, and within the jurisdiction of this

court, unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and felo-

niously place and cause to be placed in the United

States postoffiee at San Francisco, California, to

be sent and delivered by the Postoffice Establish-
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ment of the United States, a certain postpaid en-

velope addressed to Mr. W. F. Allen, 1717 Ellis

St, San Francisco, which said envelope then and

there contained and had enclosed a certain letter

in words and figures shown by the photostatic

copy thereof attached hereto and marked Exhibit

"HH" and by this reference incorporated herein

and made a part hereof with like effect and for

all purposes as though set forth in full herein, [36]

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT TWENTY-THREE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby

incorporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to

defraud, did, on or about September 16, 1925, in
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the Southern Division of the Northern District of

California, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly, and feloniously

place and cause to be placed in the United States

postoffice at San Francisco, California, to be sent

and delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of

the United States, a certain postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Mr. W. F. Allen, 1717 Ellis St., San

Francisco, which said envelope then and there con-

tained a certain letter in words [37] and figures

shown by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "II" and by this refer-

ence incorporated herein and made a part hereof

with like effect and for all purposes as though set

forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of

the statute of the said United States of America

in such case made and provided.

COUNT TWENTY-FOUR.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and

property under the false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises described in the first

count of this indictment, the allegations concerning
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which in said first count are hereby incorporated

by reference thereto in this count as fully and with

like effect for all purposes as though the same were

here reiterated and repeated, for the purpose of

executing said scheme and artifice to defraud, did,

on or about November 4, 1925, unlawfully, wilfully,

knowingly and feloniously cause to be delivered by

the Postoffice Establishment of the United States,

at San Francisco, California, in the Southern Di-

vision of the Northern District [38] of Cali-

fornia and within the jurisdiction of this court,

according to the direction thereon, a certain letter

enclosed in a postpaid envelope addressed to Mr.

W. F. Allen, 1717 Ellis Street, San Francisco,

Calif., which said letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached hereto and

marked Exhibit " JJ" is by this reference incorpo-

rated herein and made a part hereof with like effect

and for all purposes as though set foi*th in full

herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT TWENTY-FIVE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid do

further present: THAT HARRY M. KASSMIR,

CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROBINSON,

ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RANDOLPH,

the identical parties named in the first count of

this indictment, hereinafter called the defendants,
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so having- devised the aforesaid scheme and arti-

fice to defraud and for obtaining money and prop-

erty under the false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises described in the first

count of this indictment, the allegations concern-

ing which in said first count are hereby incorporated

by reference thereto in this count as fully and with

like effect for all purposes as though the same were

here reiterated and repeated, for the purpose of

executing said scheme and artifice to defraud, did,

on or [39] on October 13, 1925, unlawfully, wil-

fully, knowingly and feloniously cause to be de-

livered by the Postoffice Establishment of the

United States, at Oakland, California, in the South-

ern Division of the Northern District of California

and within the jurisdiction of this court, according

to the direction thereon, a certain letter enclosed in

a postpaid envelope, addressed to Miss Mary Esther

Durham, 5838 Bir^h Court, Oakland, California,

which said letter in words and figures shown by the

photostatic copy thereof attached hereto and marked

Exhibit "KK" is by this reference incorporated

herein and made a part hereof with like effect and

for all pui'poses as though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT TWENTY-SIX.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
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MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W.
RANDOLPH, the identical parties named in the

first count of this indictment, hereinafter called the

defendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby

[40] incorporated by reference thereto in this

count as fully and with like effect for all purposes as

though the same were here reiterated and repeated,

for the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice

to defraud, did, on or about October 28, 1925, un-

lawfully, wilfully, feloniously and knowingly cause

to be delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of

the United States, at Oakland, California, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia and within the jurisdiction of this court,

according to the direction thereon, a certain letter

enclosed in a postpaid envelope addressed to Miss

Mary Esther Durham, 5838 Birch Court, Oakland,

Calif., which said letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached hereto and

marked Exhibit "LL" is by this reference incorpor-

ated herein and made a part hereof with like ef-

fect and for all purposes as though set forth in full

herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the
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statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT TWENTY-SEVEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H.

ROBINSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W.
RANDOLPH, the identical parties named in the

tirst count of this indictment, hereinafter called

the defendants, so having [41] devised the afore-

said scheme and artifice to defraud and for ob-

taining money and property under the false and

fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises

described in the first count of this indictment, the

allegations concerning which in said first count

are hereby incorporated by reference thereto in this

count as fully and with like effect for all purposes

as though the same were here reiterated and re-

peated, for the purpose of executing said scheme and

artifice to defraud, did, on or about February 2,

1.926, unlawfully, mlfuUy, feloniously and know-

ingly cause to be delivered by the Postoffice Estab-

lishment of the United States, at Oakland, Cali-

fornia, in the Southern Division of the Northern

District of California and within the jurisdiction

of this court, according to the direction thereon,

a certain letter enclosed in a postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Miss Mary Esther Durham, 5838 Birch

Court, Oakland, California, which said letter in

words and figures shown by the photostatic copy

thereof attached hereto and marked Exhibit "MM"
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is hy the reference incorporated herein and made

a part hereof with like effect and for all purposes

as though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT TWENTY-EIGHT.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid do

further present: THAT HARRY M. KASSMIR,
CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROBIN-
SON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, [42] the identical parties named in the

first count of this indictment, hereinafter called the

defendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and

property under the false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises described in the first

count of this indictment, the allegations concerning

which in said first count are hereby incorporated

by reference thereto in this count as fully, and with

like effect for all purposes as though the same were

here reiterated and repeated, for the purpose of

executing said scheme and artifice to defraud, did,

on or about February 19, 1926, unlawfully, wil-

fully, feloniously and knowingly cause to be de-

livered by the Postoffice Establishment of the

United States, at Oakland, California, in the South-

ern Division of the Northern District of California

and within the jurisdiction of this court, according

to the direction thereon, a certain letter enclosed in
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a postpaid envelope addressed to Miss Mary Esther

Durham, 5838 Birch Court, Oakland, California,

which said letter in words and figures shown by the

photostatic copy thereof attached hereto and

marked Exhibit "NN" is by reference incorpo-

rated herein and made a part hereof with like effect

and for all purposes as though set forth in full

herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided. [43]

COUNT TWENTY-NINE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do fui-ther present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W.

RANDOLPH, the identical parties named in the

first count of this indictment, hereinafter called

the defendants, so having devised the aforesaid

scheme and artifice to defraud and for obtaining

money and property under the false and fraudulent

pretenses, representations and promises described

in the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for aU purposes as though

the sam.e were here reiterated and repeated, for

the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice

to defraud, did, on or about March 15, 1926, un-

lawfully, wilfully, feloniously and knowingly cause
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to be delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of

the United States, at Oakland, California, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of

California and within the jurisdiction of this court,

according to the direction thereon, a certain letter

enclosed in a postpaid envelope addressed to Miss

Mary Esther Durham, 5838 Birch Court, Oakland,

California, which said letter in words and figures

shown by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "00" is by this refer-

ence incorporated herein and made a part hereof

with like effect and for all purposes as though set

forth in full herein. [44]

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

case made and provided.

COUNT THIRTY.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid do

further present: THAT HARRY M. KASSMIR,
CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROBIN-
SON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

coimt of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as
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fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to

defraud, did, on or about June 26, 1926, unlawfully,

wilfully, feloniously and knowingly cause to be de-

livered by the Postoffice Establishment of the United

States, at Oakland, California, in the Southern

Division of the Northern District of California and

within the jurisdiction of this court, according to

the direction thereon, a certain letter enclosed in a

postpaid envelope addressed to Mrs, Emily A.

Beans, 5838 Birch Coui*t, Oakland, Calif., which

said letter in words and figures sho\\ai by the photo-

static copy thereof [45] attached hereto and

marked Exhibit "PP" is by this reference in-

corporated herein and made a part hereof with like

effect and for all purposes as though set forth in full

herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in such

ease made and provided.

COUNT THIRTY-ONE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W.
RANDOLPH, the identical parties named in the

first count of this indictment, hereinafter called the

defendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money
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and propertj^ under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby

incorporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for

the purpose of executing said scheme and artifice

to defraud, did, on or about July 7, 1928, unlaw-

fully, wilfully, feloniously and knowingly cause to

be delivered bj- the Pcstoffice Establishment of the

United States, at Oakland, California, in the South-

ern Division of the Northern District of California

and within the jurisdiction of this court, according

to the direction thereon, a certain letter [46] en-

closed in a postpaid envelope addressed to Miss

Mary Esther Durham, 5838 Birch Court, Oakland,

Calif., which said letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached hereto and

marked Exhibit "QQ" is by this reference incorpo-

rated herein and made a part thereof with like effect

and for all purposes as though set forth in full

herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of

the statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT THIRTY-TWO.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid,

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
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INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and v^ith like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice, to de-

fraud, did, on or about March 8, 1927, unlawfully,

wilfully, feloniously and knowingly cause to be de-

livered by the Postoffice [47] Establishment of

the United States, at Oakland, California, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

according to the direction thereon, the following:

(a) A certain letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "RR" and by

this reference incorporated herein and

made a part hereof with like effect and for

all purposes as though set forth in full

herein.

(b) A carbon copy of a letter in words and figures

shown by the photostatic copy thereof at-

tached hereto and marked Exhibit "SS,"

and by this reference incorporated herein

and made a part hereof with like effect and
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for all purposes as though set forth in full

herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT THIETY-THREE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby

[48] incorporated by reference thereto in this

count as fully and with like effect for all purposes

as though the same were here reiterated and re-

peated, for the purpose of executing said scheme

and artifice to defraud, did, on or about March 8,

1927, unlawfully, wilfully, feloniously and know-

ingly cause to be delivered by the Postof&ce Estab-

lishment of the United States, at Oakland, Califor-

nia, in the Southern Division of the Northern Dis-

trict of California and within the jurisdiction of

this court, according to the direction thereon, a

certain letter enclosed in a postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Mr. John J. Allen, Jr., Attorney at Law,
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902 Syndicate Bldg., Oakland, Calif., which said

letter in words and figures shown by the photostatic

copy thereof attached hereto and marked Exhibit

*'TT" is by this reference incorporated herein and

made a part hereof with like effect and for all pur-

poses as though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT THIRTY-FOUR.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN, and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described

[49] in the first count of this indictment, the alle-

gations concerning which in said first count are

hereby incorporated by reference thereto in this

count as fully and with like effect for all purposes

as though the same were here reiterated and re-

peated, for the purpose of executing said scheme

and artifice to defraud, did, on or about May 16,

1925, in the Southern Division of the Northern

District of California, and within the jurisdiction

of this court, unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and



54 Samuel H. RoMnson and J. W. Randolph

feloniously place and cause to be placed in the

United States postoffice at San Francisco, Califor-

nia, to be sent and delivered by the Postoffice Es-

tablishment of the United States, a certain post-

paid circular addressed to Phil A. Nagen, 3126

Clay, City, the fact thereof being in the words and

figures as shown by the photostatic copy thereof

attached hereto and marked Exhibit "UU" and by

this reference incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect for all purposes as though

set forth in full herein; and the back thereof being

in the words and figures as shown by the photo-

static copy thereof attached hereto and marked Ex-

hibit "W" and by this reference incorporated

herein and made a part hereof with like effect for

all purposes as though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

COUNT THIRTY-FIVE.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid,

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, [50] the identical parties named in

the first count of this indictment, hereinafter called

the defendants, so having devised the aforesaid

scheme and artifice to defraud and for obtaining

money and property under the false and fraudu-

lent pretenses, representations and promises de-

scribed in the first count of this indictment, the al-
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legations concerning which in said first count are

hereby incorporated by reference thereto in this

count as fully and with like effect for all purposes

as though the same were here reiterated and re-

peated, for the purpose of executing said scheme

and artifice to defraud, did, on or about July 25,

1925, in the Southern Division of the Northern Dis-

trict of California, and within the jurisdiction of

this court, unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and fe-

loniously place and cause to be placed in the United

States postoffice at San Francisco, California, to

be sent and delivered by the Postoffice Establish-

ment of the United States, a certain envelope ad-

dressed to Mr. Leroy F. Pike, City Attorney, Reno,

Nevada, which said envelope then and there con-

tained and had enclosed therein a certain two-page

letter, which said letter in words and figures shown

by the photostatic copy thereof attached hereto

and marked Exhibits "WW" and "XX" is by

this reference incorporated herein and made a part

hereof with like effect and for all purposes as

though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided. [51]

COUNT THIRTY-SIX.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid,

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first
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count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and

property under the false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises described in the first

count of this indictment, the allegations concerning

which in said first count are hereby incorporated

by reference thereto in this count as fully and with

like effect for all purposes as though the same were

here reiterated and repeated, for the purpose of

executing said scheme and artifice to defraud, did,

on or about August 26, 1925, in the Southern Divi-

sion of the Northern District of California, and

within the jurisdiction of this court, unlawfully,

wilfully, knowingly and feloniously place and cause

to be placed in the United States postoffice at San

Francisco, California, to be sent and delivered by

the Postoffice Establishment of the United States,

a certain postpaid envelope addressed to LeRoy F.

Pk,e Esq., Attorney-at-law, City Hall, Reno, Ne-

vada, which said envelope then and there contained

and had enclosed a certain two-page letter, which

said letter in words and figures shown by the pho-

tostatic copy thereof attached hereto and marked

Exhibits "YY" and "ZZ" is by this reference in-

corporated herein and made a part hereof with like

effect and for all purposes as though set forth in

[52]

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made ad provided.
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COUNT THIRTY-SEVEN.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid,

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of this indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money and

property under the false and fraudulent pretenses,

representations and promises described in the first

count of this indictment, the allegations concern-

ing which in said first count are hereby incorpo-

rated by reference thereto in this count as fully

and with like effect for all purposes as though the

same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to de-

fraud, did, on or about August 31, 1925, in the

Southern Division of the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, and within the jurisdiction of this court, un-

lawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously place

and cause to be placed in the United States post-

offi.ce at San Francisco, California, to be sent and

delivered by the Postoffice Establishment of the

United States, a certain postpaid envelope ad-

dressed to Leroy F. Pike, Esq., Attorney-at-law,

Reno, Nevada, which said envelope then and there

contained and had enclosed therein a certain letter,

which said letter in words [53] and figures

shown by the photostatic copy thereof attached

hereto and marked Exhibit "AAA" is by this refer-
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ence incorporated herein and made a part hereof

with like e:ffect and for all purposes as though set

forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made ad provided.

COUNT THIRTY-EIGHT.

And the Grand Jurors on their oaths aforesaid,

do further present: THAT HARRY M. KASS-
MIR, CROMWELL SIMON, SAMUEL H. ROB-
INSON, ORTON E. GOODWIN and J. W. RAN-
DOLPH, the identical parties named in the first

count of the indictment, hereinafter called the de-

fendants, so having devised the aforesaid scheme

and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money

and property under the false and fraudulent pre-

tenses, representations and promises described in

the first count of this indictment, the allegations

concerning which in said first count are hereby in-

corporated by reference thereto in this count as

fully and with like effect for all purposes as though

the same were here reiterated and repeated, for the

purpose of executing said scheme and artifice to

defraud, did, on or about September 18, 1925, in

the Southern Division of the Northern District of

California, and within the jurisdiction of this court,

unlawfully, wilfully, knowingly and feloniously

place and cause to be placed in the United States

postoffice at San Francisco, California, to be [54]

sent and delivered by the Postofifice Establishment

of the United States a certain postpaid envelope
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addressed to LeRoy F. Pike, Esq., Attorney-at-law,

City Hall, Reno, Nevada, which said envelope con-

tained a certain letter in words and figures shown

by the phototstatic copy thereof attached hereto

and marked Exhibit "BBB" and which said letter

is by this reference incorporated herein and made

a part hereof with like effect and for all purposes

as though set forth in full herein.

AGAINST the peace and dignity of the United

States of America, and contrary to the form of the

statute of the said United States of America in

such case made and provided.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
United States Attorney.

[Endorsed] : A true bill.

W. A. BECHTEL,
Foreman Grand Jury.

Presented in open court and ordered filed Feb.

21, 1928. [55]
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EXHIBIT "A."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks

Unlisted Stocks Telephone

Bonds Kearny 6940

April

22nd

1925

Mr. Gustave A. Johnson,

P. O. Box 53,

Chualar, California.

Dear Mr. Johnson:

We are very pleased to welcome you as a client

of our organization and you will find enclosed our

certificate covering your purchase of twenty shares

of Standard Oil of California stock.

We acknowledge receipt of the following collat-

eral to apply on the above partial payment account

:

—8 Di Giorgio Fruit Corporation units.

We shall always be pleased to serve you and you

may call on us at any time for any information re-

garding securities of any kind concerning which

you desire information.

We particularly ask that you bring to our atten-

tion any item or part of your transaction that is not
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entirely clear or satisfactory, because it is our wish

to have satisfied clients exclusively. We draw to

your attention the enclosed pamphlet, entitled the

Cromwell Simon & Company Plan, which gives

you complete details of our method for the acquisi-

tion of high-grade securities on a partial payment

basis.

Will you be good enough to carefully review the

figures on your certificate of purchase because we

shall be governed entirely by these figures and your

purchase agreement.

We trust to have the pleasure of serving you

again in the near future.

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
ORTON E. GOODWIN

OEG:W. [56]

EXHIBIT "B."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY

CERTIFICATE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY, that CROMWELL
SIMON & COMPANY has this 20th day of AprU

1925, agreed to sell and deliver to Gustave A. John-

son, the following named securities:

20 Shares of S. O. of Calif. Stock fS) $58.50

per share, Total $1170.00, upon which $234.00

has been paid leaving a balance, including ser-

vice charge, of $1029.60.
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Shares of Stock (a) $ per

share, Total $ , upon which $ has

been paid leaving a balance, including service

charge, of $

Shares of Stock (a) % per

share, Total $ , upon which $ has

been paid leaving a balance, including service

charge, of $ ,

on THE CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
PLAN in conformity with terms and conditions

contained in agreement this day executed which

calls for completion of payment of said balance for

the above mentioned securities in ten (10) install-

ments of $102.96 each, together with interest from

the above date on deferred payments at 6%, each

installment to come due every ninety (90) days

from above date.

IT IS FURTHER AGREED, that Gustave A.

Johnson may at his option complete payment at an

earlier date.

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
By V. A. PARKS

This certificate to be surrendered upon delivery of

securities mentioned or cancellation of contract.

[57]

EXHIBIT "C."

[Reverse side of Certificate—Cromwell Simon &

Company.] [58]
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EXHIBIT "D."

THE CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY PLAN.

The Cromwell Simon & Company plan is a method

for the acquisition by easy payments, of high grade

securities, listed on the New York

Making Good Stock Exchange. Fortunes have been

Investments lost by investors in promoted enter-

prises and many strong boxes are

filled with certificates representing ownership in

worthless securities.

By means of the Cromwell Simon & Company plan,

high grade dividend paying securities of the great-

est and most successful corporations of the country

may be acquired on the basis of one-fifth down and

the balance in ten equal quarterly payments.

After the first payment, your account is credited

with all dividends, cash or stock, that are declared

on the stocks you are acquiring.

The plan enables you to control five times the stock

you could purchase for cash—thereby giving five

times the profit possibilities.

Thus if you should have $500, you could buy only 10

shares of stock at $50 a share, but with the Crom-

well Simon & Company plan, you

Easy could buy 50 shares. So that if

Payment Plan your Stock should go to $80 a

share, instead of making $300,

you would make $1500, less the service charge.
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For Example:

Buy 10 shares at $50 $500.00

Initial payment 100.00

Balance due $400.00

Service charge one-tenth of unpaid bal-

ance 40.00

Total $440.00

10 payments due every three months $ 44 . 00

The initial deposit required on listed stocks and

bonds is one-fifth of the total purchase price. Bal-

ance is payable in equal installments in

Initial 30, 60 or 90 days. We charge 6 per cent

Deposit bank interest on deferred balance, which

is usually offset—often more than offset

—

by credit for dividends.

How to Own $60,000

If a man of thirty will buy $100 monthly, or $1,-

200 a year, of standard investments and continue

to reinvest the income of say 8% average a year,

together with his $100 monthly, he should be able to

retire with $60,000 in securities and $300 to $400 or

more monthly income, according to the interest

rate, when he is fifty. This is three times the

amount saved each month during the twenty years.

This tabulation makes no provisions for enhanced

valuation of securities which could conceivably

double or treble the principal. Had investment

been made in leading oil stocks, such as are recom-

mended by CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY,
this result could have been achieved.
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We do not desire you to overbuy. Make your pay-

ments conform with your expected savings. Start

by buying good securities now.

You may order us to sell all or any part of your

holdings at any time.

You may pay up balance at any time, when we

shall deliver to you your securities.

As an alternative, good stocks or bonds may be used

as collateral for the initial or any subsequent pay-

ment, in which event the dividends, both on the

securities used as collateral and owned by you, and

those being purchased through us, go to the buyer's

account.

We guarantee that regardless of the fluctuations

and price of the securities, bought on the Crom-

well Simon & Company plan of easy

Our payments, that under no conditions

Guarantee whatsoever will we call for any money
except the regular payments at the

specified time. Under no circumstances will any

margin calls be made on the purchaser.

For our service charge we charge no commissions

either for buying or selling, but a flat charge of one-

tenth of the unpaid balance which covers the

Our guarantee, carrying charges, brokerage com-

Fee missions for buying and selling, transfer

taxes and the complete service of Cromwell

Simon & Company. The service charge is added

to the unpaid balance and is included in the monthly

payments.
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As soon as the initial payment is made, we issue

to you our formal certificate of purchase, which

shows the securities contracted for and the pay-

ments required thereon.

"When you make final payment on securities, you

will then notify us of the name in full

Transfer and the address of the person to

Instructions whom you want the securities issued

and actual delivery of the stock will

be made as soon as received from the transfer office.

If You Now Own Securities

If the investor already owns sound securities (we

will be glad to give them a rating on request), they

can be used to secure the purchase of additional

sound securities. By depositing these with CROM-
WELL SIMON & COMPANY as security, they

take the place, up to their full loan value, of the

initial or (and) subsequent payment required on the

new purchases, and the balance can be paid on the

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY Plan,

namely, by ten consecutive quarterly installments.

The owner of securities can, without incurring

any obligation whatever and without expense,

merely give us a list of his present holdings, and we

will gladly inform him not only of the present value

of same, but also what other investments we would

suggest buying in addition, and what quantity and

value in new investments his ''collateral" will cover.

[59]
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EXHIBIT "E."

Leading Features

of the

CROMWELL SIMON & CO.

Investment Plan

Available to investors small and large, the following

privileges mark the Cromwell Simon & Company
Investment Plan as a safe and sound method of

acquiring nationally known securities which are

listed on the New York Stock Exchange, in

America's leading corporations.

1 The purchase of sound securities with a nominal

deposit and ten installments every three months, at

prevailing market prices.

2 No other liability, premiums, or payments be-

yond the initial and quarterly payments, with inter-

est at 6 per cent on deferred balance.

3 No margin calls.

4 Diversified investments.

5 Complete control of the account by the investor.

6 Participation in all dividends or stock distribu-

tions while paying off the balance, from the time

they are bought.

7 Privilege to use securities in place of cash for

initial or subsequent payments.

8 Larger payments or payment in full accepted

any time.
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9 When additional securities are purchased, quar-

terly installments on the entire account may be re-

newed for the full 10-payment period, if client so

desires.

10 Paid-in payments may after a time be used as

initial payment on additional investments.

11 Securities, any time paid for, immediately de-

livered in accordance with customer's instructions.

12 Completely satisfactory individual service.

13 Service charge that does not vary; i. e. one-

tenth of unpaid balance.

The

CROMWELL SIMON & CO.

Investment Plan

Announcing a service for the sale to clients, on a

partial payment basis, of gilt-edge investment se-

curities, listed on the New York Stock Exchange.

CROMWELL SIMON & CO.

Private Exchange

Telephone Kearny 6940

Suite 210-224 Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco. [60]
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EXHIBIT "F."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds

July

7th,

1925.

Mr. G. A. Johnson,

P. O. Box 53,

Chualar, Calif.

My dear Friend Gus

—

Your letter of June 24th, addressed to Mr. Will-

iam Wallace, has been brought to my attention. I

believe the questions you ask in this letter were an-

swered in mine of a few days ago to you.

I wish to again assure you that your transaction

with Cromwell Simon & Company will be of finan-

cial benefit beyond any question.

Should you at any time wish information regard-

ing your investment or our standing, please com-

municate with me.

Hoping that I may again have the pleasure of
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serving you to the extent that your capital will be

materially increased, I am
Sincerely yours,

J. W. RANDOLPH.
JWR:R. [61]

EXHIBIT ''G."

Private Exchange 220 Montgomery St.

Kearny 6940 San Francisco, Calif.

Jul. 13, 19

Gustave A. Johnson,

P. O. Box 53

Chualar, Calif.

You are hereby notified that a payment of $102.96

on your purchase of 20 shares of Stand. Oil of Calif,

stock will be due and payable to the undersigned on

July 20, 1925.

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Accounting Department

Payment Due $102.96

Interest $ 18.95

Total $121.91

Less Dividends. . . .$ 10.

Amount Due $111.91 [62]



vs. United States of America. 71

EXHIBIT "H."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds

October

twenty-ninth

1925

Mr. Gustave A. Johnson,

P. O. Box 53,

Chualar, Calif.

Dear Mr. Johnson

:

Your letter of October 26th addressed to Mr. Ran-

dolph has been given to me with a request that I

reply to it.

Due to the fact that a statement showing pay-

ment due on your Standard Oil of California ac-

count was not property addressed, it was returned

by the Post Office authorities, and consequently, an

mavoidable delay occured. A second statement was

mailed to you a few days ago which we feel confi-

dent is in your possession.

It is true that most of the substantial companies'

stocks have been rather quiet market-wise, never-

theless we feel that the improvement in the oil

industry will be reflected in the market price
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of stocks such as you hold, in the not too distant

future. Upon completion of the payments your

contract calls for stock certificates which will be

delivered to you.

We do not have such additional information re-

garding the Di Giorgio Fruit Corporation stock

that you undoubtedly desire, with the exception that

the market value of this stock has increased to quite

some extent during the last few months. As soon as

an earning statement can be had, we should be glad

to send you a special report.

Yours very truly,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY,
By HARRY KASSMIR.

HK/ [63]

EXHIBIT "L"

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds

(Copy)

PAYMENT NOTICE
Gustave A. Johnson,

Chualar, Calif.

A payment of $102,96 will come due on your pur-



vs. United States of America. 73

chase of 20 shares of Standard Oil of California

stock on October 20, 1925.

Payment $102.96.

Interest 17.41

120.37

Dividends .... 10.00

110.37

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY,
1403 Hobart Building;,

San Francisco. [64]

EXHIBIT ''J."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
M41fe Building

S^ Montgomery Street

San Francisco

1403 Hobart Bldg.

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds

May
thirteenth

1926

Mr. J. A. Bardin,

Attorney-at-law,

Salinas, California.

Dear Sir:

The following is an itemized account of Gustav

A. Johnson with Cromwell Simon & Company:



74 Samuel H. Bohinson and J. W. Eandolph

DEBITS:
1925

Apr. 20 20 Standard Oil of Calif. ® SSi/o $1170.00

" " Service charge 93.60

" " 8 Di Georgia Fruit Units Rec'd
" " Interest 18.95

Oct. 20 Interest 17.41

1926

May 5 Interest 37.31

1337.21

CREDITS:
1925

June 15 Div. S. C. D. $ 10.00

July 20 Check 111.91

Sept. 15 Div. 10.00

Dec. 15 Div. 10.00

1926

Mar. 15 Div. 10.00

151.91

Long : 20 Standard Oil of Calif.

;

8 Units Di Georgia Fruit,

If you will apprise me when you desire to liqui-

date this account, we will advise you where to send

the balance due in order to receive delivery of your

20 shares of Standard Oil and 8 Units of Di Georgia

Fruit Co.

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
By HARRY M. KASSMIR.

J.A.B. [65]
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EXHIBIT "K."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds

June 24th, 1925.

Mr. S. Tiger,

1828 Anza St.,

San Francisco, Calif.

Dear Mr. Tiger:

Thank you for your inquiry concerning Dodge

Motors.

The enclosed report will give you very complete

information concerning the Company.

You can unquestionably consider the preferred

stock as a gilt-edge dividend-paying investment, and

the common stock as an investment for profits of

the highest order.

We believe that both the common and preferred

stock will be selling at much higher prices, particu-

larly the common.

You may purchase through us either or both of

these issues on the basis of one-fifth down and the

balance in ten subsequent payments, ninety days

apart.
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We shall be very glad to welcome you as one of

our clients, and believe you cannot possibly do better

than accumulate a few shares of Dodge, either for

investment or profit.

Purchases at the present time should net you

large profits within the near future.

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
ORTON E. GOODWIN.

OEG/B. [66]

EXHIBIT "L."

SPECIAL REPORT
on

DODGE BROTHERS, INC.

Capital Stock

Authorized Outstanding

$7.00 cum. Preferred

(no par) 850,000 sh. 850,000 sh.

Class *'A" Common
(no par) *2,535,000 sh. 1,500,000 sh.

Class "B" Common
(no par) 500,000 sh. 500,000 sh.

Class "A" and Class "B" Common Stock are

identical in aU respects, except that Class "A" has

no voting power and Class "B" has exclusive voting

power.

*0f which 689,285 shares reserved for conversion

of 6% Gold Debentures.
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FUNDED DEBT.

Convertible Gold Debentures, 6% $75,000,000.

GENERAL.

The Company is the third largest manufacturer

of automobiles in the world. It is also a large pro-

ducer of trucks.

In 1914, production of cars was 349, and since

that time nearly 1,300,000 cars have been produced.

In 1924 the Company sold 222,236 cars, or a sales

value of $191,652,446. The Company is a new or-

ganization, having acquired all the assets (except

$14,000,000. cash) of the old Dodge Brothers Com-

pany, the stock of which was not listed on the New
York Stock Exchange. The new company of Dodge

Brothers, Inc., was organized April 8, 1925, and has

not as yet inaugurated dividend payments. Divi-

dends at the rate of $7.00 a share, or an approxi-

mate yield of 9% , will be paid quarterly on the pre-

ferred stock. No announcement has yet been made
regarding dividends on the common stock.

Both the preferred stock and the common stock

can be considered to hold an exceptional market

opportunity.

The stock was originally offered in units of one

share preferred and one of common at $100.00, and

was over-subscribed ten times over.

The stock has now been segregated and both the

preferred and common stock are listed on the New
York Stock Exchange. The preferred stock is not

only a gilt-edge investment, but may be considered
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to have exceptional opportunities for an increase

in price.

Evidence of the expectations of the Board of Di-

rectors of Dodge Brothers, Inc., regarding the Com-

mon stock may be indicated by the arrangements

made to convert the debentures into '*A" stock.

These arrangements are on a sliding scale, as fol-

lows :

—

For the first $5,000,000 debentures converted, 1

share of com. "A" stock for each $30 of debentures.

For the second $5,000,000 debentures converted, 1

share of com. ''A" stock for each $35 of debentures.

For the third $5,000,000 debentures converted, 1

share of com. "A" stock for each $40 of debentures.

For the fourth $5,000,000 debentures converted, 1

share of com. "A" stock for each $50 of debentures.

For the fifth $5,000,000 debentures converted, 1

share of com. ''A" stock for each |60 of debentures.

For the sixth $5,000,000 debentures converted, 1

share of com. "A" stock for each $70 of debentures.

The "B" stock is not for sale.

The old Dodge Company paid 160% in dividends

in 1921, 60% dividends in 1922, no dividends in

1923, 14% in 1924 and 12% in 1925. In addition

it paid a 400% stock dividend in 1922.
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CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY

210-223-224-224A Mills Bldg.

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

Dealers in

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Kearny 6940

Unlisted Stocks Private Exchange

Bonds

The statements presented in this circular while

not guaranteed, have been taken from sources which

we believe to be reliable. [67]

EXHIBIT ''M."

2.

PROFITS.

After allowing for interest on the debentures and

$7.00 per share on the preferred stock, present earn-

ings are running at the rate of $7.00 per share on

the common stock.

It is estimated by President Haynes that the first

six months' earnings for 1925 will be over $14,000,-

000 as against nearly $20,000,000 for the full year of

1924.

Earnings of $14,000,000 for the first six months

would be sufficient to cover:

—
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(1) A full year's interest and sinking fund on

$75,000,000 worth of debentures.

(2) A full year's dividends at $7.00 per share on

the preferred stock.

(3) And leave almost $2,500,000 over.

This would indicate that the second six months'

earnings, together with the $2,500,000 for the first

six months, would be available for dividends on the

common stock.

Based on the new capitalization, in 1924 the Com-

pany earned $18.19 per share on its preferred stock,

$4.76 per share on the common stock and earned its

interest and preferred stock dividends nearly twice

over.

Although the Company is operating at the rate of

1100 cars a day, this is said to be 200 a day behind

the orders received.

RECOMMENDATIONS.

Based on the foregoing facts and figures, we can

unquestionably recommend Dodge Brothers, Inc.,

both preferred and common stocks, as an investment

of the highest order. The preferred stock may be

considered a dividend-paying stock of the highest

order, while the common stock should be bought and

accumulated both for market profit and future divi-

dends.



vs. United States of America. 81

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY

210-223-224-224A Mills Bldg

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

Dealers in

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks

Unlisted Stocks Private Exchange

Bonds Kearny 6940

The statements presented in this circular while

not guaranteed, have been taken from sources which

we believe to be reliable. [68]
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EXHIBIT "N."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities Telephone

All Standard Oil Stocks Kearny 6940

Unlisted Stocks

Bonds

June

30th,

1925.

Mrs. Annie G. Tiger,

1828 Anza Street,

San Francisco.

Dear Mrs. Tiger :

—

Thank you for your order of 100 shares of Dodge

Brothers Class "A" stock, accompanied by deposit

of $25,00.

We shall have very much pleasure in sending you

our formal Certificate of Purchase on this account

as soon as the balance of the initial payment is

made.

In our opinion, you have made a very wise selec-

tion in Dodge "A," as we know of no security on

the New York Stock Exchange which has such an

immediately bright prospect before it as has the
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stock of the amazing Dodge Brothers, now the third

largest automobile manufacturers in the world.

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
ORTON E. GOODWIN.

OEG:R. [69]

EXHIBIT "O."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks

Unlisted Stocks Telephone

Bonds Kearny 6940

July

2nd,

1925.

Mrs. Annie G. Tiger,

1828 Anza Street,

San Francisco.

Dear Mrs. Tiger:

—

We are very pleased to welcome you as a client

of our organization, and you will find enclosed our

Certificate covering your purchase of 100 shares

of Dodge "A" stock.

We shall always be pleased to serve you and you

may call on us at any time for any information

you may desire regarding securities of any kind.
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We particularly ask that you bring to our atten-

tion any item or part of your transaction that is

not entirely clear or satisfactory, because it is our

wish to have satisfied clients exclusively. We draw

to your attention the enclosed pamphlet, entitled

THE CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY IN-

VESTMENT PLAN, which gives you complete in-

formation regarding our method for the acquisi-

tion of high-grade securities on a partial payment

basis.

Will you be good enough to carefully review the

figures on your Certificate of Purchase because we

shall be governed entirely by these figures and

your Purchase Agreement.

We trust to have the pleasure of serving you

again in the near future.

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
ORTON E. GOODWIN.

OEG:R. [70]
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EXHIBIT "P."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds

September

5th,

1925.

Mrs. Annie G. Tiger,

1828 Anza Street,

San Francisco, Calif.

Dear Mrs. Tiger:

—

We are pleased to enclose herewith our Certifi-

cate covering your purchase of fifty shares of

Standard Oil of California stock.

We particularly ask that you bring to our atten-

tion any item or part of your transaction that is

not entirely clear or satisfactory, because it is our

wish to have satisfied clients exclusively.

Trusting that we may have the pleasure of serv-

ing you again in the near future, we are

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
J. W. RANDOLPH.

JWR:R. [71]
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EXHIBIT "Q."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
CERTIFICATE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that CROMWELL
SIMON & COMPANY has this 5th day of Septem-

ber, 1925, agreed to sell and deliver to Annie G.

Tiger the following named securities;

50 Shares of Standard Oil of Cal. Stock ®
$53-3/8 per share, Total $2668.75 upon which

$530.00 has been paid leaving a balance, includ-

ing service charge, of $2352.63.

Shares of Stock <a) $ per

share, Total $ upon which $ has

been paid leaving a balance, including service

charge, of $

Shares of Stock (a) $

per share. Total $ upon which $

has been paid leaving a balance, including ser-

vice charge, of $

on THE CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
PLAN in conforaiity with terms and conditions

contained in agreement this day executed which calls

for completion of pajonent of said balance for

the above-mentioned securities in ten (10) in-

stallments of $235.26 each, together with interest

from the above date on deferred pajnnents at 6%,

each installment to come due every Ninety

(90) days from above date.



vs. United States of America. 8f7

IT IS FURTHER AGREED, that Annie G.

her

Tiger maj^ at \m option complete payment at an

earlier date.

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
By V. A. PARKS.

This certificate to be surrendered upon delivery

of securities mentioned or cancellation of contract.

[72]

EXHIBIT ''R."

[Reverse side of certificate—Cromwell Simon &

Company.] [73]

EXHIBIT "S."

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON
Attorney at Law
Hobart Building

San Francisco

May
fourteenth

1926.

Mrs. Anna Tiger,

1828 Anza St., Apt. 2,

San Francisco,

California.

Dear Mrs. Tiger:

In accordance with my telephone conversation of

today, I am enclosing my personal check in the sum
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of $50.00 on behalf of partial settlement of your ac-

count with Cromwell Simon & Company.

Very truly yours,

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON.
SHR:MC.
1 End.

Received June 1, 192'6. Office—Secy. State. [74]

EXHIBIT ''T."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds

April

First.

1925.

Mr. Ernest C. Hipp,

543 Monroe,

Santa Clara, Calif.

Dear Mr. Hipp:

We are very pleased to welcome you as a client

of our organization and you will find enclosed our

certificate covering your purchase of 40 shares of

Standard Oil of California and 40 shares of Stude-

baker Corporation stock.
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We acknowledge receipt of the following col-

lateral to apply on the above partial payment ac-

count.—30 shares of Durant of California—35

shares of Dnrant of Delaware—and 20 shares of

Hayes Hunt.

We shall always be pleased to serve you and you

may call on us at any time for any information re-

garding securities of any kind concerning which you

desire information.

We particularly ask that you bring to our atten-

tion any item or part of your transaction that is

not entirely clear or satisfactory, because it is our

wish to have satisfied clients exclusively. We draw

to your attention the enclosed pamphlet, entitled

the Cromwell Simon & Company Plan, which gives

you complete details of our method for the acquisi-

tion of high-grade securities on a partial payment

basis.

Will you be good enough to carefully review the

figures on your certificate of purchase because we

shall be governed entirely by these figures and your

purchase agreement.

We trust to have the pleasure of serving you again

in the near future.

Very truly yours,

CEOMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
E. HOFFMAN.

OEG./H. [75]
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EXHIBIT "U."

THE CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY PLAN.

The Cromwell Simon & Company plan is a method

for the acquisition by easy payments, of high grade

securities, listed on the New York

Making Good Stock Exchange. Fortunes have

Investments been lost by investors in promoted

enterprises and many strong boxes

are filled with certificates representing ownership

in worthless securities.

By means of the Cromwell Simon & Companj^ plan,

high grade dividend paying securities of the greatest

and most successful corporations of the country may
be acquired on the basis of one-fifth down and the

balance in ten equal quarterly payments.

After the first payment, your account is credited

with all dividends, cash or stock, that are declared

on the stocks you are acquiring.

The plan enables you to control five times the stock

you could purchase for cash—thereby giving five

times the profit possibilities.

Thus if you should have $500, you could buy only

10 shares of stock at $50 a share, but with the Crom-

well Simon & Company plan, you

Easy could buy 50 shares. So that if

Payment Plan your stock should go to $80 a share,

instead of making $300, you would

make $1500, less the ser\'ice charge.
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For Example:

Buy 10 shares at $50 $500.00

Initial payment 100.00

Balance due $400.00

Service charge one-tenth of unpaid balance . 40 . 00

Total $440.00

10 payments due every three months $ 44.00

The initial deposit required on listed stocks and

bonds is one-fifth of the total purchase price. Bal-

ance is payable in equal installments in

Initial 30, 60 or 90 days. We charge 6 per cent

Deposit bank interest on deferred balance, which

is usually offset—often more than offset

—

by credit for dividends.

How to 0\Yn $60,000.

If a man of thirty will buy $100 monthly, or

$1,200 a year, of standard investments and continue

to reinvest the income of say 8% average a year,

together with his $100 monthly, he should be able

to retire with $60,000 in securities and $300 to $400

or more monthh^ income, according to the interest

rate, when he is fifty. This is three times the

amount saved each month during the twenty years.

This tabulation makes no provisions for enhanced

valuation of securities, which could conceivably

double or treble the principal. Had investment

been made in leading oil stocks, such as are recom-

mended by CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY,
this result could have been achieved.
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We do not desire you to overbuy. Make your pay-

ments conform with your expected savings. Start

by buying good securities now.

You may order us to sell all or any part of your

holdings at any time.

You may pay up balance at any time, when we shall

deliver to you your securities.

As an alternative, good stocks or bonds may be used

as collateral for the initial or any subsequent pay-

ment, in which event the dividends, both on the se-

curities used as collateral and owned by you, and

those being purchased through us, go to the buyer's

account.

We guarantee that regardless of the fluctuations

and price of the securities, bought on the Cromwell

Simon & Company plan of easy pay-

Our ments, that under no conditions what-

Guarantee soever will we call for any money ex-

cept the regular pajrments at the speci-

fied time. Under no circumstances will any margin

calls be made on the purchaser.

For our service charge we charge no commissions

either for buying or selling, but a flat charge of

one-tenth of the unpaid balance which covers

Our the guarantee, carrying charges, brokerage

Fee commissions for buying and selling, transfer

taxes and the complete service of CROM-
WELL SIMON & COMPANY. The service

charge is added to the unpaid balance and is in-

cluded in the monthly payments.
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As soon as the initial payment is made, we issue

to you our formal certificate of purchase, which

shows the securities contracted for and the pay-

ments required thereon.

When you make final payment on securities, you

will then notify us of the name in

Transfer full and the address of the person to

Instructions whom you want the securities issued

and actual delivery of the stock will

be made as soon as received from the transfer office.

If You Now Own Securities

If the investor already owns sound securities (we

will be glad to give them a rating on request), they

can be used to secure the purchase of additional

sound securities. By depositing these with CROM-
WELL SIMON & COMPANY as security, they take

the place, up to their full loan value of the initial or

(and) subsequent pajnuent required on the new pur-

chases, and the balance can be paid on the

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY Plan, namely,

by ten consecutive quarterly installments.

The owner of securities can, without incurring

any obligation whatever and without expense,

merely give us a list of his present holdings, and we
will gladly inform him not only of the present value

of same, but also what other investments we would

suggest buying in addition, and what quantity and

value in new investments his
'

' collateral
'

' will cover.

[76]
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EXHIBIT "V."

,
' Leading Features

of the

CROMWELL SU^ON & CO.

Investment Plan

Available to investors small and large, the following

privileges mark the CROMWELL SIMON & COM-
PANY INVESTMENT PLAN as a safe and sound

method of acquiring nationally known securities

which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange,

in America's leading corporations.

1 The purchase of sound securities with a nominal

deposit and ten installments every three months,

at prevailing market prices.

2 No other liability, premiums, or payments be-

yond the initial and quarterly payments, with in-

terest at 6 per cent on deferred balance.

3 No margin calls.

4 Diversified investments.

5 Complete control of the account by the investor.

6 Participation in all dividends or stock distribu-

tions while paying off the balance, from the time

they are bought.

7 Privilege to use securities in place of cash for

initial or subsequent payments.

8 Larger payments or payment in full accepted

any time.

9 When additional securities are purchased, quar-

terly installments on the entire account may be re-



vs. United States of America. 95

newed for the full lO-payment period, if client so

desires.

10 Paid-in payments may after a time be used

as initial payment on additional investments.

11. Securities, any time paid for, immediately de-

livered in accordance with customer's instructions.

12 Completely satisfactory individual service.

13 Service charge that does not vary; i. e., one-

tenth of unpaid balance.

[In Ink:] Ernest Hipp.

The

CROMWELL SIMON & CO.

Investment Plan.

Announcing a service for the sale to clients, on

a partial payment basis, of gilt-edge investment

securities, listed 07i the Neiv York Stock Exchange.

CROMWELL SIMON & CO.

Private Exchange

Telephone Kearny 6940.

Suite 210-224 Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco. [77]

EXHIBIT "W."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
CERTIFICATE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY, that CROMWELL
SIMON & COMPANY has this 31st day of March,



96 Samuel H. Bohinson and J. W. Randolph

1925, agreed to sell and deliver to Ernest Hipp, the

following named securities:

40 Shares of Std. Oil of Calif. Stock ® $591/4

per share. Total $2370.00 upon which $
bas been paid leaving a balance, including se¥-

v4ee charge, el $
40 Shares of Studebaker Corp. Stock <a)

$431/^ per share. Total $1740.00, upon which

$822.00 has been paid leaving a balance, includ-

ing service charge, of $3616.80.

Shares of Stock ®
per share. Total $ , upon which $

has been paid leaving a balance, including ser-

vice charge, of $

on THE CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
PLAN in conformity with terms and conditions

contained in agreement this day executed which

calls for completion of payment of said balance for

the above mentioned securities in ten (10) install-

ments of $361.68 each, together with interest from

the above date on deferred payments at 6%, each

installment to come due every Ninety (90) days

from above date.

IT IS FURTHER AGREED, that Ernest Hipp

may at his option complete payment at an earlier

date.

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
By V. A. PARKS

This certificate to be surrendered upon delivery

of securities mentioned or cancellation of contract.

[78]
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EXHIBIT "X."

[Reverse side of certificate—Cromwell Simon &

Company.] [79]

EXHIBIT "Y."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Investment Securities

San Francisco

Mch. 31, 1925.

Mr. Ernest Hipp

543 Monroe St.

Santa Clara

We acknowledge receipt from you today of the

following

:

Securities. Clicck Oasfe

35 Durant of Delaware

30 Durant of Calif.

20' Hayes Hunt (common)

which has been credited to your Collateral Buying

account.

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
By ORTON E. GOODWIN

Note : If cash purchase, we shall see that delivery

of securities purchased is promptly made. [80]
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EXHIBIT "Z."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

AU Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds

April

Sixth

1925.

Mr. Ernest Hipp,

543 Monroe,

Santa Clara, Calif.

Dear Mr. Hipp:

Thank you very much for drawing our attention

to the mistake in your certificate. So far as I

know, this is the first one that has ever been made

in this office and I hope it will be the last.

I appreciate very much indeed your drawing this

matter to our attention and am sending you cor-

rected certificate. Will you be good enough to re-

turn the other one to us by registered mail.

The oil markets are getting stronger every day

and I look for a very marked upward price in your

Standard. Pacific Oil this morning jumped nearly

two pomts and we look for Standard Oil to follow-

very speedily.
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It was reported also that the Stiidebaker Corpo-

ration plans to increase its dividend this year,

which should also make that stock sell materially

higher. In any event, I think Stiidebaker absurdly

cheap at the present market.

Again assuring you of our appreciation, we are.

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
ORTON E. GOODWIN

OEG—H. [81]

EXHIBIT "AA."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities Telephone

All Standard Oil Stocks Kearny 6940

Unlisted Stocks June

Bonds 29th

1925.

Mr. Ernest Hipp,

543 Monroe St.,

Santa Clara, Calif.

Dear Mr. Hipp:

—

We beg to acknowledge receipt of your payment

of $361.68.

Enclosed you will find statement covering your

account in full, as per your request, dated up to

July 1, 1925.
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Trusting you will find this perfectly in order, we

are

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
ORTON E. GOODWIN.

OEG:R. [82]

EXHIBIT "BB."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

AU Standard Oil Stocks

Unlisted Stocks Telephone

Bonds Kearny 6940

April

25th.

1925.

Mrs. B. M. Ogier,

1696 Green Street,

San Francisco, Cal.

Dear Mrs. Ogier :—

We want to thank you for your partial payment

account for 50 shares of Studebaker Corporation,

certificate for which is sent you herewith. We al-

ready feel that you and Miss Oliver are old clients

of our organization, and we assure you that every

efeort will be made to give the best attention pos-

sible to your account.
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You may be assured at all times that you will

have the very best attention possible and our sole

interest will be to see that your account is handled

in a mamier that will be productive of profit to you.

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
ORTON E. GOODWIN.

OEG:R. [83]

[Envelope.]

[Stamped] : San Francisco, Calif. Apr. 25, 4

P. M,, 1925. Let's Go! Citizens Military Training

Camps.

[Two Cents U. S. Postage Stamp Attached.]

MRS. B. M. OGIER,
1696 Green Street,

San Francisco, Calif.

[On Reverse Side:]

Return to

Suite —0 Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco, California

9 1000

Hd 877.50

Z 6.00

F 5.00

M 5.00

6.40

3,117.50

2,477.50

1000

500

1

2600

[84]
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EXHIBIT "CC."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks

Unlisted Stocks Telephone

Bonds Kearny 6940

June

13th

1925.

Mrs. B. M. Ogier,

1696 Green Street,

San Francisco, Calif.

Dear Mrs. Ogier :

—

We beg to acknowledge, with much appreciation,

receipt of five shares of Pacific Oil stock, which has

been credited to your account as collateral.

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
ORTON E. GOODWIN.

OEG:R. [85]
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EXHIBIT '*DD."

CHARLES WESLEY COMPANY
Edwards & Wildey Bldg.

Sixth St. and Grand Ave.

Los Angeles

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Bell Telephone

Unlisted Stocks. Connections

Bonds

October

Ninth,

1925.

Miss Clara Oliver,

1696 Green St.,

San Francisco, California.

Dear Miss Oliver:

—

Enclosed you will find check for $400.00. We
are placing same against your account. As Mr.

Parkes has been very busy it has been almost impos-

sible to get your statement out to date, but I will

forward same within the next day or two so that

you can see just how your accounts stand.

I am taking care of the Dodge and Bond, as per

our conversation.

Things here are coming along wonderfully well

and everything points to a huge success, and I

know that this information will make both your-

self and Mrs. Ogier as happy as we are.
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Jack wishes to be remembered to both yourself

and Mrs. Ogier.

With my best wishes to you both, I am
Sincerely yours,

HARRY M. KASSMIR.
HMK:S.

We also entered & ordered Studebaker for you,

will send Certificates along with your statement.

[86]

EXHIBIT ''EE."

CHARLES WESLEY COMPANY
Edwards & Wildey Bldg.

Sixth St. and Grand Ave.

Los Angeles

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Bell Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Connections

Bonds

October 29, 1925.

Miss Clara Oliver,

1696 Green St.,

San Francisco, Calif.

Dear Miss Oliver:

This is to acknowledge receipt of your letter of

October 24th and also advise that a check for divi-

dends payable on the company's stock should be in

your hands on Saturday of this week.

Due to the fact that all records of stock transac-

tions are kept at the company office in Reno, it has
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required quite some time to secure the necessary

figures in order to pro rate the amounts of dividend

checks.

Very shortly Harry will communicate with you,

in all probability by telephone. Not knowing when

he will be in San Francisco I cannot make a more

definite statement. Please remember Harry and

myself very kindly to Mr. Ogier and accept the

best wishes of the organization for yourself.

Sincerely yours,

J. W. RANDOLPH.
JWR:BA. [87]

EXHIBIT ''FF."

THOMAS ALLEN COMPANY
White-Henry-Stuart Building

Investment Securities

Seattle, Wash.

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Elliott 4520

Bonds

March

15

1926

Miss Clara Oliver,

1696 Green St.,

San Francisco, Calif.

Dear Miss Oliver:

I know that you will pardon me for my neglect
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in not writing and not sending you check as prom-

ised, but as things have been so that I have been

unable to devote any time in the office I know you

will overlook my neglect. I have been out of the

city quite a good deal henceforth had to let mat-

ters of importance go.

I am enclosing check for $102.50 which are the

dividends on the 10 Armour A, 5 Pacific Oil, 10

Foster & Kliser and 50 Dodge Preferred.

We are coming along and the volume of business

is increasing daily, and I believe that our success

here is, almost an assured fact.

In reference to the dividends for the firm, I am
writing Mr. Randolph at Los Angeles and will ad-

vise you on this later. With my best wishes to

both Mrs. Ogier and yourself, I am as ever

Sincerely,

HARRY KASSMIR. [88]
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EXHIBIT "GG."

THOMAS ALLEN COMPANY
White-Henry-Stuart Building

Investment Securities

Seattle, Wash.

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Elliott 4520

Bonds

May
5

1926

Miss Clara Oliver,

1696 Green St.,

San Francisco, Cal.

Dear Miss Oliver:

Was indeed very glad to have received your let-

ter of May 3rd., and was also glad that you re-

ceived the check for |25.00.

In reference to the check for the interest from

Los Angeles, if you do not receive this within the

next few days let me know how much the amount

is and I will send you a check for it.

Hope that both yourself and Mrs. Ogier are en-

joying the best of health. With my best wishes to

you both, I am
Very Sincerely Yours,

HARRY KASSMIR. [89]
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EXHIBIT ''HH."

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds

September

nth,

1925.

Mr. W. F. Allen,

1717 Ellis St.,

San Francisco

Dear Mr. Allen:

—

. We wish to thank you for your order for fifty

shares of Studebaker Stock, and you will find en-

closed our certificate covering this purchase.

In this connection, we acknowledge receipt of

fifty shares of Fageol Motors, to apply as collateral

on this account.

Will you please be good enough to check your

Certificate of Purchase carefully, and advise us

immediately in the event there is any item which

is not entirely clear to you or does not meet with

your satisfaction?
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Trusting that we may again be of service to you

in the near future, we are

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
J. W. RANDOLPH.

JWR:R. [90]

EXHIBIT "IL"

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY.
Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Kearny 6940

Bonds
- -

f September

16th,

1925.

Mr. W. F. Allen,

1717 Ellis St.,

San Francisco.

Dear Mr. Allen:

—

Please find enclosed certificate covering your

purchase of 200 shares of Shell Union Oil Stock.

In this connection we acknowledge receipt of

150 shares of Fageol Motors stock to be used as

collateral on the above partial payment account.

Will you please make the usual check of this cer-
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tificate, and advise us in the event of any discrep-

ancy?

Assuring you that we are at your service at all

times, and thanking you for the above purchase, we

are

Very truly yours,

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY,
J. W. RANDOLPH.

JWR:R. [91]

EXHIBIT "JJ."

CHARLES WESLEY COMPANY,
Edwards & Wildey Bldg.

Sixth St. and Grand Ave.

Los Angeles.

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Bell Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Connections

Bonds

November 4, 1925.

Mr. W. F. Allen,

1717 Ellis St.,

San Francisco, Calif.

Dear Mr. Allen:

—

In reply to your letter of November 2nd, please

be advised that the down payment on your pur-

chase agreement for twenty-five shares of Dodge

Brothers Class A Common Stock dated October

14th was taken care of as follows: Two shares of

Liberty National Bank to be used as collateral
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upon which we allowed $141.85, plus dividends due

on Shell Union stock, amounting to $70.00, making

a total as noted above.

Hoping this answers your questions and with a

desire to be of further service to you we are

—

Very truly yours,

CHARLES WESLEY COMPANY,
J. W. RANDOLPH,

General Manager.

JWR.
FCM. [92]

EXHIBIT ''KK."

CHARLES WESLEY COMPANY,
Edwards & Wildey Bldg.

Sixth St. and Grand Ave.

Los Angeles.

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Bell Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Connections

Bonds

October

Thirteenth,

1925.

Miss Mary Esther Durham,

5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, California.

Dear Miss Durham:

—

Yesterday being a holiday, plus the fact that I

had been somewhat indisposed due to having con-
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tracted a cold when last in San Francisco, I de-

layed sending you a check to take care of the mat-

ter that is uppermost in your mind at this time.

Herewith please find check No. 2054, for

$1500.00, made in your name. No doubt you will

immediately deposit this with your bank, which is

the proper thing to do, and if you will be good

enough to take up the collateral, in the shape of

Pacific Lumber Company stock, and send to me
immediately I will appreciate it very much.

I hope you will please understand the great

amount of work both Harry and I have had to take

care of during the past thirty days and, therefore,

make allowances for what, seemingly, was an un-

pardonable oversight.

It may be that our next trip to San Francisco

will not be made for several days. In that event,

please take time to write us.

With best wishes and kindest regards from

Harry and myself.

Sincerely yours,

J. W. RANDOLPH.
JWR:S. [93]
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EXHIBIT "LL."

CHARLES WESLEY COMPANY
Edwards & Wildey Bldg.

Sixth St. and Grand Ave.

Los Angeles

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Bell Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Connections

Bonds

October 28, 1925.

Miss Mary Esther Durham,

5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, Calif.

Dear Miss Durham:

I know you will be very happy to learn that the

expected company dividend check will be in your

hands on Saturday of this week.

It is highly probable that Harry wiU be in the

bay region within the next few days, so therefore

you may expect a 'phone call.

The matter of taking up the loan secured by Pa-

cific Lumber Company stock may be discussed thor-

oughly and to your satisfaction I am sure.

Our business is growing very rapidly and I hope

you and Aunt Emily will be able to work out a plan

so that my suggestion regarding your visiting this

city will be acted upon before very many days.
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With sincerest of good wishes to you and Aunt

Emily and hoping to visit you real soon, I am
Very sincerely,

J. W. RANDOLPH.
JWE:BA. [94]

EXHIBIT ''MM."

CHARLES WESLEY COMPANY
Edwards & Wildey Bldg.

Sixth St. and Grand Ave.

Los Angeles.

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Bell Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Connections

Bonds

February 2, 1926.

Miss Mary Esther Durham,

5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, California.

My dear Miss Durham:

I am extremely sorry to learn, from your letter

of January 30, that Mrs. Beans has been ill and I

sincerely hope she will rapidly regain her normal

health.

I am rather surprised to learn that the "all im-

portant" matter regarding a check has not been

taken care of. It was my understanding that this,

as well as other matters that have to do with affairs

in the Bay region were being taken care of by Mr.

Kassimir.
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I will immediately communicate to Mm the im-

portant facts of your letter. In the meantime

please remember me kindly to Mrs. Beans and ac-

cept my best wishes for yourself.

Yours sincerely,

J. W. RANDOLPH.
JWR:M. [95]

EXHIBIT "NN."

THOMAS ALLEN COMPANY
White-Henry-Stuart Building

Investment Securities

Seattle, Wash.

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks

Unlisted Stocks

Bonds

Telephone

Elliott 4520

February

19

1926

Miss Mary Esther Durham,

5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, California.

Dear Mary Esther

:

To say that I was happy to hear from you and

news about Aunt Emily would be using too mild a

term.

You remember when I was over to see yourself

and Amit Emily I spoke to you that we had in mind

opening up here in the North, and I am happy to
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report to you that everything here is going along

wonderfully well.

I did not understand at the time that we spoke

about the $1500.00 that it would be a necessity to

lift that loan at the bank, so I did not prepare my-

self for that reason, but if it is a case of necessity

I will try to arrange to forward this $1500.00 on to

you. I am enclosing check for $241.00 on account of

dividends.

I am glad to hear that Aunt Emily is gaining and

tell her not to worry so much because all is well that

ends well. I can assure you that we are doing all

possible so that we may all enjoy success.

In reference to the stock Certificates I still have

them as I really was too busy to have the names

changed properly, but will do so in the very near

future and send them to you.

Just believe me when I say that I hope that both

Aunt Emily and yourself will have nothing to worry

about. I will keep you informed of all activities.

With my best wishes and regards to both Aunt

Emily and yourself, I am
Sincerely yours,

HARRY KASSMIR.
HMK:B.
end.

[Envelope.]

Special Delivery.

[Stamped:] Seattle, Wash., Feb. 19, 5 P. M.,

1926, Terminal Sta.
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[Twelve Cents U. S. Postage Stamps Attached.]

MISS MARY ESTHER DURHAM,
5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, California. [96]

EXHIBIT "00."

THOMAS ALLEN COMPANY
White-Henry-Stuart Building

Investment Securities

Seattle, Wash.

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Elliott 4520

Bonds

March

15

• 1926

Miss Mary Esther Durham,

5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, Calif.

Dear Aunt Emily and Mary Esther,

You must pardon me for not answering your

letter of March 7th immediately, but as I have been

so busy and out of the city working I really have not

had an opportunity to answer your letter the way

that I wanted to.

I shall see that you have your dividends in your

hands by April 5th and wiU do everything possible

to see that you will not have to worry about your

bank loan on May 17th.
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I know how this loan has worried both Aunt

Emily and yourself and feel that I am partly re-

sponsible for a good deal of the annoyance that was

caused you.

I should say that you are not unreasonable in

asking me anything you would like to know and I

am only too glad to answer so that you may under-

stand everything.

Business here is coming along as well as could be

expected for a new organization, and I can assure

you that we are working mighty hard, as you can

realize, to make a success of OUR business. I do

not see anything to worry about in the future as

from all indications we are going to be a huge suc-

cess.

I certainly hope that Aunt Emily is coming along

and that by the time you receive this letter she has

fully recovered from her last attack.

We have had some unfortunate happenings again

in our family. My Dad was taken sick and they

thought he had a tumor on his liver and he was sent

to the Mayo Clinic at Rochester, but as they have

diagnosed his trouble as gall stones I do not feel

worried. My Mother is also bothered with her

heart, so you can see we all have sickness but view-

ing it as Aunt Emily does I know everything will be

all right.

Nothing else for today excepting my best wishes

to yourself and Aunt Emily, I am
Sincerely yours,

HARRY M. KASSMIR.
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[Envelope.]

Special Delivery.

[Stamped]: Seattle, Wash., Mar. 15, 7:30 P. M.,

1926. Terminal Sta. Lets Oo! Citizens' Mili-

tary Training Camp.

[Two Cents U. S. Postage Stamp Attached.]

MISS MARY ESTHER DURHAM,
5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, Calif. [97]

EXHIBIT "PP."

CHARLES WESLEY COMPANY
Investment Securities

609 So. Grand Avenue

Los Angeles

Telephone

Trinity 1371

June 26, 1926.

Dear Mrs. Beans:

Have been anxiously waiting a reply to my letter

of several days ago, which was in answer to yours

of June 6th.

The last letter I had from Mr. Kassmir dated

June 16th, stated he had received a letter from

Miss Durham and he would reply to it immediately.

Since then I've heard nothing.

Write me if you please and tell me all the news.

Kindest regards to you and Miss Durham.

Most sincerely,

J. W. RANDOLPH.
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[Envelope.]

[Stamped]: Pasadena, Jun. 26, 3 P. M., 1926.

Calif.

Charles Wesley Company
Investment Securities

609 So. Grand Avenue

Los Angeles

MRS. EMILY A. BEANS,
5838 Birch Court,

Oakland,

Calif. [98]

EXHIBIT "QQ."

THOMAS ALLEN COMPANY
White-Henry-Stuart Building

Investment Securities

Seattle, Wash.

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Unlisted Stocks Elliott 4520

Bonds

July,

7

1926

Miss Mary Esther Durham,

5838 Birch Court

Oakland, Calif.

Dear Mary Esther

:

I did not write you because I really expected to

come to San Francisco for over the 4th, but I found
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it was impossible for me to get away at this time.

It really is with regret that I say this, but I hope

that it wont be very long befoi-e I will be down to

see both yourself and Aunt Emily and to look over

the gladeolis that 1 know you have and are beauti-

ful.

It certainly makes me feel happy to know that

Aunt Emily is gaining and I hope it wont be long-

before she is back into the condition that I would

like to see her in.

If you will send me a letter upon receipt of this

and let me know just the amount of that dividend,

I will send you a check immediately. Hope that

both yourself and Aunt Emily are in the best of

health and that you enjoyed a pleasant 4th of

July. I am with my best wishes to you both, as

ever

Sincerely yours,

HARRY KASSMIR.

[Envelope.]

[Stamped] : Seattle, Wash., Jul. 8, 9 A. M., 1926.

Terminal Sta.

[Two Cents U. S. Postage Stamp Attached.]

MISS MARY ESTHER DURHAM
5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, Calif. [99]
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EXHIBIT "RR."
Seattle, Wash.

March 8th, 1927.

Dear Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham

:

I am enclosing a copy of letter that I am sending

to Mr. Allen, the attorney that wrote me regarding

your transaction.

I am extremely sorry that it was necessary for

you to place this matter in the hands of an attorney.

I know that both of you appreciate just how hard

I have been trying to clear up the sad mess that

Mr. Simon left in San Francisco for us all and you

can believe me, I have had my hands full. I know

that it will only be a matter of a short time before

I will be able to take care of a part of the amount

due you folks. I extremely regret the delay be-

cause of knowing the situation that you both are

in, I can only say that I promise to do my level best

to clear this up. I hope that you will look upon this

matter so that you will withdraw it from the at-

borneys hands.

I can imagine the beautiful sunshine that you

folks are enjoying in Oakland and can picture in

my minds eye the beautiful flowers around your

home, wish I was there to enjoy them. With the

trials and tribulations that I have had the past year

I certainly do wish that I was back South. I ex-

pect to make a trip to San Francisco in the very

near future and you can bet I wall call upon you

when I get there.
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With my kindest and best wishes to both of you, I

am
Sincerely yours,

HAERY KASSMIR. []00]

EXHIBIT "SS."

Seattle, Wash.

March 8th, 1927.

Mr. John J. Allen, Jr., Atty.,

902 Syndicate Bldg.,

Oakland, Calif.

Dear Mr. AUen:

No doubt you received my telegram and wondered

why you have not received this letter sooner but

immediately upon sending you telegram I received

a message calling me out of the city and did not re-

turn until this morning. I hope you will pardon

the delay in answering.

Regarding Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham, it has

been impossible for me to check up on the amount

due them because all of these records were kept in

San Francisco and as I intend making a trip to

San Francisco very shortly I then will be able to

check up the amount and will also call upon you so

that we may be able to go into this matter thor-

oughly. Allow me to give you a brief history of the

transaction between Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham
and the firm of Cromwell Simon & Company.

Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham had entered into

contract with the firm of Cromwell Simon & Com-

pany for the purchase of different stocks (I do not
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remember the dates but will give them all to you

later). Because of reputation that Mr. Simon

had, imbeknown to me or to my associates there,

the Corporation Department called Cromwell Simon

& Company before them for a hearing and re-

voked their permit. Knowing that this firm was

trying to operate legitimately, my associates and

myself decided to take this matter into Superior

Court. About the time of the hearing before Su-

perior Court, Mr. Simon decided that it would be

a good thing for him to skip out with all funds

available, which he did.

Mr. Randolph and myself called upon Mrs. Beans

and Miss Durham and explained the situation to

them and as we have always felt and I feel at the

present time that they are very dear friends and we

did not want them to suffer any loss, this transac-

tion was made a loan so that I could repay the

amount due them.

I have been doing everything possible so that

this matter can be settled and hope to be able to

send a substantial amount to these folks within the

very near future.

I know that if you will take this matter up with

Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham they will look upon it

this way as they understand all of the circum-

stances. Hoping to receive a favorable reply from

you, I am
Sincerely yours, [101]
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EXHIBIT ''TT."

Seattle, Wash.

March 8th, 1927.

Mr. John J. Allen, Jr., Atty.,

902 Syndicate Bldg.,

Oakland, Calif.

Dear Mr. Allen

:

No doubt you received my telegram and won-

dered why you haA^e not received this letter

sooner but immediately upon sending you tele-

gram I received a message calling me out of

the city and did not return until this morning. I

hope you will pardon the delay in answering.

Regarding Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham, it has

been impossible for me to check up on the amount

due them because all of these records were kept

in San Francisco and as I intend making a trip

to San Francisco very shortly I then will be able

to check up the amount and will also call upon you

so that we may be able to go into this matter thor-

oughly. Allow me to give you a brief history of the

transaction between Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham

and the firm of Cromwell Simon & Company.

Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham had entered into

contract with the firm of Cromwell Simon & Com-

pany for the purchase of different stocks (I do not

remember the dates but will give them all to you

later). Because of reputation that Mr. Simon

had, unbeknown to me or to my associates there,

the Corporation Department called Cromwell Simon
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& Company before them for a hearing and revoked

their permit. Knowing that this firm was trying

to operate legitimately, my associates and myself

decided to take this matter into Superior Court.

About the time of the hearing before Superior

Court, Mr. Simon decided that it would be a good

thing for him to skip out with all funds available,

which he did.

Mr. Randolph and myself called upon Mrs. Beans

and Miss Durham and explained the situation to

them and as we have always felt and I feel at the

present time that they are very dear friends and we

did not want them to suffer any loss, this transac-

tion was made a loan so that I could repay the

amount due them.

I have been doing everything possible so that this

matter can be settled and hope to be able to send a

substantial amount to these folks within the very

near future.

I know that if you will take this matter up with

Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham they will look upon

it this way as they understand all of the circum-

stances. Hoping to receive a favorable reply from

you, I am
Sincerely yours,

H. M. KASSMIR.

[Envelope.]

Special Delivery

[Twelve Cents U. S. Postage Stamp Attached.]
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[Stamped:] Seattle, Wash. Mar. 8, 3 P. M.,

1927. Terminal Sta. Let's Go! Citizens' Mili-

tary Training Camps.

MR. JOHN J. ALLEN, Jr.,

Attorney at Law,

902 Syndicate Bldg.,

Oakland, Calif. [102]

EXHIBIT *'UU."

High Grade Investment Securities

All Standard Oil Stocks Telephone

Bonds Kearny 6940

CROMWELL SIMON & CO.

Suite 212—Mills Building

220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

The Romance of Studebaker

Do you realize that the stock of the Studebaker

Corporation is now paying dividends that yield 9%
a year—$1.00 a share every three months. Do you

realize its earnings last year were over $7.00 a share

and they are now running at the rate of $11.00 a

share for 1925. This indicates increased dividends

and a much higher price for the stock.

ADVANCED FROM $34 TO $151 PREVIOUSLY

The market character of Studebaker Corporation

stock is fairly indicated by the advance of the so-

called "old" stock (prior to the big stock divi-
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dends) from $34 to $151 per share in the last great

bull market—1918 to 1919. It is as big an oppor-

tunity below $50 today as it was at $34 a few years

ago, considering the greatly added values through

the millions of dollars of earnings "plowed back" to

the corporation. Its sales and profits are increas-

ing by leaps and bounds and every factor that

caused the old stock to advance is in progress again.

WONDERFUL DIVIDENDS
Throughout the entire career of Studebaker and

particularly during the past 50 years, it has dis-

tributed enormous cash and stock dividends. Since

the incorporation of the motor corporation in 1911,

it has paid over $70 per share in cash dividends and

another 58%' in stock dividends. The stock divi-

dends were far more valuable than the cash.

BE A PARTNER
Many persons have purchased shares in new auto-

mobile companies. Why not be a partner in one of

the oldest and strongest of them all? There are

few concerns in this country 73 years in business

continuously, in which it is possible to buy an in-

terest at anything like a reasonable price. Buy
shares in Studebaker. Be a partner in this great

enterprise.

INVESTMENT IS SAFE
Everyone knows that Studebaker is one of the

greatest motor companies of the world. Hence it is

a fine, safe investment. The stock is listed on the

New York Stock Exchange and you can find out its

value any day simply by looking at your daily
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paper. Act at once, as Studebaker is rising, due to

enormous increase in announced profits, as a result

of greater sales for 1925.

It is interesting to figure the present value of an

original 100 shares Studebaker traded in on the

Exchange
; $3,675 for 100 shares in 1912 would have

been increased to $10,065 by subscriptions to stock

offered in 1914 and 1920, while the original 100

shares would have increased to 270 by these sub-

scriptions, as well as stock dividends of 33 1/3% in

1920, and 25% in 1922. The owner has also re-

ceived continuous dividends from 1915, totaling

$69.50 a share, and representing a cash value in

excess of $10,000 on his holdings. In other words,

during twelve years, the original investment has

more than trebled in value.

Can you afford to overlook this opportunity '?

POST CARD.

[Two Cents U. S. Postage Stamp Attached.]

This Card is

already

signed

for your

convenience

Mail it

To-day!

CROMWELL SIMON & COMPANY
220 Montgomery Street

San Francisco

California. [103]
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EXHIBIT "VV."

I should like to have complete information re-

garding the dividends and investment possibilities

of

THE STUDEBAKER CORPORATION

Send me your report and full information how I

can buy this stock.

This card

will bring

full details

without

obligation

on your part

PHIL A. NAGAN
3126 Clay

City

[Envelope.]

[Stamped]: San Francisco, Calif., May 16, 1:30

P. M., 1925. Let's go! Citizens Military Training

Camps.

Let's go! Citizens Military Training Camps,

[One Cent U. S. Postage Stamp Attached.]

Is your

money

bringing

with safety

9% [104]
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EXHIBIT ''WW."

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON
Attorney at Law
Hobart Building

San Francisco, California.

July 25, 1925.

Mr. Leroy F. Pike,

City Attorney,

Reno, Nevada.

Re: Cromwell & Company, Inc.

Dear Mr. Pike:

—

I am enclosing original and two copies of the

articles of incorporation of Cromwell & Company,

Inc.—the name which we have decided upon for the

business now being conducted as Cromwell Simon

Company, and also our check in the sum of Two
Hundred Dollars, for necessary filing expenses, fees,

etc. I would appreciate your looking through the

articles to determine whether they are in good form

in your opinion, and filing them, and immediately

sending to me copies certified by the Secretary of

State.

Will you please provide for the three dummies,

and I will write you later as to what should be done

in reference to the holding of meetings and the

passage of resolutions.

Mr. Kassmir is going to subscribe for a large

block of the preferred stock, and the probabilities

are that the common shares will be issued for ser-

vices.
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Please send me also an itemized statement from

the Secretary of State, showing what the disburse-

ments to him were, so that I may be informed what

the fees are for my future guidance. In the event

that any additional moneys are required in excess

of the check enclosed please expend the money

from your own funds and I will guarantee that you

will be reimbursed. Also advise me what your fees

in reference to the matter are.

You will note that we have decided to have the

resident agent in our own Reno office, which, I

think, is the most practical way of handling the

situation in as much as we are actively doing busi-

ness there. In the event you desire any further in-

formation or advice do not hesitate to wire or phone

me at my expense.

Let me recall to you your promise that you would

give me the address of the lady who owned the pros-

pective hotel site in Reno. I would appreciate

your letting me know this immediately so that if

we are to see her we can call upon her before our

next trip to Reno.

Mr. Kassmir and myself appreciate very much

your hospitality, and hope to be able to reciprocate

upon your next [105]

EXHIBIT "XX."

L. F. P. 7/25/25 Page 2.

visit here.

I am not unmindful of my promise that a certain

vintage would be reserved for you. It is probable
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that we shall call upon you the latter part of next

week, probably about Friday or Saturday, which

will be July 31st or August 1st,

Yours cordially,

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON.
SHR:FN
Encs. [106]

EXHIBIT "YY."

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON
Attorney at Law
Hobart Building

San Francisco

August

twenty-sixth

1925.

LeRoy F. Pike, Esq.,

Attorney-at-law,

City Hall,

Reno, Nevada.

Dear Sir:

This will tardily acknowledge your letter accom-

panying the minutes of Cromwell & Company and

Cary & Company, which are made out in very good

shape. Will you please arrange to have the fol-

lowing certificates made out:

First : Igstfe certiorates represeijti^g 2,000 shaj

of^-pfefered>n^500 share^-ofcommon capital stock

of CrojH^U & CompA^fto Harry J5ilr^assniir;
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Second: Transfer on your records the following

shares and to the following individuals from the

above certificates: 140 shares-of—the-preferred-

lon, to Mrs. B. M^^jQ^ier and

'lararOIiyerr^ joint owners"with-^ifnt of survivor^

Third: Transfer^the follo^^g shares to.^tlle fol-

lowing indfviduals^fom the certifieates designated

in,praragra]m,>'±'"'irst " : 40 shA-rtis preferred and 10

shares pf^nunon to C]>ai^ Oliver;

Fourth: Transfer the following shares to the in-

dividuals named from the certificates designated in

paragraph "First" issued to Harry M. Kassmir,

160 shares preferred, 40 shares common to Emily

A. Beans

;

Fifth: Transfer the following shares to the fol-

lowing individuals from the certificates originally

iooued under paragraph "First," 274 shares—pre-

ferred and 269 common to Emily A. Beans and

Esther Mary Durham as joint owners with right of

survivorship. [107]
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EXHIBIT "ZZ."

LeRoy F. Pike, Esq. 8-26-25 Page 2

"Will you please issiie these certificates and mail

them down to this office at your earliest convenience.

Very truly yours,

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON.
Kearny 4357.

SHR:MC.
Pg—1378 Fed. Code-

Original issue 2000 shares preferred at $25.00=

$50,000 at 5^=$25.00 tax.

500 shares common no par at 5^ per share=$25.00

Transfer issue

.

3500 at 2^= 70^

140 pref, at $25=
35 shares common—no par 70^'

40 " pref.—at 25—at 2= 20^

10 " common—no par at 2=20^^

160 pref.—at 25^=at 2— 80^

40 shares common 80^

274—pref.— 136

269—common— 5.38

[108]
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EXHIBIT "AAA."

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON
Attorney at Law
Hobart Building

San Francisco

August

thirty-first

1925.

Leroy F. Pike, Esq.,

Attorney-at-law,

Reno, Nevada.

Dear Mr. Pike:

In re CROMWELL, INC.

Several days ago I wrote you asking you to issue

various certificates in accordance with the instruc-

tions contained in my letter. My client has been

besieging me continuously since then because he

in turn has been importuned for delivery of the cer-

tificates. I would appreciate your doing what you

can to expedite this matter.

Will you please take care of the affixing of reve-

nue stamps to the original certificates, also the

transfers. I need hardly say that with reference to

this expense as well as all expenses, that I leave all

disbursements to your own good judgment, and you

may be assured that they will be met upon the ren-

dering of an account by you.

By the way, several of us reserved a certain Mon-

day evening for you because we expected you to be

with us on that occasion, and we were much disap-
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pointed because you failed to get in toucli with us.

Won't you let me know when you are coming next

to San Francisco.

In appreciation of your good offices, I am,

Cordially yours,

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON.
Kearny 4357.

SHR:MC. [109]

EXHIBIT "BBB."

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON, Esq.

Attorney at Law
Hobart Building

San Francisco, Calif.

September

eighteenth

1925

LeRoy F. Pike, Esq.,

Attorney-at-law,

City Hall,

Reno, Nevada.

In re CROMWELL & COMPANY, INC.

Dear Mr. Pike

:

I am enclosing Certificates Nos. 3 and 5 of the

preferred, and Nos. 54 and 55 of the common shares

in the above Company, heretofore issued, for can-

cellation because there was an error on my part in

the instructions to you.

Please issue in their place two certificates:—one

representing 48^ shares el preferred, ftftd the ether
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representing 121 shares of the common, making both

of them out to Emily A. Beans and Mary Esther

Durham, as joint owners with right of survivorship.

I believe that no revenue stamps are necessary on

these, because they are merely to replace certificates

issued erroneously and do not in any sense consti-

tute a transfer.

I appreciate very much your wire with reference

to my brief case and your speed in sending it on to

me.

I am also in receipt of the two compressed saw-

dust blocks which have been on my desk the last

couple of days and which have been examined by

a number of people. What it's commercial possi-

bilities are I have not yet been able to determine,

but I am advised by one engineer that one of the

difficulties to be met in marketing a product of that

kind as fuel, is in securing an advantageous classi-

fication and rate from the carriers. The railroads

are themselves interested in fuel deposits and might

look upon your briquet as a competitive product.

It has been stated to me that this was one of the

difficulties encountered in marketing the coa^ bri-

quets manufactured formerly by Los Angeles Gas

& Electric Company, I am
Yours very truly,

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON
SHR:MC.
LFP:AP. [110]
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At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Saturday, the 10th day of March, in

the year of our Lord one thousand nine hun-

dred and twenty-eight. Present: The Honor-

able A. F. ST. SURE, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—MARCH 10, 1928—AR-
RAIGNMENT, ETC.

The defendants Samuel H. Robinson and J. W.
Randolph were present with H. H, Harris, Esq.,

their attorney, and the defendant Orton E, Good-

win was present with John A. McGee, Esq., his at-

torney. On motion of J. L. Sweene}^, Esq., Asst.

U. S. Atty., the defendants were arraigned, stated

their true names to be as contained in indictment,

and waived reading of said indictment. On motion

of attorneys for said defendants, it is ordered that

this case be continued to March 36, 1928, to plead.

On motion of attorneys for the defendants, and

upon filing the consent of the Surety Company on

the bonds of said defendants, IT IS ORDERED
that said defendants Samuel H, Robinson, J. W.
Randolph and Orton E. Goodwin be and are hereby

permitted to leave the jurisdiction of this court

until March 26, 1928, in accordance with an order

this day signed and filed.
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Case continued to March 26, 192f8, for entry of

plea of defendant Harry M, Kassmir. [Ill]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

DEMURRER OF DEFENDANT SAMUEL H.

ROBINSON.

Comes now the defendant, Samuel H. Robinson,

and demurs to the indictment heretofore presented

and on file herein, and to each and every count

thereof on the following grounds, to wit

:

I.

That said indictment does not, nor any count

thereof, state facts sufficient to constitute a public

offense against the United States of America.

II.

That the indictment and each and every count

thereof fails to advise the defendant herein suffi-

ciently of the charge or charges that he is called

upon to meet and does not contain averments suffi-

cient to enable him to intelligently prepare for his

trial and that in said behalf, each count thereof is

ambiguous, unintelligible and insufficient in the fol-

lowing particulars:

1. That the paragraph beginning at line 12 and

page 1 of said indictment herein, is unintelligible,

ambiguous and meaningless and that the meaning

intended to be conveyed thereby camiot be ascer-

tained therefrom. [112]

2. That with reference to the paragraph begin-

ning on line 29 and page 1 of said indictment, it
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cannot be ascertained therefrom what part or con-

nection, if any, the defendant, Samuel H. Robinson,

had with said scheme or in what way he devised

or intended by means of the allegations thereof to

take part in said scheme to defraud.

3. That with further reference to said last-men-

tioned paragraph in said indictment, it cannot be

ascertained therefrom whether the acts specified

therein were actually performed.

4. That the paragraph beginning with line 21

of page 2 of said indictment is uncertain and am-

biguous in that it camiot be ascertained therefrom,

— (a) What relation, if any, Cromwell & Company,

Inc., had to the alleged scheme or device, (b)

Whether the said Samuel H. Eobinson did in fact

mail said Articles of Incorporation to LeRoy F.

Pike at Reno, Nevada, (c) Whether said Robin-

son did request said Pike to obtain dummy direc-

tors, (d) In what manner said acts were unlaw-

ful or in violation of the statutes of the United

States or any state or territory thereof, (e) What
relation, if any, the said acts had to said alleged

scheme or artifice to defraud.

5. With relation to paragraphs beginning on

line 5 and ending on line 12 of page 3 of said in-

dictment, it does not appear and cannot be ascer-

tained therefrom,—(a) Whether it was part of the

scheme or artifice to defraud that defendant, Kass-

mir, should offer to subscribe or should pay the

sum of Fifty Thousand ($50,000.00) DoUars cash

for said stock, or whether he should pay the said

Fifty Thousand ($50,000.00) DoUars. (b) That
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the falsifying or negativing paragraph thereof does

not allege that the said Kassmir did not [113]

offer to subscribe, (e) That said negativing para-

graph states, ''as defendant then and there well

knew," but does not state which defendant then and

there well knew that Kassmir did not pay Fifty

Thousand (|50,000.00) Dollars cash, (d) That it

cannot be ascertained therefrom who seconded,

offered and/or passed said resolution, that is to

say whether it Mas Cromwell, Simon and Company,

Cromwell and Company or some other board, body

or organization, or what relation said resolution

had to said scheme or artifice, (e) That generally

it cannot be ascertained in what manner said acts

were a part of or in furtherance of said scheme or

artifice to defraud.

6. With relation to paragraph beginning on

line 13 and ending on line 27 of page 3 of said in-

dictment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom, nor

from any part of said indictment, (a) What is

meant or intended to be meant by '

' Cromwell Simon

and Co. Investment Plan," (b) What false and

fraudulent representations or promises were made

or intended to be made.

That the statements made therein are recitals of

conclusions of law only and not allegations of fact.

7. With relation to paragraph beginning on line

5 of page 4, it cannot be ascertained therefrom nor

from any part of said indictment, what false repre-

sentations were to be used to induce and/or per-

suade the victims to purchase high-grade stock un-

der the alleged Crom.well & Simon Co. Investment
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Plan,— (a) What the Cromwell & Simon Co. In-

vestment Plan was.

8. With relation to paragraph beginning on line

14 and ending on line 22 of page 4 of said indict-

ment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom nor from

any part of said indictment,— [114] (a) What
time is referred to by the words "existing condi-

tions." (b) What is meant by the language, "al-

luring, exaggerated, misleading, false and fraudu-

lent representations," that to say what the alluring,

exaggerated, misleading false and fraudulent rep-

resentations related to. (c) What the language,

"should raise in said victims hopes and expecta-

tions of profit and reward far beyond the limits

warranted by existing conditions" relates to, or

what connection same had, if any, with said artitice

or scheme to defraud.

9. With relation to paragraphs beginning with

line 24 and ending with line 31 of page 4, it can-

not be ascertained therefrom nor from any part of

the said indictment,—(a) In what respect it is al-

leged that Cromwell Simon & Co. was a reputable

company, that is to say, reputed for what, (b)

That the negativing and falsifying clause does

not deny or allege that Cromwell Simon & Co.

was a reputable brokerage company, (c) That

it cannot be ascertained what is meant by "of

the character of a bucket shop." (d) That the

allegations in said paragraph as to representations

were only representations of opinion and "puffing"

permitted by law.

10. With reference to the paragraph beginning
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on line 1 and ending on line 7 of page 5 of said

indictment, it cannot be ascertained whether in

truth or in fact it was or was not the business of

Cromwell Simon & Co. to sell to alleged victims

high-grade corporation stocks and other securities,

particularly on the partial payment plan.

11. With relation to paragraph 3 on page 5 of

said indictment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom,

nor from any part of said indictment what is meant

by,—(a) Cromwell Simon & Co. Investment Plan.

[115]

12. With relation to paragraph 4 on page 5 of

said indictment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom

nor from any part of said indictment when or in

what manner the alleged victims would draw any

dividends or interest declared on high-grade stock

or other securities so purchased and held by them,

that is to say, said victims, or in what manner, if

at all, this defendant would or could become pos-

sessed of said dividends or interest, or any of said

defendants or in what manner said Cromwell Simon

& Co. could or would become possessed of said divi-

dends or interest thereon.

13. With relation to paragraph 5 appearing

on page 6 of said indictment, it cannot be ascer-

tained therefrom, nor from any part of said indict-

ment what relation the following words, to wit:

"that an investor subscribing for such corporate

stock, or other securities, through the said company,

would have the privilege of selling the same at any

time he desired" would have as to the alleged

scheme or artifice to defraud in this, that it is not
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negatived or falsified that said investors referred

to in said indictment had such privilege.

14. That Count 1 of said indictment does not

state facts sufficient to constitute an oifense against

the United States of America ; that said count does

not allege that the letter set forth in said count was

ever placed or caused to he placed in the United

States mail.

15. That with respect to the letters referred to

in each and all of the counts of said indictment,

only the following are purported to be signed by

or referred to the said defendant, Samuel H. Rob-

inson: The letter referred to in [116] Count

Eleven and marked Exhibit " S, " the letters referred

to in Count Thirty-five and marked "WW" and

"XX," the letters referred to in Count Thirty-six

and marked "YY" and "ZZ," the letter referred

to in Count Thirty-seven and marked "AAA" and

the letter referred to in Count Thirty-eight and

marked "BBB," and it does not appear in the said

indictment or any of the counts thereof what con-

nection, if any, said Samuel H. Robinson had with

the mailing of each and all of the exhibits referred

to in this indictment and all of the various counts

thereof.

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON,
Defendant.

H. H. HARRIS,
Attorney for Samuel H. Robinson.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 26, 1928. [117]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

DEMURRER OF DEFENDANT J. W. RAN-
DOLPH.

Comes now the defendant, J. W. Randolph, and

demurs to the indictment heretofore presented and

on file herein, and to each and every count thereof

on the following grounds, to wit:

I.

That said indictment does not, nor any count

thereof, state facts sufficient to constitute a pub-

lic offense against the United States of America.

II.

That the indictment and each and every count

thereof fails to advise the defendant herein suffi-

ciently of the charge or charges that he is called

upon to meet and does not contain averments suffi-

cient to enable him to intelligently prepare for his

trial and that in said behalf, each count thereof

is ambiguous, unintelligible and insufficient in the

following particulars

:

1. That the paragraph beginning at line 12 and

page 1 of said indictment herein, is unintelligible,

ambiguous and meaningless and that the meaning

intended to be conveyed thereby cannot be ascer-

tained therefrom. [118]

2. That with reference to the paragraph begin-

ning on line 29 and page 1 of said indictment, it

cannot be ascertained therefrom what part or con-

nection, if any, the defendant, J. W. Randolph,
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had with said scheme or in what way he devised or

intended by means of the allegations thereof to take

part in said scheme to defraud.

3. That with further reference to said last men-

tioned paragraph in said indictment, it cannot be

ascertained therefrom whether the acts specified

therein were actually performed.

4. That the paragraph beginning with line 21

of page 2 of said indictment is uncertain and am-

biguous in that it cannot be ascertained therefrom,

— (a) What relation, if any, Cromwell & Company,

Inc., had to the alleged scheme or device, (b)

whether the said Samuel H. Robinson did in fact

mail said Articles of Incorporation to LeRoy F.

Pike at Reno, Nevada, (c) Whether said Robin-

son did request said Pike to obtain dummy direc-

tors, (d) In what manner said acts were unlaw-

ful or in violation of the Statutes of the United

States or any state or territory thereof, (e) What

relation, if any, the said acts had to said alleged

scheme or artifice to defraud.

5. With relation to paragraphs beginning on

line 3 and ending on line 12 of page 3 of said indict-

ment, it does not appear and cannot be ascertained

therefrom,— (a) Whether it was part of the scheme

or artifice to defraud that defendant, Kassmir,

should offer to subscribe or should pay the sum of

Fifty Thousand ($50,000.00) Dollars cash for said

stock, or whether he should pay the said Fifty Thou-

sand ($50,000.00) Dollars, (b) That the falsifying

or negativing [119] paragraph thereof does not

allege that the said Kassmir did not offer to sub-
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scribe, (c) That said negativing paragraph states,

*'as defendant then and there well knew," but does

not state which defendant then and there well knew

that Kassmir did not pay Fifty Thousand ($50,-

000.00) Dollars cash, (d) That it cannot be ascer-

tained therefrom who seconded, offered and/or

passed said resolution, that is to say whether it

was Cromwell, Simon and Company, Cromwell and

Company or some other board, body or organiza-

tion, or what relation said resolution had to said

scheme or artifice, (e) That generally it cannot be

ascertained in what manner said acts were a part

of or in furtherance of said scheme or artifice to

defraud.

6. With relation to paragraph beginning on line

13 and ending on line 27 of page 3 of said indict-

ment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom, nor from

any part of said indictment,—(a) What is meant

or intended to be meant by "Cromwell Simon and

Co. Investment Plan,"—(b) What false and fraud-

ulent representations or promises were made or

intended to be made.

That the statements made therein are recitals

of conclusions of law only and not allegations of

fact.

7. With relation to paragraph beginning on line

5 of page 4, it cannot be ascertained therefrom

nor from any part of said indictment, what false

representations were to be used to induce and/or

persuade the victims to purchase high-grade stock

under the alleged Cromwell & Simon Co. Invest-
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nieiit Plan,— (a) What the Cromwell & Simon Co.

Investment Plan was.

8. With relation to paragraph beginning on line

14 and ending on line 22 of page 4 of said indict-

ment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom nor from

any part of said indictment,— [120] (a) WTiat

time is referred to by the words ''existing condi-

tions," (b) What is meant by the language, "allur-

ing, exaggerated, misleading, false and fraudulent

representations," that is to say w^hat the alluring,

exaggerated, misleading, false and fraudulent rep-

resentations related to. (c) What the language,

"should raise in said victims hopes and expecta-

tions of profit and reward far beyond the limits

warranted by existing conditions" relates to, or

what connections same had, if any, with said artifice

or scheme to defraud.

9. With relation to paragraphs beginning with

line 24 and ending with line 31 of page 4, it can-

not be ascertained therefrom nor from any part of

the said indictment,—(a) In what respect it is

alleged that Cromwell Simon & Co. was a reputable

company, that is to say, reputed for what, (b)

That the negativing and falsifying clause does not

deny or allege that Cromwell Simon & Co. was a

reputable brokerage company, (c) That it cannot

be ascertained what is meant by "of the character

of a bucket shop." (d) That the allegations in

said paragraph as to representations were only

representations of opinion and "puffing" per-

mitted by law.

10. With reference to the paragraph beginning
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on line 1 and ending- on line 7 of page 5 of said

indictment, it cannot be ascertained whether in

truth or in fact it was or was not the business of

Cromwell Simon & Co. to sell to alleged victims

high-grade corporation stocks and other securities,

particularly on the partial payment plan.

11. With relation to paragraph 3 on page 5 of

said indictment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom

nor from any [121] part of said indictment what

is meant by,— (a) Cromwell Simon & Co. Invest-

ment Plan.

12. With relation to paragraph 4 on page 5 of

said indictment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom

nor from any part of said indictment when or in

what mamier the alleged victims would draw any

dividends or interest declared on high-grade stock

or other securities so purchased and held by them,

that is to say, said victims, or in what manner, if

at all this defendant would or could become pos-

sessed of said dividends or interest, or any of said

defendants or in what manner said Cromwell Simon

& Co. could or would become possessed of said

dividends or interest thereon.

13. With relation to paragraph 5 appearing on

page 6 of said indictment, it cannot be ascertained

therefrom nor from any part of said indictment

what relation the following words, to wit :

'

' that an

investor subscribing for such corporate stock, or

other securitj^ through the said company, would

have the privilege of selling the same at any time

he desired,
'

' would have as to the alleged scheme or

artifice to defraud in this that it is not negatived
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or falsified that said investors referred to in said

indictment liad such privilege.

14. That Count 1 of said indictment does not

state facts sufficient to constitute an offense against

the United States of America ; that said count does

not allege that the letter set forth in said count was

ever placed or caused to be placed in the United

States mail.

15. That with respect to the letters referred to

in each and all of the counts of said indictment,

only the following are purported to be signed by or

referred to the said defendant, J. W. Randolph:

The letter referred to in Count [122] Three and

marked Exhibit "F," the letter referred to in Count

Eleven and marked Exhibit "P," the letter referred

to in Count Nineteen and market Exhibit ''EE,"

the letter referred to in Count Twenty-two and

marked Exhibit "HH," the letter referred to in

Count Twenty-three and marked Exhibit "II," the

letter referred to in Count Twenty-four and marked

Exhibit "JJ," the letter referred to in Count

Twenty-four and marked Exhibit "KK," the letter

referred to in Count Twenty-five and marked Ex-

hibit "LL," the letter referred to in Count

Twenty-seven and marked Exhibit "MM" and the

letter referred to in Count Thirty and marked

Exhibit "PP," and it does not appear in the said

indictment or any of the counts thereof what con-

nection, if any, said J. W. Randolph had with the

mailing of each and all of the exhibits referred to in
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this indictment and all of the various counts

thereof.

J. W. RANDOLPH,
Defendant.

H. H. HARRIS,
Attorney for J. W. Randolph.

[Endorsed] : Filed Mar. 26, 1928. [123]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Monday, the 26th day of March, in

the year of our Lord one thousand nine hun-

dred and twenty-eight. Present: The Honor-

able A. F. ST. SURE, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—MARCH 26, 1928—

ORDER OVERRULING DEMURRERS, ETC.

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, J. W. Randolph and Orton E. Goodwin

were present in court with their respective attor-

neys. The defendants filed demurrers to the in-

dictment and a motion to quash indictment. After

argument, IT IS ORDERED that said demurrers

and said motion be and same are hereby submitted.

Thereupon the defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Sam-

uel H. Robinson, J. W. Randolph and Orton E.

Goodwin each plead "Not Guilty" to the indictment
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filed herein against them. ORDERED case be set

for May 29, 1928, for trial.

The demurrers of the defendants Harry M. Kass-

mir, Samuel H. Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and

J. W. Randolph, and the motion of the defendant

Orton E. Goodwin to quash indictment, heretofore

heard and submitted, and the demurrers having

been confessed as to the first count of the indict-

ment, it is ordered that said demurrers be and the

same are hereby sustained as to the first count of

the indictment and that said demurrers be and the

same are hereby overruled as to all other counts

of the indictment herein, and that the motion of said

Orton E. Goodwin to quash indictment be and the

same is hereby denied. [124]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

PETITION FOR SEVERANCE (SAMUEL H.

ROBINSON).

Now comes the defendant, Samuel H. Robinson,

by his attorney, H. H. Harris, and respectfully

prays the above-entitled court that he be tried sep-

arate and apart from the other defendants and that

there be a severance as betw^een him, as a defendant,

and the other defendants, in the said entitled court

and for ground of severance alleges as follows:

I.

That there is certain evidence necessary and ma-

terial in his defense, which as to certain of the other

defendants, particularly Harry M. Kassmir and
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Cromwell Simon, would be inadmissible by reason

of their privileged nature.

II.

That there is certain evidence material and neces-

sary in his defense that would be inadmissible

against any of the other defendants, particularly

Harry M. Kassmir and Cromwell Simon, by reason

of the fact that the introduction of those said facts

on his behalf would be inadmissible over the objec-

tion of the other defendants on the ground that they

[125] would thereby be compelled to testify

against themselves without their consent.

III.

That the defense of Samuel H. Robinson is an-

tagonistic to the defense of the other defendants

in said cause.

IV.

That the defense of Samuel H. Robinson would

implicate certain of the other defendants, particu-

larly Harry M. Kassmir and Cromwell Simon.

V.

That the defense of Samuel H. Robinson cannot

be presented fairly and properly in a joint trial

with the other defendants and that the introduction

of certain evidence pertaining to other defendants

that would be as to him incompetent and immate-

rial, would seriously prejudice him.

H. H. HARRIS,
Attorney for Petitioner.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 8, 1928. [126]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF SAMUEL H. ROBINSON
FOR SEVERANCE.

State of California,

County of Los Angeles,—ss.

Samuel H. Robinson, being first duly sworn, de-

poses and says

:

That be is one of the defendants in the above-

entitled action. That the date of the trial of the

above-entitled cause has been set for May 29, 1928.

That there are four other defendants; that unless

this Court grants the petition of this affiant to have

his trial severed from the trial of the other four

defendants, he will be tried on said date, jointly

with the other four defendants.

Your affiant is an attorney at law, duly licensed

and admitted to practice in all of the courts of

the State of California, and has been such for more

than seven years last past. That he is charged

jointly with four other defendants in thirty-eight

counts in this indictment of having used the mails

to defraud. Affiant states that his only relation

with the other defendants was that of attorney and

client; that of the thirty-eight letters upon which

the thirty-eight counts of the indictment are pre-

dicated, only five have been [127] mailed or

caused to be mailed by him. That these letters

were sent out by him in the regular course of busi-

ness and as part of his professional employment as

attorney for certain of the other defendants; that
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he never had any acquaintance with the other de-

fendants, nor had any part in the scheme set out in

the indictment, prior to June, 1925; that said in-

dictment contains various letters alleged to have

been sent out prior to that date. That for the pur-

pose of his defense, it will be necessary for him to

introduce a number of letters and documents pass-

ing between the defendants, Harry M. Kassmir,

Cromwell Simon and your affiant. That in addi-

tion to these letters, there were numerous oral com-

munications and that said letters, documents and

oral communications were occasioned solely by the

relations between the said defendants, Harry M.

Kassmir, Cromwell Simon and your affiant, by rea-

son of the relation of attorney and clients; that

these communications are therefore privileged and

therefore inadmissible and that an objection to their

introduction will be made by at least one of the

defendants jointly charged with affiant. That these

letters, documents and communications are abso-

lutely necessary in the defense of your affiant; that

his inability to introduce them would result as to

him in a serious miscarriage of justice and a pre-

judice of his rights.

That in order to introduce evidence necessary in

his own defense, affiant expects and intends to take

the stand on his own behalf and his evidence will

implicate certain of the other defendants and his

defense is antagonistic to them. [128]

WHEREFORE, your affiant prays an order of
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this court severing his trial from the trial of the

other defendants.

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON,
Affiant.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 7th day

of May, 1928.

[Seal] VIVIAN M. HOOPS,
Notary Public in and for said County and State.

My commission expires February 10, 1930.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 8, 1928. [129]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

MOTION OF J. W. RANDOLPH AND SAMUEL
H. ROBINSON FOR BILL OF PARTIC-
ULARS.

Now come J. W. Randolph and Samuel H. Robin-

son, by their attorney, H. H. Harris, and move the

above-entitled court for an order directing the

United States District Court for the Northern Dis-

trict of California, Southern Division, to furnish to

said defendants a bill of particulars in order that

said defendants may know and be particularly in-

formed of the following matters, to wit

:

(1) The names of the persons referred to in

said indictment as victims.

(2) What particular certain class of persons the

defendants had devised a scheme and artifice to

defraud?

(3) When or during what period prior to the



158 Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph

mailing of the letters stated did defendants devise

or intend to devise the scheme to defraud alleged

in the indictment*?

(4) The names and addresses of the persons to

whom and the times and places when the defendants

Cromwell Simon and Harry M. Kassmir as copart-

ners or otherwise offered for sale or negotiated for

the sale of or otherwise dealt in securities in the

State of California. [130]

(5) Whether or not the defendant, Robinson,

ever requested said Pike to obtain dummy directors

and regularly incorporate Cromwell & Company,

Inc., under the laws of the State of Nevada and if

so when the said Pike did said things, and the

names and addresses of said dummy directors.

(6) Whether or not Samuel H. Robinson, Harry

M. Kassmir and Cromwell Simon ever visited Reno,

Nevada, for the purpose of obtaining a meeting of

the directors of Cromwell & Company, Inc., and if

so the time when said visits occurred and the time

when said meeting of said directors occurred.

(6a) What relation, if any, the formation

and/or existence of Cromwell & Company, Inc., had

or could have had to the alleged scheme or device.

(7) Whether or not the defendant, Kassmir,

ever offered to subscribe $50,000.00 of said com-

pany's stock and pay cash for it and if so the time

and place when said offer was made.

(8) Who put the offer of Harry M. Kassmir to

subscribe $50,000.00 worth of stock in the form of

a resolution and who seconded said resolution and



vs. United States of America. 159

were the persons who voted and passed the same

unanimously.

(9) Whether or not the offer of Harry Kassmir

to subscribe $50,000.00 worth of said company's

stock was ever accepted by said company and if

so the time and place when said acceptance oc-

curred.

(10) What were the terms and conditions of the

so-called Simon & Company investment plan.

(11) Whether or not the defendants J. W. Ran-

dolph or Samuel H. Robinson ever solicited or pro-

cured from the so-called victims subscriptions or

orders for shares of corporate stock or other securi-

ties and if so the names [131] and addresses of

said alleged victims and the time and place of said

soliciting or procuring said subscriptions.

(12) What false or fraudulent representations

or promises as to the financial standing of the Crom-

well Simon & Company or of the defendant, Crom-

well Simon, or Harry M. Kassmir were ever made

by the defendants J. W. Randolph and Samuel H.

Robinson.

(13) To what persons and at what time or place

were any false or fraudulent representations or

promises as to the financial standing of the Crom-

well Simon & Company and of the defendants

CromweU Simon or Harry M. Kassmir were ever

made by the defendants J. W. Randolph or Samuel

H. Robinson.

(14) What false or fraudulent representations

or promises as to the care or watchfulness exercised

for the benefit of said alleged victims by the said
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defendants over investments made with, them were

ever made by any of the defendants, particularly the

defendants J. W. Randolph and Samuel H. Robin-

son.

(15) The time and j)lace of making, the names

of the defendants who made and the names of the

persons to whom the defendants, J, W. Randolph

or Samuel H. Robinson, made any false or fraudu-

lent representations or promises as in the last para-

graph above set forth.

(16) What false or fraudulent representations

or promises as to the alleged safety of purchasing

stocks or other securities through the defendants

and the said Cromwell Simon Company were ever

made by the defendants, J. W. Randolph or Samuel

H. Robinson. [132]

(17) The time of making and the persons to

whom the defendants J. W. Randolph or Samuel H.

Robinson, made any false or fraudulent representa-

tions or promises as in the last next preceding para-

graph set forth.

(18) Whether or not either of said defendants,

J. W. Randolph or Samuel H. Robinson, required

any alleged victims to deliver over to defendants

valuable securities as alleged collateral to secure

deferred payments on stock subscribed for and if

so the names of said victims, together with a de-

scription of any securities delivered to defendants

by them and the time and place of said delivery.

(19) Whether or not said defendants J. W. Ran-

dolph or Samuel H. Robinson ever took or embez-

zled or converted any collateral securities to their
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own use or benefit and if so a description of said

securities, the names of the i)ersons from whom
taken or procui'ed, the names of the defendants who
so took said securities, the names of the defendants

w^ho embezzled or converted said securities, together

with the time and place of such taking, embezzle-

ment and conversion.

(20) What were the false representations which

the defendants or any of them did not then or

there or ever intend to carry out or perform, par-

ticularly with reference to the defendants J. W.
Randolph or Samuel H. Robinson.

(21) To whom were the false representations

referred to in the last next preceding paragraph

made or communicated by means of letters or cir-

culars or advertisements and what were the contents

of said letters, circulars and advertisements.

(22) The names of the persons to whom false

representations which the defendants did not then

or there or ever [133] intend to carry out or per-

form were made and the time and place of said

making, together with the names of the defendants

making them or the names of agents who made

them on behalf of said defendants.

(23) Whether or not the defendants J. W. Rlan-

dolph or Samuel H. Robinson or either of them

ever made any of the alleged alluring, exaggerated,

misleading, false or fraudulent representations,

pretenses or promises as set forth in sub-paragraphs

1, 2, 3, 4, and 5 of each and every count of said

indictment and if so made, the names of the de-

fendants making them, the names of the persons
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to whom made, the places where made and the

time of the making thereof.

(24) What were or are sufficient financial re-

sources necessary to carry on a reliable brokerage

business ?

(25) What was or is the financial resources of

any of the defendants named in said indictment or

of Cromwell Simon & Company?

(26) What is a responsible brokerage house and

what is necessary to constitute the same"?

(27) Whether or not the alleged representation

that persons could rely upon the standing or finan-

cial standing of Cromwell Simon & Company was

or was not true.

(28) Whether or not the representations that

the business of Cromwell Simon & Company was to

sell to the alleged victims high-grade corporate

stock and other securities on the partial pajnuent

plan or otherwise was or was not true.

(29) Whether or not the defendants or any of

them or Cromwell Simon & Company, and particu-

larly the defendants J. W. Randolph and Samuel

H. Robinson received any orders from any person

or persons for the purchase from them of [134]

any corporate stock or securities and if so the

names of the persons placing said orders or offers

together with the time and place thereof and a de-

scription of the stock or securities embraced in said

orders.

(30) Whether or not the alleged false representa-

tion that the defendants would obtain subscriptions

from the alleged victims for stocks and other se-
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curities on the Cromwell Simon & Company invest-

ment plan and would immediately purchase the

same at a market price for and on account of the

said alleged victim and that Cromwell Simon &
Company would hold the same so that the alleged

victims could be certain that the stocks and other

securities would be on hand for them when called

for by them was or was not true.

(31) Whether or not Cromwell Simon & Com-

pany ever received any orders which required them

to immediately purchase stock or other securities

at the market price or otherwise for the account of

said alleged victims and if so the persons who placed

said orders, the time and place thereof and the con-

tents of said orders.

(32) Whether or not any dividends or interest

were ever declared or payable on any high-grade

stock or other securities purchased and held by de-

fendants or Cromwell Simon & Company for any

persons at all and if so when said dividends were

declared or said interest was payable and on what

stocks or securities and to what persons the de-

fendants or Cromwell Simon & Company should

have paid the same.

(33) What were or are the qualifications neces-

sary on the part of Cromwell Simon & Company to

qualify it to advise victims when to buy or sell

corporate stocks or other securities and in what

portion of such qualification was said company

deficient? [135]

(34) What are the facts which resulted in said

victims not being able to realize upon the defend-
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ants or any of them for safe or other information or

advice in the matter of buying or selling stocks or

securities %

(35) What amounts of money or property did

defendants J. W. Randolph or Samuel H. Robin-

son ever appropriate or embezzle to their own use

or benefit ?

(36) From whom did defendants J. W. Ran-

dolph or Samuel H. Robinson ever procure any

money or property which they appropriated or em-

bezzled to their own use and benefit.

(37) The times and places where the defendants

J, W. Randolph or Samuel H. Robinson or either

of them ever appropriated or embezzled to their

own use or benefit any money or property.

(38) How or in what manner Exhibits "A" to

"BBB" either individually or collectively could

have been or were in furtherance of any alleged

scheme or artifice to defraud, particularly with re-

lation to the defendants J. W. Randolph or Samuel

H. Rbbinson.

(39) How or in what manner any letters writ-

ten by or pertaining to the business of the Charles

Wesley Company of Los Angeles, California, have

been or were in furtherance of any scheme to de-

fraud set forth in any of the counts of said in-

dictment, and particularly the letters alleged to be

mailed or caused to be mailed by the defendants

J. W. Randolph or Samuel H. Robinson or either

of them.

(40) How or in what manner any letters writ-

ten by or pertaining to the business of Thomas



vs. United States of America. 165

Allen Compaiij^ of Seattle, Washington, could have

been or were in furtherance of any scheme or

artifice to defraud set forth in said indictment?

(41) That said aforementioned matter relates

to [136] general allegations contained in the in-

dictment on file herein and that more particular

and specific knowledge of such matters is necessary

to said defendants on their trial and that without

such particular knowledge said defendants will be

unable to properly prepare their defense to said

indictment or to prepare any defense at all.

This motion is made upon the indictment on file

herein, upon the matters set forth in this motion

and on the affidavits of defendants J. W. Randolph

and Samuel H. Robinson filed herewith and at-

tached hereto.

Respectfully submitted,

H. H. HARRIS,
Attorney for Defendants, J, W. Randolph and

Samuel H. Robinson. [137]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVITS OF J. W. RANDOLPH AND
SAMUEL H. ROBINSON.

State of California,

County of Los Angeles,—ss.

J. W. Randolph and Samuel H. Robinson, being-

first duly sworn, each for himself deposes and says

:

That he is one of the defendants in the above-

entitled action; that the trial of the above-entitled
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action has been set for the 29tli day of May, 1928;

that he is in possession of a copy of the indictment

on file in the above-entitled action and that he has

read the same; that said indictment purports to

charge him with thirty-seven violations of section

215 of the Criminal Code of the United States;

that said indictment contains and is almost entirely

composed of allegations of acts alleged to have

been committed by the defendants; that these acts

are alleged in general terms and the indictment

fails to allege the time, place or circumstances neces-

sary to identification of any of the acts so alleged

or necessary fully to advise affiant of the particular

circumstances of said acts; that he has been in-

formed by his attorney, H. H. Harris, and upon

such information believes and alleges that unless

he is furnished with a bill of particulars which said

bill of particulars shall particularly and specifically

inform him of the exact time when [138] said

acts were committed, what particular place where

said acts were committed and of the particular

circumstances surrounding and comprising the com-

mission of these acts, that he will be unable to prop-

erly prepare his defense to said indictment or to

prepare any defense at all.

J. W. RANDOLPH.
SAMUEL H. ROBINSON.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 7tli day

of May, 1928.

[Seal] VIVIAN M. HOOPS,
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

My commission expires February 10, 1930.

[Endorsed] Filed May 8, 1928. [139]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Monday, the 21st day of May, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAEOLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—MAY 21, 1928—ORDER
DENYING MOTION FOR BILL OF PARr
TICULARS, ETC.

It is by the Court ordered that the motion of de-

fendant Orton E. Goodwin to require the United

States Attorney to furnish a list of witnesses be

and the same is hereby denied; that the petition

for severance by defendant Samuel H. Robinson

and the motion for severance by defendant Orton

E Goodwin be and the same are hereby denied;

that the motion of defendants J, W. Randolph and

Samuel H. Robinson for bill of particulars be and
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the same is hereby denied; that the motion of de-

fendant Orton E. Goodwin for bill of particulars

be and the same is hereby denied; and that the mo-

tion of defendant Harry M. Kassmir for bill of

particulars be and the same is hereby denied. Or-

dered that the said defendants and each of them is

hereby allowed an exception to the ruling of the

Court. [140]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the North-

ern District of California, held at the court-

room thereof, in the City and County of San

Francisco, on Tuesday, the 29th day of May,

in the year of our Lord one thousand nine

hundred and twenty-eight. Present : The Hon-

orable HAEOLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—MAY 29, 1928—TRIAL.

This case came on regularly this day for trial.

The defendant Harry M. Kassmir was present in

court in the custody of the U. S. Marshal and with-

out an attorney; the defendants Samuel H. Robin-

son and J. W. Randolph were present with H. H.

Harris, Esq., their attorney; the defendant Orton

E. Goodwin was present with John A. McGee, Esq.,

his attorney. F. H. Ainsworth, Esq., was present

as attorney for the defendant Cromwell Simon.

Joseph L. Sweeney, Esq., George M. Naus, Esq.,

and Wm. A. O'Brien, Esq., Asst. U. S. Attys., were
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present for and on behalf of United States. The

defendants were called and each defendant an-

swered to his name, excepting the defendant Crom-

well Simon. The defendant Cromwell Simon was

thereupon called by the United States Marshal and

said defendant having failed to respond to his name,

upon motion of Mr. Naus, it is ordered that the

New Amsterdam Casualty Company produce the

body of the defendant Cromwell Simon, and the

said New Amsterdam Casualty Company having

failed to produce the body of said defendant, IT IS

ORDERED that the bond of said defendant Crom-

well Simon be and the same is hereby forfeited unto

the United States [HI] of America, and that a

writ of attachment issue for the arrest of said de-

fendant Cromwell Simon. On motion of Mr. Harris,

it is ordered that Robert B. McMillan, Esq., be and

he is hereby substituted as attorney for the defend-

ant Samuel H. Robinson in place and stead of

H. H. Harris, Esq. Now comes James M. Han-

ley, Esq., and advised the Court that the defendant

Harry M. Kassmir is without an attorney and

moved the Court to continue the trial of this case.

Mr. Harris, on behalf of the defendant J. W. Ran-

dolph, moved the Court to continue the trial of this

case. Now comes Leo Friedman, Esq., and made a

statement to the Coui't, and made a motion to be

allowed to withdraw as attorney for the defendant

Harry M. Kassmir. Harry M. Kassmir was sworn

and testified on his behalf in support of the motion

for a continuance. After hearing the attorneys,

it is ordered that the motions of the defendants
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Harry M. Kassmir and J. W. Randolph for a con-

tinuance of the trial of this case be and the same

are hereby denied. Further ordered that Leo

Friedman, Esq., be and he is hereby allowed to

withdraw as attorney for the defendant Harry M.

Kassmir. Ordered that Fred McDonald, Esq., be

and he is hereby appointed as attorney for the de-

fendant Harry M. Kassmir. Thereupon the Court

ordered that this case do now proceed to trial.

Thereupon the following persons, viz.:

1. Frank Paul, 7. J. E. Baker,

2. Fred'k F. Wright, 8. Stuart McMartin,

3. Louis E. Allen, 9. Leslie E. Alt,

4. George T. Morris, 10. A. E. Lisbon,

5. Chas. H. Moody, 11. Chas. W. Goodwin,

6. Thos. M. Jennings, 12. Richard W. Burke,

twelve good and lawful jurors, were, after being

examined under oath, sworn to try the issues joined

herein. Ordered that the further trial hereof be

continued until Thursday, May 31, 1928, at 10

A. M., and the jury, after being duly admonished

by the Court, were excused until that time. [142]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Thursday, the 31st day of May, in

the year of our Lord one thousand nine hun-

dred and twenty-eight. Present: The Honor-

able HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.
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[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—MAY 31, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants, Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein, being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. Ordered that all witnesses be and

they are hereby excluded from the courtroom dur-

ing the trial of this case. Mr. Sweeney made a

statement to the Court and jury on behalf of the

United States. Mrs. Emily A. Beans, Charles

Burke, E. H. Beemer and Howard C. Ellis were

sworn and testified on behalf of United States.

The United States introduced in evidence and filed

its exhibits marked Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8.

Ordered that the further trial hereof be continued

to 10 A. M. to-morrow and the jury, after being

admonished by the Court, was excused until that

time. [143]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Friday, the 1st day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.
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[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 1, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. Howard C. Ellis was recalled and

V. A. Parks, Mary Christensen, Letitia W. McClin-

tock, Robert Pigott were sworn and testified on

behalf of United States. The United States intro-

duced in evidence and filed its exhibits marked

Nos. 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15 and 16. Ordered that

the further trial hereof be continued to 10 :30 A. M.

to-morrow. The jury, after being admonished by

the Court, was excused until that time. [144]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Saturday, the 2d day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.
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[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 2, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein being

present as heretofore, the trial was resumed.

Robert Pigott and Mary Christensen were recalled

and Gustave A. Johnson and J. A. Bardin were

sworn and testified on behalf of the United States.

The United States introduced in evidence and filed

its exhibits marked Nos. 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23,

24, 25 and 26. Ordered that the further trial hereof

be continued until Monday, June 4, 1928, at 2

P. M., and the jury, after being admonished by the

Court, was excused until that time. [145]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Monday, the 4th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 4, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.
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Eobinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. LeRoy F. Pike was sworn and

testified on behalf of United States. The United

States introduced in evidence and filed its exhibits

marked Nos. 27, 28 and 29, Ordered that the fur-

ther trial hereof be continued to 10 A. M. to-mor-

row, and the jury, after being duly admonished by

the Court, was excused until that time. 146]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Tuesday, the 5th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 5, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Ran-

dolph, the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein

being present as heretofore, the trial hereof was

thereupon resumed. LeRoy F. Pike and Gustave

A. Johnson were recalled and Mrs. Tess Belford

and Mrs. Annie G. Tiger were sworn and testified

on behalf of the United States. The United States

I
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introduced in evidence and filed its exhibits marked

Nos. 30, 31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42,

43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 48 and 49. The defendant J. W.
Randolph introduced in evidence and filed his ex-

hibit marked Defendant Randolph's Exhibit "A."

Court ordered further trial continued to 10 A. M.

to-morrow and the jury, after being admonished by

the Court, was excused until that time. [147]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Wednesday, the 6th day of June, in

the year of our Lord one thousand nine hun-

dred and twenty-eight. Present: The Honor-

able HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 6, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. On motion of F. H. Ainsworth, Jr.,

it is ordered that he be and he is hereby allowed to

withdraw as attorney for defendant Cromwell

Simon. Ernest Hipp and Clara Oliver were sworn

and testified on behalf of the United States. The

United States introduced in evidence and filed its
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exhibits marked Nos. 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57,

58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63, 64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 71,

72, 73, 74, 75, 76, 77, 78, and 79. Ordered that the

further trial hereof be continued to 10 A. M. to-

morrow, and the jury, after being duly admonished

by the Court, was excused until that time. [148]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Thursday, the 7th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 7, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED),

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein, being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. V. A. Parks and Mary Christen-

sen were recalled and Bernhard Kellman, Van

Mater Smith, Herbert D. McCaffrey, W. F. Allen,

John Cummings, Joseph M. Kane, P. A. Nagan,

George Bernard and Mary Esther Durham were

sworn and testified on behalf of United States.

The United States introduced in evidence and filed
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its exhibits marked Nos. 80, 81, 82, 83, 84, 85, 86,

87, 88, 89 and 90. Defendants introduced in evi-

dence and filed their exhibit marked Defendants'

Exhibit "B." Ordered that the further trial

hereof be continued to 10 A. M. to-morrow and the

jury, after being admonished by the Court, was

excused until that time. [149]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Friday, the 8th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 8, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein being-

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. Mary Esther Durham was recalled

and John J. Allen, Jr., was sworn and testified on

behalf of the United States. The United States in-

troduced in evidence and filed its exhibits marked

Nos. 91, 92, 93, 94, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99, 100, 101, 102,

103, 104 and 105. On the cross-examination of
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Mary Esther Durham, the defendant J. W, Ran-

dolph introduced in evidence and filed his exhibits

marked Defendant Randolph's Exhibits "C," "D,"

"E," "F" and "G." Ordered that the further

trial hereof be continued until 10:30 A. M. to-mor-

row, and the jury, after being admonished by the

Court, were excused until that time. [150]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Saturday, the 9th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 9, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. Mary Esther Durham was recalled

and M. I. Henderson, Sam Goodman, Edward Mc-

Clintock, W. C. Owen and Wm. I. Madeira were

sworn and testified on behalf of the United States.

The United States introduced in evidence and filed

its exhibits marked Nos. 106, 107, 108 and 109. Or-
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dered that the further trial hereof be continued un-

til Tuesday, June 12th, 1928, at 10 :30 A. M., and the

jury, after being admonished by the Court, was

excused until that time. [151]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Tuesday, the 12th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 12, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury being present as hereto-

fore, the trial hereof was thereupon resumed.

William I. Madeira was recalled and F. W. Lauck

was sworn and testified on behalf of the United

States. The United States introduced in evidence

and filed its exhibits marked Nos. 110 and 111. On

motion of J. L. Sweeney, Esq., Asst. U. S. Atty.,

it is ordered that Count No. 34 of the indictment

be and the same is hereby dismissed. Thereupon

the United States rested. Mr. McGee made a mo-

tion to instruct the jury to return a verdict of Not
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Guilty as to the defendant Orton E. Goodwin, which

said motion was ordered denied, and defendant al-

lowed an exception. Mr. McMillan made a motion

to instruct the jury to return a verdict of Not

Guilty as to the defendant Samuel H. Robinson,

which said motion was ordered denied and defend-

ant allowed an exception. Mr. Harris made a mo-

tion to instruct the jury to return a verdict of Not

Guilty as to the defendant J. W. Randolph, which

said motion was ordered denied and defendant al-

lowed an exception. Mr, McDonald made a motion

to instruct the jury to return a [152] verdict of

Not Guilty as to the defendant Harry M. Kassmir,

which said motion was ordered denied and defend-

ant allowed an exception. Mr. Harris made a state-

ment to the Court and jury on behalf of the de-

fendant J. W. Randolph. R. S. Creuss and F. B.

Paddock were sworn and testified on behalf of de-

fendant J. W. Randolph.

Court ordered that the further trial hereof be

continued to 10:15 A. M. to-morrow and the jury,

after being admonished by the Court, was excused

until that time. [153]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Wednesday, the 13th day of June, in

the year of our Lord one thousand nine hun-

dred and twenty-eight. Present: The Honor-

able HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.
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[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 13, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. Sam Goodman and Herbert D. Mc-

Caffrey were recalled and Kenneth Sim, Carl S.

Kelty, Ernest F. Peterson and Orton E. Goodwin

were sworn and testified on behalf of the defendant

Orton E. Goodwin. The defendant Orton E. Good-

win introduced in evidence and filed his exhibits

marked "A," ''B" and ''C." V. A. Parks was re-

called and testified on behalf of defendant J. "VV.

Randolph. Harry M. Kassmir was sworn and tes-

tified on his own behalf. Ordered that the further

trial hereof be continued until 10 A. M. to-morrow,

and the jury, after being admonished by the Court,

was excused until that time. [154]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Thursday, the 14th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.
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[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 14, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein, being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. Harry M. Kassmir was recalled

and Alex Tasloff was sworn and testified on behalf

of defendant Harry M. Kassmir ; and the defendant

Harry M. Kassmir thereux3on rested. J. W. Ran-

dolph was sworn and testified on his own behalf.

Maynard Dixon was sworn and testified on behalf

of defendant Orton E. Goodwin. C. F. Tramutolo

was sworn and testified on behalf of defendant

Samuel H. Robinson. Court ordered further trial

hereof continued to 10 A. M. to-morrow, and the

jury, after being admonished by the Court, was

excused until that time. [155]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Friday, the 15th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.
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[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 15, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendant Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was this day

resumed. J. W. Randolph was recalled and further

testified on his own behalf. On cross-examination

of J. W. Randolph, the United States introduced in

evidence and filed its exhibit marked No. 112.

Thereupon all of the defendants rested, and the

evidence was closed.

Mr. McMillan made a motion to instruct the jury

to return a verdict of Not Guilty as to the defend-

ant Samuel H. Robinson ; Mr. McGee made a motion

to instruct the jury to return a verdict of not guilty

as to the defendant Orton E. Goodwin; Mr. Harris

made a motion to instruct the jury to return a ver-

dict of not guilty as to the defendant J. W. Ran-

dolph; and Mr. McDonald made a motion to in-

struct the jury to return a verdict of not guilty as

to the defendant Harry M. Kassmir. After hear-

ing the attorneys, it is ordered that said motions be

and the same are hereby submitted. [156]

Court ordered the further trial hereof be con-

tinued to Tuesday, June 19, 1928, at 10 o'clock

A. M., and the jury, after being admonished by the

Court, was excused until that time. [157]
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At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the Northern

District of California, held at the courtroom

thereof, in the City and County of San Fran-

cisco, on Tuesday, the 19th day of June, in the

year of our Lord one thousand nine hundred

and twenty-eight. Present: The Honorable

HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 19, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the attorneys and the jury impaneled herein being

present as heretofore, the trial hereof was there-

upon resumed. It is ordered that the motions of

the defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Samuel H. Rob-

inson and J. W. Randolph to instruct the jury to

return a verdict of Not Guilty be and the same are

hereby denied ; to which ruling of the Court each of

said defendants duly excepted.

It is ordered that the motion of the defendant

Orton E. Goodwin to instruct the jury to return a

verdict of Not Guilty be and the same is hereby

granted.

Thereupon the attorneys made their arguments

to the Court and jury and at the conclusion of said

arguments, it is ordered that the further trial hereof

be continued to 10 A. M. to-morrow, and the jury,
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after being admonished by the Court, was excused

until that time. [158]

At a stated term of the Southern Division of the

United States District Court for the North-

ern District of California, held at the court-

room thereof, in the Citj^ and County of San

Francisco, on Wednesday, the 20th day of

June, in the year of our Lord one thousand

nine hundred and twenty-eight. Present: The

Honorable HAROLD LOUDERBACK, Judge.

[Title of Cause.]

MINUTES OF COURT—JUNE 20, 1928—TRIAL
(RESUMED).

The defendants Harry M, Kassmir, Samuel H.

Robinson, Orton E. Goodwin and J. W. Randolph,

the jury impaneled herein and all of the attorneys

for the respective parties were present, excepting

H. H Harris, Esq., attorney for the defendant J. W.
Randolph. Thereupon the Court ordered the

Bailiff to call the name of H. H. Harris, Esq., and

the Bailiff accordingly called the name of said

H. H. Harris, Esq., and received no response until

10:30 A. M. After hearing H. H. Harris, Esq.,

it is ordered that said H. H. Harris, Esq.,

be and he is hereby adjudged guilty of contempt

of this court for failure to be present at the con-

vening of this court, and that he pay a fine in the

sum of One Hundred ($100.00) Dollars, and in de-

fault of the payment of said fine that the said H. H.
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Harris, Esq., be committed into the custody of the

United States Marshal until said fine is paid or he

is otherwise discharged by due process of law.

Thereupon the further trial of this case was

proceeded with. After the instructions of the Court

to the jury, the jury, at 11 :05 A. M., retired to de-

liberate upon their verdict. [159]

IT IS ORDERED that the U. S. Marshal for

this District furnish meals to the jury and two

bailiffs.

At 2:50 P. M., the jury returned into court and

being asked if they had agreed upon their ver-

dicts, replied in the affirmative and returned the

following verdicts, which were ordered recorded,

viz.

:

"We, the Jury, find Harry M. Kassmir, the

fendant at the bar, guilty on all counts.

L. E. ALT,

Foreman."

"We, the Jury, find J. W. Randolph, the de-

fendant at the bar, guilty on all counts.

L. E. ALT,

Foreman. '

'

"We, the Jury, find Samuel H. Robinson,

the defendant at the bar, guilty on Counts Nos.

25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 35, 36, 37, 38.

L. E. ALT,

Foreman. '

'

"We, the Jury, find Orton E. Goodwin, the

defendant at the bar, not gTiilty on all counts.

L. E. ALT,

Foreman. '

'
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The jury upon being asked if said verdicts as

recorded are their verdicts, each juror replied that

they are. Ordered that the jury be discharged from

the further consideration hereof.

Mr. McDonald made a motion for a new trial

and a motion in arrest of judgment, on behalf of de-

fendant Harry M. Kassmir, which said motions

were ordered denied and defendant allowed an ex-

ception.

Mr. McMillan made and filed a motion for a new

trial and made and filed a motion in arrest of

judgment, on behalf of defendant Samuel H. Robin-

son, which said motions were ordered denied, and

defendant allowed an exception. [160]

Mr, Harris made and filed a motion for a new

trial and made and filed a motion in arrest of judg-

ment, on behalf of defendant J. W. Randolph,

which said motions were ordered denied, and de-

fendant allowed an exception.

Defendants were duly called for judgment, duly

informed by the Court of the nature of the indict-

ment filed herein against them, of their arraign-

ment, and pleas of Not Guilty; of their trial and

the verdict of the jury. Defendants were then

asked if they had any legal cause to show why

judgment should not be entered herein and no suffi-

cient cause being shown or appearing to the Court,

and the Court having denied a motion for new trial

and a motion in arrest of judgment; thereupon the

Court ordered that

Defendant HARRY M. KASSMIR be im-

prisoned in a U. S. Penitentiary for the period of
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5 years and pay a fine in sum of $500.00 as to the

2d Count; that he be imprisoned for the period of

5 years and pay a fine in sum of $500.00 as to the

3d Count; and in default of the payment of said

fine defendant be further imprisoned mitil said fine

is paid or he be otherwise discharged by due process

of law ; and that he be imprisoned on each of the re-

maining counts on which he was convicted for the

period of 5 years, all of said terms of imprison-

ment to run concurrently. Further ordered that

said term of imprisonment commence and run from

January 10, 1928, provided said defendant does not

appeal or be released from custody on bond.

ORDERED that defendant SAMUEL H.

ROBINSON be imprisoned in a U. S. Peniten-

tiary for the period of 1 year and 1 day as to the

25th Count, and he be imprisoned on each of the

remaining counts on which he was convicted for

the period of 1 year and 1 day, all of said terms of

imprisonment to run concurrently. [161]

ORDERED that defendant J. W. RANDOLPH
be imprisoned in a U. S. Penitentiary for the period

of 4 years and pay a fine in sum of $500.00 as to

the 2d Count; that he be imprisoned for the period

of 4 years and pay a fine in sum of $500.00 as to the

3d Count, and in default of payment of fine de-

fendant be further imprisoned until said fine is paid

or he be otherwise discharged by due process of law

;

and that he be imprisoned on each of the remaining

counts on which he was convicted for the period

of 4 years, all of said terms of imprisonment to run

concurrently.
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ORDERED that said defendant stand committed

to custody of U. S. Marslaal for this District to

execute said judgments, and that commitments issue

accordingly.

ORDERED that defendant ORTON E. GOOD-
WIN be and he is hereby discharged, and that the

bond of said defendant be exonerated and the sure-

ties thereon discharged. [1G2]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

VERDICT (SAMUEL ROBINSON).

We, the jury, find Samuel H. Robinson, the de-

fendant at the bar, guilty on Counts Nos. 25, 26, 27,

28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 35, 36, 37, 38.

L. E. ALT,

Foreman.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 20, 1928, at 2 o'clock and

50 min. P. M. [163]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

VERDICT (J. W. RANDOLPH).

We, the jury, find J. W. Randolph, the defendant

at the bar, guilty on all counts.

L. E. ALT,

Foreman.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 30, 1928, at 2 o'clock and

50 minutes P. M. [164]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

MOTION OF SAMUEL H. ROBINSON FOR
NEW TRIAL.

Now comes the above-named defendant, Samuel

H. Robinson, by his attorney, R. B. McMillan, and

moves the Court to set aside the verdict herein and

to grant a new trial, and as reasons therefor show

to the Coui't the following:

I.

The Court erred in overruling said defendant's

demurrer to the indictment and each count thereof.

II.

The Court erred in denying said defendant's mo-

tion for severance of trial on file herein.

III.

The verdict is contrary to the law of the case.

IV.

The verdict is not supported by the evidence in

the case.

V.

The Court upon the trial of the case admitted in-

competent [165] evidence offered by the United

States,

VI.

The Court upon the trial of the case excluded

competent evidence offered by said defendant.

VIII.

That in the testimony it does not affirmatively or

otherwise appear that the above-entitled court had
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jurisdiction over the offenses, or any of them, al-

leged in the indictment, in this, that there is no

proof that the alleged offenses, or any of them, were

or was committed within the jurisdiction of the

above-entitled court.

IX.

That the Court improperly instructed the jury

to the substantial prejudice of said defendant.

X.

That the Court improperly refused, to the sub-

stantial prejudice of said defendant, to give correct

instructions on the law tendered by said defendant.

XI.

The Court erred in refusing to direct a verdict

of Not Guilty at the close of the evidence of the

United States.

XII.

The Court erred in refusing to direct a verdict of

Not Guilty at the close of all the evidence.

Dated, San Francisco, California, June ,

1928.

R. B. McMillan,
Attorney for Said Defendant Samuel H. Robin-

son.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 20, 1928. [166]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

MOTION OF SAMUEL H. ROBINSON IN AR-
REST OF JUDGMENT.

And now after verdict against the above-named

defendant, Samuel H. Robinson, and before sen-

tence, comes the said defendant in his own proper

person and by his attorney, R. B. McMillan, and

moves the Court here to arrest judgment herein and

not pronounce the same, for the following reasons,

to wit:

I.

That the indictment, and each count thereof, in

this cause does not state facts sufficient to consti-

tute a public offense under the laws of the United

States against the said defendant.

II.

That it appears from the record in the above-en-

titled cause that the judgment, if made and entered,

would be unlawful. [167]

III.

And this defendant further specifies as grounds

for this motion in arrest of judgment each and

every ground contained and set forth in the de-

murrer of this defendant on file in this cause.

IV.

That it appears from the record and testimony

in the above-entitled cause that the Court erred in

denying the motion of said defendant for severance

of trial, on file herein.
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V.

That in the testimony it does not affirmatively or

otherwise appear that the above-entitled court had

jurisdiction over the offenses, or any of them, al-

leged in the indictment, in this, that there is no

proof that the alleged offenses, or any of them, were

or was committed within the jurisdiction of the

above-entitled court.

VI.

That the indictment, and each and every count

thereof, is not sufficient in form or substance to en-

able this defendant to plead the judgment in bar

of another prosecution for the same offense.

WHEREFORE, because of which said errors in

the record herein no lawful judgment can be ren-

dered by the Court, the said defendant prays that

this Honorable Court arrest and withhold the judg-

ment herein, and that the verdict herein be vacated

and set aside and declared null and void.

R. B. McMillan,
Attorney for Defendant Samuel H. Robinson.

Dated: San Franscico, California, June ,

1928. [168]

[Endorsed] : Filed Jime 20, 1928. [169]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

MOTION OF J. W. RANDOLPH FOR NEW
TRIAL.

Now comes the above-named defendant, J, W.
Randolph, by his attorney, H. H. Harris, and moves
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the Court to set aside the verdict herein and to

grant a new trial, and as reasons therefor shows to

the Court the following:

I.

The Court erred in overruling said defendant's

demurrer to the indictment and each count thereof.

II.

The verdict is contrary to the law of the case.

III.

The verdict is not supported by the evidence in the

case.

IV.

The Court, upon the trial of the case, admitted in-

competent evidence offered by the United States.

y.

The Court, upon the trial of the case, excluded

competent evidence offered by said defendant.

VI.

That in the testimony it does not affirmatively or

[170] otherwise appear that the above-entitled

court had jurisdiction over the offenses, or any of

them, alleged in the indictment, in this, that there

is no proof that the alleged offenses were, or any

of them was, committed mthin the jurisdiction of

the above-entitled court.

VII.

That the Court improperly instructed the jury to

the substantial prejudice of said defendant.

VIII.

That the Court improperly refused, to the sub-
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stantial prejudice of said defendant, to give cor-

rect instructions on the law tendered by said de-

fendant.

IX.

The Court erred in refusing to direct a verdict of

Not Guilty at the close of the evidence of the United

States.

X.

The Court erred in refusing to direct a verdict

of Not Guilty at the close of all the evidence.

Dated: San Francisco, California, June 20, 1928.

H. H. HARRIS,
Attorney for Said Defendant J. W. Randolph.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 20, 1928. [171]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

MOTION OF J. W. RANDOLPH IN ARREST
OF JUDGMENT.

And now after verdict against the above-named

defendant, J. W. Randolph, and before sentence,

comes the said defendant in his own proper person

and by his attorney, H. H. Harris, and moves the

Court here to arrest judgment herein and not pro-

nounce the same, for the following reasons, to wit:

I.

That the indictment, and each count thereof, in

this cause does not state facts sufficient to consti-

tute a public offense under the laws of the United

States against the said defendant.
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II.

That it appears from the record in the above-

entitled cause that the judgment, if made and en-

tered, would be unlawful.

III.

And this defendant further specifies as grounds

for this motion in arrest of judgment each and

every ground [172] contained and set forth in

the demurrer of this defendant on file in this cause.

IV.

That in the testimony it does not affirmatively

or otherwise appear that the above-entitled court

had jurisdiction over the offenses, or any of them,

alleged in the indictment, in this, that there is no

proof that the alleged offenses, or any of them, were

or was committed within the jurisdiction of the

above-entitled court.

V.

That the indictment, and each and every count

thereof, is not sufficient in form or substance to

enable this defendant to plead the judgment in bar

of another prosecution for the same offense.

WHEREFORE, because of which said errors

in the record herein no lawful judgment can be ren-

dered by the Court, the said defendant prays that

this Honorable Court arrest and withhold the judg-

ment herein, and that the verdict herein be vacated

and set aside and declared null and void.

H. H. HARRIS,
Attorney for Defendant J. W. Randolph.
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Dated: San Francisco, California, June 20th,

1928.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 20, 1928. [173]

In the Southern Division of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, First Division.

No. 19217.

Convicted Violation of Section 215, Criminal Code

of the United States.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
vs.

SAMUEL H. ROBINSON.

JUDGMENT ON VERDICT OF GUILTY-
COUNTS NOS. 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 35,

36, 37, 38.

Joseph L. Sweeney, Assistant United States At-

torney, and the defendant with his counsel came

into court. The defendant was duly informed by

the Court of the nature of the indictment filed on

the 21st day of February, 1928, charging him with

the crime of violation of Section 215, Criminal

Code of the United States; of his arraignment and

plea of Not Guilty; of his trial and the verdict of

the jury on the 20th day of June, 1928, to wit:
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We, the jury, find Samuel H. Robinson, the

defendant at the bar, guilty on Counts Nos. 25,

26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 35, 36, 37, 38.

L. E. ALT,
• Foreman.

The defendant was then asked if he had any legal

cause to show why judgment should not be entered

herein and no sufficient cause being shown or ap-

pearing to the Court, and the Court having denied

a motion for new trial and a motion in arrest of

judgment; thereupon the Court rendered its judg-

ment: THAT, WHEREAS, the said SAMUEL H.

ROBINSON having been duly convicted in this

court of the crime of violation of Section 215, Crim-

inal Code of the United States,

—

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED AND AD-
JUDGED that the said SA^^IUEL H. ROBINSON
be imprisoned in a United States penitentiary

[174] for the period of ONE (1) YEAR and ONE
(1) DAY, as to the 25th count of the indictment,

and that on each of the remaining counts on which

he stands convicted that he be imprisoned in a

United States Penitentiary for the period of ONE
(1) YEAR and ONE (1) DAY; said terms of im-

pidsoimient to run concurrently.

Judgment entered this 20th day of June, A. D.

1928.

WALTER B. MALING
Clerk.

By C. W. Calbreath,
' Deputy Clerk.
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Entered in Vol. 23 Judg. and Decrees, at Page

53. [175]

In the Southern Division of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, First Division.

No. 19217.

Convicted Violation of Section 215, Criminal Code

of the United States.

THE UNITED STATES OF A^IERICA
vs.

J. W. RANDOLPH.

JUDGMENT ON VERDICT OF GUILTY—ALL
COUNTS.

Joseph L. Sweeney, Assistant United States At-

torney, and the defendant with his counsel came

into court. The defendant was duly informed by

the Court of the nature of the indictment filed on

the 21st day of February, 1928, charging him with

the crime of violation of Section 215, Criminal Code

of the United States; of his arraignment and plea

of Not Guilty; of his trial and the verdict of the

jury on the 20th day of June, 1928, to wit

:

We, the jury, find J. W. Randolph, the de-

fendant at the bar, guilty on all counts.

L. E. ALT,

Foreman.

The defendant was then asked if he had any legal

cause to show why judgment should not be entered
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herein and no sufficient cause being shown or ap-

pearing to the Court, and the Court having denied

a motion for new trial and a motion in arrest of

judgment; thereupon the Court rendered its judg-

ment: THAT, WHEREAS, the said J. W. RAN-
DOLPH having been duly convicted in this court

of the crime of violation of Section 215, Criminal

Code of the United States,— [176]

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED AND AD-
JUDGED that the said J. W. RANDOLPH be im-

prisoned in a United States Penitentiary for the

period of Four (4) Years and pay a fine in the sum

of Five Hundred ($500.00) Dollars as to the Sec-

ond Count of the indictment ; that he be imprisoned

for the period of Four (4) Years and pay a fine in

the sum of Five Hundred ($500.00) Dollars as to

Third Count of the indictment; that on each of

the remaining counts of the indictment on which

he stands convicted that he be imprisoned for the

period of Four (4) years; said terms of imprison-

ment to run concurrently; further ordered that in

default of the payment of said fine that said defend-

ant be further imprisoned until said fine be paid or

until he be otherwise discharged in due course of

law.

Judgment entered this 20th day of June, A. D.

1928.

WALTER B. MALING,
Clerk.

By C. W. Calbreath,

Deputy Clerk.
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Entered in Vol. 23 Judg. and Decrees, at Page 54.

[177]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL (SAMUEL H. ROBIN-
SON AND J. W. RANDOLPH).

To the United States of America, Appellee, and

GEORGE J. HATFIELD, Esq., United States

Attorney in and for the Northern District of

California, as Attorney for Said Appellee:

You and each of you will please take notice that

the above-named defendants, Samuel H. Robinson

and J, W. Randolph, hereby appeal, and each

hereby appeals, to the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals, in and for the Ninth Circuit from the

judgments entered in said cause against said de-

fendants, and each of them, on June 20, 1928, and

that the certified transcript of record will be filed

in the said United States Circuit Court of Appeals

within the time and as provided by law.

Dated, June 29, 1928.

JAMES B. O'CONNOR,
HAROLD C. FAULKNER,
H. H. HARRIS,

Attorneys for Defendant J. W. Randolph,

Humboldt Bank Building, San Francisco. [178]

R. B. McMillan,
Attorney for Defendant Samuel H. Robinson,

1810 Russ Building, San Francisco.

Due service of the within notice of appeal and



202 Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph

receipt of a copy thereof hereby admitted this 29

day of June, 1928.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
J. L. SWEENEY,

Attorneys for U. S.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jun. 29, 1928. [179]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

PETITION FOR APPEAL AND SUPER-
SEDEAS.

Now come the above-named defendants, Samuel

H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph, through their

attorneys (R. B. McMillan for defendant Samuel

H. Robinson) and (James B. O'Comior, H. H.

Harris, and Harold C. Faulkner, for the defendant

J. W. Randolph), and feeling themselves, and each

feeling himself, aggrieved by the judgments of this

Court made and entered Jmie 20, 1928, in the above-

entitled cause, wherein and whereby these defend-

ants are sentenced to be imprisoned and to pay fines

as set forth in the judgments made and entered by

the Court in said cause, to which judgments refer-

ence is hereby made for greater particularity, your

petitioners say that they, and each of them, are

advised by their counsel, and therefore that they

aver, that there was and is manifest error in the

record and proceedings had in said cause, and in

the making, rendition and entry of said judgments

and sentences, and each of them, to the injury and

damage of your petitioners, and each of your peti-
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tioners, all of which errors may be fully made to

appear by an examination of the assignment of

errors and the bill of exceptions [180] filed

herein and presented herewith.

And hereby petition this Honorable Court for an

appeal herein to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals in and for the Ninth Circuit, and that a

full, time and correct transcript of the record and

proceedings in said cause be transmitted by the

Clerk of this Court to the Clerk of the said United

States Circuit Court of Appeals; and that during

the pendency of this appeal all proceedings had by

this Court be suspended, stayed and superseded, and

that during the pendency of said appeal the said

defendants, and each of them, be admitted to bail

in such sum or sums as to this Court seems meet

and proper.

Dated, San Francisco, California, June 29, 1928.

JAMES B. O'CONNOR,
H. H. HARRIS,
HAROLD C. FAULKNER,

Attorneys for Defendant J. W. Randolph.

R. B. McMillan,
Attorney for Defendant Samuel H. Robinson.

Due seiTice of the within petition and receipt of

a copy thereof hereby admitted this 29 day of June,

1928.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
J. L. SWEENEY,

Attorneys for U. S.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jun. 29, 1928. [181]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS.

Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph, de-

fendants in the above-entitled cause, and plaintiffs

on appeal herein, having petitioned for an order

from said court permitting them, and each of them,

to appeal to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals in and for the Ninth Circuit, from the

judgments and sentences entered in the above-

entitled cause against said Samuel H. Robinson

and J. W. Randolph, and said defendants having

duly given notice of appeal as provided by law,

now make and file with their said petition for ap-

peal the following assignment of errors herein, upon

which they and each of them will apply for a rever-

sal of said judgments and sentences, and each of

them, upon appeal, and which said errors, and each

of them, are to the great detriment, injury and

prejudice of said defendants, and each of them, and

in violation of the rights conferred upon him by

law; and each of said defendants says that in the

record and proceedings in the [182] above-

entitled cause, upon the hearing and determination

thereof, in the Southern Division of the United

States District Court for the Northern District of

California, there is manifest error in this, to wit

:

I.

That the above-entitled court erred, to the sub-

stantial prejudice of said defendants, and each of

them, in overruling the demurrer of said defend-
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ants to the indictment herein. That a copy of said

demurrer is set forth at length in the bill of ex-

ceptions (Exception No. 1) filed herewith, to which

special reference is hereby made as the same is made

a part hereof.

II.

That the above-entitled court erred, to the sub-

stantial prejudice of said defendants, and each of

them, in overruling the demands for bill of par-

ticulars of said defendants to the indictment herein.

That a copy of said demands is set forth at length

in the bill of exceptions (Exception No. 2) jSled

herewith, to which exception reference is hereby

made as the same is made a part hereof.

III.

That the above-entitled court erred, to the sub-

stantial prejudice of said defendants, and each of

them, in overruling petition for severance of said

defendant Samuel H. Robinson. That a copy of

said petition is set forth at length in the bill of

exceptions (Exception No. 3) filed herewith, to

which special reference is hereby made as the same

is made a part hereof.

IV.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows

:

I reside in Oakland, 608 Excelsior Boulevard,

and during the year 1925 resided at 5838 Birch

Court, which was my own [183] house. I know
the defendants J. W. Randolph, Harry Kassmir and

Samuel H. Robinson. (Witness here identifies said
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three defendants in the courtroom.) I doubt if I

would recognize Ortin E. Goodwin; I never met

him, I think but once. The defendant, Cromwell

Simon, who is not here, I know; I met him two

times. Met Mr. Randolph some time during the

early part of the year 1925; he came to my house,

I am not sure whether it was by appointment, or

not, but he came to my house, and we talked along

socially for a little bit, and then he finally broached

the subject; he said that he would like to help me

to make back some of the money that he had caused

me to lose in the Nabisco Company, and he said,

''Haven't you got some stock laying around here

that is not paying any money only dividends'"? and

I said, "Why, yes, I have got some stock, but I

don't know whether I want to let it go or not," and

he explained to me how he could take those stocks

and put them in Cromwell Simon and have them

pay me good money; let them lay in Cromwell

Simon's vault as collateral, and then they would buy

me some stock, whatever I wanted, Hudson, or

Studebaker, whatever I might see fit, and be earn-

ing a little money for me; prior to this visit I

had some business dealings with Mr. Randolph—

I

bought Georgie Fruit Company, and lost consider-

able money on that transaction.

EXCEPTION No. 4.

Mr. McMillan.—May it be understood that I

object to that testimony upon the ground that so

far as the defendant Robinson is concerned it is too

remote, incompetent, and hearsay.
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The COURT.—Will you connect this up with this

matter ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—It is just a matter of identi-

fication of Mr. Randolph, and showing the entree

that Mr. Randolph had to this lady.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will offer to connect it up,

if I do not [184] connect it up it will be ruled

out.

The COURT.—Connect it up as a part of the

ease, or simply as identification?

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will have to stand on my
former statement, just as a matter of identification.

The COURT.—It will be received for that pur-

pose, and only for that limited purpose, and the

objection will be overruled.

Mr. McMILLAN.—May we respectfully note an

exception ?

The COURT.—Yes.
WITNESS.—(Continuing.) During Mr. Ran-

dolph's first visit in March, 1925, I did not give

him any stocks; my stocks w^ere at Berkeley in the

safe deposit vault, but I agreed to get them out

and he was to come over again and see the stock.

I got the stock home, and Mr. Randolph came up

by appointment; he came alone. This second visit

was along in the latter part of March, 1925 ; I can-

not fix the date; I have tried to forget the whole

transaction. Only myself and Mr. Randolph pres-

ent.

V.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence
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certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

Us will more fully appear as follows

:

Q. What was the conversation you had with Mr.

Randolph at that time 1

Mr. McMillan.—So far as the defendant Rob-

inson is concerned, that is objected to on the ground

it is hearsay, and is res inter alios acta.

Mr. SWEENEY.—It is all part of one scheme.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Note an exception.

(That the evidence admitted over the foregoing

objection [185] and under the ruling of the

Court is fully set forth in the bill of exceptions

(Exception No. 5) filed herewith, to which special

reference is hereby made as the same is made a part

hereof.)

VI.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows

:

Q. Now, can you tell us more definitely the con-

versation you had with Mr. Kassmir on that occa-

sion'?

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to on the ground

there is no foundation laid yet; I only want all of

the parties present.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Who was present at that time ?

A. Just Cromwell Simon, and I do not think he

was in the room all the while.

Q. Who else*? A. Mr. Kassmir.

Mr. McMillan.—I ask leave at this time, so

that my objection will appear clearly in the record

—
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I make an objection on behalf of the defendant

Samuel Robinson, first that this testimony is too

remote so far as that defendant is concerned, that

it is res inter alios acta, that it is hearsay, and,

furthermore, they are seeking to bring in declara-

tions and actions at a time that is remote to the

charges contained in this indictment; this is not a

conspiracy charge, but a charge under Section 215

of the Criminal Code, the 38 counts being based

under that section, and they are substantive offenses,

not any charge of conspiracy, and none of these

statements, none of these situations, none of these

conversations that the witness has related, in so far

as the defendant Robinson is concerned, are in any

way, shape, or form binding upon him, and hearsay,

and incompetent, and your Honor will note from the

opening statement of the District Attorney that Mr.

Robinson had not even met these persons at that

time. [186]

The COURT.—What have you to say to thaf?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Just this, that the Govern-

ment is showing a scheme, and in the performance

of that scheme admissions or statements made by

one of the—I was going to say one of the conspira-

tors—one of the persons, one of the defendants,

binds the others, if it was for the purpose of fur-

thering the scheme.

The COURT.—Your contention is the way of

proving a scheme or artifice like this, that it is as

proving a conspiracy?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Absolutely. If we can con-
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nect Mr, Robinson up with this scheme at any time,

he is responsible for everything.

The COURT.—Is it your theory that statements

made by those engaged in the common design can

be used against one another irrespective of whether

there is a conspiracy or not "?

Mr. SWEENEY.—If you will indulge me for a

minute or so I will find it for you.

Mr. McMillan.—My further point is this, as

far as my client is concerned, that he did not even

know any of the parties at that time.

The COURT.—That goes to different points.

Mr. McMillan.—it is in line with what may

be connected up.

The COURT.—We have the whole record to find

out whether it is connected up, or not. I think

that point has been pretty well covered, that at the

present moment there is not in the record state-

ments which connect up the parties who are on

trial.

Mr. McMillan.—Furthermore, it is too re-

mote, and res inter alios acta, and hearsay.

Mr. SWEENEY.—May I quote the syllabus

from U. S. vs. Belden, found in 223 Fed. 726:

(Reading.)

The COURT.—I will overrule the objection.

Mr. McMillan.—Note an exception. I move

to strike [187] out all of the testimony of the

witness so far as my client is concerned, and ask

that it be limited only to those defendants which

he has named.
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The COURT.—The ruling on that would have

to be made much later, but at this time, the Court,

under the stand taken by the Court, will overrule

the objection. I can see the possibility of that

being reviewed at a later time.

Mr. McMillan.—May I note an exception, and

have the privilege of renewing this motion?

The COURT.—The record will so show.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Now, Mrs. Beans, would

you tell us the conversation that you had with

Mr. Kassmir in his office at the Mills Building

when Mr. Cromwell Simon was present?

Mr. McDonald.—Objected to on behalf of the

defendant Kassmir, that it is immaterial, irrele-

vant, and incompetent, and not within the issues

laid in the indictment.

The COURT.—Overruled. '

Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—We adopt the objection made by

Mr. McDonald.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. Mr. Kassmir explained to me about the busi-

ness, how, in buying the stock, it was the partial

payment plan, and that it would make it easier

for me, and they could earn money, and I would

not have to put in very much money, and in three

months probably I could sell them and make quite

a bit, and I finally consented to let it go on, and it

went on. • K
i W'^

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Mrs. Beans, was anything
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said at that time with reference to the purchase of

Studebaker stock?

A. Yes ; they claimed they had already purchased

it from me.

Only a few days after this Mr, Randolph and

Mr. Kassmir [188] came to my home on Birch

Court; I could not tell you the date, but it must

have been in April, because as I say, I have tried

to forget those things. Mrs. Durham, my niece,

was present at the conversation at this time. Pos-

sibly, Mrs. Durham had been present at previous

conversations had with these people, but I don't

remember that they had ever been over before

together.

YII.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defend-

ants, as will more fully appear as follows

:

Q. On that occasion, what was the substance of

the conversation 1

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Orton Goodwin, on the ground it is im-

material, irrelevant, and incompetent, and hearsay.

The COURT.—Overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—That objection and exception

is adopted by the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

We borrowed $2,500.00 at the back; we talked

it all over together about the borrowing money;

whether they just said, ''Go ahead and do it,"

or what, I don't know, or whether we said we would
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do it, we did it. We borrowed $2,500.00, and in-

structed them to buy Studebaker with it.

VIII.

That the Court erred in admitting in e^adence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows

:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. How did you borrow that

$2,500?

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to as immaterial, irrele-

vant, and [189] incompetent.

Mr. McMillan.—I adopt the objection.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(That the e^ddence admitted over the foregoing

objection and under the ruling of the Court is

fully set forth in the bill of exceptions (Exception

No. 8) filed herewith, to which special reference is

hereby made as the same is made a part hereof.)

IX.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defend-

ants, as will more fully appear as foUows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. What was the conversa-

tion, Mrs. Beans'?

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson I object to this testimony upon the ground

that it is incompetent, that it is hearsay, that it

is a transaction had between strangers, it is too re-

mote, and it does not in any way, shape, or form

show that Mr. Robinson was engaged in any joint

enterprise or in any conspiracy, or in any manner,

shape, or form aided, abetted, or assisted any of
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the defendants charged in the indictment, and that

this testimony sought to be elicited, as well as all

previous testimony elicited from this witness, is

not within any count of the indictment before the

Court.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. Kassmir tried to have her get money from

the east, and I would not want to use the words

that he used, because she was not willing to pull her

money out back east and bring it out here and

place it with them and buy stock. Mr. Randolph

was present. He tried to argue the point with her,

and told her what [190] all he could do for her if

she would bring her money here. He said he would

build it up very wonderfully, made good promises,

I could not tell definitely just what promises he

made, but he made good promises about what he

could do for her. I know Miss Durham did bring

some money from the east; but I don't think I

could tell approximately how much. She turned

the money over to Mr. Kassmir to buy stock, and

he was trying to look up something, that he felt

very sure would go up, and at the same time he

said, as he was putting it, he was keeping it up

his sleeve quite a while, but bye-and-bye he would

be ready to purchase the stock. They got the

money, but I couldn't say how much.

X.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows

:
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Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. To return, Mrs. Beans, to

the conversation you had with reference to the

$2,500 incident; you recall that?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you remember any specific thing that

Mr. Randolph said upon that occasion?

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on the behalf of the

defendant Goodwin on the ground it is immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, and not responding

to any allegations in the indictment, and hearsay.

Mr, HARRIS.—We adopt the objection on be-

half of the defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—We adopt that objection on

behalf of the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception. [191]

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(That the evidence admitted over the foregoing

objection and under the ruling of the Court is fully

set forth in the bill of exceptions (Exception No.

10) filed herewith, to which special reference is

hereby made as the same is made a part hereof.)

XL
That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows:

Just prior to that time, did you have another

conversation with Mr. Randolph and Mr. Kassmir

with reference to your stock.

Mr. McMillan.—That is objected to on behalf
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of the defendant Robinson on all of tlie grounds

heretofore stated, and for the same reasons.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. You may answer.

A. There came a time when the stocks were sort

of hanging low, and so they came to us and wanted

us to give up our stock, that is, let them use the

money—they did not have any stocks, never did

have—and let them use the money, and they would

give us—they could use it to good advantage in their

business, and they would give us $200 a month while

they used it, and then when the stock got good, then

they would put it back in the stock. They took our

money and they paid us $200 a month for two

months, and that was when the bank sprung up.

So I was very anxious to have a little more than

what I had, and offered to put a mortgage on my
home of $4,000.

XII.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully [192] appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Would you please tell us

the conversation you had with Mr. Randolph and

Mr. Kassmir relative to the mortgage on your

house ?

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Goodwin on all of the grounds heretofore

vstated.

Mr. McMillan.—The objections urged are

adopted by the defendant Robinson.
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The COURT.—I will overrule the objection.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. Kassmir said he would look after it for me,

would take charge of it, and look after it, and he

got it fixed up in Mr. Robinson's office, and we went

there.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Before you go there, will

you tell us what conversation you had with these

men when the subject of a $4,000 mortgage was

broached *?

A. They were very pleased over it; I cannot just

tell the words that were used.

Ql. When you say they were very pleased, who

have you reference to?

A. Mr. Kassmir and Mr. Randolph. Where we

saw one we saw the other.

I mortgaged my home at that time. The papers

relative to that mortgage were drawn up in Mr.

Robinson's office and I went there and signed it.

He was present. It was all ready for me to sign;

I believe he did it, but I don't know who did it,

but they were all ready to sign. I actually got the

$4,000, from a broker over in Oakland; and paid it

over to Kassmir and Randolph.

XIII.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows:

Q. Up to this time, Mrs. Beans, how much money
had you and Miss [193] Durham given to Mr.

Randolph ot Mr. Kassmir, if you know, of your

own knowledge'?
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Mr. McGEE.—I object to the question on behalf

of the defendant Goodwin on all of the grounds

stated in the previous objection.

Mr. McMillan.—I adopt the objection on be-

half of the defendant Robinson.

Mr. HARRIS.—And on behalf of the defendant

Randolph.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. Between us, my niece, Miss Durham, and my-

self, we put in $12,056 into what they called their

Reno bank.

XIV.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is all with this witness at

this time, your Honor.

Mr. McGEE.—Before any questions are asked

of the witness on cross-examination, I move on be-

half of the defendant Goodwin that the entire tes-

timony of this witness be stricken from the record

on the grounds previously outlined to your Honor.

Mr. SWEENEY.—We expect to connect it up

with Mr. Goodwin,

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—May we have the benefit of

that motion and your Honor's ruling?

The COURT.—The same ruling.
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Mr. McMillan.—We respectfully note an ex-

ception, your Honor, [194]

XV.
The Court erred in denying the motion of said

defendants to strike out certain testimony, as will

more fully appear as follows:

Mr. McGEE.—I move to strike from the record,

on the grounds previously stated, first, that this

lady, according to her testimony, parted with what-

ever value she parted with not on the basis of any

letters received by her through the mail, but on the

oral representations of Randolph and Kassmir, and

that there is nothing in the testimony of this witness

pointing to the allegation of the indictment that the

mails were used to defraud; whether she was de-

frauded actually, or not, is not a question for this

court. The question before this court and jury

is whether she was defrauded through the use of

the mails, and, according to the testimony of this

witness, she was not defrauded by the use of the

mails, but if she was defrauded at all it was by the

oral representation made by Kassmir and Ran-

dolph ; on the further ground, if your Honor please,

in so far as the defendant Goodwin is concerned,

that \he testimony is hearsay, immaterial, irrele-

vant, and incompetent.

Mr, McMillan.—As to the defendant Robinson,

we join in that motion in all respects.

Mr. HARRIS.—And the defendant Randolph

joins in it, except as to the third specification.

Th.; COURT.—It wdll be overruled.

Mr, HARRIS.—Exception. ;
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Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

XVI.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows : [195]

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will show you this and

ask you if you can identify it.

A. I recognize it.

Mr. SWEENEY.—You are familiar with these,

Mr. Harris?

Mr. HARRIS.—Those are the agent's licenses'?

Mr. SWEENEY.—^Yes, issued under the Crom-

well Simon brokerage license.

Mr HARRIS.—Yes, I have seen them.

Mr SWEENEY.—At this time I want to offer in

evidence as one exhibit the application of J. W.
Randolph for authority to act as broker's agent,

and the order, both of which are dated April 20,

1925, also a similar document for Orton E. Good-

win, J. Edward McClintock and W. Claude Owen.

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson, I object to the introduction of these docu-

ments in evidence on the ground that there has been

no showing whatever concerning his knowledge of

the matters therein contained, they are in no way

binding upon him, and, therefore, are incompetent

as to him.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

XVII.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence
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certain testimoii}- over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will show you this, here,

and ask you if you can identify that, Mr. Ellis (ex-

hibiting to witness a document purporting to be

a revocation of the license of Cromwell Simon &
Co.).

A. I recognize that, yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I wish to intro-

duce this particular document in evidence. I think

you, Gentlemen, are familiar with it.

Mr. McMillan.—Objected to on behalf of the

defendant [196] Robinson on the ground that

so far as he is concerned the proper foundation

has not been laid, that it is hearsay, and incom-

petent.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection on behalf of

the defendant Randolph, and the further objection

that it is in no way binding upon him.

Mr. SWEENEY.—We will connect it up later on.

Mr. HARRIS.—Do I understand it is part of the

case to have the license revoked 1

Mr. SWEENEY.—No, it is not to have it revoked.

It is part of this case to have it continued in force.

Mr. HARRIS.—The point I make is that no im-

plication should be transferred to my client by the

fact that Cromwell Simon & Company had their

license revoked, and, therefore, it is immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent as to him, and no foun-

dation has been laid as to him.

The COURT.—I do not believe there has been

any foundation laid to place it in evidence, even if
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it was revoked. There is nothing to indicate they

had notice of it. I think it can be received only

for identification.

Mr. SWEENEY.—If a part of the scheme is to

maintain the license of Cromwell Simon any effort

made by them to retain that license is admissible

in evidence, it is part of the res gestae, it is part

of the whole scheme to defraud.

The COURT.—Do I understand that you hope to

show that it was revoked, and that there was an

attempt made later

—

Mr. SWEENEY.—Not only that, but after that

date

—

The COURT.—Just a minute. Answer my ques-

tion. Do I understand then you want to introduce

the facts, if it is a fact, that there was a revocation,

and subsequently they tried to have it set aside;

is that what you are trying to show?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes. I will ask Mr. Ellis a

question. [197]

Q. Mr. Ellis, was a copy of that mailed to the

applicants'? A. It was mailed.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection. I

cannot see the bearing of this document upon any

possible issue in this case, unless it was brought to

the knowledge of individuals involved. I do not

think you have built up circumstantially, or by

direct evidence, yet, that it was.

Mr. SWEENEY.—If it was mailed to the people

interested, the presumption is it was received.

The COURT.—If it had been dropped into the

postoffice box, I would concede your position.
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Mr. SWEENEY.—If it had been mailed in the

ordinary course of business conducted by a big

organization or a big concern, it would be.

Mr. McGEE.—If you were attempting to prove

the mailing of notices at the time of the probate of

a will, or something of that kind, you would have to

come in with an affidavit of the person mailing the

notice; that is the only way you could prove it, by

the person who mailed it. I submit that it is not

admissible in evidence for two reasons previously

stated, and on the further ground that no founda-

tion has been laid that it was ever brought to the

attention of the defendants, or of either of them.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection. It

will be received for identification.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Is the reason that it is not

received in evidence because the Grovemment has

not yet proved it was properly mailed?

The COURT.—It has not been proved that it was

properly mailed, or that it had come to the attention

of the defendants.

Mr. SWEENEY.—In the record so far we have

a decree by [198] Judge Deasy setting aside the

injunction granted against the Corporation Com-

missioner for revoking their license, so we have al-

ready covered in the record that it must have been

brought to their attention.

Mr. HARRIS.—It is still not brought to the at-

tention of Randolph.

Mr. McGEE.—Nor brought to the attention of

the defendant Goodwin.

The COURT.—I think that is a good point. The
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objections heretofore made will be overruled, and

it will be received in evidence.

Mr. McGEE.—Is it in evidence for all purposes

against all the defendants—against the defendant

Goodwin 1

The COURT.—The Court has not made any ex-

ception in the ruling.

Mr. McGEE.—We note an exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—We note an exception as to the

defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—And we note an exception as

to the defendant Robinson.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 7.)

XVIII.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of defendants, as

will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Mr. Ellis, you personally

held this hearing on which this particular decree

was predicated?

A. I personally conducted the hearing.

Q. Who was present at that hearing of the de-

fendants, if you know?

A. Cromwell Simon and Harry M. Kassmir.

Q. At that hearing which one of the defendants

took the stand? [199]

A. Cromwell Simon took the stand.

Q. Were certain exhibits offered by him in evi-

dence at that time? A. There were.

Q. At this time I will show this letter and ask

you if you can identify it. A. I do.

Q. When did you see that for the first time?
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A. That was filed at that hearing.

Q. By whom'?

A. March, 1925, by Cromwell Simon & Co.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At tliis time I ask that this

be introduced in evidence and if it is accepted I

will read it later.

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Goodwin on the ground that it is not bind-

ing on him, immaterial, irrelevant and incompetent,

hearsay, secondary evidence, it not having been

shown that Goodwin knew anything about its con-

tents, no foundation has been laid.

Mr. SWEENEY.—It purports to be a financial

statement of that concern on a particular date, filed

by Cromwell Simon, in the presence of Harry M.

Kassmir, at a hearing held by the Corporation Com-

missioner.

Mr. McMillan.—Held at what date^

Mr. SWEENEY.—On the date that Mr. Ellis tes-

tified to.

Mr. HARRIS.—It appears to be a summary of

certain books, and nothing is shown that the de-

fendant whom I represent, or any of the other de-

fendants, had particular access to those books, or

had the care or control of those books. That was

exactly the point upon which the Doble case was

reversed by the Supreme Court. They attempted to

introduce a resume of certain books just as they

are doing here, and Judge Preston at that time

held that by implication you could not hold a person

responsible in that sort of fashion. If your Honor

please, I have the decision here. [200]
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The COURT.—I understand that, but I do not

believe that it would support the defendants in this

case.

Q. Who presented that at the hearing in behalf

of the Cromwell Simon Company?

A. It was presented by both sides; it was stipu-

lated by Cromwell Simon and Harry Kassmir that

it might be used by both sides.

Q. Who spoke for the company?

A. Cromwell Simon, in that case.

Mr, HARRIS.—If your Honor please, with your

Honor's permission I move to strike out the state-

ment of the witness in response to your Honor's

question on the ground that it is his conclusions,

and not the best evidence, the record of the hearing

being the best evidence.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McMillan.—^We desire to adopt the objec-

tion of Mr. Harris, on behalf of the defendant Rob-

inson.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer it in e\i-

dence but I will not read it until later on.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.

XIX.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of defendants,

as will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer these pur-

chase agreements in evidence, signed by L. M. Mc-

Clintock.

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson, the offer is objected to on the ground
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the proper foundation has not been laid as to him,

incompetent, irrelevant, not within the issues of this

case, and hearsay as to him; and these purported

agreements deal with a time when, as the defend-

ant Robinson, imder no possible theory of this case,

would he be bound by these documents, or any of

them. [201]

Mr. HARRIS.—On behalf of the defendant Ran-

dolph, I adopt the objection of the defendant Robin-

son.

The COURT.—You offer these as showing the

activities of these men at that time?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes, and that they were sub-

sequently adopted by Mr. Robinson when he en-

tered into the scheme.

The COURT.—You also believe that the activi-

ties of this firm were for the purpose of this design ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—It was the scheme, part of the

scheme.

Mr. McMillan.—I ask that the statement of the

District Attorney, when he subsequently entered

the scheme, be stricken out, as there is no proof

whatever he ever entered into any scheme.

The COURT.—The statements of counsel are not

evidence, no matter what counsel may say, unless it

is stipulated to. I will overrule the objection.

Mr. McMillan.—Note an exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Note an exception.

(The purchase agreements are marked U. S. Ex-

hibit 9.)

During that hearing I interrogated Mr. Cromwell
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Simon concerning these purchase agreements.

[202]

XX.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendants as

will more fully appear as follows

:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Purchase agreement No. 1,

''Herewith find money order or check for, as col-

lateral, to apply as first payment on 100 shares of

General Motors, Market, 100 shares of Studebaker,

Market,"—I will ask you if you asked Mr. Crom-

well Simon whether those stocks were bought, the

date of that being February 25, 1925.

Mr. HARRIS.—We object to that as leading

and suggestive, irrelevant, and immaterial, and not

binding upon the defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson joins

in the objection.

The COURT.—Overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Do you have a record of

that hearing in your hand ?

A. I have.

Q. You have refreshed your memory from that

record? A. I have.

Q. What was the answer of Cromwell Simon with

reference to the purchase agreements'?

A. That they had not purchased them.

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to as immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, hearsay, as far as the

witness is concerned, because there is no foundation
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laid showing that he made that memorandum, him-

self, and he testifies he refreshed his recollection

from that memorandum, which is pure hearsay.

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection on behalf

of the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—Q. You have that in your hand.

You just refreshed your memory*?

A. I have not refreshed my memory recently

[203] from this, but I recall and have read the

transcript, however, in connection with this case.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—^Exceptlon.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. You have an independent

recollection of this transaction, also? A. I have.

Q. I will show you a purchase agreement marked
'*3," which says, "Herewith find money order or

check to apply as first payment on the following,

100 shares Marland Oil, market." Do you recall

asking Mr. Cromwell Simon at that time whether

those shares were bought?

Mr. HARRIS.—We also object on the same

grounds on behalf of the defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection on behalf

of defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr, McMillan.—Exception.

A. Yes, we interrogated Cromwell Simon with re-

gard to each one of these six, and to each one he

replied that they had not purchased the security.
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(That the evidence admitted over the foregoing

objection and under the ruling of the Court is more

fully set forth in the bill of exceptions (Exception

No. 20) filed herewith, to which special reference

is hereby made as the same is made a part hereof.)

XXI.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendants as

will more fully appear as follows : [204]

Ql Did Mr. Simon, at the date of that hearing,

tell how much money he had taken out as his part

of the profits of Cromwell Simon & Co. ?

Mr. HARRIS.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Randolph as leading and suggestive, and

the grounds stated in the other objection. (Imma-

terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and not binding

upon him.)

Mr. SWEENEY.—The statement I was about to

make is this, the contention of the Government is

that the attempt of Cromwell Simon and Mr. Kass-

mir to continue their license in effect by the oppo-

sition to this hearing is a part of the scheme, be-

cause we state in the indictment that the obtaining

and acting of Cromwell Simon & Co. under a

broker's license is part of the scheme.

Mr. HARRIS.—Our contention is that in order

to do that the Government does not have to lead

as adept a witness as this, that he can relate what

was said and done without suggestions from counsel.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
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A. Mr. Cromwell Simon did state the amount of

money lie had taken out of the business, yes.

(That the evidence admitted over the foregoing

objection and under the ruling of the Court is more

fully set forth in the bill of exceptions (Exception

No. 21) filed herewith, to which special reference

is hereby made as the same is made a part hereof.)

XXII.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendants as

will more fully appear as follows: [205]

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I want to offer

in evidence the application for Broker's certificate

of J. "W. Randolph, doing business as Charles Wes-

ley Company.

Mr. McGEE.—^As far as the defendant Goodwin

is concerned, w^e object to that as immaterial, irrele-

vant, and incompetent, hearsay, on the further

ground that it is not responsive to any of the alle-

gations of the indictment; there is nothing said in

this indictment about Wesley Company. The

only names they mention are Cromwell Simon &

Cromwell & Co. There is nothing said about the

Wesley Company, and we object to it as not re-

sponsive to any allegations of the indictment.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson joins

in the objection, and a.lso that the proper foundation

has not been paid.

Mr. SWEENEY.—The position of the Govern-

ment is this, that when Cromw^ell Simon Company

ceased to function, they started in business as
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Charles Wesley Company, and continued to do busi-

ness,

Mr. HARRIS.—Q. Where was that^

Mr. SWEENEY.—In Los Angeles.

Mr. McGEE.—But this crime is charged in the

Northern District of California.

Mr. SWEENEY.—The scheme, however, Mr.

McGee, might go through the whole country.

Mr. McGEE.—I object to that as immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, not responsive to any

of the allegations in the indictment.

The COURT.—In other words, you are going to

follow it up further than Cromwell Simon & Com-

pany ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—^Yes, we are going to show that

they conducted business as Charles Wesley Com-

pany, operating from 1403 Hobart Building, where

we are going to leave the Cromwell Simon Com-

pany, and there on the same date that they were

put out of business by [206] the Superior Court

of the City and County of San Francisco, they

started in business as Charles Wesley Company.

Mr. McGEE.—This indictment charges that

within the State and Northern District of Cali-

fornia, Southern Division, the crime of using the

mails to defraud was committed. They are going-

down to Los Angeles, now, which is another dis-

trict, not in this district, and from there, according

to the letter that they have attached to the indict-

ment, they are going up to Seattle. In other words,

any place they find Simon or Kassmir doing busi-

ness under any name, in this district or some other
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district, they are going to trail him around all

through the dealings; I submit, if your Honor

please, that the indictment charges this crime was

committed in the Northern District of California,

and if they subsequently organized a business down
in Los Angeles, or Seattle, it is not material.

The COURT.—The whole question is whether

it is one common scheme, and the question is to

make the connection. I agree with counsel if the

connection is not made to show it is all one scheme

or course of conduct on the part of the defendants,

if the evidence does not connect it up it will not be

proper. I will overrule the objection.

Mr, McGrEE.—Note an exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Note an exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Note an exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 10.)

XXIII.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendants as

will more fully appear as follows

:

Mr. HARRIS.—Now, if your Honor please, I

make the motion that the testimony be stricken out

on the ground that it is a [207] privileged com-

munication.

The COURT.—Q'. You also wrote personal let-

ters outside of the business letters while you were

there? A. Not that I remember.

Q. You never wrote a personal letter?

A. I do not just remember any personal letters.

Q. They always related to business? A. Yes.
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iQi. He never wrote a letter that did not relate to

some client? A. Not that I remember.

Q'. The entire time that you were there ?

A. No.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin joins in

the motion to strike out the testimony.

Mr. McDonald.—The defendant Kassmir joins

in the motion.

Mr. McMillan.—And the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—I think you ought to make some

statement for the record, Mr. Sweeney.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I don't understand what the

particular motion is.

Mr. HARRIS.—The motion is to strike out the

testimony given by this witness from the record, on

the ground it is a confidential commimication.

The COURT.—On the ground it was procured in

a confidential relationship.

Mr. SWEENEY.—As I understand the rule, not

all information that is acquired while a person is

a clerk or a secretary is confidential; for instance,

the matter of signature is a matter in which a per-

son might be able to raise the curtain of confidential

communication and use it as a screen for commit-

ting crime. The privilege, itself, is a matter of

the client. If Mr. Robinson's clients were here, or

something of that character, complaining as to it

—

The COURT.—The matter of obtaining informa-

tion as to a [208] man's signature, in my opinion,

is not a matter of confidential communication. The

objection will be overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
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Mr. McGEE,—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—I desire to answer coimsel's

statement. I just want to call your Honor's atten-

tion to the section covering that ver}^ point, Section

1881 of the Code of Civil Procedure (reading).

The COURT.—It is not the opinion of the Court

that that pertains to knowledge acquired of a per-

son's handwriting. The ruling will stand.

Mr. HARRIS.—Note an exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Note an exception.

Mr. McDonald.—Note an exception.

Mr. McGEE.—Note an exception.

(That the evidence admitted over the foregoing

objection and under the iniling of the Court is more

fully set forth in the bill of exceptions (Exception

No. 23) filed herewith, to which special reference

is hereby made as the same is made a part hereof.)

XXIV.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendants as

will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—If your Honor please, I will

offer this in evidence as Government's exhibit next

in order.

The COURT.—For identification, or in evidence?

Mr. SWEENEY.—In evidence, your Honor.

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to, as far as the

defendant Randolph is concerned as being in no way

binding upon him, a hearsay [209] transaction
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between strangers to him, immaterial, irrelevant

and incompetent.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson joins

in that objection.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. SWEENEY.—It is part of the scheme, that

is the Government's contention.

The COURT.—It will be received and marked

next in order.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The coument was marked U. S. Exhibit 12.)

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will read it. (Reading.)

XXV.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendants as

will more fully appear as follows

:

Q. Now, Mrs. McClintock, let me have, please,

the circumstances under which this agreement was

entered into by you. Let me withdraw that ques-

tion. I will ask you can you identify that.

A. Yes.

Qi. What is that? That is your signature, is it

not? A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I ask that this be introduced

in evidence as Government's Exhibit next in order.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection as made to

the last exhibit.

Mr. McMillan.—We join in the objection.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
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Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 13.)

(That the evidence admitted over the foregoing

objection [210] and under the ruling of the

Court is more fully set forth in the bill of excep-

tions (Exception No. 25) filed herewith, to which

special reference is hereby made as the same is

made a part hereof.)

XXVI.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendants as

will more fully appear as follows:

Q. What was the nature of the conversation you

had with Mr. Kassmir at that time ?

A. He was going down

—

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to as calling for

the conclusion of the witness, what the nature of it

was, and no proper foundation has been paid as to

the parties present.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Who was present at that

conversation,. Mrs. McClintock?

A. Mr. Kassmir.

Qi. What was the conversation, what did Mr.

Kassmir say?

Mr. McG-EE.—That is objected to on behalf of the

defendant Goodwin on the ground that it could not

be binding on him, and because he was not con-

nected with the concern in Los Angeles, he had no

license connected with any enterprise in Los An-

geles, he worked in San Francisco for three months,

and after that had nothing to do with it ; we object
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to any conversation this lady had with anybody

about any Los Angeles concern.

Mr. HAERIS.—I would like to add the further

objection that it is incompetent, for the reason that

it is the alleged relation of a co-conspirator after

any conspiracy which might have existed had been

consummated. This is now in September, 1925, at

a time when this conspiracy terminated.

The COURT.—When do you fix the date that you

can put in proof to?

Mr. SWEENEY.—There is an allegation in the

indictment [211] that prior to the date of cer-

tain letters, and the last letter is somewhere in 1927,

if I remember right.

The COURT.—Have you it on record, so that we

can know?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Certainly there are letters in

1926.

The COURT.—I am just asking you what date

you are contending that you can put in proof for,

so that we can fix the date after which the declara-

tions of a defendant will only appertain to himself

and not to his associates.

Mr. SWEENEY.—March 8, 1927.

Mr. HARRIS.—Is it my understanding that it

is counsel's contention that up to March, 1927

—

Mr. SWEENEY.—March 8, 1927.

Mr. HARRIS.—(Continuing.) —the scheme had

not until that time been consummated or completed

:

Is that it?

Mr. SWEENEY.—It was in operation up to that

time.
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Mr. HARRIS.—Of course, if counsel connects

that up my objection may not be good.

The COURT.—That is why I wanted him to fix

the date.

Mr. McGEE.—Now, do I understand that there

is a date when this consi)iracy is supposed to have

ceased, or is it still in existence?

Mr. SWEENEY.—It was in existence up to

March 8, 1927.

Mr. McGEE.—Not after that ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—We do not contend it is in ex-

istence now.

The COURT.—Q. This date is what, that you are

testifying to ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—September, 1925, when he

went to Los Angeles.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled

and the question allowed.

Mr. HARRIS.—We will note an exception, and

reserve our [212] motion to strike out.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. What was the nature of

the conversation you had with Mr. Kassmir—what

was the conversation you had with Mr. Kassmir at

that time?

A. That he was going down to Los Angeles to

open up a business to get away from the Corpora-

tion Department of San Francisco.

Q. Did he say who was going down with him?

A. Mr. Randolph.

XXVII.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-
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tain testimony over the objection of the defendants

as will more fully appear as follows:

Q, What was the conversation you had at that

time with Mr. Kassmir?

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Goodwin on the ground it is immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, hearsay testimony, and

not binding on the defendant Goodwin, unless it

is shown he was present at the time the conversa-

tion took place.

A. It was in August, 1925.

Mr. HAERIS.—That objection is adopted by the

defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—Also by the defendant Rob-

inson.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(That the evidence admitted over the foregoing

objection and under the ruling of the Court is more

fully set forth in the bill of exceptions (Exception

No. 27) filed herewith, to which special reference

is hereby made as the same is made a part hereof.)

[213]

XXVIII.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of the defendants

as will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will ask you, Mrs. Mc-

Clintock, if you can identify these letters.

A. Yes.
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Q. From whom did you get them?

A. From Harry M. Kassmir.

Q. How did they come to you?

A. Through the mail.

Q. Do you know when you received them, in what

year? A. 1926.

Q. 1926? A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I would like to have these

marked as Government's exhibit next in order, your

Honor.

Mr. McGEE.—On behalf of the defendant Good-

win, I object on the ground they are inamaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, and hearsay, as far

as Goodwin is concerned, he having severed his con-

nection with this company on the 2d of July, 1925,

and all of this transaction having taken place

subsequent to that time.

Mr. McMillan.—We make the same objection

as to the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Objected to on the ground it is

hearsay, incompetent, the proper foundation not

having been laid.

The COURT.—I do not know, unless I see the

letters, as to whether they do pertain to this mat-

ter, at all. (Reading.)

Q. Who is this "Harry''?

A. That is Harry M. Kassmir.

The COURT.—They will be received in evidence.

The objection is overruled.
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Mr. HAERIS.—Exception. [214]

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 14.)

XXIX.
The Court erred in denying motion of defendants

to strike out certain testimony as will more fully

appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is all from this witness

at this time.

The COURT.—Any further questions'?

Mr. McMillan.—I have no questions.

On behalf of the defendant Robinson we move to

strike out all of the testimony of this mtness upon

the following grounds: First, that the testimony

as against him is hearsay, the proper foundation

has not been paid, and there is no testimony show-

ing that he ever authorized or sanctioned, or took

any part in any statements or representations that

were made, that he never authorized or sanctioned

any of the letters that were sent through the United

States mail and the transaction testified to by the

witness, so far as he was concerned, was res iriter

alios acta, and there is no testimony showing that

he ever made any statement or representation or

sanctioned or authorized any representation made

in furtherance either of a general plan or scheme

to defraud, or of a general plan or scheme in fur-

therance of fraud to use the United States mails.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
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Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection on behalf

of the defendant Randolph.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.

XXX.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony [215] over the objection of the

defendants as will more fully appear as follows

:

Q. I will show you this letter and ask you if you

can identify that? A. Yes, I remember that.

Q. How did you get that letter?

A. I got it through the United States mails.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Any question about this sig-

nature ?

Mr. McGEE.—No questions.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I would ask that

this letter be admitted in evidence as Government's

exhibit next in order.

Mr. McMillan.—What is the date of that let-

ter?

Mr. SWEENEY.—March 24, 1925.

Mr. McMillan.—We object to it on behalf of

the defendant Robinson on the ground, as to him,

it is too remote, hearsay, and the proper founda-

tion has not been laid.

The COURT.—That is your only objection?

Mr. McMillan.—Yes.
The COURT,—I suppose there is no question

about the signature?

Mr. McOEE.—No. We admit the signature, and

have no objection on behalf of Goodwin.

The COURT.—And none of the other defend-
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ants raise the question as to the signature? In

other words, it is stipulated that is the signature

of the party whose name is signed there f

The COURT.—Is there any question as to the

signature ?

Mr. McGEE.—No question as to the signature.

Mr. HARRIS.—I will stipulate that that is the

signature of Mr. Goodwin.

The COURT.—Will both of you, Gentlemen, also

do that?

Mr. McDonald.—Yes.
Mr. McMillan.—Yes, my only point is that

—

[216]

The COURT.—I know the other points. WiU
you stipulate that is the signature?

Mr. McMillan.—Yes.
The COURT.—Under the circumstances it will

be received and the objection overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 18.)

(Which original exhibit is before this Honorable

Court by stipulation and order.)

XXXL
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of the defendants

as will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will show you this letter and

ask you if you can identify it.

A. Yes, I remember that letter, too.

Q. How did you get it?

A. Through the United States mails.
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Mr. SWEENEY.—Is there any question about

the signature?

Mr. HARRIS.—I have no question about the

signature.

Mr. McMillan.—I have none.

Mr. McGEE.—I have none.

Mr. McDonald.—I have none.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time, if your Honor

please, I offer in evidence the letter dated April 8,

1925, addressed to Mr. Johnson, Chualar, Califor-

nia, signed by Cromwell Simon Company, by Orton

E. Goodwin.

Mr. McMillan.—objected to on behalf of the

defendant Robinson on the grounds previously

stated in the objection made to the previous letter.

Mr. HARRIS.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Randolph on the ground it is immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent [217] as to him, not

in any way binding upon him, they being entire

strangers to him, and without any authorization

shown.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 19.)

XXXII.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of the defend-

ants as will more fully appear as follows

:

Q. I will show you this tile and ask if you can

identify these. A. Yes.

Q. How did you receive them?
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A. Through the United States mail.

Mr. McGEE.—Does that include all of them?

Mr. SWEENEY.—The first four, they are all

inclusive.

Mr. McGEE,—Does that include the enclosures?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes.

The COURT.

—

Let letters contain the enclosures,

too, did they?

A. Yes.

Q. In the same letter?

A. I don't know whether they all came in the

same letter, but they all came through the mail.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer this file

in evidence, which is Government's Exhibit No. 6

for identification.

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson that is objected to, may it please your

Honor, upon the ground that as to him it is too re-

mote, hearsa}^, and the proper foundation has not

been laid.

Mr. HARRIS.—^As I understand it, it is for

identification ?

The COURT.-No, in evidence.

Mr. HARRIS.—We object to it on behalf of the

defendant Randolph on the ground it has not been

connected up with him or [218] shown to be the

same transaction which was testified to as having

been made with Mr. Randolph, not authorized by

him.

The COURT.—I presume there is no question

that it is the signature of the gentleman whose

name appears at the end of the letter?
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Ml-. SWEENEY.—I think it has already been

identified. It is one of the identified letters. It

was identified, your Honor.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 20.)

XXXIII.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of the defend-

ants as will more fully appear as follows:

Q. Mr. Johnson, I want to ask you how you got

that letter.

A. I got it through the mail, the same as the

others.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Is there any question about

the signature?

Mr. McGEE.—Not at all.

Mr. HARRIS.—No question as to the signature.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I ask, if your Honor please,

that the letter dated May 14, 1925, addressed to Mr.

G. A. Johnson, signed by Cromwell Simon Com-

pany, Orton Goodwin, be admitted in evidence as

Government's next in order.

The COURT.—Is there any question that that is

the signature of the individual who signed if?

Mr. HARRIS.—No question of that.

The COURT.—Do any of the defendants' coun-

sel question the signature'?

Mr. McMillan.—No. [219]

The COURT.—I do not hear you say anything,

Mr. McDonald.
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Mr. McDonald.—No, if your Honor please.

Mr. McGEE.—We admit that is his signature.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson ob-

jects on the ground that it is too remote, hearsay,

the proper foundation has not been laid.

Mr. HARRIS.—I do not question the signature

appearing on the document, but I object on behalf

of the defendant Randolph on the ground that no

foundation has been laid, it is incompetent and

especially irrelevant.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 21.)

XXXIV.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of the defendants

as will more fully appear as follows:

Q. I will show you this letter, and ask you how

you received that letter.

A. I received it through the United States mail.

Q. This refers to a letter of June 24. Have you

a copy of that letter ?

A. I have not, I don't think.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I ask that this

letter dated July 7, 1925, signed by J. W. Randolph,

whose signature has already been identified, be of-

fered as Government's exhibit next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Goodwin on the ground it is immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, hearsay, as far as he

is concerned, in nowise binding upon him, unless
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it is proved that the contents of the letter were

brought to his attention. [220]

Mr. McMillan.—Defendant Robinson adopts

that objection.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 22.)

XXXV.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of the defendants

as will more fully appear as follows

:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Mr. Johnson, I will ask

you if you can identify that.

A. Yes, I remember that one weU.

Q. When did you receive if? A. On May 18.

Q. How did you receive it *?

A. Through the United States mail.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time, your Honor, I

offer in evidence what purports to be a dividend

notice signed by Cromwell Simon Company, per

V. A. Parks.

Mr. McMillan.—objected to on behalf of the

defendant Robinson on the ground it is too remote,

hearsay, and the proper foundation has not been

laid.

Mr. HARRIS.—I adopt the objection of the de-

fendant Robinson on behalf of the defendant Ran-

dolph.

The COURT.—Objection overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
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(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 23.)

XXXVI.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of the defendants

as will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will ask you if you can

identify that, Mr. Johnson.

A. I remember that one, too.

Q. How did you receive that, Mr. Johnson"?

A. Through the mail. [221]

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer in evi-

dence what purports to be a dividend notice dated

August 17, 1925, and signed by Cromwell Simon

Company, per V, A. Parks.

Mr. HARRIS.—On behalf of the defendant Ran-

dolph we object on the grounds previously stated

as to the last dividend notice.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson ob-

jects to it on the ground it is hearsay, incompetent

and irrelevant, and the proper foundation has not

been laid.

The COURT.—Objection overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 24.)

(Which original exhibit is before this Honorable

Court by stipulation and order and is the letter or

payment notice set forth in the indictment as Ex-

hibit ''L")

XXXVII.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-
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tain testimony over the objection of the defendants

as will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I ask you if you can iden-

tify that.

A. Yes, I remember that.

The COURT.—How did you receive it?

A. Through the mails.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I offer it as Government's ex-

hibit next in order.

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to on behalf of

the defendant Randolph on the ground that there

is no foundation laid, no showing that Randolph

in anywise authorized the sending of it, or had

anything to do with it in any way whatsoever, im-

material, irrelevant, and incompetent, and hearsay.

[222]

Mr. McMillan. — The defendant Robinson

makes the same objection.

The COURT.—All of these documents received

through the mail you received on or about the date

mentioned upon their face, did you*?

A. Yes.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 25.)

XXXVIII.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of the defendants

as wiU more fully appear as follows

:

Q. I will show you this check, Mr. Johnson, and

ask you if you can identify that. A. Yes, I can.



252 Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph

Q. To whom did you mail that check, if you did

mail it? A. To Cromwell Simon & Co.

Q. Where did you address the letter to?

A. To the building on Montgomery—the Mills

Building, 220—I don't quite remember the address;

I don't remember quite what address it was now; it

was in the Mills Building, I think 220 Montgomery

Street.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I want to pre-

sent in evidence a check signed by Gustave A. John-

son, dated November 3, 1925, payable to Cromwell

Simon Company.

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Goodwin upon the ground it is immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, hearsay, and upon the

further ground that it does not respond to any alle-

gation contained in the indictment. There is no

allegation in this indictment that anybody was de-

frauded of any money, there is no allegation in the

indictment that anybody paid any money, and here

is an attempt made to show that the money has

[223] been paid when there is no allegation in the

indictment to that effect.

Mr. McDonald.—The defendant Kassmir

joins in that objection.

The COURT.—I do not see the reason for put-

ting it in evidence. He states he made the pay-

ment.

Mr. SWEENEY.—We want to show by this wit-

ness that he paid this check to Cromwell Simon &
Company. On the accounts of Cromwell Simon &
Company that check does not show up. We charge
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in the indictment here it was part of the scheme

and artifice to defraud that the defendant should

take and convert such collateral securities to their

own use and benefit.

The COURT.—My point is this, the witness on

the stand testifies that he made such payment on

or about that time. Now, why is it necessary to

introduce the check? If the defendant should try

to show it did not occur, that he had not sent that

check at that time, then you could produce the

check, but I don't see any necessity for putting the

check in at this time.

Mr. SWEENEY.—There is the matter of en-

dorsement on the back. We want to show that this

specific money was specifically converted to the use

of one of the defendants.

The COURT.—Q, Do I understand that you sent

this check through the mails that Mr. Sweeney is

holding in his hands, that he showed you?

A. Yes, through the United States mails.

Q. You got it back, I suppose, in your statement

later? A. Yes, I got it back.

Q. That is all you know about the payment?

A. That is all I know.

Mr. HARRIS.—I would like to join in the ob-

jection that has already been made.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson

joins in the objection.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception. [224]

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
;
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Mr. McDonald.—You wlll stipulate that that

is not the signature of the defendant Kassmir?

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will so stipulate, it is not

the signature of Harry M. Kassmir.

A. I never did get back my Di Giorgia stock nor

my Standard Oil stock.

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is all from this witness

at this time.

The COURT.—Now, Mr. Sweeney, you have

made a concession that that is not the signature of

Mr. Kassmir.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will merely put it in, then,

for the purpose of identification at this time.

(The check is marked U. S. Exhibit 41 for Iden-

tification.)

XXXIX.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence cer-

tain testimony over the objection of the defendants

as will more fully appear as follows

:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Mrs. Christensen, you

were employed in office 1403 Hobart Building dur-

ing the latter part of 1925 ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did Mr. Kassmir ever give you any state-

ments to send out at that time?

Mr. McDonald.—That is objected to as imma-

terial, irrelevant, and incompetent. This witness

has testified that she was a stenographer in the

office of Mr. Kassmir 's attorney, and all of her tes-

timony would be privileged.

Mr. HARRIS.—I make the objection that it is

an attempt to adduce a privileged communication
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from this witness, which is not permitted by law,

therefore immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent.

Mr. McGEE.—I join in that objection.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Mr. Kassmir is not an at-

torney, at least [225] that much must be ad-

mitted.

Mr. HARRIS.—I have a direct decision upon

the point, that even if the statement is made by the

client through an agent of the attorney, for in-

stance, an interpreter, whom it is necessary for him

to communicate through, that the privilege extends,

and it extends, of course, for the specific reason

that he should be permitted to talk freely to him.

The COURT.—I think in this case the theory

upon which the prosecution is working is that this

is a case where an attorney was a party to the

scheme, and went into it intentionally, and conse-

quently, is one of the people in the design, and

was not merely one who was consulted for protec-

tion in some transaction. The fact that he is an

attorney at law does not make him any the less

amenable to the charge of using the mails to de-

fraud. I think it is along that line that counsel

spoke of that English case.

Mr. HARRIS.—Now, it has been very plainly

shown by the Government's testimony, in so far as

Robinson is concerned, he came into it many

months after

—

The COURT.—Counsel is anticipating. I do

not believe it is necessary for me to rule on it at

this time, because I have the district attorney's as-



256 Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph

surance that it will be connected up, and the prose-

cution has not rested.

Mr. HAREIS,—I think a ruling should be made
at this time, because after the testimony is given

the damage will be done, and after two weeks' tes-

timony here the jury will have difficulty in deter-

mining what is stricken out.

The COURT.—The prosecution cannot put in

their evidence all at once; the case is being built

up; it is a question for the Court finally as to

whether it has been built up. There is no practi-

cal way of ruling to satisfy counsel's objection;

the [226] Court cannot decide it until the testi-

mony is in; from a practical standpoint, there is

no way for the Court to rule on it now. When the

prosecution rests we will know better what is in

the record. Proceed, Mr. Sweeney.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Answer the question.

A. Would you ask it again f

Mr. HARRIS.—Does your Honor overrule the

objection?

The COURT.—I overrule the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
(That the evidence admitted over the foregoing

objection and under the ruling of the Court is more

fully set forth in the bill of exceptions (Exception

No. 39) filed herewith, to which special reference

is hereby made as the same is made a part hereof.)
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xxxx.
The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendants as

will more fully appear as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I want to offer

in evidence both the letter written by Judge Bar-

din and the answer thereto, as Government's ex-

hibit next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to as immaterial, irrele-

vant, and incompetent, not binding on the defend-

ant Goodwin, being hearsay, unless it appears that

he was informed of its contents,

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection on behalf of

the defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—And also on behalf of the de-

fendant Robinson. [227]

The COURT.—I suppose you are raising no is-

sues as to whether it was deposited in the United

States mail?

Mr. McDonald.—No.
The COURT.—The objection is overruled, and

it will be received in evidence.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 26.)

[228]

EXCEPTION No. 41.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence the tes-

timony of Mr. Pike, an attorney at law, in Reno,

Nevada, and exhibits introduced in connection

therewith, the objections to which were primarily
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directed to the claim that the commimications testi-

fied to were privileged and all of which objections

and the rulings made will be hereinafter fully set

forth at length and all of which rulings are hereby

specifically under this number assigned as error.

Leroy F. Pike, an attorney at law, in Reno, Ne-

vada, called as a witness on behalf of the Govern-

ment, testified that he knew the defendant Robin-

son and had met him a couple of times, and knew

the defendant Kassmir and met him once, and met

the defendant Simon once.

Thereupon the following proceedings were had:

[229]

Mr. McDonald.—May it please the Court,

at this time, slightly out of order, I would like to

ask permission to examine Mr. Pike as to his con-

nection with the defendants. I believe it will be

clearly shown he met them as an attorney in the

exercise of his practice, and that all communica-

tions between Mr. Pike and these defendants are

privileged.

Mr. NAUS.—^We will consent to the examination

out of order, if your Honor please, and we would

like, as soon as the examination is concluded, to

argue this question as to the admissibility of the

evidence, not only as to this matter, but as to any

other matter where this question of privileged com-

munication existed, and clear that up. Go ahead,

Mr. McDonald.

The COURT.—Proceed, Mr. McDonald.

Mr. McDonald.—Q. you are an attorney at

law?
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A. Yes.

Q. Duly licensed to practice under the laws of

the State of Nevada? A. Yes.

Q. In that capacity, you were representing Mr.

Kassmir ?

A. I represented Mr. Robinson more, I think.

Q. You represented Mr. Robinson and Mr. Kass-

mir?

A. When they formed the corporation I per-

formed the services of forming the corporation for

them.

Q. All of your correspondence and all of your

meetings with Mr. Kassmir and Mr. Robinson were

in the course of the formation of this corporation?

A. Well, first in connection with the formation

of the corporation, and thereafter I received com-

munications from Mr. Robinson concerning certain

matters connected with the corporation.

Q. Concerning the affairs of the corporation?

A. Yes.

Q. You were and considered yourself as attorney

for that corporation?

A. I believe that I was acting in that capacity.

Q. You were acting in your professional capa-

city? A. Yes. [230]

Mr. McDonald.—We object, if your Honor

please, to any testimony of this witness, on the

ground that it is a privileged communication be-

tween attorney and clients, and respectfully sug-

gest that this witness cannot testify to anything

that occurred between them. When I speak of his

clients, I mean Mr. Kassmir and Mr. Robinson.
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The COURT.—You are representing Mr. Kass-

mir?

Mr. McDonald.—Yes.
The COURT.—As I understand it, you are ob-

jecting to his testifying?

Mr. McDonald.—Yes.
Mr. NAUS.—Before ruling on the objection, and

before the argument on the objection, I would like

to ask two or three questions, with your Honor's

permission.

The COURT.—Very well.

Mr. NAUS.—Q. Mr. Pike, in addition to being

an attorney at law at Reno, Nevada, practicing

your profession there, you also run the business of

incorporating companies, do you not, incorporat-

ing corporations in that state?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Pike, in the State of Nevada, there are a

considerable number of individuals and corpora-

tions who are engaged in the business of incorpo-

rating under the laws of Nevada corporations for

persons who make requests from other states'?

A. That is true.

Mr. NAUS.—Q. Among the individuals and

companies that incorporate in Nevada corporations

at the request of those from other states, you are

one of the persons who, as an individual, is en-

gaged in that business: Isn't that correct?

A. I have no corporation, that is, no incorpo-

rated business.

Q. You have no incorporated company, Mr.

Pike, but, for a number of years, you have followed
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that business at Reno, Nevada, of incorporating

corporations there imder the laws of Nevada, upon

such requests [231] as you might receive from

other states? A. That is true.

Q. You follow the business, and have for years

followed the business, have you not, of incorporat-

ing corporations under the laws of Nevada, upon

requests from other states'?

A. I would like to answer that question and

make an explanation as to what I did.

Mr. NAUS.

—

Q. Let us have both, first the an-

swer,

A. I don't know as I can answer without quali-

fying it, by an answer "Yes" or "No." I am an

attorney at law, at least pretend to be, and, in the

course of my business, I incorporate companies.

Many of those companies come from other states,

most of them, as a matter of fact. Frequently, in

the incorporating of those companies, I act as resi-

dent agent for the company that I organize, and in

that capacity I would not act as an attorney at law,

but in the other capacities it is purely a matter of

legal procedure in the organization of the corpora-

tion.

Mr. NAUS.—Q. Now, Mr. Pike, is it not a fact

that in the incorporation of a corporation known

as Cromwell & Co., Inc., that you attended within

the space of 24 or 48 hours to the actual incorpo-

ration of that company, and you did not at any

single time give any advice to any of the defend-

ants in connection with if?

A. Well, I really could not tell you that, Mr. Dis-
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trict Attorney, only to this extent: It is indistinct

in my memory as to just what we did. I don't

know whether they prepared articles of incorpora-

tion, themselves, and brought them to my office, or

whether they were prepared in my office. To con-

tinue with my answer, if it will be all right

—

Mr. McDonald.—To which we object as im-

material, irrelevant, and incompetent, and a privi-

leged communication.

Mr. HARRIS.—I have not objected to that an-

swer, but I object to any additional answer. [232]

The COURT.—In other words, you are not will-

ing for this witness to explain the statement he has

heretofore given?

Mr. HARRIS.—I am not willing to have this

witness testify at all if his relations were those of

attorney and client, and the cases very distinctly so

hold.

The COURT.—Let us not go into that point.

The witness has already, without objection from

defendants, testified to a certain point. Now, all

he is asking to do is to explain the answer. You

do not object to the answer he has given up to this

point ?

Mr. HARRIS.—I am objecting to any testimony

concerning this, on the groimd it is privileged.

The COURT.—I will overrule the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. As I said, I don't know, I don't remember

whether or not they prepared the articles of incor-

poration and brought them to my office, or not—

I

do not remember just exactly what the procedure
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was upon that occasion. I do remember that these

gentlemen came to my office, and that I proceeded

to organize a corporation for them, doing certain

things in connection therewith which I might con-

sider to be the services of an attorney, and which

you might not.

Mr. NAUS.—Perhaps you and I might differ

on that, and the Court might differ on that.

A. Yes.

Q. Your business with them was conducted

mainly by correspondence, was it, Mr. Pike"?

A. All business except one meeting.

Q. I hand you what is marked Exhibit 33 for

Identification, and ask you if you recall having re-

ceived that in the mails, at about the date it bears

date, from Mr. Robinson.

Mr. HARRIS.—At this time, if your Honor

please, we object to the witness testifying as to

whether he received any letter, he having testified

that all of this business in connection with this

transaction was in his capacity as attorney at law.

[233]

The COURT.—I am presiuning that the District

Attorney's theory is that he is going to either prove

Mr. Pike as one of the parties to the design, with

the knowledge that it would be necessary for him

to have, or he is endeavoring to show that despite

the statement already made by the witness that he

was employed entirely in the capacity of an attor-

ney at law, that, as a matter of fact, he was not an

attorney.

Mr. NAUS.—Correct. May I add, your Honor,
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the inquiry now before the Court is an inquiry as

to whether a certain objection to a right of privi-

lege is a proper objection. I am merely examin-

ing with respect to that. When we finish the tem-

porary examination we will go back to that objec-

tion and I then wish to argue first, that Mr. Pike did

not act as an attorney in this matter within the

meaning of the law, and, secondly, even though he

did, we will show that the privilege does not exist

in this case, as I will point out from the authorities.

A. Your Honor, I would like to ask a question

for information, if I may, as to the statement the

Court made, as to what the deductions were from

the procedure of the District Attorney. I came here

under subpoena of the District Attorney to testify

in this case, and give him such information as I

am called upon to give, which I am perfectly will-

ing to give, if it is not privileged.

The COURT.—Never mind involving yourself.

The situation here is there are certain exceptions

to the rule, and you are not interested, so far as the

ruling of the Court is concerned, if questions are

allowed by the Court. Of course, we want a can-

did expression from you as a witness as to whether

you were working in the capacity of an attorney,

as far as you know.

The WITNESS.—In my opinion, I was.

Mr. NAUS.—Let us get back to the question.

Q. You recall, do you not, that, as you stated,

your business with [234] these gentlemen was

by correspondence, and you recall further, do you
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not, receiving from Mr. Robinson that letter

marked Exhibit 33 for Identification 1 A. Yes.

Mr. HARRIS.—If your Honor please, I renew

the objection, and would like a ruling of the Court

on it. Counsel is asking a new question now, and

I want to preserve the record. If it is a privileged

commmiication, he is not entitled to an answer.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
Mr. NAUS.—Q. You recall further, do you not,

that it was upon that letter that you thus received.

Exhibit 33 for Identification, that you proceeded to

incorporate the corporation in question'?

Mr. HARRIS.—Objected to as leading and sug-

gestive, and calling for the conclusion of the wit-

ness, and askuig for a privileged communication.

Mr. NAUS.—I have not asked for the contents

of any communication so far,

Mr. HARRIS.—Your Honor has instructed us

several times not to argue these points, and we do

not desire to interrupt an answer. Mr. Naus has

not been here throughout the case, and I do not de-

sire to add on to the record or interrupt the testi-

mony, but it puts us to a good deal of disadvantage

when Mr. Naus constantly makes this kind of re-

marks, and we do not answer them.

The COURT.—If Mr. Naus makes a statement

that is not properly in the record, or in evidence,

although it should not have been made, it is not to

be considered as evidence, of course; no statement
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of counsel is to be received by the jury as evidence.

I will allow the question.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. Undoubtedly no. [235]

Mr. NAUS.—Q. Now, Mr. Pike, it is a fact, is

it not, that when you were called upon to incorpo-

rate this corporation in question, you were not

asked to give a single piece of advice to any one

of the defendants'?

Mr. HARRIS.—Objected to as leading and sug-

gestive, immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent,

tending to elicit a privileged communication.

Mr. NAUS.—I am trying to find out if he was

employed to give any advice, or whether he was

merely employed to do a ministerial or clerical act.

Mr. HARRIS.—It does not make any difference.

The COURT.—I will overrule the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. Well, up to the time of receiving this com-

munication, I had undoubtedly never met any of

the gentlemen except Mr. Robinson, and I think

perhaps before that time I had met him through

an attorney in San Francisco for whom I had in-

corporated a company.

Mr, NAUS.—I ask that the answer go out as not

responsive.

A. I have not finished, yet. According to my
recollection now, the articles of incorporation were

sent to me, and I was requested to see whether or

not they were in conformity with the laws of Ne-

vada; and if they were to see that they were filed

and copies of same were sent to them after the
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company was organized, and that undoubtedly was

done, but the letter is not in evidence.

Q. Now, Mr. Pike, I hand you another document,

marked Exhibit 34 for Identification, and ask you

whether you recall receiving that from Mr. Robin-

son as a part of the instructions to you in this cor-

poration work by you?

Mr. McDonald.—To which we object as im-

material, irrelevant, and incompetent, a privileged

commimication between attorney and client. [236]

Mr. NAUS.—I am merely asking if he received

it.

Mr. HARRIS.—We join in the objection in behalf

of the defendant Randolph.

The COURT.—I will overrule the objection, at

this time.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
A. Yes, I received this letter at the organization

of the compan}^

Mr. HARRIS.—Now, if your Honor please, the

witness has testified he received it, and we ask that

he not refresh his recollection from it, but that we

have his testimony without refreshing his recollec-

tion from it. It is not a memorandiun made in

his handwriting.

Mr. NAUS.—Q. Now, Mr. Pike, I hand you Ex-

hibit 33 for Identification, and ask you whether you

received that from Mr. Robinson in the course of

his instructions to you about this incorporation

work.

Mr. McDonald.—To which we object as imma-
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terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and a privileged

communication between attorney and client.

Mr. HARRIS.—We join in the objection.

The COURT.—This particular letter "YY" was

received after the incorporation'? A, Yes.

Q. Was that true of that other one?

A. That must have been.

Q. In other words, at that time you were acting

as the agent, were you ?

A. Your Honor, I do not believe I ever acted as

agent for this Company, but the records from the

Secretary of State's otfice, or the Clerk's office would

show whether I was, or not, but acting as resident

agent would not have anything to do, necessarily,

with the transfer of stock certificates, unless you

were acting as registrar or as assistant secretary.

Mr. NAUS.—Q. Getting back to the question, did

you or not receive that as a part of the incorpora-

tion work done by you for Mr. [237] Robinson?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, Mr. Pike, I hand you another document,

marked Exhibit 36 for Identification, and ask you

whether you likewise received that from Mr. Robin-

son as part of your instructions in this incorpora-

tion work?

Mr. McDonald.—To which we object as imma-

terial, irrelevant and incompetent, a privileged com-

munication, between attorney and client.

Mr. HARRIS.—^We join in the objection.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McDonald.—Exception. '
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A. Yes, I received this letter.

The COURT.—In regard to the issuing of certifi-

cates in connection with the corporation, you would

do that as agent?

A. Frequently, in order to have stock certificates

issued in the State of Nevada, they ask some per-

son in the office to be named as a registrar, or as

assistant secretary, or something of that sort, and

then on their instructions the stock is issued. The

resident agent merely acts for the purpose of re-

ceiving process, service upon him in legal procedure.

Q. But I mean to say that in acting for the pur-

pose of transfer of stock, or issuing of a particular

kind of a certificate, in doing that particular act you

would not characterize it as part of your law work ?

A. No.

Q. You feel that in that work you would be acting

in the capacity of agent?

A. Yes. That was done merely as an accommo-

dation.

Mr. NAUS.—^Q. As a matter of fact, it was your

stenogTapher at Reno who acted as secretary or

transfer agent for this corporation, was it not?

A. That is true, and they wrote to me apparently

instead of to her, and I gave the letter to her and

she did as they [238] requested.

Q. Then you would write back and tell them it

was done?

A. After the incorporation of the company, yes.

Q. Now, Mr. Pike, I hand you a batch of papers,

and ask you whether you recognize those as your

own personal file that was sent to San Francisco a



270 Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph

couple of months ago—^j^oiu' owii personal file of

letters that you wi'ote to Mr. Robinson in reply to

the letters I have handed up to the Court.

Mr. McDonald.—To which we object on the

ground it is immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent,

a privileged communication between attorney and

client.

The COURT.—Q. During that time did you act

in the capacity of agent as distinguished from an

attorney at law?

A. As a matter of fact, I do not believe I ever was

the agent for this corporation.

Q. But didn't you do acts which were the acts of

an agent? A. Yes.

Q. For instance, the work in this last letter ap-

pertains to work which was not, in itself, the work

of an attorney at law?

A. Yes, I think that is correct.

Q. So that although j^ou may not have been resi-

dent agent, you did act as distinguished from an

attorney at law?

A. In those capacities I did.

Mr. HARRIS.—I join in the objection made by

counsel.

Mr. HARRIS.—As far as the defendant Ran-

dolph is concerned, I join in the objection, and I

adopt the objection of hearsay, there is no comiec-

tion shown.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
The COURT.—As I understand it, from what you
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hold there, [239] that work is characterized as

the work of an agent as distinguished from an at-

torney at law"?

A. I think most of those letters refer to that.

Q. If there are any that do not, specify any re-

garding work that you were doing in the capacity

of an attorney at law; segregate them.

Mr. HARRIS.—One moment. I object to that as

calling for a conclusion on the part of the witness.

That is for the Court to determine, as to whether

they are in the capacity of an attorney at law, or

as an agent.

Mr. NAUS.—I think Mr. Harris states the cor-

rect rule, it is for your Honor and not the witness.

The COURT.—I was going to do that. You

separate them and hand them to me.

A. Well, I think that is for your Honor to deter-

mine.

Mr. XAUS.—Hand them up to the Coui-t.

Q. Were these letters sent by you to Mr. Robin-

son as a part of the correspondence in which you

received these other letters from him? A. Yes.

Q. That batch you hold in your hand and the

batch on his Honor's bench comprise the transaction

between you and any of these defendants?

A. Absolutely.

Q. And your entire dealings were by coi*respon-

dence as far as this corporatiton work was con-

cerned ?

A. Except when they first organized the company

they appeared there and held a meeting there.
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Q. Just the routine steps of making out the paper,

steps that were taken? A. Yes.

Mr. NAUS.—Q. Do these yellow sheets that you

just held in your hand, together with the white

sheets on his Honor's bench, do those, together,

comprise the transaction between you, on one side,

and the defendant on the other, with reference to

this corporation [240] work?

Mr. HAERIS.—We object on the ground it is

an incorrect statement of the testimony, the witness

having already stated they were there in person, and

transacted business, and adopt the rest of the objec-

tion.

Mr. McDonald.—The same objection on behalf

of the defendant Kassmir.

The COURT.—Were they there in person?

A. Well, on one occasion, when they organized

the company, Mr. Robinson and Mr. Kassmir, and

I think Mr. Cromwell Simon was there, but I am
not sure about that. I think they came up there

one day and held a meeting, but outside of that, if

they were all there, these letters represent the

entire transaction between us.

Mr. NAUS.—If your Honor please, unless counsel

wish to examine him further on the question, I

am prepared to argue the question of the admissi-

bility of the evidence.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McDonald.—Just one question:

Q. You met Mr. Kassmir, did you not, before you

met Mr. Robinson?
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A. I don't remember whether I did or not. I

know Mr. Robinson was sent to me one time by an

attorney named Frank Golden, for whom I organ-

ized a couple of companies.

A. Anyhow, Mr. Golden had some companies in-

corporated, and then he sent Mr. Robinson to me,

and whether I met Mr. Robinson before I met Mr.

Kassmir I don 't know. As a matter of fact, I almost

had forgotten having met Mr. Kassmir until I

saw him in the courtroom.

Q. You would not say positively that you had not

met Mr. Kassmir and Mr. Cromwell Simon before

you met Mr. Robinson, and were retained by them

to advise them as to the proposition of incorporating

under the laws of Nevada*?

A. Undoubtedly I did advise them about [241]

incorporating under the laws of Nevada. Whether

I met him before Mr. Robinson, or at the same time,

I could not be able to tell you.

'Q. You advised them as to the very liberal fea-

tures of the Nevada laws?

A. What I believed to be liberal features, yes.

Q. You discussed with them that advice?

A. I don't know whether you want me to go

ahead with the answer on this matter.

Mr. NAU'S.—I am not objecting. Go ahead and

answer any question that is asked you.

A. I think I did, perhaps.

Mr. McDonald.—Q. And in all of this trans-

action, Mr. Pike, you acted as an attorney at law?

A. Well, up to a certain point I would say I

did.
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Q. You never were resident agent of this corpora-

tion?

A. No, I thought that I had been, but it devel-

oped that I was not resident agent, and in receiv-

ing letters from Mr. Robinson concerning the trans-

fer of stock I suppose he wrote to me because he

probably told me that I was acting as resident agent,

or because my stenographer at that time was act-

ing as registrar or assistant secretary of the cor-

poration.

Q. You know, as a matter of fact, that Mr. Mc-

Caffrey was the resident agent of this corporation *?

A. I think he was, now.

Q. These letters were sent to you in your capacity

as attorney at law to advise with Mr. McCaffrey?

A. Well, I never advised with Mr. McCaffrey, at

all, that I remember of. Once in a while he would

come around and have me identify him to cash a

check, or something, but when I would receive these

letters from Mr. Robinson I would hand them to my
stenographer, and she would carry out their instruc-

tions and perhaps hand whatever papers were neces-

sary to be delivered to him to me to see whether

or not they were correct as far as the form of pro-

cedure was concerned, and they would be mailed

to him.

Mr. McDonald.—At this time, on behalf of the

defendant [242] Kassmir, we will renew our

objection, and ask that all of the testimony of this

witness be stricken out on the gTound that it is a

privileged communication between attorney and

client.
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Mr. HARRIS.—We join in the objection made

by Mr. McDonald.

The COURT.—At this time the objection will be

overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—It was really a motion to strike.

It is denied?

The COURT.—Denied.
Mr. HARRIS.—I wish to note an exception on

behalf of the defendant Randolph.

Mr. NAUS.—Q. Now, Mr. Pike, one of your an-

swers to Mr, McDonald was, as I recall it, "I think,

perhaps." You recall that answer, when he was

asking you as to whether you had given any ad-

vice outside of what these letters called forf

A. Well, I notice in that

—

Q. (Interrupting.) Do you remember that an-

swer? A. Yes.

Q. Did you answer that way because you had

no independent recollection right now of having

ever given any advice other than what you gave in

writing these letters?'

A. I do think, Mr. District Attorney, that on one

occasion, when the company was formed, that these

gentlemen were there, and that I perhaps advised

them as to the procedure under the Nevada laws.

Q. You say perhaps you advised them. Can you

say that you did?

A. I could not say positively, but I notice in the

first communication to me that they asked me to

look over the articles and

—

Mr. NAUS.—Q. Have you finished your answer?

A. No, I had not. They asked me to look over
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the articles and advise them as to whether or not

they were in correct form imder the Nevada law.

Q. I am asking you at this time not to reason

from anything you see in writing, here, but to search

your recollection and say whether from your recol-

lection you can say there was ever a single time that

[243] you had any oral interview with any of

these defendants and advised any of them.

A. I may be mistaken, but I believe that I did,

that the first meeting was held after the articles

of incorporation had been filed, that these gentle-

men came to Reno and came to my office, and that

there a meeting was held, and that on that occasion

I advised them as to the form of different resolu-

tions that should be passed, and matters of that

kind.

Q. But you have no distinct recollection of that,

have you, beyond assuming that that probably hap-

pened ?

A. Well, I am quite sure that it did.

Mr. NAUS.—That is all.

Mr. McDonald.—At this time we renew our

motion.

Mr. NAUS.—We are prepared to argue this

whole matter now, if your Honor please.

Mr. McDonald.—We renew our motion to

strike all of the testimony of this witness from the

record upon the ground that the testimony shows

that this witness was acting in the capacity of an

attorney at law in the State of Nevada, that all of

his communications with these defendants, or any

of them, were privileged communications, and ad-
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vice that he gave his clients, upon requests for ad-

vice.

Mr. HARRIS.—We join in the motion on behalf

of the defendant Randolph.

(Thereupon the jury retired and counsel pro-

ceeded to argue the question, at the conclusion of

which the jury returned to the coui-troom.

The COURT,—The jury being present, and the

defendants being present, I will ask the reporter

to read the motions of counsel,

(The record was read by the reporter.)

The motions will be denied.

Mr. HARRIS,—Exception on behalf of the de-

fendant Randolph,

Mr. McDonald.—Exception on behalf of the

defendant Kassmir, [244]

Mr. SWEENEY,—At this time I would Uke to

offer in evidence Government's Exhibit No. 33 for

identification.

Mr, McDonald.—To which we object on the

grounds heretofore stated.

Mr. HARRIS,—We object on the ground it is

a privileged communication, and not permitted to

be divulged by the law.

Mr. McMillan.—As far as the defendant Rob-

inson is concerned, it is objected to on the ground

the proper foundation has not been laid.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception on behalf of the de-

fendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan,—Exception on behalf of the

defendant Robinson.
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Mr. McDonald.—Exception on behalf of the

defendant Kassmir.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. How did you get this let-

ter?

A. I got it through the mail, I imagine.

The COURT.—Q. You imagine. Do you know

that?

A. I am quite sure it must have come through

the mail, yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Do you recall receiving it

through the mail?

A. I know it was in our file, and I was requested

by the United States District Attorney to bring it

down here.

Mr. McMillan.—We renew our objection to

the introduction of the document in evidence, on the

ground it has not been identified as having been re-

ceived by the witness through the United States

mails.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection.

The COURT.—I will permit it to be received.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. SWEENEY.—It is dated July 25, 1925,

Samuel H. Robinson, Attorney at law, Hobart

Building, San Francisco, Cal.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 27.)

[245]

(Which original exhibit is before this Honorable

Court by stipulation and order and is a letter set

forth in the indictment as Exhibit ''WW," dated

July 25, 1925.



vs. United States of America. 279

EXCEPTION No. 42.

Q. Can you identify that, Mr. Pike? A. Yes.

Q. What is that?

A. This is a letter I wrote to Mr, Robinson when

I received that letter.

Q. When you received this letter through the

mail?

A. Yes, when I received it—I think I received it

through the mail.

Mr. SWEENEY.—If your Honor please, I offer

in evidence the letter of July 28, 1925, addressed to

Mr. Samuel H. Robinson.

Mr. HARRIS.—To shorten the record, may it be

deemed that we make the same objection, and may
it be so stipulated, to each and every one of these

letters between Mr. Pike and Mr. Robinson, on the

same grounds heretofore stated, they are privileged

communications, and, therefore, are not admissible?

The COURT.—On the objection of being privi-

leged communications.

Mr. HARRIS.—Yes, unless counsel have any

additional objections.

Mr. McMillan.—The objection of Robinson is

that these letters are without proper foundation;

it has not been shown that they were deposited in

the mail in this jurisdiction, that is, in the Southern

Division of the United States District Court for

the Northern District of California, nor has it been

shown that they were received by the witness

through the mail, or sufficiently shown that they
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were mailed, or that they had been received in this

jurisdiction through the United States mail.

Mr, HARRIS.—We adopt that objection on be-

half of the defendant Randolph.

The COURT.—Q. Did you mail the original let-

ters?

A. I never mailed them, I dictated the letters,

and this has got my dictation marks on it. [246]

Q. You don't know, personally, whether it was

mailed, or not?

A. Personally, I do not; that is, I could not say

it was put in the postoffice, but that is my belief,

that it was.

Q. In other words, all you did was to dictate it,

sign it, and give it to whom?
A. To my stenographer. Perhaps I did not even

sign it.

Q. And you gave her instructions to mail it?

A. Yes. That is as far as I can go.

Mr. SWEENEY.—It is in the ordinary course of

business.

Mr. SWEENEY.—As a matter of fact, this letter

is not an indictment letter.

The COURT.—I presume you are offering it be-

cause it is a letter that you believe was received by

the defendants, or some of them, in connection with

the scheme?

Mr. SWEENEY.—It is a part of the general

scheme.

The COURT.—But you do not show that it was

ever received. How does this bear on it if it is not

shown it was put in the mail?
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Mr. SWEENEY.—Because Mr. Pike testified

that was the usual way of mailing letters.

Mr. McGEE.—That is no proof that this letter

was ever mailed in the United States postoffice box.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection to this

letter.

Mr. SWEENEY.—The question, your Honor, is

was the letter received? We are not interested in

this particular letter as a mail letter. It is not a

letter set out in the indictment.

The COURT.—How are you going to connect it

up with the fact that it was received.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Can you identify this?

A. Yes, that is one of the letters.

Mr. Mc'GEE.—Are we still on the last letter, or

are we proceeding on some other letter? [247]

The COURT.—For your information, so we won't

have to have the record read, the copy of the letter

which was offered has not yet been received. Mr.

Sweeney is endeavoring now, as I understand it, to

lay a proper foundation for its reception in evi-

dence.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Are you familiar with that

letter?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you receive this through the mail?

A. I received it in my office, and I want to state

—

The COURT.—Q. Do you open up your own

mail?

A. Most all of my mail I open. Frequently it is

opened by my secretary and I read it.

Q. When you receive your mail after it has been
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opened by someone else, do they bring you the en-

velope as well as the letter?

A. Yes, as a rule, it is all laid on my desk.

Q. You say as a rule. Have you any recollec-

tion?

A. I am convinced in my own mind that I re-

ceived it through the United States mail, in the

ordinary way, the same as all letters.

Q. Is that your recollection?

A. That is my recollection.

Mr. SWEENEY,—At this time we make an offer

of Government's Exhibit No. 35 for Identification.

Mr. McDonald.— We object on the ground

heretofore stated, and on the further ground the

witness does not know whether this was received

through the United States mail.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson ob-

jects on the ground that the proper foundation has

not been laid, in that it has not been shown that

this letter was mailed in this jurisdiction, or the

other letter received was mailed, or received in this

jurisdiction.

The COURT.—I might call counsel's attention to

the fact that whether it went through the mail, or

not, it might be relevant; it might have been a let-

ter which was written and signed, and have some

bearing upon the issue, show some connection with

it, and at the same time it might have been delivered

by hand. You may make your [248] objection

as to the mailing, or you can make it a complete ob-

jection.
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Mr. McMillan.—I adopt your Honor's sugges-

tion.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin does, also,

with the further objection that it is one of tlie let-

ters upon which one of the counts of this indictment

is based, and according to the allegation of the in-

dictment it was mailed in the United States mails,

and, therefore, that becomes a material part of the

admissibility of this letter in evidence, to sustain

that letter being received in evidence.

Mr. HARRIS.—I adopt all of the objections

made on behalf of the other defendants.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 28.)

(Which original exhibit is before this Honorable

Court by stipulation and order and is the letter

set forth in the Indictment as Exhibit "AAA").

EXCEPTION No. 43.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. You have already identi-

fied that, I believe, Mr. Pike.

A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I will offer in evi-

dence Government's Exhibit No. 34 for Identifica-

tion.

Mr. McDonald.—To which we object on the

ground it is immaterial, irrelevant, and incompe-

tent, a privileged communication, upon the further

ground that the proper foundation has not been

laid.
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The COURT,—On this letter no testimony has

been offered, at all, practically none. I suppose as

to this letter the procedure was the same as before,

that is, you received it, and believe it [249] came

through the United States mails, but you don't

know positively how it got on your desk.

A. That is correct.

Q. You found it in your files? A. Yes.

Q. You recall receiving the letter, but you don't

know how you got it, except you got it on your

desk? A. Except my own belief, that is all.

Mr. McMillan.— The defendant Robinson

makes the same objection that has heretofore been

urged to the other exhibits, upon the ground that

the proper foundation has not been laid.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception on behalf of the de-

fendant Robinson.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception on behalf of the de-

fendant Randolph.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 29.)

(Which original exhibit is before this Honorable

Court by stipulation and order and is the letter set

forth in the Indictment as Exhibit "YY.")

Referring to the letter of Samuel H. Robinson of

August 26, 1925, and in answer to your question

whether I mailed those certificates, I gave that let-

ter to the stenographer and instructed her to fill

them out as requested, and to mail them to him. I

have no direct knowledge whether they were mailed

or not; she can undoubtedly testify whether they

were or not. [250]
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The method of handling correspondence in my
ofifice was, I would dictate a letter to my ste-

nographer, and sometimes if it was in the course

of routine business, I might not even sign it, and

she would put a stamp on it and put it in the post-

office. This would be in the ordinary course of my
business.

EXCEPTION No. 44.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will show you this letter

and ask you if you can identify that.

A. Yes, that was written to me by Mr. Robinson.

Q. On the subject matter*? A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer in evi-

dence Government's Exhibit No. 36 for Identifica-

tion.

The COURT.—Let me see what that is.

Mr. SWEENEY. — The signature has already

been identified.

Mr. McDonald.—objected to on the ground

it is immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and a

privileged communication.

Mr. McMillan.—objected to on the grounds

heretofore stated with reference to the other letters,

and, furthermore, that the venue has not been suffi-

ciently established.

Mr. HARRIS.—I adopt all the objections on be-

half of the defendant Randolph.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled

and it will be admitted in evidence.

Exceptions were taken on behalf of defendants

Kassmir, Randolph and Robinson.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 30.)
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(Which original exhibit is before this Honorable

Court by stipulation and order and is the letter set

forth in the Indictment as Exhibit "BBB.")

EXCEPTION No. 45.

Referring to the letter of July 25 received from

Robinson, I did receive an original and two copies

of the articles of [251] incorporation of the

Cromwell Company, and filed a copy of them at the

Secretary of State's office in Carson City, and filed

a copy in the County Clerk's office in the City of

Reno, and kept the other copy in the office, I

imagine, as the law requires. The exemplified copy

that you are now offering in evidence is a true copy

of the articles that I left with the Secretary of

State on July 30, 1925.

The foregoing testimony was objected to by coun-

sel for Randolph on the grounds that it is imma-

terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and privileged

communications between attorney and client; objec-

tions overruled, and exception noted.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 31,

which original exhibit is before this Honorable

Court on stipulation and order.)

The corporation had an initial meeting in the

office. There were present Mr. Glynn, Mr. Cahlan,

Miss Zannon, myself, Mr. Kassmir, Mr. Robinson,

and Mr. Cromwell Simon. I do not remember

Cromwell Simon very much ; I am quite sure he was

there. Miss Zannon wrote up the minutes of the

first meeting. There were two meetings, the incor-
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poration meeting and the meeting of the first Board

of Directors.

EXCEPTION No. 46.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Mr. Pike, I will ask you

if you can identify this.

A. Yes, they are certificates or blank stock cer-

tificates of Cromwell Company, Inc., both common
and preferred; also there are a few certificates

which have been partially made out, that is, they

are signed, but do not bear the seal of the corpora-

tion.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer in evi-

dence what purports to be or what are the stock

certificates of Cromwell & Co., Inc., both common
and preferred.

Mr. HARRIS.—To which we desire to enter an

objection on [252] behalf of Randolph that no

foundation has been laid, it not being shown that he

had any control, knowledge, or direction thereof.

Mr. McMillan.—Objected to on behalf of Rob-

inson that the proper foundation has not been laid.

The COURT.—How do these bear upon the

issue "?

Mr. SWEENEY.—This is being identified as a

certificate of stock which Mrs. Beans got in lieu of

money that she paid to Cromwell & Co., in the bank

which was started. I am going to trace the cer-

tificate back to its place of origin in these books,

back to Robinson, back to Kassmir. In other

words, it is a part of the scheme to take the money

and property from one of these victims, or some
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of these victims, not only that, but I am going to

prove that each one of these certificates was issued

to various victims who had given their money and

property to Cromwell Simon & Co.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled, and it

will be received.

Exception taken by Randolph and Robinson.

Cross-examination.

(By Mr. McMILLAN.)
The mail coming into my office is frequently

opened by my stenographer. Usually my ste-

nographer will open the mail, segregate it, and lay

it on my desk. Envelopes are thrown into the

waste-basket; we seldom keep them unless there is

some purpose in keeping them. Don't believe that

we kept any of the envelopes in this matter. I

have found none.

EXCEPTION No. 47.

Mr. McMillan.—May it please your Honor, we

move to strike out all of the testimony of this wit-

ness on behalf of the defendant Robinson, all of the

testimony wherein the letters have been introduced

in evidence under the testimony of this witness,

upon the grounds that the proper foundation has

not been laid, and that the [253] venue has not

been sufficiently shown in any instance to entitle any

of such letters to admission in evidence.

The COURT.—I am going to rule upon the mat-

ter, but will just give you my idea. Imagine a let-

ter was not actually shown by circumstances that

justified a person in believing that any particular
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matter came through the mail, and that the letter

has been identified as a conmnmication, a signed

communication of one of the parties charged here;

imagine also that there is certain information in

it that bears upon the issues here. It may be ad-

missible, although it may not measure up to the

point that you are basing your objection on, as to

whether it went through the mail. I think you will

find such matter in going through the record. I

am trying to give counsel an idea of the method of

ruling, even though it should not be shown that it

was sent through the mail; it might be admissible

anyway. I will overrule the objection.

Exception was here noted by counsel for Robin-

son, and counsel for Randolj)h joined in the afore-

said objections and moved to strike out testimony

of witness, which motion was denied and noted his

exception to the Court's ruling overruling his ob-

jections.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 42.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony of Tess Belford, secretary and

stenographer of Mr. Pike, the attorney, and exhibits

in connection therewith which said testimony and

the rulings assigned as error in connection there-

with more fully appear as follows

:

The witness testified that during the year 1925, she

was secretary and stenographer to Mr. Leroy F.

Pike, City Attorney of Reno, Nevada. That her

name at that time was Miss Zannon. [254]
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Q. What was the custom in Mr. Pike's office with

reference to mail, Mrs. Belford?

Mr. HARRIS.—At this time may we have the

objection as to the privileged character of the com-

munication extending to the secretary or clerk of

any attorney at law, and I therefore object as im-

material, irrelevant, and incompetent, and an at-

tempt to elicit a privileged communication pro-

hibited by law.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
(It is understood under order of Court that coun-

sel for Randolph has the foregoing objection to all

of the testimony of this witness on the ground that

it is a privileged communication.)

Usually I got the mail before I would come to the

office in the morning, opened and laid it on his desk,

and I usually mailed it. As to letters that Mr.

Pike was sending out, the custom was for me to

mail them, in the U. S. postoffice. All the letters

you show me, except that of September 22, 1925, I

identify; they are copies of letters I wrote, and I

can say that I mailed all the originals of those let-

ters.

(These four copies of letters from Pike to Rob-

inson dated July 28, Aug. 3, Aug. 13, and Sept. 1,

1925, are here offered in evidence under the forego-

ing objections, admitted in evidence, exception

taken, and marked U. S. Exhibit 34, which exhibits

are before this Honorable Court by stipulation and

order.)

On this letter of July 28, 1925, the ^'LEP" stands
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for Leroy F. Pike, and "Z" for myself. I was Sec-

retary in the Cromwell & Co., Inc., and present at

the first meeting of the Board of Directors. What
you show me is a true copy of the original minutes

of the meeting which I mailed to Mr. Robinson.

I prepared the originals, which are dated August 1,

1925. The [255] originals were actually exe-

cuted by the directors, and I actually saw the sig-

natures put on, by the dummy directors. These

minutes to the extent that they appear were

adopted.

(The document was admitted in evidence and

marked U. S. Exhibit 35, which is before this Hon-

orable Court by stipulation and order.)

What you now show me and which I identify is

certificate of preferred stock of Cromwell & Co.,

which is signed by me and issued by the Company

through me as Secretary.

(The dociunent was admitted and marked U. S.

Exhibit 36, the original of which is before this

Honorable Court by stipulation and order.)

Referring to this stock-book, which is Govern-

ment's Exhibit 33, I issued every one of those stock

certificates. The information with reference to the

particular transfers shown usually came from San

Francisco, from Mr. Robinson, I think. This let-

ter, Government's Exhibit 29, came through the

mail.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Take the book of common

stock, Mrs. Belford, are those notations in your

writing ?

A. Yes, they are.
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Q. I will ask you if you can identify that.

A. Yes, I can.

Q. Your signature appears on the bottom of it ?

A. It does.

Q. Was the stock issued?

A. By me, for the company.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I want to offer

in evidence Certificate 51 of the common stock.

Mr. HARRIS.—In addition to the objection as to

privilege, I object on the ground that no authoriza-

tion or direction or adoption of it by Randolph is

shown, immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent.

Mr. McMillan. — The defendant Robinson

adopts the objection made by counsel for Randolph.

[256]

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 39.)

(Witness here identifies three certificates as is-

sued by the company, with her signature thereon,

and same are marked U. S. Exhibits 44, 45, and 46

for Identification.)

These represent all the transfers of stock that

took place while I was secretary. I remember in

the minutes that were read Mr. Kassmir paid for

or subscribed for $50,000 worth of stock. Don't

know whether that money was ever paid. Do not

recall any other minutes ever written up while I

was secretary. Mr. Simon was the treasurer, at

time company was formed. I had charge of the

stock-books, the minute-book, and I think there was
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a ledger of some sort—the stubs in the stock cer-

tificate book. Mr. Pike was the resident agent.

Don't remember having seen those ten certificates

signed up in blank. I dated the certificates.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 43.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence United

States Exhibits 41, 42 and 43, over the objections

of the defendants as will more fully appear as fol-

lows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will show you Govern-

ment's Exhibit No. 10 for Identification, and ask

you if you recognize that.

A. Yes.

Q. Do you know how you got it?

A. Through the mail.

Q. Where did you receive it?

A. At 1828 Anza Street, in June or July, 1925.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I offer it in evidence.

Mr. McMillan.—Robinson objects on the

grounds that the [257] proper foundation has

not been laid, no showing that he authorized or

knew anything about the sending of the letter.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 41,

which original exhibit is before this Honorable

Court by stipulation and order, and said letter ap-

pears in the indictment as Exhibit "N.")

Witness identifies two checks given by her, the
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latter of which she said she gave to Randolph per-

sonally, and these checks are introduced in evidence

and marked respectively U. S. Exhibits 42 and 43,

the originals of which are before this Court by

stipulation and order.

To which ruling the defendant then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 44.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

United States Exhibit 44 over the objections of

these defendants as more fully appears as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will show you Govern-

ment's Exhibit No. 11 for Identification, and ask

you if you can identify that.

A. That is all right.

Q. How did you get that?

A. Through the mail, at 1828 Anza Street, after

I paid the money and about a couple of days after

the date of the letter.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I offer this in evidence.

Mr. McMillan.—objected to on the grounds

that no proper foundation has been laid, nor has it

been shown that Robinson authorized or directed

or knew anything about the sending of the letter.

The COURT.—Objection overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception. [258]

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 44,

the original of which is before this Honorable Court

by stipulation and order, and is the letter referred

to in the indictment as Exhibit "O.")

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.
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EXCEPTION No. 45.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

United States Exhibits 46 and 47 over the objec-

tions of defendants as more fully appears as fol-

lows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will ask you if you are

familiar with that letter?

A. Yes. Received it by mail, at 1828 Anza Street,

soon after I sent the check, a day or so afterward.

Mr. SWEENEY.—The signature on there has al-

ready been proved. I offer this in evidence.

Mr. McMillan.—Proper foundation has not

been laid, and it has not been shown that Robinson

authorized or had anything to do with the sending of

the letter.

The COURT.—Q. Objection overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 46,

which original exhibit is before this Court by stipu-

lation and order, and is the letter set forth in the

indictment as Exhibit "P.")

Signed something on those occasions, I think, but

never got copy of whatever I signed. What
you show me now I got by mail at 1828 Anza

Street. (Certificate of Simon & Co., Sept. 5, 1925.)

(Document was marked U. S. Exhibit 47, and is

before this Court on stipulation and order.)

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted. [259]

EXCEPTION No. 46.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence
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certain testimony over the objections of defendants

as will more fully appear as follows : Ernest Hipp,

a witness on behalf of the United States, who re-

sided at Santa Clara, and who had a conversation

with defendant Goodwin in March, 1925, the follow-

ing question was asked, objection made and ruling

had:

Q. Just state what that conversation was at that

time and at that place.

Mr. McMillan.—Objected to on behalf of the

defendant Robinson as too remote, and as res inter

alios acta.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Q. At that time, the tirst thing that took place

in this conversation was he inquired of me as to

what stock I had. I had previous to that time com-

mmiicated with the firm of Cromwell Simon & Co.,

and they had come down to my office in answer to

that communication with reference to trading in

certain stocks that I had on stocks that they were to

buy for me. The first thing they asked was the

stocks that I had that I wished to dispose of, that

is, to turn in, and I told them, and they stated their

position, that is, what they would allow me on my
stock, and suggested stocks that I was to buy, which,

in their opinion, were good stocks. I finally agreed

to buy, purchase, these stocks, that is, on turning

in my stock on the purchase of these stocks that

they suggested, and they were to be bought on the
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partial payment plan. My stocks were to be held

as collateral and to be held as first payment on these

stocks, and after they had stated their proposition

I then told them I would consider the matter and

[260] let them know in a few days; but they

suggested, in fact urged me, to close the deal at that

time, because the market was liable to rise, and the

stock be high, and things of that kind, so after a

little more conversation I finally closed the deal

with them.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 47.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objections of the defend-

ants as will more fully appear as follows

:

Q. At that time did you part vdth any collateral,

deliver to them any collateral in pursuance of this

agreement %

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson now

objects to it as hearsay, the proper foundation not

laid, and too remote.

The COL^RT.—The objections will be overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

A. I did.

Mr. O'BRIEN.—What was the character of the

collateral that you delivered to them, what kind of

collateral was it?

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
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A. It consisted of stock in the Durant Motor

Corporation, the Star Motor Corporation, the Hayes

Hunt Body Works.

To which rilling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 48.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

United States Exhibit 50 over the objection of de-

fendants as will more fully appear as follows:

The witness testified that he received through the

mail [261] from Cromwell Simon & Company,

at his home in Santa Clara, in April, 1925, a letter

and enclosures marked as aforesaid, to which objec-

tion was made on the ground that it was too re-

mote, hearsay, and proper foundation had not been

laid.

To which ruling the defendant then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 49.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence United

States Exhibit 51 over the objection of the de-

fendants as will more fully appear as follows:

The witness testified that he had received the ex-

hibit at approximately the same time as the exhibit

letters above referred to in the month of April,

1925, to which offer objection was made by defend-

ants on the ground stated in objection to Exhibit 50,

and which objection was overruled and said exhibit

admitted in evidence.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.
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EXCEPTION No. 50.

That the Court erred in admittinE: in evidence

I'nited States Exhibit 52 over the objection of the

defendants as will more fully appear as follows:

The witness identified said exhibit and declared

that he had received it at his home in Santa Clsira

fi-om Cromwell Simon through the mail. Upon

offer of the exhibit, objection was made by the de-

fendants on the ground stated in the last assign-

ment.

To which i-uling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION Xo. 51.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

United States Exhibit 55 over the objection of the

defendants as will more fully appear as follows:

[262]

Mr. SWEEXEY.—I offer in evidence this re-

ceipt for stock delivei-ed by Miss Oliver to Mr. Kass-

mir and Mr. Simon. I offer it in evidence at this

time.

Mr. McMILLAX.—The defendant Bobinson ob-

jects to it on the ground that it is too remote, hear-

say, and the proper foundation has not been laid.

The COURT.—How about the signature?

Mr. SWEEXEY.—She testified that she saw Mr.

Simon sign it.

The COUET.—You saw him sign it?

A. Yes.

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-
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fendant Goodwin as immaterial, irrelevant, and in-

competent, hearsay.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled,

and it will be received in evidence as U. S. exhibit

next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception on behalf of Goodwin.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. SWEENEY.—I will read it. (Reading.)

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 55.)

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 52.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence testi-

mony concerning a conversation of Miss Clara

Oliver with Mr. Kassmir, over the objection of de-

fendants and which said conversation was that he

had come in regard to buying some more stock.

That nothing was said the first time about invest-

ing in the firm of Cromwell Simon & Company.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 53.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

United States Exhibit No. 56 over the objection of

the defendants as will more [263] fully appear

as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will ask you. Miss Oliver,

if you can identify that.

A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I would like to
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offer in evidence what pui^oi'ts to be a receipt

dated June 3, 1925, and directed to this lady, here.

Mr. McMillan.—Objected to on behalf of the

defendant Robinson, on the ground it is too remote,

hearsay, and the proper foundation has not been

laid.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled,

and it will be received in evidence as U. S. exhibit

next in order.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 54.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence,

United States Exhibit 57 over the objection of the

defendants as wall more fully appear as follows:

The witness testified that she was present when the

exhibit was opened by her sister. It was in an

envelope, stamped. United States mail, and came

in the envelope identified. Objection was made on

the ground that it was too remote, hearsay, and

that the proper foundation had not been laid and

which objection was overruled.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 55.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

United States Exhibit 58 over the objection of the

defendants as will more fuUy appear as follows:

The witness testified that she could identify the
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exhibit letter addressed to her sister, and knew of

her own knowledge it was received through the

mail. At the time of its offer, objection was [264]

made on the ground that it was too remote, hear-

say, and that the proper foundation had not been

laid, which objection was overruled and the letter

received in evidence.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 56.

The Court erred in receiving in evidence United

States Exhibit 59 over the objection of the de-

fendants as will more fully appear as follows

:

The witness testified that the notations made on

the exhibit were made by Mr. Kassmir at the time

the company was talked of in Reno the 6th or 7th

of August. Objection was made on the ground

that it was hearsay and the proper foimdation had

not been laid, which objection was overruled and the

notations admitted in evidence.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 57.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

United States Exhibit 60 over the objection of the

defendants as will more fully appear as follows:

The witness testified that the check marked Ex-

hibit 60 was a check signed by Mr. Kassmir, which

had come to her from her checking account and

that it had been given to Mr. Kassmir himself.
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Objection was made by the defendants that no

foundation had been laid and no authorization or

direction or adoption made by defendants. The

objection was overruled and the check admitted

in evidence.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 58.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

United States [265] Exhibit 61 over the objec-

tion of defendants as more fully appears as fol-

lows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—And I offer this.

The COURT.—Q. Was that signed by Mr. Kass-

mir, in your presence?

A. Yes.

Q. It was? A. Oh, yes.

The COURT.—It will be received and the objec-

tion overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—I do not think we noted in the

record the objection of Mr. Randolph.

The COURT.—I thought someone stated the ob-

jection was the same.

Mr. HARRIS.—But they were separate objec-

tions. I made the same objections that I made to

the check on behalf of the defendant Randolph.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. HARRIS.—Note an exception.

Mr. McMillan.—And the same objection on

behalf of the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—Overruled.
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Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit Gl.)

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 59.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony of the witness Oliver over the

objection of defendants as will more fully appear

as follows

:

The witness testifiedj over the objection of de-

fendants which are fully set forth in the biU of ex-

ceptions on file herein with this assignment of

errors, to conversations with defendant [266]

Kassmir about the company and that Mr. Kass-

mir and Mr. Randolph thought the witness and

others should put all the money they could in it.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 60.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objections of the de-

fendants as will more fully appear as follows

:

Q. Will you tell us the conversation you had

with Mr. Kassmir on that occasion?

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson ob-

jects on the ground it is hearsay, and the proper

foundation has not been laid.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—I adopt the objection made on be-

half of the defendant Robinson.
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The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. The only thing I remember was I asked him if

he thought it was a better investment than one of

their partial payment, and he said decidedly, yes,

and I transferred some other deal or contract I had

with him into that; I can't remember right now
what it was, because I destroyed all of this data.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duh^ and regxilarly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 61.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

United States Exhibit No. 64 over the objection of

the defendants as will more fully appear as follows

:

The witness identified said exhibit and declared

that it was given to her by Mr. Kassmir. Upon the

offer thereof in evidence, [267] objection was

made on the gromid that it was immaterial, irrele-

vant and incompetent and hearsay, which objec-

tion was overruled.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted. [268]

EXCEPTION No. 62.

That the Coiu't eiTed in recei\dng in evidence

U. S. Exhibit No. 65, to the introduction of which

exhibit an objection was made upon the same

grounds as in the last assignment, to the admission

of which exhibit in evidence, the defendants then

and there duly excepted.
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EXCEPTION No. 63.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

U. S. Exhibit No. 66, which was a letter received

by Miss Oliver through the mails, of the date it

bears, to the introduction of which the defendants

objected upon the ground that it was incompetent,

without foundation, irrelevant and immaterial. To

the ruling of the Court admitting the exhibit in evi-

dence, the defendants duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 64.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 67, which was a letter addressed to

the witness, Miss Oliver, signed by the defendant

Randolph, and of the date it bears, to the introduc-

tion of which the defendants objected on the ground

that it was hearsay and the proper foundation had

not been laid. To the ruling admitting said exhibit

in evidence, the defendants then and there duly and

regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 65.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 68, which was a certificate signed by

Cromwell Simon & Company, by V. A. Parks, which

was received through the mails by the witness Miss

Oliver, to the introduction of which the defendants

objected upon the ground that it was hearsay and

the proper foundation had not been laid. The de-

fendants duly and regularly excepted to the ruling

of the Court admitting the exhibit in evidence.

[269]
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EXCEPTION No. 66.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit No. 69, which was a certiticate for the

purchase of stock, si^ed by Cromwell Simon &
Company, by V. A, Parks, which exhibit was ob-

jected to upon the grounds set forth in the previous

assignment and to the ruling of the Court, the

defendants duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 67.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit No. 70, which was a certificate similar

to the one referred to in the previous assignment,

to the admission of which exhibit the defendants

objected upon the ground that it was incompetent

and hearsay and without foundation, which objec-

tion was overruled and exception duly and regu-

larly taken.

EXCEPTION No. 68.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit No. 71, which is a similar certificate

of Cromwell Simon & Company, dated August 29,

1925, and which was objected to on the ground

that it was hearsay and without the proper founda-

tion, which objection was overruled and to which

ruling, exception was duly and regularly taken.

EXCEPTION No. 69.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 72, which was a certificate made out

to the witness Mrs. Hager, bearing date of the 12th

of June, 1925, which was objected to upon the
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ground that it was hearsay and the proper founda-

tion had not been laid, which objection was over-

ruled and to which ruling the defendants duly and

regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 70.

That the Court eiTed in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibits No. 73 and 74, which were certifi-

cates of Wesley & [270] Co., made out to the wit-

ness, Oliver, and bearing date, October 22, 1925, and

November 17, 1925, respectively, which were ob-

jected to as hearsay and without proper foundation.

The objection was overruled, to which ruling ex-

ception was duly and regidarly taken.

EXCEPTION No. 71.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit No. 75, which was a letter received

by Miss Oliver, through the mails, bearing the sig-

nature of the defendant Kassmir, which letter was

objected to upon the ground that it was hearsay,

without the proper foundation, and that it was

concerning a matter that transpired after any

scheme or conspiracy charged, had ended, which

more fully appears as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I wish to offer

this letter in evidence.

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson it is objected to as hearsay, the proper

foundation has not been laid, and we ask that that

evidence be limited and restricted to the defendant.

Kassmir.
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Mr. HARRIS.—The defendant Randolph adopts

the objection of the defendant Robinson, and, in

addition, calls the Court's attention to the blanket

objection, that it is after the time any scheme or

conspiracy had ended.

The COURT.—What is the date that appears

upon that?

Mr. SWEENEY.^February 12, 1926.

The COURT.—You said that you were endeav-

oring to make proof to March 8, 1927, so the objec-

tion will be overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
The COURT.—It will be received in evidence as

Government's [271] exhibit next in order.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 75.)

To the reception of said exhibit in evidence, the

defendants duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 72.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

U. S. Exhibit No. 76, which was a letter referred

to in the indictment as Exhibit "FF," dated March

15, 1926, received by the witness. Miss Oliver,

through the mail, and which was objected to on the

ground that it was hearsay and no proper founda-

tion, which objection was overruled, and to which

ruling the defendants duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 73.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 77, a letter received through the mail

by Miss Oliver, dated May 5, which exhibit was ob-
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jected to as hearsay, without foundation and incom-

petent, which objection was overruled, and to which

ruling- the defendants duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 74.

The Court erred in receiving in evidence U. S.

Exhibit 68, which was a letter received through the

mail about April 28, by Miss Oliver, signed by the

defendant Kassmir, which exhibit was objected to

as hearsay and without proper foundation; and

which objection was overruled, and to which ruling

an exception was duly and regularly taken.

EXCEPTION No. 75.

The Court erred in receiving in e^ddence U. S.

Exhibit 79, which was a letter received by Miss

Oliver, dated July 31, 1926, signed by the defendant

Orton E. Goodwin, and which letter was objected to

on the ground that it was hearsay and without

proper foundation, and as incompetent, which ob-

jection was overruled, [272] and to which ruling

the defendants duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 76.

That the Court erred in limiting the cross-exami-

nation of the witness, Miss Oliver, which more fully

appears as follows

:

Mr. HARRIS.—One of these transactions that

you wanted to keep from your sister's mind and

attention occurred some time back along in June or

May, did it not ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is objected to as imma-
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terial, irrelevant and incompetent, and particularly

that it has been asked and answered.

Mr. HARRIS.—This is a preliminary question,

and will tie up perfectly with counsel's examination.

The COURT.—I cannot see the object of that

question, how it bears on the issues.

Mr. HARRIS.—If I disclose the object I might

as well not examine on it.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection to it.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception to the Court's ruling.

To which ruling of the Court, the defendants duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 77.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

U. S. Exhibit No. 81, which was a signature card of

Cromwell Simon & Company and a copy of the

bank account of the Pacific National Bank, which

was objected to as hearsay and without foundation,

which objection was overruled and to which ruling

the defendants duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 78.

That the Court erred in the receiving in evidence

of [273] Government's Exhibits 85 and 86, to

which the defendants objected as hearsay and with-

out foundation, and which exhibits were marked

Exhibits "HH" and "II" in the indictment.

The objection was overruled, and to which over-

ruling the defendants duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 79.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence the
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testimony of the witness Maiy Christiansen, with

respect to Govenunent Exhibit No. 28, which testi-

mony was objected to upon the ground that it was

a privileged communication, as more fully appears

as follows:

Mr. HARRIS.—If your Honor please, I assume

that this comes under that blanket objection to all

of Mrs, Christiansen's previous testimony, that she

is a servant and stenographer, and therefore it is

privileged; we stipulated once that all of her testi-

mony would be subject to that objection.

The COURT.—That is satisfactory.

Mr. HARRIS.—And it is overruled and an ex-

ception noted.

EXCEPTION No. 80.

That the Court erred in admitting certain testi-

mony over the objection of the defendants, as more

fully appears as follows

:

The COURT.—I have here the record showing

the circumstances under which U. S. Exhibit was

received in evidence, that this letter was presented

at the hearing by Mr, Cromwell Simon, Mr. Harry

Kassmir being present.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes.
The COURT.—Mr. Sweeney will be permitted to

read that exhibit. The objection of Mr. McDonald

is overruled. Do you want to make an objection,

Mr. Harris?

Mr. HARRIS.—I have made an objection, your

Honor. I renew [274] the objection formerly

made, and ask the Court at this time to direct the

jury that that should not be held as testimony
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against the defendant Randolph, on the grounds

that I have tested.

Mr. McMillan.—We join in that objection,

your Honor,

Mr. SWEENEY.—Those motions have already

been made and your Honor has ruled on them, and

it is part of the res gestae of the whole scheme.

The COURT.—The reason why it was received is

shown in the record. The matter of instruction of

the jury, that is a matter of later instruction. Mr,

Sweeney will be allowed to read the letter at this

time.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will read it. This is U. S,

Exhibit 8. (Reading.)

Mr. HARRIS.—I do not want to interrupt coun-

sel, but I do want the record to show that the defend-

ant Randolph excepts to the ruling of the Court

refusing to instruct the jury as to the manner in

which this is received, and to the permission of the

District Attorney to read it.

Mr. McMillan,—And may we have the same

exception, your Honor?

The COURT.—Yes.

EXCEPTION No, 81.

That the Court erred in receiving in evidence

U. S, Exhibit No. 89, which was a certificate of

Cromwell Simon & Company, dated August 4, 1925,

issued to George Bernard, which certificate was ob-

jected to as incompetent, irrelevant, immaterial, and

hearsay, and which objection was overruled, and to

which overruling, an exception was duly and regu-

larly taken.
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EXCEPTION No. 82.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence,

certain testimony over objection of defendants, as

follows : [275]

Q. Will you tell us what Mr. Randolph and Mr.

Kassmir said on that occasion?

Mr. McMillan.—objected to on the ground

that it is immaterial, irrelevant, incompetent, hear-

say, and also that it is too remote, so far as the

defendant Robinson is concerned.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 83.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of the defend-

ants, as more fully appears as follows:

Q. Go ahead and tell us the conversation you had

on that occasion.

Mr. McMillan.—objected to on the ground it

is immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and

hearsay.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

To which ruling the defendants then and there

duly and regularly excepted. [276]

EXCEPTION No. 84.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows ; and
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EXCEPTION No. 85.

likewise erred in denying motion to strike out the

testimony given, as will more fully appear, as fol-

lows:

Q. Can you give me the approximate time ?

A. I think it was the latter part of August, along

in August.

Q. What was the conversation had on that occa-

sion ?

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin objects to

this as immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and

hearsay as far as the defendant Goodwin is con-

cerned, and upon the further ground that the con-

versation took place after Goodwin had severed his

employment with Cromwell Simon & Company.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson

adopts the objection.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr, SWEENEY.—Would you answer the ques-

tion ^

A. What was the question'?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Would your Honor have the

reporter read the question?

The COURT.—Read the question.

(The record was here read by the reporter.)

A. The}^ told us they had established a bank in

Reno, and that it would be quite an asset to us,

because we would receive from 8 to 12 per cent on

our money quarterly, and also on the common stock

we would get at least 25 per cent

—
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Mr. HARRIS.—Just a moment, I move to strike

out that testimony as not being competent in this

proceeding, because it is not [277] one of the

"false pretenses alleged to have been made by any of

the defendants in the alleged scheme to defraud

which is set forth in the indictment, and therefore

my defendant has not had an opportunity to pre-

pare a defense to this.

Mr. McDonald.—The defendant Kassmir joins

In the objection.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin joins in

the objection, likewise.

Mr. McMillan.—And the defendant Robinson

joins in it.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McDonald.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. You may continue.

A. He, Mr. Randolph said, "Harry, don't be too

optimistic," and Mr. Kassmir says, "No, I am not.

I know it, and it will be a good investment for

them." So they took our certificates and made us

new certificates later on.

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 86.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows:
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Q. What was said and done on the occasion of

that visit, Miss Durham?
Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin objects on

the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant, and incom-

petent, and hearsay, as far as the defendant Good-

win is concerned, he having severed his employment

with Cromwell Simon & Company on July 2, 1925,

and it not being binding on him, [278]

Mr. HARRIS.—We object on behalf of the de-

fendant Robinson on the ground the foundation has

not been laid as to time.

Mr. McDonald.—-The defendant Kassmir joins

in that objection.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Can you fix the time of this

visit, Miss Durham—approximately?

Q. Pardon me?

A. In December.

Q:. Now, will you just tell us w^hat was said and

done on that occasion?

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin renews

the objection made to the previous question.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. HARRIS.—If your Honor please, I want the

objection there that the foundation has not been

laid as yet.

The COURT.—Q. What year was that, the

summer of what year?

A. In 1925.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. SWEENEY.—Continue, Miss Durham.
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A. We went to the office and the papers, I think,

were all made up ready for signature.

Q. What conversation was had at that time?

A. Kassmir said, "Now, we have got everything

all ready, and Mr. Robinson is going to get the loan

for you, and really I think he has got the loan

—

haven't you, Mr. Robinson?" And he said, "Yes, it

is made over in Oakland ; we have secured it at 7 per

cent and pay the interest monthly." Now, he says

to my aunt, "Sign there."

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted. [279]

EXCEPTION No. 87.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

Government's Exhibit No. 4 for identification, over

the objections of these defendants, as will more fully

appear, as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—If your Honor please, I want

to offer in evidence Government's Exhibit No. 4 for

identification as Government 's exhibit next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—I object to it on behalf of the

defendant Goodwin as immaterial, irrelevant, and

incompetent, and hearsay as far as the defendant

Goodwin is concerned, it appearing to be a certifi-

cate issued by Cromwell & Co., dated the 7th day

of August, 1925; Goodwin never was employed by

Cromwell & Co., and he cannot be bound by any

transactions of that concern.

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of Robinson, it is

objected to as hearsay, and the proper foundation

has not been laid.
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Mr. HARRIS.—I adopt the objections already

made on behalf of the defendant Randolph.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled and it

will be received in evidence as Government's ex-

hibit next in order.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 91.)

To which rulings defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 88.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 40 for identification over the objec-

tions of these defendants, as will more fully appear,

as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time, your Honor, I

wish to offer in [280] evidence U. S. Exhibit No.

40 for identification.

Mr. McGEE.—I make the same objection as I

made to the offer of the previous certificate of

Cromwell & Company.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection.

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection on behalf

of the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—The same ruling, and it will be

received as U. S. Exhibit next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 92.)



320 Samuel H. Rohinson and J. W. Randolph

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 89.

That the Court erred in admitting m evidence

certain testimony over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear as follows:

Q. Did you have a conversation with Mr. Kassmir

concerning the certificates? A. Yes.

Q. What was the conversation you had with

them?

Mr. HARRIS.—I do not understand even ap-

proximately what time this is. I will ask counsel

to lay the foundation a little bit further with the

witness.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. At what time was this con-

versation with Mr. Kassmir?

The COURT.—Q. What month or what year?

A. November or December.

Q. Of what year? A. 1925.

Mr. HARRIS.—Then, if your Honor please, I

reserve that blanket objection on the ground that

any conspiracy and scheme [281] had ended

then; according to your Honor's ruling, the District

Attorney will have to connect that up.

Mr. McMillan.—We make the same objection.

The COURT.—The District Attorney has made

the statement to the Court he was going to have it

continue until the 8th of March, 1927.

Mr. HARRIS.—I merely want to preserve the

record on that point, exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—May the reporter read the

question ?
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The COURT.—Read the question.

(Last question repeated by the reporter.)

Mr. SWEENEY.—Go ahead.

A. I phoned Mr. Kassmir at Mr. Robinson's office

and told him

—

Q. Just tell the conversation.

A. (Continuing.) —to come over to the house.

Thereupon the witness continued to give a con-

versation which is fully set forth in the bill of

exceptions on file herein, and to which reference

is hereby expressly made.

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 90.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

Government's Exhibit No..24 for identification, over

the objections of these defendants, as will more fully

appear, as follows:

Q. I show you Government's Exhibit No. 24 for

identification, Miss Durham, and ask you if you can

identify that. A. I can.

Q. How did you receive that?

A. By mail at 5838 Birch Court, Oakland.

Q. When? A. In February.

Mr. McGEE.—Q. What is the date?

Mr. SWEENEY.—February 2, 1926. [282]

Mr. SWEENEY.—I want to offer in evidence

Government's Exhibit No. 24 for Identification.

Mr. McGEE.—Defendant Goodwin objects on

the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant, and incom-

petent, and hearsay as far as the defendant Good-
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win is concerned, it is a letter written on the sta-

tionery of Charles Wesley Company, with which

he was never connected, and subsequent to July 2,

1925, at which time he severed his connection with

Cromwell Simon & Co.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson ob-

jects on the ground it is hearsay, and the proper

foundation has not been laid as to him.

Mr. McDonald.—The defendant Kassmir

joins in the last objection.

The COURT.—The objections are overruled, and

it will be received in evidence as Government's ex-

hibit next in order.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 95.)

To which ruling, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 91.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 96, over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Do you know when you

received it, approximately?

Mr, HARRIS.—She has already stated some

time in February. Objected to as already asked

and answered.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Ql What year?

A. 1926. [283]

Mr. SWEENEY.—I offer it in evidence as Gov-
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ernment's exhibit next in order, the signature hav-

ing been admitted.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin objects

on the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant, and in-

competent, and hearsay as far as the defendant

Goodwin is concerned, it being subsequent to the

time that the defendant Goodwin left the employ

of Cromwell Simon & Co.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson I will also object on the same grounds—

I

will object on the same grounds—I will object on

the ground it is hearsay and the proper foundation

not laid.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

The COURT.—It will be received in evidence as

Government's exhibit next in order.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 96.)

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 92.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 97, over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows:

Q. I wiU show you this letter, U. S. Exhibit 25

for Identification, and ask you if you can identify

that. A. I can.

Q. How did you receive that?

A. Through the mails by special delivery at 5838

Birch Court, Oakland.
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Q. Can you identify that envelope ? A. I do.

The COURT.—Q. That was the envelope in

which the letter came, was it?

A. Yes. [284]

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer in evi-

dence Government's Exhibit No. 25 for Identifica-

tion as Government's exhibit next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin objects

on the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant, and in-

competent, and hearsay as far as the defendant is

concerned. This letter is dated February 19, 1926,

and is on the letter-head of the Charles Wesley

Company; Goodwin never was in the employ of

Charles Wesley Company, or of Cromwell Com-

pany.

Mr. SWEENEY.—This is on the letter-head of

Allen Company.

Mr. McGEE.—I mean Allen Company; I object

to it as immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent,

and I repeat for the record the objection previously

made.

Mr. SWEENEY.—That does not include that

Goodwin did not work for the Allen Company?

Mr. McGEE.—Yes.
Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson ob-

jects that the proper foundation has not been laid,

and it is hearsay.

Mr. HARRIS.—The defendant Randolph objects

on the ground that it is hearsay as far as he is con-

cerned, and beyond the time of consummation of

any scheme or conspiracy.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled
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and it will be received in evidence as Government's

exhibit next in order,

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 97.)

To which ruling, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 93.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. [285] Exhibit 98 over the objections of

these defendants, as will more fully appear, as fol-

lows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will show you Govern-

ment's Exhibit No. 26 for Identification, and ask

you if you can identify that.

A. I can.

Q. How did you receive it?

A. By mail, special delivery, at 5838 Birch

Court, Oakland.

Q. When?
A. I won't be positive, I think Smiday.

Q. I know, but what date, what time of the year ?

A. It must have been in March.

Q. Of what year? A. 1926.

Mr. SWEENEY.—The signature is already

identified, your Honor.

The COURT.—That envelope was received with

it at the same time?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Did this letter come in this

envelope ?
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A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I want to offer

in evidence Government's Exhibit No. 26 for Iden-

tification.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin objects

on the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant, incom-

petent, and hearsay, so far as the defendant Good-

win is concerned.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection.

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled and it

will be received in evidence as Government's ex-

hibit next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 98.)

To which ruling, defendants then and there duly

and [286] regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 94.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 99, over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows

:

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will show you that letter

and ask you if recognize it.

A. Yes.

Q. How did you receive it?

A. By mail, at 5838 Birch Court.

Q. Where? A. Oakland.

Q. When did you receive it?
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A. In April, it might have been in the last of

March or April.

Q. What year? A. 1926.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time, if your Honor

please, I would like to offer in evidence a letter

dated April 19, 1926, as Government's exhibit next

in order.

Mr. McGEE.—On behalf of the defendant Good-

win the objection is made that it is immaterial, ir-

relevant, and incompetent, and hearsay, as far as

the defendant Goodwin is concerned.

The COURT.—Was that letter received through

the maiH
A. Yes.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—As to the defendant Robin-

son, it is objected to as hearsay, and the proper

foundation not laid.

The COURT.—The same ruling on the objection.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
The COURT.—It will be received in evidence as

Government's exhibit next in order.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 99.)

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted. [287]

EXCEPTION No. 95.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 100, over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows:
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Q. I show you this letter, and ask you if you can

identify that. A. I can.

Q. How did you receive this letter?

A. By mail at 5838 Birch Court, Oakland.

Q. Can you identify the envelope? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you receive it? A. Oakland.

Q. When, as best you can remember?

A. Well, April or May.

Q. What year? A. 1926.

Mr. SWEENEY.—We offer it in evidence as

U. S. exhibit next in order, if your Honor please.

Mr. McGEE.—That is objected to on behalf of

the defendant Goodwin as immaterial, irrelevant,

and incompetent, and hearsay, as far as he is con-

cerned.

Mr. McMillan.—That is objected to by the

defendant Robinson on the ground it is hearsay and

too remote, and the proper foundation has not been

laid.

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to by the de-

fendant Randolph on the ground it is too remote.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled

and it will be received as Government 's exhibit next

in order.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 100.)

EXCEPTION No. 96.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 101, over the objections of these de-
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fcndants, as will [288] more fully appear, as

follows

:

The witness testified the letter was addressed to

Mrs. Emily A. Beans, and came through the mail,

and was received at 5838 Birch Court, Oakland, in

May or June, in the envelope identified. There-

upon the following objections were made and rul-

ings had:

Mr, McMillan.—The defendant Robinson ob-

jects to it as too remote, and the jjroper foundation

not being laid.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I have not offered it yet. At

this time I offer in evidence Government's Exhibit

No. 27 for Identification.

Mr. McGEE.—Defendant Goodwin objects on

the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant, and incom-

petent, and hearsay as far as the defendant Good-

win is concerned, and it is dated June 26, at Pasa-

dena, and as far as the defendant Goodwin is con-

cerned it is hearsay.

Mr. McMillan.—^We renew the objection made

before the offer as too remote, and the proper foun-

dation not laid.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled

and it will be received in evidence as Government's

exhibit next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 101.)

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.
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EXCEPTION No. 97.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 102, over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear as follows

:

The witness testified the letter was received by-

mail in the envelope identified, in Jime or July of

1926, at 5838 [289] Birch Court, Oakland.

Mr. SWEENEY.—The signature has already

been identified, your Honor, At this time I want

to offer in evidence Government's Exhibit 28 for

Identification.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin objects

on the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant and in-

competent, and hearsay as far as the defendant

Goodwin is concerned.

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection as far as

Robinson is concerned.

Mr. HARRIS.—The defendant Randolph also

objects on the ground it is hearsay as to him, and

too remote.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled, and

it will be received in evidence as Government's ex-

hibit next in order.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 102.)

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 98.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 103, over the objections of these de-
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fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows:

The witness testified that two papers identified

by her were given to her by Mr. Robinson.

The COURT.—Did Mr. Robinson hand you those

two papers'?

A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer in evi-

dence Government's Exhibit No. 29 for Identifica-

tion, the signature having been identified.

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to on behalf of

the defendant Randolph on the ground no founda-

tion has been laid, immaterial, [290] irrelevant,

and incompetent, and hearsay as to him.

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on the groimd it is

immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and hear-

say, as far as the defendant Goodwin is concerned,

no foundation has been laid. This refers to one

of the counts of the indictment which alleges that

it was sent through the mail, and, according to the

testimony of the witness it did not go through the

mail, and I object to it being introduced in evi-

dence on that ground.

Mr. McMillan.—objected to on the latter

ground, only, that the proper foundation has not

been laid to show that offense has been committed,

whatever, against the United States under the al-

legations of this indictment, so far as that letter is

concerned.

Mr. McDonald.—The objection will be over-

ruled, and it will be received as Government's ex-

hibit next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
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Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 103.)

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 99.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

U. S. Exhibit 104, over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows:

The witness, Allen, testified that he was an attor-

ney at law, with offices in Oakland, 902i Syndicate

Building, that he could identify the letter men-

tioned, and that it was received in the mails at his

office at approximately the time of its date, March

8, 1927, and that he could identify the envelope

which came [291] with it.

Mr. SWEENEY.—If your Honor please, I want

to offer in evidence Grovernment's Exhibit No. 39

for Identification.

Mr. McGEE.—On behalf of the defendant Good-

win, it is objected to as immaterial, irrelevant, and

incompetent, and hearsay as far as Goodwin is con-

cerned, it being dated March, 1927, a date subse-

quent to the time Goodwin severed his connection

with Cromwell Simon & Co.

Mr. HARRIS.—I would like to note the objec-

tion that it is too remote as to the defendant Ran-

dolph.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled,

and it will be received in evidence as U. S. exhibit

next in order.
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Mi\ HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 104.)

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 100.

That the Court erred in admitting into evidence

certain testimony over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows:

Q. Miss Durham, how much money did you in-

vest in Cromwell Simon & Co.?

JVIr. McGEE.—Objected to as immaterial, irrele-

vant, and incompetent, and on the further ground

it is hearsay as far as the defendant Goodwin is

concerned, and it does not respond to any allega-

tion contained in the indictment in this case,

Mr. McDonald.—The further objection it is

assuming something not in evidence.

JSIr. McGEE.—And further, it calls for the con-

clusion of the witness. [292]

Mr. HARRIS.—I adopt the objection, and as-

sign it as an attempt to prejudice the mind of the

jury.

]\Ii-. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson

adopts the objection.

The COURT.—Read the question. (Last ques-

tion repeated by the reporter.) The objection is

overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
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A. Do I understand the question to be as to my-
self?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. You, yourself.

A. $3,000.

To which ruling, defendants then and there duly

and regularly objected.

EXCEPTION No. 101.

That the Court erred in admitting into evidence

certain testimony over the objections of these de-

fendants, as will more fully appear, as follows:

Q. How much did yourself and your aunt invest,

if you know of your own knowledge *?

A. About $12,060-odd—$12,056.

Q. Did you ever get any of that money back?

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to as immaterial, irrele-

vant, and incompetent, and hearsay as far as the

defendant Goodwin is concerned, and it does not

respond to any allegation of the indictment.

Mr. McDonald.—The same objection on be-

half of the defendant Kassmir.

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection on behalf

of the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. McDonald.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception. [293]

A. No.

To which ruling, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 102.

That the Court erred in limiting the cross-exami-
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nation of the witness, Durham, and in sustaining

the objection to questions asked on cross-examina-

tion, as will more fully appear, as follows

:

Q. How many times did you see Mrs. William-

son about selling? her stock"? Maybe that would

clear your mind.

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is objected to as not

proper cross-examination, your Honor.

Mr. HARRIS.—I am trying to fix the date.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Mrs. Williamson has not

entered into this controversy, at all.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—Q. Do you know how many

times you saw Mr. Williamson about selling stock?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Objected to on the ground it

is immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and not

proper cross-examination.

Mr. HARRIS.—I am testing the memory of the

witness.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception to both of the Court's

rulings, if your Honor please.

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 103.

That the Court erred in limiting the cross-exami-

nation of the witness, Durham, and in sustaining

objections to questions asked, as will more fully

appear, as follows:

Q. But you took him around to some other peo-

ple besides your [294] clients, then: Is that it?
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Mr. SWEENEY.— Objected to as not proper

cross-examination.

Mr. HARRIS.—I think it is, if your Honor

please. This woman has given the impression to

the jury that she was imposed upon, and I desire to

show that she had business training, and knew what

she was doing.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. Two other persons

—

The COURT.—Just a minute. The answer goes

out.

To which rulings, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 104.

That the Court erred in limiting the cross-ex-

amination of the witness, Durham, and in sustain-

ing objections to questions on cross-examination, as

will more fully appear, as follows:

Mr. HARRIS.—Q. Are you familiar with what a

mortgage looks like, from what it contains?

Mr. SWEENEY.— The same objection, imma-

terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and it is not

proper cross-examination.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—I will except to the Court's rul-

ing.

To which ruling, defendants then and there duly

and regularly excepted. [295]

EXCEPTION No. 105.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain
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testimony over the objections of the defendants,

which more fully appears as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Of your own knowledge,

how many letters did your aunt, Mrs. Beans, write

to Mr. Randolph in Los Angeles'?

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to as imma-

terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and as being

indefinite as to time.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin objects on

the grounds stated in the previous objection to the

last question.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. After April 1, 1925, Miss

Durham.

Mr. HARRIS.—That is still objected to.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. Five or six.

To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 106.

That the Court erred in admitting in evidence

certain testimony over the objection of the defend-

ant, which more fully appears as follows:

Q. What was the conversation you had at that

time with Mr. Randolph or Mr. Kassmir and Mr.

Randolph ?

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin objects

to that on the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant,

and incompetent, and hearsay as far as the defend-

ant Goodwin is concerned, he not being an employee

of Cromwell Simon & Co. at that time.



338 Samuel H. Rotinson and J. W. RandolpE

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to as assuming

sometliing not in evidence. Tliere is no evidence

here of any conversation with [296] Mr. Ran-

dolph and Mr. Kassmir concerning this $1500 loan.

Mr. SWEENEY.—This lady testified that she

sat in Mr. Robinson's office for a considerable length

of time with the door ajar, in which the $1500 was

the subject of the conversation.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 107.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendant,

which more fully appears as follows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will attempt to do that later.

Q. How many mortgage^:? were there on the house,

if you know, at Birch Court ?

Mr. McDonald.—objected to as immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, and not within the

issues laid in this indictment.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin makes the

same objection, and that it is hearsay.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. McDonald.—Exception.

To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted. [297]
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EXCEPTION No. 108.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendant, which

more fully appears as follows

:

Q. Did you ever do any printing for the Charles

Wesley Company at Los Angeles'? A. Yes.

Q. Who ordered that printing?

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin objects

on the ground it is immaterial, irrelevant, and in-

competent, and hearsay as far as the defendant

Goodwin is concerned, he not having been in any

way connected with Charles Wesley Company.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 109.

That the Court erred in limiting the cross-exam-

ination of the witness McClintock, as more fully

appears as follows:

Q. Mr. Kassmir told you that he would arrange

to get you a job down in Los Angeles'?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Objected to as inmiaterial, ir-

relevant, and incompetent, and assuming something

not in evidence.

Mr. HARRIS.—I can assimie, upon cross-exam-

ination, anything for the purpose of the cross-exam-

ination. I do not have to stick to the evidence;

and, as counsel has made that objection so many

times

—

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection.
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To wMcli ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted. [298]

EXCEPTION No. 110.

That the Court erred in limiting the cross-exam-

ination of the witness W. C. Owens, as more fully

appears as follows

:

Q. Did you follow Cromwell Simon, or Mr. Kass-

mir, or either one or both of them to the stock

market in the morning to see whether they made

purchases of stock? A, No.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Objected to as immaterial, ir-

relevant, and incompetent, and assuming something

not in evidence, that Mr. Cromwell Simon or Mr.

Kassmir went to the stock office in the morning.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Q. Did you go to the Corporation Department to

ascertain the standing of the concern? A. No.

Q. You saw an ordinary and usual brokerage

business there conducted in the ordinary and usual

way, and you assumed it was conducted that way?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Objected to as immaterial, ir-

relevant, and incompetent, and calling for the con-

clusion of the witness, that it was an ordinary brok-

erage firm.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection.

To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted,

EXCEPTION No. 111.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain
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testimony over the objection of the defendant,

which more fully appears as follows

:

Q. Did you conduct an investigation of these de-

fendants, Mr. Maderia?

Mr, McGEE.—That is objected to as immaterial,

irrelevant [299] and incompetent, and hearsay.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. I conducted an investigation into Cromwell

Simon & Co., in which these particular defendants

were interested, and connected with.

Mr. HARRIS.—Just a moment, I ask that the

answer "these defendants were interested" be

stricken out as calling for a conclusion of the wit-

ness.

To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 112.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendant,

which more fully appears as follows:

Q. Did you, on that occasion, have a conversation

with Mr. Randolph relative to the Cromwell Simon

Company of San Francisco'?

Mr. McMillan.—As to the defendant Robinson,

that is objected to on the ground it is hearsay.

Have you called for the conversation?

Mr. SWEENEY.—No, I am asking if he had a

conversation.
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To wMch ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 113.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence U. S.

Exhibit No. 107 for the reasons that it is imma-

terial, irrelevant, and hearsay as to the defendants.

To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted. [300]

EXCEPTION No. 114.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence certain

testimony over the objection of the defendant,

which more fully appears as follows

:

Q. What was the conversation had on that occa-

sion?

Mr. McDonald.—objected to as immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, and the proper foun-

dation has not been laid ; this is a conversation that

took place between an officer and a man in custody,

and it has not been shown that it was free and vol-

untary, or without promise of immunity or reward.

Mr. McGEE.—I make the objection, unless the

district attorney makes a stipulation in regard to

the conversation that he did as to the other de-

fendants,

Mr. SWEENEY.—That stipulation will be made.

The conversation will bind only Mr. Kassmir, and

no one else.

Mr, HARRIS.—^We object that no foundation

has been laid for the testimony of the witness under

the circumstances that he has related.

Mr. McMillan.—^We join in that objection.
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The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 115.

The Court erred in admitting in evidence U. S.

Exhibit No. 110, which is alleged to be a letter writ-

ten by the defendant Robinson, the objection to

which more fully appears as follows

:

The COURT.—I do not see it in the record.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Will you look at this? I

will show you [301] this letter and ask you if

you can identify it.

A. Yes.

Q. Is it a part of your files?

A. A part of our files.

Mr. SWEENEY.— Will the signature be ad-

mitted, Mr. McMillan?

Mr. McMillan.—Yes.
Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I want to offer in

evidence a letter ; I will present it to your Honor, so

that your Honor can read it and see its relevancy.

The COURT.— Is it admitted by the other de-

fendants that this is the signature of Mr. Robin-

son?

Mr. HARRIS.—If Mr. McMillan says it is we

admit it.

The COURT.—What is your attitude, Mr. Mc-

Donald?
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Mr. McDonald.—If Mr. McMillan says it is,

we will admit it.

Mr. McGEE.—I make the same admission, except

that Goodwin objects on the ground it is imma-

terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and hearsay as

far as the defendant Goodwin is concerned, it being

at a date subsequent to the time that Goodwin

severed all connection with Cromwell Simon & Com-

pany.

The COURT.—Are you ofPering it?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes.

Mr. HARRIS. — I object to it solely on the

ground that it does not point to any of the alleged

offenses set forth in the indictment, it is not one of

the false pretenses set forth, and that none of these

defendants are charged in any way with this trans-

action, immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled, and it

will be received in evidence as Government 's exhibit

next in order.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted. [302]

EXCEPTION No. 116.

That the Court erred in overruling and denying

a motion on behalf of defendants Robinson and

Randolph individually, which said motions and the

rulings denying same more fully appears as fol-

lows:

Mr. McMillan.—At this time, at the close of
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the Government's evidence in chief, the defendant

Samuel H. Robinson moves this Court to direct the

jury to find him not guilty upon each and every

count contained in said indictment, excepting

of course, counts 1 and 34, upon the following

grounds

:

1. That there is no evidence of sufficient sub-

stantiality to support a verdict and judgment of

guilty if such verdict and judgment were found or

made and rendered against said defendant on any of

said counts.

2. No offense against the United States is

charged in the indictment herein, or any of said

counts, for the same reason, and upon the same

grounds as set forth in the demurrer of said Samuel

H. Robinson on file herein.

3. That no offense sought to be charged in the

indictment herein, or any count thereof, has been

proven.

4. The evidence adduced fails to prove a plan,

or scheme, or artifice said to be set forth in said in-

dictment and each count thereof.

5. The evidence fails to prove that said defend-

ant Samuel H. Robinson at any time had any

knowledge of any plan, or scheme, or artifice, as set

forth in said indictment, or any count thereof, or

that he ever entered into any such plan, scheme, or

artifice as set forth in said indictment, or any

count thereof, or that he ever knowingly aided,

abetted or assisted in the furtherance or execution

of any such plan, scheme or artifice. [303]

That the statements, representations and letters
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that were made or mailed by said Samuel H. Rob-

inson were not made or mailed knowingly pursuant

to any general plan or scheme adopted or sanc-

tioned by him.

That any acts, declarations, or statements made

by said Samuel H. Robinson, or any letter alleged

to have been mailed or received by said Samuel H.

Robinson had no relation to and was not a step in

any attempted execution or furtherance of any

plan, or scheme, or artifice as alleged in said indict-

ment, or any count thereof, or in furtherance or

execution of any plan, scheme, or artifice.

Lastly, that the evidence in this case, so far as

said Samuel H. Robinson is concerned, is as con-

sistent with his innocence as it is with his guilt.

I respectfully submit the matter without argu-

ment.

Mr. HARRIS.—May it please the Court, without

repeating each one of the motions made by the de-

fendant Robinson, the defendant Randolph reiter-

ates and adopts them as if fully stated at this time.

However, at this time I would like to make a short

argument upon the proposition.

(After argiunent).

Mr. McDonald.—The defendant Kassmir joins

in the motions made by the defendant Randolph,

and makes the further motion that the counts of the

indictment referring to the testimony of the witness

Pike, or the witness Christensen, to all transactions

concerning Mr. Robinson, be dismissed on the

ground that all of the testimony that these counts

refer to are privileged communications between at-
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torney and client. Your Honor lias already passed

upon that motion, but this is merely renewing it

for the purpose of the record ; we ask that that evi-

dence be at this time stricken out.

The COURT.—Are you offering anything else

besides that motion? [304]

Mr. McDonald.—I am joining in the motion of

the defendant Randolph.

The COURT.—I presume in behalf of your own

client.

Mr. McDonald.—Yes.
The COURT.—There being nothing further, the

jury may be returned.

(The jury was returned into court.)

The COURT.—The jurors being present in the

jury-box, and the defendants being present, you

may proceed. I believe at this time the only motion

that is before the Court is that of Goodwin, for an

instructed verdict. The same will be denied. Any
further motions'?

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—May it please your Honor, I

made a motion on behalf of the defendant Robinson,

and for the reasons therein stated I move for a

directed verdict upon all of the grounds stated, and

each of the grounds stated in the motion.

The COURT.—The point is, you made it in the

absence of the jury
;
you made such a statement and

you wish to request an instructed verdict at this

time before the jury?

Mr. McMillan.—Yes.
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The COURT.—On the grounds that you have

stated to the Court ?

Mr. McMillan.—Yes.
The COURT.—The same will be denied.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—The defendant Randolph makes

a motion for an instructed verdict on the grounds

stated to your Honor in the absence of the jury.

The COURT.—The same will be denied.

Mr. HARRIS.— Exception. At the same time

we move to strike out all of the testimony in letters

purporting on their face or [305] by the testi-

mony of the witness to have been mailed after Sep-

tember 15, 1925, on behalf of the defendant J. W.
Randolph, on the ground that as to him they are

hearsay, and the mere relation of a conspirator,

after the conspiracy or scheme has been consum-

mated.

The COURT.—The motion will be denied.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson joins

in the motion just made by the defendant Randolph,

substituting the name Robinson for Randolph.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

EXCEPTION No. 117.

That the Court erred in refusing to receive in

evidence certain testimony on behalf of the defend-

ant Randolph, which more fully appears as fol-

lows:

Mr. SWEENEY.—Objected to as immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent.
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The COURT.—The objection is sustained.

Mr. HARRIS.—Q. How long did you continue

to work for Cromwell Simon & Co.?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Objected to as immaterial, ir-

relevant, and incompetent, and not within the is-

sues of the indictment; it is certainly not relevant

how long he worked for them.

Mr. HARRIS.—I think it is very relevant to

show under what conditions Cromwell Simon & Co.

were conducted, because that is the gist of the Gov-

ernment's case.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.

EXCEPTION No. 118.

The Court erred in refusing to receive in evi-

dence [306] certain testimony on behalf of the

defendant Randolph, which more fully appears as

follows

:

Mr. HARRIS.—Q. State whether or not Jack

Randolph rendered you any assistance in getting the

money ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Objected to on the ground it is

immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and par-

ticularly that it is leading.

Mr. HARRIS.—It goes to the good faith of this

defendant as to whether he was in any alleged

scheme.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
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EXCEPTION No. 119.

The Court erred in refusing to receive in evi-

dence certain testimony on behalf of the defendant

Randolph, which more fully appears as follows

:

Mr. HARRIS.—Q. Mr. Paddock, is it not a fact

that the terms of sale include delivery of the stock?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Objected to as immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, and calling for the

conclusion of the witness, also leading.

Mr. HARRIS.—It is based on counsel's own ques-

tion a moment ago.

The COURT.—It is not the best evidence, and I

will sustain the objection.

Mr. HARRIS.—I desire to note an exception.

To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 120.

That the Court erred in refusing the motion of

the defendants to strike from the record Exhibit

No. "SS.," dated March [307] 8th, 1927, being

a letter wiitten to Mr. Allen, the grounds of which

motion more fully appear as follows

:

Q. Calling your attention to a letter which you

wrote to Mr. Allen across the bay, and which you

are probably familiar with, Exhibit No. "SS,"

dated March 8, 1927—paragraph 3—I will read it

to you and ask you if you are familiar with that

paragraph—the paragraph is as follows

:

"Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham had entered

into a contract with the firm of Cromwell Simon

& Company for the purchase of different stocks
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(I do not remember the dates, but will give

them all to you later). Because of reputa-

tion that Mr. Simon had, unbeknown to me or

to my associates there, the Corporation De-

partment called Cromwell Simon & Company

before them for a hearing and revoked their

permit.
'

'

You say that is true ? A. No.

Mr. HARRIS.—If your Honor please, this is a

letter long after the alleged scheme had ended, and

I move the Court that it be stricken out and the

jury be instructed to disregard it, as far as my de-

fendant is concerned.

The COURT.—What is the date of the letter?

Mr. SWEENEY.—It is dated March 8, 1927.

Mr. McGEE.—The same objection and motion

on behalf of the defendant Goodwin.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 121.

The Court erred in admittmg in e\T.dence certain

testimony over the objections of defendants, as

more fully appears as follows : [308]

Q. The certificates were dated August 7—from

the letter of Mr. Robinson, which is dated August

26, that was the day upon which that order was

given to Mr. Pike, was it not? You are familiar

with that letter of August 26, are you not?
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A. Yes.

Q. Who gave the order at that time?

A. I believe Mr. Simon,

Q. What became of the check of $3,800 that was

paid by Mrs. Beans to Cromwell Simon & Co., or

Cromwell & Co., if you know?

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to as calling for

a conclusion; the check is in evidence and shows

on the back thereof that it was deposited on the

day following, in the Humlioldt Bank.

Mr. McGEE.—I object to it on behalf of Goodwin

as immaterial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and

hearsay.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 122.

That the Court erred in denying the motions of the

defendants Robinson and Randolph for a directed

vei'dict of not guilty upon all the accounts upon

which they were on trial, which said motion more

fully appears as follows:

Mr. McMillan.—May it please your Honor, at

this time, at the conclusion of all of the evidence

in the case on behalf of the defendant Robinson I

move for a directed verdict upon all of the grounds,

and for the same reasons set forth in my motion for

a directed verdict at the conclusion of the Govern-

ment's case in chief.
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The COURT.—Does each defendant want to do

that ?

Mr. McGEE.—On behalf of the defendant Good-

win I move on all of the grounds I moved at the

conclusion of the prosecution's [309] case, that

your Honor instruct the jury to return a verdict of

not guilty on all of the counts as far as the de-

fendant Goodwin is concerned.

The COURT.—You ask for a dismissal?

Mr. McMillan.—I ask for a directed verdict.

Mr. McGEE.—I ask for a directed verdict upon

exactly the same grounds as I stated at the conclu-

sion of the Government's case.

Mr. HARRIS.—The defendant Randolph adopts

that motion, inserting the name Randolph instead of

Robinson.

Mr. McDonald.—The defendant Kassmir now

renews all the motions made at the close of the

Government's case.

The COURT.—I would rather rule on the motions

Tuesday.

(With the usual admonition to the jury, an ad-

journment was taken until Tuesday, June 19, 1928,

at ten o'clock A. M.)

Tuesday, June 19, 1928.

The COURT.—The motions of the defendants

Kassmir, Robinson, and Randolph for an instructed

verdict will be denied. The motion of defendant

Goodwin for an instructed verdict will be granted.

Mr. McMillan.—May I note an exception on

behalf of the defendant Robinson?
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Mr. McDonald.—An exception on behalf of the

defendant Kassmir,

Mr. HARRIS.—An exception on behalf of the de-

fendant Randolph, your Honor.

To which ruling of the Court the defendants and

each of them, then and there duly and regularly ex-

cepted.

EXCEPTION No. 123.

That the Court erred in instructing the jury,

wherein the Court charged the jury that an agent

who tried to sell stock [310] acted in the capa-

city of a trustee, which instruction was as follows:

"Agents who buy and sell stock stand in the at-

titude of trustees obligated to good faith and honest

dealings with those with whom they do business, and

the law obligates such a trustee, when in that

position, to the highest degree of good faith and

honesty, with his associates. He must not conceal

anything from them; he must not falsify anything

to them. His duty is to take care of their interests

;

to advise them correctly; to keep correct accounts,

and, above all, to keep accurate books, and be pre-

pared to account for every dollar when the time

comes. He is in the same position as a director of a

corporation who is a trustee of the corporation.
'

'

To which instruction the defendants excepted as

appears as follows:

Mr. HARRIS.—Now, if your Honor please, with

the Court's permission, I would like to enter an

exception to the Court's instruction—I had no way

of having it by number, but the one which sets forth
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that an agent who tried to sell stock acted in the

capacity of a trustee; that, in effect, was the in-

struction. I would also like to except generally to

the refusal of the Court to give any and all other

instructions offered by the joint defendants, and re-

fused to have been given.

The COURT.—I do not know whether a blanket

objection like that would be of any value. Of

course, the Court, in its instructions, endeavored to

cover the entire field completely by giving every in-

struction which was pertinent to the issue. How-

ever, the exception can be noted by the reporter to

the extent that counsel has expressed it.

To which ruling of the Court the defendant then

and there duly and regularly excepted. [311]

EXCEPTION No. 124.

The Court erred in failing to give the following-

instruction which was requested by the defendants:

INSTRUCTION No. 16.

You are instructed that before one can be con-

victed of a crime by reason of the acts of another

person who acts in his behalf, a clear case must be

shown. The civil doctrine that a person is bound by

the acts of his agent within the scope of the agent's

authority has no application to criminal law. If a

person is liable at all criminally for the acts of

another, such liability must be founded upon au-

thorized acts. Authority to do a criminal act will

not be presumed.
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You are instructed that the charges contained in

the indictment are based upon alleged violations of

Sec. 215 of the Criminal Code, without the element

of conspiracy. You are therefore, instructed that

before you can find the defendant J. W. Randolph

guilty of any of said charges you must find first that

the false pretense in the indictment were made di-

rectly by defendant Randolph, or that they were

directly authorized or consented to by the defendant

Randolph, and in the latter event a clear case must

be shown.

People vs. Green, 22 Cal. App. 45, 50.

People vs. Doble, 75 Cal. Dec. 369.

INSTRUCTION No. 17.

You are instructed that before one can be con-

victed of a crime by reason of the acts of another

person who acts in his behalf, a clear case must be

shown. The civil doctrine that a person is bound

by the acts of his agent within the scope of the

agent's authority has no application to criminal

law. If a person is liable at all criminally for the

acts of another, such liability must be founded upon

authorized acts. Authority to do a criminal act

will not be presumed. [312]

You are instructed that the charges contained in

the indictment are based upon alleged violations of

Section 215 of the Criminal Code, without the ele-

ment of conspiracy. You are, therefore, instructed

that before you can find the defendant Robinson

guilty of any of said charges you must find first that
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the false pretenses alleged in the indictment were

made directly by defendant Robinson, or that they

were directly authorized or consented to by the de-

fendant Robinson, and in the latter event a clear

case must be shown.

People vs. Doble, 75 Cal. Dec. 369.

People vs. Green, 22 Cal. App. 45, 50.

The defendants, and each of them, regularly and

duly excepted to the refusal of the Court to instruct

the jury as requested with proposed instructions

No. 16 and No. 17, as more fully appears as fol-

lows:

Mr. McMillan.—May it please your Honor, I

have not any exception to the charge your Honor

has given to the jury. There was one instruction

which I requested on behalf of the defendant Robin-

son which the Court has refused to give. I desire

to note an exception to your Honor's refusal to give

that instruction.

The COURT.—Just a moment. You asked for

one instruction. Instruction No. 19.

Mr. McMillan.—No, that the Court has given

already. To identify the instruction, it is No. 17.

The COURT.—Do you mean one of those by the

joint defendants'?

Mr. McMillan.—Yes.
The COURT.—You wish to take exception to the

refusal of the Court to give Instruction No. 17 as

presented by the joint defendants'?

Mr. McMillan.—Yes.
The COURT.—Let the record show that you take

your exception. [313]
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Mr. HARRIS.—I would like to amplify it to this

extent, particularly to the failure of the Court to

give the instruction with reference to the fact that

a clear case must be shown where one is to be found

guilty of a crime alleged to have been committed by

another.

The COURT.—The same instruction to which Mr.

McMillan took an exception %

Mr. HARRIS.—Yes.
To which ruling of the Court the defendants, and

each of them, then and there duly and regularly ex-

cepted.

EXCEPTION No. 125.

That the Court erred in denying the motion of the

defendants for a new trial, to which ruling of the

Court the defendants then and there duly and regu-

larly excepted.

EXCEPTION No. 126.

That the Court erred in denying the motions of

the defendants in arrest of judgment to the denial

of which motions the defendants then and there

duly and reg*ularly excepted.

WHEREFORE, for the many manifest errors

committed by the Court, the defendants through

their attorneys pray that said sentences the judg-

ments of conviction be reversed ; and for such other
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and further relief as to the Court may seem meet

and proper,

R. B. McMillan,
Attorney for Defendant Robinson.

JAMES B. O'CONNOR,
HAROLD C. FAULKNER,
H. H. HARRIS,

Attorneys for Defendant Randolph. [314]

[Endorsed] : Due service and receipt of a copy

of the within assignment of errors is hereby ad-

mitted this 29th day of June, 1928.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
Per J. L. SWEENEY,

Attorneys for United States.

Filed Jun. 29, 1928. [315]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

ORDER ALLOWING APPEAL, SUPERSE-
DEAS AND BONDS.

Upon motion of the attorneys of the above-named

defendants Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Ran-

dolph, and it satisfactorily appearing that said de-

fendants have this day duly filed their, and each of

their, notice of appeal to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals in and for the Ninth Circuit from

the judgments, and each of said judgments, made

and entered in the above-entitled cause against

them, and each of them, on June 20, 1928, and said

defendants, and each of them, have filed their peti-
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tion for an appeal, together with their assigmnent

of errors and proposed bill of exceptions,

—

IT IS ORDERED, that an appeal be, and the

same is hereby allowed to have reviewed in said

United States Circuit Court of Appeals in and for

the Ninth Circuit the judgments and sentences here-

tofore entered in the above-entitled action against

said defendants Samuel H. Robinson and J. W.
Rlandolph, [316] and each of them, and that Ihe

Clerk of this Court transmit to the Clerk of the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals in and for

the Ninth Circuit, a full, true and correct transcript

of all records and proceedings in the above-entitled

cause.

AND IT IS ORDERED, that the amount of the

cost bond on said appeal herein be and hereby is

fixed in the sum of Two Hundred and Fifty Dollars

($250), conditioned as required by law and rules

of this Court.

AND IT IS ORDERED, that upon the giving

by said defendant Samuel H. Robinson of a good

and sufficient bond or undertaking in the sum of

$10,000.00 and conditioned as required by law and

the rules of this court, all further proceedings in

this court be suspended and stayed as against said

defendant Samuel H. Robinson until the final deter-

mination of said appeal by the said United States

Circuit Court of Appeals, or by the Supreme Court

of the United States upon a petition for writ of

certiorari.

AND IT IS ORDERED, that upon the giving

by said defendant J. W. Randolph of a good and
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sufficient bond or undertaking in the sum of $10,-

000.00 and conditioned as required by law and the

rules of this court, all further proceedings in this

court be suspended and stayed as against said de-

fendant J. W. Randolph until the final determina-

tion of said appeal by the said United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, or by the Supreme Court

of the United States upon a petition for writ of

certiorari.

AND IT IS FURiTHER ORDERED, that the

assignment of errors and proposed bill of exceptions

filed herein and presented herewith jointly and sev-

erally on behalf of said defendants Samuel H. Rob-

inson and J, W. Randolph be and the same is made

[317] the assignment of errors and proposed bill

of exceptions on behalf of said defendants, and each

of them.

Dated, June 29, 1928.

HAROLD LOUDERBACK,
U. S. District Judge.

Due service of the within order and receipt of a

copy thereof hereby admitted this 29' day of June

1928.

GEO. J. HATFIELD,
J. L. SWEENEY,

Attorneys for U. S.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jun. 29, 1928. [318]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS ON BEHALF OF THE
ABOVE-NAMED DEFENDANTS SAMUEL
H. ROBINSON AND J. W. RANDOLPH,
STIPULATION BETWEEN PARTIES
THAT SAME BE SETTLED AND AL-
LOWED AS THE TRUE BILL OF EXCEP-
TIONS HEREIN, AND ORDER! OF COURT
SETTLING AND ALLOWING.

BE IT REMEMBERED, that heretofore, to wit,

on February 21, 1928, the Grand Jury of the United

States, in and for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, Southern Division, First Division, did pre-

sent and return into and before the above-entitled

Court its indictment against the above-named de-

fendants ; that on said day said indictment was filed

in said court, and thereafter each of said defendants

was duly arraigned, as shown by the record on file

in the above-entitled cause.

AND BE IT FURTHER REMEMBERED, that

thereafter, to wit, on March 26, 1928, the above-

named defendants, Samuel H. Robinson and J. W.
Randolph, each duly filed his demurrer to said in-

dictment, as shown by the records of said court,

and made a part hereof. [319]

EXCEPTION No. 1.

That on March 29, 1928, said Court sustained each

of said demurrers as to Count One of said indict-

ment, and overruled each of said demurrers as to

all remaining counts.
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That said demurrers, after stating the title of the

court cause, were and are as follows:

I.

That said indictment does not, nor any count

thereof, state facts sufficient to constitute a public

offense against the United States of America.

II.

That the indictment and each and every count

thereof fails to advise the defendant herein suffi-

ciently of the charge or charges that he is called

upon to meet and does not contain averments suffi-

cient to enable him to intelligently prepare for his

trial and that in said behalf, each count thereof is

ambiguous, unintelligible and insufficient in the

following particulars

:

1. That the paragraph beginning at line 12 and

page 1 of said indictment herein, is unintelligible,

ambigTious and meaningless and that the meaning

intended to be conveyed thereby cannot be ascer-

tained therefrom.

2. That with reference to the paragraph begin-

ning on line 29 and page 1 of said indictment, it

cannot be ascertained therefrom what part or con-

nection, if any, the defendant, J. W. RIandolph, had

with said scheme or in what way he devised or in-

tended by means of the allegations thereof to take

part in said scheme to defraud.

3. That with further reference to said last men-

tioned paragraph in said indictment, it cannot be

ascertained [320] therefrom whether the acts

specified therein were actually performed.
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4. That the paragraph beginning with line 21

of page 2 of said indictment is uncertain and am-

biguous in that it cannot be ascertained therefrom,

— (a) What relation, if any Cromwell & Company,

Inc., had to the alleged scheme or device, (b)

Whether the said Samuel H. Robinson did in fact

mail said Articles of Incorporation to LeRoy F.

Pike at Reno, Nevada, (c) Whether said Robin-

son did request said Pike to obtain dummy directors,

(d) In what manner said acts were unlawful or

in violation of the Statutes of the United States

or any state or territory thereof, (c) What rela-

tion, if any, the said acts had to said alleged scheme

or artifice to defraud.

5. With relation to paragraphs beginning on

line 3 and ending on line 12 of page 3 of said indict-

ment, it does not appear and cannot be ascertained

therefrom,— (a) Whether it was part of the

scheme or artifice to defraud that defendant, Kass-

mir, should offer to subscribe or should pay the

sum of Fifty Thousand ($50,000.00)' Dollars cash

for said stock, or whether he should pay the said

Fifty Thousand ($50,000.00) Dollars, (b) That

the falsifying or negativing paragraph thereof does

not allege that the said Kassmir did not offer to

subscribe, (c) That said negativing paragraph

states, *'as defendant then and there well knew,"

but does not state which defendant then and there

well knew that Kassmir did not pay Fifty Thou-

sand ($50,000.00) Dollars each, (d) That it can-

not be ascertained therefrom who seconded, offered

and/or passed said resolution, that is to say whether
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it was Cromwell Simon and Company, Cromwell

and Company or some other board, body or organi-

zation, or what relation said resolution had to said

scheme or artifice, (e) That generally it cannot

be ascertained in what manner said [321] acts

were a part of or in furtherance of said scheme or

artifice to defraud.

6. With relation to paragraph beginning on line

13 and ending on line 27 of page 3 of said indict-

ment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom, nor from

any part of said indictment,— (a) What is meant

or intended to be meant by "Cromwell Simon and

Co. Investment Plan,"— (b) What false and

fraudulent representations or promises were made

or intended to be made.

That the statements made therein are recitals of

conclusions of law only and not allegations of fact.

7. With relation to paragraph beginning on line

5 of page 4, it cannot be ascertained therefrom nor

from any part of said indictment, what false repre-

sentations were to be used to induce and/or per-

suade the victims to purchase high-grade stock un-

der the alleged Cromwell & Simon Co. Investment

Plan,—(a) What the Cromwell & Simon Co. In-

vestment Plan was.

8. With relation to paragraph beginning on line

14 and ending on line 22 of page 4 of said indict-

ment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom nor from

any part of said indictment,— (a) What time is

referred to by the words "existing conditions,"

(b) What is meant by the language, "alluring,

exaggerated, misleading, false and fraudulent rep-
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resentations, " that is to say what the alluring, ex-

aggerated, misleading, false and fraudulent rep-

resentations related to. (c) What the language,
'

' should raise in said victims hopes and expectations

of profit and reward far beyond the limits war-

ranted by existing conditions" relates to, or what

coimections same had, if any, with said artifice

or scheme to defraud.

9. With relation to paragraphs beginning with

line 24 and ending with line 31 of page 4, it cannot

be ascertained therefrom nor from any part of the

said indictment,—(a) In what [322] respect it is

alleged that Cromwell Simon & Co. was a reputable

company, that is to say, reputed for what, (b)

That the negativing and falsifying clause does not

deny or allege that Cromwell Simon & Co was a

reputable brokerage company, (c) That it can-

not be ascertained what is meant by "of the char-

acter of a bucket shop." (d) That the allegations

in said paragTaph as to representations were only

representations of opinion and "puffing" permitted

by law.

10. With reference to the paragraph beginning

on line 1 and ending on line 7 of page 5 of said in-

dictment, it cannot be ascertained whether in truth

or in fact it was or was not the business of Crom-

well Simon & Co. to sell to alleged victims high

grade corporation stocks and other securities, par-

ticularly on the partial payment plan.

11. With relation to paragraph 3 on page 5 of

said indictment, it cannot be ascertained therefrom

nor from any part of said indictment what is meant
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by,— (a) Cromwell Simon & Co. Investment Plan.

12. With relation to paragraph 4 on page 5 of

said indictment, it caimot be ascertained therefrom

nor from any part of said indictment when or in

what manner the alleged victims would draw an}'

dividends or interest declared on high-grade stock

or other securities so purchased and held by them,

that is to say, said victims, or in what manner, if

at all this defendant would or could become pos-

sessed of said dividends or interest, or any of said

defendants or in what manner said Cromwell Simon

& Co. could or would become possessed of said divi-

dends or interest thereon.

13. With relation to paragraph 5 appearing on

page 6 of said indictment, it cannot be ascertained

therefrom nor from any part of said indictment

what relation the following words, to wit: [323]

"that an investor subscribing for such corporate

stock, or Other security, through the said company,

would have the privilege of selling the same at any

time he desired," would have as to the alleged

scheme or artifice to defraud in this that it is not

negatived or falsified that said investors referred

to in said indictment had such privilege.

14. That Count 1 of said indictment does not

state facts sufficient to constitute an offense against

the United States of America ; that said count does

nQt allege that the letter set forth in said count

was ever placed or cause to be placed in the United

States mail.

15. That with respect to the letters referred to

in each and all of the counts of said indictment,



368 Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph

only the following are purported to be signed by

or referred to the said defendant, J. W. Randolph

:

The letter referred to in Count Three and marked

Exhibit " F, " the letter referred to in Count Eleven

and marked Exhibit '*P," the letter referred to in

Count Nineteen and marked Exhibit "EE," the

letter referred to in Count Twenty-two and marked

Exhibit "HH," the letter referred to in Count

twenty-three and marked Exhibit "II," the letter

referred to in Count twenty-four and marked Ex-

hibit "KK," the letter referred to in Count Twenty-

five and marked Exhibit "LL," the letter referred

to in Count Twenty-seven and marked Exhibit

"MM" and the letter referred to in Count Thirty

and marked Exhibit "PP," and it does not appear

in the said indictment or any of the counts thereof

what connection, if any, said J. W. Randolph had

with the mailing of each and all of the exhibits re-

ferred to in this indictment and all of the various

counts thereof.

EXCEPTION No. 2.

AND BE IT FURTHER REMEMBERED, that

said defendants, Samuel H. Robinson and J. W.
Randolph each duly and seasonably [324] filed

demands for bill of particulars, as shown by the

records of said court, made a part hereof, a copy

thereof being as follows

:

Now come J. W. Randolph and Samuel H. Rob-

inson, by their attorney, H. H. Harris, and move

the above-entitled court for an order directing the

United States District Attorney for the Northern
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District of California, Southern Division, to fur-

nish to said defendants a bill of particulars in order

that said defendants may know and be particularly

informed of the following matters, to wit

:

(1) The names of the persons referred to in

said indictment as victims.

(2) What particular certain class of persons the

defendants had devised a scheme and artifice to

defraud ?

(3) When or during what period prior to the

mailing of the letters stated did defendants devise

or intend to devise the scheme to defraud alleged

in the indictment ?

(4) The names and addresses of the persons to

whom and the times and places when the defend-

ants Cromwell Simon and Harry M, Kassmir as

copartners or otherwise offered for sale or nego-

tiated for the sale of or otherwise dealt in securities

in the State of California.

(5) Whether or not the defendant, Robinson,

ever requested said Pike to obtain dummy direc-

tors and regularly incorporate Cromwell & Com-

pany, Inc., under the laws of the State of Nevada

and if so when the said Pike did said things, and

the names and addresses of said dummy directors.

(6) Whether or not Samuel H. Robinson, Harry

M. Kassmir and Cromwell Simon ever visited Reno,

Nevada, for the purpose of obtaining a meeting of

the directors of Cromwell & Company, Inc., and if

so the time when said visits occurred and the time

when said meeting of said directors occurred.

(6a) What relation, if any, the formation and/



370 Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph

or existence [325] of Cromwell & Company, Inc.,

had or could have had to the alleged scheme or

device.

(7) Whether or not the defendant, Kassmir,

ever offered to subscribe $50,000.00 of said com-

pany's stock and pay cash for it and if so the time

and place when said offer was made.

(8) Who put the offer of Harry M. Kassmir

to subscribe $50,000.00 worth of stock in the form

of a resolution and who seconded said resolution

and who were the persons who voted and passed

the same unanimously.

(9) Whether or not the offer of Harry Kass-

mir to subscribe $50,000.00 worth of said company's

stock was ever accepted by said company and if so

the time and place when said acceptance occurred.

(10) What were the terms and conditions of the

so-called Simon & Company investment plan.

(11) Whether or not the defendants J. W. Ran-

dolph or Samuel H. Robinson ever solicited or pro-

cured from the so-called victims subscriptions or

orders for shares of corporate stock or other securi-

ties and if so the names and addresses of said al-

leged victims and the time and place of said solicit-

ing or procuring said subscriptions.

(12) What false or fraudulent representations

or promises as to the financial standing of the Crom-

well Simon & Company or of the defendant, Crom-

well Simon, or Harry M. Kassmir were ever made

by the defendants J. W. Randolph or Samuel H.

RIobinson.

(13) To what persons and at what time or place
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were any false or fraudulent representations or

promises as to the financial standing of the Crom-

well Simon & Company and of the defendants Crom-

well Simon or Harry M. Kassmir were ever made

by the defendants J. W. Randolph or Samuel H.

Robinson.

(14) What false or fraudulent representations

or promises [326] as to the care or watchfulness

exercised for the benefit of said alleged victims by

the said defendants over investments made with

them were ever made by any of the defendants,

particularly the defendants J. W. Randolph and

Samuel H. Robinson.

(15) The time and place of making, the names of

the defendants who made and the names of the per-

sons to whom the defendants, J. W. Randolph or

Samuel H. Robinson, made any false or fraudulent

representations or promises as in the last paragraph

above set forth.

(16) What false or fraudulent representations

or promises as to the alleged safety of purchasing

stocks or other securities through the defendants

and the said Cromwell Simon Company were ever

made by the defendants, J. W. Randolph or Samuel

H. Robinson.

(17) The time of making and the persons to

whom the defendants, J. W. Randolph or Samuel

H. Robinson, made any false or fraudulent repre-

sentations or promises as in the last next preceding

paragraph set forth.

(18) Whether or not either of said defendants,

J. W. Randolph or Samuel H. Robinson, required
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any alleged victims to deliver over to defendants

valuable securities as alleged collateral to secure

deferred payments on stock subscribed for and if

so the names of said victims, together with a de-

scription of any securities delivered to defendants

by them and the time and place of said delivery.

(19) Whether or not said defendants J. W. Ran-

dolph or Samuel H. Robinson ever took or embez-

zled or converted any collateral securities to their

own use or benefit and if so a description of said

securities, the names of the persons from whom
taken or procured, the names of the defendants who

so took said securities, the names of the defendants

who embezzled or converted said securities, together

with the time and place of such taking, [327]

embezzlement and conversion.

(20) What were the false representations which

the defendants or any of them did not then or there

or ever intend to carry out or perform, particularly

with reference to the defendants J. W. Randolph

or Samuel H. Robinson.

(21) To whom were the false representations re-

ferred to in the last next preceding paragraph made

or communicated by means of letters or circulars

or advertisements and what were the contents of

said letters, circulars and advertisements.

(22) The names of the persons to whom false

representations which the defendants did not then

or there or ever intend to carry out or perform were

made and the time and place of said making, to-

gether with the names of the defendants making
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them or the names of agents who made them on

behalf of said defendants.

(23) Whether or not the defendants J. W. Ran-

dolph or Samuel H. Robinson or either of them ever

made any of the alleged alluring, exaggerated, mis-

leading, false or fraudulent rei3resentations, pre-

tenses or promises as set forth in sub-paragraphs 1,

2, 3, 4 and 5 of each and every count of said indict-

ment and if so made, the names of the defendants

making them, the names of the persons to whom
made, the places where made and the time of the

making thereof.

(24) What were or are sufficient financial re-

sources necessary to carry on a reliable brokerage

business ?

(25) What was or is the financial resources of

any of the defendants named in said indictment or

of Cromwell Simon & Company?

(26) What is a responsible brokerage house and

what is necessary to constitute the same"?

(27) Whether or not the alleged representation

that persons could rely upon the standing or finan-

cial standing or [328] Cromwell Simon & Com-

pany was or was not true.

(28) Whether or not the representations that the

business of Cromwell Simon & Company was to sell

to the alleged victims high-grade corporate stock

and other securities on the partial payment plan or

otherwise was or was not true.

(29) Whether or not the defendants or any of

them or Cromwell Simon & Company, and particu-

larly the defendants J. W. Randolph and Samuel
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H, Robinson received any orders from any person

or persons for tlie purchase from them of any cor-

porate stock or securities and if so the names of the

persons placing said orders or offers together with

the time and place thereof and a description of the

stock or securities embraced in said orders.

(30) Whether or not the alleged false represen-

tation that the defendants would obtain subscrip-

tions from the alleged victims for stocks and other

securities on the Cromwell Simon & Company invest-

ment plan and would immediately purchase the

same at a market price for and on account of the

said alleged victim and that Cromwell Simon & Com-

pany would hold the same so that the alleged vic-

tims could be certain that the stocks and other

securities would be on hand for them when called

for by them was or was not true.

(31) Whether or not Cromwell Simon & Com-

pany ever received any orders which required them

to immediately purchase stock or other securities

at the market price or otherwise for the account of

said alleged victims and if so the iDcrsons who

placed said orders, the time and place thereof and

the contents of said orders.

(32) Whether or not any dividends or interest

were ever declared or payable on any high-grade

stock or other securities purchased and held by de-

fendants or Cromwell Simon & Company for any

persons at all and if so when said dividends were

declared or [329] said interest was payable and

on what stocks or securities and to what persons
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the defendants or Cromwell Simon & Company
should have paid the same.

(33) What were or are the qualifications neces-

sary on the part of Cromwell Simon & Company io

qualify it to advise victims to buy or sell corporate

stocks or other securities and in what portion ot

such qualification was said company deficient?

(34) What are the facts which resulted in said

victims not being able to realize upon the defend-

ants or any of them for safe or other information

or advice in the matter of buying or selling stocks

or securities ?

(35) What amounts of money or property did

defendants J. W, Randolph or Samuel H. Robinson

ever appropriate or embezzle to their own use or

benefit?

(36) From whom did defendants J. W. Ran-

dolph or Samuel H. Robinson ever procure any

money or property which they appropriated or em-

bezzled to their own use and benefit.

(37) The times and places where the defendants

J. W. Randolph or Samuel H. Robinson or either

of them ever appropriated or embezzled to their

own use or benefit any money or property.

(38) How or in what manner Exhibits "A" to

"BBB" either individually or collectively could

have been or were in furtherance of any alleged

scheme or artifice to defraud, particularly with re-

lation to the defendants J. W. Randolph or Samuel

H. Robinson.

(39) How or in what manner any letters written

by or pertaining to the business of the Charles
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Wesley Company of Los Angeles, California, have

been or were in furtherance of any scheme to de-

fraud set forth in any of the counts of said indict-

ment, and particularly the letters alleged to be

mailed or caused to be mailed by the defendants

J. W. Randolph or Samuel H. Robinson or either

or them. [330]

(40) How or in what manner any letters written

by or pertaining to the business of Thomas Allen

Company of Seattle, Washington, could have been

or were in furtherance of any scheme or artifice to

defraud set forth in said indictment?

(41) That said aforementioned matter relates to

general allegations contained in the indictment on

file herein and that more particular and specific

knowledge of such matters is necessary to said de-

fendants on their trial and that without such par-

ticular knowledge said defendants will be unable

to properly prepare their defense to said indictment

or to prepare any defense at all.

This motion is made upon the indictment on file

herein, upon the matters set forth in this motion

and on the affidavits of defendants J. W. Randolph

and Samuel H. Robinson filed herewith and attached

hereto.

Respectfully submitted,

H. H. HARRIS,
Attorney for Defendants J. W. Randolph and

Samuel H. Robinson.
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVITS OF J. W. RANDOLPH AND
SAMUEL H. ROBINSON.

State of California,

County of Los Angeles,—ss.

J. W. Randolph and Samuel H. Robinson, being

first duly sworn, each for himself, deposes and says

That he is one of the defendants in the above-

entitled action ; that the trial of the above-entitled ac-

tion has been set for the 29th day of May, 1928 ; that

he is in possession of a copy of the indictment on file

in the above-entitled action and that he has read

the same; that said indictment purports to charge

him with thirty-seven violations of section 215 of

the Criminal [331] Code of the United States;

that said indictment contains and is almost entirely

composed of allegations of acts alleged to have been

committed by the defendants; that these acts are

alleged in general terms and the indictment fails

to allege the time, place or circumstances necessary

to identification of any of the acts so alleged or

necessary fuUy to advise affiant of the particular

circumstances of said act; that he has been in-

formed by his attorney, H. H. Harris, and upon

such information believes and alleges that unless

he is furnished with a bill of particulars which

bill of particulars shaU particularly and spe-

cifically inform him of the exact time when said

acts were committed, what particular place where

said acts were committed and of the particular
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circumstances surrounding and comprising the com-

mission of these acts, that he will be unable to prop-

erly prepare his defense to said indictment or to

prepare any defense at all.

(Duly signed and sworn to before notary public.)

Said demands for bill of particulars came on

regularly to be heard, were heard, and were ordered

denied by the Court, to which order denying said

demands for bill of particulars said defendants

each duly entered his exception.

EXCEPTION No. 3.

AND BE IT FURTHER REMEMBERED, that

the above-named defendant, Samuel H, Robin-

son duly and seasonably and before the trial of the

above-entitled cause, filed his petition for severance,

as shown by the records of said court, made a part

hereof.

That a copy of said petition, together with the

affidavit of said Robinson in support thereof, is as

follows

:

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Now comes the defendant, Samuel H. Robinson,

by his attorney, H. H. Harris, and respectfully

prays the above-entitled court that he be tried

separate and apart from the other defendants

[332] and that there be a severance as between

him, as a defendant, and the other defendants, in

the said entitled court and for ground of severance

alleges as follows:
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I.

That there is certain evidence necessary and ma-

terial in his defense, which as to certain of the other

defendants, particularly Harry M. Kassmir and

Cromwell Simon, would be inadmissible by reason

of their privileged nature.

II.

That there is certain evidence material and neces-

sary in his defense that would be inadmissible

against any of the other defendants, particularly

Harry M. Kassmir and Cromwell Simon, by reason

of the fact that the introduction of those said facts

on his behalf would be inadmissible over the objec-

tion of the other defendants on the ground that they

would thereby be compelled to testify against them-

selves without their consent.

III.

That the defense of Samuel H. Robinson is an-

tagonistic to the defense of the other defendants in

said cause.

IV.

That the defense of Samuel H. Robinson would

implicate certain of the other defendants, particu-

larly Harry M. Kassmir and Cromwell Simon.

V.

That the defense of Samuel H. Robinson cannot

be presented fairly and properly in a joint trial

with the other defendants and that the introduction

of certain evidence pertaining to other defendants
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that would be as to him incompetent and immate-

rial, would seriously prejudice him.

H. H. HARRIS,
Attorney for Petitioner. [333]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

State of California,

County of Los Angeles,—ss.

Samuel H. Robinson, being first duly sworn, de-

poses and says

:

That he is one of the defendants in the above

-

entitled action. That the date of the trial of the

above-entitled cause has been set for May 29, 1928.

That there are four other defendants; that unless

this Court grants the petition of this affiant to have

his trial severed from the trial of the other four

defendants, he will be tried on said date, jointly

with the other four defendants.

Your affiant is an attorney at law, duly licensed

and admitted to practice in all of the courts of the

State of California, and has been such for more

than seven years last past. That he is charged

jointly with four other defendants in thirty-eight

counts in this indictment of having used the mails

to defraud. Affiant states that his only relation

with the other defendants was that of attorney and

client; that of the thirty-eight letters upon which

the thirty-eight counts of the indictment are predi-

cated, only five have been mailed or caused to be

mailed by him. That these letters were sent out by

him in the regular course of business and as part
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of his professional employment as attorney for cer-

tain of the other defendants; that he never had

any acquaintance with the other defendants, nor

had any part in the scheme set out in the indict-

ment, prior to June, 1925; that said indictment

contains various letters alleged to have been sent

out prior to that date. That for the purpose of his

defense, it will be necessary for him to introduce

a number of letters and documents passing between

the defendants, Harry M. Kassmir, Cromwell

Simon and your affiant. That in addition to these

letters, [334] there were numerous oral commu-

nications and that said letters, documents and oral

communications were occasioned solely b}^ the rela-

tions between the said defendants, Harry M. Kass-

mir, Cromwell Simon and your affiant, by reason

of the relation of attorney and clients; that these

communications are therefore privileged and there-

fore inadmissible and that an objection to their

introduction will be made by at least one of

the defendants jointly charged with affiant. That

these letters, documents and communications are

absolutely necessary in the defense of your affiant;

that his inability to introduce them would result as

to him in a serious miscarriage of justice and a

prejudice of his rights.

That in order to introduce evidence necessary in

his own defense, affiant expects and intends to take

the stand on his own behalf and his e\'idence will

implicate certain of the other defendants and his

defense is antagonistic to them.
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WHEREFORE, your affiant prays an order of

this Court severing his trial from the trial of the

other defendants.

(Duly signed and sworn to by Samuel H. Robin-

son.)

That said petition for severance came on regu-

larly to be heard, was heard, and was denied by the

Court and said defendant Samuel H, Robinson duly

noted an exception to the order of the Court denying

his said petition for severance.

AND BE IT FURTHER REMEMBERED, that

said defendants pleaded Not Guilty to said indict-

ment on March 26, 1928, and the cause being at

issue, the same came on regularly for trial before

the Honorable Harold Louderback, United States

District Judge, on May 29, 1928, and a jury was

duly impaneled and sworn to try the cause, the

United States being represented by George J. Hat-

field, Esq., United States Attorney, Joseph L. Swee-

ney, Esq., Assistant United States Attorney, and

William A. O'Brien, Esq., Assistant [335] United

States Attorney, and the defendants hereinafter

named, being personally present and represented by

counsel as follows:

For defendant, Harry M. Kassmir, Fred McDon-

ald, Esq.;

For defendant, Samuel H. Robinson, R. B. Mc-

Millan, Esq.;

For defendant, J. W. Randolph, H. H. Harris,

Esq.; and

For defendant, Ortin E. Goodwin, John A.

McGee, Esq.
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Defendant Cromwell Simon not appearing, his

bond was ordered forfeited.

After said jury was duly impaneled and sworn

as aforesaid, an adjourimaent was thereupon duly

taken until May 31, 1928, at 10:00 A. M.

Thursday, May 31, 1928.

Thereupon, Joseph L. Sweeney, Esq., Assistant

United States Attorney, made an opening statement

to the jury as to the matter the plaintiff expected to

prove.

Thereafter the following proceedings were had

:

Mr. McDonald.—At this time, if your Honor

please, in the interest of time of both your Honor

and the jury, I would ask that any objection made

by one defendant be considered as made by all the

defendants, and an exception reserved by one de-

fendant be considered as reserved by all of the

defendants.

The COURT.—Except in those cases where ob-

jections are made on behalf of one defendant may

not apply to the others, in which case you will have

to specifically state the objection on behalf of that

defendant. Where the objection would apply to all

the defendants, I am willing to have that apply.

Thereupon the United States, to maintain the

issues on its part to be maintained, called as its first

witness, Mrs. Emily A. Beans.
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TESTIMONY OF MRS. EMILY A. BEANS,
FOR THE UNITED STATES.

Mrs. EMILY A. BEANS, produced as a witness

on behalf of the United States, having been first

duly sworn, testified in substance as follows : [336]

Direct Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)

I reside in Oakland, 608 Excelsior Boulevard, and

during the year 1925 resided at 5838 Birch Court,

which was my own house. I know the defendants

J. W. Randolph, Harry Kassmir and Samuel H.

Robinson. (Witness here identifies said three de-

fendants in the courtroom.) I doubt if I would

recognize Ortin E. Goodwin; I never met him, I

think, but once. The defendant, Cromwell Simon,

who is not here, I know ; I met him two times. Met

Mr. Randolph some time during the early part of the

year 1925; yes, in March; he came to my house, I

am not sure whether it was by appointment, or not,

but he came to my house, and we talked along so-

cially for a little bit, and then he finally broached

the subject; he said that he would like to help me

to make back some of the money that he had caused

me to lose in the Nabisco Company, and he said,

''Haven't you got some stock lajdng around here

that is not paying any money only dividends,"

and I said, "Why, yes, I have got some stock, but

I don't know whether I want to let it go or not,"

and he explained to me how he could take those



vs. United States of America. 385

(Testimony of Mrs, Emily A. Beans.)

stocks and put them in Cromwell Simon and have

them pay me good money; let them lay in Crom-

well Simon's vault as collateral, and then they

would buy me some stock, whatever I wanted, Hud-

son, or Studebaker, whatever I might see fit, and be

earning a little money for me; prior to this visit,

I had some business dealing with Mr. Randolph

—

I bought Georgia Fruit Company, and lost con-

siderable money on that transaction.

"Mr. McGEE.—Of course, it is understood that

that testimony is limited to the defendant Randolph,

that it is hearsay as to the other defendants.

The COURT.—Unless it is connected up with the

particular scheme alleged, of course it would have

no bearing except on the identification of Ran-

dolph."

EXCEPTION No. 4.

Mr. McMillan.—May it be understood that I

object to that testimony upon the ground that so

far as the defendant Robinson is concerned it is

too remote, incompetent, and hearsay. [337]

The COURT.—Will you connect this up with this

matter ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—It is just a matter of identi-

fication of Mr, Randolph, and showing the entree

that Mr. Randolph had to this lady.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will offer to connect it up,

if I do not connect it up it will be ruled out.

The COURT.—Connect it up as a part of the

case, or simply as identification?
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Mr. SWEEXET.—I will have to stand on my
foiTaer statement, just as a matter of identifica-

tion.

The COUET.—It will be received for that pur-

pose, and only for that limited purpose, and the

objection will be overruled.

Mr. McMILLAX.—May we respectfully note an

exception ?

The COURT.—Yes.

WITXESS.— (Continuing.) During Mr. Ran-

dolph *s fii*st visit in March, 1925. I did not give him

any stock: my stocks were at Berkeley in the safe

deposit vault, but I agreed to get them out and he

was to come over again and see the stock. I got the

stock home, and Mr. Randolph came up by appoint-

ment: he came alone. This second visit was along

in the latter part of March. 1925: I cannot fix the

date, I have tried to forget the whole transaction.

Only myself and Mr. Randolph present,

EXCEPTION Xo. 5.

Q. What was the conversation you had with ]Mr.

Randolph at that time?

Ml-. McMILLAX.—So far as the defendant Rob-

inson is concerned, that is objected to on the ground

it is hearsay, and is res inter alios acta.

Mr. STrEEXET.—It is aU pan of one scheme.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. M<:MILLAX.—Xote an exception. [338]

"WeU. he told me. he said that he could take that

stock of mine, rum it into Cromwell Simon, and
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they would hold it as collateral and buy me some

Studebaker with it, and I said then it means that

my stock will simply repose in Cromwell Simon's

safe deposit vault, instead of mine, and he said,

•'Absolutely, yes,*' that was his exact words, "Ab-

solutely yes." I did deliver the stock to Mr. Ran-

dolph and he gave me a receipt for it. I could

not tell you the number of shares of stock I de-

livered to him, but I know the number of dollars

that it amounted to was $3,100.00. $3,100 was the

face value of it. ( Here witness is shown a receipt

for the stock and counsel for defendant Randolph

stipulated that said receipt was given to the wit-

ness and was signed by Randolph.) He kept a copy

of it. The receipt now shown me is in my name,

and that is his name and the shares of stock. (Said

receipt is here marked. Government 's Exhibit No. 1

for Identification.)

When Mr. Randolph called on me the second time

I do not remember signing any kind of a contract

with him or any character of paper to act as agent.

Mr. Randolph came to see again just a few days

later. I just can't recall what called him over but

he had not been in the house but a little while when

my telephone rang and I went to the telephone.

A. W. Scott was on the telephone. After that tele-

phone conversation, I had a conversation with Mr.

Randolph concerning the subject matter of the tele-

phone call. The situation is this: I was informed

by Mr. Scott about certain things and I told those

things to Mr. Randolph. His only answer was,
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''They all do it," and I immediately put on my
things and went over to Mr. Scott. I went over

by myself.

Mr. HARRIS.—If your Honor please, so that I

won't interrupt the witness, on behalf of the de-

fendant Randolph I reserve any objections and

motions to strike out.

The COURT.—I do not want to put it that way,

because [339] you may be reserving objections

that are not brought to the attention of the Court.

If the same objection is made as before, I can make

the same ruling and go ahead on the understand-

ing, but simply to give you that blanket reserva-

tion without the Court knowing what the objection

may be, I am not prepared to make any such ruling

as that.

Mr. McMillan.—May I at this time note

clearly what my objection is to this testimony'?

The COURT.—I will say—I am not going to go

back over the record as to what was understood. I

said you must object each time. If a new question

comes up and you wish to put in the record some-

tliing that j^'ou feel that you have not already in

the record, it will have to be put in the record, and

will apply to the questions that are being pro-

pounded. I am not going to go back over the rec-

ord.

Mr. McMillan.—My guidance, your Honor,

was the rule that we entered into at the start, that

one objection made by counsel, the other counsel
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would have the benefit of that if it applied—is that

still understood?

The COURT.—It will apply equally to all de-

fendants, but if one defendant has a defense against

another, which I do not know that he will have,

but if he does have a defense as distinguished from

another, then you have got to object for that de-

fendant. In other words, suppose the question is

not proper as against any defendant, and an ob-

jection made, that is good for eveiy defendant.

But suppose that the evidence would be good

against one or two of the defendants, and not

against the others, then the objection is only good

for the person who makes the objection. That is

the situation.

Mr. McMillan.—May I reserve a motion to

strike out this testimony seasonably? [340]

The COURT.—I think as far as the motion to

strike out is concerned, you may present that to

the Court.

Mr. HARRIS.—That would inure to the benefit

of all the defendants.

The COURT.—Yes, I can see no objection to

that. If it is not connected up in the record, but

stands unsupported, it will be stricken out, of

course. Let us proceed.

The first time I saw Mr. Kassmir was the day I

went over to see Mr. Scott, went from Mr. Scott's

office there; they were waiting, just waiting to have

the signatures put on, the names, and I did not

know what to do, so I promised that I would go
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to the Mills Building before I would do anything;

so I went over to see Mr. Kassmir and he talked

very nice to me, and persuaded me to leave that

stand, that I would get my stock back, he would

give me a receipt, I would get my stock back and

still have it there earning money for me. When I

went to the Mills Building. I went to Mr. Kass-

mir 's private office, of the firm of Cromwell Simon

Company and Cromwell Simon sat in the room for

a while and I was introduced to Mr. Cromwell Si-

mon at that time.

EXCEPTION No. 6.

Q. Now, can you tell us more definitely the con-

versation you had with Mr. Kassmir on that occa-

sion?

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to on the ground

there is no foundation laid yet; I only want all of

the parties present.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Who was present at that

time?

A. Just Cromwell Simon, and I do not think he

was in the room all the while.

Q. Who else? A. Mr. Kassmir.

Mr. McMillan.—I ask leave at this time, so

that my objection will appear clearly in the record

—I make an objection [341] on behalf of the

defendant Samuel Robinson, first that this testi-

mony is too remote so far as that defendant is con-

cerned, that it is res inter alios acta, that it is hear-
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say, and, furthermore, they are seeking to bring

in declarations and actions at a time that is remote

to the charges contained in this indictment; this is

not a conspiracy charge, but a charge under Sec-

tion 215 of the Criminal Code, the 38 counts being

based under that section, and they are substantive

offenses, not any charge of conspiracy, and none

of these statements, none of these situations, none

of these conversations that the witness has related,

in so far as the defendant Robinson is concerned,

are in any way, shape, or form binding upon him,

and hearsay, and incompetent, and j^our Honor

will note from the opening statement of the Dis-

trict Attorney that Mr. Robinson had not even

met these persons at that time.

The COURT.—What have you to say to thaf?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Just this, that the Govern-

ment is showing a scheme, and in the performance

of that scheme admissions or statements made by

one of the—I was going to say one of the conspira-

tors—one of the persons, one of the defendants,

binds the others, if it was for the purpose of fur-

thering the scheme.

The COURT.—Your contention is the way of

proving a scheme or artifice like this, that it is as

proving a conspiracy"?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Absolutely. If we can con-

nect Mr. Robinson up w^ith this scheme at any time,

he is responsible for everything.

The COURT.—Is it your theory that statements

made by those engaged in the common design can
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be used against one another irrespective of whether

there is a conspiracy or not.

Mr. SWEENEY.—If you will indulge me for a

minute or so I will find it for you.

Mr. McMillan.—My further point is this, as

far as my client is concerned, that he did not even

know any of the parties [342] at that time.

The COURT.—That goes to different points.

Mr. McMillan.—it is in line with what may
be connected up.

The COURT.—We have the whole record to find

out whether it is connected up, or not. I think

that point has been pretty well covered, that at the

present moment there is not in the record state-

ments which connect up the parties who are on

trial.

Mr. McMillan.—Furthermore, it is too remote,

and res inter alios acta, and hearsay.

Mr. SWEENEY.—May I quote the syllabus from

U. S. vs. Belden found in 223 Fed. 726: (Reading.)

The COURT.—I will overrule the objection.

Mr. McMillan.—Note an exception. I move

to strike out all of the testimony of the witness so

far as my client is concerned, and ask that it be

limited only to those defendants which he has

named.

The COURT.—The ruling on that would have

to be made much later, but at this time, the Court,

under the stand taken by the Court, will overrule

the objection. I can see the possibility of that be-

ing reviewed at a later time.

Mr. McMillan.—May I note an exception, and
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have the privilege of renewing this motion*?

The COURT.—The record will so show.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Now, Mrs. Beans, would

you tell us the conversation that you had with Mr.

Kassmir in his office at the Mills Building when

Mr. Cromwell Simon was present?

Mr. McDonald.—Objected to on behalf of the

defendant Kassmir, that it is immaterial, irrele-

vant, and incompetent, and not within the issues

laid in the indictment.

The COURT.—Overruled. [343]

Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—We adopt the objection made

by Mr. McDonald.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. Mr. Kassmir explained to me about the busi-

ness, how, in buying the stock, it was the partial

payment plan, and that it would make it easier for

me, and they could earn money, and I would not

have to put in very much money, and in three

months probably I could sell them and make quite

a bit, and I finally consented to let it go on, and it

went on.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Mrs. Beans, was anything

said at that time with reference to the purchase

of Studebaker stock?

A. Yes; they claimed they had already pur-

chased it from me.

Only a few days after this Mr. Randolph and
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Mr, Kassmir came to my home on Birch Court; I

could not tell you the date, but it must have been

in April, because, as I say, I have tried to forget

those things. Mrs. Durham, my niece, was present

at the conversation at this time. Possibly, Mrs.

Durham had been present at previous conversations

had with these people, but I don't remember that

they had ever been over before together.

EXCEPTION No. 7.

Q. On that occasion, what was the substance of

the conversation?

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Orton Goodwin, on the ground it is imma-

terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and hearsay.

The COURT.—Overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—That objection and exception

is adopted by the defendant Eobinson.

The COURT.—The same ruling. [344]

We borrowed $2,500.00 at the bank; we talked it

all over together about the borrowing money ; I know

they encouraged us very much in doing it because

they said that Studebaker was going up; whether

they just said, "Go ahead and do it," or what, I

don't know, or whether we said we would do it,

we did it. We borrowed $2,500.00, and instructed

them to buy Studebaker with it.

EXC:EPTI0N No. 8.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. How did you borrow that

$2,500?
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Mr. McGEE.—Objected to as immaterial, irrele-

vant, and incompetent.

Mr. McMillan.—I adopt tb(! objection.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

i had collateral and took it to the bank and they

let us have the money. It was one hundred shares

of the Pacific Lumber Company stock. The bank

took it as collateral for the amount of $2,500.00.

Mrs. Durham, my niece, went with me to the bank

to get the money. I don't think we had yet con-

sulted the bank when we came over to Cromwell

Simon's rooms on some business, the nature of

which business I do not recall. Then Mr. Kassmir

and Mr, Randolph took their machine and brought

us across the bay, and we supposed they were going-

to take us right to the bank ; instead of that, taking

us to the bank, they let us off a block from the bank,

and they went on, and moved on somewhere while we

were in the bank consulting the officials of the bank.

That day we did not get any money from the bank,

but we got the promise of it; a day or two after-

wards, two or three days after, something like that,

we got $2,500.00. We called up by phone and let

Mr. Kassmir and Mr. Randolph know we had a

check ready for them. I think it was Mr. Kassmir

I talked with over the phone. That afternoon

about two o'clock Mr. Randolph and Mr. Kassmir

came over. I gave them the cheek for $2,500.00.

At the time I gave them the $2,500.00 [345]

check, I do not think I signed any contract. They
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were going to buy Studebaker with it. In answer

to your question, when was the next time you saw

any of the defendants : Well, I do not think I could

tell just how long it was before we saw them again,

because—now, I am branching out a little bit to

tell his, but this all comes to the story. Mr. Kass-

mir commenced to talk to my niece about bringing

some of her funds over. This conversation was

had in my presence. Just Mr. Kassmir and Mr.

Randolph were present. This conversation be-

tween myself, Mr. Randolph, Mr. Kassmir and

Mrs. Durham, my niece, took place, I will say in

May, 1925, but I may be a little off..

EXCEPTION No. 9.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. What was the conversa-

tion, Mrs. Beans'?

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson I object to this testimony upon the ground

that it is incompetent, that it is hearsay, that it is

a transaction had between strangers, it is too re-

mote, and it does not in any way, shape, or form

show that Mr. Robinson was engaged in any joint

enterprise or in any conspiracy, or in any manner,

shape, or form aided, abetted, or assisted any of the

defendants charged in the indictment, and that this

testimony sought to be elicited, as well as all pre-

vious testimony elicited from this witness, is not

within any count of the indictment before the

the Court.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.
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Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

At the first meeting between myself, Miss Dur-

ham, Mr. Kassmir and Mr. Randolph, Mr. Kass-

mir tried to have her get money from the east, and

I would not want to use the words that he used,

because she was not willing to pull her money out

back east and bring it out here and place it with

them and buy stock. Mr. Randolph was present.

He tried to argue the point with her, and told her

what all he could do for her if she would bring her

money here. He [346] said he would build it

up very wonderfully, made good promises, I could

not tell definitely just what promises he made, but

he made good promises about what he could do for

her. I know Miss Durham did bring some money

from the east; but I don't think I could tell ap-

proximately how much. She turned the money

over to Mr. Kassmir to buy stock, and he was try-

ing to look up something, that he felt very sure

would go up, and at the same time he said, as he

was putting it, he was keeping it up his sleeve quite

a while, but bye-and-bye he would be ready to pur-

chase the stock. They got the money, but I couldn't

say how much. [347]

The particular character of stock Mr. Randolph

and Mr. Kassmir said they were going to buy for

me and Miss Durham—in the first place we bought

Studebaker, we got 250 shares of Studebaker.

EXCEPTION No. 10.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. To return, Mrs. Beans, to
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the conversation you had with reference to the

$2,500 incident, you recall that?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you remember any specific thing that Mr.

Randolph said upon that occasion?

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on the behalf of the

defendant Goodwin on the ground it is immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, and not responding to

any allegations in the indictment, and hearsay.

Mr. HARRIS.—We adopt the objection on be-

half of the defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—We adopt that objection on

behalf of the defendant Robinson.

.

The COURT.—Overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
A. When we borrowed that money, Mr. Kassmir,

especially, I remember, promised us if we got into

trouble, if we had to hold it in the bank longer than

we expected to and got into trouble, and did not

have money to meet things, they would stand back

of us.

(The witness is here shown a letter, which she

states she received through the mail, and had seen

before, and that she recognized the signature. The

letter was marked, [348] IT. S. Exhibit 2 for

identification.)

Along about the late spring of 1925, Mr. Kass-

mir and Mr. Randolph called frequently at our

house. They talked about the bank well in the
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summer, along in late summer, the date I cannot

testify to, because I have tried to forget them, but

along in late summer they told us about forming a

bank over in Reno, and they wanted us to put our

money in it, that it was going to be such a big thing.

When I speak of *'they" I mean Mr. Kassmir and

Mr. Randolph. They reckoned it up and found out

what we had, and they put the percentage that they

thought we would make a year—Mr, Kassmir put

it at 12 per cent, and Mr. Randolph spoke right

up in these words, he said, "Harry, you better call

it 8 until we get well started down at Los Angeles,"

so then Harry put it at 8, and said that the common
dividend at the end of the year would probably be

25 per cent.

EXCEPTION No. 11.

Just prior to that time, did you have another con-

versation w^ith Mr. Randolph and Mr. Kassmir with

reference to your stock.

Mr. McMillan.—That is objected to on behalf

of the defendant Robinson on all of the grounds

heretofore stated, and for the same reasons.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. You may answer.

A. There came a time when the stocks were sort

of hanging low, and so they came to us and w^anted

us to give up our stock, that is, let them use the

money—they did not have any stocks, never did

have—and let them use the money, and they would

give us—^they could use it to good advantage in their



400 Samuel H. Robinson and J. W. Randolph

(Testimony of Mrs. Emily A. Beans.)

business, and they would give us |200 a month while

they used it, and then when the stock [349] got

good, then they would put it back in the stock.

They took our money and they paid us $200 a month

for two months, and that was when the bank sprung

up. So I was very anxious to have a little more

than what I had, and offered to put a mortgage on

my home of $4,000.

EXCEPTION No. 12.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Would you please tell us

the conversation you had with Mr. Randolph and

Mr. Kassmir relative to the mortgage on your

house 1

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf on the de-

fendant Goodwin on all of the grounds heretofore

istated.

Mr. McMillan.—The objections urged are

adopted by the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—I will overrule the objection.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. Kassmir said he would look after it for me,

would take charge of it, and look after it, and he

got it fixed up in Mr. Robinson's office, and we

went there.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Before you go there, will

you tell us what conversation you had with these

men when the subject of a $4,000 mortgage was

broached ?

A. They were very pleased over it ; I cannot just

tell the words that were used.
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Q. When you say they were very pleased, who
have you reference to?

A. Mr. Kassmir and Mr. Randolph. Where we
saw one we saw the other.

I mortgaged my home at that time. The papers

relative to that mortgage were drawn up in Mr.

Robinson's office and I went there and signed it.

He was present. It was- all ready for me to sign

;

I believe he did it, but I don't know who did it, but

they were all ready to sign. I actually got the

$4,000, from a broker over in Oakland; and paid it

over to Kassmir and Randolph. [350]

EXCEPTION No. 13.

Q. Up to this time, Mrs. Beans, how much money

had you and Miss Durham given to Mr. Randolph

or Mr. Kassmir, if you know, of your own knowl-

edge?

Mr. McGEE.—I object to the question on be-

half of the defendant Goodwin on all of the grounds

stated in the previous objection.

Mr. McMillan.—I adopt the objection on be-

half of the defendant Robinson.

Mr. HARRIS.—And on behalf of the defendant

Randolph.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. Between us, my niece. Miss Durham, and my-

self, we put in $12,056, into what they called their

Reno bank.
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Yes, I did get stock in that Reno bank, as I call

it; but it was not made out right; we got a certifi-

cate, and it was not made out right, and then Mr.

Kassmir took that back and sent it back and we got

another, and that still, the names were not put in

right, and then he took that the last time that we

saw him—yes, the last time that we saw him he

took that certificate and that was in—that must

have been along in January or February, 1926

—

and said that he would send that back to Reno and

have it fixed right, but we never got one in return.

(Witness is here shown stock certificates, one No.

4 and one No. 5, capital stock. Preferred, of Crom-

well & Co., Inc., Place of Business, Reno, Nevada,

Office of Resident Agent, 315 Clay Peters Building,

Reno, Nevada ; and identifies same. The documents

were marked U. S. Exhibit 3 for Identification.)

(Witness is here shown two more certificates and

asked to identify same.) [351]

One of them I don't know anything about; this

one is wrong and that one is wrong. I presume I

saw them before ; I sent them back. I do recognize

one of them. This one positively, but that one has

my name and number of shares, but I am not able

to identify it. (One of said certificates, being cer-

tificate No. 55, is here marked U. S. Exhibit 4 for

Identification.)

When we first got these certificates we put them

in an envelope and sent them back and told Mr.

Kassmir the names were wrong. Again he sent us

another, and that was not right. Sent it back and
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the last time we saw him we gave the last one to

him, and he put it in his pocket and said, "I will

attend to this," and it has never been attended to.

Referring again to the $2,500 note, it fell due the

first of October, 1925. We owed $1,500 then and

we appealed to Mr. Kassmir to furnish us with

$1,500 for another three months, or till we could

make a new^ loan to help us out, and he promised

to do so, and so he fuially sent us up $1,500 from

Los Angeles, and at the same time said—now, Mr.

Randolph did this, it was his letter that the check

came in, the $1,500, and he said in that letter, "Send

the collateral." I am familiar with Mr. Randolph's

writing. It may have been addressed to Miss Dur-

ham as what w^as one was the other. We transacted

our business together as one person. Yes, I re-

ceived dividends from the Reno Bank, as I call it.

We got dividends in October—we got $241 in Oc-

tober, $241 in January, $241 in April, and that

ended it; it has been dead ever since. The first

di^ddend I got from Los Angeles, Mr. Randolph

sent it. The second dividend from Mr. Kassmir,

from Seattle. The third dividend was received

from Mr. Kassmir. In answ^er to your question

whether I ever got any stock from the Cromwell

Simon Company,—we were to have been furnished

some bank stock but we did not have a thing in

[352] our possession to show for it. No, never

got any Studebaker stock. What they call their

bank stock is that you have shown me. These cer-

tificates are the only thing that I have to show with
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reference to our investment, and we have not got

them, because we gave the last one to Mr. Kassmir

to be fixed right, and he said he would do it, and it

has never been done.

EXCEPTION No. 14.

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is all with this witness

at this time, your Honor.

Mr. McGEE.—Before any questions are asked

of the witness on cross-examination, I move on

behalf of the defendant Goodwin that the entire

testimony of this witness be stricken from the rec-

ord on the grounds previously outlined to your

Honor.

Mr. SWEENEY.—We expect to connect it up

with Mr. Goodwin.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—May we have the benefit of

that motion and your Honor's ruling?

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. McMillan.—We respectfully note an ex-

ception, your Honor.

Cross-examination.

(By Mr. HARRIS, Attorney for Defendant Ran-

dolph.)

The first conversation was along about in March,

1925; that was when Mr. Randolph came over and

talked to me about investing in some Studebaker

stock. He told me that was the Studebaker Auto-

mobile Company that makes Studebaker cars and
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that is what I understood I was investing in. Also

he told me that it was his understanding that my
stock would remain as collateral. I was surprised

when I received that message from Mr. Scott on the

telephone, and I went right to Mr. Scott's [353]

office. All that Mr. Randolph said was, "They all

do it." That is about all the comfort he could give

me. He acted like he was upset, too. Then I went

on down to Scott's place and there I met Mr. Simon

and Mr. Kassmir. Afterwards I went up to the

office of Cromwell Simon Company and saw Mr.

Kassmir and Mr. Simon. I do not think Mr. Ran-

dolph was there in the room during that conversa-

tion. They claimed they had already bought the

stock, and I just let it go; you see, it was a partial

payment arrangement, and so I let it go. I think

that if I had made a real fuss about it they would

'have given me my money back, maybe, and I could

have gone and bought my stock again—I don't know

whether they would, or not, but they made me such

a good promise, that really and truly I thought they

meant what they said; they won my confidence.

The stock was already sold; my goodness, it was

already sold, and had passed into the broker's hand.

No, I never said that Mr. Randolph suggested that

I should get a mortgage on my x)lace. I guess we

talked it over together, and I was walling to do it.

I don't remember that Miss Durham used the ex-

pression in that conversation, "Now, Mr. Randolph

is not saying anything, evidently he is against this

proposition," and I said, "Well, we ought to know
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what we want to do, and it is not so much Mr. Ran-

dolph's business, anj^how," or words to that effect.

Miss Durham was there. We sat around in the

parlor and chatted generally; we talked business

pretty nearly all the time whenever they were in

the house. I don't remember that Mr. Randolph

talked much in that conversation. Right at first

Mr. Randolph told me that he was only working for

this company, in March, and later on, I could not

tell when it was, when he came over to my house,

he was introduced as general manager, as one party

of the company. I don't fo remember exactly the

words he used. It went over a long period and a

lot of transactions. [354] These specific lumber

company's stock (the A. W. Scott stock) was more

than $3,600 or $3,200; I do not remember just what

the par value was. I paid $3,100 for what I had.

I did not know at that time that this stock had

gone down and was only valued at about $1,800. I

think that is all they got for it, or all they repre-

sented to us, I think a little less than $1,800 was

represented to us. I don't know whether that con-

cern has now gone out of business or not. In the

conversation about the mortgage there was no talk

libout a bank, as I call it; the bank had not sprung

into existence then—I don't know—let me see when

the mortgage was—yes, I think the bank had

sprung into existence, because I was anxious to put

in more money than what we could raise, and that

was the reason why. In answer to your question

about whether I took that mortgage over to a broker
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in Oakland, and whether I recall to whom I took

it,—I did not do it. Mr. Kassmir attended to the

whole thing, and all I had to do was to go to Mr.

Robinson's office and sign up the papers, and then

the broker in Oakland came to me and gave me a

little book and showed me how much interest I had

to pay ever}^ month, and that interest had to be paid

every month until paid off. Mr. Robinson had

nothing to do with me at all in regard to that mort-

gage personally, about what I was going to do, or

anything about it; he simply made up the paper,

or had them made up. He knew what was going

to be done with the money; there was talk there

that I was putting a mortgage on my home so as

to buy more stock in the company. I did not say

a moment ago that he knew nothing about this; he

could not very well help knowing because it was all

talked over in his office, but he had nothing to say

about it. He did not try to influence me in any

way. I had been in his office before; I had never

seen him much; I was not well [355] acquainted

with him ; it was what you might call a most casual

acquaintance. I don't think Mr. Randolph was

present in the Hobart Building ; he might have been

but I don't recall it. When the money was turned

over to the company I don't know; I don't recall

having any further conversation with Mr. Randolph

either as to the character or amount of stock that

I was going to buy; I may have; I don't recall; I

may have talked it over with him. It was only a

few days between the time I signed the mortgage
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and the time that I finally got the money from the

mortgage and turned it over to the Cromwell Simon

Company. No, I have not been talking this matter

over very considerably with Miss Durham; once in

a while we talked over dates; but we have not

hashed it over very thoroughly. We talked it over

some, what we could, with Mr. Madeira; we have

only seen Mr. Madeira a little while at a time, a

couple of times. Mr. Madeira was over to our

place only tv^ice. The first time he was there

maybe an hour and a half, or maybe two hours, I

could not say. The second time not so long. He
did not talk to us about these respective parties as

he said he could use some of it. He did not tell us

about a letter which I should write along about Oc-

tober, 1927, to Randolph. I did not write a letter

to Mr. Randolph at his suggestion about October,

1927, to Mr. Randolph. I talked the matter over

with Mr. Sweeney slightly, about fifteen or twenty

minutes I should judge. I could not tell you any-

thing that Mr. Madeira told me about the bank over

in Reno as I recall it, if I tried, I do not think I

could repeat a single thing. I think he told us he

saw our certificate over there, I have not thought

anything about whether I could repeat anything in

my conversation with Mr. Madeira or in regard to

this bank over there. I would have to try and think

it up. He gave us to understand that we were

duped and that there was nothing there, that he

could not find anything. That was not the first time
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I became incensed or had any hard feeling toward

Mr. Randolph. [356]

Mr. Madeira came to see me in January, 1928, the

latter part, I believe. I did not, before that, write

Mr. Randolph, in a very cordial tone. I wrote him

a severe letter; I got a long answer. I still have

that letter and answer. I think I have a copy of

the letter in the house. The letter that I refer to

is dated in October, 1927. I think there must be

three sheets. We wrote sometimes to try and help

us out with Mr, Kassmir. He wrote back that he

would try to do it, and he realh^ did try to do it.

He sometimes telegraphed to him and told him to

send down a check. We saw him. He did not tell

us he came up to help us out in any way he could.

He came up and w^e talked Mr. Kassmir over—that

we were beholden to Mr. Kassmir for our help, and

he told us he did not know- anything about Kass-

mir—^he did not even know how his business was.

He had heard it was very flourishing but did not

know, he had not been up there. He said he was

in Los Angeles and Mr. Kassmir was in Seattle.

I cannot go back and tell what was said in the

other conversation with Mr. Madeira. Perhaps,

Mr. Madeira can tell you when he gets around to

it. That was in January and I will confess I don't

know what was said—exactly. I was sick in bed

for two months \Nith "flu" in January and Febru-

ary. My memory has not served me quite as well

when I was sick.
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Cross-examination.

(By Mr. McDONALD for Defendant Kassmir.)

Mrs. BEANS.—On the occasion of my trip to

Cromwell Simon Company in relation to the stock

of A. W. Scott, it was not Mr. Cromwell Simon I

discussed this matter with, but Mr. Kassmir. I

am quite positive of that. Mr. Simon was in the

room, I was introduced to him. He sat in the room

for a little while, but as I remember it, he got up

and went out and Mr. Kassmir was the one that

explained to me all about the method and how well

they could do by me—^how much money they could

make for me if I would [357] only stay with

them. He said, "We'll buy the stocks," and that

we should pay for it on the partial payment plan,

so I bought one hundred shares. After that, I

think it was in January, Mr. Kassmir came to my
house one evening and told me I had been very

badly duped by Cromwell Simon. He promised

time and time again that he would personally try

and pay me back everything that I lost. He has

not sent me a number of checks, two or three checks.

He promised to pay me back, but he has not done

it. He has never sent me any money since that

time.

Redirect Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
I was 78 years old last January, 23d. Mr. Ma-

deira's two visits were about ten days apart. I

wrote other letters to Mr. Randolph in addition to
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the letter of October 26, 1927, prior to that time and

received answers to them. Those letters were al-

ways more or less opened by myself and my niece

in one another's presence. Our mail was common.

Aside from the two payments made after I had

signed the contracts with Mr. Kassmir and Mr.

Randolph and another, three payments of the com-

pany up in Reno, of the bank in Reno, I did not

get a cent from Randolph and Kassmir. I don't

think I saw Cromwell Simon but three times in

the times I was at the office. He did not seem in-

clined to talk to me at all.

EXCEPTION No. 15.

Mr. McGEE.—I move to strike from the record,,

on the grounds previously stated, first, that this

lady, according to her testimony, parted with what-

ever value she parted with not on the basis of any

letters received by her through the mail, but on

the oral representations of Randolph and Kassmir,

and that there is nothing in the testimony of this

witness pointing to the allegation of the indictment

that the mails were used to defraud; whether she

was defrauded actually, or not, is not a question for

this Court. The question before this Court and

jury is whether [358] she was defrauded through

the use of the mails, and, according to the testimony

of this witness, she was not defrauded by the use

of the mails, but if she was defrauded at all it was

by the oral representation made by Kassmir and

Randolph; on the further ground, if your Honor
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please, in so far as the defendant Goodwin is con-

cerned, that the testimony is hearsay, immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent.

Mr. McMillan.—As to the defendant Robin-

son, we join in that motion in all respects.

Mr. HARRIS.—And the defendant Randolph

joins in it, except as to the third specification.

The COURT.—It will be overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

TESTIMONY OF CHARLES BURKE, FOR
THE UNITED STATES.

CHARLES BURKE, produced as a witness on

behalf of the United States, having been first duly

sworn, testified in substance as follows:

Direct Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
I am a Deputy County Clerk of the City and

County of San Francisco. There has been filed in

that office a certificate of Harry Kassmir and Crom-

well Simon for doing business under fictitious name.

(Here there was offered in evidence a certificate

of copartnership of Cromwell Simon Company,

dated February 24, 1925, and it was stipulated that

it be read into the record, and that the original

document be returned to the authorities of City

and County of San Francisco.) (At this time the

witness was also shown a certified copy of the de-

cree of the Superior Court of the State of Califor-
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Ilia in and for the County of San [359] Fran-

cisco in Cromwell Simon and Co. vs. Edward

Doherty, Commissioner of Corporations, said de-

cree being entered in open court on the 17th day

of February, 1925, and indorsed, filed Sept. 25,

1925. There was no objection on the part of any

of the defendants and the document was marked,

U. S. Exhibit 1.) Said U. S. Exhibit 1, being as

follows : Certified Copy of Decree, Cromwell Simon

& Co. vs. Daughtery, etc.. No. 158735, Superior

Court, S. F., Cal. ; the original exhibit being before

this Honorable Court by stipulation and order.

TESTIMONY OF E. H. BEEMER, FOR THE
UNITED STATES.

E. H. BEEMER, produced as a witness on behalf

of the United States, having been first duly sworn,

testified in substance as follows:

Direct Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
My occupation is that of County Clerk of Washoe

County, Nevada. (At this time there was exhibited

to the witness documents which he identified as the

original record in the office of the County Clerk

of Washoe County, Nevada, of the Articles of In-

corporation of Cromwell & Co., and an exempli-

fied copy of the original record. The exemplified

copy was offered as United States Exhibit 5 for

Identification, and so marked.) The minutes of

the meetings of that corporation are not filed in

the County Clerk's office up in Nevada.
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TESTIMONY OF HOWARD C. ELLIS, FOR
THE UNITED STATES.

HOWARD C. ELLIS, produced as a witness on

behalf of the United States, having been first duly

sworn, testified in substance as follows:

Direct Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
I am an attorney at law, and specifically, Assis-

tant Commissioner of Corporations of the State of

California. I have been in that office for four

years and have been Assistant for about a year.

[360]

(Here the witness identified a document as an ap-

plication for broker's certificate from Cromwell

Simon, which was admitted and marked U. S. Ex-

hibit 2.)

A broker's license was issued and shortly after

that, February 18, 1925.

(Here witness was shown a file which he identi-

fied as part of the files of Cromwell Simon in the

records of the Corporation State Department, and

specifically, the broker's certificate or license issued

February 19, 1925, and the revocation of the same,

which was admitted in evidence, and marked, U. S.

Exhibit 3.)

(Here the witness is also shown documents which

he identified as part of the records of the State

Corporation, consisting of an agent's application

blank filled out for agent's license. There being
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no objection, the document was admitted in evi-

dence and marked U. S. Exhibit 4.)

(Here witness was also shown a document which

he identified as the application of Cromwell Simon

and Harry Kassmir, doing business under the ficti-

tious name of Cromwell Simon & Company for a

broker's certificate, dated April 7, and received in

the Sacramento office, April 13, 1925, and a certifi-

cate issued April 13, 1925, which was admitted in

evidence and marked U. S. Exhibit 5.)

(Here was exhibited a document to the witness

which he identified as an order of the Corporation

Commissioner granting Cromwell Simon & Co., a

broker's license, which was admitted in evidence

and marked, U. S. Exhibit 5.)

EXCEPTION No. 16.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will show you this and

ask you if you can identify it.

A. I recognize it.

Mr. SWEENEY.—You are familiar with these,

Mr. Harris?

Mr. HARRIS.—Those are the agent's licenses?

[361]

Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes, issued under the Crom-

well Simon brokerage license.

Mr. HARRIS.—Yes, I have seen them.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I want to offer

in evidence as one exhibit the application of J. W.
Randolph for authority to act as broker's agent,

and the order, both of which are dated April 20,
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1925, also a similar document for Orton E. Good-

win, J. Edward McClintock and W. Claude Owen.

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson, I object to the introduction of these docu-

ments in evidence on the ground that there has been

no showing whatever concerning his knowledge of

the matters therein contained, they are in no way

binding upon him, and, therefore, are incompetent

as to him.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

EXCEPTION No. 17.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will show you this, here,

and ask you if you can identify that, Mr. Ellis

(exhibiting to witness a document purporting to be

a revocation of the license of Cromwell Simon &
Co.).

A. I recognize that, yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I wish to intro-

duce this particular document in evidence. I think

you gentlemen are familiar with it.

Mr. McMillan.—Objected to on behalf of the

defendant Robinson on the ground that so far as

he is concerned the proper foundation has not been

laid, that it is hearsay, and incompetent.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection on behalf

of the defendant Randolph, and the further objec-

tion that it is in no way binding upon him.

Mr. SWEENEY.—We will connect it up later on.
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Mr. HARRIS.—Do I imdci'stand it is part of

the case to [362] have the license revoked?

Mr. SWEENEY.—No, it is not to have it re-

voked. It is part of this case to have it continued

in force.

Mr. HARRIS.—The point I make is that no im-

plication should be transferred to my client by the

fact that Cromwell Simon & Company had their

license revoked, and, therefore, it is immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent as to him, and no

foundation has been laid as to him.

The COURT.—I do not believe there has been

any foundation laid to place it in evidence, even if

it was revoked. There is nothing to indicate they

had notice of it. I think it can be received only

for identification.

Mr. SWEENEY.—If a part of the scheme is to

maintain the license of Cromwell Simon any effort

made b}^ them to retain that license is admissible

in evidence, it is part of the res gestae, it is part of

the whole scheme to defraud.

The COURT.—Do I understand that you hope

to show that it was revoked, and that there was an

attempt made later

—

Mr. SWEENEY.—Not only that, but after that

date

—

The COURT.—Just a minute. Answer my ques-

tion. Do I understand then you want to introduce

the fact, if it is a fact, that there was a revocation,

and subsequently they tried to have it set aside. Is

that what you are trying to show?
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Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes. I will ask Mr. Ellis a

question.

Q. Mr. Ellis, was a copy of that mailed to the

applicants ? A. It was mailed.

The COURT.—Did you personally mail it?

A. I personally saw to it; I was present when it

was drawn up and saw that it was sent out, saw it

signed.

Mr. McGEE.—I still object to that, and ask that

the answer be stricken out on the ground that this

witness did not himself either mail the letter or

personally see it mailed. [363]

A. I did not chase after the letter, no, but I saw

it go out of the office in the United States mail.

The COURT.—Q. You saw it placed in the hands

of the postman *?

A. In the hands of our mailing clerk to be depos-

ited with the postman, yes.

Mr. McGEE.—I urge the objection, and ask that

the answer be stricken out, on the ground that he

cannot personally say he saw the letter mailed.

The COURT.—I think you are anticipating some-

thing. It has not been offered yet.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I would like to

offer in evidence this particular document, which

you, Gentlemen, are probably familiar with.

Mr. McGEE.—I make an objection on the same

grounds previously stated.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection. I

cannot see the bearing of this document upon any

possible issue in this case, unless it was brought
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to the knowledge of individuals involved. I do not

think you have built up circumstantially, or by di-

rect evidence, yet, that it was. [36*4]

Mr. SWEENEY.—If it was mailed to the people

interested, the presumption is it was received.

The COURT.—If it had been dropped into the

postoffice box, I would concede your position.

Mr. SWEENEY.—If it had been mailed in the

ordinary course of business conducted by a big

organization or a big concern, it would be.

Mr. McGEE.—If you were attempting to prove

the mailing of notices at the time of the probate of

a will, or something of that kind, you would have

to come in with an affidavit of the person mailing

the notice ; that is the only way you could prove it,

by the person who mailed it. I submit that it is

not admissible in evidence for two reasons pre-

viously stated, and on the further ground that no

foundation has been laid that it was ever brought

to the attention of the defendants, or of either of

them.

The COURT.—I will sustain the objection. It

will be received for identification.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Is the reason that it is not

received in evidence because the Government has

not yet proved it was properly mailed?

The COURT.—It has not been proved that it was

properly mailed, or that it had come to the atten-

tion of the defendants.

Mr. SWEENEY.—In the record so far we have

a decree by Judge Deasy setting aside the injunc-
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tion granted against the Corporation Commissioner

for revoking their license, so we have already cov-

ered in the record that it must have been brought

to their attention.

Mr. HARRIS.—It is still not brought to the at-

tention of Randolph.

Mr. McGEE.—Nor brought to the attention of

the defendant [365] Goodwin.

The COURT.—I think that is a good point. The

objections heretofore made will be overruled, and

it will be received in evidence,

Mr. McGEE.—Is it in evidence for all purposes

against all the defendants—against the defendant

Goodwin 1

The COURT.—The Court has not made any ex-

ception in the ruling.

Mr. McGEE.—We note an exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—We note an exception as to the

defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—And we note an exception as

to the defendant Robinson.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 7.)

EXCEPTION No. 18.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Mr. Ellis, you personaUy

held this hearing on which this particular decree

was predicated'?

A. I personally conducted the hearing.

Q. Who was present at that hearing of the de-

fendants, if you know?
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A. Cromwell Simon and Harry M. Kassmir.

Q. At that hearing which one of the defendants

took the stand?

A. Cromwell Simon took the stand.

Q. Were certain exhibits offered by him in evi-

dence at that time? A. There were.

Q. At this time I will show this letter and ask

you if you can identify it. A. I do.

Q. When did you see that for the first time?

A. That was filed at that hearing.

Q. By whom?
A. March, 1925, by Cromwell Simon & Co.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I will ask that

this be introduced in evidence and if it is accepted

I wdll read it later. [366]

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Goodwin on the ground that it is not bind-

ing on him, immaterial, irrelevant and incompe-

tent, hearsay, secondary evidence, it not having

been shown that Goodwin knew" anything about its

contents, no foundation has been laid.

Mr. SWEENEY.—It purports to be a financial

statement of that concern on a particular date,

filed by Cromwell Simon, in the presence of Harry

M. Kassmir, at a hearing held by the Corporation

Commissioner.

Mr. McMillan.—Held at what date?

Mr. SWEENEY.—On the date that Mr. Ellis tes-

tified to.

Mr. HARRIS.—It appears to be a summary of

certain books, and nothing is shown that the de-
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fendant whom I represent, or any of the other de-

fendants, had particular access to those books, or

had the care or control of those books. That was

exactly the point upon which the Doble Case was

reversed by the Supreme Court. They attempted

to introduce a resume of certain books just as they

are doing here, and Judge Preston at that time held

that by implication you could not hold a person re-

sponsible in that sort of fashion. If your Honor

please, I have the decision here.

The COURT.—I understand that, but I do not

believe that it would support the defendants in this

case.

Q. Who presented that at the hearing in behalf

of the Cromwell Simon Company?

A. It was presented by both sides; it was stipu-

lated by Cromwell Simon and Hariy Kassmir that

it might be used by both sides.

Q. Who spoke for the company?

A. Cromwell Simon, in that case.

Mr. HARRIS.—If your Honor please, with your

Honor's permission I move to strike out the state-

ment of the witness in response to your Honor's

question on the ground that it is his [367] con-

clusion, and not the best evidence, the record of the

hearing being the best evidence.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McMillan.—We desire to adopt the ob-

jection of Mr. Harris, on behalf of the defendant

Robinson.
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Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer it in evi-

dence but I will not read it until later on.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—May we have this understand-

ing, that when one counsel notes an exception that

the other counsel do not have to note an exception.

The COURT.—I will make no further statement,

I think it is very well understood by counsel what

has been said. I have explained it two or three

times, and you are only going over the same thing.

Mr. McMillan.—I simply do not want to tax

your Honor's patience. [368]

The exhibits which you have offered in evidence

are Exhibits 1 to 6 introduced in the hearing held

by the Corporation Department, conducted by me,

and representing purchase agreements of Crom-

well Simon Co., with different parties whose names

appear on these agreements. These were produced

at the hearing, some of them by Harry Kassmir,

and some by Cromw^ell Simon. They were read in

the presence of both. These are McClintock agree-

ments, and not of different parties. There were

other agreements introduced, but these six do not

represent any of them. They were produced by

Harry M. Kassmir.

EXCEPTION No. 19.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I offer these pur-

chase agreements in evidence, signed by L. M. Mc-

Clintock.
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Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson, the offer is objected to on the ground the

proper foundation has not been laid as to him, in-

competent, irrelevant, not within the issues of this

case, and hearsay as to him; and these purported

agreements deal with a time when, as the defend-

ant Robinson, under no possible theory of this ease,

would he be bound by these documents, or any of

them.

Mr. HARRIS.—On behalf of the defendant Ran-

dolph, I adopt the objection of the defendant Rob-

inson.

The COURT.—You oifer these as showing the

activities of these men at that time?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes, and that they were sub-

sequently adopted by Mr. Robinson when he en-

tered into the scheme.

The COURT.—You also believe that the activities

of this firm were for the purpose of this design?

Mr. SWEENEY.—It was the scheme, part of

the scheme.

Mr. McMillan.—I ask that the statement of

the District Attorney, when he subsequently en-

tered the scheme, be stricken out, as there is no

proof whatever he ever entered into any scheme.

[369]

The COURT.—The statements of counsel are not

evidence, no matter what counsel may say, unless

it is stipulated to. I will overrule the objection.

Mr. McMillan.—Note an exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Note an exception.
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(The purchase agreements are marked U. S.

Exhibit 9.)

During that hearing I interrogated Mr. Cromwell

Simon concerning these purchase agreements.

EXCEPTION No. 20.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Purchase agreement No. 1,

"Herewith find money order or check for, as col-

lateral, to apply as first payment on 100 shares of

General Motors, Market, 100 shares of Studebaker,

Market,"—I will ask you if you asked Mr. Crom-

well Simon whether those stocks were bought, the

date of that being February 25, 1925.

Mr. HARRIS.—We object to that as leading and

suggestive, irrelevant, and immaterial, and not

binding upon the defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson joins

in the objection.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Do you have a record of

that hearing in your hand?

A. I have.

Q. You have refreshed your memory from that

record"? A. I have.

Q. What was the answer of Cromwell Simon with

reference to the purchase agreements'?

A. That they had not purchased them.

Mr. HARRIS.— That is objected to as imma-

terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, hearsay, as far
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as the witness is concerned, because there is no

foundation laid showing that he made that memo-
randum, himself, and he testifies he refreshed his

recollection from that [370] memorandum, which

is pure hearsay.

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection on behalf

of the defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—Q. You have that in your hand.

You just refreshed your memory"?

A. I have not refreshed my memory recently

from this, but I recall and have read the transcript,

however, in connection with this case.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. You have an independent

recollection of this transaction, also?

A. I have.

Q. I will show you a purchase agreement marked

"3," which says, "Herewith find money order or

check to apply as first payment on the following,

100 shares Marland Oil, market." Do you recall

asking Mr. Cromwell Simon at that time whether

those shares were bought?

Mr. HARRIS.— We also object on the same

grounds on behalf of the defendant Robinson.

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection on behalf

of defendant Robinson.

The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
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A. Yes, we interrogated Cromwell Simon with

regard to each one of these six, and to each one he

replied that they had not purchased the security.

Mr. SWEENEY. — Q. Then the next one is

March 6, 100 shares of Radio Corporation of

America at 631/4, the next is March 11, 1925, 100

shares of Union Oil of California at market, 40,

the next is March 13, 100 shares of Standard N. J.

market, at 42^, the next one [371] is March 13,

also, 100 shares Pacific Oil market, at 581/4-

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Eobinson ob-

jects to them on all of the grounds previously stated.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Those are all of Exhibit 9?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes.

Mr. Robinson was in the employ of the Corpora-

tion Department. He resigned as of June 4, 1925.

The date of the hearing was March, 1925; it was

continued from time to time, I do not recall the

exact date. Cromwell Simon Co. had their offices

originally in the Mills Building, and subsequently

in 1403 Hobart Building.

EXCEPTION No. 21.

Q. Did Mr. Simon, at the date of that hearing,

tell how much money he had taken out as his part

of the profits of Cromwell Simon & Co. ?

Mr. HARRIS.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Randolph as leading and suggestive, and

the grounds stated in the other objection. (Imma-
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terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and not binding

upon him,)

Mr. SWEENEY.—The statement I was about to

make is this, the contention of the Government is

that the attemj)t of Cromwell Simon and Mr. Kass-

mir to continue their license in effect by the oppo-

sition to this hearing is a part of the scheme, be-

cause we state in the indictment that the obtaining

and acting of Cromwell Simon & Co. under a brok-

er's license is part of the scheme.

Mr. HARRIS.—Our contention is that in order

to do that the Government does not have to lead as

adept a witness as this, that he can relate what was

said and done without suggestions from counsel.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled. [372]

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

A. Mr. Cromwell Simon did state the amount of

money he had taken out of the business, yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. What was that?

A. If my recollection is right it was $2,800.

Q. How much had Mr. Kassmir taken out ?

A. A like amount.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. How much did Mr. Simon

say Mr. Kassmir had taken out?

Mr. McMillan.—The same objection, on the

further ground that at the date this transaction took

place they were strangers, so far as the defendant

Robinson is concerned.

The COURT.—At this hearing?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes, this statement was made
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by Cromwell Simon and Harry Kassmir at that

time, and the whole thing is a part of the scheme.

Mr. HARRIS.—I would like to call your Honor's

attention respectfully to this, that the foundation

has not been laid for this testimony, because the

Government has not shown when this scheme ter-

minated, or conspiracy, as counsel sees fit to call

it.

The COURT.—I believe that is a matter of con-

necting up.

Mr. HARRIS.—Then may we reserve a motion

to strike this ouf?

The COURT.—Yes. The objection will be over-

ruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson, may we have the benefit of the ruling re-

serving the right to make a motion to strike out?

The COURT.—Yes.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

A. He said that a like amount had been taken out

by Mr. Kassmir. [373]

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will ask you if you can

identify that?

A. I can.

EXCEPTION No. 22.

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I want to offer

in evidence the application for broker's certificate

of J. W. Randolph, doing business as Charles Wes-

ley Company.

Mr. McGEE.—As far as the defendant Goodwin
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is concerned, we object to that as immaterial, irrele-

vant, and incompetent, hearsay, on the further

ground that it is not responsive to any of the alle-

gations of the indictment; there is nothing said in

this indictment about Wesley Company. The only

names they mention are Cromwell Simon & Co., and

Cromwell & Co. There is nothing said about the

Wesley Company, and we object to it as not re-

sponsive to any allegations of the indictment.

Mr. McMillan.—The defendant Robinson joins

in the objection, and also that the proper foundation

has not been laid.

Mr. SWEENEY.—The position of the Govern-

ment is this, that when Cromwell Simon Company

ceased to function, they started in business as

Charles Wesley Company, and continued to do

business.

Mr. HARRIS.—Q. Where was that?

Mr. SWEENEY.—In Los Angeles.

Mr. McGEE.—But this crime is charged in the

Northern District of California.

Mr. SWEENEY. — The scheme, however, Mr.

McGee, might go through the whole country.

Mr. McGEE.—I object to that as immaterial, ir-

relevant, and incompetent, not responsive to any of

the allegations in the indictment.

The COURT.—In other words, you are going to

follow it up further than Cromwell Simon & Com-

pany?

Mr. SWEENEY.—^Yes, we are going to show that

they conducted business as Charles Wesley Com-
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pany, operating from 1403 Hobart Building, where

we are going to leave the Cromwell Simon Com-

pany, [374] and there on the same date that they

were put out of business by the Superior Court of

the City and County of San Francisco, they started

in business as Charles Wesley Company.

Mr. McGEE.—This indictment charges that

within the State and Northern District of Califor-

nia, Southern Division, the crime of using the mails

to defraud was committed. They are going down

to Los Angeles, now, which is another district, not

in this district, and from there, according to the

letter that they have attached to the indictment,

they are going up to Seattle. In other words, any

place they find Simon or Kassmir doing business

under any name, in this district or some other dis-

trict, they are going to trail him around all through

the dealings; I submit, if your Honor please, that

the indictment charges this crime was committed in

the Northern District of California, and if they

subsequently organized a business down in Los An-

geles, or Seattle, it is not material.

The COURT.—The whole question is whether it

is one common scheme, and the question is to make

the connection. I agree with counsel if the connec-

tion is not made to show it is all one scheme or

course of conduct on the part of the defendants, if

the evidence does not connect it up it will not be

proper. I will overrule the objection.

Mr. McGEE.—Note an exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—Note an exception.
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Mr. McMillan.—Note an exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 10.)

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Do you recognize this, Mr.

Ellis?

A. I recognize it as part of our special docu-

ments.

Q. And they are what?

A. They are agent's applications by different in-

dividuals to represent the Charles Wesley Com-

pany, McClintock, Owen and McCaffrey. [375]

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Mr. Ellis, with reference to

the handwriting in the application of W. Claude

Owen, I will ask you if you can identify it.

A. I can.

Q. Whose writing is it?

A. The writing of Mr. Robinson.

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is all from this witness

at this time.

Cross-examination.

(By Mr. HARRIS.)
I have not the entire file of the Wesley Company

here. (Mr. Sweeney announces that he has the file

and Mr. Harris asks him to produce it so that wit-

ness may refer to it.) Without examining file do

not know length of time Wesley Company continued

to have a broker's license. This plan of business

that Cromwell Simon & Co. were engaged in was

not exactly known as the partial payment plan;

they called it the Cromwell Simon Partial Payment

Plan of business. We put them out of business

just on account of the type of business they were
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conducting. I was not permitting other partial pay

houses to operate at that time. Corbin & Com-
pany were operating at that time on the partial

payment plan, but immediately after were put out

of business up here by me. At that time the Com-
missioner did permit them to have a license. As
far as I know, at the time information came to me
that the partial payment plan of business was op-

erating in San Francisco, there were, upon investi-

gation, two, there were Cromwell Simon & Co., J. H.

Corbin & Co., and subsequently, almost immediately

thereafter John C. Ship Company. There probably

were others.

Q. And, to some extent, there have been partial

pay houses running right along, that is, a more

limited number, but the plan has been in use: Is

that right? A. I am not sure about that.

Q. You are not in a position to say that the City

Bond & Finance Company, with which Mr. Paul

Rinehart is connected, is not now operating as a

partial paying plan"? [376]

Mr. SWEENEY.—I wish to interpose an objec-

tion to the question as immaterial, irrelevant, and

incompetent, and not within the scope of the direct

examination. I had Mr. Ellis identify certain rec-

ords, I had him tell the story of the Cromwell Simon

Company hearing before him down in the State

Corporation Department. Outside of that, I can-

not see where the question is relevant.

The COURT.—What do you hope to prove by

this?
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Mr. HARRIS.—He has indicated by his testi-

mony with reference to the hearing to revoke Crom-

well Simon Co.'s license that the plan and scheme,

in itself, was inherently bad, as counsel for the

Government attempted to indicate to the jury, that

it was a false and fraudulent scheme. Now, I am
trying to show by this witness that the scheme, it-

self, was a partial paying proposition, was recog-

nized by the Corporation Department, and that if

anything was wrong with the conduct of an indi-

vidual business it did not necessarily make the

entire operations fraudulent.

The COURT.—Is that the contention, that the

plan is fraudulent?

Mr. SWEENEY.—As I said in my opening state-

ment, I said this plan was the vehicle upon which

this fraud was perpetrated, it is a part of the

scheme, it is the very vehicle by which it was per-

petrated.

Mr. HARRIS.—Is it counsel's contention that

the partial payment plan is fraudulent in itself?

If not, I can restrict my examination very much.

Mr, SWEENEY.—I do not stipulate to anything

like that.

Mr. HARRIS.—I am asking what your conten-

tion is.

Mr. SWEENEY.— It may not be inherently

fraudulent, but the Government contends that it

was used as a vehicle for this scheme by the Crom-

well Simon Co.

The COURT.—I have no objection to your cov-

ering that phase [377] of it, if you want to, if
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you believe from the statement of the District At-

torney it bears directly upon the issues.

Mr. HARRIS.—I think counsel for the Govern-

ment has made it pretty plain it is not their par-

ticular contention that this scheme, of itself, was

inherently fraudulent.

Mr. SWEENEY.— Do not misunderstand me,

Mr. Harris, to say that I think the partial payment

plan scheme is all right.

Mr. HARRIS.—I will leave that for the jury to

determine, rather than to put the implication to

them.

Q. Mr. Ellis, this file that I hand you is what?

A. A portion of the file of the Charles Wesley

Company.

Q. What portion is it?

A. Agents' applications.

Q. And each one of these pages you hold in your

hand, or each two of these pages constitutes one

agent's license: Is that right?

A. I also notice that there are some agents' re-

newal applications here; a renewal application is

only one sheet; but other than that they constitute

the regular form used by the Corporation Depart-

ment for agents' applications and renewals.

Q. Starting from what time, Mr. Ellis?

A. September, 1925.

Q. September, 1925, to what date?

A. April, 1927—April 4.

Q. April 4, 1927? A. Yes.
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Q. Now, will you just take your jEile and refer to

it and tell me how long the Charles Wesley Com-

pany continued to have a broker's license?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Mr. Harris, I do not like to

interject, but can you limit that question to how
long they had a license as long as they were operat-

ing on the partial payment plan?

Mr. HARRIS.—No, I want to show that Charles

Wesley Co. were in business up to a certain [378]

period, and had never had their license revoked.

A. A part of the file is now in evidence, that is,

the original license of 1925, that is not here. I have

the license for the year 1926, and the license for

the year 1927. That license, by its terms, expired

the 31st of December, unless sooner revoked.

Q. Will you refer to the file and see if it is not

a fact, Mr. Ellis, that in the year 1928, some time in

the spring, the application for license for 1928 was

voluntarily withdrawn by Mr. Randolph?

Mr. SWEENEY.—I want to interpose an objec-

tion that it is immaterial, irrelevant and incompe-

tent; it might just happen that Mr. Randolph was

engaged in other business down there, and unless

the question is limited to the Charles Wesley Com-

pany, doing business under the partial payment

plan, or doing business under the license issued to

him in evidence, it is immaterial, irrelevant, and

incompetent. I have no objection to Mr. Harris

putting in all of the agents' applications that he can

find in the record, provided those agents were doing

business under the broker's certificate that was is-
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sued to Mr. Randolph when he said that his office

was in 1403 Hobart Building.

Mr. HARRIS.— Mr. Randolph has never said

that his office was at 1403 Hobart Building.

Mr. SWEENEY.—The application file which is

in evidence states so.

Mr. HARRIS.—I do not think so. I want to

show that this was merely a temporary address,

and will show by Mr. Ellis that offices were open

in Los Angeles, and that the man is in perfectly

good standing in Los Angeles.

The COURT.—Do you see any objection to that?

Mr. SWEENEY.—No. As I say, the application

file shows Charles Wesley ComjDany was doing busi-

ness, or, rather, Charles W. Randolph's brokerage

license gives [379] the place of his address as

1403 Hobart Building.

Mr, HARRIS.—That address is changed.

Mr. SWEENEY.—There are many agents' cer-

tificates there of the Charles Wesley Company

which were issued when he was no longer engaged

in the partial payment plan. I want to limit it to

this particular certificate here.

Mr. HARRIS.—Counsel has not stated when the

partial payment plan was abandoned, nor has this

witness testified to it. He has left the record in

a state that Wesley Company is engaged in the

partial payment plan.

The COURT.—Do you know when the partial

payment plan ceased"?

A. I do not. i
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The COURT.—Nor do you, Mr. Sweeney?
Mr. SWEENEY.—Yes, I do, but I do not think

it is proper for me to develop it at this time unless

you request me.

The COURT.—The proof will cover any field to

which they may have gone.

Mr. SWEENEY.—If Mr. Harris wishes to ask

the question, I think I might get it in.

Mr. HARRIS.—I have nothing to conceal.

The COURT.—Proceed.
In answer to your question, does your file show

that J. W. Randolph, doing business as Charles

Wesley Company, ever had his license revoked by

the State Corporation Department for any reason?

—the file for 1928 of J. W. Randolph, doing busi-

ness as Charles Wesley Company, does not appear

here. I have had dealings in connection with that

license all during the year 1928, and I have been in

contact with the Los Angeles office in connection

with it. I do not recall the date of his withdrawal

of his license; and I have no recollection like that,

—that his license was absolutely ready for issu-

ance, and Mr. Randolph, himself, refused to take

it, because he had been indicted in this case. I

had no correspondence of that kind and was not in

touch to that extent with the Los Angeles office.

No, I could not say that is not a fact, that that was

the reason presented to your office by Mr. Ran-

dolph, that he would not accept his license in 1928.

Estimating how many various agents were em-

ployed by Wesley & Company during the three or
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four [380] years that they existed, I should say,

roughly speaking, about fifty. Referring to the

application of McClintock of October, 1925, which

is handed me, I did not personally issue this license

;

but I recognize the signature, the form of the docu-

ment, and the document itself. It is noted that he

says that he worked for Cromwell Simon Company
before as an agent, and despite that fact our

office issued the license. At the time Charles Wes-

ley got a license, in other words Jack Randolph got

a license for Charles Wesley Company, there was

no knowledge then in the Sacramento office, [381]

where he got his license, of his trouble with the

San Francisco office. I was not in the Sacramento

office at that time, but I am familiar with the en-

tire case by an examination of the records. The

records will show that Jack Randolph had an

agent's license for Cromwell Simon Co., and that

this license was part of our records. The files here

apparently do not show whether in 1925 our office

made an examination of the books and records of

the Charles Wesley Company, in December, 1925.

(By Mr. McMILLAN.)
Samuel H. Robinson, one of the defendants in

this case, was employed in the State Corporation

Department as a Deputy, which had to do with the

granting of licenses to sell stock and securities in

the State of California. We were both deputies

together in the office; I would not say I was his

superior. We were employed in similar capacities.

He was there about two years, and left the employ-
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ment of the State Corporation Department around

about June 4, 1925. The records show that the

hearing on the notice for the revocation of the li-

cense of Cromwell Simon & Co. was conducted in

the office of the State Corporation Department May
5, 8, and 11, 1925. The audit was made March 25,

1925, and shortly thereafter a notice was prepared

and sent to the brokerage concern, but as to the

exact date I could not say; it will undoubtedly ap-

pear in the file under the proper date, Mr. Rob-

inson did not appear as an attorney for Kassmir

or Cromwell Simon at the hearing; at that time he

was in the department as an employee. And, so

far as I know, the persons named at the time of

said hearing were utter strangers to him.

Mr. McGEE.—If your Honor please, this is

cross-examination on behalf of the defendant Good-

win.

Q. When was the application of Orton E. Good-

win for a salesman's license made?

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is objected to as imma-

terial, irrelevant and incompetent, and not the best

evidence, because it is already in [382] evidence.

Mr. McGEE.—Q. Running through these rec-

ords which are in evidence, what is the date of Or-

ton E. Goodwin's application for a license?

A. March 10, 1925.

Q. Have you any record of Orton Goodwin ever

having applied for a license prior to that time?

A. I would have to examine the records of the
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Sacramento office to find out that. In other words,

he might have had a license prior to that time.

Q. Tell us about this Sacramento office. Isn't

that the head office?

A. The Sacramento office is the head office.

Q. You say you had an- office in San Francisco,

and an office in Los Angeles, but the Sacramento

office has copies of all of the files, has it not?

A. By law, the originals are all required to be

kept in Sacramento.

Q. To be kept in Sacramento? A. Yes.

Q. Then the Corporation Commissioner, or his

deputies in Sacramento, are advised as to every-

thing being done by his deputies in California,

whether it be in the San Francisco office, or the

Los Angeles office?

A. In theory they ought to be.

Q. I did not ask you that. He is advised by rea-

son of the original records being kept there: Isn't

that correct ? A. When they get there he is, yes.

Q. Now, so far as you know, Orton E. Goodwin

never had a license as a broker or a salesman be-

fore this time?

A. His application would indicate that he had.

Q. That he had in California?

A. Yes. You asked me whether I knew. I

don't know.

Q. You don't know anything about it?

A. His application indicates he had, because he

says "Refer to file of licenses by J. H. Corbin Co.

Los Angeles."
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Q. Before a license is issued to a salesman, or

an agent, as you call them, to work for someone

else, there is a time elapses from the time the ap-

j)lication is filed until the license is granted: Is

that correct? A. There is now, yes.

Q. Was there then? A. Unfortunately, no.

Mr. McGEE.—I move to strike out the word

''unfortunately," and I would ask the Court to

please admonish the witness to answer the ques-

tion.

Q. I just want you to answer the question, if you

please. [383] At that time was there any time

elapsed between the filing and the granting of the

license? A. The license shows two days.

Q. How long did that license to Orton E. Good-

win remain in force?

A. By its terms, it would remain in force until

December 31, 1925, unless sooner revoked.

Q. Was it revoked?

A. So far as I know it has not been.

Q. Look at your records: Have you got any ap-

plication, or have you any license granted to Orton

E. Goodwin, as an agent for Wesley & Company?

Mr. SWEENEY.—The Government will stipu-

late there is none.

Mr. McGEE.—All right, that is stipulated, there

is no license that was ever granted to Orton E.

Goodwin as an agent of the Wesley Company. I

think that is all.

Mr. McDonald.—Q'. At the time of this hear-

ing, Mr. Ellis, you were very much, and I suppose
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are still, opposed to the partial payment plan as

it is called?

A. If I might answer that question in my own
way, I will give you my views.

Q. I think that question can be answered *'Yes"

or "No."

A. It cannot. The partial payment plan of busi-

ness is different with every individual viewpoint.

Q. However, the department has allowed certain

firms to operate under the partial payment plan?

A. It is conceivable that there is a type of par-

tial payment plan that would not be inherently

vicious.

Q. This plan operated by Cromwell Simon Co.

was largely the same plan operated by J. H. Cor-

bin Co., was it not? A. I think not.

Q. Are you familiar with the plan operated by

J. H. Corbin Co.? A. To some degree, yes.

Q. Have you studied it in connection with the

plan operated by Cromwell Simon?

A. Not particularly, no.

Q. Do you know that the form of contract is

practically, if not absolutely word for word, the

same?

A. I was so informed by the members of Crom-

well Simon Company.

Q. You largely brought this hearing on accoimt

of certain information you had as to the reputation

of Mr. Cromwell Simon, didn't you?

A. That was connected with it, but not the entire

basis for the hearing.
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Q. During this hearing [384] you introduced

evidence as to Mr. Cromwell Simon's dealings in

other parts of the comitry, did you not ?

A. In other brokerage concerns.

Q. You spoke of the amount of money with-

drawn by Mr. Kassmir and Mr. Cromwell Simon.

How much did you say that was? To the best of

my knowledge, my opinion is it was about |2,800;

it might have been $2,500.

Q. As a matter of fact, it was less than $2,500?

A. I could not say. I could tell you by looking

at that record.

Q. As a matter of fact, it was $2,429.84, and out

of that the sum of $43.84 was a charge not for sal-

aries. You are familiar with the brokerage busi-

ness, are you not? A. Yes.

Q. Do you consider that the sum of $250 a week

is an exorbitant salary fora manager of a broker-

age concern?

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is objected to as imma-

terial, irrelevant and incompetent, the particular

objection being that $2,484 up to the time of that

hearing was $250 a week.

Mr. McDonald.—Q. TMs represents, Mr. El-

lis, the withdrawal of Cromwell Simon and Harry

Kassmir from February 27, 1925, to April 25, 1925

;

is that correct? A. Are those the dates given?

Q. Those are the dates in the transcript.

A. Then they are correct.

Q. Now, I will ask you if you consider the sum
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of $250 a week an exorbitant salary for the man-

ager of a brokerage concern?

Mr. SWEENEY.—The same objection.

The COURT.—I will allow the question.

Mr. McDonald.—Will you answer it?

A. Yes and no. Now, by way of explanation,

where a brokerage concern is not using its custom-

ers' money, but is taking profit, $250 week would

not be considered an outrageous salary, but where

the organizers of the concern did not put in any

more than $42 or $45 of their own money, but were

using their clients' money to pay themselves sal-

aries with, and are not buying these securities, I

consider it excessive.

Q. You say they are not buying securities. Was
it not testified to by Mr. Cromwell Simon, and

shown by the auditor, that a great deal of these

securities had been purchased? [385]

A. Some of the securities had been purchased,

yes.

Mr. McDonald.—That is all.

Redirect Examination.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Mr. Ellis, there are a con-

siderable number of applications there. Do you

know of your own knowledge that this particular

application that you have in your hand were appli-

cations of the Charles Wesley Company doing busi-

ness under the application that was filed in San

Francisco, 1925?

A. That big bundle of agent's applications you

speak about, you have reference to now?
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Q. Yes.

A. Very few of them are for the year 1925, and

are in connection with that 1925 license; you must

remember that this license there represents the li-

cense issued for the latter part of 1925, all of the

year 1926. and aU of the year 1927.

Redirect Examination.

(By Ml. SWEEXEY.;
I don't know what particular character of busi-

ness Mr. Randolph was engaged in in 1926. These

appHcations or certificates, because they happened

to be in the file, do not necessarily mean that they

are applications which were granted under the

broker's license [386] of ]^Ii\ J. W. Randolph.

doing business at 1403 Hobart Building. The sum

of $43.85, referred to by me under Mr. McDonald's

cross-examination, represents the cash capital con-

tribution on the part of CromweU Simon and Harry

Kassmii' in their brokerage business. Mr. Robin-

son prosecuted the appeal from the decision of the

corporation commissioner to the Superior Court of

the City and County of San Francisco, as an at-

torney.

Recross-examination.

(By Mr. McMILLAX.)
TVith reference to when that ajjpeal was prose-

cuted, an injunction was gotten out immediately

after notice of our decision of the revocation, and

the revocation will be the best evidence of that; I

do not recall offhand what that was; it seems to
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me it was June 6tb, and the injunction was gotten

out staying us from further interfering with Crom-

well Simon Company, and it was submitted on

briefs, and the decision came down I believe Sep-

tember 8th. Mr. Robinson left our office in June;

he was a practicing attorney; and he represented

them as an attorney at law in the prosecution of

said appeal.

(By Mr. HARRIS.)
Mr. Randolph was not, as far as I remember and

believe, ever present at the hearing in the depart-

ment that I have been speaking about.

Q. Mr. Ellis, I call your attention to a document

appearing in your file, headed ''Order requiring

keeping of certain records"; is that the ordinary

regulations of your office that those brokers who

have had licenses say from 1926 on be required to

keep specific records of stock sold and purchased?

A. We were requiring this record of stock in

1925 and 1926, I believe.

Q. Now, the one that you have in your hand is

particularly directed to Jack W. Randolph, doing

business as Charles Wesley Company, is it not?

A. That is [387] correct.

Q. It is dated at what time?

A. January 20, 1926.

Q. It requires that every 60 days he shall pre-

sent to you a report showing what stock he has pur-

chased, and keeping his books in the manner re-

quired by your office? A. That is correct.

Q. Does your record show in any place that he
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did not comply with your instructions in that re-

gard ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—I suggest that he be given the

tile and be given an opportunity to look over it.

Mr. HARRIS.—I am perfectly willing that the

witness take his time, and he can come back.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I suggest that he be given the

file and permitted to look over it, and give that par-

ticular information that you inquire about.

The COURT.—It is going to require investiga-

tion of the record. Is there any other question that

would involve that same examination f

Mr. HARRIS.—I do not think so. There is just

one more question I have in mind, and then he can

come back afterward if he wants to.

The licenses that are issued are not continuing li-

censes; they terminate as of the 31st of each year

in which they are issued and then the broker makes

a request for a renewal. That is what happened

with Mr. Randolph. The record shows that he con-

ducted his business from several addresses, for in-

stance, 720 Board of Trade Building, Los Angeles,

December 24, 1926 ; and from December 24, 1926 to

the time he gave up his license he was in the Board

of Trade Building in Los Angeles. [388]
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TESTIMONY OF V. H. PARKS, FOR THE
UNITED STATES.

V. H. PARKS, a witness produced on behalf of

the United States, being first duly sworn, testified

in substance, as follows:

Direct Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
During the year 1925, probably during the

months of February to September, I was book-

keeper and cashier for Cromwell & Simon Co. Af-

ter this I was employed in the same capacity for

Charles Wesley Company.

(Here witness identifies signature of defendant

Orton E. Goodwin, to letter dated April 22, 1925,

which letter was marked, U. S. Exhibit 6 for Iden-

tification. )

(Here witness identifies signature of J. W. Ran-

dolph to letter addressed to Mr. G. A. John-

son, dated July 7, 1925, which letter is marked

U. S. Exhibit 7 for Identification.)

(Here witness identifies his own handwriting, or

signature, which was marked U. S. Exhibit 8 for

Identification.)

HOWARD C. ELLIS, FOR THE UNITED
STATES (RECALLED).

HOWARD C. ELLIS, a witness recalled on be-

half of the United States, testified in substance as

follows

:

In answer to the questions asked me at this
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morning's session whether or not the Charles Wes-

ley record or file shows that the reports required

by the Corporation Commission were made, my
answer is that the file does not show that.

Cross-examination.

(By Mr. HARRIS.)
I think the files show that one investigation was

made by the Corporation Department; it might

show more. [389]

Redirect Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
The nature of the investigation was—they had a

hearing. On January 18, 1926. As a result of the

hearing the Charles Wesley Company agreed as a

precedent to receiving a license for 1926 that they

would discontinue, directly or indirectly, the idea

of carrying on a partial payment plan business.

Recross-examination.

(By Mr. HARRIS.)
As far as the records show, they did discontinue

and kept their word; I have nothing to the con-

trary. They were issued their license again in

1927.

TESTIMONY OF V. A. PARKS (RESUMED).

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
(Witness is here shown letter dated June 24,

1925, addressed to Mr. S. Tiger, identifies the sig-
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nature of Orton E. Goodwin thereto, and letter is

marked U. S. Exhibit 9 for Identification.)

(Witness is here shown letter dated June 30,

1925, addressed to Mrs. Annie G. Tiger, signed Or-

ton E. Goodwin, identifies said signature and let-

ter is marked U. S. Exhibit 10 for Identification.)

(Witness is here shown letter addressed to Mrs.

Annie G. Tiger, dated July 2, 1925, signed Orton

E. Goodwin, identifies said signature and said let-

ter is marked U. S. Exhibit 11 for Identification.)

(Witness is here shown letter dated September 5,

1925, addressed to Mrs. Annie G. Tiger and signed

by J. W. Randolph, identifies the signature of J.

W. Randolph and said letter is marked U. S. Ex-

hibit 12 for Identification.) [390]

(Witness is here shown letter dated April 26, 1925,

addressed to Mr. Ernest Hipp, signed by Orton E.

Goodwin, identifies said signature, and said letter

is here marked U. S. Exhibit 13 for Identification.)

(Witness is here shown letter dated June 29, 1925,

addressed to Ernest Hipp, signed Orton E. Good-

win, identifies the signature of said Orton E. Good-

win, and said letter is marked U. S. Exhibit 14 for

Identification.)

(Witness is here shown letters addressed to Mrs. B.

M. Ogier dated April 25 and June 13, 1925, signed

Orton E. Goodwin, and identifies the signatures

as those of said Orton E. Goodwin, and said letters

are marked U. S. Exhibits 15 and 16 for Identifica-

tion.)
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(Witness is here shown letter addressed to Miss

Clara Oliver, dated October 9, 1925, signed Hariy

M. Kassmir, which signature witness identifies and

counsel for said Kassmir stipulates is the signature

of Kassmir, and said letter is marked U, S. Ex-

hibit 17 for Identification.)

(Witness is here shown a letter dated October

28, 1925, addressed to Miss Clara Oliver, 1696

Green Street, identifies signature as that of J. W.
Randolph, and said letter is here marked U. S.

Exhibit 18 for Identification.)

(Witness is here shown letter addressed to Mr.

W. Allen, 1717 Ellis Street, dated September 11,

1925, signed by J. W. Randolph, identifies the sig-

nature as that of J. W. Randolph, and letter is

marked U. S. Exhibit 19 for Identification.)

(Witness is here shown letter addressed to W. F.

Allen, 1717 Ellis Street, dated September 10, 1925,

signed by J. W. Randolph, identifies signature as

that of J. W. Randolph, and letter marked U. S.

Exhibit 20 for Identification.)

Q. Just look at all of those signatures and see

if you can identify them.

A. I w^ould say they were all the signature of

[391] J. W. Randolph.

Q. Do you know that they are ? A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—This purports to be dated

November 5, 1925, a letter addressed to W. F.

AUen, 1717 Ellis Street, San Francisco, by J. W.
Randolph, and I ask that it be marked Govern-

ment's exhibit next in order, for identification.
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(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 21 for

Identification.)

The next one is dated October 13, 1925, addressed

to Miss Mary Esther Durham, 5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, California, signed by J. W. Randolph,

and ask that it be marked Government's exhibit

next in order for identification.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 22 for

Identification.)

The next one is dated October 28, 1925, addressed

to Miss Mary Esther Durham, 5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, California, signed by J. W. Randolph,

and I ask that it be marked Government's exhibit

for identification next in order,

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 23 foi'

Identification.)

The next one is dated February 2, 1926, addressed

to Miss Mary Esther Durham, 5838 Birch Court,

Oakland, California, signed by J. W. Randolph, and

I ask that it be marked Government's exhibit for

identification next in order.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 24 for

Identification.)

Q. I will show you a letter pui-porting to be

signed by Harry Kassmir, and ask you if you can

identify that signature. A. Yes.

Q. That is the signature of Harry M. Kassmir?

A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—This purports to be a letter

dated [392] February 19, 1926, addressed to

Miss Mary Esther Durham, 5838 Birch Court,
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Oakland, California, and signed by Harry Kass-

mir, and ask that it be marked U. S. exhibit next

in order, for identification.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 25 for

Identification.)

Q. I ask if you can identify that signature.

A. That is also the signature of Harry M. Kass-

mir.

Mr. SWEENEY.—It purports to be a letter ad-

dressed to Miss Mary Esther Durham, 5838 Birch

Court, dated March 15, 1926, sig-ned by Harry M.

Kassmir, and I ask that it be marked U. S. exhibit

next in order, for identification.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 2G for

Identification.)

Q. Are you familiar with that signature, Mr.

Parks?

A. Yes, that is the signature of J. W. Randolph.

Mr. SWEENEY.—It purports to be a letter

dated June 26, 1926, addressed to Mrs. Beans, and

signed by J. W. Randolph, and I ask that it be

marked U. S. exhibit next in order for identifica-

tion.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 27 for

Identification.)

Q. Are you familiar with that signature ?

A. Yes, that is the signature of Harry Kassmir.

Mr. SWEENEY.—That purports to be a letter

dated July 7, 1926, addressed to Miss Mary Esther

Durham, 5838 Birch Court, Oakland, California,

and signed by Harry Kassmir, and ask that it be
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marked U. S. exhibit next in order for identifica-

tion.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 28 for

Identification.)

Q. Are you familiar with that signature?

A. Yes, that is the same signature, Harry Kass-

mir.

Mr. SWEENEY.—It pui-ports to be a letter ad-

dressed to Mrs. Beans and Miss Durham, dated

March 8, 1927, and signed by Harry [393] Kass-

mir, and I ask that it be marked U. S. exhibit next

in order for identification.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 29 for

Identification.)

TESTIMONY OF MARY CHRISTENSEN, FOR
THE UNITED STATES.

MARY CHRISTENSEN, a witness produced on

behalf of the United States, being first duly swora,

testified in substance as follows:

Direct Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
Duidng the summer and autunm of 1925 I was

stenographer for IMr. Robinson, whose office was at

1403 Hobart Building. I was not employed by the

Cromwell Simon Co. I am familiar with the signa-

ture which you show me. It is mine.

(Witness is here shown letter addressed to Mr.

Gustave A. Johnson, Postoffice Box 53, Chualar,

California, signed by Cromwell, Simon & Co., by
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Harry Kassmir, states that the signature is in her

handwriting, and said letter was marked U. S, Ex-

hibit 30 for Identification.)

(Witness is here shown a letter addressed to

J. A. Barden, Attorney at Law, at Salinas, Cali-

fornia, dated May 13, 1926, signed by Cromwell

Simon Co., by Harry M. Kassmir, states that the

signature is in her handwriting, and said letter was

marked U. S. Exhibit 31 for Identification.)

EXCEPTION No. 23.

Mr. McDonald.—if your Honor please, we ob-

ject to this as immaterial, irrelevant, and incompe-

tent, and a privileged communication, something

occurring in the relationship between attorney and

client while this young lady was employed at the

office.

The COURT.—What are you objecting to?

Mr. McDonald.—The introduction of this

paper in evidence. [394]

The COURT.—It has not been offered.

Mr. McDonald.—I want to ask certain ques-

tions concerning the signature. He has asked ques-

tions concerning the signature and the writing of

this letter, to which we object.

Mr. SWEENEY.—No, I asked her to identify the

signature of H. M. Kassmir.

Mr. McDonald.—We object to that on the same

ground.

The COURT.—I don't know whether it is perti-

nent to the issues, or not.
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Mr. SWEENEY.—I will offer this for identifica-

tion at this time.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 31 for

Identification.)

Q. I will ask you if you are familiar with that

signature. A. Yes, that is mine.

Q. Whose signature is that? A. Mine.

Mr. SWEENEY.—This pui-ports to be a letter

addressed to Mrs. Annie Tiger, dated May 14, 1926,

signed by Samuel H. Robinson. I offer it for

identification.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 32 for

Identification.)

Q. I will show you that signature and ask you if

you are familiar with that.

A. I think it is Mr. Robinson's.

Q. Are you sure*?

A. It looks like his writing.

The COURT.—Q. Are you familiar with his

writing? A. Yes.

Q. Do you believe it is? A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. You believe it is his wi'it-

ing?

A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—This is a letter dated July 25,

1925, to Mr. Leroy F. Pike, City Attorney, Reno,

Nevada, and signed by Samuel H. Robinson.

Mr. HARRIS.—This letter apparently goes to a

point in [395] the indictment, and might affect

my client, and I would ask permission, with the

purpose of objecting on the ground of privilege,
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as to how slie got the information that that was Mr.

Robinson's signature.

The COURT.—I do not see the purpose of it at

this time, because, as far as I can see, all that is

being done is laying a foundation for further identi-

fication of certain signatures, before they can be

received. At that time I presume you can question

on that very point.

Mr. HARRIS.—I can very plainly see the district

attorney's point on this; he is having her identify

a signature now, and then he will bring in some-

body that will say that he received that letter.

There could be no question of privilege raised at

that time, so it must be raised now or waived, before

the witness goes off the stand.

The COURT.—This examination cannot be

broken up into as many parts as exhibits are offered

now. You can make a notation of that exhibit and

inquire as to it, as to her knowledge.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I wiU show you that sig-

nature and ask you if you can identify that.

A. Yes, that is mine.

Mr. SWEENEY.—This purports to be a letter

addressed to Leroy F. Pike, August 6, 1925, and

signed by Samuel H. Robinson, and ask that it be

marked U. S. Exhibit 34 for Identification.

(The docmnent was marked U. S. Exhibit 34 for

Identification.)

Q. And the same with these two.

A. These are not mine.

Q. Are you familiar with the handwriting?
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A. Yes.

Q. Whose handwi'iting is it?

A. Mr. Robinson's,

Mr. SWEENEY.—At this time I wish to have

marked for identification a letter addressed to

Leroy F. Pike, Reno, Nevada, dated August 31,

1925, and signed by Samuel H. Robinson. [396]

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 35 for

Identification.)

The next is a letter addressed to Leroy F. Pike,

dated September 18, 1925, and signed by Samuel H.

Robinson, and ask that it be marked U. S. Exhibit

36 for Identification.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 36

for Identification.)

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is all.

Mr. McGEE.—Might I ask the witness a few

questions *?

The COURT.—Proceed.

Cross-examination.

Mr. McGEE.—Q. Between what dates were you

employed by Samuel H. Robinson as his stenog-

rapher ?

A. The latter part of 1925, until about August

of 1926.

Q. During all of that period he was engaged in

private practice as an attorney at law?

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is objected to as imma-

terial, irrelevant, and incompetent, and calling for

the conclusion of this witness.
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Mr. McGEE.—Whether she was employed as a

stenographer to him as a lawyer is a question for

this Court to learn in order that we may subse-

quently raise an objection. We move to strike this

witness' testimony out on the ground that it is a

privileged communication.

The COURT.—As far as the explanation of

counsel is concerned, I think the objection should be

sustained.

Mr. McOEE.—Q. Whence did you obtain the in-

formation as to whose signature that was %

A. Which signature?

The COURT.—How do you know that that is his

signature ?

Mr. McGrEE.—Q. How do you know that that is

his signature?

A. From seeing it at various times, it looks like

his writing.

Q. Under what circumstances did you see him

write, and where? [397] A. Signing letters.

The COURT.—Q. You saw him sign his signa-

ture?

A. Yes.

Q. You have seen the letters after he signed

them? A. Yes.

Mr. McGEE.—Q. Did you see that in the course

of your employment?

A. Yes.

Qi All the information with reference to the facts

you have testified to was gained by you while you
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were in the employ of Samuel H. Robinson: Is that

correct*? A. Yes.

Mr. McGEE.—I think that is all. I think

it is in the record all ready that Samuel H. Robin-

son is an attorney at law.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Do I understand Mr Mc-

Gee to say that the matter of knowledge of a sig-

nature acquired by a stenographer is a matter of

confidential communication f

The COURT.—The only thing Mr. McGee an-

nounced, as far as the record shows, is that Mr.

Robinson was an attorney at law.

Mr. McGEE.—And any information which this

lady gained, which she just testified to was acquired

by her during the time and in the course of her em-

ployment as a stenographer with Samuel H. Robin-

son.

The COURT.—Counsel, in his own opinion, is

summing up what evidence has been introduced;

that is the only effect of that statement.

Mr. McGEE.—If there is no other question by

counsel I am going to make a motion.

Mr. HARRIS.—^I would like to ask a few ques-

tions.

Mr. McGEE.—Go ahead.

Mr. HARRIS.

—

Q. While you were working for

Mr. Robinson, what did you do, stenographic work ?

A. Yes.

Q. And secretarial work ?

A. Well, dictation, transcribing, answered the

telephone.
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Q. And did you see what character of work Mr.

Robinson was doing? [398] What I mean to ask

by that is, was he in the automobile business, or

candy business, or what was he doing?

A. An attorney, of course.

Q. Did he go to court? A. Yes.

Q. Write up legal documents? A. Yes.

Q. During the whole time that j^ou were there?

A. Yes.

Q. That was his business ? A. Yes.

Q. You were his clerk and his secretary?

A. Yes.

Mr. HARRIS.—Now, if your Honor please, I

make the motion that the testimony be stricken out

on the ground that it is a privileged communication.

The COURT.—Q. You also wrote personal let-

ters outside of the business letters while you were

there? A. Not that I remember.

Q. You never wrote a personal letter?

A. I do not just remember any personal letters.

Q. They always related to business? A. Yes.

Q. He never wrote a letter that did not relate to

some client? A. Not that I remember.

Q. The entire time that you were there ?

A. No.

Mr. McGEE.—The defendant Goodwin joins in

the motion to strike out the testimony.

Mr. McDonald.—The defendant Kassmir joins

in the motion.

Mr, McMillan.—And the defendant Robinson.
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The COURT.—I think you ought to make some

statement for the record, Mr. Sweeney.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I don't understand what the

particular motion is.

Mr. HARRIS.—The motion is to strike out the

testimony given by this witness from the record,

on the ground it is a confidential communication.

The COURT.—On the ground it was procured in

a confidential [399] relationship.

Mr. SWEENEY.—As I understand the rule, not

all information that is acquired while a person is a

clerk or a secretary is confidential; for instance,

the matter of signature is a matter in which a per-

son might be able to raise the curtain of confiden-

tial communication and use it as a screen for com-

mitting crime. The privilege, itself, is a matter

of the client. If Mr. Robinson's clients were here,

or something of that character, complaining as to

it—

The COURT.—The matter of obtaining informa-

tion as to a man's signature, in my opinion, is not

a matter of confidential communication. The ob-

jection will be overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McGrEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. McDonald.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—I desire to answer counsel's

statement. I just want to call your Honor's at-

tention to the section covering that very point.

Section 1881 of the Code of Civil Procedure (read-

ing).
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The COURT.—It is not the opinion of the Court

that that pertains to knowledge acquired of a

person's handwriting. The ruling will stand.

Mr. HARRIS.—Note an exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Note an exception.

Mr. McDonald.—Note an exception.

Mr. McGrEE.—Note an exception.

TESTIMONY OF LETICIA W. McCLINTOCK,
FOR THE UNITED STATES.

LETICIA W. McCLINTOCK, a witness produced

on behalf of the United States, being first duly

sworn, testified in substance as follows : [400]

Direct Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
During the year 1925 I resided at 3151 California

Street. The signature on that letter you have asked

me to identify is the signature of Harry Kassmir.

(Here a letter addressed to Miss Clara Oliver,

1696 Green Street, dated May 6, 1927, signed Harry

Kassmir, was marked U. S. Exhibit 37 for Identi-

fication.)

(Here witness is shown two letters, and identifies

the signatures as the signatures of Harry Kassmir.

One is a letter addressed to Miss Clara Oliver,

dated March 15, 1926, signed by Harry Kassmir

and is marked U, S. Exhibit 38 for Identification.

The other letter is addressed to Mr. John J. Allen,

dated March 8, 1927, Seattle, Washington, and
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signed by Harry M. Kassmir, and is marked U. S.

Exhibit 39 for Identification.

(Witness is here shown letter addressed to Mr.

Ernest C. Hipp, dated April 1, 1925, signed by

Cromwell Simon Company, E. Hoffman, marked

in the corner "OEG/H," and is asked if she knew

Eleanor Hoffman. Witness testifies that she knew

Eleanor Hoffman, that she was a stenographer em-

ployed dm'ing February, March and April of 1925

for Cromwell Simon Company in the Mills Build-

ing ; that the signature of said letter is that of said

Eleanor Hoffman. The letter was marked U. S.

Exhibit 40 for Identification.)

I know the defendants Harry M. Kassmir, Orton

Goodwin, J. W. Randolph and Samuel H. Robin-

son. Met Mr. Kassmir for the first time probably

the end of 1924, as salesman for J. H. Corbin &
Co. I had been doing business with J. H. Corbin

& Co. at that time. I recall when Mr. Kassmir left

the employ of J. H. Corbin & Co. ; had business

transactions with him at that time; it was just a

continuation. He contemplated going into business

for himself, he asked me if I would like to see him

improve his position, and I [401] said certainly,

and then he brought up Mr. Cromwell Simon. I

am not sure about the date. It might have been

in January, 1925. At that time I had securities in

the custody or control of J. H. Corbin & Co. which

I turned over to Kassmir as collateral for the stock

that he was buying for me. The purchase agree-

ments, which you now show me, I signed them, I
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never did business with anybody but Kassmir. I

bought 100 shares of General Motors, at least he

was supposed to buy them for me. I gave as col-

lateral 20 shares of P. G. & E. A copy of the con-

tract that I signed was not given to me. Under

the second purchase agreement I bought 100 shares

of Marland Oil, and gave as collateral security 12

Owl Drug Preferred. Then I bought 100 Radio

Corporation of America shares, and put up as col-

lateral 10 shares of Standard Oil of N. J. and 10

of Great Western Power. The next purchase agree-

ment, I bought 100 shares of Union Oil of Califor-

nia, and the next purchase agreement, 100 shares

of Standard Oil of New Jersey. The latter pur-

chase agreement was March 13, 1925, and I put up

as collateral or security 10 shares of Great Western

Power. And the next one is 10 shares of Tennessee

Electric Company. The date of the next purchase

agreement was March 13, 100 shares of Pacij&c Oil,

and the amount of collateral put up by me was 13

shares of Anglo London Paris National Bank. I

never got any of the stock that I ordered, and I

never got returned to me any of the stock or security

that I put up as collateral. I had so many conver-

sations with Mr. Kassmir immediately after the for-

mation of the Cromwell Simon Compan}^, I have for-

gotten any one in particular. The character of

business he said he was going into was to purchase

stock on the installment plan. He said Cromwell

Simon had put in $200,000. Later on, I was called

down to the Corporation Commissioner at a hear-
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ing. The contract dated May 15, 1925, which you

are showing me, I have read it so many times I

know it by heart. I signed this contract after the

hearing and it says here why I signed it. It was

to help him out [402] before the Corporation

Department.

EXCEPTION No. 24.

Mr. SWEENEY.—If your Honor please, I will

offer this in evidence as Government's Exhibit next

in order.

The COURT.—For identification, or in evidence ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—In evidence, your Honor.

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to, as far as the

defendant Randolph is concerned as being in no

way binding upon him, a hearsay transaction be-

tween strangers to him, immaterial, irrelevant and

incompetent.

Mr. McMillan,—The defendant Robinson joins

in that objection.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled.

Mr. SWEENEY.—It is part of the scheme, that

is the 'Government's contention.

The COURT.—It will be received and marked

next in order.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 12.)

Mr. SWEENEY.—I will read it. (Reading.)

[403]
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EXCEPTION No. 25.

Q. Now, Mrs. McClintock, let me have, please, the

circumstances under which this agreement was en-

tered into by you. Let me withdraw that question.

I will ask you can you identify that. A. Yes.

Q. What is that? That is your signature, is it

not? A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I ask that this be introduced

in evidence as Government's exhibit next in order.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection as made to

the last exhibit.

Mr. McMillan.—We join in the objection.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
My. McMillan.—Exception.
(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 13.)

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Will you please tell the

Court and jury the circumstances under which that

contract which I read was entered into, and this

receipt ?

The COURT.—Q. What were the circumstances

under which you made this contract and the receipt ?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Take them in your hand

and tell us in your own langniage the circumstances.

The COURT.—As to how you came to enter into

that—^not as to the terms, but how you came to enter

into that.

A. Well, he called on me and he wanted me to

cancel the certificate that they had issued for the

stock I had purchased, or that I thought I had
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purchased—he came to me, and in order to get

things straightened out with the Corporation De-

partment he asked me if I would cancel these cer-

tificates of purchase, and in return he made out

this contract, and I was to receive $200 a month.

Q. In other words, he wanted you to substitute

these payments for those certificates?

A. Yes. [404]

Q. Did he tell you why he wanted to do it?

A. Well, to clear his name before the Corpora-

tion Department, so he could be helped out in some

way, I don't know his exact words.

Mr. SWEENEY.—With reference to that receipt,

as I understand, Mrs, McClintoek, you gave that

receipt ?

A. I received nothing for this receipt; he simply

made it out and asked me to sign it, and that was

also in relation to the Corporation Department.

Q. You gave that receipt to Mr. Kassmir, did you

not?

A. I did, but I received nothing in return.

Q. And later on he returned the receipt to you?

A. I think, I am not quite sure, but I think I

signed two; I think he kept one and gave me this

one.

The COURT.—They were duplicates, however?

A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. In other words, he still

has that receipt from you?

A. I think so, I am not sure about it; I am not

so sure, but I think I signed two.
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Q. How many pajnnents of $200 were made to

you under the contract?

A. Well, there were quite a few, but I could not

say exactly how many.

The COUET.—Q. What do you mean by "quite

a few"?

A, I meant I got them for over a year, until he

went to Seattle. I never talked business with Mr.

Randolph. Mr. Randolph and Mr. Kassmir never

called at my house. About September, 1925, or

1926. I am not so sure about that. Mr. Kassmir

did speak about his business enterprise in Los An-

geles.

EXCEPTION No. 26.

Q. What was the nature of the conversation you

had with Mr. Kassmir at that time ?

A. He was going- down

—

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to as calling

for the conclusion of the witness, what the nature

of it was, and no proper [405] foundation has

been laid as to the parties present.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Who was present at that

conversation, Mrs. McClintock ? A. Mr. Kassmir.

Q. What was the conversation, what did Mr.

Kassmir say?

Mr. McGEE.—That is objected to on behalf of

the defendant Goodwin on the ground that it could

not be binding on him, and because he was not con-

nected with the concern in Los Angeles, he had no

license connected with any enterprise in Los An-

geles, he worked in San Francisco for three months.
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and after that had nothing- to do with it ; we object

to any conversation this lady had with anyl)ody

about any Los Angeles concern.

Mr. HARRIS.—I would like to add the further

objection that it is incompetent, for the reason that

it is the alleged relation of a co-conspirator after

any conspirac}^ which might have existed had been

consummated. This is now in September, 1925,

at a time when this conspiracy terminated.

The COURT.—When do you fix the date that you

can put in proof to?

Mr. SWEENEY.—There is an allegation in the

indictment that prior to the date of certain letters,

and the last letter is somewhere in 1927, if I remem-

ber right.

The COURT.—Have you it on record, so that we

can know?

Mr. SWEENEY.—Certainly there are letters in

1926.

The COURT.—I am just asking you what date

you are contending that you can put in proof for,

so that we can fix the date after which the declara-

tions of a defendant will only appertain to himself

and not to his associates.

Mr. SWEENEY.—March 8, 1927.

Mr. HARRIS.—Is it my understanding that it

is counsel's contention that up to March, 1927

—

Mr. SWEENEY.—March 8, 1927. [406]

Mr. HARRIS.—(Continuing.) —the scheme had

not until that time been consummated or completed

:

Is that it?
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Mr. SWEENEY.—It was in operation up to that

time.

Mr. HARRIS.—Of course, if counsel connects

that up my objection may not be good.

The COURT.—That is why I wanted him to fix

the date.

Mr. McGEE.—How, do I understand that there

is a date when this conspiracy is supposed to have

ceased, or is it still in existence?

Mr. SWEENEY.—It was in existence up to

March 8, 1927.

Mr. McGEE.—Not after that?

Mr. SWEENEY.—We do not contend it is in

existence now.

The COURT.—Q. This date is what, that you

are testifying to?

Mr. SWEENEY.—September, 1925, when he

went to Los Angeles.

The COURT.—The objection will be overruled

and the question allowed.

Mr. HARRIS.—We will note an exception, and

reserve our motion to strike out.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. What was the nature of

the conversation j^ou had with Mr. Kassmir—what

was the conversation you had with Mr, Kassmir at

that time?

A. That he was going down to Los Angeles to

open up a business to get away from the Corpora-

tion Department of San Francisco.

Q. Did he say who was going down with him?
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A. Mr. Randolph.

After Mr. Kassmir went to Seattle, which I be-

lieve was in March, 1926, I did make a request of

him to return to me the stock and money I had in-

vested with him. It might have been in 1925, it

might have been in 1927; my confusion is as to

whether it was one year ago or two years ago. I

had a conversation with Mr. [407] Kassixdr con-

cerning some business in Reno. I am mixed up in

the year again. It was before he went to Los An-

geles. He went in September, but I don't remem-

ber the year. The telegram you show me to refresh

my recollection,—September 20, 1925, that is not

correct. That telegram is from Los Angeles; I

received that on Gough Street; that was not in

1925, it was long after the hearing before the Cor-

poration Commissioner that I had this conversa-

tion with Mr. Kassmir concerning the Reno busi-

ness; it must have been along in August, Jul}^ or

August.

EXCEPTION No. 27.

Q. What was the conversation you had at that

time with Mr, Kassmir?

Mr. McGEE.—Objected to on behalf of the de-

fendant Goodwin on the ground it is immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, hearsay testimony, and

not binding on the defendant Goodwin, unless it is

showTi he was present at the time the conversation

took place.

A. It was in August, 3925.
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Mr. HARRIS.—That objection is adopted by the

defendant Randolph.

Mr. McMillan.—Also by the defendant Robin-

son.

The COURT.—Overruled.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. What was the conversa-

tion, as best you remember it.

A. Before he went to Reno, or before he opened

the office in Reno?

Q. Before the Reno business.

A. He was just going to open up an office up

there.

Q. What was the rest of the conversation?

A. I talked so much with him that I don't re-

member.

Q. You don't remember at this time?

A. No, not the exact conversation. [408]

Q. Did he say who was going to open up the

office with him up in Reno?

Mr. HARRIS.—That is objected to as leading

and suggestive. She has already said she does not

know.

The COURT.—I will allow the question.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
A. It was supposed to be a continuation of the

office in San Francisco.

Mr. McGEE.—I ask that the answer go out as

calling for a conclusion, and not responsive.
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The COURT.—Q. Did he say that, or was that

your conclusion?

A. Well—

Q. Just answer my question. Did he say that to

you, or is that merely your conclusion?

A. No, he said it to me.

The COURT.-The motion is denied.

EXCEPTION No. 28.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. I will ask you Mrs. Mc-

Clintock, if you can identify these letters.

A. Yes.

Q. From whom did you get them?

A. From Harry M. Kassmir.

Q. How did they come to you?

A. Through the mail.

Q. Do you know when you received them, in what

year? A. 1926.

Q. 1926? A. Yes.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I would like to have these

marked as Government's exhibit next in order,

your Honor.

Mr. McGEE.—On behalf of the defendant Good-

win, I object on the ground they are immaterial,

irrelevant, and incompetent, and hearsay, as far

as Goodwin is concerned, he having severed his

connection with this company on the 2d of July,

1925, and all of this transaction having taken place

subsequent to that time.

Mr. McMillan.—We make the same objection

as to the defendant [409] Robinson.
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The COURT.—Overruled.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
Mr. McMillan.—Exception.
Mr. HARRIS.—Objected to on tlie ground it is

hearsay, incompetent, the proper foundation not

having been laid.

The COURT.—I do not know, unless I see the

letters, as to whether they do pertain to this matter,

at all. (Reading.)

Q. Who is this "Harry"?

A. That is Harry M. Kassmir.

The COURT.—They will be received in evidence.

The objection is overruled.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.
Mr. McGEE.—Exception.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

(The document was marked U. S. Exhibit 14.)

(Wliich original exhibit is before this Honorable

Court by stipulation and order.)

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Now, Mrs. McClintock,

reverting once more to these certificates here, what

was your conversation with Mr, Kassmir with

reference to the purchase of the stock which you

ordered 1

A. He purchased it on the installment plan.

Q. Do you know that of your own knowledge?

Mr. McGEE.—I submit, if your Honor please, he

has asked the question, and he is bound by the

answer of the witness.

The COURT.—I will allow the question.

Mr. McGEE.—Exception.
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Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Did you understand my
question?

The COURT.—Q. Did you take someone's word

for it that it was purchased, or do you know your-

self, that it was purchased'?

A. I did not see it.

Q. In other words, you base your answer on the

fact that he told you. A. Yes.

Q. That is all you know about it?

A. Yes, I did not see them.

Mr. SWEENEY.—Q. Did you ever get them?

A. No.

Q. Did you ever get your collateral back?

A. No. [410]

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is all from this witness

at this time.

Mr. McMillan.—On behalf of the defendant

Robinson

—

The COURT.—Any further questions!

Mr. McMillan.—I have no question.

EXCEPTION No. 29,

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is all from this witness

at this time.

The COURT.—Any further questions?

Mr. McMillan.—I have no questions.

On behalf of the defendant RIobinson we move

to strike all of the testimony of this witness upon

the following grounds: First, that the testimony as

against him is hearsay, the proper foundation has

not been laid, and there is no testimony showing
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that he ever authorized or sanctioned, or took any

part in any statements or representations that were

made, that he ever authorized or sanctioned any

of the letters that were sent through the United

States mail and the transaction testified to by the

witness, so far as he was concerned, was res inter

alios acta, and there is no testimony showing that

he ever made any statement or representation or

sanctioned [411] or authorized any representa-

tion made in furtherance either of a general plan

or scheme to defraud, or of a general plan or scheme

in furtherance of fraud to use the United States

mails.

The COURT.—The objection is overruled.

Mr. McMillan.—Exception.

Mr. HARRIS.—The same objection on behalf

of the defendant Randolph.

The COURT.—The same ruling.

Mr. HARRIS.—Exception.

Cross-examination.

(By Mr. McDONALD.)

I was a client of J. H. Corbin & Co. for some

time, when Mr. Kassmir was the manager of that

company. I was friendly with Mr. Kassmir to a

certain extent, that he took an interest in me. He
called at my home in a business way. I knew Mr.

Cromwell Simon. Met him at my house. He came

up to tell me that he was going to go into the broker-

age business with Mr. Kassmir. There was nothing

said about Mr. Simon's business; it was Mr, Kass-
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mir's business. Mr. Simon did not tell me any-

thing about this. Mr. Kassmir did all the talking.

Nothing mentioned about Mr. Simon making a great

deal of money in Cast Iron Pipe but Kassmir said

that Simon was going to put $200,000 into the busi-

ness. They started in business in the Mills Build-

ing. The understanding was that if he went into

business I should transfer my account. At that

time I had an account with J. H. Corbin Company

and there was some slight indebtedness in that ac-

count, some payments that I had not paid up on

stock that I was purchasing on the partial payment

plan from Corbin & Co. at that time. I don't re-

member anything being said about Mr. Kassmir tak-

ing it up in the firm of Cromwell Simon. The idea

was that it was to go on as before and the account

was to be transferred over to Cromwell Simon Com-

pany. Shortly before the hearing before the Cor-

poration Commission, Mr. Kassmir came to see me

but he did not tell me that he was deceived in re-

gard to Mr. Cromwell Simon, that Mr. Cromwell

Simon did not have $200,000. He did not tell me
that the Corporation Commissioner was questioning

their financial responsibility. He said they had

to go up there for some reason, but he did not

specify just what. It was not until after the hear-

ing that I made the agreement with Mr. Cromwell

Simon; Mr. Kassmir sent me $200.00 a month up

to the time [412] he went to Se^v^ttle. I had to

do a lot of talking sometimes to get it, but I finally

got it. Yes, I got $200.00 when he went up there,
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but I don't know just how many times it was. That

was when I had to razz him to death to get it. Ed-

ward McClintock, who has been mentioned here as

an agent of the Cromwell Simon Company, is my
son.

(By Mr. HAERIS.)

Did not see Mr. Randolph very often. I was

around the offices of Cromwell Simon Co. a few

times, not many. Saw Mr. Randolph maybe two

or three times. Knew Mr. Kassmir and Mr. Simon

during all of their business affairs here in San

Francisco. Mr. Randolph did not do any business

with me directly.

Redirect Examination.

(By Mr. SWEENEY.)
The value of the stock and money I gave to Mr.

Kassmir was approximately $14,000, but it is worth

a whole lot more today.

Mr. SWEENEY.—I would like to read this let-

ter (reading).

Q. This letter speaks of a check coming to you.

Did you ever get it?

A. I could not say. His saying so did not mean

I was going to get it.

Mr. SWEENEY.—That is all.

Mr. HARRIS.—I just want to ask one question

I possibly overlooked.
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